

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


PINOLE CITY COUNCIL  
MEETING AGENDA 


CITY COUNCIL 
 


Devin T. Murphy, Mayor  
Maureen Toms, Mayor Pro Tem 
Cameron Sasai, Council Member 
Anthony Tave, Council Member 


Norma Martínez-Rubin, Council Member 
 


TUESDAY 
June 6, 2023 


5:00 P.M 
Please note:  HYBRID MEETING FORMAT  


Attend in Person: PINOLE CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS - 2131 PEAR STREET  
OR 


Attend VIA ZOOM TELECONFERENCE – Details provided below 
 


 
 


 
How to Submit Public Comments: 


In Person:  Attend meeting at the Pinole City Council Chambers, fill out a yellow public comment 
card and submit it to the City Clerk. 


Via Zoom: 
Members of the public may submit a live remote public comment via Zoom video conferencing. Download 
the Zoom mobile app from the Apple Appstore or Google Play. If you are using a desktop computer, you 
can test your connection to Zoom by clicking here. Zoom also allows you to join the meeting by phone. 


From a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone or Android:     
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89335000272 


Webinar ID: 893 3500 0272 
By phone:   +1 (669) 900-6833  or  +1 (253) 215-8782  or  +1 (346) 248-7799    


• Speakers will be asked to provide their name and city of residence, although providing this 
is not required for participation. 


• Each speaker will be afforded up to 3 minutes to speak (subject to modification by the 
Mayor) 


• Speakers will be muted until their opportunity to provide public comment. 
 
When the Mayor opens the comment period for the item you wish to speak on, please use the 
“raise hand” feature (or press *9 if connecting via telephone) which will alert staff that you have 
a comment to provide and press *6 to unmute.  To comment with your video enabled, please let 
the City Clerk know you would like to turn your camera on once you are called to speak. 
Written Comments: All comments received before 3:00 pm the day of the meeting will 
be posted on the City’s website on the agenda page (Agenda Page Link) and provided to the 
City Council prior to the meeting.  Written comments will not be read aloud during the meeting.                 


CORONAVIRUS ADVISORY 
INFORMATION: 
 
CLICK HERE for City Updates 
 
CLICK HERE for County Updates 


1 of 829



https://www.zoom.us/join

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89335000272

https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/city_council/agendas_and_minutes

http://pinoleca.hosted.civiclive.com/city_government/coronavirus

https://www.coronavirus.cchealth.org/





City Council   
Agenda – June 6, 2023 
Page 2  


Email comments to comment@ci.pinole.ca.us Please indicate which item on the agenda you 
are commenting on in the subject line of your email. 
 
Please note:  Updated COVID-19 safety protocols will be posted outside the City Council 
Chambers.  Please review this information before entering the Council Chambers. 


 
OTHER WAYS TO WATCH THE MEETING 


 
LIVE ON CHANNEL 26.  They are retelecast the following Thursday at 6:00 p.m.  The Community TV Channel 26 
schedule is published on the city’s website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.   
 
VIDEO-STREAMED LIVE ON THE CITY’S WEBSITE, www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  and remain archived on the site for five 
(5) years. 
 
If none of these options are available to you, or you need assistance with public comment, please 
contact the City Clerk, Heather Bell at (510) 724-8928 or hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us . 
 
 
Americans With Disabilities Act:  In compliance with the Americans With Disabilities Act of 1990, if you need 
special assistance to participate in a City Meeting or you need a copy of the agenda, or the agenda packet in an 
appropriate alternative format, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at (510) 724-8928.  Notification at least 48 hours 
prior to the meeting or time when services are needed will assist the City staff in assuring that reasonable 
arrangements can be made to provide accessibility to the meeting or service. 
 
Note:  Staff reports are available for inspection on the City Website at www.ci.pinole.ca.us.  You may also contact the 
City Clerk via e-mail at hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us . 


Ralph M. Brown Act.  Gov. Code § 54950.  In enacting this chapter, the Legislature finds and 
declares that the public commissions, boards and councils and the other public agencies in this 
State exist to aid in the conduct of the people's business.  It is the intent of the law that their 
actions be taken openly and that their deliberations be conducted openly.  The people of this State 
do not yield their sovereignty to the agencies, which serve them.  The people, in delegating 
authority, do not give their public servants the right to decide what is good for the people to know 
and what is not good for them to know.  The people insist on remaining informed so that they may 
retain control over the instruments they have created. 


2 of 829



mailto:comment@ci.pinole.ca.us

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/

mailto:hbell@ci.pinole.ca.us





 


Pinole City Council  
Agenda –June 6, 2023 
Page 3 


1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY 
TROOPS 


 
2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of 
this land. We pay our respects to the Ohlone elders, past, present, and future, who call this place, Ohlone 
Land, the land that Pinole sits upon, their home. We are proud to continue their tradition of coming 
together and growing as a community. We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and 
support, and we look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of mutual respect 
and understanding. 
 
3. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT 
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself /herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov't Code § 87105. 
 
4. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.   
 


None 
 


5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
6. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is subject to 
modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  Pursuant to 
provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or 
unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may direct staff to investigate 
and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council meeting.  PLEASE SEE THE 
COVERSHEET OF THE AGENDA FOR INSTRUCTIONS ON HOW TO SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 
7.          REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  


 
A. Mayor Report 


1. Announcements 
 
B. Mayoral & Council Appointments 
 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 


 
D. Council Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 
E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
  
F. City Attorney Report 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


3 of 829







City Council   
Agenda – June 6, 2023 
Page 4  


8. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS 
 
A. Proclamations  


 
1. Juneteenth 
2. Pride 
3. Filipino Independence Day 


 
B. Presentations  


 
1.  Pinole Valley High School Debate Team - Indigenous Peoples Day  


 
9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These items 
will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or Council 
member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the Consent 
Calendar. Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will be removed from 
the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent Calendar. 
 


A. Approve the Minutes of the April 29, 2023 Special Council meeting and the 
Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on May 16, 2023. 


 
B. Receive the May 12, 2023 – June 2, 2023 – List of Warrants in the Amount of 


$1,296,377.94 and the May 26, 2023, Payroll in the Amount of $ 467,161.97. 
 


C. Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 Third Quarter Report on Status of Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP) Projects [Action:  Receive Report (Mishra)] 


 
D. Receive The Quarterly Report on Implementation of the Strategic Plan for Fiscal 


Year (FY) 2022-23 Third Quarter [Action: Receive Report (Murray)] 
 
E. Receive the Quarterly Report on Implementation of the Greenhouse Gas 


Inventory and Climate Action and Adaptation Plan for Fiscal Year (FY) 2022-23 
Third Quarter [Action: Receive Report (Whalen)] 


 
F. Receive The Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 Third Quarter Financial Report [Action:  


Receive Report (Guillory)] 
 
G. Receive the Quarterly Investment Report for the Third Quarter (Ending March 31, 


2023) [Action:  Receive Report (Guillory)] 
 


H. Adopt a Resolution Approving the Submittal of Calendar Years 2020 and 2021 
Growth Management Program (GMP) Compliance Checklist for Allocation of 
Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 Measure J Local Street Maintenance and 
Improvement Funds by the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA)  
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Whalen)] 


 
I. Second Reading of Ordinance Approving a Military  Equipment Use Policy and 


Approving Renewal of Chapter 2.60 “Military Equipment Policy” of the Pinole 
Municipal Code [Action:  Waive Second Read and Adopt Ordinance per Staff 
Recommendation (Casher)] 


 


4 of 829







City Council   
Agenda – June 6, 2023 
Page 5  


J. Award a Construction Contract for Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements (CIP 
Project # SW1901) [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(Dhillon)] 


 
K. Adopt a Resolution to Approve a List of Projects for Fiscal Year 2023/24 Funded 


by SB 1: The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Mishra)] 


 
L. Public Communication Plan Regarding City Street Condition and Pavement 


Management Program [Action:  Receive Report and Provide Direction (Mishra)] 
 
M. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute an Agreement with RSG, 


Inc. for Assistance with Implementation of Various Economic Development 
Action Steps in Year 1 of the Adopted Economic Development Strategy [Action:  
Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Whalen)] 


 
N. Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute the First Amendment to the 


Agreement with Strategic Energy Innovations (SEI) to Extend the Climate Fellow 
Contract by Two Months [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(Whalen)] 


 
O. Adopt Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Second Amendment 


to a Consulting Services Agreement with Michael Baker International (MBI) to 
Complete Development Impact Fees Study [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (Whalen)] 


 
P. Report on How the City is Preparing to Apply for Funds from the Infrastructure 


Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) [Action:  Receive Report (Guillory)] 
 


10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to the completion of the 
presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk.  An official who engaged in an ex parte 
communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose the communication on the record prior 
to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 


A. FY 2022/23 Annual Review of Utility Users’ Tax and Adoption of a Resolution 
Modifying Household Income Eligibility Thresholds for Utility Users’ Tax 
Exemptions for FY 2023/24 [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation 
(Guillory)] 
 


11. OLD BUSINESS 
 


A. Revised Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
[Action:  Receive Report and Provide Direction (Guillory)] 


 
B. Revised Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Through 2027/28 Five-Year     


Capital Improvement Plan [Action:  Receive Report and Provide Direction 
(Dhillon)] 


 
12.       NEW BUSINESS 
 


A. Procurement Process for Successor Solid Waste and Recyclables Franchise 
Agreement [Receive Report and Provide Direction (Dhillon)] 


 


5 of 829







City Council   
Agenda – June 6, 2023 
Page 6  


B. Senior Center Interior Upgrades [Action:  Receive Report and Provide Direction 
(Mishra)] 


 
 


  
13. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Continued from Item 6) (Public Comments)  
Open only to members of the public who did not speak under the first Citizens to Be Heard, 
Agenda Item 6 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes for City Council items 
and is subject to modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker. Pursuant to 
provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on the agenda, or unless certain 
emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain 
matters for consideration at a future meeting. 
 
 
14. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of June 20, 2023 in 
Remembrance of Amber Swartz.  
 
I hereby certify under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing Agenda was 
posted on the bulletin board at the main entrance of Pinole City Hall, 2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA, and on the City’s website, not less than 24 hours prior to the meeting date set 
forth on this agenda.  
 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
POSTED:  June 1, 2023 at 4:30pm 


6 of 829







Pinole City Council Special Meeting  
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 1 


CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES 


April 29, 2023   


1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS


The Special City Council Meeting was held in a hybrid format (in-person and via Zoom 
videoconference and broadcast) from the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, 
California.  Mayor Murphy called the Special Meeting of the City Council to order at 9:01 a.m. and 
led the Pledge of Allegiance. 


2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of 
this land.  We pay our respects to the Ohlone elders, past, present and future, who call this place, Ohlone 
Land, the land that Pinole sits upon, their home.  We are proud to continue their tradition of coming together 
and growing as a community.  We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and support, and we 
look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of mutual respect and understanding. 


3. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov. Code § 87105.   


A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 


Devin Murphy, Mayor  
Maureen Toms, Mayor Pro Tem   
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Council Member 
Cameron Sasai, Council Member  
Anthony Tave, Council Member 


B. STAFF PRESENT 


Andrew Murray, City Manager    
Eric Casher, City Attorney   
Heather Bell, City Clerk 
Lilly Whalen, Community Development Director 
Sanjay Mishra, Public Works Director  


City Clerk Heather Bell announced the agenda had been posted on Tuesday, April 25, 2023 at 
5:00 p.m. with all legally required written notices.  No written comments had been received in 
advance of the meeting.    


Following an inquiry, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items on the agenda. 


9A


7 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 2 
 


4. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is 
subject to modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on 
the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council 
meeting. 
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, referenced letters of correspondence and emails sent to the City Council or 
City staff and asked that a response be provided through email or a letter.  She had volunteered 
for over a year with the Food Bank and had notified the City via letters about issues and 
suggestions but had no response, and notices had been sent to other staff members with no 
comment.   She again requested that anytime someone submitted a letter or an email to the City 
a response to that letter or email should be provided in writing.   
 
Mayor Murphy asked the City Manager to contact Ms. Ruport to address the concerns.   
 
5. WORKSHOP ITEM  


 
A. Special City Council Meeting on Strategic Planning [Action:   Discuss and 


Provide direction (Murray)] 
 
City Manager Andrew Murray reported it had been the City Council’s practice to meet on a biennial 
basis to consider Long-Term Strategic Planning and receive training on best practices in 
governance.  The Special City Council meeting was intended to focus on strategic planning with 
the bulk of the meeting to focus on training from Patrick Ibarra with The Mejorando Group who 
would facilitate the meeting.  The City Council would then review the existing Strategic Plan with 
the consultants who had prepared the plan.  The consultants had recommended as good practice 
that the City Council review the Plan at the mid-point of its life span to confirm it met the City’s 
needs and was updated as appropriate.  The City Council would then discuss projects scheduled 
for City staff to work on over the coming year, incorporate them into the budget, and discuss a 
process for an additional project list City staff had been asked to provide. 
 
Mayor Murphy clarified for the benefit of the public that public comment would be opened 
numerous times throughout the meeting to provide input on the different topics of discussion.     
 
Patrick Ibarra, Principal, The Mejorando Group, explained that he would be discussing with the 
City Council its role individually and collectively as a governing body.  The City Council had been 
provided materials that included an agenda for the training session.  The intent was to commence 
the training session with a brief recess from 10:15 to 10:30 a.m., break for lunch from 11:30 to 
12:00, with a hard stop at 1:30 p.m.  
 
Mr. Ibarra commenced the training session which included an overview of the benefits of good 
government, team effectiveness and collaboration, roles of the Council-Manager form of 
operation, review and possible revisions to the 2020-2025 Strategic Plan and a review of staff’s 
baseline work activities, Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) projects and other special projects the 
City Council assigned to staff beyond the Strategic Plan and CIP.   
 


8 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 3 
 


In terms of the benefits of good government the City Council identified and discussed with Mr. 
Ibarra the following topics:   
 


- Better services; 
- Better facilities; 
- Guiding growth; 
- Some people were happier than others;   
- Broad representation; 
- Unbiased presentation;  
- Increased awareness of individual Council members and how they worked or didn’t  work; 
- Increase or decrease in home values; 
- Connecting different communities; 
- Workshopping and redefining the quality of life in terms of government services; and 
- Crafting an environment to amplify the community voice as well as increase community 


engagement in the most equitable way. 
 
Mr. Ibarra highlighted and discussed how the City Council could enhance its credibility as a 
governing body on the topics of politics, ethics, citizens, services, finances, employees and the 
results achieved.    
 
The City Council discussed how the community viewed its role as a policy maker and identified 
the following:    
 


- Creditability was always a question; 
- Council members were also residents wearing the hat of resident and representative; and 
- The re-imagination and resource gap was critical since it leaned into the un-comfortability 


of other questions around equity, who gets what, how resources were distributed in a 
public agency and what partners were responsible for deciding that and the solution that 
needed to be discussed further.   


 
The strategies for creating a more collaborative and effective City Council were also highlighted 
and discussed including:   
 


- Develop a sense of team – a partnership with the City Manager to govern and manage 
the City; 


- Civility and Council Member behavior; 
- Think and act strategically; 
- Respect “shared constituency;” 
- Understand and demonstrate the elements of teams and teamwork; 
- Have clearly defined roles and relationships; 
- Honor the Council-staff partnership; 
- Allocate governing body time and energy appropriately; 
- Clear rules and procedures for Council meetings; 
- Practice continuous personal learning and development as a leader; 
- Communication and problem solving; 
- Separate the people from the problem; 
- Focus on interests; 
- Invent options for mutual gain; 
- Distinctions between values, interests and positions; 


9 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 4 
 


- Insist on using objective criteria; 
- Be attentive; 
- Ask clarifying questions; 
- Let people know you are listening; and  
- Effective public engagement. 


 
The City Council identified and discussed additional topics or further defined the above, to help 
the City Council in its role as elected officials to be better individually or collectively, as follows:   
 


- Distinction between values, interest and positions; 
- Understanding backgrounds of individuals (i.e. geopolitical impacts) which help to define 


positions; 
- Positons may evolve, interest may grow, but values were baseline; 
- Insisting on using objective criteria was in contrast which builds the tension unlike the 


objective criteria necessary for tangible things; and 
- Need to rely on staff for its objective criteria which should also stem from the City Council 


and what staff brings as individuals.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, described the presentation as enlightening.  In terms of enhancing 
creditability, she had attended City Council meetings on a routine basis and offered comments 
but had never held elected office.  She suggested the City Council and staff needed trust that 
they were doing the right thing.  During past election cycles, there had been division in the 
community due to conflicts such as the community not being informed, a lack of transparency and 
promises made but not kept.  She suggested issues of bias should be addressed then and there 
not a year or four years later.  Most of the current City staff had only been employed with the City 
of Pinole for a few years, there was a new Council and there had been some pushback from some 
long-time elected officials leading to some residents being wary about participating in local 
government.  She urged everyone to learn and grow from each other and do better with civility, 
respect and knowledge of one’s job.  She emphasized the community was speaking on Nextdoor 
and other platforms and there was a desire to bring the City to the level if should be at this time.   
 
Maria Alegria, Pinole, had written comments related to the Strategic Plan but would hold off on 
those comments at this time given that the comments may exceed the three-minute time limit for 
public comment.   She asked the City Council to be flexible when the discussion moved into the 
Strategic Plan. 
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, reported on the COVID-19 case rate in the City of Pinole, which had 
decreased to the point where he was now comfortable not wearing a mask indoors.  He reported 
the audio from the Council was not clear and he asked that the Council members speak directly 
into the microphone to allow the public to hear all comments, particularly for those listening 
remotely.  He suggested it was important to recognize that the role of the City Council was political 
and at the Council level it was not feasible not to be political.  Politics was about making choices 
and allocation of resources in certain ways but done in a way that harmonized and balanced 
values when in conflict.   
 
 


10 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 5 
 


Mr. Menis suggested it was also important when discussing shared constituency to remember 
that most of the time there were only three open Council seats during an election cycle, but more 
than that number of people ran for office and not every Council member would have votes from 
all constituents.  He emphasized that Council members were elected to represent everyone in the 
City as a whole.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Mayor Murphy declared a brief recess at 10:22 a.m.  The Special City Council meeting 
reconvened at 10:33 a.m. with all Council members present.   
 
Mr. Ibarra provided an overview of the City’s form of operations and the role of elected officials 
including the City Manager, Department Directors, City staff and community members, and the 
City Council identified and discussed the following topics: 
 
Role of the City Council: 
 


- Listen and ask questions; 
- Research ideas; 
- Bring ideas to life; 
- Preparation for discussion informed by the research done by others and the City Council; 
- Collaboration with each other and outside of the group; 
- Communicate with staff, the public and each other; 
- Fact checking; 
- Explain to the public why votes are made; and  
- Ensure fiscal and mental health and support each’s other’s behavioral health. 


 
Role of the City Manager:  
 


- The conduit between the City Council and staff; 
- Distill and funnel multiple ideas from various perspectives and create those into something 


that was useful for informed decision making; 
- Translate operational ideas into services and actions to ensure they were being 


accomplished; and 
- Set expectations on what was doable and what was not. 


 
Role of Department Directors: 
 


- Carry out implementation of various plans;  
- Answer questions;  
- Advisors to the City Council;  
- Advisors to the City Manager; and  
- Facilitate and foster highly motivated teams and foster the mental and behavioral health 


of staff. 
 
Role of City Staff: 
 


- Work directly with the public; 


11 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 6 
 


- Keep the physical doors of City Hall open and the actual functioning task of City Hall 
moving as agreed upon; and 


- Record what they do. 
 
Role of Community Members: 
 


- Vote; 
- Pay taxes; 
- Advocate;  
- Participate;  
- Seek information from a credible source; and  
- Responsibility to hold the City Council accountable.  


 
Mr. Ibarra provided a PowerPoint presentation which highlighted the strategies for the goals of 
the Strategic Plan including:   
 


- Goal 1:  Safe and Resilient Pinole  
- Goal 2:  Financially Stable Pinole   
- Goal 3:  Vibrant and Beautiful Pinole   
- Goal 4:  High Performance Pinole 


 
City Manager Murray explained, when asked, that the Strategic Plan included a section on the 
development process.  The Strategic Plan pre-dated his employ with the City as well as some of 
the current City Council.  He was unaware of the definitive history why things may or may not be 
on the list of strategies but the City Council may consider things not reflected in the Strategic Plan, 
which were Council and community priorities including a request to consider pedestrian and street 
safety which had not been included as a strategy for Goal 1. Not all strategies were specific or 
measurable time-based goals.   
 
City Manager Murray provided a status report on each of the strategies for Goal 1, including the 
City had around ten different infrastructure asset classes that were in different stages of 
development as reflected in the CIP; a draft updated Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) had been 
previously presented to the City Council but would have to be revised due to the recent agreement 
with the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (CCCFPD); the Police Department had a 
recommendation for the Community Emergency Response Team (CERT) to be presented as part 
of the budget process; and Strategy 4 of Goal 1 had been completed as the City Council had 
reviewed different options for the fire study and had made a decision but it would continue to be 
monitored.   
 
City Manager Murray confirmed the City Council may add or modify the strategies in the Strategic 
Plan.   
 
As to the status of the strategies shown for Goal 2: Financially Stable Pinole, City Manager Murray 
reported the City would be issuing a Request for Proposal (RFP) to hire a consultant for grant 
research, prospecting and grant writing and the City Council explored a revenue measure in 2022 
for a Real Property Transfer Tax (RPTT) and an idea for a parcel tax, which was an ongoing item.   
Some of the strategies were not discreet but broad and reflected revenue generation 
opportunities.   
 


12 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 7 
 


For Goal 3: Vibrant and Beautiful Pinole, staff had been working on a number of fronts including 
working with private non-housing organizations such as Vista Woods and Satellite Affordable 
Housing Associates (SAHA).  
 
Mayor Murphy suggested Strategy 5 of Goal 3 be amended to read:   
 


Partner regionally to improve and enhance transportation circulation, including public 
transit, cars, bikes, and pedestrians guided by the review, prioritization and 
implementation of the 2019 Old Town Pedestrian Study and the development of an Active 
Transportation Plan.   
 


On the discussion, and with assistance from Mr. Ibarra, Mayor Pro Tem Toms suggested a further 
modification to Strategy 5 of Goal 3, as follows: 
 


When available partner regionally to improve and enhance transportation circulation, 
including public transit, cars, bikes, and pedestrians guided by the review, prioritization 
and implementation of the 2019 Old Town Pedestrian Study and the development of an 
Active Transportation Plan 


 
Mayor Murphy requested that Strategy 6 of Goal 3 be provided to the City Council in a more 
comprehensive fashion and that future code enforcement updates include the data to prove that 
there was a code enforcement problem and what education initiatives were needed to resolve the 
problem. 
 
City Manager Murray suggested the City Council make a motion to reflect any changes to the 
strategies under discussion, which would be reflected in an updated version of the Strategic Plan.  
As to Strategy 6 of Goal 3, he agreed there were two areas of City operation that could use more 
thorough review and a top to bottom assessment of current practices.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin recommended Strategy 6 of Goal 3 be amended to read:   
 


Conduct a review and update of the City’s code enforcement and property maintenance 
programs with a focus on increased beautification efforts and investment in community 
natural and cultural amenities, business districts, and nuisance abatement. 


 
As to the status of Strategy 7 of Goal 4:  High Performance Pinole, City Manager Murray reported 
staff would bring back to the City Council a proposal for some options for the City Council to 
establish a platform to develop an interagency legislative advocacy program.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Maria Alegria, Pinole, provided the City Council with copies of her written comments.   She hoped 
the City Council would not wait another two years to consider the Strategic Plan, particularly given 
new Council members.  As to Goal 1, she commented there were many opportunities for the City 
to repurpose parcels and she expressed concern with the status of the Emergency Preparedness 
and Response Plan and Fire Services Study.  She emphasized the Pinole Valley was a high 
priority for fire prevention and defensible space and she would like the City to be proactive given 
the potential for wildfire.   


13 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 8 
 


Ms. Alegria referenced Goal 2 and asked that the spending priorities for all tax measures be 
reviewed given they were intended for essential services and the latest Measure S had been used 
as a slush fund by staff to fund pet projects.  She was otherwise pleased the City would be 
exploring all grant opportunities but suggested the City also look at shared agreements such as 
with the City of Hercules on road maintenance.   
 
Ms. Alegria spoke to Goal 3 and reported that 20 years ago the County took on a project which 
all cities had participated for an assessment of underutilized properties, which she suggested be 
revisited.  She was pleased with the mention of prioritizing traffic safety corridor projects, 
particularly around schools and senior centers, and agreed that code enforcement should be a 
first priority with increased value when taking care of properties.  For Goal 4, she suggested better 
constituent services were needed.  The City was no longer under lockdown due to the pandemic 
and it needed an innovate approach to customer service, better responsiveness to community 
members and ways to be innovative and responsive through the Internet and online.   She also 
would like to know how the City ensured its policy priorities were being implemented by the City 
Manager.   
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, referenced the form of operations and suggested it was important for 
community members when attending City Council to remember that it’s the people who are in 
charge and all power in government flows from and belongs to the electorate, not the City Council.  
He stated that this is at the core of our system of government, encouraged members of the public 
to make comments and emphasized their importance.  As to Goal 2, he expressed concern with 
the budget being structurally imbalanced with revenues not matching expenditures, particularly 
given the likely increases in future California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) 
investments.  That issue needed to be accounted for in Goal 2 and should be addressed before 
it got out of hand.    
 
Mr. Menis also spoke to Goal 2 Strategy 4, and suggested that strategy had not been completed 
and there were revenue generating opportunities the City had not considered fully, including an 
expansion of the User Utility Tax (UUT) to cover water and wastewater. There had been a ballot 
measure attempt in 2010, which had failed but which offered a more equitable solution and the 
City should consider all potential revenue source increases and what was equitable in terms of 
seeking out revenue.  For Goal 3 Strategy 5, he offered language changes and rather than use 
the term “partner regionally” suggested “reach out to the community more broadly including 
regional and local partners.”  He added the strategies for each goal should be identified as either 
“in progress” or “completed.” 
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, referenced the form of operation and asked that the City Council revisit the 
roles, as shown.  She commented on the importance of knowing the role of the City Manager and 
the City Attorney, which could be done as a report on meeting agendas.  As to the goals under 
discussion, she noted the Strategic Plan had been prepared in 2020, and only one current Council 
member had been present at that time. The Strategic Plan should have been revisited before a 
consultant had been brought on board so that it could have been updated, revisited and the public 
better informed.  In the future, she asked that the City Council not wait so long to update reports 
and agreed with the need to identify immediate and long-tern needs, but in the short term they 
could not wait another two to five years.  She urged the City Council to be more proactive on the 
strategies.  She further referenced Goal 4 and asked that Pinole Community Television (PCTV) 
be included as a strategy under this goal.   
 


14 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 9 
 


Anthony Vossbrink, Pinole, referenced Goal 1 and suggested the Police Department could do a 
better job presenting quarterly reports to the public at various meetings.  He cited a number of 
communities that provided excellent presentations from their Police Departments and suggested 
all presentations should be visible and promoted to the public on PCTV, which he understood 
currently did not have the appropriate equipment with the information only available to the public 
in-person at City Hall.  He sought quarterly and annual presentations of data from pre-, during 
and post-COVID on traffic citations and retail crime in the community.  He would like the City 
Council to hold the Police Department and staff accountable, commenting on the increase in 
criminal activity on Fitzgerald Drive, which was the reason he would like the City to consider 
placing a temporary police sub-station on Fitzgerald Drive during the months of September 
through January.  He understood that people shopped in other jurisdictions due to the increase 
in retail crime in the Fitzgerald Drive area.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms offered a motion, seconded by Council member Sasai to direct staff to 
modify Strategy 5 of Goal 3 to include a reference to “local and regional partners” and to include 
a reference to the “Safety and Accessible Transportation Plan.”   
 
City Manager Murray stated staff did not require direction to make the revision since the City 
Council may modify the strategy at this time.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms offered a motion to amend Strategy 5 of Goal 3 to read: 
 


Partner locally/regionally to improve and enhance transportation circulation, including 
public transit, cars, bikes, and pedestrians, guided by the Downtown Pedestrian Safety 
Plan and the Accessible Transportation Plan.   
 


On the motion, Council member Tave preferred the language be modified to reference “adopted 
plans” so as not to limit those specific plans.   
 
City Manager Murray suggested a further modification to Strategy 5 of Goal 3, as follows: 
 


Partner locally/regionally to improve and enhance transportation circulation, including 
public transit, cars, bikes, and pedestrians, guided by the Downtown Pedestrian Safety 
Plan and the Accessible Transportation Plan and other Council-adopted plans.   


 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Toms/Council member Sasai to modify Strategy 5 of 
Goal 3 to read:   
 


Partner locally/regionally to improve and enhance transportation circulation, 
including public transit, cars, bikes, and pedestrians, guided by the Downtown 
Pedestrian Safety Plan and the Accessible Transportation Plan and other Council 
adopted plans. 
 
 
 
 
 


15 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 10 
 


Vote:   Passed  5-0 
Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 
 


ACTION:  Motion by Council member Martinez-Rubin/Mayor Pro Tem Toms to modify 
Strategy 6 of Goal 3 to read:   
 


Conduct a review and update of the City’s code enforcement and property 
maintenance programs with a focus on increased beautification efforts and 
investment in community ecological and cultural amenities, business districts, and 
nuisance abatement. 
 


Vote:   Passed  5-0 
Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
Council member Martinez-Rubin offered a motion, seconded by the Mayor to add an additional 
strategy to Goal 4 to read: 


 
Explore use of Government Access Channels/PCTV to implement the Strategic 
Communication Plan.  


 
On the motion, Mayor Pro Tem Toms asked whether the current Information Technology Strategic 
Plan included such implementation. 
 
City Manager Murray explained that some of the Strategic Plan items were one and done while 
other items involved a plan and implementation with City staff in the process of implementing the 
Communication and Engagement Plan.  Staff was also exploring the use of PCTV as a component 
of strategic communication and would complete a PCTV Master Plan and that new strategy could 
be added to highlight to the public.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Martinez-Rubin/Mayor Murphy to modify Goal 4 to 
add an additional strategy to read: 
 


Explore use of Government Access Channels/PCTV to implement the Strategic 
Communication Plan.  
 


Vote:   Passed  5-0 
Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
Mayor Murphy declared a lunch recess at 12:15 p.m.   The City Council meeting reconvened at 
12:44 p.m., with all Councilmembers present.     


16 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 11 
 


City Manager Murray continued the PowerPoint presentation and provided an overview of the 
Staff Workplan, which included the staff baseline and routine work, core public facing services 
and internal support functions, and CIP and staff-initiated special projects that had been detailed 
in depth in the April 29, 2023 staff report.   
 
In response to the Mayor Pro Tem on the direction staff was seeking, City Manager Murray 
explained that he was seeking ratification of the entire list of staff-initiated Special Projects and 
other Council-directed Special Projects, and for the City Council to determine what should be 
added or removed.  As to the status of the implementation of the weatherization program, as part 
of the Other Council-Directed Special Projects, he reported City staff was nearly ready to bring a 
contract to the City Council to be formalized.   
 
Community Development Director Lilly Whalen added for the weatherization program the City 
was working with the County and the Bay Area Regional Energy Network (BayREN) and hoped 
to present a draft contract to the City Council at its second meeting in May.   
 
Council member Tave sought a “waterfall” list/diagram of projects similar to what staff provided 
for the CIP to identify projects requested by the City Council, including the details for research 
and design, when the project had been put out for bid and out for contract, and whether it would 
be done in-house so that the City Council could see the capacity line for staff and also see which 
projects were underway.    
 
City Manager Murray reiterated City staff could get through the current list of Staff-initiated Special 
Projects and Other Council-directed Special projects by the end of fiscal year 2023/24;  however, 
staff did not have the capability to take on anything more.  Most of the special projects did not 
have dependencies and did not qualify for outside funding.  The grant component was significant 
in capital projects but not applicable, with most of the projects to be funded by the City’s General 
Fund.   
 
City Manager Murray recognized the City Council was constantly coming up with new ideas and 
again, the projects identified in the PowerPoint presentation could be completed by the end of 
fiscal year 2023/24, and if the City Council wanted to prioritize the projects that would be 
acceptable to staff who would welcome that guidance.  If the City Council wanted to add 
something new beyond what had been presented (All projects as shown on Slides 8, 9 and 10 of 
the PowerPoint presentation) something would have to be removed.   
 
Council member Tave reiterated his request for a “waterfall” list/diagram, as described, which 
would be helpful to the City Council, had been prepared in the past and allowed flexibility when 
Council direction changed, and if the City was losing money the Council could step back and let 
staff work rather than constantly adding items absent the knowledge of the impacts to the budget.   
 
City Manager Murray suggested staff could come back at the time the Preliminary Proposed 
Budget was presented to the City Council at its May 16, 2023 meeting, at which time staff could 
outline how much had been put into each of the efforts and identify how close they were to 
completion.   
 
 
 


17 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 12 
 


Council member Tave hoped through the budget process to have the information to provide staff 
with sufficient direction.  He did not want to zigzag back and forth between projects other than 
studies being prepared but with no work accomplished, which had occurred over time.   He looked 
forward to moving ahead with the Strategic Plan.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin suggested a matrix would help for projects to be retained and 
those to be deferred.  She asked whether any of the Council-directed Special Projects not yet 
underway would fit naturally, efficiently, sensibly and reasonably, with what had already been 
vetted in terms of the Strategic Plan.  If not, those projects should be deferred.  She also 
suggested the projects that were not yet underway should be identified as to whether they were 
essential and met the goals of the Strategic Plan.  If not, they should be deferred.  As an example, 
for other Council-Directed Special Projects under the bullet, Additional Items Discussed But Not 
Yet Assigned which read: Assessment of opportunities for Public Works maintenance function 
reconfiguration/shared services/equipment/MOU, was a way of operating and the City had not 
considered operating in that way given there had been other things to do, which was an example 
of a project that could be deferred to next year.   


 
City Manager Murray described the projects as above and beyond what must be done and above 
and beyond the Strategic Plan strategies, the CIP or routine staff work.  There was no single 
criteria to determine what projects were the most important.  When staff returned for the budget 
discussion on May 16, there could be some assessment on how consistent the projects were with 
the goals of the Strategic Plan.  Again, the items would be incorporated into the budget and 
completed by the end of the next fiscal year.  He sought a set list so that staff knew what it should 
be doing with more certainty in the special types of projects.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms referenced the Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Station Feasibility Study that 
was not yet underway.  She wanted assurance the City was not duplicating other efforts already 
completed, which covered the City of Pinole, and asked staff to look at what the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority (CCTA) had completed with the Contra Costa EV Readiness Blueprint.   
 
Mayor Murphy also referenced the Other Council-Directed Special Projects not yet underway as 
shown, and asked how the projects had been added to the list.   
 
City Manager Murray explained that the Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Station Feasibility Study 
had been added to Other Council-directed Special Projects as a result of a presentation from staff 
to the City Council on EV accessibility in Pinole.  The City Council direction to staff was to scope 
and discuss a feasibility and gap analysis in the community.  The other projects identified in Other 
Council-directed Special Projects came about as a result of direction from the City Council 
whether through a discussion of an item at a City Council meeting or a request for a future agenda 
item, which had morphed into a project.  The Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Station Feasibility 
Study had not been included in the CIP but could be added at the direction of the City Council.   
 
Mayor Murphy referenced the Economic Development Plan that had previously been adopted 
and clarified with the City Manager it was part of the Strategic Plan and its implementation was 
part of the Strategic Plan strategies.   
 
Mayor Murphy also asked with respect to the Staff Baseline Work - Staff-Initiated Special Projects 
and Other Council-Directed Special Projects how much of staff time was being spent on current 
projects which argued for process improvements.  


18 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 13 
 


As an example, under the category of Other Council-Directed Special Projects and additional 
items discussed but not yet assigned, specifically: Assessment of opportunities for Public Works 
maintenance function reconfiguration/shared services/equipment/MOU, Mayor Murphy read that 
as a process for improvement and asked how staff monitored and measured process 
improvements.   
 
City Manager Murray explained that Assessment of opportunities for Public Works maintenance 
function reconfiguration/shared services/equipment/MOU was not a staff-initiated project since 
staff had not done it yet.  Staff was responsible for assessing all of the functions of its departments 
to ensure best practices but it was an ongoing project.  The Staff-Initiated Special Projects were 
an ongoing reflection of where that was happening.  If staff had started the project it would have 
been on another list.  In addition, the reconfiguration of tracking, monitoring and permitting for 
Public Works was considered routine work and a new software program had already been 
purchased with a build out of the modules to be used over time.   
 
In response to Council member Tave, City Manager Murray offered examples of projects where 
an assessment would allow the Council to decide what to do after it received that information.   
For smaller projects such as celebrations for Earth Month, such effort was not needed.    
 
Council member Tave explained his comments and stated he wanted to ensure the City Council 
did not exceed the staff capacity.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, asked for more detail from the Police Department on Project Hope, which 
would assist unhoused members of the community, drone policies the City wanted to implement 
and how the City allocated staff time on the projects it wanted to complete.  He suggested a cap 
be considered for new projects so that staff had some predictability with respect to its work 
volume.  He also requested a status report on the implementation of the Communication and 
Engagement Plan and for special projects not in the immediate completion stage, a quarterly 
update should be provided.  In addition, he understood broadband considerations fell under the 
CIP and were considered Other Council-directed Special Projects but that should be clarified.   
 
Irma Ruport, Pinole, appreciated the information contained in Attachment G, City of Pinole CIP 
Status of Scheduled Projects for FY 2022/23 through December 31, 2022 to the staff report, but 
recommended completed projects be removed from the list.  She suggested there was plenty of 
staff and preferred that work be done in-house rather than hiring consultants unless needed.   She 
wanted the City Council to monitor existing consultant contracts to ensure work was being done 
satisfactorily.  She emphasized it was time to have the expertise on staff to get the work done.   
 
Anthony Vossbrink, Pinole, echoed the comments from the previous speaker and emphasized 
there were routine items that should be addressed by the Public Works Department on a regular 
basis.  He detailed numerous maintenance items that required attention including inoperable 
drinking stations/water fountains throughout the City and in front of the Bay Trail Park, and timers, 
locks and doors of restrooms in City parks in need of repair including the men’s restroom at the 
Adobe Road dog park.  He suggested there was too many staffers, managers and directors and 
the City Council should hold different people accountable with checks and balances and follow-
up on routine maintenance items.   


19 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 14 
 


Mr. Vossbrink added that trees had been knocked down with branches and stumps left behind at 
the caretakers’ home, the Pinole barbeque grove on Adobe Road and elsewhere throughout the 
City.  He found that to be a visual eyesore and disregard for public health and safety.  He added 
that maintenance was needed in the median strips and suggested the lack of routine maintenance 
affected property values and the ability to attract more businesses to Pinole. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin clarified with the City Manager that all projects would be able to 
be completed in fiscal year 2023/24.  As to the Other Council-Directed Special Projects, not yet 
underway, she suggested the process required to establish a Fire Prevention Maintenance District 
in Pinole would be a big project and given the new relationship with the CCCFPD, which would 
be providing some fire prevention maintenance activities, she suggested that project could be 
deferred for a year. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms was unsure whether a Fire Prevention Maintenance District was the same 
as the East Bay Fire Prevention effort already underway. 
 
City Manager Murray clarified they were separate items but regardless of the organization 
providing the services the project, as listed, related to a new source of funding to do advanced 
additional work.   
 
Mayor Murphy cited the Other Council-Directed Special Projects, specifically, research on a 
potential public bank, and clarified with the City Manager that effort would include the feasibility, 
legality and partnership of a public bank.  He also commented the PCTV Master Plan had not 
been included in the CIP and clarified with the City Manager it would be considered under the 
category of Staff’s Baseline Work, Staff-Initiated Special Projects.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms commented that when the City Council discussed the CIP, she had raised 
the idea of whether tax allocation bonds may be appropriate.  She asked whether that would be 
covered in any of the items already assigned. 
 
City Manager Murray advised that concept would be under the umbrella of the Long-Term 
Financial Plan (LTFP) the City Council would be asked to adopt in the summer, which would 
identify all funding needs, wants and sources.   
 
Council member Sasai asked when the Old Town Wayfinding Signage had been proposed by the 
City Council as a possible project and City Manager Murray explained the project had been raised 
on a couple of occasions and in the context as part of the Strategic Plan and Economic 
Development Plan strategy.  The idea had also surfaced as part of the presentation of the Old 
Town Parking and Pedestrian Study, which had concluded there was adequate parking in Old 
Town but people could use more wayfinding signage.   
 
City Manager Murray commented as to the staff time involved in the project that there was a 
separate effort which involved branding work and the economic strategy included some economic 
development branding and they would want those efforts to tie together, which was one of the 
reasons the project had not yet moved forward.  Staff could work with consultants on a wayfinding 
program but had not gotten to that project yet.   
 


20 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 15 
 


Council member Sasai agreed the branding should be consistent and noted that the City Seal Ad 
Hoc Subcommittee had set a deadline of spring 2024.  He recommended Other Council-Directed 
Special Projects not yet underway, specifically the Options for Old Town Wayfinding Signage, be 
deferred to next year and staff time not be allocated for that project at this time.  He again 
referenced the process required to establish a Fire Prevention Maintenance District in Pinole, as 
shown in the same category and asked whether there had been a recommendation from a prior 
or current County Fire Chief on that idea.  
 
City Manager Murray explained that the process required to establish a Fire Prevention 
Maintenance District in Pinole had been a request of the City Council as a potential revenue 
source due to climate change.   
 
Council member Tave reiterated his desire for a ‘waterfall” diagram to be created by staff to 
provide a better understanding of the projects collectively to include whether things were in 
concept, research and design, whether the project required a feasibility study, was in contract, 
whether the project design had been bid, was in construction, details on long-term maintenance 
and whether funds had already been spent.  
 
Council member Tave offered a motion, seconded by Mayor Murphy to that effect with the 
“waterfall” diagram to return to the City Council in time for the budgeting and CIP process.    
  
City Manager Murray stated most of the projects were not CIP projects and reiterated as part of 
the Preliminary Proposed Budget discussion that staff could lay out that information for the 
Council-Directed Special Projects and flag for consistency with the Strategic Plan goals.  He 
commented it would be an effort to reformat the routine staff tasks that were already in the budget 
as well as the Staff-Initiated Baseline Projects.  For the non-CIP programmatic efforts, staff could 
return with a presentation similar to the CIP to identify the status and the City Council could then 
decide whether to ratify that as the Special Programmatic Projects for the upcoming fiscal year.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Tave/Mayor Murphy to direct staff to create a 
“waterfall” diagram for the non-CIP programmatic efforts with staff to return with a 
presentation similar to the CIP to identify the status and the City Council could then decide 
whether to ratify that as the Special Programmatic Projects for the upcoming fiscal year.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 
 


Council member Martinez-Rubin offered a motion to defer the process required to establish a Fire 
Prevention Maintenance District in Pinole to Fiscal Year 2024/25. 
 
On the motion, City Manager Murray explained that the intent was for a presentation on what 
would be required to establish the district not the implementation of a special district in 2023/24.   
 
Council member Sasai seconded the motion.  
 


21 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Special Meeting   
Minutes – April 29, 2023   
Page 16 
 


Speaking to the motion, Mayor Pro Tem Toms stated it was important to keep the project on the 
list at the same time as the discussion of region-wide fire mitigation.  With a deferral to Fiscal Year 
2024/25, the City would miss the opportunity to consider the item during an election year. 
Mayor Murphy agreed and suggested this was an opportunity to incorporate the discussion into 
the LTFP as one of the many funding sources that could backfill some of the considerations about 
the budget.  He suggested the item not be deferred.   
 
Council member Sasai clarified the deferral was on the presentation not on the actual item and 
City Manager Murray confirmed it would be deferral of the presentation. 
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin as the maker of the motion rescinded the motion and Council 
member Sasai rescinded his second to the motion.  
 
Council member Sasai offered a motion to defer Other Council-Directed Special Projects, Not yet 
Underway, Options for Old Town Wayfinding Signage to Fiscal Year 2024/25.  The motion failed 
due to the lack of a second.  
 
Mayor Murphy was interested in seeing the waterfall diagram come back; the decision making 
around Staff-Initiated Projects and how the City Council played a role in that effort; what the 
Internal Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Welcoming (DEIW) Initiative entailed; and how the City 
Council played a role in the development of the initiative in terms of the budget and City policy.   
 
City Manager Murray explained the City Council’s role in the DEIW Initiative had been the 
approval of funding, with the project having been kicked-off with City employees, with staff to work 
with a consultant to design next steps and interventions to address opportunity areas of growth.  
He summarized the direction from the City Council to bring back the entire list of projects, those 
the City Council had already assigned, those underway and those not yet underway, and bring 
them back with the waterfall diagram to be discussed at the May 16, 2023 City Council meeting. 
He clarified that no next steps needed to be discussed, the City Council had provided direction 
for modifications to the Strategic Plan, which would be modified and posted on the City website 
and for the FY 2023/24 Special Project Workplan.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms thanked Mr. Ibarra, City Manager Murray, Department Heads, City staff 
and members of the public who had participated in the discussion and Mayor Murphy also thanked 
everyone for their engagement.   


 
6. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of May 2, 2023, in Remembrance 


of Amber Swartz.     
 
At 2:02 p.m., Mayor Murphy adjourned the meeting to the Regular City Council Meeting of May 
2, 2023 in Remembrance of Amber Swartz.   
 
Submitted by: 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved by City Council:  


22 of 829







Pinole City Council Regular Meeting 
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 1 


CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES 


May 16, 2023   


1. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE IN HONOR OF THE US MILITARY
TROOPS


The City Council Meeting was held in a hybrid format (in-person and via Zoom videoconference 
and broadcast) from the Pinole Council Chambers, 2131 Pear Street, Pinole, California.  Mayor 
Murphy called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 5:02 p.m. and led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 


2. LAND ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Before we begin, we would like to acknowledge the Ohlone people, who are the traditional custodians of 
this land.  We pay our respects to the Ohlone elders, past, present and future, who call this place, Ohlone 
Land, the land that Pinole sits upon, their home.  We are proud to continue their tradition of coming together 
and growing as a community.  We thank the Ohlone community for their stewardship and support, and we 
look forward to strengthening our ties as we continue our relationship of mutual respect and understanding. 


3. ROLL CALL, CITY CLERK’S REPORT & STATEMENT OF CONFLICT
An official who has a conflict must, prior to consideration of the decision: (1) publicly identify in detail the 
financial interest that causes the conflict; (2) recuse himself/herself from discussing and voting on the 
matter; and (3) leave the room until after the decision has been made, Cal. Gov. Code § 87105.   


A. COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT 


Devin Murphy, Mayor  
Maureen Toms, Mayor Pro Tem   
Norma Martinez-Rubin, Council Member 
Cameron Sasai, Council Member  
Anthony Tave, Council Member 


B. STAFF PRESENT 


Andrew Murray, City Manager    
Eric Casher, City Attorney   
Heather Bell, City Clerk 
Neil Gang, Chief of Police  
Jeremy Crone, Police Lieutenant  
Markisha Guillory, Finance Director  
Sanjay Mishra, Public Works Director 
Stacy Shell, Human Resources Director 
Misha Kaur, Capital Improvement and Environmental Program Manager 
Roxane Stone, Deputy City Clerk  


City Clerk Heather Bell announced the agenda had been posted on Thursday, May 11, 2023 at 
4:30 p.m. with all legally required written notices.  No written comments had been received in 
advance of the meeting.    


9A-1


23 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 2 
 


Following an inquiry, the Council reported there were no conflicts with any items on the agenda.  
 
4. CONVENE TO A CLOSED SESSION   
Citizens may address the Council regarding a Closed Session item prior to the Council adjourning 
into the Closed Session, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. 
   


A. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS   
Gov. Code § 54957.6 
Agency Designated Representatives:  City Manager Andrew Murray, Human 
Resources Director Stacy Shell and Greg Ramirez (IDEA)  
Represented Employees:  AFSCME, Locals 1 and 512 and PPEA  


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED 
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, was curious what the union had to offer as part of the Closed Session 
negotiations.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  


 
5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION TO ANNOUNCE RESULTS OF CLOSED SESSION 
 
At 6:17 p.m., Mayor Murphy reconvened the meeting into open session and reported there was 
no reportable action.   
 
6. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Public Comments) 
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and is 
subject to modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on 
the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council 
meeting. 
 
Teresa Teller, Pinole, invited the public to a free event on Saturday, May 20, 2023 at Our Savior 
Lutheran Church, 3110 Avis Way, from 11:00 a.m. to 12:00 noon, at which time she would present 
her mental health story and the phases of her recovery.  In between, she would play original piano 
music that captured each phase and would also play the piece Andrew’s Lullaby, which had been 
an honorable mention in the International Songwriting Contest.  She was also honored to 
understand that the City Council would issue a proclamation for Mental Health Awareness Month.  
She emphasized if someone was suffering from mental illness her story would bring insight as 
someone who had suffered from Schizoaffective Disorder for years.  Presently, she was a 
Pastor’s wife and mother of two children and had worked in a retirement community for 15-years.  
She had also written blogs for the National Alliance of Mental Illness and was authoring a book 
titled My Brain Makes Me Proud.  She encouraged everyone to attend the May 20 event.   
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, updated the City Council on the current COVID-19 case rate for the City of 
Pinole, and while improved it was still recommended that masks continue to be worn indoors.     
 
 


24 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 3 
 


Mr. Menis reminded everyone of Community Service Day on Saturday, May 20, 2023, with 
everyone to meet at the Youth Center, 835 Tennent Avenue.  In-person registration would be 
from 8:30 a.m. to 9:00 a.m. and online registration was also available.  Volunteer activities would 
be led by the Community Services Commission from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m.  Breakfast would be 
available between 8:00 a.m. and 9:00 a.m. and lunch from 12:00 p.m. to 1:00 p.m.  Everyone was 
encouraged to participate.  
 
Mayor Murphy moved onto agenda Item 8 at this time.   
 
8. RECOGNITIONS / PRESENTATIONS / COMMUNITY EVENTS  


 
A. Proclamations 


 
1. Mental Health Awareness Month 


 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing May 2023 as Mental Health 
Awareness Month and presented the proclamation to Teresa Teller.   
  


2. Asian American and Pacific Islander Month 
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing May 2023 as Asian American 
and Pacific Islander Month, which was presented to Council member Sasai as the City’s first 
Filipino-American Council member. 
 


3. Emergency Medical Services Week 
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing May 21-27, 2023 as Emergency 
Medical Services Week.  
 


4. Jewish American Heritage Month  
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing May 2023 as Jewish American 
Heritage Month.  
 


5. Affordable Housing Week  
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing May 7-13, 2023 as Affordable 
Housing Week.   
 


6. National Police Week  
 
The City Council read into the record a proclamation recognizing May 15-21, 2023 as National 
Police Week and presented the proclamation to Chief of Police Neil Gang.   
 
Police Chief Gang thanked the City Council for the proclamation and the recognition and 
emphasized that three City of Pinole Police Officers had lost their lives in the line of duty.  He 
added that those officers and their families would never be forgotten for their ultimate sacrifice to 
the community.   
 


25 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 4 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Deputy City Clerk Roxane Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 


B. Presentations:  
 


1.  AC Transit Presentation  
 
Jovanka Beckles, Director, Ward 1, AC Transit, introduced the AC Transit staff present which 
included David Berman, Senior Transportation Planner/Project Manager AC Transit Realign 
Initiative, who provided a PowerPoint presentation on the State of AC Transit, an overview of 
Alameda-Contra Costa Transit (AC Transit), the State of California’s largest public bus-only 
system and the third largest bus-only transit agency in the County serving 364 square miles and 
1.5 million people.  He provided the statistics of ridership in terms of income levels, ethnicity, 
whether riders had access to a vehicle and the number of students served each school day.   
 
Mr. Berman highlighted AC Transit’s recovery priorities and ranked bus lines based on pre-COVID 
weekday productivity, people with low income within one-quarter mile and people of color within 
one-quarter mile, and noted that service across Bay Area bridges had been delayed until demand 
had increased.  AC Transit worked to improve reliability, provide greater connectivity and pursue 
projects to improve transit through dedicated program staff and deeper regional coordination.  AC 
Transit was also recruiting and working to retain bus operators, which was the greatest barrier to 
delivering services.  An in-person recruitment event entitled “Spring Into Your New Career” had 
been scheduled for May 20, 2023.  More information was available on the AC Transit website.   
 
Mr. Berman also provided an overview of ongoing ridership recovering efforts to bring ridership 
back on track that included the AC Transit Realign Initiative, which would reshape AC Transit in 
the wake of the pandemic by prioritizing where and when transit service was offered, align service 
with customer needs and equity goals, deal with future resource constraints, and respond to 
changing travel patterns with a focus on people and equity over the next 15-months and would 
consider five umbrella projects/phases as part of the realignment effort.  The five umbrella 
projects/phases and the timeline for each were identified, to develop plans and learn rider needs, 
align guiding principles with community assessments, develop service scenarios and gather 
feedback, draft a final service plan, adopt and develop service standards and inform riders about 
service changes.   
 
Mr. Berman encouraged AC Transit riders to participate in a survey that was available by scanning 
a QR code, which could be shared with networks, and with more information at 
www.actransit.org/realign.  The survey would close on May 31, 2023.   
 
Responding to questions from the Council, Mr. Berman explained that like other transit agencies 
AC Transit was facing fiscal challenges but had tightened the belt where necessary. At the same 
time, AC Transit wanted to put out a reliable service but was currently under a hiring freeze for 
non-essential positions and wanted to avoid providing less and less service and losing more 
ridership.  He added that AC Transit was challenged on how to focus on different markets which 
was hoped would be addressed with the AC Transit Realign Initiative with the intent to allocate 
resources that made sense to meet all needs but which was a challenge with a limited budget.   


26 of 829



http://www.actransit.org/realign





 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 5 
 


All issues would be considered while being mindful how everyone across the income spectrum fit 
into all of it.   
 
Director Beckles acknowledged that most riders tended to be people of color and working class 
to those barely working.  AC Transit worked to change that image, which would be helped through 
increasing Zero Emission buses and using non-vehicle transportation methods to reduce the 
carbon footprint.  AC Transit would also be able to increase ridership through having more 
frequent routes and more consistent services that would bring a more diverse ridership in the 
future, particularly as the effects of global warming encouraged people to get out of their vehicles.   
 
Mr. Berman noted the recognition between land use and a connection and focus on transportation 
around development could effectively promote economic development and reduce the carbon 
footprint.  There were many state initiatives that could help with climate change.  He also 
highlighted the proposed equity goals from the AC Transit Strategic Plan, with accessibility a key 
to providing high quality mobility for those with disabilities and those who were of low income 
status as well as disadvantaged communities of color.  He added that the Civil Rights Act had 
enshrined federal funding conditions to ensure AC Transit was accounting for people’s needs.   
 
When asked by the Mayor, Mr. Berman confirmed he could forward information from the Strategic 
Plan to the City Council.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin emphasized safety, accessibility and availability all together to 
create the riding experience regardless of income level, age and purpose for riding was something 
that would provide an attractive service.  She appreciated the goals, as outlined in the PowerPoint 
presentation, as goals remaining to be met in the transportation system and she looked forward 
to the promotion of all AC Transit services.   
 
Director Beckles thanked the City Council for the opportunity to provide the presentation and 
emphasized that AC Transit was focused on its Realign Initiative and hiring drivers.  She 
encouraged the City Council to share the information with others in all available forms and she 
welcomed community feedback and City Council encouragement of the community to participate 
in the AC Transit survey.  She added that throughout the month of May, AC Transit staff would 
be at bus stops asking transit riders to complete the survey that would allow input for several 
options for proposed changes.  She added that in the fall there would be another opportunity to 
provide input on proposed changes, with the goal to have new services in place by October 2024.  
She again thanked the City Council for its time and partnership.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, spoke to Item A1, the proclamation for Mental Health Awareness Month, 
and detailed his own mental health struggles.  He stated Council member Sasai had inspired him 
to speak of them publicly given he [Council member Sasai] had spoken of his own experiences 
with anxiety and depression when he had run for office.  He spoke to his personal challenges with 
anxiety and depression and Attention Deficit and Hyperactivity Disorder (ADHD) and noted one 
of the core principles of the Mental Health Awareness Month proclamation was for people to seek 
out therapy and help.  He detailed how that assistance had helped him in his life and through 
medical care helped him to become who he was today.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  


27 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 6 
 


Mayor Murphy thanked AC Transit staff for the presentation.  
 
The City Council returned to Item 7.   
 
7. REPORTS & COMMUNICATIONS  
 


A. Mayor Report 
 
1. Announcements:  None 


 
B. Mayoral & Council Appointments:  None  


 
C.   City Council Committee Reports & Communications 


 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms reported the Municipal Code Ad-Hoc Subcommittee had met to discuss the 
Project Labor Agreement (PLA) and she had attended the Mayors’ Conference with a 
presentation on enhancing transportation from Dublin to Tracy and reducing vehicle miles.  
 
Council member Tave reported he had attended a RecycleMore meeting and briefed the City 
Council on the discussions.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin reported she and Council member Sasai had met as the City 
Seal and Logo Subcommittee with meetings anticipated every other week throughout the year.  
She had also attended a League of California Cities East Bay Division meeting briefing the City 
Council on all discussions.  
 
Council member Sasai reported he and Council member Martinez-Rubin had met as the City Seal 
and Logo Subcommittee and he briefed the City Council on the discussions.  He thanked the 
General Manager of WestCAT for providing a tour of the facility and reported that the Summer 
Youth Pass was available for purchase, with more information at 511cc.org/youthpass.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Deputy City Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
At this time, the Monthly Mayoral Video Update was provided and the Mayor thanked Pinole 
Community Television (PCTV) for all of their hard work throughout the year and reported the video 
had also been presented at the recent Mayors’ Conference. 
   


D.   Council Requests for Future Agenda Items 
 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Toms/Mayor Murphy to refer a request from an 
affordable housing developer to modify an existing ordinance to allow for staff discretion 
on allowing construction to occur on Saturdays for multifamily residences to the Municipal 
Code Ad-Hoc Subcommittee, as a future agenda item. 
 
 


28 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 7 
 


Vote:   Passed  5-0 
Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Deputy City Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
   


E. City Manager Report / Department Staff 
 


City Manager Murray announced the following upcoming community events: Community Service 
Day on May 20, 2023; Virtual Workshop to continue the visioning process for the Community 
Corner on May 25, 2023; and Pinole Pride scheduled for Sunday, June 11, 2023 at Fernandez 
Park, which event would also recognize the City’s 120th Anniversary, LGBTQ+ Pride and 
Juneteenth.   
 
City Manager Murray also provided an overview of the tentative agenda items for the June 6, 
2023 regular City Council meeting.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Deputy City Clerk Stone reported there were no comments from the public.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 


F. City Attorney Report:  None  
   
9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All matters under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and noncontroversial.  These 
items will be enacted by one motion and without discussion.  If, however, any interested party or 
Council member(s) wishes to comment on an item, they may do so before action is taken on the 
Consent Calendar.  Following comments, if a Council member wishes to discuss an item, it will 
be removed from the Consent Calendar and taken up in order after adoption of the Consent 
Calendar. 
 


A. Approve the Minutes of the April 25, 2023, April 29, 2023 Special Council meetings 
and the Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting on May 2, 2023 
 


B. Receive the April 29, 2023 – May 12, 2023 – List of Warrants in the Amount of 
$1,225,226.29, and the May 12, 2023 Payroll in the Amount of $470,399.29 


 
C. Approve a Two-Year Contract with Planeteria for the New Website Content 


Management System in the Amount Not to Exceed $58,620.00 [Action:  Adopt 
Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Epps)] 


 


29 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 8 
 


D. Resolution of the City of Pinole to Comply with State Housing Laws [Action:  
Adopt Resolution per Staff recommendation (Kaur)] 


 
E. Resolution Opposing State Initiative 21-004281 [Action:   Adopt Resolution per 


Staff Recommendation (Mishra)] 
 
F. Adopt a Resolution Promoting and Supporting the Creation of Education 


Workforce Housing in Contra Costa County [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff 
Recommendation (Whalen)] 


 
G. Letter of Support for United States Department of Transportation Funding for East 


Bay Regional Park District Trail Expansion Projects [Action:  Approve Letter of 
Support per Staff Recommendation (Rogers)] 


 
H. Options for a City-Sponsored Job Fair [Action:  Approve Staff Recommendation 


(Whalen)] 
 
I. Adoption of Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a Contract with 


The Pun Group for Professional Auditing Services for Fiscal Years Ending June 
30, 2023 through June 30, 2025, with the Option to Extend the Contract at One-
Year Intervals, Not to Exceed a Total of Two Additional Fiscal Years [Action:  
Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Guillory)] 


 
J. Plan for High School Student Internships with City Council Members [Action:  


Receive Report (Shell)] 
 
K. Update on the Activity of the Project Labor Agreement (PLA) Ad Hoc 


Subcommittee [Action:  Receive Report (Mishra)] 
 
L. Adopt a Resolution Initiating Proceedings for the Annual Levy of Assessments and 


Ordering the Preparation of the Annual Engineer’s Report for the Pinole Valley 
Road Landscape and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD) for Fiscal Year 2023/24 
[Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Mishra)] 


 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, referenced Item 9A, Page 29 of 704 of the meeting agenda packet for the 
Special City Council meeting minutes of April 29, 2023, and requested the comments he made 
as shown in paragraph three be amended.   He played the audio portion of the meeting when his 
comments had been made and while he offered no specific language changes, asked that his 
comments be amended to correctly reflect his statement.   
 
Also referencing Item 9A, Mr. Menis asked that the meeting minutes of May 2, 2023, as shown 
on Page 52 of 704 of the agenda packet and his comments as shown in paragraph five be 
amended, to read:     
 


Rafael Menis, Pinole, suggested that public engagement be properly foregrounded on the 
City website. He understood the City was using the Balancing Act Tool for the budget as 
a whole but it was not easily navigated on the website and he expressed concern if public 


30 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 9 
 


outreach was done on the City website it may result in the same situation. The cost of 
repairing the roads that were in terrible condition was so great, which was why there was 
a fix-it-first approach given the vast cost of repair. He also recognized Public Works staff 
was limited in the work they could do in-house given limits in staff, equipment and costs. 


 
Mr. Menis also referenced Item 9C, Page 125 of 704 of the agenda packet, noted the e-alerts had 
been described more generally, and on Page 144 of 704 the fee schedule had discussed the 
services the City had ordered with e-alerts partially ordered but based on the pricing and quantity 
it was more tailored to focus on the development phase than on an ongoing project.  He asked 
whether the City would consider setting up a system to pay for the e-alerts or a system like it to 
improve outreach to the public.  As to Item 9E, he suggested the City Council should approve the 
resolution opposing the initiative, which as it stated in its own text, would strip the electorate who 
had the ultimate power under the system of government to assess taxes and fees via the charter 
system, and if people wanted to complain about the loss of local control over local affairs this 
statewide initiative vote would deprive people of a charter city including the City of Pinole, if it 
wished to become a charter city in the future, the ability to asses any tax as part of a charter.   
 
As to Item 9I, Page 203 of 704 of the agenda packet, Clause 2.6 of Section 2 of the Consulting 
Services Agreement, Mr. Menis identified a blank dollar amount in this section that had been 
highlighted and should be clarified.  Also, with respect to Page 213 of 704, he identified a 
typographical error in the reference to City Attorney Eric Casher on the signature page which 
should be corrected.  Page 246 of 704 detailed the services The Pun Group would provide and 
he asked for more details for the artificial intelligence (AI) model the consultant planned to use.  
Assuming they were using a large language model for AI, he stated those models were notorious 
for hallucinating or lying about references within their data set, facts or sources, and asked how 
the consultant set up Mind Bridge to avoid the risks commonly associated with AI given the 
paramount need for accuracy in the auditing process.   
 
City Clerk Bell asked that Item 9A be pulled to allow staff the opportunity to review the video for 
the April 29, 2023 Special City Council meeting and have some suggested language for 
modification, and if possible Mr. Menis could also provide some suggested language for the 
changes he wanted to be made.   
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, referenced item 9H and supported a Job Fair for the City of Pinole 
given the number of businesses that needed extra help coming out of the pandemic.  For Item 9J, 
he noted both the cities of Richmond and San Pablo paid $20/hour for their student interns and 
the City of Menlo Park’s average salary for student internship was $53,000 to $60,000, which the 
City of Pinole should consider.    
 
Matthew Estipona, Director of Government & Community Engagement, Associated Builders & 
Contractors (ABC) Northern California, who represented member contractors who were in the 
construction trades referenced Item 9K and expressed concern the PLA Ad Hoc Subcommittee 
included no representation from member contractors and no fair share side from the other 
perspective.  Member contractors and apprentices who lived and worked in the community 
wanted to be able to build where they lived, produced great projects all through the East Bay, 
Contra Costa County and Northern California, and moving forward they would like to have a seat 
at the table to provide their input on the PLA.  
 


31 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 10 
 


Susan McDonald, stated she worked for a non-union contractor and opposed the PLA.  She stated 
local contractors should be doing the work, they were non-unionized and had been doing work 
for decades.  If a PLA was in place, she suggested it would be harmful to non-union contractors. 
She suggested few contractors had read or understood the provisions of a PLA, which showed 
up as an attachment to the main contract.  The PLA was a tool unions used to force non-union 
contractors to hire almost all workers off the union bench, through their core workforce 
requirement.  Under a PLA, non-union contractors could only use a few of their own core 
workforce, then had to hire off the union bench, which was a disadvantage to non-union 
contractors and their ability to perform work.  She suggested no contractor should bid a job without 
their own core workers.  Union workers also had a core workforce but under a PLA, union 
contractors may keep their core workforce and only go to the bench when needed, which was 
unequitable treatment.  If the core workforce was taken out of the PLA, the unions would stop 
trying to force them on everyone.  She suggested all of the things people were told a PLA could 
do had already been done absent a PLA.  She commented that non-union contractors in the 
community trusted public agencies not to harm them with their contracts and she suggested that 
the City Council do no harm and not consider a PLA.   
 
Eric Christen, Executive Director, Coalition for Fair Employment and Construction, a statewide 
organization formed 25 years ago by union and non-union contractors solely to oppose 
discriminatory and wasteful project labor agreements, commented in the era of hyper-inflation for 
construction projects and the macro economy with inflation, there were insufficient workers to 
meet all needs.  A PLA exacerbated the problem by reducing the number of people who would 
bid on a project, with 88 percent in the state choosing to work in a labor/union-free environment 
pursuant to labor statistics.  Those who chose to protect skilled and trained workers chose to do 
that in a union-free environment making it impossible to work under a PLA due to the need to pay 
union dues to join an organization they did not wish to join and pay union health, welfare and 
pension plans that were never vested, which was wage theft.   
 
Mr. Christen added that PLAs almost exclusively required union apprentices, and young men and 
women in state approved non-apprenticeship programs were explicitly excluded under PLAs and 
non-union contractors were reduced to only being able to use a few of their own core workers and 
work with people in which they had no relationship.  All of this made it harder for union-free 
contractors to get work and helped big labor interests get a monopoly on work.   
 
In an era of hyper-inflation in the construction industry, Mr. Christen questioned why the City of 
Pinole would consider a PLA.  He asked that all voices be heard and opinions be valued on this 
issue and brought to the table and noted that within the area there were state approved non-union 
apprenticeship programs that would be excluded in a PLA.  He urged the City Council to reach 
out and visit those young men and women being trained.   
 
Tanya Little, a former small business advocate for the State of California, appointed by former 
Governor Brown for business development in the state, emphasized the importance that small 
non-unionized businesses be able to compete.  These businesses were the backbone of the 
economy and should be given the opportunity.  She suggested the City consider small business 
goals and if the City had to hire a large business, ensure that business served the certified local 
businesses to ensure they had a local fair share and give back to the community.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 


32 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 11 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Toms requested with respect to Item 9 that the meeting minutes for the Special 
City Council meeting of April 29, 2023 be pulled from the Consent Calendar, with the item to be 
continued to a future meeting.   
 
Council members Sasai and Martinez-Rubin requested that Item 9J be pulled from the Consent 
Calendar for discussion.    
 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Toms/Council member Sasai to approve Consent 
Calendar Items 9A (with the exception of the April 29, 2023 Special City Council Meeting to 
be brought back at a future meeting), Items 9B through 9I and Items 9K and 9L, as shown. 
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
Speaking to Item 9J, Council member Sasai thanked the Human Resources Director and staff for 
the time to coordinate the High School Student Internships with the City Council Members, which 
would be an investment in the City and the students who may participate in the project.   He had 
experience as an unpaid intern while a student and concurred with the comments that the interns 
be fairly compensated.  While the staff report had shown there was no room to compensate 
volunteers due to limitations in the Pinole Municipal Code (PMC), he understood there was 
flexibility within the volunteer program and policy for stipends.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin wanted assurance in any communication about the selection of 
the student interns that there be mention that City Council members who would be overseeing 
the work (whether part of the 20-hours or fewer to be considered in a week), have current 
certificates of completion for ethics training to comply with Assembly Bill (AB) 1234 and Sexual 
Harassment Prevention Training as part of AB 1661. She also asked whether the mandated 
reporter role would apply in this instance even if the program was not in a school setting to ensure 
a safe environment for participants.   
 
Human Resources Director Stacy Shell explained that the mandated reporter would be part of the 
policy for the volunteer program and anyone supervising a minor would be required to complete 
a mandated reporter training.  The requirements could be communicated to the guardians of the 
participants while the ethics and sexual harassment prevention training required would be 
monitored by the City Clerk’s Office.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin asked that the required training also apply to transportation of a 
youth/minor/student intern via a Council member’s personal vehicle to ensure there was no 
liability for a Council member who may participate in the program, and the City was not liable for 
any misinterpreted contact. 
 
Human Resources Director Shell clarified she would have to work with Risk Management and the 
third party administrator on that issue unless the City Attorney had a response, and City Attorney 
Eric Casher stated he would have to review that issue as well.   
 


33 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 12 
 


Council member Sasai offered a motion, seconded by Council member Tave to direct staff to 
return with options to provide compensation to the student interns to include a Revised Volunteer 
Program and Policy that would allow for stipends. 
 
On the motion, Council member Tave sought more information on the scope for the student 
interns to be added to the motion. He asked that possible options include the possibility of 20-
hour part time positions.  He noted the City had a college student intern in the past who had 
worked on the Bikeways Program and found student interns to be valuable to the City.  He 
suggested a full program should be explored.    
 
Council member Tave asked that the motion be amended to include a defined scope and add to 
the options a part-time employee not to exceed 20-hours as one of the options for compensation.   
 
On the discussion, City Manager Andrew Murray explained there was already a classification for 
a paid intern but a budget had not been assigned for that role or to any City Department.  The 
City Council had the capacity to fund an intern position; however, the way staff had envisioned 
the High School Student Internships with the City Council Members program there were 
limitations on which employees the City Council members may supervise pursuant to the PMC.  
If interns received a stipend and were not being supervised by Council members that may work 
within the PMC, but if those students were paid employees, the PMC had limitations on the City 
Council supervising the intern.   
 
Given the City already had a mechanism in place for paid interns, there could be a dialogue about 
what Departments they may be placed.  The issue of volunteers for the City Council in particular 
was a separate policy and City Council approval was required for a stipend for those volunteers.   
 
With that information, Council member Tave withdrew his amendment to the motion with the 
exception of requesting a defined scope.    
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Sasai/Tave to direct staff to return with options to 
provide compensation to interns to include a Revised Volunteer Program and Policy that 
would allow for stipends as well as a defined scope to return to the City Council.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Tave/Mayor Murphy to Receive the Report for a Plan 
for High School Student Internships with City Council Members.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
 


34 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 13 
 


10. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
Citizens wishing to speak regarding a Public Hearing item should fill out a speaker card prior to 
the completion of the presentation, by first providing a speaker card to the City Clerk. An official 
who engaged in an ex parté communication that is the subject of a Public Hearing must disclose 
the communication on the record prior to the start of the Public Hearing. 
 


A. First Reading of Ordinance Adopting a Military Equipment Policy and Approving 
Renewal of Chapter 2.60 “Military Equipment Policy” of the Pinole Municipal Code; 
and Review of 2022/2023 Annual Report in Compliance with AB 481 [Action:  
Waive first reading and conduct public hearing (Crone)] 


 
Police Chief Gang introduced Lieutenant Jeremy Crone, the Project Manager for the Military 
Equipment Policy, who provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Military Equipment Policy and  
Renewal of Chapter 2.60 “Military Equipment Policy” of the PMC and an overview of AB 481, 
Military Equipment, Funding, Acquisition and Use; Pinole Police Department Policy #707 and 
Policy #707 Equipment; Approval and Implementation Timeline and the details of the Annual 
Report in compliance with AB 481, which included a summary of how the military equipment was 
used, summary of any complaints or concerns, results of any audits or violations of military 
equipment, cost of equipment, maintenance and upgrades, inventory, projected acquisitions, 
purchase and maintenance, training and event and incident use.  He reported there had been no 
community complaints, concerns or violations during the Annual Report period.   
 
Lieutenant Crone also identified project military equipment acquisition for Fiscal Year 2023/24 
which would include ammunition for AR-15 patrol rifles estimated at $4,000, and highlighted the 
findings necessary for the City Council to make as part of AB 481 and as outlined in the May 16, 
2023 staff report.   
 
Council member Tave asked the number of training exercises and how they had been 
incorporated regionally, to which Lieutenant Crone detailed an active shooter training exercise at 
Pinole Valley High School that was considered to be regional training and had been hosted by 
the Federal Law Enforcement Training Center (FLETC).  The training session included agencies 
from Contra Costa and Alameda Counties.   
 
Council member Tave asked whether there were other military vehicles that could be used other 
than the Mine Resistant Ambush Protected Vehicle (MRAP), which could be used as an 
Emergency Response Vehicle (ERV). 
 
Lieutenant Crone advised there were a variety of vehicles that could provide some level of 
protection for law enforcement personnel.  The advantage of the MRAP as an ERV was its sheer 
size and height given the potential for flooding or natural disaster that would require a vehicle to 
traverse such an environment.  Given the ground clearance that the MRAP ERV provided it was 
the better vehicle.   
 
Council member Sasai asked whether there was any national data which supported the MRAP’s 
likelihood of preventing an active shooting or a decrease in fatalities, and Lieutenant Crone stated 
he would have to research that data. 
 
 


35 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 14 
 


Council member Sasai asked whether the purpose of having the MRAP at special community 
events was for educational purposes with the public, to which Lieutenant Crone explained that 
National Night Out, as an example, hosted by the City of Pinole and the Pinole Police Department 
had included the presence of the equipment at the event which allowed the Police Department to 
showcase equipment the Police Department had to protect the community.  The event included 
not only the MRAP ERV but a command center and other equipment and was used as an 
educational tool for the community.  The presence of the equipment at the Annual Car Show was 
also intended to showcase the equipment and the level of protection and safety provided by the 
Police Department.  The MRAP ERV would also pose a significant barrier to someone using a 
vehicle as a ram in a crowded environment.   
 
Council member Sasai asked whether a City fleet would be an alternative to the MRAP ERV and 
was informed by Lieutenant Crone that any large vehicle would be a deterrent but it would not be 
as effective as the MRAP ERV or have the capacity and ability of the equipment to address a 
mass casualty event or bring in resources.   
 
Council member Sasai asked what conversations were had with the community when the MRAP 
ERV had been included in community events. 
 
Lieutenant Crone stated there had been wide-eyed curiosity to genuine interest and appreciation 
to the equipment the City had in its inventory.  He had heard no negative comments about the 
MRAP ERV and if there was any negative connotation from the community about these pieces of 
equipment it would be known and heard by the Police Department since Pinole citizens were very 
engaged and had provided feedback on a continual basis.   
 
Council member Sasai commented he had feedback from black and brown residents expressing 
concern about the equipment being included at community events, which residents were not 
always comfortable expressing their opinions on that issue.   
 
Police Chief Gang explained that the MRAP ERV was not a proactive but a reactive tool for the 
Police Department and was intended as a response to an emergency.  He acknowledged there 
may be a segment of the community that may be intimidated by this equipment.  He reported in 
2022, resident Rafael Menis had raised some concerns and he had conversations with Mr. Menis 
about the equipment.  One of the goals of having the equipment at the community events was to 
allow the equipment to be opened up and the community to see how the equipment could be 
used.  He emphasized his main concern was for an active shooter situation at a local school and 
there was no Police or Public Works vehicle capable of extracting multiple people at one time.   
The MRAP ERV demystified why the vehicle was needed.  
 
Police Chief Gang added there had been regional requests for the use of the equipment which 
had been denied, since it had not met policy expectations and since the Pinole Police Department 
was very strict with how the equipment would be used.  The purpose of the equipment was to 
save lives and he was always open to conversations about the use of the equipment with the 
public.   
 
Council member Sasai commented the more he had these conversations with the Police Chief 
the more he respected his approach.  He had also been struck by the fact the Police Chief 
prioritized the preservation of life in the community.   
 


36 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 15 
 


Council member Martinez-Rubin asked who else would officially receive the report presented and 
how often there would be active shooter training, to which Lieutenant Crone advised the report 
would be posted on the City website and was only required to be shared with the City Council and 
the public.   He also clarified the active shooter training had been held on one occasion in the last 
year as part of a collaborative training environment since the training was expensive and required 
collaborative efforts.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin reported she had attended a statewide meeting in late April 
specifically about partnership and collaboration regarding safety on campuses.  During the 
meeting there had been discussions of different approaches and the meeting had included 
participation from elected officials, law enforcement agencies and parents with the audience 
members sharing a desire to work on much-needed collaboration and partnerships beyond local 
police departments who were trained as much as possible to prevent the loss of life.  She 
appreciated the work of the Pinole Police Department to encourage partnerships and suggested 
they had to do the best possible with necessary and essential performance required by trained 
personnel. 
 
Council member Tave also spoke to the regional training with the MRAP ERV but noted what had 
not been explained in the PowerPoint presentation was how often the equipment was not used, 
and he requested more detail in that regard.     
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED  
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, thanked the Police Chief for the presentation.  He had questions that 
had been answered as part of the presentation and he asked the City Council to approve the staff 
recommendation. 
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, expressed concern with the use of the ground-based robot versus drones 
and asked whether there were any limitations in policy as to the lethal use of the robot since in 
some contexts tracked vehicles with manipulation had been used to take proactive lethal 
responses in certain situations by Police Departments.   He also referenced Finding 2 of AB 481, 
as shown on Page 281 of 704 of the agenda packet, and noted a military use that had not been 
listed in this finding had been the use of drones.  He recalled the City was considering using 
drones as part of its resource tool box more generally or the Police Department tool box more 
specifically, and asked if that would fall under the Military Equipment Policy or another City policy.   
 
Anthony Vossbrink, Pinole, understood the MRAP ERV was very expensive and asked of the 
maintenance fees and insurance costs.  He understood such equipment would be in higher 
demand in larger cities than the City of Pinole and suggested Pinole did not have the infrastructure 
to support the equipment on a full-time basis.  He suggested it would be more prudent to rent, 
lease or sell the equipment to a neighboring community and use those funds for other public 
health and safety issues that involved the Pinole Police Department, such as more Police Officers 
on the street, police vehicles or active shooter systems on the City’s on- and off-ramps, security 
cameras on major arterials or a full or part-time satellite police station on Fitzgerald Drive.  He 
otherwise asked of the Police Department’s plans to address sideshows.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED  
 


37 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 16 
 


Lieutenant Crone responded to the public comment and clarified the Police Department’s Use of 
Force Policy did not authorize the use of ground-based robots or drones; $6,000 had been spent 
in deferred maintenance costs for the MRAP with annual costs estimated at $1,000 consistent 
with a heavy piece of equipment and the Military Use Policy did not address side shows but 
equipment used as specified in the Annual Report.  He explained that sideshows were traffic 
related and there would not be direct application of military use equipment in a sideshow 
environment unless something escalated to unanticipated levels, and then it would be handled 
through traffic enforcement.   
 
As to the acquisition costs for the MRAP and in response to the Mayor Pro Tem, Lieutenant Crone 
advised that information had been part of the Annual Report for 2022.  The cost of the equipment 
had been zero through the Law Enforcement Support Program (LESO) Program, which allowed 
the transfer of excess Department of Defense property that might otherwise be destroyed to law 
enforcement agencies across the United States and its territories.  The total acquisition costs 
were around $9,000.   
 
City Manager Murray further clarified that City staff was in the process of drafting two separate 
drone policies to be presented to the City Council for approval; one for drone use in the Police 
Department environment and one for non-police use primarily due to PCTV’s desire to film footage 
and related public safety issues such as natural disasters.    
 
Council member Sasai understood one of the uses for the MRAP was in the event of a natural 
disaster such as a flood, and he asked whether the Police Department had any conversations 
with the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (CCCFPD) about the use of the vehicle 
regarding wildfires. 
 
Lieutenant Crone reported he had not had conversations with the CCCFPD about the use of the 
equipment and he expected the CCCFPD had its own equipment to address such events.   
 
Council member Sasai also referenced Page 281 of 704 of the agenda packet and the findings to 
be made under AB 481, specifically Finding 1.  He commented that when he had been a student 
at U.C. Davis, he had met with the Mayor of the City of Davis at the time when that City had voted 
3-2 to discontinue the use of the policy for their militarized equipment including the use of an 
MRAP, and instead had purchased a commuter van that was bullet proof and could transport 
anyone in an active shooter situation.  As such, he disagreed that Finding 1 could be made and 
suggested there were reasonable alternatives.  Also, in the case of flooding or wildfire, CCCFPD 
had a rescue vehicle which was fitting for rescue in fire, flood, earthquake or storms and the 
vehicle was available for purchase by jurisdictions.   
 
Further, Council member Sasai stated the Police Chief had described the equipment as reactive.  
He found this was a reactive policy or asset to address flooding or an active shooting situation 
and in the event of an active shooter, he would not question whether the City had an MRAP 
vehicle but whether the City Council advocated for state or federal legislation to implement 
sensible gun control legislation, partner with the County on gun buy-back programs, collaborate 
with the District Attorney’s Office to get ghost guns off the streets, or consider more mental health 
officials in schools.  He suggested there were reasonable alternatives to the military equipment 
under discussion and while the military equipment policy may be more affordable it may not be 
the best policy.   


 


38 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 17 
 


Mayor Pro Tem Toms pointed out in the event of a storm with flooding there would be flooding in 
other communities and the CCCFPD may have only one piece of equipment when Pinole would 
have no say as to whether it would be able to use that equipment.  Also, were the City to purchase 
one of those vehicles or a bullet proof commuter van, as an example, there would be associated 
costs, whereas there were no additional costs for the MRAP ERV.  She recognized the equipment 
was large but she was confident the Police Department was educating the public on the need and 
use of the equipment.  It had also been used for training, which justified the need for it to be in 
the region and available to the citizens of Pinole and to the region in the event of an emergency.  
Council member Sasai pointed out that mutual aid was not exclusive to the City of Pinole.  He 
would like to know whether other cities had similar equipment that could be used by the City of 
Pinole as part of mutual aid.  He reiterated his concerns and stated he could not support a Military 
Equipment Policy that was composed during a time and for the purpose of combating the war on 
drugs that had over-incarcerated black and brown persons.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin commented the interest in gun control and other equipment that 
was so largely accessible to anyone and was needed to be addressed at the state and federal 
level was something she supported, but suggested it was a long way coming before any type of 
reform was possible.  Until that day and when reform made sense, concurrently the City needed 
other approaches because it had no other.  The Pinole Police Department was aware of the 
situation and people had been trained on the equipment and the types of occurrences that 
affected people’s lives.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms offered a motion, seconded by Council member Martinez-Rubin to adopt 
the staff recommendation as stated in the May 16, 2023 staff report.   
 
On the motion, Council member Tave liked the gun buy-back option and noted there were ways 
the community could help to combat and reduce the risk and having these conversations and 
discussions like Coffee with a Cop were important.  He found there had been progress at the local 
level and noted he too had heard comments from some residents who were uncomfortable with 
the MRAP ERV, but the more the public could be educated the better.  Until some of the gun-
related tragedies decreased rather than increased, he supported the staff recommendation.  He 
also liked the fact that AB 481 allowed an open conversation in the community each year. 
 
Council member Sasai commented he was from the generation that had to grow up with active 
shooting drills and he empathized his comments about looking for all possible alternatives that 
did not increase tension between the community and the Police but one that built trust.  He looked 
forward to having an annual conversation.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Mayor Pro Tem Toms/Martinez-Rubin to approve the 2022/23 Pinole 
Police Department Annual Military Equipment Report and waived the first reading and 
introduced by title only an ordinance approving and re-adopting a Military Equipment Use 
Policy as stated in Chapter 2.60 “Military Equipment Policy” of the Pinole City Municipal 
Code in compliance with AB 481.   
 
Vote:   Passed  4-1  


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Tave  
Noes:   Sasai 
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


39 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 18 
 


B. Resolution Adopting Updated User and Regulatory Fees and The Master Fee 
Schedule [Action:  Adopt Resolution per Staff Recommendation (Guillory)] 
 


Finance Director Markisha Guillory presented the staff report, and recommended the City Council 
hold the public hearing and adopt a resolution updating the City’s user and regulatory fees and 
the Updated Master Fee Schedule to be effective August 1, 2023.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED  
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, suggested the City Council adopt the resolution as presented by staff.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED  


 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Tave/Mayor Pro Tem Toms to adopt a resolution 
adopting Updated User and Regulatory Fees and The Master Fee Schedule to be effective 
August 1, 2023.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
11. OLD BUSINESS:  None  
 
12. NEW BUSINESS  


 
A. Ten-Year General Fund Status Quo Financial Forecast (Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 


Through FY 2032/33)  [Receive Report (Guillory)] 
 
Finance Director Guillory provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Ten-Year General Fund 
Status Quo Financial Forecast (Fiscal Year (FY)) 2023/24 through FY 2032/33).  She explained 
that the propose of the Long-Term Financial Forecast (LTFF) had been to provide estimates of 
future revenues and expenditures based on assumptions about future activities and the operating 
environment, provide a longer-term view of the City’s fiscal condition and identify future financial 
opportunities and challenges. The LTFF was not a budget but served as a valuable planning and 
decision-making tool for budget development.  
 
Finance Director Guillory highlighted the five-year financial plan forecasts as part of the Long-
Term Financial Plan (LTFP)  and explained that the City had focused on a status quo forecast for 
the General Fund that estimated the City’s future revenues and expenditures if the City 
maintained the status quo service and staffing levels.  The City Council had requested staff 
prepare a Ten-Year Financial Forecast which would be included in the next LTFP to be presented 
to the City Council in September 2023.   
 
Finance Director Guillory provided an overview of the General Fund Ten-Year Financial Forecast, 
General Fund Ten-Year Financial Forecast Summary, Key Revenue Assumptions, Key 
Expenditure Assumptions, General Fund Ten-Year Financial Forecast – Revenues and 
Expenditures and General Fund Ten-Year Financial Forecast – Fund Balances.   


40 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 19 
 


Finance Director Guillory reiterated the financial forecast would be incorporated into the next 
version of the LTFP and staff was working with a consultant on long-term strategic financial 
planning.  The Ten-Year General Fund Status Quo Financial Forecast would serve as the basis 
for a more prescriptive LTFP and foundation for building upon and staff would look at revenue-
generating opportunities to be brought to the City Council, efficiencies on the expenditure side to 
reduce expenditures, and financing mechanisms for some of the long-term more expensive 
capital projects such as bond issuance, all of which would come back to the City Council as part 
of the LTFP. 
 
Mayor Murphy thanked Finance Department staff for the preparation of the Ten-Year General 
Fund Status Quo Financial Forecast.     
 
Council member Sasai asked for clarification on the sales taxes and whether online sales had 
been captured.   He also asked whether expanding the tax base would be considered by staff.  
 
Finance Director Guillory clarified that online sales taxes went to the County as part of a pool and 
was than allocated on a proportional basis.  She added that all areas would be explored including 
potential tax measures.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin clarified with the Finance Director the consultant work was 
ongoing and that staff had timed things to allow possible revenue-generating measures to be 
placed on the ballot in 2026.    
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms shared concerns with the numbers shown and pointed out the City was 
looking at continuing to have a deficit.  She commented on what the City had received in property 
taxes versus what was being paid out in the CCCFPD contract.  Given the City would continue to 
have a deficit, the City Council needed to keep in mind the different election years, where they 
could ask voters whether there was interest in supporting a bond issuance to pay for capital or a 
tax measure to pay for operating revenue, with the financial forecast a good tool to have.  She 
thanked staff for the information.   
 
City Manager Murray added as part of the LTFP the intent was to have a 20-year forecast.  There 
would be some retirement of debt in the pension obligation bonds in 20 years and he 
acknowledged the longer term the forecast the less precise but there were some known changes 
that would take place.  The City was working with an actuary who would provide more information 
on the life expectancy of the Pension Trust and how the required pension contributions may 
change, which would all be explained as part of the longer planning horizon information.   
 
Council member Tave clarified with the Finance Director the property taxes as shown had not 
shown new construction and he asked why it had been excluded. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms noted there were two projects that involved property tax exemptions.   
 
Finance Director Guillory explained that the Ten-Year General Fund Status Quo Financial 
Forecast served as the foundation, the “status quo” and current conditions and new construction 
would be considered when building upon the forecast in the LTFP.  
 
 


41 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 20 
 


Council member Tave also referenced the Utility User’s Tax (UUT) and clarified with the Finance 
Director the figures in the PowerPoint presentation.  Ms. Guillory noted that substantial growth 
had been seen in the last five years in the electricity and gas segments with the 
telecommunications segment continuing to decrease.   
 
Mayor Murphy clarified with the Finance Director the following:  While the financial forecast was 
“status quo” the UUT may include wastewater, cable and refuse services and the current LTFP 
had mentioned those as possible expansions for the UUT; the Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) 
was usually expanded by increasing the percentage with a 10 percent tax currently levied; and 
the CCCFPD Agreement had a 20-year lifespan with the assumption that the CCCFPD would 
provide an additional five years at $2 million, capped in the current agreement at four percent.   
Ms. Guillory also defined the capital outlay as the capital improvement projects with the Baseline 
Budget capital outlay normal operating smaller items and not capital projects for the purposes of 
the operating budget, which had been increased for inflation.   
 
Council member Sasai again clarified with the Finance Director with respect to the financial 
forecast for sales taxes that the consultant typically provided a five-year projection which was 
carried out with three percent through the ten years, to be revisited as part of the LTFP.  The 
financial forecast had been based on current conditions.   
  
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, praised City staff for the presentation and the longer term projection which  
showed what would be seen in the future when hitting the end of the Pension Trust fund, as an 
example, which was the big shift in FY 2031 and ongoing with the budget curve showing a 
gradually increasing deficit when progressing to FYs 2029, 2030, 2031, 2032 and 2033.  He asked 
if the City Council wanted to use the funds from the General Reserve to offset losses and whether 
that was possible but which would require modification to the Reserve Policy.  He also understood 
the financial forecast was a worst-case scenario and had not taken into account future revenue 
gains, although the projections had assumed a steady three percent in revenues year after year, 
and had not taken into account the possibility of a recession impacting Vehicle License Fees 
(VLFs) taxes, UUT, property taxes and sales taxes.  If that occurred, he commented it may lead 
to a worse outcome than projected.  He asked how that would impact future recovery. He added 
he had advocated since 2018 for the City to consider revenue increasing measures and he urged 
the City Council to consider wastewater and water user utility taxes.   
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, was surprised with the salaries and wages and asked for clarification 
since he found the information in the PowerPoint to be confusing.    
 
Tony Gutierrez, Pinole, understood the forecast model was status quo and while a starting point 
asked when the City first started modeling for a five-year plan.  He asked whether the City had 
the actuals for the first five-year forecast, which would provide an indication of how good the Ten-
Year Financial Forecast was as presented.   
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED  
 
Finance Director Guillory clarified in response to the public comments that the City Council may 
use the General Reserve but would have to update the Reserve Policy by resolution to change 
the 50 percent requirement.   


42 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 21 
 


Finance Director Guillory acknowledged the Ten-Year Financial Forecast had not taken into 
account a recession scenario.  In terms of the inquiry about salaries and wages, she clarified for 
Fiscal Year 2022/23 the current fiscal year included the full-time equivalent for fire staff and since 
the Pinole Fire Department transitioned to the CCCFPD in March 2023, the forecast moving 
forward would not include the 16 full-time equivalents which explained the decrease.  When the 
salaries and wages went back up again, it would be due to the three percent growth factor in the 
cost-of-living adjustment (COLA).   
 
Finance Director Guillory was uncertain when the City had done its first five-year forecast since it 
preceded her time with the City but clarified the City did have actuals prior to the Ten-Year 
Financial Forecast, although it was not an “apples to apples” comparison.  Those figures could 
be shown in the model.   
 
Council member Tave asked whether the consultant HdL Companies had provided any 
information on a possible recession number, with the City having projected three percent and if 
so how the City would address it. 
 
Finance Director Guillory explained that a recession scenario with projections on property and 
sales taxes could be requested but the status quo would still need to be shown along with the 
various scenarios.   
 
Council member Tave wanted more information on a timeline for maximum and minimum 
scenarios if the City had to pivot.   
 


B. Preliminary Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
[Receive Report and Provide Direction (Guillory)] 


 
Finance Director Guillory provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Preliminary Proposed Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget.  She provided an overview of the key dates for 
the budget, the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and LTFP, Structurally Balanced Budget Policy, 
FY 2023/24 Preliminary Proposed Budget Highlights, FY 2023/24 Preliminary Proposed Budget 
– General Fund, FY 2023/24 General Fund Preliminary Proposed Budget – Revenues and 
Expenditures, Summary Fund Balances, FY 2023/24 Preliminary Proposed Budget – All Funds 
and the Balancing Act – and preliminary results of the Community Budget Priorities Survey.   
 
Finance Director Guillory advised the next steps would be to evaluate City Council changes to 
the budget, if any, incorporate them into the Revised Proposed Budget, and include any staff-
generated content and present the Revised Proposed Budget to the City Council on June 6, 2023.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin walked through the Summary of Fund Balances with the Finance 
Director who clarified there may be some “wiggle” room in the category of one-time initiatives and 
capital improvement projects, and who could relabel some of the header information in the  
Summary of Fund Balances to make the information clearer.  
 
Finance Director Guillory also clarified that agenda Item 12A Ten-Year Financial Forecast only 
included the General Fund and had not taken into account any other funds.  She noted many of 
the funds shown in the summary funded capital projects over many years and the Finance 
Department was working with the other City Departments to ensure the fund balance was 
available to draw down.   


43 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 22 
 


Council member Sasai also clarified the negative percentage changes in the categories shown in 
the FY 2023/24 General Fund Preliminary Proposed Budget – Expenditures which were mostly 
driven by the changes related to the CCCFPD Agreement and the three percent COLA.  For each 
category, the assumptions had been explained and would be within the context of the budget 
document in terms of the growth rates.   
 
Mayor Murphy further clarified pursuant to Page 459 of 704 of the agenda packet that the City 
paid $7,685 to the League of California Cities for membership and $400 for the East Bay Division, 
and City Clerk Bell confirmed costs may have increased slightly.  The expenditure had been 
moved into the City Council Budget and had been in the General Government section of the 
budget in the past.   Also, $15,000 for Council office furniture was clarified as a one-time expense.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, referenced Page 379 of 704 of the agenda packet and the discussion about 
the budget shortfall.  He asked for more detail of the staff-identified ongoing General Fund 
expenditure reductions in order to eliminate the gap, possibly with a table identifying the possible 
reduction amounts in each Department.  For Page 396 of 704, he praised the table as shown, 
which was useful to show revenues and expenditures and the use of fund balance all in one table.   
 
Mr. Menis referenced Page 426 of 704, and the chart for Revenue by Type but noted the text for 
transfers-in was illegible and suggested the color of the legend should be modified to be more 
readable.  Page 425 of 704 referred to the anticipated cost increase curve for the Police 
Department and commented that he had an offline text conversation with the Finance Director 
about this issue who had informed him there was a nine percent over year baseline increase due 
to three percent baseline, three percent equity and three percent link to various education funds.  
He asked if those increases in baseline were expected to continue at that rate in future years.  He 
was also surprised to see the City Clerk’s Office would have a greater share of expenditures than 
the City Manager’s Office.   
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, referenced Page 448 of 704 of the agenda packet and the staff 
positions listed for each City Department.  He asked whether positions would be added.  He 
otherwise suggested the budget looked good.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin clarified with the Finance Director the total revenues and 
expenditures in the Pension Fund, which was interest income for the assets remaining in the 
Pension Trust and was the only revenue in that fund and the City had not contributed any 
additional funds other than the original funds placed in the Trust.  The expenditures had been 
based on the increased cost for the pension costs representing the transfer to the General Fund.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin also clarified with the Finance Director the input received on the 
Balancing Act Survey related to community services and recreation programming.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin asked whether the consultant the City would be working with on 
the LTFP would provide options to increase revenues and consider funding for the Community 
Services Department. 
 


44 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 23 
 


City Manager Murray explained in addition to the work on the LTFP, the Park Master Plan 
consultant (separate from the consultant work on the LTFP) would consider recreational 
programming and would provide recommendations on what the footprint “services and 
recreational programs” the City should operate and what funding model should be considered.   
 
Finance Director Guillory again reminded the City Council of the next steps with the Revised 
Proposed Budget to be presented to the City Council at its June 6, 2023 meeting.   
 


C. Preliminary Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Through 2027/28 Five-Year 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) [Action:  Receive Report and Provide Direction 
(Kaur)]  


 
Capital Improvement and Environmental Program Manager Misha Kaur provided a PowerPoint 
presentation on the Preliminary Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 through 2027/28 Five-Year 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) intended to identify and address the City’s capital needs, with 
capital projects and investments that build, replace or improve a City asset.  The Preliminary 
Proposed CIP contained 32 capital projects and nine infrastructure assessments in the project 
categories of facilities, parks, sewers, stormwater, streets & roads and infrastructure 
assessments, as shown in the May 16, 2023 staff report.   
 
Ms. Kaur identified four projects that had been removed from the CIP that were due to be 
completed by this fiscal year ending June 30, 2023 and additional projects that had been added 
to the CIP, which resulted in the projects as identified in the Preliminary Proposed CIP and as 
shown in the staff report.  She also highlighted the project prioritization methodology and scoring 
used to set the schedule for the projects.   
 
Ms. Kaur reiterated the Five-Year CIP contained 32 capital projects and nine infrastructure 
assessments.  High priority projects and projects underway had been scheduled for FY 2023/24 
and seven lower priority projects that had not been initiated had been scheduled for FY 2024/25, 
as described in the staff report.   She also provided an overview of the budget summary for each 
of the projects identified, grants expected to be received and sources of other funds such as 
Measure S funds.   
 
Ms. Kaur also identified the tentative schedule for the CIP with a Revised Proposed CIP to be 
presented to the City Council on June 6, 2023 and thereafter a Final Proposed CIP on June 20, 
2023.   
 
Council member Tave referenced the projects expected to be completed in FY 2022/23, such as 
the Electric Vehicle (EV) charging stations and asked how much money the City had spent on the 
project.  He also asked the status of the playground rubberized surface improvements, Local 
Road Safety Plan (LRSP), Sanitary Sewer Master Plan and the Safety Improvements for Tennent 
Avenue and Plum Street, and Energy Upgrades.   
 
Ms. Kaur explained that the EV charging station project consisted of one Level Two Dual Port EV 
Charging Station to be located in the Public Safety Building.  Although the project had been 
delayed, she had been informed it would be installed within the next week with the construction 
award for the contract in the range of $75,000 to $76,000 due to needed changes in striping 
configurations and other upgrades.   
 


45 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 24 
 


Public Works Director Sanjay Mishra further clarified in response to concerns with the cost for the 
Level Two Dual Port EV Charging Station Project that the project involved changes to the 
sidewalk, curb ramp, the charger itself, installation of the electrical work and concrete work which 
was the most expensive part of the project.   
 
Ms. Kaur added the City expected to receive grant reimbursement for the equipment through both 
Marin Clean Energy (MCE) and the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
(WCCTAC).  As to the playground rubberized surface improvements, the project also involved a 
grant and the City would be seeking reimbursement.  The LRSP and Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 
had been completed.   
 
In further response to Council member Tave, Ms. Kaur stated the high priority projects and 
projects underway had been scheduled for FY 2023/24 and seven lower priority projects that had 
not been initiated had been scheduled for FY 2024/25, with some projects involving multi-fiscal 
years.  As to the safety improvements for Tennent Avenue and Pear Street, the City Council had 
awarded funds for the project.  The project was out for bid with the bids due to close on May 31, 
2023.  Once the bids had closed and the construction contract had been reviewed and approved 
by the City Council the funds would be appropriated for the contract.    
 
Public Works Director Mishra clarified with respect to the Energy Upgrades project that a City 
Facilities Master Plan was being prepared and would identify all facility needs.  The Energy Audit 
for City facilities was also in process with a Request for Proposal (RFP) having been issued for 
the project.  Some HVAC work had been completed but other work was ongoing.   
 
Council member Tave further asked whether the CIP projects had been slated in the Ten-Year 
Financial Forecast as expenditures and Finance Director Guillory clarified the CIP had not been 
included in the Ten-Year Financial Forecast, which was the baseline forecast, but it had shown 
the unassigned fund balance informing decisions on how to fund some CIP projects.   
 
Council member Tave was curious how the CIP would impact the current fiscal year and how the 
City had planned for the following years.  He found the timeline for each CIP project to be 
important but there was no information on the impacts to the specific funds.   
 
Finance Director Guillory explained as part of the LTFP they would be expanding the forecast to 
20 years, which would take into account the CIP and beyond including the General Fund.   
 
City Manager Murray added in further response to Council member Tave that for the multi-year 
CIP projects, the funding was encumbered when the projects were approved by the City Council, 
with most of the projects to be paid through grant funds and anticipated Measure S funds or a 
little of other General Fund contributions.  Larger projects such as deferred work on the City’s 
roads or a complete rebuild of a City facility had not been included in the CIP and lacked funding.  
He explained that the City had the funds for the CIP projects listed from various fund balances.  
Some of the projects would not start until the next fiscal year and there were projects that were 
ranked a lower priority through the priority matrix.   
 
City Manager Murray clarified the CIP projects were using one-time sources that would not help 
the City solve any imbalance in the budget.  If the projects were not funded with the fund balance 
that would get the City through a limited period of economic distress that would not solve the 
ongoing issues since there were not ongoing resources.   


46 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 25 
 


To solve some of the budget issues ongoing reductions were needed.  In the event of a serious 
recession, reducing City services may be needed but the real plan was to maintain core City 
services through the use of the General Reserve and those resources had already been set aside. 
 
Council member Tave understood the projects would get done but questioned the cost.   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms referenced the sources by fund as shown in the table on Page 630 of 704 
of the agenda packet and clarified with Finance Director Guillory that the General Fund and 
measures had been included in the operating budget with all other funding sources that covered 
capital facilities not in the operating budget nor shown in the table.   
 
Council member Sasai asked for clarification on the prioritization methodology and scoring 
process for the CIP projects, and Ms. Kaur described how staff had gone through a summary of 
the projects with staff from other City Departments with a ranking of the projects.  She clarified 
that nothing came out of the ordinary from those discussions.  This was the first time staff had 
used the priority matrix and it had been tested in projects already underway, so when the scoring 
appeared for each project sheet it had not appeared for those projects already underway.   
 
City Manager Murray further described the prioritization methodology and scoring process and 
stated staff could go through the process again to identify priorities for those projects underway if 
the City Council so directed.   
 
Council member Sasai clarified with Ms. Kaur that projects underway already had assigned costs.  
He asked whether or not priority scores could be provided for unfunded projects and Ms. Kaur 
confirmed that could be done, but those projects that were funded had more of a defined scope 
as compared to those that were not as well defined.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council members Sasai/Tave to extend the City Council meeting to 
11:15 p.m.   
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
Council member Sasai also asked of the operational and maintenance costs for the Pinole Smart 
Signals Project and was informed by the Public Works Director the project would be done in 
conjunction with the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA).  The City was about to sign 
a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) and would provide a matching fund.  The total cost of 
the project was roughly $25 million with the City of Pinole’s portion about $1.5 million.  Once the 
project was complete, the maintenance and equipment would be the responsibility of the City to 
be maintained as the City maintained all of its traffic signals with a contract with the County.   
 
Ms. Kaur stated CCTA staff had indicated there would be an operation and maintenance 
agreement and as they were going through the design those costs would be further defined.  For 
the I-80 Mobility Project and as part of the agreement, the City had been reimbursed for operation 
and maintenance costs but it was unclear what those costs were and who would be responsible 
which would be defined as part of the agreement to come forth.   


47 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 26 
 


Council member Martinez-Rubin suggested as part of the prioritization criteria that potential 
matching grants be considered and Ms. Kaur explained the way that category had been scored 
between 1 and 5, if a project was funded 50 percent with grants it would have a score of 3 or 4.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin suggested it would be smart for the City to set aside funding for 
projects where staff had a notion there could be some matching available.  As an example, there 
had been a CIP project for trash bins and there could have been matching funds from a source 
yet to be determined.  There was no funding available for the project now and she was uncertain 
how to increase the scoring and whether it would be useful to have funds allotted for the overall 
budget.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin referenced maintenance for the City’s walking trails and 
commented there was narrative about broad maintenance of the entire trail system, but she had 
identified a spot that involved a public safety concern and asked how that was funded and allowed 
staff some way to quantify and fit in the possibility of risk into the criteria.   
 
Public Works Director Mishra understood Council member Martinez-Rubin had concern with a trip 
hazard on a small portion of the Pinole Creek Trail.  He reported the Traffic and Pedestrian Safety 
Committee (TAPS) recommended this portion of the trial be done and subsequently he had 
presented a request and cost estimate to the City Council, which had approved the request.   
 
City Manager Murray added the health and safety criteria of the prioritization methodology had 
addressed that issue as well.  If a risk, it would be scored under health and safety but some of 
the work would be too small to fall under the CIP and would involve the operational fund.  In the 
same way City staff repaired potholes, they also repaired the pedestrian bridge over Pinole Creek 
and could repair a small piece of the trail to be addressed through a service request to the Public 
Works Department.  In terms of setting aside funds for matching, that was defined as a grant.  
Some grants provided 50 percent while others provided 100 percent of funding.  The available 
resources to provide the local match was in the fund balance.   
 
Council member Martinez-Rubin asked of the status of maintenance work for repainting the lines 
which divided the lanes on City streets and pedestrian crosswalks, and City Manager Murray 
advised that was a line item in the Public Works Department core maintenance budget. 
 
Public Works Director Mishra acknowledged information on the costs and regular activities of the 
Public Works Department was to be provided to the City Council in the form of a memorandum 
and that would be provided. City staff would do most of the painting work but did not have the 
capability for some of the required pavement markings and would hire contractors for that work.    
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS OPENED  
 
Rafael Menis, Pinole, referenced Page 618 of 704 of the agenda packet and the funding 
opportunities as part of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA) and the Inflation 
Reduction Act (IRA), and asked of the status where staff was to provide a report on how the City 
was preparing to apply for funds from the IIJA and government broadband funding since there 
was no information in the staff report.  He also referenced Page 613 of 704 and the information 
for San Pablo Avenue Complete Streets, and although there had been a lot of points listed, it had 
not included the closure of sidewalk gaps particularly on the north side of San Pablo Avenue.  He 
asked if that would be part of or separate from the San Pablo Avenue Complete Streets Project.   


48 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 27 
 


Cordell Hindler, Richmond, supported the item and had no additional comments.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS CLOSED  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Toms referenced Page 612 of 704 of the agenda packet and the list of City 
Council requested information on CIP-related matters, specifically the fencing for the dog park.   
She had walked the dog park with a resident who commented frequently and whose comments 
and her observation was that the fencing was fine but a dog not in control of its owner could jump 
the fence given that one section of the lower part of the fenced had debris piled up so that the 
ground on the dog park side would be a foot higher in elevation than the other side of the fence.   
Mayor Murphy referenced Page 618 of 704 of the agenda packet and the comment where City 
staff was to provide a report on how the City was preparing to apply for funds from the IIJA and 
government broadband funding.  He asked when the report would be provided.   
 
Public Works Director Mishra confirmed staff was to provide information to the City Council on the 
IRA and on the IIJA but due to lack of time the item had been moved to the next City Council 
meeting on June 6, 2023.   
 
ACTION:  Motion by Council member Sasai/Mayor Murphy to direct staff to include priority 
scores for underway and unfunded projects in the Revised Proposed CIP.  
 
Vote:   Passed  5-0 


Ayes:   Murphy, Toms, Martinez-Rubin, Sasai, Tave  
Noes:   None  
Abstain: None  
Absent: None 


 
Ms. Kaur reiterated that certain projects not as defined and without updated costs would have to 
be reconsidered by the panel in terms of priority to inform the City Council.   
 
13. CITIZENS TO BE HEARD (Continued from Item 6) (Public Comments)  
Only open to members of the public who did not speak under the first Citizens to be Heard, 
Agenda Item 6.   
Citizens may speak under any item not listed on the Agenda.  The time limit is 3 minutes and 
is subject to modification by the Mayor. Individuals may not share or offer time to another speaker.  
Pursuant to provisions of the Brown Act, no action may be taken on a matter unless it is listed on 
the agenda, or unless certain emergency or special circumstances exist.  The City Council may 
direct staff to investigate and/or schedule certain matters for consideration at a future Council 
meeting. 
 
Cordell Hindler, Richmond, requested as a future agenda item that the City Council invite a 
representative from the Port of Oakland to make a presentation on plans for the port post 
pandemic.  He also suggested the meetings would be more efficient if the number of 
proclamations were separated between Council meetings and he asked the City Council to 
consider that recommendation.   
 
14. ADJOURNMENT to the Regular City Council Meeting of June 6, 2023, in Remembrance 


of Amber Swartz.     
 


49 of 829







 
Pinole City Council Regular Meeting  
Minutes – May 16, 2023   
Page 28 
 


At 11:14 p.m., Mayor Murphy adjourned the meeting to the Regular City Council Meeting of June 
6, 2023 in Remembrance of Amber Swartz.   
 
Submitted by: 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
Approved by City Council:  


50 of 829







51 of 829







52 of 829







53 of 829







54 of 829







55 of 829







56 of 829







57 of 829







58 of 829







59 of 829







60 of 829







61 of 829







62 of 829







63 of 829







64 of 829







65 of 829







66 of 829







67 of 829







68 of 829







69 of 829







70 of 829







71 of 829







72 of 829







73 of 829







74 of 829







75 of 829







76 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


9C 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 
MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROGRAM MANAGER 


SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022/23 THIRD QUARTER REPORT ON STATUS 
OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) PROJECTS 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council receive the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 Third 
Quarter Report on the status of Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) projects.  


BACKGROUND 


The CIP is a multi-year plan/forecast of the City’s capital improvement projects. The first 
year of the CIP is the proposed capital project plan and capital budget for that fiscal year. 


The City creates an updated CIP each year based on the condition of the City’s current 
capital assets, the desire for new capital assets, and available funding. Projects in the 
CIP address the City’s major types of capital assets: facilities, parks, sanitary sewer 
collection and treatment infrastructure, stormwater infrastructure, and roads. The City 
owns considerable capital assets in other classes as well, including streetlights, traffic 
control devices, sidewalks, street trees, trash capture devices, waste bins and 
enclosures, traffic/wayfinding signage, benches, bike racks, monument signs, fleet, and 
fiber optic conduit.  


The CIP serves as a tool for staff to plan, implement, and manage improvements and 
ongoing upgrades to the City’s infrastructure. The Administration and Engineering 
Division in the Public Works Department is responsible for identifying and completing City 
capital projects. 


REVIEW & ANALYSIS 


The City’s adopted CIP (Attachment A) contains construction projects and infrastructure 
assessments. The infrastructure assessments included in the CIP will aid the City in 
identifying and prioritizing construction projects and will identify funding opportunities for 
future projects. 


77 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023   2 


Attachment B is a summary of the CIP project lifecycle and a status of each project 
programmed for FY 2022/23 in the CIP as of the end of the third quarter of FY 2022/23.  
 
Third Quarter CIP Highlights 


 
• Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation (SS2201) 


On January 17, 2023, City Council awarded a contract to the lowest responsive 
and responsible bidder, West Valley Construction Company, Inc. for preliminary 
engineering design services for phase 1 of the Pinon project described in the City’s 
recently adopted Sanitary Sewer Master Plan (SSMP). The anticipated completion 
date of the design work is expected to be Spring 2024. Based on a preliminary 
review of video inspections and SSMP, several segments of the collection system 
will require replacement/rehabilitation to address inflow and infiltration as well as 
extend the useful life of the collection system. To implement proposed 
improvements identified in the SSMP, the City will take a phased approach and 
incorporate findings from the in-pipe camera inspections. 
 


• Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements (PA2203) 
In January 2023, the play surface was renovated at Pinole Valley Park with pour-
in-place playground surfacing. This project also involves installation of new 
rubberized surface at Fernandez Park. The project is expected to be complete by 
June 30, 2023.  
 


• Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP) (IN2104) 
On February 21, 2023, the City Council adopted Resolution 2023-17 adopting the 
City’s LRSP.  A LRSP is a mechanism through which local governments identify 
roadway safety issues in their jurisdictions to develop a list of countermeasures for 
priority intersections and roadways segments based on collision analysis and 
feedback stakeholders. This project is complete, and the recommendations will be 
incorporated into the upcoming CIP.  


 
• Traffic Safety Improvements on the Tennent Avenue Corridor 


On February 21, 2023, City Council appropriated $110,000 for immediate 
improvements at two intersections on Tennent Ave at Pear and Plum St. The goal 
of these improvements is to reduce traffic speed and offer shorter crossing 
distances for pedestrians crossing the crosswalks. The work involves installation 
of high visibility continental crosswalks on all legs of both intersections, and interim 
curb extensions using pavement markings and flexible delineator posts. In 
addition, Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons will be installed at the Tennent Ave. 
and Plum St. intersection. This work is expected to be complete before the end of 
the calendar year.  
 


• Electric Vehicle (EV) Charging Stations (FA2002)  
This project will install a Level II dual port charging station at the parking lot serving 
the Public Safety Building. On November 15, 2022, City Council awarded a 
contract to Lord’s Electric for the project. However, due to supply chain issues, 


78 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023   3 


there was a twelve-week lead time on the charging equipment. The building code 
requires that the EV charging stations are constructed to be ADA-compliant which 
includes adequate space for exiting and entering the vehicle, unobstructed access 
to the charger, free movement around the charger and connection point on the 
vehicle. A side access aisle is also required to allow space for wheelchair and 
equipment in and out of the space. The project involves concrete removal and 
demolition, concrete placement, striping, signage, conduit installation, conductor 
installation, general electrical work, and installation of electric vehicle charger. 
While waiting for the charging equipment, the Contractor completed work related 
to the sidewalk, curb ramp, and installed electrical conduit. The anticipated 
completion date of the project is June 30, 2023.  
 


• Active Transportation Plan (ATP) (IN2106) 
On March 7, 2023, City Council awarded a contract to GHD, Inc. to provide 
professional and technical planning services to develop an ATP. The ATP will 
outline strategies and actions to support and encourage active modes of 
transportation such as walking, biking, and taking public transit. This work will 
involve a review of current plans and policies, production of 10% concept designs 
which incorporate community feedback, feasibility analysis including traffic data 
collection, and cost estimates for recommended projects.  
 


FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Projects have budgeted sources of funds which have been previously approved by City 
Council. There is no fiscal impact associated with this status update. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 
A. Adopted Capital Improvement Plan for FY 2022/23 through FY 2026/27 


 
B. CIP Project Lifecycle and Project Status Summary 
 


79 of 829







          CITY OF PINOLE              


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


FY 2022/23 – 2026/27 


Adopted: June 21, 2022


ATTACHMENT A


80 of 829







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN
FY 2022/23 – 2026/27 


 


 


CITY COUNCIL 
Vincent Salimi, Mayor 


Devin T. Murphy, Mayor Pro Tem 


Anthony L. Tave, Council Member 


Maureen Toms, Council Member 


Norma Martínez-Rubin, Council Member 


 


CITY MANAGER 
Andrew Murray 


 


PUBLIC WORKS 
DIRECTOR  
Sanjay Mishra 


 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
& ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROGRAM MANAGER 
Misha Kaur  


 


 


 
81 of 829







 
 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 


 


 
Introduction ................................................................................................................................. 1 


Next Steps in Capital Planning .................................................................................................. 2 


Project Funding ........................................................................................................................... 2 


Funding Sources ......................................................................................................................... 3 


Grants .......................................................................................................................................... 4 


Overview of Recommended Capital Budget ............................................................................ 5 


Funding Summary ...................................................................................................................... 6 


Project Description Sheets – Facilities ............................................................................. 9-17 


Project Description Sheets –  Parks ............................................................................... 18-22 


Project Description Sheets – Sanitary Sewer ................................................................. 23-29 


Project Description Sheets – Stormwater ....................................................................... 30-32 


Project Description Sheets – Roads ............................................................................... 33-44 


Project Description Sheets – Infrastructure Assessments .............................................. 45-53 


Unfunded and Unprogrammed Project List ........................................................................... 55 


Project Description Sheets  ............................................................................................ 56-67 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


82 of 829







 
 


Introduction 
 
The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a multi-year planning tool used to identify and implement 
the City’s capital needs over the upcoming five-year period. The CIP aligns the needs with 
appropriate funding, scheduling, and implementation. This document is a working blueprint for 
building and sustaining publicly funded physical infrastructure. Capital improvements refer to 
physical assets and include the design, purchase, construction, maintenance, or improvement 
of public resources (i.e. parks public infrastructure, equipment, public spaces). These 
improvements influence Pinole’s built and natural environment and help guide the trajectory of 
future growth or change.  
 
The projects in the CIP fall into the following broad categories: facility maintenance, parks, 
sewer collection and treatment, stormwater, streets and roads. These projects are developed in 
collaboration with department heads, and division managers under the direction of the City 
Manager to ensure all department needs are represented.  
 
The CIP is reviewed and updated annually for capital projects and programs that support City 
goals and objectives including priorities identified in the 2020-2025 Strategic Plan of developing 
a disciplined approach to funding infrastructure maintenance and improvements. The City seeks 
to enhance its focus on the state of the infrastructure throughout the community by first 
inventorying all the assets, assessing their contributions to a safe and vibrant Pinole, assessing 
their current conditions, and creating a disciplined investment approach resulting in a strong and 
purpose driven Capital Investment Plan.  
 
The preparation and adoption of the CIP is an important part of Pinole’s financial planning and 
budgeting process. Proposed projects are reviewed by the Planning Commission for 
consistency with the General Plan. The Finance Subcomittee also reviews and analyzes all 
aspects of the CIP and makes recommendations. Project priority and selection is based on 
specific criteria, such as: 


 Consistency with community plans and policies; 
 Regulatory compliance; 
 Public and political support; 
 Sustainability; 
 Cost savings or revenue generation; 
 Project demand, determined by inventory of existing land, equipment, and facility 


conditions; 
 Economic, environmental, aesthetic or social impacts; and 
 Public health, safety or other legal concerns. 


The process for developing the CIP involves the following steps: 


 


 


 


Identify projects 
for CIP budget


Prioritize projects 
and identify 


funding


Prepare budget 
for CIP


CIP Review by 
Finance 


Subcommittee 
and Planning 
Commission 


City Council 
adoption


Implementation of 
approved projects 


in CIP


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 1 of 6783 of 829







 
 


Next Steps in City Capital Planning 
 
The City will complete condition assessment of all the City’s capital assets and identify the 
funding levels required to maintain these assets. The City will continue to integrate capital 
planning information into the Long-Term Financial Plan, so City decision makers are aware of 
the City’s capital needs when they consider allocation of the City’s limited financial resources 
and consider possibly pursuing additional sources of City revenue.  
 


Project Funding  


A variety of funding sources support projects listed in the CIP. The first year’s program in the 
CIP is adopted by the City Council as the Capital Budget, as a counterpart to the annual 
Operating Budget. The fiscal resources are appropriated only in the first year, the subsequent 
four years of the CIP are important for long term planning and subject to further review and 
modification.  


The CIP is funded primarily with funds restricted for specific purposes. The next page descibes 
various funding sources and their restrictions. Some projects are entirely or partially funded by 
grants and reimbursements from state and federal government and other agencies.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 2 of 6784 of 829







 
 


Funding Sources 


Fund # Fund Name 
(restriction) 


Description 


100 General Fund 
(unrestricted) 


The General Fund is the main operating fund for the City. 
It accounts for sources and uses of resources that 
(primarily) are discretionary to the City Council in the 
provision of activities, programs and services deemed 
necessary and desirable by the community. 


106 
Measure S 2014 
(unrestricted) 


Accounts for 2014 voter-approved half-cent Local Use Tax 
which levies 0.5% each on all merchandise. Although these 
are unrestricted General Fund revenues, the 2014 Use 
Taxes have been allocated by the City Council to fund 
Infrastructure Projects as their highest funding priority.  


200 
Gas Tax - RMRA 
(roads and right-of-
way) 


Accounts for the Highway Users Tax (HUTA) State imposed 
excise taxes on gasoline and diesel fuel sales within the 
City limits. Gas Tax funds are restricted for use in the 
construction, improvement and maintenance of public 
streets. The taxes are allocated to Pinole through the Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 
established by the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017.  


214 Solid Waste 


Accounts for special revenue received from Republic 
Services from a surcharge assessed on customer rates for 
solid waste services. These funds are set aside for future 
solid waste capital and for a rate stabilization fund.   


215 
Measure J 
(roads only) 


Accounts for special sales tax revenues collected by Contra 
Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) and reapportioned 
to cities for local street projects.  This fund also accounts 
for return to source funds and grant funds.  


276 
Growth Impact Fees 
(nexus identified 
needs) 


Accounts for development fees collected to mitigate the 
impact of new development. Provides funds for nexus 
identified needs only. 


325 
City Street 
Improvements  
(roads only) 


Accounts for funds set aside by the City of Pinole to fund 
street improvement projects. The Measure S 2014 funding 
plan allocates $250k annually to this fund.  


327 
Park Grants 
(parks only) 


Accounts for grants and reimbursements from the state and 
federal government and other agencies related to parks. 


377 
Arterial Street 
Rehabilitation  
(roads only) 


Accounts for funds set aside by the City of Pinole to fund 
arterial street rehabilitation projects. The Measure S 2014 
funding plan allocates $250k annually to this fund. 


500 
Sewer Enterprise 
(sewer only) 


Accounts for fees charged to residents and businesses for 
sewer utilities.  Fees are used to operate the Pinole-
Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant which services the 
Pinole and Hercules areas.


 
 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 3 of 6785 of 829







Grants  


Certain projects are eligible to receive grant funds from state, federal, or other agencies. Road 
projects listed in the CIP receive grant funding from a variety of sources such as: 


 California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)
o Highway Bridge Program (HBP) – funds to improve bridge structural safety.


 Project: RO1710


o Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) – funds projects that significantly
reduce fatalities and injuries on all public roads.


 Project: IN2104


 West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC)
o Subregional Transportation Mitigation Program (STMP) – funds projects that provide


congestion relief and mitigate traffic impacts on regional routes through capacity
improvements on those routes, improved transit services for subregional and
regional travel, and improved facilities that allow West County residents to more
efficiently access regional routes and transit service.


 Projects: RO2105, RO1902, and RO1710


 Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)
o One Bay Area Grant 2 (OBAG2) – policy framework for MTC’s distribution of


federal State Transportation Program and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality
Improvement Program funds. The OBAG2 program provides funding for local
street and road maintenance, streetscape enhancements, bicycle and pedestrian
improvements, Safe Route to School projects, Priority Conservation Areas, and
Transportation planning.
 Project: RO1714


o Transportation Developlment Act (TDA) Article 3 – funds construction and/or
engineering of bicycle or pedestrian capital or quick build projects, maintenance
of Class I or Class IV separated bikeways, bicycle and/or pedestrian safety
education projects, development of a comprehensive bicycle or pedestrian
facilities plans, and restriping Class II bicycle lanes and buffered bicycle lanes.


 Project: RO1714


The receipt of certain grants and reimbursements typically follow the award of contracts; 
therefore, other City funding is programmed for front-end financing of the total estimated project 
costs.  


City of Pinole
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 4 of 6786 of 829







Overview of Recommended Capital Budget 


The FY 2022/23 – 2026/27 CIP contains 36 planned public improvement projects, which 
includes 10 new projects. In addition, there are 9 infrastructure assessments programmed for 
FY 2022/23 – 2026/27. The CIP also contains information for 24 unfunded and unprogrammed 
projects. A funded project is one that has identified specific funding, including on-going existing 
resources to fully implement the project. A partially funded project has funding to accomplish 
various phases of the project but lacks sufficient funding to complete the project. An unfunded 
project is one that has been identified in the CIP as a need but no funding secured to implement 
the project. Should funding become available through grant or other sources, the unfunded list 
can be reviewed to determine if it is suitable to seek such funding.  


CIP projects fall into the following categories: Facilities, Parks, Sanitary Sewer, Stormwater, 
Streets & Roads, and Infrastructure Assessments. The nomenclature for the project number is 
derived as follows:  


Project numbers begin with the abbreviation of the project 
category, followed by the year the project was first 
programmed, and then a unique sequence number. For 
example, FA2001 refers to a facilities project which was first 
programmed in 2020 with a unique sequence number of 01. 
Unfunded projects begin with UF and are followed by a unique 
sequence number. 


In FY2022/23, there are 23 public improvement projects and 8 
infrastructure assessments programmed. Below is a summary 
of the various funding sources based on project category.  


FY 2022/23 PROJECT CATEGORIES
FY 2022/23


TOTALS 
BY FUND 


Funding 
Sources 


Fund Facilities 


FA 


Parks 


PA 


Sanitary 
Sewer 


SS


Storm-
water  


SW


Streets & 
Roads 


RO 


Infrastructure 
Assessments 


IA
General Fund  100 $170,000 $165,000 $335,000
Measure S 
2014 


106 $834,931 $112,440 $418,460 $149,328 $210,000 $1,725,159 


Gas Tax 200 $528,910 $528,910
Solid Waste 214 $425,000 $425,000
Measure J 215 $350,000 $350,000
Growth Impact 
Fees 


276 $58,000 $58,000 


City Street 
Improvements 


325 $1,685,563 $20,650 $1,706,213 


Park Grants 327 $189,758 $189,758
Arterial Street 
Rehabiliation 


377 $758,624 $758,624 


Sewer 
Enterprise 


500 $2,300,00 $10,382 $89,853 $2,400,235 


FY 2022/23 TOTALS 
BY PROJECT 
CATEGORY 


$834,931 $727,198 $2,300,000 $476,460 $3,652,807 $3,652,807 $8,476,899 


Category Abbreviation
Facilities FA
Parks PA
Sewer SS
Stormwater SW
Streets & 
Roads


RO 


Infrastructure 
Assessments 


IA 


Unfunded UF


City of Pinole
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 5 of 6787 of 829







 


 
 


 


CITY OF PINOLE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 


FUNDING SUMMARY 
           


 
 


SOURCES BY FUND FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 5-Year Total 


100 – General Fund $      435,000 $      310,000 $          745,000 


106 – Measure S 2014 $   1,625,159 $   1,990,860 $      890,000  $      100,000 $        4,606,019 


200 – Gas Tax $      528,910 $      381,082  $           909,992 


200 – Solid Waste $      425,000 $           425,000 


215 – Measure J $      350,000 $           350,000 


276 – Growth Impact Fees $        58,000 $        30,000 $      520,000  $           608,000 


325 – City Street Improvements $   1,706,213 $      890,000 $      727,321  $      890,000 $        4,213,534 


327 – Park Grants $      189,758 $           189,758 


377 – Arterial Streets Rehabilitation $      758,624 $        32,250 $           790,874 


500 – Sewer Enterprise Fund $   2,400,235 $   2,000,000 $      906,597  $      800,000 $   3,800,000 $        9,906,832 


Sources Total  $   8,476,899  $   5,253,110  $   3,425,000   $   1,790,000  $   3,800,000  $      22,745,009 


Unfunded Total  $ 16,293,235  $   9,231,700   $   8,439,200  $      970,000  $      34,934,135 


Total Sources Required  $   8,476,899  $ 21,546,345  $ 12,656,700   $ 10,229,200  $   4,770,000  $      57,679,144 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 6 of 6788 of 829







SOURCES BY FUND FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 5-Year Total


100 - General Fund 435,000$       310,000$       745,000$            


106 - Measure S 2014 1,625,159$    1,990,860$    890,000$       100,000$       4,606,019$         


200 - Gas Tax 528,910$       381,082$       909,992$            


214 - Solid Waste 425,000$       425,000$            


215 - Measure J 350,000$       350,000$            


276 - Growth Impact Fees 58,000$         30,000$         520,000$       608,000$            


325 - City Street Improvements 1,706,213$    890,000$       727,321$       890,000$       4,213,534$         


327 - Park Grants 189,758$       189,758$            


377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation 758,624$       32,250$         790,874$            


500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 2,400,235$    2,000,000$    906,597$       800,000$       3,800,000$    9,906,832$         


Sources Total 8,476,899$    5,253,110$    3,425,000$    1,790,000$    3,800,000$    22,745,009$       
Unfunded Total 16,293,235$  9,231,700$    8,439,200$    970,000$       34,934,135$       


Total Sources Required 8,476,899$    21,546,345$  12,656,700$  10,229,200$  4,770,000$    57,679,144$       


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


FA2302 Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements $80,000
FA2301 Public Safety Building Modernization $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
FA2202 Senior Center Modernization $60,000 $100,000 $100,000 106-343-47201 $60,000  Measure S 2014 
FA2201 Faria House Renovations $420,000 106-343-47201 $420,000  Measure S 2014 
FA2002 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations $50,000 106-343-47201 $50,000  Measure S 2014 
FA1902 Energy Upgrades $120,811 106-343-47201 $120,811  Measure S 2014 
FA1901 Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot                         $184,120 $1,088,860 106-343-47201 $184,120  Measure S 2014 
FA1703 City Hall Modernization                                               $125,000 $125,000
FA1702 Citywide Roof repairs and replacement $272,000 $140,000


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


106-343-47201 $47,440 Measure S 2014
327-345-47203 $189,758 Park Grants


PA2202 Skatepark Rehabilitation $150,000
PA2201 Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd. $65,000 106-343-47201 $65,000  Measure S 2014 
PA2101 Installation of high-capacity trash bins $425,000 214-345-47203 $425,000  Solid Waste Fund 
PA1901 Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation $200,000


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


SS2203 Effulent Outfall* $150,000 $3,000,000 500-641-47201 $150,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS2202 Replacement of Diesel Tank* $150,000 500-641-47201 $150,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation $1,500,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 500-642-47201 $1,500,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS2101 Secondary Clarifier - Center Column Rehabilitation* $350,000 500-641-47201 $350,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacements* $50,000 500-641-47201 $50,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel* $100,000 500-641-47201 $100,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS1702 Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation $1,200,000


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


SW2001 Roble Road Drainage Improvements $30,000 $320,000
SW2002 Adobe Road Repair and Drainage Improvements $30,000 $200,000


106-344-47206 $418,460  Measure S 2014 
276-344-47206 $58,000  Growth Impact Fees 


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


RO2501 Residential Slurry Seal $890,000
RO2401 Cape Seal $560,000
RO2301 Residential Slurry Seal $890,000


200-342-47205 $428,910  Gas Tax - RMRA 
377-342-47205 $758,624  Arterial Rehabilitation 


RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation $10,382 $655,000 500-641-47201 $10,382  Sewer Enterprise 
RO2105 Appian Way Complete Streets $100,000 $970,000 325-342-47205 $100,000  WCCTAC - STMP Fees  
RO2107 Brandt St. Improvements $170,000 100-342-47205 $170,000  General Fund 
RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. near R X $61,556 $800,000 325-342-47205 $61,556  WCCTAC - STMP Fees  
RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) $200,000


325-342-47205 $1,223,746  WCCTAC - STMP Fees  
325-342-47205 $80,000  CCTA Measure J 
325-342-47205 $81,717  Caltrans - HBP 


RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements $100,000 200-342-47205 $100,000  Gas Tax - RMRA 
325-342-47205 $9,144  City Street Improvements 
215-342-47205 $350,000  MTC/OBAG2 
325-342-47205 $129,400  MTC/TDA Article 3 
106-344-47206 $149,328  Measure S 2014 


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


IN2201 Energy Audit $50,000 106-344-47206 $50,000  Measure S 2014 
IN2101 Emergency Power for Critical Facilities $30,000 $170,000 100-343-47201 $30,000  General Fund 
IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility $60,000 106-118-47201 $60,000  Measure S 2014 
IN2103 Recycled Water Feasibility $60,000 $140,000 100-341-42101 $60,000  General Fund 
IN2104 Local Road Safety Plan $20,650 325-342-47205 $20,650  Caltrans - HSIP 
IN2106 Active Transportation Plan $75,000 100-341-42101 $75,000  General Fund 
IN2001 Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan $89,853 500-642-47201 $89,853  Sewer Enterprise 
IN1703 Storm Drainage Master Plan $75,000 $75,000
IN1704 Park Master Plan $100,000 106-344-47206 $100,000  Measure S 2014 


Uses by Project Total $8,476,899 $21,546,345 $12,656,700 $10,229,200 $4,770,000


LEGEND:
• Project numbers: FA = Facilities; PA = Parks; SS = Sanitary Sewer; SW = Storm Water; RO = Streets & Roads; IN = Infrastructure Assessments
* Project cost to be split 50% with the City of Hercules


RO2101 Arterial Rehabilitation $1,187,534 $32,250


$237,198PA2203 Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements


RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta Rd. 
formerly known as HAWK at Appian Way and Marlesta


$637,872


$8,439,200RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge over BNSF Railroad $1,385,463 $16,293,235 $8,431,700


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS


CITY OF PINOLE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27


 FUNDING SUMMARY


FACILITIES


PARKS


SANITARY SEWER


STORMWATER


SW1901 Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements $476,460


STREETS & ROADS


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 7 of 6789 of 829







 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION SHEETS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 8 of 6790 of 829







   


 


FA2302 - Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2023 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: To provide a secure parking area for Police vehicles in the Plum St. parking lot. The parking lot will remain open for the public. A 
portion of the parking lot, approximately 25 spaces will be secured with a chain-link fence with security gates for Police vehicles. The layout of the 
parking lot is in the preliminary design phase.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      80,000 


Subtotal  $      80,000 


80,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 9 of 6791 of 829







   


 


FA2301 - Public Safety Building Modernization 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2023 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2026 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: To extend the useful life of the Public Safety building, there are several items that require attention including but not limited to              
replacement of the HVAC system, carpet, flooring, water heaters, light fixtures, fans, etc. In addition, the building requires painting (interior and 
exterior), and the locker rooms also require renovation.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     100,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


300,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 10 of 6792 of 829







   


 


FA2202 - Senior Center Modernization 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: The project includes a facilities condition assessment and design and construction of improvements to modernize the existing              
Senior Center building located at 2525 Charles Avenue. Work will include upgrades to energy system, roof replacement, and interior renovations.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      60,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $      60,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


260,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 11 of 6793 of 829







   


 


FA2201 - Faria House Renovations 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: The building commonly referred to as the “Faria House” is a two-story residence constructed in about 1890 and originally located at 
what is now 1301 Pinole Valley Road. In 2005, the Faria House was relocated to 2100 San Pablo Avenue. On June 7, 2022, City Council directed 
staff pursue hazard remediation and renovations to create a lower-level office, and upper-level warm shell. The first step is the site remediation to 
removal all hazardous materials (i.e., asbestos and/or lead based paint) from the first and second floors. This will involve removal of all interior 
baseboard, door, window trim, lath and plaster (from the ceilings and walls). This will also include removal of all lighting and plumbing fixtures, 
kitchen “built-in-place” cabinets. Once the site remediation is complete, the lower level of the structure will be ready for tenant improvement for an 
office use. The upper level will be a warm shell, which means that the upper level will be fully insulated, with walls open and ceiling covered with 
wallboard, but no other improvements beyond the hazard mitigation work. The upper level would be separated from the lower level with secured 
“temporary” framing and wallboard partition wall built at the top of the stairs. The lower level will have rough electrical, plumbing, and mechanical 
installation for an office use. All lower-level rooms would have new wall and ceiling insulation installed and covered with new drywall. The kitchen 
would remain in the same location, the dining room, which would become the conference room/meeting room would include low-voltage, data, 
communications for teleconferencing, meetings, the existing bathroom would become a single All Gender restroom, renovated to meet ADA com-
pliance, the existing rooms would become office suites with new electrical sub-panel, rough electrical, rough plumbing and rough mechanical         
installed. Lower-level rooms will have renewed (or new) flooring, baseboard, and doors etc. 


Supplemental Information:  


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     420,000 


Subtotal  $     420,000 


420,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 12 of 6794 of 829







   


 


FA2002 - Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:  December 30, 2022 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: This project will install a level II dual port electric vehicle charging station at the parking lot serving the Public Safety  Building.  


Supplemental Information: City staff continue to assess other public locations throughout Pinole for opportunities to incorporate EV charging 
infrastructure. An energy audit (Project IN2201) of City owned facilities will inform future installations of electric vehicle charging stations.  


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 106  $        6,235 


Construction 106  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $        6,235  $      50,000 


56,235$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 13 of 6795 of 829







   


 


FA1902 - Energy Upgrades 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The heating, ventilation, and cooling (HVAC) systems at City Hall and Senior Center have reached the end of their useful life and 
need to be replaced. A portion of the roof at the Senior Center will also need to be replaced.  


Supplemental Information: In October 2020, City staff began working with Marin Clean Energy’s (MCE’s) Energy Efficiency program to        
explore opportunities for energy conservation and generation at City owned facilities by replacing the HVAC systems and upgrading streetlights. It 
was determined that the MCE program could not incentivize HVAC replacement project or the upgrade of the streetlights. This project was        
formerly known as FA1706 and FA1801. In April 2021, the AC unit at City Hall broke down and was replaced.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget:  


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      99,189  $     120,811 


Subtotal  $      99,189  $     120,811 


220,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 14 of 6796 of 829







   


 


FA1901 - Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Fowler Lot Re-Use Committee 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: On April 16, 1990 City Council adopted Resolution 2380 authorizing the purchase of 2548 Charles Street. At the time of purchase, 
City Council determined that construction of a Senior Center was necessary, and that this property was needed to provide sufficient parking for the 
Center. The parcel is surrounded by municipal parking lots which serve the Senior Center and Old Town Pinole. On February 2, 2021 City Council 
adopted Resolution 2021-07 and awarded a contract to a consultant for the preliminary engineering and design for the parking lot. The parking lot 
will be designed to be a multi-benefit project that includes pavement structural section, striping, lighting, bicycle parking, electric vehicle charging 
stations, stormwater capture and retention, and drought tolerant landscaping. The final design will offer the maximum number of parking spaces 
while allowing access for both vehicles and pedestrians and include aesthetic design components. On June 7, 2022, City Council directed staff to 
incorporate the installation of a solar canopy at the site.  


Supplemental Information: The Fowler House tenants remained in the properly till 2010 and many discussions took place to determine the 
best use of the property. It was determined that the house had asbestos and lead paint. On July 17, 2018, City Council adopted Resolution 2018-
67 to create the Fowler Lot Re-use Committee to evaluate the reuse and redevelopment of the property. The Committee evaluated uses for the lot 
and determined the best use of the property is a parking lot. On October 16, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2018-93 to approve a 
contract with a construction company to abate and demolish the Fowler house.  The property demolition was completed on March 11, 2019. On 
July 21, 2020, City Council adopted Resolution 2020–68 to accept the final recommendation of the Committee.                                                                 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 106  $      42,535  $     184,120 


Construction 106  $  1,088,860 


Subtotal  $      42,535  $     184,120  $  1,088,860 


Total Cost Estimate: $1,315,515


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 15 of 6797 of 829







   


 


FA1703 - City Hall Modernization (formerly known as Paint City Hall) 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022  


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  To extend the useful life of the City hall building, there are several items that require attention including but not limited to carpet, 
flooring, window coverings, light fixtures, etc. The interior and exterior surfaces of the building require repainting as the paint system has reached 
the end of its useful life. Exterior painting is necessary to maintain external protection from the environment. Fading, chipping paint, along with    
water and mildew damage necessitates the painting project. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     125,000  $     125,000 


Subtotal  $     125,000  $     125,000 


250,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 16 of 6798 of 829







   


 


FA1702 - Citywide Roof repairs and replacement 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022  


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  In 2015, comprehensive visual roof inspections were completed by a contractor on various City owned facilities. The purpose of 
the inspection was to identify the extent, if any, of moisture intrusion into the existing roof assemblies, document observed roof system              
deficiencies, determine the overall condition of the existing roof systems and to estimate the service life of the in-place roof assemblies. The roof 
inspection identified several roofs which need to be repaired or replaced. The roofs at City hall and the Public Safety building need to be replaced. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     272,000  $     140,000 


Subtotal  $     272,000  $     140,000 


412,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 17 of 6799 of 829







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: Replacement of panel rubberized surfaces at Fernandez Park and Pinole Valley Park. Fernandez Park involves replacement of 
rubberized surface improvements at tot lot and replacement of existing engineered mulch with rubberized surface at older age play equipment. 
The rubberized surfaces around the play equipment will also be replaced at Pinole Valley Park. These improvements are grant funded through the 
State of California Department of Parks and Recreation Per Capita funds.  


Supplemental Information:                                                                                                                                                                                             


 


 


 


                                           


                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                     


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


PA2203 - Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


327  $     189,758 


106  $        7,640  $      47,440 


Subtotal  $        7,640  $     237,198 


244,838$ 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 18 of 67100 of 829







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2024 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Settling of ramps 


Supplemental Information:                                                                                                                                                                                             


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                     


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


PA2202 - Skatepark Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     150,000 


Subtotal  $     150,000 


150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 19 of 67101 of 829







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Installation of two ADA compliant benches and waste receptacles within two pocket parks at a suitable location on Galbreth Ave.  


Supplemental Information: To develop the pocket parks, a lot line adjustment may be required.   


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                     


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


PA2201 - Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd. 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      65,000 


Subtotal  $      65,000 


65,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 20 of 67102 of 829







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Beautification Ad Hoc Committee 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Installation of high capacity, solar powered compacting trash bins at City parks.  To get the best value and uniformity at City parks, 
a RFP will be released to solicit proposals from qualified vendors to provide these bins. Exact costs will not be known until the bidding  is complete 
however staff estimates that 40 bins will be procured for the budgeted project cost.  


Supplemental Information: In 2019, the City Council established a Beautification Ad Hoc Committee to analyze options for, and to make              
recommendations to the Council regarding clean-up and beautification projects in Pinole. Among other projects, the Committee recommended the 
installation of high capacity, solar powered compacting trash bins at City parks.  


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                    


PA2101 - Installation of high capacity trash bins 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 214  $     425,000 


Subtotal  $     425,000 


425,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 21 of 67103 of 829







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  There are two soccer fields at Pinole Valley Park which are utilized on an annual basis, the Wright Avenue Soccer Field at the 
southerly end, and Savage Avenue Soccer Field at the northern end. Both fields are heavily used by soccer leagues and the general public. The 
Savage Avenue Soccer Field requires substantial rehabilitation which includes: upgrading the irrigation system and ongoing turf maintenance. Turf 
maintenance includes mowing, fertilizing, aeration, overseeding, and topdressing.   


Supplemental Information: This project has been delayed pending the development of a Park Master Plan (CIP Project# PA1704). 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


Budget: 


PA1901 - Pinole  Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     200,000 


Subtotal  $     200,000 


200,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 22 of 67104 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2027 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Regulatory Requirement  


Multi-year Project:    Yes  


Description:  Effluent pumping capacity of the treatment plant is limited by the capacity of the pipe size at the effluent outfall in Rodeo.              
Increasing the pipe size at the Effluent Outfall Eductor Station will increase the wet weather effluent pumping capacity and increase the lifespan of 
the effluent pipe by reducing the pressure in the line during storm events. Project requires coordination with Rodeo.  


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2203 - Effluent Outfall 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $        150,000  $  3,000,000 


Subtotal  $        150,000  $  3,000,000 


3,150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 23 of 67105 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  In-kind replacement of a 4,000 gallon diesel storage tank used to supply fuel to standby generators and City vehicles. The existing 
tank is compromised. 


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2202 - Replacement of Diesel Tank 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     150,000 


Subtotal  $     150,000 


150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 24 of 67106 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2027 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Master Plan  


Multi-year Project:    Yes  


Description:  Various improvements to the Sanitary Sewer collection system, as identified in the Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2201 - Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     1,500,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000 


Subtotal  $     1,500,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000 


4,700,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 25 of 67107 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The Secondary Clarifier #5 has reached the end of its useful life. The project will involve removal and replacement of catwalk, 
drive mechanism, center column, and rake arm.   


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2101 - Secondary Clarifier—Center Column Rehabilitation  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     350,000 


Subtotal  $     350,000 


350,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 26 of 67108 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  There are four air relief valves at various locations on the WPCP Effluent Pipeline between the WPCP and the Rodeo treated     
water discharge point. This project includes removal and replacement of the pipe saddle, short pipe section, isolation valve, and air relief valve. 
The four locations are: 1) across from the WPCP at 11 Tennent Ave., near the entrance of the SF Bay Trail, 2) On the SF Bay Trail near the cor-
ner of Santa Fe and Railroad Ave., 3) At the intersection of Mariposa St. and Railroad Ave. (Rodeo), 4) Outside the gate of Rodeo Sanitary District 
at 800 San Pablo Ave. (Rodeo).  


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2102 - Air Release Valve Replacements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $      50,000 


50,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 27 of 67109 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Regulatory Requirement 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The California Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) is responsible for accrediting environmental testing labs 
including the Pinole - Hercules WPCP. The 2019 ELAP inspection results indicated the lab apparatus, countertops, and the fume hood are past 
their useful life and recommended replacement.  


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.   
                                       


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2002 - Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000 


100,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 28 of 67110 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    October 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   August 31, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     End of lifecycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The City owns and operates two lift stations to convey flow from low lying areas to high elevations where the flow continues by 
gravity to the wastewater treatment plant. Both pump stations have reached the end of their useful life and need to be rehabilitated.  


Supplemental Information: The two pump stations are located on San Pablo Ave. and Hazel St. In FY 2019/20, this project was renamed to 
include both pump stations. Previously, this project was titled, “Hazel Street Sewer Pump Rehabilitation.” 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


SS1702 - Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 500  $      22,500 


Engineering 500  $     150,000 


Construction 500  $     884,000 


Contingency 500  $     143,500 


Subtotal  $  1,200,000 


 $1,200,000 Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 29 of 67111 of 829







   


 


STORMWATER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The existing system appears to have capacity issues at Roble Ave. and Encina Ave. that warrant review and upgrade. This project 
will assess the collection system for capacity and hydraulic profile and upgrade the system as necessary.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


SW2001 - Roble Road Storm Drainage Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 276  $      30,000 


Construction 276  $     280,000 


Contingency 276  $      40,000 


Subtotal  $      30,000  $     320,000 


350,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 30 of 67112 of 829







   


 


STORMWATER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Adobe Road experienced a failure due to drainage impacts. Installation of a culvert will be required to control the drainage in the 
area. The area will then be regraded and the road surface will be restored. This road serves only as a service access route.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


  


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


           


 


SW2002 - Adobe Road Storm Drainage Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 106  $      30,000 


Construction 106  $     175,000 


Contingency 106  $      25,000 


Subtotal  $      30,000  $     200,000 


230,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 31 of 67113 of 829







   


 


STORMWATER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Development Driven 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The existing stormwater collection is an open trench system and needs to be converted to an underground conveyance system to 
facilitate construction of a through road. This project will include connecting the existing storm drain network within Hazel Street between 1087  
Hazel St (eastern limits) and 1081 Hazel St. (western limits). In January 2020, the City contacted with Schaff and Wheeler to prepare the              
preliminary design  which includes plan and profile of the pipe and technical specifications.  


Supplemental Information: This conversion also aids in compliance with the MSP4 by reducing the potential of contaminants including litter 
from entering the stormwater system.                                                                 


 


 


 


                                 
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


           


SW1901 - Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 106  $      54,910 


106  $     356,460 


276  $      58,000 


Contingency 106  $      62,000 


Subtotal  $      54,910  $     476,460 


 $   531,370 Total Cost Estimate:


Construction


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 32 of 67114 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2025 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2026 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Based on the most current P-TAP report various segments will be recommended for slurry seal treatment. A slurry seal functions 
as a topcoat to existing asphalt pavement to preserve and protect the pavement. It is best suited for pavements with mild to moderate damage, 
such as narrow cracks, but not for severe damage such as potholes.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2501 - Residential Slurry Seal  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 325  $      10,000 


Construction 325  $     800,000 


Contingency 325  $      80,000 


Subtotal  $     890,000 


890,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 33 of 67115 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2024 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Based on the most current P-TAP report, various pavement segments will benefit from a cape seal. A cape seal is applied when a 
slurry seal or  micro-surfacing will not adequately address the pavement deterioration. Cape seals are a multi-layered treatment pavement               
preservation treatment which can extend the life of a pavement by 6-8 years. 


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2401 - Cape Seal 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 325  $      10,000 


Construction 325  $     500,000 


Contingency 325  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $     560,000 


560,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 34 of 67116 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2023 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Based on the most current P-TAP report various segments will be recommended for slurry seal treatment. A slurry seal functions 
as a topcoat to   existing asphalt pavement to preserve and protect the pavement. It is best suited for pavements with mild to moderate damage, 
such as narrow cracks, but not for severe damage such as potholes.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2301 - Residential Slurry Seal  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 325  $      10,000 


Construction 325  $     800,000 


Contingency 325  $      80,000 


Subtotal  $     890,000 


890,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 35 of 67117 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Based on the 2019  P-TAP report, various segments were recommended for treatment by StreetSaver®. The recommendations 
will be further validated through a comparative pavement analysis to explore additional treatment options which are not discussed in the P-TAP 
report. This will allow the City to optimize the available funding.  In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the preliminary            
engineering for this project.   


 


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2101 - Arterial Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 377  $      18,606  $      39,874 


200  $     428,910 


377  $     625,000  $     215,000 


Contingency 377  $      93,750  $      32,250 


Subtotal  $      18,606  $  1,187,534  $     247,250 


Construction


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 36 of 67118 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The construction impacts from the WPCP upgrade project resulted in pavement deterioration. This project will rehabilitate Tennent 
Ave. from San Pablo Ave. to WPCP. In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the preliminary engineering for this project.   


Supplemental Information: In preparation of this project, the City retained a consultant to perform internal CCTV on this section of roadway. 
The inspection was completed in  early 2021. Coordinating collection system improvements with street resurfacing projects ensures that sewer                    
improvements are made prior to the resurfacing so that manholes and valve covers may be properly realigned, and repairs and replacements are 
made in a cost-effective manner. This also avoids cutting and patching recently paved streets. The City of Hercules will reimburse $86,430 for this 
project.  


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2102 - Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 500  $      27,423  $      10,382 


200  $     381,082 


500  $      74,597 


325  $     167,321 


Contingency 500  $      32,000 


Subtotal  $      27,423  $      10,382  $     655,000 


 $   692,805 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 37 of 67119 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Completion of preliminary engineering and design to provide continuous sidewalks and bike lanes along Appian Way beginning 
from unincorporated El Sobrante to about 1500 lineal feet north of the City limit within Pinole. In December 2021, City Council approved a              
Cooperative Funding Agreement with WCCTAC to receive STMP funds to complete preliminary design for this project.  


Supplemental Information: This project will connect with the Contra Costa County’s project to provide continuous sidewalks and bike lanes 
along Appian Way from San Pablo Dam Rd. in unincorporated El  Sobrante.  This project will involve coordination with Contra Costa County. The 
construction phase of this project is unfunded and appears in the Unfunded and Unprogrammed list. 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


RO2105 - Appian Way Complete Streets  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


325  $     100,000 


UF  $     970,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000  $     970,000 


 $1,070,000 Total Cost Estimate:


Engineering


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 38 of 67120 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Provide improvements on Brandt St. including application of pavement treatments based on type and severity of distresses on  
existing pavement.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


RO2107 - Brandt St. Improvements  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 100  $      50,000 


Construction 100  $     120,000 


Subtotal  $     170,000 


170,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 39 of 67121 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  In 2018, the East Bay Regional Park District completed a trail link to connect Pinole Shores Regional Shoreline to Bayfront Park 
trail. There remains one very small gap on Tennent Ave. from Bayfront Park to Railroad Ave. Improvements to Tennent Ave. at the Railroad 
Crossing will facilitate safe movement of bicycles and pedestrians. Since project inception, the scope of work has evolved to include                              
improvements that would maximize parking on Railroad Avenue for park users. In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the 
preliminary engineering for this project.   


Supplemental Information: WCCTAC held its STMP Call for Projects in 2018 which committed $100k in funding for preliminary engineering 
from the 2006 STMP program for this project. This project is eligible to respond to future STMP Call for Projects to compete for funding to advance 
the project through construction.  


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


RO1902 - Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. near R x R 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 325  $      37,324  $      61,556 


325  $      19,700 


UF  $     680,000 


Contingency UF  $     100,300 


Subtotal  $      37,324  $      61,556  $     800,000 


898,880$ 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 40 of 67122 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  July 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Development Driven 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  A developer has proposed to develop on a vacant lot identified as APN 402-013-060 at the end of Hazel Street. The project pro-
poses the subdivision of the lot into four new parcels and development of single family residences on each new parcel, and execution of a devel-
opment agreement to make public improvements, including the extension of Hazel Street for roadway connection to Sunnyview Drive - West end 
of Hazel St. 


Supplemental Information: Completion of Project SW1901 prior to this project.  


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Budget: 


 


 


RO1802 - Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


276  $      50,000 


Developer  $     150,000 


Subtotal  $     200,000 


 $   200,000 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 41 of 67123 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2017 


Initial Project Completion:   Beyond 5 year term 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2026 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The San Pablo Avenue bridge over the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad is an integral part of the area’s transportation                
network. The age and condition assessment of the bridge supports replacement. The City was approved for initial funding from the Caltrans          
Highway Bridge Program (HBP). In February 2020, the City awarded a contract to a consultant for preliminary engineering (PE) to advance the 
project. The PE will be completed in two phases due to funding limitations. Completion of preliminary design is necessary to develop a final cost 
estimate for the project. Unfunded portions of this project appear in the Unfunded and Unprogrammed project list as Project UF022. 


Supplemental Information: The total budget identified to complete the PE exceeds the amount of funding Caltrans committed to the 
project of the State’s share in the current HBP.  


Budget: 


 


                    


 


                    


 


 


 


RO1710 - San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


PM 325  $     257,061  $        80,000  $      42,439 


325  $     537,176  $   1,225,463  $     (42,439)  $       (7,500)


STMP  $     (91,089)  $  (1,223,746)  $    (285,165)


HBP  $    (708,856)  $       (81,717)


UF


STMP


UF  $16,578,400  $  8,439,200  $  8,439,200 


Subtotal  $       (5,709)  $               -    $16,293,235  $  8,431,700  $  8,439,200 


Planning & 
Design


Construction


Total Cost Estimate: $33,158,426


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 42 of 67124 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  As part of the high school construction project WCCUSD provided road improvements along the school frontage. Improvements to 
Pinole Valley Road - from Shea Dr. to Helena Ct. will extend the useful life of the pavement. The existing pavement score is high in this area, so a 
slurry seal may be the recommended treatment. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Budget: 


 


 


 


RO1708 - Pinole Valley Road Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 200  $        5,000 


Construction 200  $      87,000 


Contingency 200  $        8,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000 


 $   100,000 Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 43 of 67125 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2024 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2020 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     TAPS 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The key elements affecting the safety of pedestrians and cyclists at the Appian Way and Marlesta Way intersection is speed and 
reduced visibility of approaching traffic due to the topography of the  project area. Safety improvements are required to improve crossing                        
conditions for pedestrians and bicyclists. In February 2021, the City selected a Consultant to complete the preliminary engineering for this project.   


Supplemental Information: The City secured grant funds to install a traffic signal at this intersection instead of a HAWK. 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Budget: 


 


                    


 


                    


                    


RO1714 - Safety Improvements at Appian Way and Marlesta Rd. (formerly known as HAWK at Appian Way and Marlesta Rd.) 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 325  $      25,193  $        9,144 


OBAG2  $     350,000 


TDA  $     129,400 


106  $      67,278 


Contingency 106  $      82,050 


Subtotal  $      25,193  $     637,872 


 $   663,065 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 44 of 67126 of 829







   


 


IN2201 - Energy Audit 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $      50,000 


50,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 45 of 67127 of 829







   


 


IN2101 - Emergency Power for Critical Facilities 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: During severe natural hazard events, it is highly likely that utility power will not be available for an extended period of time. Critical 
facilities will need reliable sources of sustained electrical power to continue operations. This project will: 1) identify critical facilities in need of              
back-up power in coordination with an Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) , 2) assess power loads in each critical facility that requires back-up 
power, 3) determine the costs and technology options including solar battery storage, and 4) make any additional recommendations to Council 
before advancing to construction.  


Supplemental Information: The Public Safety Building, Fire Station 74, and the Water Pollution Control Plant have stand by generators.  


 


 


 


 


 


                             
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 100  $      30,000 


Construction 100  $     170,000 


Subtotal  $      30,000  $     170,000 


200,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 46 of 67128 of 829







   


 


IN2102 - Municipal Broadband Feasibility 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022  


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Council Request  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: A feasibility study will determine a successful deployment strategy and associated costs for implementing municipal broadband      
service in Pinole.   


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                  
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $      60,000 


Subtotal  $      60,000 


60,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 47 of 67129 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  A feasibility study will allow the City to plan and phase the construction of future recycled water distribution system infrastructure. 
The study will identify potential recycled water customers, evaluate the quantity, quality, and recycled water distribution system options to address 
the needs of potential users in surrounding areas, seek opportunities to phase the construction of a recycled water delivery system, and develop 
planning-level cost options for the phased system.  


Supplemental Information: Recycled water delays or eliminates the need to construct more potable water facilities, sustains the economy with 
increased water supply reliability, protects the environment, safeguards investments in parks and landscaping with drought proof or drought              
resistant water supply, and contributes to a green and healthy environment. In 2019, East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) prepared an              
Updated Recycled Waster Plan which considered the potential for potable reuse in EBMUD’s water service area. The development of a new              
recycled water supply for the Phillips 66 refinery in Rodeo using effluent from the Pinole-Hercules and Rodeo wastewater treatment plants was 
among the recommended non-potable reuse projects. This project is estimated to deliver up to 3.67 MGD of recycled water to the refinery for use 
in their boilers and cooling towers. The combined final disinfected effluent from both plants would be pumped at the Rodeo Pump Station to the 
refinery for treatment a new advanced recycled water treatment plan. This project was recommended by EBMUD because it would deliver a large 
amount of water to a single customer, with comparatively few pipelines required due to the short distance between the sources of wastewater and 
the Phillips 66 Refinery          


Budget: 


                    


 


 


 


 


 


IN2103 - Recycled Water Feasibility 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 100  $      60,000 


Construction 100  $     140,000 


Subtotal  $      60,000  $     140,000 


200,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 48 of 67130 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  December 30, 2022 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Development of a Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP) which will include an existing conditions assessment, development of traffic 
measures in areas of engineering, education, encouragement, enforcement, emerging technologies along with associated evaluation. The LRSP 
will include a prioritized list of roadway infrastructure improvements.   


Supplemental Information: In July 2020, staff submitted a grant application to Caltrans for funding to develop and implement an LRSP for the 
City of Pinole. LRSP’s allow local governments to identify, analyze, and prioritize roadway safety improvements on roads within their jurisdiction. 
In the future, an LRSP or its equivalent, will be required for agencies to apply for federal Highway Safety Improvement Plan funds. In October 
2020, the City was selected for funding and implementation of an LRSP. In December 2020, the City released a Request for Proposals to seek 
professional services from licensed engineering firms to develop a LRSP. A contract was awarded to a consultant in April 2021.  


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


IN2104 - Local Road Safety Plan  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 325  $      19,013  $      20,650 


Subtotal  $      19,013  $      20,650 


39,663$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 49 of 67131 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     TAPS 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Development of an Active Transportation Plan will act as a guide for active mobility within and around Pinole. The Plan will identify 
an integrated network of walkways and bikeways that connect Pinole neighborhoods and communities to employment, education, commercial, 
recreational, and tourist destinations. The plan will prioritize a set of connected projects, that when fully implemented, will increase active                
transportation opportunities and make it safe and more convenient for people to walk, bike, and use non-auto forms of travel.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


IN2106 - Active Transportation Plan  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 100  $      75,000 


Subtotal  $      75,000 


75,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 50 of 67132 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  December 30, 2022 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  In September 2020, the City Council awarded a contract to Carollo Engineers, Inc. to develop a Sanitary Sewer Collection System 
Master Plan (Plan). The Plan will provide a condition assessment of the sewer collection assets to inform capital planning and effectively serve the 
wastewater needs of residents and businesses.  This plan will also provide a capacity analysis to identify pipes that need to be upsized. Master 
planning is critical to identify when and where infrastructure upgrades or improvements will be needed to accommodate growth.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


  


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


IN2001 - Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 500  $     359,147  $      89,853 


Subtotal  $     359,147  $      89,853 


449,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 51 of 67133 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Preparation of a storm drain master plan will provide an analysis of the existing collection system. The plan will identify system  
deficiencies related to capacity, functionality, and permit compliance. The plan can serve to guide future budget allocations for improvements to 
the system. 


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


  


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


IN1703 - Storm Drainage Master Plan 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $      75,000  $      75,000 


Subtotal  $      75,000  $      75,000 


150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 52 of 67134 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2021 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Preparation of a park master plan will aid the City in developing a strategic approach to park maintenance and operation. The   
master plan will allow the City to quantify and qualify the existing park system, identify deficiencies, and develop a financial analysis of the cost to  
maintain and operate park assets.  


Supplemental Information: This project was added to the CIP in 2017 as an unfunded project; Council approved funding in 2020.  


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 IN1704 - Park Master Plan 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000 


100,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 53 of 67135 of 829







 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


UNFUNDED AND UNPROGRAMMED PROJECTS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 54 of 67136 of 829







 


 
 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 
UNFUNDED AND UNPROGRAMMED PROJECTS 


 


#  Unfunded/Unprogrammed Projects 


UF001 Railroad Avenue Bridge Removal and Replacement


UF002 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in City lots


UF003 Parking lot resurfacing  


UF004 LLAD Landscape Restoration and Improvement


UF005 Dog Park Restroom Replacement


UF006 Dog Park resurfacing and fencing improvements


UF007 Eucalyptus Grove Restoration


UF008 Fernandez Park Baseball grandstand improvement


UF009 Repave Trails 


UF010 ADA Ramps  


UF011 Appian Complete Streets 


UF012 Bridge Maintenance  


UF013 Installation of High intensity Activated crossWALK (HAWK)


UF014 Pavement Maintenance  


UF015 I-80/Pinole Valley Rd. Interchange Improvements


UF016 Shale Hill Retaining wall and sidewalk gap


UF017 Sidewalks gaps  


UF018 Signal System Upgrades 


UF019 San Pablo Sewer Lift Station Upgrade


UF020 Sewer Collection Systemwide Rehabilitation


UF021 Tree Master Plan 


UF022 San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad


UF023 Installation of Solar at City Facilities


UF024 All weather access roads 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 55 of 67137 of 829







 


  


UF001 - Railroad Avenue Bridge Removal and Replacement 


Project Information             


The Contra Costa County Flood Control and 


Water Conservation District has advised         


removal of the Railroad Avenue Bridge. The 


bridge is a flood barrier. The first step is to                 


determine if the City of Pinole is the responsible 


agency for this project.   


UF002 - Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in City lots 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads/Sanitary Sewer/


Stormwater 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The City desires to promote and encourage the 


use of electric vehicles. With increased adoption 


of alternative fuel vehicles, the need for                 


charging infrastructure is growing. The City 


wishes to install charging stations in city owned 


parking lots. The first step is to complete a load 


study at City owned parking lots to determine 


the electrical capacity at each site. There may 


be significant electrical upgrades necessary to 


install charging stations. Electrical capacity and 


siting determine ultimately determine the cost of 


each project. There are incentives available for 


the charging equipment.  


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Bay Area 


Air Quality Management District, West 


Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 


Marin Clean Energy 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 56 of 67138 of 829







 


  


UF003 - Parking lot resurfacing 


Project Information             


This project is to maintain and enhance 


existing City owned parking facilities and 


infrastructure, to increase parking supply, 


and to support ongoing multi-modal and 


streetscape improvements. Improvements 


include saw cutting and demolition,             


pavement removal, earthwork, pavement 


installation, curb and gutter, striping, and 


signage.  


UF004 - LLAD Landscape Restoration and Improvement 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Economic 


stimulus funding 


The Pinole Valley Road Landscape and Lighting 


Assessment District was formed in 2008. The 


City installed various improvements on Pinole 


Valley Road between Henry Avenue and          


Ramona Street. The district provides                          


maintenance to traffic signals, streetlights,                


median landscaping, irrigation for landscaping, 


electricity to traffic signals and streetlights, and 


graffiti removal. This project will maintain and 


restore turf, shrubs, plants and trees within the 


District.  


Origin: LLAD Report 


 


Budget Unit: LLAD 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 345 


& 348 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 57 of 67139 of 829







 


  


UF005 - Dog Park Restroom Replacement 


Project Information             


The existing restroom located at the Dog 


Park is beyond its useful life and requires 


replacement.  


UF006 - Dog Park resurfacing and fencing improvements 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:  - 


Resurfacing and fencing improvements 


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 58 of 67140 of 829







 


  


UF007 - Eucalyptus Grove Restoration 


Project Information             


The open space located between the Old Town 
area between John St. and Pinole Valley Road 
is forested with Eucalyptus trees. In 2014, a 
Safety Inspection was conducted by a                 
consultant. A total of 8 trees were                         
recommended for removal, and root crown          
excavation was recommended for 3 trees. 2 
trees were determined to be hollow and                            
recommended for further investigation to            
evaluate the level of internal decay. In 2018, the 
City hired a company to remove 20 Eucalyptus 
trees in the area. There are still many trees left 
and many of the prior trees were felled with the 
trunks remaining on site. This project will        
remove the remaining trees, both standing and, 
on the ground, and regreen this area with native 
trees.  


UF008 - Fernandez Park Baseball grandstand improvement 


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The current grandstand is aging and                


requires increased maintenance to               


maintain its serviceability.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 59 of 67141 of 829







 


  


UF009 - Repave Trails 


Project Information             


The City’s goal is to develop safe,                   


connected, and comfortable bicycle and 


pedestrian facilities for people of all ages 


and abilities. Repaving trails will enhance 


trail access from the City ’s roadway                   


network to encourage alternative modes of 


transportation.  


UF010 - ADA Ramps 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


This project involves removing barriers to 


accessibility for persons using wheelchairs 


or other personal assistance devices and 


improving pedestrian accessibility and 


safety by reconstructing or upgrading curb 


ramps at various locations throughout the 


City.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 60 of 67142 of 829







 


  


UF011 -  Appian Complete Streets 


Project Information             


This project will provide continuous side-


walks and bike lanes along Appian Way 


from San Pablo Dam Rd. in unincorporated 


El Sobrante to about 1500 lineal feet north 


of the city limit within the City of Pinole. 


The City will seek 2019 STMP funds                 


from West Contra Costa Transportation 


Authority for preliminary design.  


UF012 - Bridge Maintenance  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $970,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  - 


Maintenance of vehicular and pedestrian 


bridges as identified in the Caltrans Bridge 


Inspection Reports and Pedestrian Bridge 


Inspection Reports completed by Quincy 


Engineering, Inc.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 61 of 67143 of 829







 


  


UF013 - Installation of High intensity Activated crossWALK (HAWK) 


Project Information             


A High Intensity Activated crossWALK 


(HAWK) beacon is a traffic control device 


used to stop road traffic and facilitate                       


pedestrians to cross more safely. HAWKS 


are candidate treatments for roads with 


three or more lanes and generally have an                    


annual average daily traffic above 9,000. 


HAWKS are considered for all midblock 


and intersection crossings where roadway 


speed limits are equal or greater than 40 


mph. The safety of various crossings can 


be improved in Pinole through the                           


installation of a HAWK.  


UF014 - Pavement Maintenance  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The City uses a pavement management 


software known as StreetSaver to                  


strategize the most cost effective method 


to extend the pavement life. Pavement 


Maintenance is necessary to maintain the 


City’s pavement network. Deferred           


maintenance results in increased costs 


over time.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $42,000,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 200 


and Fund 106 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 62 of 67144 of 829







 


  


UF015 - I-80/ Pinole Valley Rd. Interchange Improvements  


Project Information             


This project will widen Pinole Valley Road 


ramp terminal intersections at I-80 to                   


provide a dedicated right turn lane to the 


eastbound and westbound I-80 on ramps. 


This project will also provide crossing                  


enhancements at the Pinole Valley Road 


and I-80 intersection.  


UF016 - Shale Hill Retaining wall and sidewalk gap  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $10,959,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


Shale Hill is located on San Pablo Ave. 


near Oak Ridge Road. The cut slope 


above the pavement is comprised of shale 


which is loose and sloughs onto the road. 


There is no sidewalk in this area because 


the toe of the embankment is uncontrolled 


and there is inadequate space to                      


accommodate a sidewalk. Staff has not 


been successful in securing grant funds for 


this project.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 63 of 67145 of 829







 


  


UF017 - Sidewalk gaps 


Project Information             


This project will address sidewalk gaps by 


installing public sidewalks where sidewalks 


are missing on one or both sides of the 


street. This work will be coordinated with 


other construction projects. Sidewalk gaps 


often exist in places with site constraints 


(i.e. right of way, grade/slopes, or utility 


conflicts) or are adjacent to properties that 


have been required to provide sidewalks in 


the past due to land uses or ownerships. 


Locations for repair will be selected based 


on site conditions, pedestrian safety, and 


adjacent property attributes.  


UF018 - Signal System Upgrades  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


This project will upgrade various aspects 


of the City’s traffic signal system including: 


traffic signal controller equipment, vehicle 


detection, traffic signal arms and heads, 


battery backup systems, and                          


communications  systems to reduce                 


congestion and improve safety for the                


Pinole community.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 64 of 67146 of 829







 


  


UF019 - San Pablo Sewer Lift Station Upgrade  


Project Information             


This project involves upgrading the                 


structural and electrical needs of the San 


Pablo Ave. lift station to address the safety 


and operational deficiencies.   


UF020 - Sewer Collection Systemwide Rehabilitation   


Project Information      


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


In 2020, the City contracted with a                 


consultant to prepare a sanitary sewer col-


lection system master plan. The Master 


Plan will provide condition assessment of 


sewer collection assets that will inform 


capital planning.  


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 65 of 67147 of 829







 


  


UF021 - Tree Master Plan  


Project Information             


In 2019, the City Council established a 


Beautification Ad Hoc Committee to                 


analyze options for, and to make                          


recommendations to Council regarding 


clean-up and beautification projects in                  


Pinole. Among other projects, the                     


Committee recommended the development 


of a Tree Master Plan to inventory the                  


existing trees, and to develop a plan for 


managing the tree inventory, including 


finding tree planting opportunities.  


UF022 - San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


Project Information      


Origin: Beautification AdHoc Committee  


 


Budget Unit:  


 


Cost Estimate: $375,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Cal Fire 


Urban and Community Forestry Grant 


Program 


This project will replace the existing               


thirteen span reinforced concrete span 


structure over the Burlington Northern 


Santa Fe Railroad adjacent to San Pablo 


Avenue at the easterly limits of the City. 


On 02/18/20, Council awarded a contract 


to a Consultant to begin the preliminary 


engineering (PE) for this project (CIP               


Project RO1710). The PE will be                       


completed in two phases due to funding 


limitations. The first phase was necessary 


to develop a   final cost estimate to                           


facilitate pursuing additional funding                        


required to complete all phases including 


construction.  


Origin: End of life cycle 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $35,582,665 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 213, 


Fund 214, and Economic Stimulus funds.  


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 66 of 67148 of 829







 


  


UF023 - Installation of Solar at City Facilities 


Project Information             


This project involves procurement and               


installation of solar panels at City owned 


facilities to offset the City ’s electricity  


consumption and  reduce the greenhouse 


gas impacts.  


UF024 - All access weather roads 


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The General Plan, Chapter 8 discusses  


improvement of open space management 


to reduce wildfire risks. There is a desire 


to have improved, all-weather access 


roads through open space to improve ac-


cess to and from Hercules and El Sobrante 


to shorten response times and improve              


mutual aid.  


Origin: General Plan  


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:    


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 67 of 67149 of 829







CIP Project Lifecycle and Project Status Summary 


CIP projects usually have five major phases of their lifecycle, described below. 


• Initiation: Projects in the CIP are selected and prioritized based on specific criteria
such as consistency with master plans and policies, regulatory requirements,
health and safety impacts, and community benefits. The funding is identified for
projects and a capital budget is presented to Council for consideration. Once the
CIP is adopted by City Council, staff is responsible for project implementation. The
initiation phase involves determining whether the project will be managed by City
staff or a consultant, assigning the project to a manager, and assembling the
project team.


• Planning: The assigned project manager develops the scope, preliminary
schedule, and funding requirements, and identifies stakeholders.


Construction projects can be completed through several delivery methods, 
including design-build and design-bid-build. In design-build, the same firm/team 
of firms is selected to design and build the project, whereas in design-bid-build 
one firm designs the project, then the construction is bid, and a construction firm 
builds the project. Depending on the delivery method, a construction project can 
involve several steps which may include design, bid, award, construction, and 
closeout.  


For non-construction projects such as master planning, staff defines the initial 
project by identifying major goals and objectives. 


Throughout the project lifecycle, coordination and engagement with various 
stakeholders is necessary. Stakeholders can include the community, business 
owners, utilities, funding partners, and other interested and affected parties. 


• Execution: For construction projects, the project plans and specifications, and
preliminary costs estimates, are prepared. Typically, there are three levels of
design review which allow opportunity for coordination and input with stakeholders,
utilities, funding partners, and regulatory agencies. The design review usually
occurs at 35, 65, and 90 percent of design completion. As the design progresses
through each level, the cost estimate becomes more precise. The completed
design is reviewed and approved by the City Engineer.


For a design-bid-build project, the final approved design goes out to bid. The 
project cost estimate and source of project funding govern which procurement 
policies and procedures will apply. The City’s procurement policy establishes the 
standards for purchase of goods, services, and supplies. Projects involving 
federal or State grant funds typically involve stricter and more formalized 
procedures. In addition, high value public works projects must adhere to 


ATTACHMENT B


150 of 829







processes established in the California Public Contract Code. A contract is 
awarded to the most qualified and responsible vendor.   


After a contract is awarded and executed with the appropriate insurance and 
bonds, project construction can begin. The project size and complexity dictate 
the length of the construction phase.  


For master plans, stakeholders are engaged, and links are identified among 
other infrastructure plans, the General Plan, and other applicable City plans. 
Next, solutions including conceptual alternatives are developed. Viable solutions 
are evaluated to ensure they meet the goals and needs of the project. The 
master plan is a final document which contains a recommended program and/or 
capital project list. 


• Monitoring: Throughout the project lifecycle, staff oversees and monitors the
project. Construction projects involve construction management, contract
compliance, and project management services, which include technical and
administrative tasks. Staff is also responsible for grant administration for projects
that are funded by grants.


• Closure: Once construction projects are complete, the as-built drawings are filed
for future reference. Closeout activities involve completing project related
paperwork including filing the notice of completion with the Contra Costa County
Recorder’s office. For master plans, the final plan is presented to City Council.


151 of 829







Cr


ea CITY OF PINOLE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN Legend:


EntSTATUS OF SCHEDULED PROJECTS FOR FY 2022/23 THRU MARCH 31, 2023 Delayed due to limited resources Closure/Complete Execution Planning
Th


e 


Ce      SCHEDULED
Th


is 
PRJ. # NAME OF PROJECT PROGRESS START END J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M PHASE


ESTIMATED 
COMPLETION


Ce


ll  FACILITIES


FA2202 Senior Center Modernization 20% 7/1/22 6/30/25 P 6/30/25


FA2002 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 73% 7/1/20 6/30/23 E 6/30/23


FA1902 Energy Upgrades 65% 7/1/20 6/30/23 P 6/30/24


FA1901 Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot 20% 7/1/20 6/30/24 E 6/30/24


Th


e  PARKS


PA2203 Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements 50% 7/1/21 6/30/22 E 6/30/23


PA2201 Pocket Parks ‐ Galbreth Rd. 10% 7/1/22 6/30/23 D


PA2101 Installation of High‐Capacity Trash Bins 25% 7/1/21 6/30/23 E 6/30/23


Sam
SANITARY SEWER


SS2203 Effulent Outfall 0% 7/1/22 6/30/27 P 6/30/27


SS2202 Replacement of Diesel Tank 100% 7/1/21 6/30/23 C 11/17/2022


SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 15% 7/1/22 6/30/27 E 6/30/24


SS2101 Secondary Clarifier ‐ Center Column Rehabilitation 15% 7/1/20 6/30/23 E 6/30/23


SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacements 25% 7/1/21 6/30/23 E 6/30/23


SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel 0% 7/1/20 6/30/23 D


STORMWATER


SW1901 Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements 50% 7/1/20 6/30/23 E 12/30/23


Sam
STREETS AND ROADS


RO2101 Arterial Rehabilitation 25% 7/1/20 6/30/24 E 6/30/24


RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation 20% 7/1/20 6/30/25 E 6/30/25


RO2105 Appian Way Complete Streets Project 10% 7/1/21 6/30/23 D


RO2107 Brandt St. Improvements 0% 7/1/21 6/30/23 D


RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. Near R X R 40% 7/1/20 6/30/24 E 6/30/25


RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) 0% 7/1/21 6/30/25 D


RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements  0% 7/1/20 6/30/26 D


STATUS AS OF 03/31/23


FY 2022‐23FY 2018‐19 FY 2019‐20 FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22


152 of 829







Th


e 


Ce      SCHEDULED
Th


is 
PRJ. # NAME OF PROJECT PROGRESS START END J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M A M J J A S O N D J F M PHASE


ESTIMATED 
COMPLETION


STATUS AS OF 03/31/23


FY 2022‐23FY 2018‐19 FY 2019‐20 FY 2020‐21 FY 2021‐22


RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge Over BNSF Railroad 10% 7/1/17 6/30/26 E 6/30/26


RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta Rd. 55% 7/1/20 6/30/23 E 9/30/23


INFRASTRUCTURE  ASSESSMENTS


IN2201 Energy Audit 10% 7/1/22 6/30/23 P 6/30/23


IN2101 Emergency Power for Critical Facilities 10% 7/1/21 6/30/24 P 6/30/24


IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility 15% 7/1/21 6/30/23 E 6/30/24


IN2103 Recycled Water Feasibility 15% 7/1/22 6/30/24 E 6/30/24


IN2104 Local Road Safety Plan 100% 7/1/20 6/30/23 C 2/21/23


IN2106 Active Transportation Plan (RO2106) 25% 7/1/21 6/30/23 E 6/30/24


IN2001 Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan 100% 7/1/20 12/30/22 C 9/30/22


IN1704 Park Master Plan 20% 7/1/20 6/30/23 E 12/30/23 `


This is an empty row


Page 2 of 2 153 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT


9D 


DATE  JUNE 6, 2023 


TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER 


SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE QUARTERLY REPORT ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
STRATEGIC PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022-23 THIRD QUARTER 


RECOMMENDATION 


City staff recommends that the City Council receive the quarterly report on 
implementation of the Strategic Plan. 


BACKGROUND 


In February 2020, the City Council adopted the City of Pinole Strategic Plan 2020 – 2025. 
The Strategic Plan identified four goals for the City (safe and resilient, financially stable, 
vibrant and beautiful, and high performance) and 22 individual strategies (special 
projects) to complete over a five-year timeframe. 


In August 2020, the City created the Strategic Plan Implementation Action Plan (IAP), 
which identified the timeframe on which each Strategic Plan strategy would be 
implemented. The City Council revisited the IAP in January 2021 and approved an 
updated version, which specified completion dates for each of the strategies. During the 
January 2021 discussion of the IAP, staff recommended a quarterly report on the status 
of the implementation of the Strategic Plan strategies, akin to the quarterly reports that 
staff provides to the Council on the City budget and City investments. Council agreed to 
this recommendation. The City Council updated two Strategic Plan strategies and added 
a strategy in April 2023, as part of a special strategic planning Council meeting. 


REVIEW & ANALYSIS 


Below find a table listing the four goals and 23 strategies contained within the Strategic 
Plan, along with the start and completion dates for each agreed upon in the January 2021 
IAP. Each strategy has been coded with a green, yellow, or red dot to indicate whether 
the City is on track to achieve the beginning and completion dates specified in the January 
2021 IAP. Green indicates that the City is on track to achieve both the beginning and 
completion dates; yellow indicates that the City is on track to achieve either the beginning 
or completion date; and red indicates that the City is not on track to achieve either the 
beginning or completion date. Note that “Year 1” is FY 2020-21. Those strategies that 
have been completed are shaded gray in the table below. The City has completed eleven 
of the strategies and is currently on track to achieve the beginning and completion dates 
of many of the remaining strategies. 


154 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  2 


 
Goal and Strategy Year to 


Begin  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Year to 
Complete  
Strategy 
(January 
2021 IAP) 


Current 
Status 


Notes on Status 


Goal 1: Safe and 
Resilient Pinole 


       


Strategy 1. Conduct a 
citywide asset condition 
assessment. 


Year 1 Year 5  
 


The City is in the midst of 
multiple asset condition 
assessments and master 
plans, which are reflected 
in the Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP). 
At the end of Year 5, the 
City will have current 
assessments for all major 
capital assets. 


Strategy 2. Update the 
emergency preparedness 
and response plan 
(including results of the 
facilities and equipment 
assessment). 


Year 1 Year 1  
 


Staff presented a draft 
updated Emergency 
Operations Plan (EOP) to 
the City Council in August 
2022. Staff expects to 
present a final updated 
EOP incorporating City 
Council’s feedback and 
other changes for Council 
adoption in FY 2023-24. 


Strategy 3. Explore 
restoring the community 
emergency response 
team (CERT) program 
and conducting annual 
tabletop exercises and 
community drills. 


Year 3 Year 3  
  
Complete 


CCCFPD began 
providing emergency 
medical and fire response 
service in Pinole in March 
2023. CCCFPD does not 
operate CERT programs. 
The Pinole Police 
Department intends to re-
start the CERT program 
in FY 2023-24. 


Strategy 4. Review, 
prioritize, and implement 
as appropriate the 2019 
fire service study 
recommendations. 


Year 1 Year 2  
 


Complete 
   


City staff presented its 
assessment of the fire 
study and its 
recommendations 
regarding next steps to 
bolster fire service in April 
2021. City Council 
approved staff’s 
recommendations, which 
staff is now implementing. 


  


155 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  3 


Goal 2: Financially 
Stable Pinole 


       


Strategy 1. Develop a 
long-term financial plan 
(LTFP) and use it to 
guide budget and 
financial decisions 
(including policies 
regarding reserves and 
management of 
liabilities). 


Year 1 Year 1  
       
Complete  


The City adopted a LTFP 
in June 2021. The City 
adopted a second LTFP, 
for the following fiscal 
year, in June 2022, and 
will adopt a third LTFP in 
summer 2023. 


Strategy 2. Conduct a 
comprehensive fee study 
to ensure cost recovery of 
current and potential 
service fees. (Evaluate 
implementing an online 
payment platform.) 


Year 1 Year 2  
 
Complete  


Staff presented a 
proposed updated Master 
Fee Schedule, based on 
a comprehensive fee 
study and cost allocation 
plan, to Council in June 
2022, which Council 
approved. Staff will 
complete a fee study and 
recommend updates if 
appropriate to 
development impact fees 
in FY 2023-24. City staff 
has implemented options 
for online payments for 
certain services. 


Strategy 3. Establish a 
program to evaluate grant 
opportunities and 
capacity. 


Year 2 Year 2  
 


City staff will issue a 
request for proposals 
(RFP) in June 2023 to 
hire one or more firms to 
provide grant research, 
writing, and management 
support to the City. 


Strategy 4. Explore an 
array of revenue 
generation opportunities 
to recover costs. 


Year 2 Year 3  
 
Complete  


Staff has supported the 
City Council in exploring 
various revenue 
generation opportunities, 
most significantly when 
the City Council 
considered placing an 
increased real property 
transfer tax (RPTT) 
measure on the 
November 2022 ballot. 
The LTFP that will be 
adopted in summer 2023 
will provide information 
on a number of revenue 
generation opportunities 
the City could pursue in 
the future. 


Strategy 5. Develop a 
disciplined approach to 
funding infrastructure 


Year 1 Year 5   This is an ongoing effort 
in which staff is currently 
engaged, and which 
involves the asset 


156 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  4 


maintenance and 
improvements. 


condition assessments, 
master plans, and annual 
capital planning process. 


Goal 3: Vibrant and 
Beautiful Pinole 


       


Strategy 1. Update the 
General Plan and Three 
Corridors Specific Plan. 


Year 1 Year 4   Updates to the General 
Plan Housing and Health 
& Safety Elements in 
addition to a new 
Environmental Justice 
Element are underway, 
Staff will consider the 
need to update other 
aspects of the General 
Plan and the Three 
Corridors Specific Plan 
Environmental Impact 
Report so that high-
density residential 
projects could utilize the 
EIR for project-specific 
environmental 
clearances, which would 
encourage streamlining 
the rehabilitation and re-
use of undeveloped or 
under-developed 
properties. 


Strategy 2. 
Develop/create a 
comprehensive strategy 
to encourage streamlining 
the rehabilitation and re-
use of undeveloped or 
under-developed 
properties. 


Year 4 Year 4   Staff expects to initiate 
and complete this effort 
on schedule. 


157 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  5 


Strategy 3. Partner with 
regional for- and non-
profit housing 
organizations to provide 
an array of housing 
options consistent with 
community income levels. 


Year 1 Year 1  
 
Complete 


The City has partnered 
with nonprofit housing 
organizations to explore 
and develop affordable 
housing projects, 
particularly the Satellite 
Affordable Housing 
Associates (SAHA) 
project at 811 San Pablo 
Avenue. Staff also 
processed an application 
for a 179-unit, 100% 
affordable senior housing 
project at 600 Roble 
Avenue called Vista 
Woods. Although this is 
an ongoing effort, it was 
scheduled as a one-year 
project in the IAP, and is 
therefore marked as 
complete. 


Strategy 4. Develop a 
comprehensive economic 
development strategy that 
includes a focus on 
downtown redevelopment 
to activate the core of the 
community as a 
destination for the region 
(including gateway and 
wayfinding signage as 
well as branding). 


Year 1 Year 2  
 
Complete 


The City Council adopted 
the Pinole Economic 
Development Strategy 
(EDS) in October 2022. 


Strategy 5. Partner 
regionally to improve and 
enhance transportation 
circulation, 
including public transit, 
cars, bikes, and 
pedestrians, guided by 
the downtown Pedestrian 
Safety Plan, Active 
Transportation Plan, and 
other adopted plans. 


Year 2 Year 4    The City is engaged in 
several collaborations 
with other jurisdictions 
and agencies to enhance 
transportation. The City 
Council appropriated 
funding to create an 
Active Transportation 
Plan; the City received 
funding to collaborate 
with the County on an 
Appian Way complete 
streets project; and the 
City is requesting that 
new development 
projects have facilities to 
promote transit. 


Strategy 6. Conduct a 
review and update of the 
City’s code enforcement 
and property 
maintenance programs 
with a focus on increased 


Year 1 Year 1  
  


This is an ongoing effort. 
City staff is continually 
updating code 
enforcement policies and 
procedures. 


158 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  6 


beautification efforts and 
investment in community 
ecological and 
cultural amenities, 
business districts, and 
nuisance abatement. 
Goal 4. High 
Performance Pinole 


       


Strategy 1. Develop an 
employee attraction, 
retention, and 
development plan. a. 
Analyze the City’s 
classification and 
compensation system 
and update as needed. 


Year 1 Year 2  
  
Complete 


Staff completed an 
employee attraction, 
retention, and 
development plan (Talent 
Management Plan) in 
June 2022. City staff 
continuously updates the 
classification system and 
seeks Council approval of 
appropriate 
compensation changes. 


Strategy 2. Conduct a 
citywide organization 
review to optimize 
efficiencies. 


Year 1 Year 1  
       
Complete  


The City completed a 
citywide organizational 
review (assessment) in 
March 2021. 


Strategy 3. Review 
citywide implementation 
of best practices and 
improve processes. 


Year 2 Year 5  
  


This is an ongoing effort 
in which staff is currently 
engaged. City staff have 
made many process 
improvements since the 
adoption of the Strategic 
Plan. 


Strategy 4. Develop a 
strategic communication 
plan (i.e., public 
information officer, 
messaging, marketing, 
technical 
implementation). 


Year 1 Year 2  
  
Complete 


The City Council adopted 
the City of Pinole 
Communication and 
Engagement Plan in 
October 2022. 


Strategy 5. Develop a 
public engagement plan. 
a.       Develop policies 
and practices that provide 
a framework for diverse 
community members to 
connect, interact, and 
proactively participate. 
b.       Explore 
opportunities for 
meaningful youth 
participation in city and 
community life. 
c.       Develop a robust 
volunteer and internship 
program. 


Year 1 Year 2  
  


The City Council adopted 
the City of Pinole 
Communication and 
Engagement Plan, which 
addresses public 
engagement, in October 
2022. The City is in the 
process of finalizing 
related communication 
and engagement policies 
and procedures. 


Strategy 6. Develop a 
comprehensive 


Year 1 Year 1  
 
 Complete 


City staff completed a 
comprehensive IT Plan in 
June 2022. 


159 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  7 


information technology 
Strategic Plan. 


Strategy 7. Develop an 
interagency legislative 
advocacy program. 


Year 2 Year 2  
  


City staff expects 
complete this project in 
FY 2023-24. City staff will 
seek Council direction on 
a legislative advocacy 
framework in June 2023. 
City staff might 
recommend that the City 
hire a firm to assist the 
City in legislative 
advocacy. 


Strategy 8. Explore the 
use of the Government 
Access Channel/PCTV to 
implement the strategic 
communication plan. 


Year 4 Year 4  
  


City staff expects 
complete this project in 
FY 2023-24. PCTV has 
contributed to many new 
City communication and 
engagement efforts, 
including producing The 
Beat of Pinole monthly 
mayor’s video; producing 
other informational videos 
for the public; and 
producing videos of 
numerous community 
events. 


 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact related to receiving this report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 


160 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


9E 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: LILLY WHALEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE QUARTERLY REPORT ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE 
GREENHOUSE GAS INVENTORY AND CLIMATE ACTION AND 
ADAPTATION PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022-23 THIRD 
QUARTER 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council receive this quarterly report on implementation of 
the greenhouse gas (GHG) inventory and Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) 
covering the months of January – March 2023. 


BACKGROUND 


On October 19, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2021-93, which declared 
a climate emergency, directed staff to complete a GHG emissions inventory, and directed 
staff to prepare a CAAP that includes GHG emission reduction goals that align with the 
State’s GHG emission reduction goals of Senate Bill 32 and Executive Order B-55-18. 
The City Council also directed staff to present quarterly updates on the City’s progress 
on the GHG emissions inventory and CAAP. Staff last provided a quarterly update on 
February 21, 2023 that addressed staff and consultant activities for the second quarter of 
fiscal year (FY) 2022/23 (October - December 2022). 


DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 


This is the third quarterly report for the FY 2022/23 on the City’s progress on the GHG 
emissions inventory and CAAP development. During this period, the focus was on hosting 
the first community workshop and conducting outreach to drive engagement with the 
survey released in December 2022.  


JANUARY 2023 ACTIVITIES 
• Prepared for first CAAP Workshop/Open House on January 26 by:


- Designing and ordering CAAP seed paper pins for swag gifts, CAAP banners 
for publicity, CAAP tablecloth made from sustainable materials, custom print 
visioning, voting, Pinole climate information and schedule boards  


161 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  2 


- Preparing and recording CAAP Open House promo video for social media, 
background/climate information video for Open House attendees/website  


- Designing and disseminating CAAP flyer with survey to CAAP email list, 
physical postings, social media, administrative report in addition to CAAP 
Open House Guide 


• Hosted the first CAAP Hybrid Open House on January 26. Agency partners at 
the event included EBMUD, Republic Services, BayREN, 511 Contra Costa and 
MCE. Vegan food and drinks were provided, and there was a children’s upcycling 
craft activity in addition to interactive Visioning and Voting boards  


• Prepared preliminary greenhouse gas and adaptation measures  
• Updated the CAAP website1 


 
FEBRUARY 2023 ACTIVITIES 


• Extended the CAAP survey to February 23 
• Created a CAAP Open House recap for social media, website and email list 


along with a scrapbook video with survey extension update 
• Arranged a CAAP Open House City Hall display with surveys, postcards, seed 


paper pins, Visioning and Voting Board, schedule poster, and Pinole’s climate 
info poster and communicated via normal communication channels about the 
display 


• Conducted stakeholder interview polls to find best times for community focus 
group, civic focus group, and business groups 


• Conducted outreach at the Pinole Farmer’s Market  
• Coordinated with the City Manager Department for Earth Month planning to align 


with CAAP sectors 
• Closed the survey 
• Began drafting CAAP document  


 
MARCH 2023 ACTIVITIES 


• Conducted outreach at the Pinole Farmer’s Market 
• Gave CAAP presentation to Pinole Valley High School Earth Team  
• Conducted stakeholder focus group interviews on March 20, 21 and 23  
• Coordinated with the City Manager Department for Earth Month planning to align 


with CAAP sectors 
• Reviewed survey responses from the community to understand perspectives and 


desires  
• Updated preliminary greenhouse gas and adaptation measures based on 


feedback received from the community 
 
NEXT STEPS/TIMELINE 
The FY2022/23 fourth-quarter report covering April - June 2023 will highlight the following 
activities: 


 
1 www.ci.pinole.ca.us/climateaction  


162 of 829



http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/climateaction





City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  3 


 
• Review and refinement of preliminary greenhouse gas and adaptation measures  
• Continue to draft the CAAP 
• Continue to conduct pop-up outreach events at the farmer’s market and other 


community events 
• Design second community workshop (postposed from April 27, and anticipated in 


July 2023) 
 
It is anticipated that in the first quarter of FY2023/24 (July-September) the following 
activities will occur: 
 


• A second community workshop to discuss GHG emissions reduction and 
adaptation measures (July) 


• Draft CAAP published for public review (August) 
• Council review/adoption of the CAAP (September) 


 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact related to receiving this report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 


163 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


9F 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: MARKISHA GUILLORY, FINANCE DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022/23 THIRD QUARTER 
FINANCIAL REPORT 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council receive the Fiscal Year (FY) 2022/23 Third 
Quarter Financial Report. 


BACKGROUND 


The City operates on an annual budget cycle. Through the budget, the City Council 
approves revenue estimates and authorizes City staff to expend the City’s limited 
financial resources. The City Council adopts an original budget prior to the start of 
each fiscal year, then makes adjustments to the budget throughout the year to reflect 
changes in expected revenues and to increase or decrease expenditures to address 
changes in policy or operational priorities. 


As one of the many activities that the City undertakes to help ensure its financial 
soundness, staff provides quarterly financial reports on the City’s budget condition. 
The City conducted its mid-year budget review/second quarter financial report in 
February 2023 at which time a number of budget adjustments were made, resulting in 
an amended budget. This Third Quarter Financial Report covers financial activity 
through the third quarter of FY 2022/23, from July 1, 2022 through March 31, 2023. 


It is important to note that Pinole, like other communities, has been and continues to 
be impacted by the fiscal and health effects of COVID-19 and its subsequent variants. 
Fiscal impacts have been identified and noted in this mid-year report where applicable. 


REVIEW & ANALYSIS 


Staff has reviewed the City’s budget results through third quarter, from July 1, 2022 
through March 31, 2023. City revenues and expenditures are mostly on track with 
original budgeted amounts. Therefore, staff does not recommend any budget 
adjustments for the third quarter.  


164 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  2 


General Fund Analysis 
 
General Fund (including Measure S 2006 and 2014) revenues and expenditures are 
mostly on track with original budgeted amounts. 
 
The originally adopted FY 2022/23 General Fund budget included $28.1 million in 
revenues, $29 million in expenditures, and $883,662 use of unassigned fund balance 
(residual, unrestricted funds) to fund several new critical positions as well as several 
Council-directed initiatives.  
 
The FY 2022/23 budget is primarily a status quo budget, meaning that it does not 
include any major changes to City programs or services. It does include the following 
noteworthy items: 
 


• Increases in staffing to respond to key community priorities and organizational 
needs, including additional Police Officers and capital project staff; 


• One-time special projects, such as: 
o Active Transportation Plan; 
o Brandt Court improvements; 
o City Hall planting/landscaping improvements; 
o Communication and engagement consulting; 
o Diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI) consulting; 
o Emergency power for critical facilities; 
o Fleet-wide replacement of Police in-car MDC computers; 
o Installation of high-capacity trash bins; 
o Legislative advocacy consulting; 
o Municipal broadband planning; 
o Non-capital recommendations of Beautification Ad Hoc Committee;  
o On-call consultants for capital projects; 
o Recycled water master planning; and 
o Weatherization/energy efficiency program. 


• A “vacancy savings factor;” and 
• The appropriation of the City’s remaining American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) 


funds to the General Fund to backfill the City’s loss of general revenue due to 
the COVID-19 pandemic. 


 
The amended FY 2022/23 budget includes $28.1 million in revenues, $29.4 million in 
expenditures, and $1.3 million use of unassigned fund balance.  
 
As of the third quarter, the City is projecting to end FY 2022/23 with total revenues of 
$28.3 million, expenditures of $29.1 million, and use of fund balance of $764,808. The 
General Fund unassigned fund balance is projected to be $9.8 million at the end of 
the fiscal year. The table below summarizes the General Fund budget. 
 


165 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  3 


 
 
General Fund Revenue (including Measure S 2006 and 2014) 
 
The City Council authorized revenues in the amount of $28,111,479 in the original FY 
2022/23 General Fund budget, including Measure S 2006 and 2014. General Fund 
actual revenues through the third quarter of FY 2022/23 totaled $18,911,622, 67% of 
the amended budget. Staff does not recommend any adjustments to General Fund 
revenues as actuals are on track with original budgeted amounts. The table below 
summarizes the General Fund budgeted revenues. 
 


 
 
Sales Tax  
 
Sales tax is the City’s largest general revenue stream, representing 39% of ongoing 
General Fund revenues. For the third quarter, sales tax collected, including Measure 
S funds, were $6,067,737, 64% of the amended budget. There is typically a delay in 
the timing of sales tax receipts. Despite the ongoing economic impacts of COVID-19, 
sales tax receipts remained stable. Casual dining and quick service sectors continued 
to show growth. The general consumer goods sector, notably electronics/appliance 
and apparel stores showed a slight decline while specialty and variety retailers 
improved.  
 
  


General Fund (including 
Measure S 2006 and 2014)


FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 28,111,479$     28,111,479$   18,911,622$    18,911,622$    67% 28,338,261$  
Expenditures 28,995,141       29,437,934     19,825,374      20,280,492      69% 29,103,069     
  Net surplus/deficit (883,662)           (1,326,455)      (913,751)$        (1,368,869)$     (764,808)         
Beginning Fund Balance 10,613,156       10,613,156     10,613,156     
Ending Fund Balance 9,729,494$       9,286,701$     9,848,348$     


Category FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals


% of Amended 
Budget


Projected 
Year-End


Property Taxes 4,776,626$       4,776,626$     2,995,539$      63% 4,776,626$    
Sales and Use Taxes 4,582,095         4,582,095       2,864,125         63% 4,582,095      
Sales and Use Taxes - Measure S 200 2,451,000         2,451,000       1,602,302         65% 2,451,000      
Sales and Use Taxes - Measure S 201 2,451,000         2,451,000       1,601,309         65% 2,451,000      
Utility Users Tax 1,934,150         1,934,150       1,739,524         90% 2,074,092      
Franchise Taxes 786,790            786,790          490,853            62% 786,790         
Other Taxes: TOT 440,000            440,000          331,343            75% 440,000         
Other Taxes: Business License 412,500            412,500          399,879            97% 412,500         
Intergovernmental Taxes 2,215,948         2,215,948       1,119,272         51% 2,215,948      
Public Safety Charges 1,405,108         1,405,108       1,230,328         88% 1,405,108      
Total Other Revenue 549,640            549,640          465,744            85% 636,480         


Revenue Total: 22,004,857       22,004,857     14,840,218      67% 22,231,639    
Transfer In from Section 115 Trust 2,016,612         2,016,612       -                     0% 2,016,612      
Transfer In from ARPA Fund 4,090,010         4,090,010       4,071,404         100% 4,090,010      


Revenue/Sources Total: 28,111,479$     28,111,479$   18,911,622$    67% 28,338,261$ 


166 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  4 


Property Tax 
 
Property tax is the City’s second largest revenue stream at 20% of ongoing General 
Fund revenues. For the third quarter, total property tax revenue was $2,995,539, 63% 
of the amended budget.  It is comprised of four segments – secured, unsecured, 
supplemental, and transfer tax. The largest segment is secured property tax. It is 
received in three installments in December (55%), April (40%), and June of each year 
(5%).  Secured property tax revenue includes the basic 1% property tax of $2,949,175 
and the Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (RPTTF) of $1,490,951. This is 
revenue that has resulted from the dissolution of the former Pinole Redevelopment 
Agency and represents the shift from the Agency receiving tax increment revenue to 
the various taxing entities receiving the tax revenue. The RPTTF revenue will convert 
to “normal” property tax revenue when all of the former Agency’s outstanding debt is 
paid off and the Successor Agency is formally dissolved. Dissolution is currently 
expected to occur sometime after the final debt service payment in FY 2023/24.  
 
All Other General Fund Revenue  
 
Utility Users’ Tax (UUT) is levied on telecommunication, electricity, gas, and mobile 
telephones. For the third quarter, UUT revenues collected were $1,739,524, 90% of 
the amended budget. The gas and electricity segments are trending higher than the  
budgeted amounts, therefore staff is projecting that UUT will end FY 2022/23 at 
$2,074,092, $139,942 higher than the original budget.  
 
Franchise Tax is levied on gas, electricity, cable, and refuse. For the third quarter, 
revenues collected were $490,853, 62% of the amended budget. The amount 
collected is consistent with the timing of receipts.   
 
Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT), also known as the “hotel tax,” is levied on persons 
staying 30 days or less in a motel or lodging facility within City limits. For the third 
quarter, revenues collected were $331,343, 75% of the amended budget. The amount 
collected is consistent with the timing of receipts. 
 
Business License Tax is assessed on all businesses doing business within City limits.  
For the third quarter, revenues collected were $399,879, 97% of the amended budget. 
The bulk of this revenue is typically received in January during the annual license 
renewal process. 
 
Intergovernmental Taxes is comprised of the Motor Vehicle License Fee (VLF), which 
is the City’s share of motor vehicle license fees levied, collected, and apportioned by 
the State. This category also includes the Homeowners Property Tax Relief, which is 
a reimbursement from the State to offset loss of property tax for the state-imposed 
homeowner exemption. This revenue is received in two equal installments. For the 
third quarter, revenue collected was $1,119,272, 50% of the amended budget. The 
second installment will be received in June 2023.  
 


167 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  5 


Public safety charges are received for dispatch services provided to the cities of 
Hercules and San Pablo under an Intergovernmental Service Sharing agreement. The 
revenue is received on a quarterly basis. For the third quarter, revenue collected was 
$1,230,328, 88% of the amended budget.   
 
Other revenues include permits, fees, fines and forfeitures, rental income, proceeds 
from the sale of property, investment income, and grants. All revenues in this category 
totaled $465,744, 85% of the amended budget. The timing of receipts for revenues in 
this category varies.  
 
The transfer in comes from the Section 115 Trust to offset the increase in pension 
costs in the General Funds. The amount of the transfer will be based on total 
expenditures at year-end. In addition, the General Fund budget includes a transfer in 
of $4,090,010 from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund. This is the remaining 
balance of the City’s ARPA allocation which will be used to backfill the loss of revenue 
caused by the economic impacts of the pandemic.  
 
General Fund Expenditures (including Measure S 2006 and 2014) 


 
The City Council authorized expenditures in the amount of $28,995,141 in the original 
FY 2022/23 General Fund budget. The amended budget was increased to 
$29,437,934. General Fund actual expenditures through the third quarter of totaled 
$20,280,492, 69% of the amended budget. The table below summarizes the General 
Fund budgeted expenditures.  
 


 
   
Actuals in most of the expenditure categories were at or below 75%. Those that were 
above 75% are discussed below.  
 


• Other Operating was at 83% of the amended budget due to higher energy and 
cable utility costs.  


• Materials and Supplies were 103% of the amended budget primarily due to 
purchases of fuel. Staff will transfer available funds from other line items to 
cover the overage.   


Category FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Revised 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected     
Year-End


Salaries & Wages 11,492,312$ 11,462,312$ 8,472,248$    74% 11,462,312$ 
Benefits 7,496,535      7,496,535      5,328,307       71% 7,496,535      
Professional/Admin Services 4,253,726      4,670,075      2,848,510       61% 4,727,091      
Other Operating 286,311         286,311         236,452          83% 286,311         
Materials and Supplies 229,200         229,200         236,712          103% 229,200         
Interdepartmental Charges (689,039)        (683,039)        (120,612)         18% (683,039)        
Asset/Capital Outlay 3,258,109      3,308,553      610,951          18% 2,581,717      
Debt Service 596,107         596,107         596,045          100% 596,107         
Other Financing Uses/Transfe  2,071,880      2,071,880      2,071,880       100% 2,406,835      


Expenditure Total: 28,995,141$ 29,437,934$ 20,280,492$  69% 29,103,069$ 


168 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  6 


• Debt Service expenditures were 100% of the amended budget due to the 
payment of the annual debt service for the 2006 pension obligation bonds.  


• Other Financing Uses/Transfers Out were at 100% of the amended budget due 
to the transfer of funds from the General Fund to other funds, including the 
transfer to the General Reserve Fund ($650,925), City Street Fund ($250,000), 
Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund ($250,000), Equipment Reserve Fund 
($85,000), Recreation Fund ($675,831), and PCTV Fund ($160,124). 


 
In addition to the summary of expenditures by category, a summary of General Fund 
expenditures by department is provided below.  
 


 
 
Most departmental spending was at or below 75% for the third quarter. Those that 
were above 75% are discussed below.  
 


• City Council expenditures were at 80% of the amended budget due to 
travel/training, office expenses, and memberships and dues.  


• City Attorney expenditures were at 118%% of the amended budget because 
the reimbursements (credits) from other City departments for legal services 
were processed through January.   


• Fire Department expenditures were at 80% of the amended budget primarily 
due to materials and supplies, and other operating expenses that fluctuate 
throughout the fiscal year.  
 


General Fund revenues and expenditures are on target with budgeted amounts as 
expected at this point in the fiscal year. Therefore, staff is not recommending any 
budget adjustments for the third quarter.  
 
Overall, the General Fund has sufficient resources to continue to fund the City’s 
ongoing operations as well as some one-time items. As mentioned above, the General 
Fund unassigned fund balance is projected to be $9.8 million at the end of this fiscal 
year. The City also maintains a separate General Reserve Fund which maintains a 


Department FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected 
Year-End


City Council 176,396$          188,396$        149,921$       80% 188,396$        
City Manager 615,943            615,943          410,795         67% 615,943          
City Clerk 586,347            586,347          366,780         63% 586,347          
City Treasurer 8,662                 8,662               5,732              66% 8,662               
City Attorney 321,057            321,057          378,073         118% 321,057          
Finance Department 632,747            727,747          475,653         65% 727,747          
Human Resources 768,472            768,472          514,484         67% 768,472          
Non-Departmental 3,629,942         3,629,942       3,736,641      103% 4,789,659       
Information Technology 102,600            102,600          -                  0% -                   
Police Department 10,535,459       10,535,459     7,612,397      72% 10,535,459     
Fire Department 5,514,428         5,564,428       4,426,570      80% 5,564,428       
Public Works 5,099,752         5,366,545       1,693,997      32% 4,005,297       
Community Development 527,464            546,464          289,785         53% 515,730          
Community Services 475,872            475,872          219,665         46% 475,872          


Expenditure Total: 28,995,141$     29,437,934$   20,280,492$ 69% 29,103,069$  


169 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  7 


balance equal to 50% (six months of expenditure coverage) of total ongoing General 
Fund expenditures. The balance of the General Reserve is projected to end FY 
2022/23 at $9.5 million.  
 
Other Funds Analysis 
 
The following analysis provides explanations of the financial activity for select non-
general funds with substantial financial activity. Attachment A includes detailed 
financial information for all funds.     
 
Special Revenue Funds 
 
Gas Tax Fund (Fund 200) 
 
The Gas Tax Fund accounts for revenue from State excise taxes on gasoline and 
diesel fuel sales (referred to as the Highway Users Tax Account (HUTA)) as well as 
revenue from the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (SB1) (referred to as 
the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA)). Gas Tax Fund resources 
are restricted for use in the construction and maintenance of public streets. These 
funds support both annual operating and capital projects. For the third quarter, 
revenues were $659,390, 66% of the amended budget. Expenditures, including 
encumbrances, were $438,707, 36% of the amended budget. Actual expenditures are 
low due to the timing of capital projects.  
  


 
 
Public Safety Augmentation Fund (Fund 203) 
 
The Public Safety Augmentation Fund (PSAF) accounts for monies allocated by the 
County Auditor-Controller under Proposition 172 from the statewide 0.5% sales tax 
based on a share of statewide taxable sales.  These funds are used exclusively for 
public safety personnel costs.  For the third quarter, revenues were $165,047, 96% of 
the amended budget. Expenditures were $141,766, 37% of the amended budget, and 
are low due to savings from position vacancies. Revenues are projected to end the 
year higher than budgeted based on statewide sales tax receipts trending higher than 
projected.  
  


Gas Tax Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 1,003,271$       1,003,271$     659,390$       66% 989,186$        
Expenditures 1,144,557         1,194,557       438,707         36% 1,196,621       
  Net surplus/deficit (141,286)           (191,286)         220,683$       (207,435)         
Beginning Fund Balance 729,304            729,304          729,304          
Ending Fund Balance 588,018$          538,018$        521,869$        


170 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  8 


 
 
Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund (206) 
 
The Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund (SLESF) accounts for funds 
received from the County under AB 3229, which enacted the Citizens Option for Public 
Safety (COPS) Program, through which the City receives $100,000 annually. In 
addition to the $100,000 annual payment, the City receives a Growth Allocation 
payment. The funds are used to partially offset officer personnel costs. For the third 
quarter, revenues were $170,357, 108% of the amended budget. Expenditures were 
$97,171, 87% of the amended budget.  
 


 
 
NPDES Storm Water Fund (Fund 207) 
 
The NPDES Storm Water Fund accounts for assessments collected by the County via 
property tax bills and provided to the City for stormwater programs pursuant to the 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) regulations, a federally 
mandated program.  Assessments are levied at $35 per Equivalent Runoff Unit (ERU). 
Revenues are typically received in December, April, and June through property tax 
assessments. For the third quarter, revenue was $154,737, 61% of the amended 
budget. Expenditures were $232,230, 69% of the amended budget.  
 


 
 
Recreation Department Fund (Fund 209) 
 
The Recreation Department Fund accounts for funds received from fees for 
participation in recreational programs. The recreation programs of the Community 


Public Safety Augmentation Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 172,766$          172,766$        165,047$          96% 237,370$       
Expenditures 387,365            387,365          141,766            37% 387,365         
  Net surplus/deficit (214,599)           (214,599)         23,281$            (149,995)        
Beginning Fund Balance 517,190            517,190          517,190         
Ending Fund Balance 302,591$          302,591$        367,195$       


Supplemental Law Enforcement 
Services Fund


FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 158,327$          158,327$        170,357$          108% 163,507$       
Expenditures 111,067            111,067          97,171              87% 111,067         
  Net surplus/deficit 47,260               47,260             73,186$            52,440           
Beginning Fund Balance 372,015            372,015          372,015         
Ending Fund Balance 419,275$          419,275$        424,455$       


NPDES Storm Water Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 253,422$          253,422$        154,737$          61% 254,622         
Expenditures 336,938            336,938          232,230            69% 253,422         
  Net surplus/deficit (83,516)             (83,516)           (77,493)$           1,200              
Beginning Fund Balance (38,938)             (38,938)           (38,938)          
Ending Fund Balance (122,454)$         (122,454)$       (37,738)$        


171 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  9 


Services Department have been impacted by the pandemic. For the third quarter, 
revenues, including the transfer in from the General Fund, were $1,027,166, 88% of 
the amended budget. Expenditures were $1,150,561, 55% of the amended budget. 
The amount of the transfer in from the General Fund is projected to be higher at year-
end due to revenues trending lower than the amended budget. Staff will evaluate the 
shortfall at year-end and transfer only the amount needed to prevent a negative fund 
balance.  
 


 
 
Building & Planning Fund (Fund 212) 
 
The Building & Planning Fund accounts for funds received from fees and permits for 
building and planning services. Fees are collected to recover the cost primarily related 
to inspections and plan checks performed. The third quarter, revenues were $699,803, 
31% of the amended budget. Expenditures were $1,446,446, 62% of the amended 
budget. Staff expects to resolve the projected negative fund balance through the 
collection of future fees.   
 


 
 
Refuse Management Fund (Fund 213) 
 
The Refuse Management Fund accounts for resources received from the City’s 
franchise waste hauler, Republic Services, from a monthly fee imposed under AB 939 
on all residential customers in Pinole. These revenues are restricted to programs and 
activities that promote recycling of solid waste and source reduction. For the third 
quarter, revenue was $47,580, 72% of the amended budget. Expenditures were 
$94,690, 56% of the amended budget.  
 


Recreation Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues
  Program Revenue 558,000$          488,220$        296,335$          61% 488,220$       
  Transfers In 675,831            675,831          730,831            108% 1,038,588      
    Total Revenues 1,233,831         1,164,051       1,027,166         88% 1,526,808      
Expenditures 1,918,034         2,093,815       1,150,561         55% 1,532,295      
  Net surplus/deficit (684,203)           (929,764)         (123,394)$        (5,488)            
Beginning Fund Balance 5,488                 5,488               5,488              
Ending Fund Balance (678,716)$         (924,277)$       0$                   


Building and Planning Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 4,828,448$       2,288,552$     699,803$          31% 2,288,552$    
Transfers In -                          -                        -                         0% -                      
   Total Revenues 4,828,448$       2,288,552$     699,803$          31% 2,288,552      
Expenditures 2,410,793         2,326,894       1,446,446         62% 2,326,894      
  Net surplus/deficit 2,417,655         (38,342)           (746,642)$        (38,342)          
Beginning Fund Balance (532,755)           (532,755)         (532,755)        
Ending Fund Balance 1,884,900$       (571,097)$       (571,097)$      


172 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  10 


 
 
Solid Waste Fund (Fund 214) 
 
The Solid Waste Fund accounts for funds received from Republic Services from a 
monthly fee it assesses on customer rates for solid waste services. These funds are 
set aside for future solid waste capital projects and for a rate stabilization fund. For 
the third quarter, revenue was $345,287, 94% of the amended budget. Expenditures 
were $157,699, 41% of the amended budget.  
 


 
 
Rate Stabilization Fund (Fund 216)  
 
The Rate Stabilization Fund was created to account for the excess revenues from the 
solid waste post collection contract with Republic Services. Twenty-five percent (25%) 
of the surplus funds, generated from prior years’ rate increases, are set aside to offset 
year-over-year rate fluctuations; thereby, leveling the annual rates paid by consumers. 
Per Resolution 2013-91, the City was required to establish a rate stabilization fund, 
separate from the Solid Waste Fund (214), for the excess revenues collected. The 
majority of the revenue from the Fund 214 will be received later in the fiscal year. 
There are no budgeted expenditures for FY 2022/23.  
 


 
 
Measure J Fund (Fund 215) 
 
The Measure J Fund accounts for special sales tax revenues collected by the Contra 
Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) and reapportioned to the cities for local street 
projects. The City must submit a checklist each year to confirm compliance with a 


Refuse Management Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 66,060$            66,060$          47,580$            72% 61,575$         
Expenditures 167,825            167,825          94,690              56% 167,825         
  Net surplus/deficit (101,765)           (101,765)         (47,110)$           (106,250)        
Beginning Fund Balance 150,843            150,843          150,843         
Ending Fund Balance 49,078$            49,078$          44,593$         


Solid Waste Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 368,000$          368,000$        345,287$          94% 368,000$       
Expenditures 682,778            382,778          157,699            41% 382,778         
  Net surplus/deficit (314,778)           (14,778)           187,587$          (14,778)          
Beginning Fund Balance 2,063,224         2,063,224       2,063,224      
Ending Fund Balance 1,748,446$       2,048,446$     2,048,446$    


Rate Stabilization Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 15,000$            15,000$          2,194$              15% 17,925$         
Expenditures -                     -                   -                     0% -                  
  Net surplus/deficit 15,000               15,000             2,194$              17,925           
Beginning Fund Balance 199,959            199,959          199,959         
Ending Fund Balance 214,959$          214,959$        217,884$       


173 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  11 


Growth Management Program in order to receive these funds. Estimates of annual 
funding are provided by the CCTA, and jurisdiction allocations are based on a formula 
that considers both population and road mileage. For the third quarter, revenues were 
$42,480, 11% of the amended budget. Expenditures were $216,316, 34% of the 
amended budget. Actual expenditures are low due to the timing of capital projects.  
 


 
 
American Rescue Plan Act Fund (Fund 217) 
 
The American Rescue Plan Act Fund accounts for the $4,605,009 allocated to the City 
from the federal government from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021. In 
July 2022, the City received the second installment of its total allocation. The City used 
$533,605 of the total allocation for the business assistance grant program ($300,000), 
community digital card program ($100,000), and COVID testing ($133,605). The 
remaining funds of $4,071,404 were transferred General Fund to backfill for the loss 
of revenue during the pandemic as approved by the City Council.  
 


 
 
Growth Impact Fund (276) 
 
The Growth Impact Fund accounts for development fees collected to mitigate the 
impact of new development. Specifically, it provides for the expansion, design, 
construction, or upgrade to facilities, roadways, and equipment. The City collects 
impact fees for police, fire protection, municipal, community, wastewater, roadways, 
and drainage. For the third quarter, impact fee revenue was $43,256. There were no 
expenditures.  
 


 


Measure J Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 390,848$          390,848$        42,480$            11% 410,202$       
Expenditures 639,880            644,880          216,316            34% 644,880         
  Net surplus/deficit (249,032)           (254,032)         (173,837)$        (234,678)        
Beginning Fund Balance 2,325,449         2,325,449       2,325,449      
Ending Fund Balance 2,076,417$       2,071,417$     2,090,771$    


American Rescue Plan Act Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 2,302,505$       2,302,505$     4,071,404$      177% 4,071,404$    
Expenditures 4,090,010         4,090,010       4,071,404         100% 4,071,404      
  Net surplus/deficit (1,787,505)        (1,787,505)      -$                       -                  
Beginning Fund Balance -                     -                   -                  
Ending Fund Balance (1,787,505)$      (1,787,505)$    -$                


Growth Impact Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 1,608,476$       493,000$        43,256$            9% 532,789$       
Expenditures 58,000               58,000             -                     0% 58,000           
  Net surplus/deficit 1,550,476         435,000          43,256$            474,789         
Beginning Fund Balance 2,701,825         2,701,825       2,701,825      
Ending Fund Balance 4,252,300$       3,136,824$     3,176,613$    


174 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  12 


Housing Assets for Resale Fund (285) 
 
The Housing Assets for Resale Fund accounts for activities associated with 
administering housing programs of the former Pinole Redevelopment Agency, use of 
Housing Set Aside funds, and the provision of affordable housing within the 
community. Revenue from the repayment of a loan will be received from the 
Successor Agency later in the fiscal year. For the third quarter, expenditures were 
$107,886, 28% of the amended budget. 
 


 
 
Lighting and Landscape District Fund (Fund 310)  
 
The Lighting and Landscape District Fund accounts for assessments to property 
owners to maintain median lighting and landscaping within the Pinole Valley Road 
North and South areas.  Revenue is received in December, April, and June with 
property tax payments. For the third quarter, revenue was $28,741, 45% of the 
amended budget. Expenditures were $28,362, 46% of the amended budget.  
 


 
 
Capital Project Funds 
 
City Street Improvement (Fund 325) 
 
The City Street Improvements Fund accounts for an annual $250,000 transfer from 
Measure S 2014 for street improvement projects. Additionally, it accounts for various 
federal, state, and other grants for road projects. Grant revenue is received on a 
reimbursement basis, after expenditures are incurred. For the third quarter, revenues 
were $439,806, 27% of the amended budget. Expenditures, including encumbrances 
were $445,334, 26% of the amended budget. Actual expenditures are low due to the 
timing of capital projects. 
 


Housing Assets for Resale Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 917,883$          917,883$        69,062$            8% 937,883$       
Expenditures 327,475            388,685          107,886            28% 388,685         
  Net surplus/deficit 590,408            529,198          (38,824)$           549,198         
Beginning Fund Balance 7,746,133         7,746,133       7,746,133      
Ending Fund Balance 8,336,541$       8,275,331$     8,295,331$    


Landscape and Lighting District 
Fund 


FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 63,911$            63,911$          28,741$            45% 63,911$         
Expenditures 62,125               62,125             28,362              46% 62,125           
  Net surplus/deficit 1,786                 1,786               379$                 1,786              
Beginning Fund Balance 43,110               43,110             43,110           
Ending Fund Balance 44,896$            44,896$          44,896$         


175 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  13 


 
 
Arterial Streets Rehabilitation (Fund 377) 
 
The Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund accounts for an annual $250,000 transfer 
from Measure S 2014 for street rehabilitation projects. For the third quarter, 
expenditures, including encumbrances, were $88,897, 11% of the amended budget. 
Actual expenditures are low due to the timing of capital projects.  
 


 
 
Enterprise Funds 
 
Sewer Enterprise Fund (Fund 500) 
 
The Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for fees charged to residents and businesses 
for sewer utilities. Fees are used to operate the Pinole-Hercules Wastewater 
Treatment Plant, which serves the Pinole and Hercules areas. Revenues are received 
with the property tax payments in December, April, and June. For the third quarter, 
revenues were $4,904,067, 59% of the amended budget. Expenditures, including 
encumbrances, were $5,006,735, 44% of the amended budget.  
 


 
 
Cable Access TV Fund (Fund 505) 
 
The Cable Access TV Fund accounts for revenue received from cable franchise fees, 
video production and broadcast charges, and Public, Educational, and Governmental 
(PEG) access fees.  PEG access fees are designated for equipment purchases. 
Transfers from the General Fund also help support the operating costs. For the third 


City Street Improvement Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 1,651,210$       1,651,210$     439,806$          27% 1,698,462$    
Expenditures 1,706,213         1,706,213       445,334            26% 1,706,213      
  Net surplus/deficit (55,003)             (55,003)           (5,528)$             (7,751)            
Beginning Fund Balance 1,552,990         1,552,990       1,552,990      
Ending Fund Balance 1,497,987$       1,497,987$     1,545,239$    


Arterial Streets Rehabilitation 
Fund 


FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 250,000$          250,000$        250,000$          100% 791,463$       
Expenditures 810,312            810,312          88,897              11% 85,988           
  Net surplus/deficit (560,312)           (560,312)         161,103$          705,475         
Beginning Fund Balance 49,887               49,887             49,887           
Ending Fund Balance (510,425)$         (510,425)$       755,362$       


Sewer Enterprise Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 8,366,176$       8,366,176$     4,904,067$      59% 8,496,176$    
Expenditures 11,258,624       11,388,624     5,006,735         44% 11,410,449    
  Net surplus/deficit (2,892,448)        (3,022,448)      (102,668)$        (2,914,273)     
Beginning Fund Balance 22,228,477       22,228,477     22,228,477    
Ending Fund Balance 19,336,029$     19,206,029$   19,314,204$ 


176 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  14 


quarter, revenues were $281,914, 53% of the amended budget. The major revenue 
sources are received one month after the close of the previous quarter. Expenditures 
were $389,376, 60% of the amended budget.  
 


 
 
Information Systems Fund (Fund 525) 
 
The Information Systems Fund is an internal service fund used to account for activities 
that provide technology goods or services to other City funds and departments on a 
cost-reimbursement basis. For the third quarter, indirect cost allocations 
(reimbursements received from other City departments for information technology 
services) were $890,693, 49% of the amended budget. Expenditures, including 
encumbrances were $1,223,412, 67% of the amended budget. 
 


 
 
The FY 2022/23 budget and actual revenue, expenditures, and ending fund balance 
for each City fund is listed in Attachment A. 
 
Next Steps 
 
The FY 2022/23 Fourth Quarter Financial Report will be presented to the City Council 
in September 2023. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact as a result of receiving this report. Staff is not recommending 
any budget adjustments at this time.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A – FY 2022/23 Third Quarter Financial Report Summary by Fund 
 
 


Cable Access TV Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of 
Amended 


Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Revenues 535,052$          535,052$        281,914$          53% 652,008$       
Expenditures 646,780            646,780          389,376            60% 646,780         
  Net surplus/deficit (111,728)           (111,728)         (107,462)$        5,228              
Beginning Fund Balance (5,227)                (5,227)              (5,227)            
Ending Fund Balance (116,956)$         (116,956)$       0$                   


Information Technology Fund FY 2022/23 
Original 
Budget


FY 2022/23 
Amended 
Budget


FY 2022/23   
YTD Actuals 
w/ Encumb.


% of Revised 
Budget


Projected      
Year-End


Expenditures 1,482,335         1,823,935       1,223,412         67% 1,823,935      
Indirect Cost Allocations (1,482,335)        (1,823,935)      (890,693)           49% (1,823,935)     
  Net surplus/deficit 0                         -                   332,719            -                  
Beginning Fund Balance -                     -                   -                  
Ending Fund Balance 0$                      -$                     -$                


177 of 829







Projected


Year-End


4,776,626          4,776,626            2,995,539       2,995,539       (1,781,087)      63% 4,776,626          


4,582,095          4,582,095            2,864,125       2,864,125       (1,717,970)      63% 4,582,095          


2,451,000          2,451,000            1,602,302       1,602,302       (848,698)          65% 2,451,000          


2,451,000          2,451,000            1,601,309       1,601,309       (849,691)          65% 2,451,000          


1,934,150          1,934,150            1,739,524       1,739,524       (194,626)          90% 2,074,092          


786,790             786,790 490,853           490,853           (295,937)          62% 786,790             


852,500             852,500 731,222           731,222           (121,278)          86% 852,500             


440,000            440,000 331,343          331,343          (108,657)         75% 440,000            


412,500            412,500 399,879          399,879          (12,621)           97% 412,500            


2,215,948          2,215,948            1,119,272       1,119,272       (1,096,676)      51% 2,215,948          


40,000 40,000 39,804             39,804             (196) 100% 40,000 


47,026 47,026 - - (47,026)            0% 47,026 


68,700 68,700 117,628           117,628           48,928             171% 117,628             


28,000 28,000 49,174             49,174             21,174             176% 49,174 


43,194 43,194 21,066             21,066             (22,128)            49% 43,194 


36,000 36,000 22,495             22,495             (13,505)            62% 36,000 


22,050 22,050 11,467             11,467             (10,583)            52% 22,050 


1,405,108          1,405,108            1,230,328       1,230,328       (174,780)          88% 1,405,108          


150,000             150,000 96,624             96,624             (53,376)            64% 150,000             


89,896 89,896 65,975             65,975             (23,921)            73% 89,896 


18,674 18,674 26,698             26,698             8,024 143% 26,698 


5,100 5,100 12,054             12,054             6,954 236% 12,054 


1,000 1,000 2,760 2,760 1,760 276% 2,760 


22,004,857       - 22,004,857          14,840,218     - 14,840,218     (7,164,638)      67% 22,231,639       


2,016,612          - 2,016,612            - - (2,016,612)      0% 2,016,612          


4,090,010          - 4,090,010            4,071,404       4,071,404       (18,606)            100% 4,090,010          


28,111,479       - 28,111,479          18,911,622     - 18,911,622     (9,199,856)      67% 28,338,261       


170,496             182,496 149,921           149,921           32,575             82% 182,496             


615,943             615,943 410,795           410,795           205,148           67% 615,943             


586,347             586,347 366,780           366,780           219,567           63% 586,347             


8,662 8,662 5,732 5,732 2,930 66% 8,662 


321,057             321,057 378,073           378,073           (57,016)            118% 321,057             


583,740            583,740 604,119          604,119          (20,379)           103% 583,740            


(262,683)           (262,683) (226,046)        (226,046)        (36,637)           86% (262,683)           


627,847             722,847 472,619           472,619           250,227           65% 722,847             


768,472             768,472 514,484           514,484           253,988           67% 768,472             


961,955             961,955 1,068,717       1,068,717       (106,762)          111% 1,068,717          


4,060,779          - 4,167,779            3,367,121       - 3,367,121       800,658           81% 4,274,541          


4,892,111          4,892,111            3,697,884       57,081 3,754,965       1,137,146        77% 4,892,111          


1,538,502          1,538,502            922,295           922,295           616,207           60% 1,538,502          


2,169,105          2,169,105            1,796,784       1,950 1,798,734       370,371           83% 2,169,105          


4,212,704          4,212,704            3,401,853       3,401,853       810,850           81% 4,212,704          


12,812,422       - 12,812,422          9,818,816       59,031 9,877,847       2,934,575       77% 12,812,422       


736,363             855,363 299,841           299,841           555,522           35% 398,452             
212,969             212,969 58,114             58,114             154,855           27% 99,367 
611,147             611,147 473,057           473,057           138,090           77% 611,147             
539,309             539,309 203,817           203,817           335,492           38% 307,034             


2,099,788          - 2,218,788            1,034,828       - 1,034,828       1,183,960       47% 1,416,000          


77,192 77,192 51,469             51,469             25,723             67% 98,550 


253,452             272,452 160,040           160,040           112,412           59% 272,452             


176,820             176,820 78,276             78,276             98,544             44% 124,728             


507,464             - 526,464 289,785          289,785          236,679           55% 495,730             


454,022             454,022 217,704           217,704           236,318           48% 454,022             


454,022             - 454,022 217,704          - 217,704          236,318           48% 454,022             


596,107             596,107 596,045           596,045           62 100% 596,107             


1,353,880          1,353,880            1,353,880       1,353,880       - 100% 2,406,835          


21,884,462       - 22,129,462          16,678,179     59,031 16,737,210     (5,392,252)      76% 22,455,657       Expenditure Total:


           Division: 466- Economic Development Total:


           Community Development Total:


           Division: 551- Recreation Administration Total:


           Community Services Total:


           Debt Service:


           Operating Transfer Out:


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:
           Division: 343- Facility Maintenance Total:
           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


           Public Works Total:


           Division: 461- Planning Total:


           Division: 465- Code Enforcement Total:


           Division: 221- Police Operations Total:


           Division: 222- Police Support Services Total:


           Division: 223- Dispatch WBCC Total:


           Division: 231- Fire Total:


Total Public Safety:


           Division: 341- Administration/Engineering Total:


City Attorney Services


City Attorney Indirect Cost Allocations


            Division: 115- Finance Department Total:


            Division: 116- Human Resources Total:


            Division: 117- General Government Total:


Total Administrative:


Expenditures


            Division: 110- City Council Total:


            Division: 111- City Manager Total:


            Division: 112- City Clerk Total:


            Division: 113- City Treasurer Total:


            Division: 114- City Attorney Total:


Revenue Total:


399- Pension Trust 115 Transfer 


399- ARPA Fund Transfer


Sources Total:


Fund: 100- General Fund


361- Public Safety Charges


370- Interest and Investment Income


381- Rental Income


383- Reimbursements


384- Other Revenue


392- Proceeds from Sale of Property


324- Other Grants


332- Permits


341- Review Fees


342- Other Fees


343- Abatement Fees


351- Fines and Forfeiture


314- Franchise Taxes


315- Other Taxes


 Other Tax/Transient Occupancy Tax


 Other Tax/Business License


321- Intergovernmental Taxes


323- State Grants


Revenue


311- Property Taxes


312- Sales and Use Taxes


312- Sales and Use Taxes-Meas S 2006


312- Sales and Use Taxes-Meas S 2014


313- Utility Users Tax


YTD Actual Encumbrances Total


Percent


Used


General Fund (including Measure S 2006 and 2014)


City of Pinole, CA For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 3/31/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments Amended Budget


ATTACHMENT A


178 of 829







Projected


Year-EndYTD Actual Encumbrances Total


Percent


Used


City of Pinole, CA For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 3/31/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments Amended Budget


2,450                  2,450                    1,367               1,367               1,083               56% 2,450                  


1,718,135          1,718,135            1,016,861       1,016,861       701,274           59% 1,718,135          


727,182             777,182                572,427           572,427           204,755           74% 777,182             


2,447,767          -                   2,497,767            1,590,655       -                       1,590,655       907,112           64% 2,497,767          


5,900                  5,900                    -                   -                   5,900               0% 5,900                  


2,450                  2,450                    1,667               1,667               783                   68% 2,450                  


102,600             102,600                -                   -                   102,600           0% -                      


110,950             -                   110,950               1,667               -                       1,667               109,283           2% 8,350                 


110,000             110,000                37,269             37,269             72,731             34% 110,000             


107,606             107,606                82,274             82,274             25,332             76% 107,606             


574,542             574,542                452,289           452,289           122,253           79% 574,542             


792,148             -                   792,148               571,832          -                       571,832          220,316           72% 792,148             


296,518             296,518                46,938             28,245                 75,183             221,335           25% 296,518             


627,512             824,675                50,756             50,756             773,919           6% 824,675             


1,298,025          1,058,655            132,459           367,843              500,302           558,353           47% 908,655             


418,460             418,460                2,502               2,502               415,958           1% 10,000               


359,449             549,449                30,426             30,426             519,023           6% 549,449             


2,999,964          -                   3,147,757            263,081          396,088              659,169          2,488,588       21% 2,589,297          


20,000               20,000                  -                   -                   20,000             0% 20,000               


20,000               -                   20,000                  -                   -                       -                   20,000             0% 20,000               


7,000                  7,000                    1,960               1,960               5,040               28% 7,000                  


4,850                  4,850                    -                   -                   4,850               0% 4,850                  


10,000               10,000                  -                   -                   10,000             0% 10,000               


21,850               -                   21,850                  1,960               -                       1,960               19,890             9% 21,850               


3,944,912          -                   4,092,705            838,540          396,088              1,234,628       2,858,077       30% 3,431,645          


718,000             718,000                718,000           718,000           -                    100% 718,000             


4,662,912          -                   4,810,705            1,556,540       396,088              1,952,628       2,858,077       41% 4,149,645          


28,995,141       -                   29,437,934          19,825,374     455,119              20,280,492     9,157,441       69% 29,103,069       


(883,662)            -                   (1,326,455)           (913,751)         (455,119)             (1,368,870)      42,415             103% (764,808)            


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 10,613,156       10,613,156          10,613,156     10,613,156       


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 9,729,494          9,286,701            9,699,405       9,848,348          


-                      -                        122,919           122,919           122,919           0% 163,892             


-                      -                   -                        122,919          -                       122,919          122,919           0% 163,892             


650,925             650,925                650,925           650,925           -                    100% 1,098,338          


650,925             -                   650,925               773,844          773,844          122,919           119% 1,262,230          


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 8,192,602          8,192,602            8,192,602       8,192,602          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 8,843,527          8,843,527            8,966,446       9,454,832          


General Fund and Measure S Net Results:


Fund: 150 - General Reserve


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


399- Transfer In Total:


General Reserve Net Results:


           Community Services Total:


 Sub-Total:


           Operating Transfer Out:


Expenditure Total:


General Fund and Measure S Expenditure Total:


           Public Works Total:


           Division: 461- Planning Total:


           Community Development Total:


           Division: 552- Senior Center Total:


           Division: 553- Tiny Tots Total:


           Division: 554- Youth Center Total:


Total Public Safety:


           Division: 341- Admin/Engineering Total:


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


           Division: 343- Facility Maintenance Total:


           Division: 344- NPDES Storm Drain Total:


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


           Division: 115- Finance Department Total:


           Division: 118- Information Systems Total:


Total Administrative:


           Division: 221- Police Operations Total:


           Division: 222- Police Support Services Total:


           Division: 231- Fire Total:


            Division: 231- Fire Total:


Expenditures Total:


Fund: 106 - Measure S-2014


Expenditures


           Division: 110- City Council  Total:


Fund: 105 - Measure S -2006


Expenditures


            Division: 115- Finance Department Total:


            Division: 221- Police Operations Total:


179 of 829







Projected


Year-EndYTD Actual Encumbrances Total


Percent


Used


City of Pinole, CA For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 3/31/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments Amended Budget


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


-                      -                   -                        -                   -                       -                   -                    0% -                      


85,000               85,000                  85,000             85,000             -                    100% 85,000               


85,000               -                   85,000                  85,000             -                       85,000             -                    100% 85,000               


120,000             120,000                39,434             -                       39,434             80,566             33% 120,000             


80,000               80,000                  -                   -                   80,000             0% 80,000               


5,000                  5,000                    -                   -                   5,000               0% 5,000                  


205,000             -                   205,000               39,434             -                       39,434             165,566           19% 205,000             


(120,000)            (120,000)              45,566             -                       45,566             165,566           -38% (120,000)            


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 241,166             241,166               241,166          241,166             


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 121,166             121,166               286,732          121,166             


990,635             990,635                648,347           648,347           (342,288)          65% 968,715             


5,000                  5,000                    9,626               9,626               4,626               193% 12,835               


7,636                  7,636                    1,417               1,417               (6,219)              19% 7,636                  


1,003,271          -                   1,003,271            659,390          -                       659,390          343,881           66% 989,186             


-                      -                        2,064               2,064               (2,064)              0% 2,064                  


1,144,557          1,194,557            424,635           12,008                 436,643           757,914           37% 1,194,557          


1,144,557          -                   1,194,557            426,699          12,008                438,707           755,850           37% 1,196,621          


(141,286)            (191,286)              232,690          (12,008)               220,683          411,969           -115% (207,435)            


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 729,304             729,304               729,304          729,304             


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 588,018             538,018               961,995          521,869             


3,175                  3,175                    475                  475                  (2,700)              15% 3,175                  


36,816               36,816                  -                   -                   (36,816)            0% 36,816               


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


39,991               -                   39,991                  475                  -                       475                  39,516             1% 39,991               


26,000               26,000                  12,630             12,630             13,370             49% 26,000               


26,000               -                   26,000                  12,630             -                       12,630             13,370             49% 26,000               


13,991               13,991                  (12,155)           (12,155)           (26,146)            -87% 13,991               


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 164,881             164,881               164,881          164,881             


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 178,872             178,872               152,726          178,872             


170,266             170,266                159,520           159,520           (10,746)            94% 230,000             


2,500                  2,500                    5,527               5,527               3,027               221% 7,370                  


172,766             -                   172,766               165,047          -                       165,047          (7,719)              96% 237,370             


387,365             387,365                141,766           141,766           245,599           37% 387,365             


387,365             -                   387,365               141,766          -                       141,766           245,599           37% 387,365             


(214,599)            (214,599)              23,281             23,281             237,880           -11% (149,995)            


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 517,190             517,190               517,190          517,190             


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 302,591             302,591               540,471          367,195             


Expenditures Total:


Public Safety Augmentation Fund Net Results:


Fund: 203 - Public Safety Augmentation Fund


321- Intergovernmental Taxes


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 221- Police Operations Total:


384- Other Revenue


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 343- Facility Maintenance Total:


Expenditures Total:


Restricted Real Estate Maint Fund Net Results:


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


Expenditures Total:


Gas Tax Fund Net Results:


Fund: 201 - Restricted Real Estate Maintenance Fund


342- Other Fees


381- Rental Income


321- Intergovernmental Taxes


370- Interest and Investment Income


383- Reimbursements


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 341- Admin and Engineering Total:


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


           Division: 461- Planning Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Equipment Reserve Net Results:


Fund: 200 - Gas Tax Fund


Fund: 160 - Equipment Reserve


392- Sale of Property


            Revenue Total:


                     399- Transfers In Total:


Sources Total:


Expenditures


180 of 829







Projected


Year-EndYTD Actual Encumbrances Total


Percent


Used


City of Pinole, CA For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 3/31/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments Amended Budget


45,000               45,000                  15,348             15,348             (29,652)            34% 21,200               


1,500                  1,500                    2,831               2,831               1,331               189% 3,775                  


46,500               -                   46,500                  18,180             -                       18,180             (28,320)            39% 24,975               


21,059               21,059                  7,676               7,676               13,383             36% 21,059               


21,059               -                   21,059                  7,676               -                       7,676               13,383             36% 21,059               


25,441               25,441                  10,504             10,504             (14,937)            41% 3,916                 


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 251,826             251,826               251,826          251,826             


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 277,267             277,267               262,330          255,742             


156,727             156,727                165,271           165,271           8,544               105% 156,727             


1,600                  1,600                    5,086               5,086               3,486               318% 6,780                  


158,327             -                   158,327               170,357          -                       170,357          12,030             108% 163,507             


111,067             111,067                97,171             97,171             13,896             87% 111,067             


111,067             -                   111,067               97,171             -                       97,171             13,896             87% 111,067             


47,260               47,260                  73,186             73,186             25,926             155% 52,440               


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 372,015             372,015               372,015          372,015             


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 419,275             419,275               445,201          424,455             


253,272             253,272                154,312           154,312           (98,960)            61% 253,272             


-                      -                        1,200               1,200               1,200               0% 1,200                  


150                     150                       (775)                 (775)                 (925)                 -517% 150                     


253,422             -                   253,422               154,737          -                       154,737          (98,685)            61% 254,622             


12,005               12,005                  -                   -                   12,005             0% 12,005               


324,933             324,933                232,230           232,230           92,703             71% 241,417             


336,938             -                   336,938               232,230          -                       232,230           104,708           69% 253,422             


(83,516)              (83,516)                (77,493)           (77,493)           6,023               93% 1,200                 


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 (38,938)              (38,938)                (38,938)           (38,938)              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (122,454)            (122,454)              (116,431)         (37,738)              


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


           Division: 344- NPDES Storm Drain Total:


Expenditures Total:


NPDES Storm Water Fund Net Results:


Fund: 207 - NPDES Storm Water Fund


321- Intergovernmental Taxes


332- Licenses and Permits


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 227- Police Grants Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Sup Law Enforce Svc Fund Net Results:


Expenditures


           Division: 227- Police Grants Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Traffic Safety Fund Net Results:


Fund: 206 - Supplemental Law Enforcement Svc Fund


323- State Grants


Fund: 205 - Traffic Safety Fund


351- Fines and Forfeitures


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


181 of 829







Projected


Year-EndYTD Actual Encumbrances Total


Percent


Used


City of Pinole, CA For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 3/31/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments Amended Budget


70,268               77,268                  11,358             11,358             (65,911)            15% 77,268               


216,130             167,050                123,570           123,570           (43,480)            74% 167,050             


172,021             138,539                111,101           111,101           (27,438)            80% 138,539             


17,855               4,787                    6,259               6,259               1,472               131% 4,787                  


7,560                  7,560                    5,799               5,799               (1,761)              77% 7,560                  


63,500               82,500                  38,140             38,140             (44,361)            46% 82,500               


10,316               10,316                  -                   -                   (10,316)            0% 10,316               


350                     200                       110                  110                  (90)                    55% 200                     


558,000             -                   488,220               296,335          -                       296,335          (191,884)         61% 488,220             


675,831             675,831                730,831           730,831           55,000             108% 1,038,588          


1,233,831          -                   1,164,051            1,027,166       -                       1,027,166       (136,884)         88% 1,526,808          


-                      -                        5,358               5,358               (5,358)              0% 5,358                  


694,990             713,850                399,357           7,229                   406,587           307,264           57% 542,116             


579,673             715,143                374,884           374,884           340,259           52% 499,846             


174,421             175,135                117,629           117,629           57,506             67% 156,839             


247,067             241,921                108,825           108,825           133,095           45% 145,100             


74,116               74,616                  25,236             25,236             49,380             34% 33,648               


126,917             153,900                103,605           103,605           50,295             67% 138,140             


14,200               14,200                  5,820               5,820               8,380               41% 7,760                  


6,650                  5,050                    2,618               2,618               2,432               52% 3,490                  


1,918,034          -                   2,093,815            1,143,332       7,229                   1,150,561       943,254           55% 1,532,295          


(684,203)            -                   (929,764)              (116,165)         (7,229)                 (123,395)         806,370           13% (5,488)                


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 5,488                 5,488                    5,488               5,488                 


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (678,716)            (924,277)              (110,678)         0                         


225,000             225,000                -                   -                   (225,000)          0% 225,000             


2,427,800          551,383                249,793           249,793           (301,590)          45% 551,383             


1,020,000          1,061,242            353,794           353,794           (707,448)          33% 1,061,242          


1,036,000          331,278                102,291           102,291           (228,987)          31% 331,278             


19,600               19,600                  -                   -                   (19,600)            0% 19,600               


87,048               87,049                  402                  402                  (86,646)            0% 87,049               


-                      -                        6,065               6,065               6,065               0% -                      


7,000                  7,000                    (12,542)           (12,542)           (19,542)            -179% 7,000                  


6,000                  6,000                    -                   -                   (6,000)              0% 6,000                  


4,828,448          -                   2,288,552            699,803          -                       699,803          (1,588,749)      31% 2,288,552          


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


4,828,448          -                   2,288,552            699,803          -                       699,803          (1,588,749)      31% 2,288,552          


1,183,849          1,183,849            752,809           752,809           431,040           64% 1,183,849          


1,226,944          1,143,045            693,037           600                      693,637           449,408           61% 1,143,045          


2,410,793          -                   2,326,894            1,445,846       600                      1,446,446       880,448           62% 2,326,894          


2,417,655          -                   (38,342)                (746,042)         (600)                     (746,642)         (708,300)         1947% (38,342)              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 (532,755)            (532,755)              (532,755)         (532,755)            


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 1,884,900          (571,097)              (1,278,797)      (571,097)            


           Division: 461- Planning Total:


           Division: 462- Building Inspection Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Building & Planning Net Results:


370- Interest and Investment Income


384- Other Revenue


Revenue Total:


Operating Transfers In:


Sources Total 


Expenditures


332- Permits


341- Review Fees


342- Other Fees


343- Abatement Fees


344- Impact Fees


351- Fines and Forfeiture


           Division: 558- Memorial Hall Total:


           Division: 559- Tennis Total:


Expenditures Total:


Recreation Fund Net Results:


Fund: 212 - Building & Planning


323- State Grants


           Division: 551- Recreation Administration Total:


           Division: 552- Senior Center Total:


           Division: 553- Tiny Tots Total:


           Division: 554- Youth Center Total:


           Division: 555- Day Camp Total:


           Division: 557- Swim Center Total:


Division: 559- Tennis


Revenue Total:


Operating Transfers in:


Sources Total 


Expenditures


           Division: 117- General Government Total:


Division: 552- Senior Center


Division: 553- Tiny Tots


Division: 554- Youth Center


Division: 555- Day Camp


Division: 557- Swim Center


Division: 558- Memorial Hall


Fund: 209 - Recreation Fund


Division: 551- Recreation Administration


182 of 829







Projected


Year-EndYTD Actual Encumbrances Total


Percent


Used


City of Pinole, CA For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 3/31/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments Amended Budget


60,060               60,060                  46,444             46,444             (13,616)            77% 60,060               


6,000                  6,000                    1,136               1,136               (4,864)              19% 1,515                  


66,060               -                   66,060                  47,580             -                       47,580             (18,480)            72% 61,575               


167,825             167,825                94,690             94,690             73,135             56% 167,825             


167,825             -                   167,825               94,690             -                       94,690             73,135             56% 167,825             


(101,765)            (101,765)              (47,110)           (47,110)           54,655             46% (106,250)            


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 150,843             150,843               150,843          150,843             


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 49,078               49,078                  103,733          44,593               


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


8,000                  8,000                    24,244             24,244             16,244             303% 8,000                  


360,000             360,000                321,043           321,043           (38,957)            89% 360,000             


368,000             -                   368,000               345,287          -                       345,287          (22,713)            94% 368,000             


257,778             -                   257,778                67,475             90,224                 157,699           100,079           61% 257,778             


425,000             125,000                -                   -                   125,000           0% 125,000             


682,778             -                   382,778               67,475             90,224                157,699           225,079           41% 382,778             


(314,778)            (14,778)                277,812          (90,224)               187,587          202,365           -1269% (14,778)              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 2,063,224          2,063,224            2,063,224       2,063,224          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 1,748,446          2,048,446            2,341,036       2,048,446          


382,848             382,848                21,965             21,965             (360,883)          6% 382,848             


8,000                  8,000                    20,515             20,515             12,515             256% 27,354               


390,848             -                   390,848               42,480             -                       42,480             (348,368)         11% 410,202             


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


186,999             186,999                99,872             99,872             87,127             53% 186,999             


450,881             455,881                116,444           116,444           339,437           26% 455,881             


2,000                  2,000                    -                   -                   2,000               0% 2,000                  


639,880             -                   644,880               216,316          -                       216,316           428,564           34% 644,880             


(249,032)            -                   (254,032)              (173,837)         (173,837)         80,195             68% (234,678)            


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 2,325,449          2,325,449            2,325,449       2,325,449          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 2,076,417          2,071,417            2,151,612       2,090,771          


-                      -                        2,194               2,194               2,194               0% 2,925                  


15,000               15,000                  -                   -                   (15,000)            0% 15,000               


15,000               -                   15,000                  2,194               -                       2,194               (12,806)            0% 17,925               


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


15,000               15,000                  2,194               2,194               (12,806)            0% 17,925               


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 199,959             199,959               199,959          199,959             


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 214,959             214,959               202,153          217,884             


2,302,505          2,302,505            4,071,404       4,071,404       1,768,899        177% 4,071,404          


2,302,505          -                   2,302,505            4,071,404       -                       4,071,404       1,768,899       177% 4,071,404          


4,090,010          4,090,010            4,071,404       4,071,404       18,606             100% 4,071,404          


4,090,010          -                   4,090,010            4,071,404       -                       4,071,404       18,606             100% 4,071,404          


(1,787,505)        (1,787,505)           -                   -                   1,787,505       0% -                      


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 -                      -                        -                   -                      


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (1,787,505)        (1,787,505)           -                   -                      


Expenditures


                  499- Transfers Out


Expenditures Total:


American Rescue Plan Act Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Rate Stabilization Fund Net Results:


Fund: 217 - American Rescue Plan Act Fund


322- Federal Grants


Revenue Total:


           Division: 343- Facility Maintenance Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Measure C and J Fund Net Results:


Fund: 216 - Rate Stabilization Fund


370- Interest and Investment Income


383- Reimbursements


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 117- General Government Total:


           Division: 341- Administration/Engineering Total:


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


Expenditures Total:


Solid Waste Fund Net Results:


Fund: 215 - Measure C and J Fund


324- Other Grants


Fund: 214 - Solid Waste Fund


323- State Grants


370- Interest and Investment Income


383- Reimbursements


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 346- Waste Reduction Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Refuse Management Fund Net Results:


Fund: 213 - Refuse Management Fund


323- State Grants


183 of 829







Projected


Year-EndYTD Actual Encumbrances Total


Percent


Used


City of Pinole, CA For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 3/31/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments Amended Budget


-                      -                        430                  430                  430                   0% 430                     


-                      -                   -                        430                  -                       430                  430                   0% 430                     


58,231               58,231                  16,348             16,348             41,883             28% 33,000               


58,231               -                   58,231                  16,348             -                       16,348             41,883             28% 33,000               


(58,231)              (58,231)                (15,918)           (15,918)           42,313             27% (32,570)              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 57,576               57,576                  57,576             57,576               


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (655)                   (655)                      41,658             25,006               


-                      -                        7,005               7,005               7,005               0% 2,255                  


-                      -                   -                        7,005               -                       7,005               7,005               0% 2,255                 


-                      -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


-                      7,005               7,005               7,005               0% 2,255                 


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 35,590               35,590                  35,590             35,590               


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 35,590               35,590                  42,595             37,845               


1,293,134          (0)                           -                   -                   0                       0%


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


1,293,134          -                   (0)                          -                   -                       -                   0                       0% -                      


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% (22,653)              


1,293,134          -                   (0)                          -                   -                       -                   0                       0% 22,653               


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 (22,653)              (22,653)                (22,653)           (22,653)              


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 1,270,480          (22,654)                (22,653)           (0)                        


1,608,476          493,000                13,414             13,414             (479,585)          3% 493,000             


-                      -                        29,842             29,842             29,842             0% 39,789               


1,608,476          -                   493,000               43,256             -                       43,256             (449,744)         9% 532,789             


58,000               58,000                  -                   -                   58,000             0% 58,000               


58,000               -                   58,000                  -                   -                       -                   58,000             0% 58,000               


1,550,476          435,000               43,256             43,256             (391,744)         10% 474,789             


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 2,701,825          2,701,825            2,701,825       2,701,825          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 4,252,300          3,136,824            2,745,080       3,176,613          


50,000               50,000                  61,280             61,280             11,280             123% 70,000               


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


867,883             867,883                7,783               7,783               (860,100)          1% 867,883             


917,883             -                   917,883               69,062             -                       69,062             (848,821)         8% 937,883             


53,436               53,436                  38,169             38,169             15,267             71% 53,436               


274,039             335,249                69,717             69,717             265,532           21% 335,249             


327,475             -                   388,685               107,886          -                       107,886           280,799           28% 388,685             


590,408             529,198               (38,824)           (38,824)           (568,022)         -7% 549,198             


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 7,746,133          7,746,133            7,746,133       7,746,133          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 8,336,541          8,275,331            7,707,310       8,295,331          


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 461- Planning Total:


           Division: 464- Housing Administration Total:


Expenditures Total:


Housing Land Held for Resale Net Results:


Fund: 285 - Housing Land Held for Resale


370- Interest and Investment Income


384- Other Revenue


393- Loan/Bond Proceeds


Expenditures


           Division: 344- NPDES Storm Drain Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Growth Impact Fund Net Results:


Expenditures Total:


Parkland Dedication Fund Net Results:


Fund: 276 - Growth Impact Fund


344- Impact Fees


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


Fund: 275 - Parkland Dedication Fund


344- Impact Fees


370- Interest and Investment Income


Revenue Total:


342- Other Fees


Revenue Total:


Expenditures Total:


CASp Certification and Training Fund Net Results:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 221- Police Operations Total:


Expenditures Total:


Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund Net Results:


Fund: 226 - CASp Certification and Training Fund


Fund: 225 - Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund


370- Interest and Investment Income


184 of 829







Projected


Year-EndYTD Actual Encumbrances Total


Percent


Used


City of Pinole, CA For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 3/31/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments Amended Budget


56,411               56,411                  28,741             28,741             (27,670)            51% 56,411               


7,500                  7,500                    -                   -                   (7,500)              0% 7,500                  


63,911               -                   63,911                  28,741             -                       28,741             (35,170)            45% 63,911               


32,315               32,315                  19,694             19,694             12,621             61% 32,315               


29,810               29,810                  8,668               8,668               21,142             29% 29,810               


62,125               -                   62,125                  28,362             -                       28,362             33,763             46% 62,125               


1,786                 1,786                    379                  379                  (1,407)              21% 1,786                 


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 43,110               43,110                  43,110             43,110               


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 44,896               44,896                  43,488             44,896               


15,000               15,000                  -                   -                   (15,000)            0% -                      


15,000               -                   15,000                  -                   -                       -                   (15,000)            0% -                      


15,055               15,055                  -                   -                   15,055             0% (983)                    


15,055               -                   15,055                  -                   -                       -                   15,055             0% (983)                   


(55)                      (55)                        -                   -                   55                     0% 983                     


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 (983)                   (983)                      (983)                 (983)                   


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (1,038)                (1,038)                   (983)                 (0)                        


60,000               60,000                  -                   -                   60,000             0% 60,000               


10,000               10,000                  -                   -                   10,000             0% 10,000               


70,000               -                   70,000                  -                   -                       -                   70,000             0% 70,000               


(70,000)              (70,000)                -                   -                   70,000             0% (70,000)              


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 541,649             541,649               541,649          541,649             


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 471,649             471,649               541,649          471,649             


-                      -                        146,416           146,416           146,416           0% -                      


97,747               97,747                  2,046               2,046               (95,700)            2% 146,416             


1,303,463          1,303,463            42,760             42,760             (1,260,703)      3% 1,303,463          


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


-                      -                        (1,417)              (1,417)              (1,417)              0% (1,417)                


1,401,210          -                   1,401,210            189,806          -                       189,806          (1,211,403)      14% 1,448,462          


250,000             250,000                250,000           250,000           -                    100% 250,000             


1,651,210          -                   1,651,210            439,806          439,806          (1,211,403)      27% 1,698,462          


1,706,213          1,706,213            127,626           317,708              445,334           1,260,879        26% 1,706,213          


1,706,213          -                   1,706,213            127,626          317,708              445,334           1,260,879       26% 1,706,213          


(55,003)              -                   (55,003)                312,180          (317,708)             (5,528)             49,476             10% (7,751)                


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 1,552,990          1,552,990            1,552,990       1,552,990          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 1,497,987          1,497,987            1,865,170       1,545,239          


189,758             189,758                -                   -                   (189,758)          0% 189,758             


-                      -                        49                     49                     49                     0% 65                       


189,758             -                   189,758               49                    -                       49                    (189,709)         0% 189,823             


189,758             189,758                47,721             47,721             142,037           25% 189,758             


189,758             -                   189,758               47,721             -                       47,721             142,037           25% 189,758             


-                      -                        (47,672)           (47,672)           (47,672)            0% 65                       


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 25,236               25,236                  25,236             25,236               


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 25,236               25,236                  (22,436)           25,301               


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


Expenditures Total:


Park Grants (Measure WW) Net Results:


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


Expenditures Total:


City Street Improvements Net Results:


Fund: 327 - Park Grants (Measure WW)


323- State Grant


370- Interest and Investment Income


351- Fines and Forfeiture


383- Reimbursements


Revenue Total:


Operating transfers in Total:


Sources Total:


Expenditures


Expenditures Total:


Public Facilities Fund Net Results:


Fund: 325 - City Street Improvements


322- Federal Grants


323- State Grants


324- Other Grants


Expenditures Total:


Pinole Valley Caretaker Fund Net Results:


Fund: 324 - Public Facilities Fund


Expenditures


           Division: 343- Facility Maintenance Total:


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


Fund: 317 - Pinole Valley Caretaker Fund


381- Rental Income


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 345- Park Maintenance Total:


           Division: 348- Landscape & Lighting PVR South Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Lighting & Landscape Districts Net Results:


Fund: 310 - Lighting & Landscape Districts


321- Intergovernmental Taxes


383- Reimbursements


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 347- Landscape & Lighting PVR North Total:


185 of 829







Projected


Year-EndYTD Actual Encumbrances Total


Percent


Used


City of Pinole, CA For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 3/31/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments Amended Budget


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% 541,463             


-                      -                   -                        -                   -                       -                   -                    0% 541,463             


250,000             250,000                250,000           250,000           -                    100% 250,000             


250,000             -                   250,000               250,000          -                       250,000          -                    100% 791,463             


810,312             810,312                61,674             27,223                 88,897             721,415           11% 85,988               


810,312             -                   810,312               61,674             27,223                88,897             721,415           11% 85,988               


(560,312)            -                   (560,312)              188,326          (27,223)               161,103          721,415           -29% 705,475             


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 49,887               49,887                  49,887             49,887               


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (510,425)            (510,425)              238,213          755,362             


8,266,176          8,266,176            4,709,624       4,709,624       (3,556,552)      57% 8,266,176          


100,000             100,000                194,443           194,443           94,443             194% 230,000             


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


8,366,176          -                   8,366,176            4,904,067       -                       4,904,067       (3,462,109)      59% 8,496,176          


-                      -                        16,369             16,369             (16,369)            0% 21,825               


6,229,371          6,289,371            3,325,563       814                      3,326,377       2,962,994        53% 6,289,371          


3,417,629          3,487,629            893,056           248,494              1,141,550       2,346,080        33% 3,487,629          


1,611,624          1,611,624            522,440           522,440           1,089,184        32% 1,611,624          


11,258,624       -                   11,388,624          4,757,427       249,308              5,006,735       6,381,889       44% 11,410,449       


(2,892,448)        -                   (3,022,448)           146,639          (249,308)             (102,668)         2,919,780       3% (2,914,273)        


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 22,228,477       22,228,477          22,228,477     22,228,477       


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 19,336,029       19,206,029          22,375,116     19,314,204       


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


-                      -                   -                        -                   -                       -                   -                    0% -                      


-                      -                        175,727           1,113                   176,839           (176,839)          0% 175,727             


-                      -                   -                        175,727          1,113                   176,839           (176,839)         0% 175,727             


-                      -                        (175,727)         (1,113)                 (176,839)         (176,839)         0% (175,727)            


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 1,658,044          1,658,044            1,658,044       1,658,044          


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 1,658,044          1,658,044            1,482,317       1,482,317          


52,972               52,972                  14,367             14,367             (38,605)            27% 52,972               


316,956             316,956                162,424           162,424           (154,532)          51% 316,956             


-                      -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


5,000                  5,000                    -                   -                   (5,000)              0% 5,000                  


374,928             -                   374,928               176,790          -                       176,790          (198,138)         47% 374,928             


160,124             -                   160,124                105,124           105,124           (55,000)            66% 277,080             


535,052             535,052               281,914          -                       281,914          (253,138)         53% 652,008             


444,432             444,432                252,449           17,777                 270,226           174,206           61% 444,432             


4,642                  4,642                    47                     47                     4,595               1% 4,642                  


197,707             197,707                119,103           119,103           78,603             60% 197,707             


646,780             -                   646,780               371,599          17,777                389,376          257,404           60% 646,780             


(111,728)            (111,728)              (89,685)           (17,777)               (107,462)         4,267               96% 5,228                 


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 (5,227)                (5,227)                   (5,227)             (5,227)                


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 (116,956)            (116,956)              (94,912)           0                         


Expenditures Total:


Cable Access TV Net Results:


Operating transfers in Total:


Sources Total 


Expenditures


           Division: 119- Cable Access TV Total:


           Division: 120- Cable Access-Community Services Total:


           Division: 121- Cable Access-Contract Services Total:


Fund: 505 - Cable Access TV


314- Franchise Taxes


365- Cable TV Charges


370- Interest and Investment Income


384- Other Revenue


Revenue Total:


383- Reimbursements


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 643- Sewer Projects/Shared Total:


Expenditures Total:


Plant Expansion Fund Net Results:


           Division: 642- Sewer Collections Total:


           Division: 644- WPCP Equipment/Debt Service Total:


Expenditures Total:


Sewer Enterprise Fund Net Results:


Fund: 503 - Plant Expansion Fund


370- Interest and Investment Income


384- Other Revenue


392- Proceeds from Sale of Property


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 117- General Government Total:


           Division: 641- Sewer Treatment Plant/Shared Total:


Expenditures Total:


Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund Net Results:


Fund: 500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund


363- Sewer Enterprise Charges


370- Interest and Investment Income


383- Reimbursements


322- Federal Grants


Revenue Total:


Operating transfers in Total:


Sources Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 342- Road Maintenance Total:


Fund: 377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund


186 of 829







Projected


Year-EndYTD Actual Encumbrances Total


Percent


Used


City of Pinole, CA For FY2022/23 Period Ending: 3/31/23


Variance


Favorable


(Unfavorable)


Original 


Budget


Proposed 


Adjustments Amended Budget


-                      -                   -                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


-                      -                   -                        -                   -                       -                   -                    0% -                      


1,482,335          1,823,935            897,507           325,904              1,223,412       600,524           67% 1,823,935          


1,482,335          -                   1,823,935            897,507          325,904              1,223,412       (600,524)         67% 1,823,935          


(1,482,335)         (1,823,935)           (890,693)         (890,693)         933,243           49% (1,823,935)         


0 -                   -                        6,814               325,904              332,719          -                    0% -                      


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 -                      -                        -                   -                      


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 -                      -                        6,814               -                      


1,140,017          1,140,017            518,409           518,409           (621,608)          45% 570,008             


1,140,017          -                   1,140,017            518,409          -                       518,409          (621,608)         45% 570,008             


40,000               40,000                  58,546             58,546             (18,546)            146% 50,000               


2,016,612          2,016,612            -                   -                   2,016,612        0% 2,016,612          


2,056,612          -                   2,056,612            58,546             58,546             (1,998,066)      3% 2,066,612          


(916,595)            (916,595)              459,863          459,863          1,376,458       -50% (1,496,604)        


Fund Balance July 1, 2022 16,045,223       16,045,223          16,045,223     16,045,223       


Estimated Fund Balance June 30, 2023 15,128,628       15,128,628          16,505,086     14,548,619       


250,000             250,000                171,210           171,210           (78,790)            68% 250,000             


-                      -                        14,814             14,814             14,814             0% -                      


-                        -                   -                   -                    0% -                      


5,000                  5,000                    -                   -                   (5,000)              0% 5,000                  


255,000             -                   255,000               186,024          -                       186,024          (68,976)            73% 255,000             


227,378             227,378                204,174           204,174           23,204             90% 227,378             


227,378             -                   227,378               204,174          204,174          (23,204)            90% 227,378             


27,622               27,622                  (18,150)           (18,150)           (92,179)            -66% 27,622               


Expenditures


           Division: 463- Successor Agency to RDA Total:


Expenditures Total:


 Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund Net Results:


Fund: 750 - Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund


311- Property Taxes


370- Interest and Investment Income


392- Proceeds from Sale of Property


393- Loan/Bond Proceeds


Revenue Total:


Revenue Total:


Expenditures


           Division: 115- Finance Total:


           Transfers Out Total:


Expenditures Total:


Pension Fund Net Results:


           Division: 118- Information Systems Total:


Expenditures Total:


Indirect cost allocations Total:


 Information Systems Net Results:


Fund: 700 - Pension Fund


370- Interest and Investment Income


Fund: 525 - Information Systems


399- Operating Transfers In


Sources Total:


Expenditures


187 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: MARKISHA GUILLORY, FINANCE DIRECTOR 
ROY SWEARINGEN, CITY TREASURER 


SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT FOR THE THIRD 
QUARTER (ENDING MARCH 31, 2023) 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council receive the Quarterly Investment Report for the 
third quarter (ending March 31, 2023). 


BACKGROUND 


The City of Pinole Investment Policy requires that a Quarterly Investment Report be 
submitted to the City Council. The City’s investments, as shown in the attached 
Investment Report for the quarter ending March 31, 2023, conform to the City’s 
Investment Policy as well as all applicable State and federal requirements, including 
California Government Code Section 53646. 


The funds that the City invests, and which are reported in the Quarterly Investment 
Report, are comprised of cash and investment balances that are held across all City 
funds. The cash and investment balances across all City funds are “pooled” for 
investment purposes, with the exception of the assets of the General Reserve, which is 
discussed further below. Cash is invested in accordance with the City’s Investment Policy. 
Interest earnings on investments are allocated to the various funds based on the cash 
and investment balances of those funds. 


The City also maintains a Section 115 Trust that was established for the purpose of setting 
aside resources to offset anticipated increases in future City pension costs. The cash and 
investments in the trust are designated as restricted fund balance in the City’s General 
Fund. These funds are invested according to the policy objectives and guidelines of the 
City’s Pension Investment Policy. 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


Investment Policy 


All investments held at March 31, 2023 conform to the City’s Investment Policy and all 
applicable State and federal requirements. The City’s investment objectives, in order of 


9G


188 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  2 


priority, are safety, which is investing in the highest quality securities; liquidity, which is 
the ability to convert the investment to cash as necessary to meet cash flow requirements; 
and yield, which is earning a higher return. 


Investment Strategy 


The City utilizes a passive investment management approach by buying and holding 
securities until maturity. Earnings on investments held until maturity typically fluctuate 
with market conditions and are considered “unrealized” prior to maturity. The City expects 
to yield a gain on all investments at maturity. A “laddered maturity” investment strategy is 
applied to the long-term portion of the City’s investment portfolio. A laddered portfolio is 
structured with securities that have different maturity dates. As securities are called or 
mature, proceeds are reinvested in a new security with another long term at the end of 
the ladder. Laddering helps to minimize interest-rate risk, increase liquidity, and diversify 
credit risk. 
 
Staff continues to monitor rates of return on City funds invested and make investments to 
best achieve the objectives laid out in the Investment Policy. 
 
Third Quarter Investment Summary 


As of March 31, 2023, total cash and investments increased by $728,084 from the 
previous quarter, from $54,047,924 to $54,776,008. Typically, the City experiences 
swings in cash inflow and outflow due to the seasonality of large receipts, such as 
property taxes, and large disbursements, like debt service that is paid semiannually. The 
City will have sufficient cash flow to meet the next six months of estimated expenditures. 


Investment Instruments 
 
The Finance Director, in consultation with the City Treasurer, selects the instruments in 
which to invest the City’s funds, in order to best meet the objectives laid out in the City’s 
Investment Policy. The balances held in different investment instruments at March 31, 
2023 are noted in Attachment A. The bulk of the City’s investment funds are invested in 
the State of California’s Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), because of the safety and 
liquidity of that investment. 
 
Funds in the City’s General Reserve are maintained in an account that is separate from 
the rest of the pooled funds. This enables the Finance Director to implement a directed 
investment plan for the General Reserve funds. The City’s practice has been to invest 
these funds in instruments with longer duration, thereby yielding greater investment 
earnings. 
 
Investment Yield and Duration 
 
The aggregate yield of the City’s investment portfolio for the quarter ended March 31, 
2023 is summarized in Attachment A. The total investment portfolio yielded 2.168% for 
the third quarter (January through March 2023), up from the 2.029% yielded in the 
previous quarter (October through December 2022). 


189 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  3 


 
For the third quarter, LAIF earned an average annual yield of 2.831%, up from an average 
annual yield of 2.173% for the second quarter. LAIF yields gradually decreased between 
June 2019 and November 2021 and were lower than long-term investment yields in most 
cases. However, LAIF has shown gradual growth in yield since December 2021.   
 
The General Reserve, which holds the longer-term investments, earned an average 
annual yield of 1.888%, up from the 1.817% average annual yield in the second quarter. 
No new investment instruments were purchased during the third quarter. Additionally, a 
medium-term corporate note matured, Johnson and Johnson, and was redeemed for 
cash. 
 
Section 115 Trust  
 
The Section 115 Trust is comprised of a diversified portfolio of investments consistent 
with the Trust’s objectives and liquidity requirements. The funds are invested on behalf of 
the City by Public Agency Retirement Services (PARS). The portfolio summary for the 
quarter ending March 31, 2023 is included in Attachment B to this report. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 


There is no fiscal impact as a result of receiving the Third Quarter Investment Report. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 


A- Investment Report - Quarter Ending March 31, 2023 


B- Section 115 Trust Investment Report – Quarter Ending March 31, 2023 


190 of 829







CITY OF PINOLE
INVESTMENT REPORT MARCH 2023
PORTFOLIO SUMMARY


Weighted
Days to Average


Investments Par Value Market Value Book Value % of Portfolio Maturity Yield Maturity


Investment Pool - LAIF 33,886,347                  33,429,231 33,429,231                  64.45% 1  2.831 1
Investment Pool - CalTrust 3,282,553 3,282,553  3,282,553 6.33% 1  4.475 0
Money Market Savings 6,195,652 6,195,652  6,195,652 11.95% 1  1.530 0
Mutual Funds 5,186,798 5,186,798  5,186,798 10.00% 1  3.160 0
Certificates of Deposit 2,480,000 2,372,326  2,372,326 4.57% 396 1.472 2
Medium-Term Corporate Notes 1,000,000 935,170     935,170    1.80% 1,260                2.190 23
Federal Agency Securities 500,000    464,055     464,055    0.89% 802 0.730 7


Subtotal Investments 52,531,349$                51,865,785$                51,865,785                  100.00% 410 2.168 5


Average Years: 1.1
Cash


Mechanics Bank - Vendor Checking * 1,257,201 1,257,201 1,257,201 1 
Bank of the West - Payroll Checking * 879,459    879,459     879,459 1 
Bank of the West - Checking (Credit Card Clearing) * 773,563    773,563     773,563 1


Subtotal Cash 2,910,223 2,910,223 2,910,223 1


Total Cash and Investments 55,441,573$                54,776,008$                54,776,008$               


*Not included in yield calculations


The above investments are consistent with the City's Investment Policy and allowable under current legislation of the State of California.  Investments were selected using safety,
liquidity and yield as the criteria.  The source of the market values for the investments are provided by US Bank in accordance with the California Government Code requirement.
The City has sufficient cash flow to cover anticipated expenditures through the next six months.


Investment Pool
71%


Money Market 
Savings


12%


Mutual Funds
10%


Certificates of Deposit
4%


Medium-Term 
Corporate Notes


2%


Federal Agency 
Securities


1%


CITY OF PINOLE - INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
JANUARY 2022


 $-


 $10


 $20


 $30


 $40


 $50


 $60


0-3 mo 4-6 mo 7-12 mo 1-2 yr 2-3 yr 3-4 yr 5 yr +


M
ill


io
ns


Maturity Distribution


71%


12%


10%


5%


2%


1%


$0 $10,000,000 $20,000,000 $30,000,000 $40,000,000


Investment Pool


Money Market Savings


Mutual Funds


Certificates of Deposit


Medium-Term Corporate Notes


Federal Agency Securities


CITY OF PINOLE - INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO
MARCH 2023


ATTACHMENT A


191 of 829







CITY OF PINOLE
INVESTMENT REPORT MARCH 2023
PORTFOLIO DETAILS


Type / 
Account 
Number CUSIP Issuer Investment Description Manager GL Acct # Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Yield


Days to 
Maturity


S&P 
Rating


Maturity 
Date


Weighted 
Average 
Maturity


Investment Pool
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) Pooled Treasury - State of California LAIF 999-10201 33,886,347           33,429,231             33,429,231       2.831 2.831 1              N/A 1
CalTrust - Short Term Fund (City) Pooled Treasury - Joint Power Financing Authority CalTrust 999-10202 24,907                  24,907                    24,907              4.610 4.610 1              N/A 0
CalTrust - Medium Term Fund (City) Pooled Treasury - Joint Power Financing Authority CalTrust 999-10203 3,257,646             3,257,646               3,257,646         4.340 4.340 1              N/A 0


Subtotal and Average 37,168,900           36,711,784             36,711,784       3.927 3.927 1              0


Money Market Savings
Mechanics Bank Money Market Savings (City) City 999-10102 6,087,867             6,087,867               6,087,867         3.050 3.050 1              N/A 0
Bank of the West Money Market Savings - Police Evidence Trust City 999-10104 107,785                107,785                  107,785            0.010 0.010 1              N/A 0


Subtotal and Average 6,195,652             6,195,652               6,195,652         1.530 1.530 1              0


Mutual Funds
19-516680 U.S. Bank Accrued Income - City Reserve US Bank 150-10110 27,353                  27,353                    27,353              1.980 1.980 1              N/A 0
19-516680 31846V203 1st American Government Obligation Fund Mutual Fund Shares - Class "D" - City Reserve US Bank 150-10110 5,159,444             5,159,444               5,159,444         4.340 4.340 1              N/A 0


Subtotal and Average 5,186,798             5,186,798               5,186,798         3.160 3.160 1              0


Certificates of Deposit
19-516680 064520BG3 Bank of Princeton Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 250,000                231,228                  231,228            0.500 0.540 640          N/A 12/30/2024 3
19-516680 38149MAY9 Goldman Sachs BK USA New York Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 246,000                244,923                  244,923            2.600 2.610 66            N/A 6/5/2023 0
19-516680 59013KCZ7 Merrick Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 249,000                244,877                  244,877            1.650 1.680 182          N/A 9/29/2023 1
19-516680 61690UGW4 Morgan Stanley Bank Na Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 246,000                244,905                  244,905            2.600 2.610 67            N/A 6/6/2023 0
19-516680 61760AF46 Morgan Stanley Private Bk Natlassn Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 246,000                244,905                  244,905            2.600 2.610 67            N/A 6/6/2023 0
19-516680 70212VAB4 Partners Bk helena Ark Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                224,229                  224,229            0.600 0.660 822          N/A 6/30/2025 4
19-516680 84223QAN7 Southern Bankcorp Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 250,000                232,985                  232,985            0.500 0.540 574          N/A 10/25/2024 3
19-516680 856283N51 State Bk Indiana Chicago III Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 250,000                227,800                  227,800            1.000 1.100 818          N/A 6/26/2025 4
19-516680 85916VDN2 Sterling Bank of Poplar Bluff Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 247,000                243,127                  243,127            1.650 1.680 171          N/A 9/18/2023 1
19-516680 87164WC71 Synchrony Bank Certificates of Deposit - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 249,000                233,348                  233,348            0.650 0.690 549          N/A 9/30/2024 2


Subtotal and Average 2,480,000             2,372,326               2,372,326         1.435 1.472 396          2


Medium-Term Corporate Notes
19-516679 037833DN7 Apple Inc. 2.05% Corporate MTN 9/11/26 - City Reserves US Bank 150-10110 1,000,000             935,170                  935,170            2.050 2.190 1,260       AA+ 9/11/2026 23


Subtotal and Average 1,000,000             935,170                  935,170            2.050 2.190 1,260       23


Federal Agency Securities
19-516680 3133ELH80 Federal Farm Credit Bks .680% Agency Bond 6/10/25 US Bank 150-10110 500,000                464,055                  464,055            0.680 0.730 802          AA+ 6/10/2025 7


Subtotal and Average 500,000                464,055                  464,055            0.680 0.730 802          7


Investment Portfolio Total and Average 52,531,349$       51,865,785$        51,865,785$   2.130 2.168 410 5


Average Years : 1.1


192 of 829







Investments Market Value Book Value % of Market Yield


Cash and Equivalents 580,690             580,690          3.52% 5.620      
U.S. Government Issues 6,104,265         6,255,637       36.98% 3.650      
Corporate Issues 3,345,210         3,653,040       20.27% 4.030      
Foreign Issues 40,950               49,500            0.25% 5.380      
Municipal Issues 157,485             165,479          0.95% 4.440      
Mutual Funds-Equity 5,729,937         5,428,839       34.72% 1.390      
Mutual Funds-Fixed Income 491,714             489,331          2.98% 2.250      
Total Assets 16,450,252       16,622,516    99.67% 2.980      
Accrued Income 54,812               54,812            0.33%
Grand Total 16,505,064$     16,677,328$  100%


CITY OF PINOLE
INVESTMENT REPORT MARCH 2023
SECTION 115 TRUST PORTFOLIO SUMMARY


36.98%


34.72%


20.27%


3.52%


2.98%


0.95%


0.33%


0.25%


$0 $1,000,000 $2,000,000 $3,000,000 $4,000,000 $5,000,000 $6,000,000 $7,000,000


U.S. Government Issues


Mutual Funds-Equity


Corporate Issues


Cash and Equivalents


Mutual Funds-Fixed Income


Municipal Issues


 Accrued Income


Foreign Issues


Portfolio Summary


ATTACHMENT B


193 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


9H 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: LILLY WHALEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR & 
DAVID HANHAM, PLANNING MANAGER 


SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SUBMITTAL OF 
CALENDAR YEARS 2020 AND 2021 GROWTH MANAGEMENT 
PROGRAM (GMP) COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST FOR ALLOCATION 
OF FISCAL YEARS 2021-22 AND 2022-23 MEASURE J LOCAL 
STREET MAINTENANCE AND IMPROVEMENT FUNDS BY THE 
CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY (CCTA)  


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution approving the submittal of 
Calendar Years 2020 and 2021 Growth Management Program (GMP) Compliance 
Checklist to the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) to receive 
approximately $935,899.00 Measure J return-to-source gas tax dollars for Fiscal 
Years 2021-2022 and 2022-2023. 


BACKGROUND 


Contra Costa County voters approved the County’s first transportation sales tax, 
Measure C, in 1988. Measure C was subsequently extended through the Measure J 
half-cent sales tax, which expires in 2034.  


Each year, CCTA allocates approximately 18% of the Measure J sales tax 
collections to local municipalities in the form of Local Street Maintenance and 
Improvement funds. Local Street Maintenance and Improvement funds are 
distributed among municipalities based on their respective road miles and 
population. The remaining of the Measure J revenues are made available to local 
municipalities for various capital projects on a competitive basis. 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


In order to be eligible for the Measure J funds, municipalities in Contra Costa County 
are required to submit a biennial self-certifying checklist to the CCTA that details 
how the requirements of Measure J have been complied with. Measure J funds are 
provided on a fiscal year basis, while the checklist covers a calendar year. Each 
checklist addresses a specific fiscal year period and a different reporting period. For 


194 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  2 
 


 
 


instance, the current checklist is for Fiscal Years 2021/22 and 2022/23, but the 
reporting period is for calendar years 2020 and 2021. See Table 1 for Measure J 
funding allocations to the City of Pinole since 2008. Measure J money is used to 
fund transportation projects identified in the Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan 
(CIP). 
 
Table 1: Measure J Funding Allocation to Pinole since 2008  


Check List Year 
(Fiscal Year, July-June) 


Reporting Period 
(Calendar Year,   


Jan-Dec) 


Local Street 
Maintenance and 


Improvement Allocation 
(Pinole) 


FY 21/22 & 22/23 2020 & 2021  $935,899 
FY 19/20 & 20/21 2018 & 2019 $766,174 
FY 17/18 & 18/19 2016 & 2017 $759,000 
FY 15/16 & 16/17 2014 & 2015 $625,000 
FY 13/14 & 14/15 2012 & 2013 $665,000 
FY 11/12 & 12/13 2010 & 2011 $558,000 
FY 09/10 & 10/11 2008 & 2009 $271,480 


 
The Growth Management Checklist requires that jurisdictions in Contra Costa 
County comply with and document the following major requirements:  
 


• Develop and Implement Action Plans for Routes of Regional Significance 
• Adopt a Regional Transportation Mitigation Program (i.e., Establish and 


collect Transportation Impact Mitigation Fees)  
• Housing Options and Job Opportunities Compliance through the General Plan 
• Prepare Traffic Impact Studies 
• Participation in Cooperative, Multi-Jurisdictional Planning (e.g., WCCTAC 


Membership) 
• Five-Year Capital Improvement Program 
• Adoption of Measure J General Plan Growth Management Element 
• Adopt and maintain an Urban Limit Line  


 
Measure J guidelines require that the checklist be approved by the City Council prior 
to it being forwarded to CCTA for consideration. Once submitted, CCTA will assess 
compliance with all components of its GMP through the review and approval of the 
jurisdiction’s GMP Compliance Checklist. 
 
Staff has prepared the attached Resolution (Attachment 1) with Exhibits A-G for 
consideration by City Council. Staff is recommending that the City Council certify the 
checklist and adopt the draft Resolution, authorizing the City Manager to sign the 
Growth Management Program Compliance checklist and forward it to CCTA prior to 
the June 30, 2023 submittal deadline. CCTA will then process the checklist pursuant 
to CCTA procedures and will notify the City that the City of Pinole checklist has been 
approved.  
 


195 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  3 
 


 
 


 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is a positive fiscal impact of approximately $935,899 in Measure J return-to-
source gas tax monies that will be provided to the City of Pinole. The amounts are 
subject to change primarily based on actual sales tax receipts through June 30, 
2023. The allocation date for FY 2021-22 LSM funds will be on the one-year 
anniversary for the FY 2020-21 allocation. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 


 A. Resolution 
Exhibit A: Measure J Growth Management Program 


Compliance Checklist 
Exhibit B: 2020 and 2021 Housing and Community 


Development Annual Reports (Tables A thru C 
Exhibit C: City of Pinole Capital Improvement Program FY 


2022-202324 through 2026-2027 
Exhibit D Section 2.54 Transportation Systems 


Management of the Pinole Municipal Code 
Exhibit E Chapter 4 Growth Management Element of the 


General Plan 
Exhibit F  Chapter 7, Circulation Element of the General 


Plan 
 


196 of 829







RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE SUBMITTAL OF 


CALENDAR YEARS 2020 AND 2021 GROWTH MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 
(GMP) COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST FOR ALLOCATION OF FISCAL YEARS 2021-


22 AND 2022-23 MEASURE J LOCAL STREET MAINTENANCE AND 
IMPROVEMENT FUNDS BY THE CONTRA COSTA TRANSPORTATION 


AUTHORITY (CCTA) 


 WHEREAS, in 1988 Contra Costa County voters approved Measure C imposing 
a half-cent sales tax to generate revenue for transportation improvement projects over 
20 years and approved Measure J extending the sales tax for another 25 years; and  


 WHEREAS, to receive “18 Percent Local Street Maintenance and Improvement 
(LSM) program funds,” Measure J requires each jurisdiction in Contra Costa County 
to comply with all the components of the Growth Management Program (GMP); and 


 WHEREAS, the Contra Costa Transportation Authority requires that local 
jurisdictions complete a biennial GMP Compliance Checklist to demonstrate 
compliance with Measure J; and 


 WHEREAS, the City of Pinole has satisfied all requirements necessary to be in 
compliance with Measure J including those involving implementation of 2009 West 
County Action Plan for Routes of Regional Significance, continued development 
mitigation programs, housing options, traffic impact studies, multi-jurisdictional 
planning, five-year Capital Improvement Program, Transportation Systems 
Management (TSM) Ordinance, Growth Management Element for General Plan, and 
Urban Limit Line; and 


 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Pinole adopted a Five-Year Capital 
Improvement Plan, in accordance with the goals, plans, policies, and programs of the 
City of Pinole, and its General Plan at its June 21, 2022 meeting; and 


 WHEREAS, the City of Pinole encourages projects that are mixed use, and 
include a range of housing types and styles, and affordability levels; and 


 WHEREAS, with the range of housing types and affordability levels, and rules in 
place to encourage preservation of the existing housing stock and creation of new 
residential development, the City of Pinole continues to make progress on its Regional 
Housing Need Allocation (RHNA) for affordable housing; and  


 WHEREAS, the City of Pinole is a member of the West Contra Costa 
Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC) and has representation and 
participation at monthly meetings; and 


ATTACHMENT A


197 of 829







 
 


 WHEREAS, the City of Pinole collects Transportation Mitigation Fees for new 
development in the City and also adopted a resolution increasing mitigation fees in 
2009; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Pinole received a letter from the State Department of 
Housing and Community Development (HCD) on May 29, 2015 certifying that the 
City’s Housing Element is in compliance with State Housing Law and has prepared 
and submitted all required annual reports needed to maintain compliance; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Pinole adopted an update to the Housing Element, the 
2023-2031 Housing Element, on April 4, 2023, which covers the 6th cycle planning 
period ending in 2031 and HCD certification is anticipated by June 6, 2023; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Pinole has prepared a General Plan Growth Management 
Element in full compliance with Measure J requirements. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Pinole hereby adopts a resolution approving the Measure J GMP Compliance 
Checklist that is attached and incorporated by reference as Exhibit A and directs staff 
to submit the checklist to the Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) in 
compliance with Measure J, and further authorizes staff to furnish all required 
information to CCTA necessary to approve the City of Pinole Measure J return-to-
source gas tax dollars in the amount of approximately $935,899 over the next two (2) 
fiscal years for local street maintenance and improvement funds.  
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held 
on the 6th day of June, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
         AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
  
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 6th day of June, 2023 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 


198 of 829







Review and Approval of Measure J  
Growth Management Plan Checklist 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021


Reporting Jurisdiction: ____________________________________


This Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist was prepared by:


Signature Date 


Name and Title (print) 


Phone Email 


The Council/Board of _____________________________ has reviewed the completed Checklist 
and found that the policies and programs of the jurisdiction as reported herein conform to the 
requirements for compliance with the Contra Costa Transportation Improvement and Growth 
Management Program.


Certified Signature (Mayor or Chair) Date 


Name and Title (print) 


Attest Signature (City/Town/County Clerk) Date 


Name (print) 


Submit the signed form to Matt Kelly via Hightail: www.hightail.com/uplink/MattKellyCCTA


EXHIBIT A


199 of 829



http://www.hightail.com/uplink/MattKellyCCTA





Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021  


Measure J Growth Management Program Compliance Checklist 


1. Action Plans YES NO N/A 


a. Is the jurisdiction implementing the actions called for in the
applicable Action Plan for all designated Routes of Regional
Significance within the jurisdiction?


b. Has the jurisdiction implemented the following procedures as
outlined in the Implementation Guide and the applicable Action Plan
for Routes of Regional Significance?


i. Circulation of environmental documents,


ii. Analysis of the impacts of proposed General Plan amendments
and recommendation of changes to Action Plans, and


iii. Conditioning the approval of projects consistent with Action
Plan policies?


c. Has the jurisdiction followed the procedures for RTPC review of
General Plan Amendments as called for in the Implementation
Guide?


2. Development Mitigation Program YES NO 


a. Has the jurisdiction adopted and implemented a local development
mitigation program to ensure that new development pays its fair
share of the impact mitigation costs associated with that
development?


b. Has the jurisdiction adopted and implemented the regional
transportation mitigation program, developed, and adopted by the
applicable Regional Transportation Planning Committee, including
any regional traffic mitigation fees, assessments, or other
mitigation as appropriate?


200 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021   


3. Address Housing Options  YES NO  


a. Has the jurisdiction prepared and submitted a report to the 
Authority demonstrating reasonable progress in providing housing 
opportunities for all income levels under its Housing Element? The 
report can demonstrate progress by  


(1) comparing the number of housing units approved, constructed, 
or occupied within the jurisdiction over the preceding five 
years with the number of units needed on average each year to 
meet the housing objectives established in its Housing Element; 
or  


(2) illustrating how the jurisdiction has adequately planned to meet 
the existing and projected housing needs through the adoption 
of land use plans and regulatory systems which provide 
opportunities for, and do not unduly constrain, housing 
development; or  


(3) illustrating how its General Plan and zoning regulations 
facilitate improvement or development of sufficient housing to 
meet the Element’s objectives.  


Note: A copy of the local jurisdiction’s annual progress report (Tables 
A thru C) to the state Department of Housing and Community 
Development (HCD) is sufficient. 


   


b. Does the jurisdiction’s General Plan—or other adopted policy 
document or report—consider the impacts that its land use and 
development policies have on the local, regional, and countywide 
transportation system, including the level of transportation 
capacity that can reasonably be provided?  


   


c. Has the jurisdiction incorporated policies and standards into its 
development approval process that support transit, bicycle, and 
pedestrian access in new developments?  


   


201 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021   


4. Traffic Impact Studies YES NO N/A 


a. Using the Authority’s Technical Procedures, have traffic impact 
studies been conducted as part of development review for all 
projects estimated to generate more than 100 net new peak-hour 
vehicle trips? (Note: Lower traffic generation thresholds 
established through the RTPC’s Action Plan may apply). 


   


b.  If the answer to 4.a. above is “yes”, did the local jurisdiction notify 
affected parties and circulate the traffic impact study during the 
environmental review process? 


   


5. Participation in Cooperative, Multi-Jurisdictional 
Planning YES NO  


a. During the reporting period, has the jurisdiction’s Council/Board 
representative regularly participated in meetings of the 
appropriate Regional Transportation Planning Committee (RTPC), 
and have the jurisdiction’s local representatives to the RTPC 
regularly reported on the activities of the Regional Committee to 
the jurisdiction's council or board?  (Note: Each RTPC should have a 
policy that defines what constitutes regular attendance of 
Council/Board members at RTPC meetings.) 


   


b. Has the local jurisdiction worked with the RTPC to develop and 
implement the Action Plans, including identification of Routes of 
Regional Significance, establishing Multimodal Transportation 
Service Objectives (MTSOs) for those routes, and defining actions 
for achieving the MTSOs? 


   


c.  Has the local jurisdiction applied the Authority’s travel demand 
model and Technical Procedures to the analysis of General Plan 
Amendments (GPAs) and developments exceeding specified 
thresholds for their effect on the regional transportation system, 
including on Action Plan MTSOs? 


 


 


   


202 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021   


 YES NO  


d. As needed, has the jurisdiction made available, as input into the 
countywide transportation computer model, data on proposed 
improvements to the jurisdiction’s transportation system, including 
roadways, pedestrian circulation, bikeways, and trails, planned and 
improved development within the jurisdiction, and traffic patterns? 


   


6. Five-Year Capital Improvement Program  YES NO  


Does the jurisdiction have an adopted five-year capital 
improvement program (CIP) that includes approved projects and 
an analysis of project costs as well as a financial plan for providing 
the improvements? (The transportation component of the plan 
must be forwarded to the Authority for incorporation into the 
Authority’s database of transportation projects) 


   


7. Transportation Systems Management Program  YES NO  


Has the jurisdiction adopted a transportation systems management 
ordinance or resolution that incorporates required policies 
consistent with the updated model ordinance prepared by the 
Authority for use by local agencies or qualified for adoption of 
alternative mitigation measures because it has a small employment 
base?  


   


8. Adoption of a voter-approved Urban Limit Line  YES NO N/A 


a. Has the local jurisdiction adopted and continually complied with an 
applicable voter-approved Urban Limit Line as outlined in the 
Authority’s annual ULL Policy Advisory Letter?  


 


   


203 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021  


b. If the jurisdiction has modified its voter approved ULL or approved
a major subdivision or General Plan Amendment outside the ULL,
has the jurisdiction made a finding of consistency with the
Measure J provisions on ULLs and criteria in the ULL Policy
Advisory Letter after holding a noticed public hearing and making
the proposed finding publicly available?


9. Adoption of the Measure J Growth Management
Element YES NO N/A 


Has the local jurisdiction adopted a final GME for its General Plan 
that substantially complies with the intent of the Authority’s 
adopted Measure J Model GME? 


10. Posting of Signs YES NO N/A 


Has the jurisdiction posted signs meeting Authority specifications 
for all projects exceeding $250,000 that are funded, in whole or in 
part, with Measure C or Measure J funds? 


11. Maintenance of Effort (MoE) YES NO 


Has the jurisdiction met the MoE requirements of Measure J as 
stated in Section 6 of the Contra Costa Transportation 
Improvement and Growth Management Ordinance (as amended)? 
(See the Checklist Instructions for a listing of MoE requirements by 
local jurisdiction.) 


12. Submittal of LSM Reporting and Audit Forms YES NO 


Has the local jurisdiction submitted a Local Street Maintenance and 
Improvement Reporting Form and Audit Reporting Form for 
eligible expenditures of 18 percent funds covering FY 2017-18 and 
FY 2018-19? 


YES NO N/A 


204 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021  


13. Other Considerations YES NO N/A 


If the jurisdiction believes that the requirements of Measure J have 
been satisfied in a way not indicated on this checklist, has an 
explanation been attached below? 


Review and Approval of Checklist 


This Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist was prepared by: 


Signature Date 


Name & Title (print) 


Phone Email 


The Council/Board of    ___________ has reviewed the completed Checklist and found 
that the policies and programs of the jurisdiction as reported herein conform to the requirements 
for compliance with the Contra Costa Transportation Improvement and Growth Management 
Program. 


Certified Signature (Mayor or Chair) Date 


Name & Title (print) 


Attest Signature (City/Town/County Clerk) Date 


Name (print) 


205 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021   


Supplementary Information (Required) 
 


1. Action Plans 


a. Please summarize steps taken during the reporting period to implement the actions, 
programs, and measures called for in the applicable Action Plan for Routes of Regional 
Significance: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


b. Attach, list, and briefly describe any General Plan Amendments that were approved during the 
reporting period. Please specify which amendments affected ability to meet the standards in 
the Growth Management Element and/or affected ability to implement Action Plan policies or 
meet Multimodal Traffic Service Objectives (MTSOs). Indicate if amendments were forwarded 
to the jurisdiction’s RTPC for review, and describe the results of that review relative to Action 
Plan implementation: 


 


 


 


 


 


206 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021   


Provide a summary list of projects approved during the reporting period and the conditions 
required for consistency with the Action Plan: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


2. Development Mitigation Program 
a. Describe progress on implementation of the regional transportation mitigation program: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


3. Address Housing Options 


a. Please attach a report demonstrating reasonable progress in providing housing opportunities 
for all income levels. (Note: A copy of the local jurisdiction’s annual report (Tables A thru C) to 
the state Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) is sufficient). 


PLEASE ADD ATTACHMENTS TO END OF PDF 


207 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021   


Please attach the jurisdiction’s adopted policies and standards that ensure consideration of 
and support for walking, bicycling, and transit access during the review of proposed 
development. 


PLEASE ADD ATTACHMENTS TO END OF PDF 


 


4. Traffic Impact Studies 


Please list all traffic impact studies that have been conducted as part of the development 
review of any project that generated more than 100 net new peak hour vehicle trips. (Note: 
Lower traffic generation thresholds established through the RTPC’s Action Plan may apply). 
Note whether the study was consistent with the Authority’s Technical Procedures and whether 
notification and circulation were undertaken during the environmental review process. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


5. Participation in Cooperative, Multi-Jurisdictional Planning 
 No attachments necessary 


 


 


 


208 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021   


6. Five-Year Capital Improvement Program 


Please attach the transportation component of the most recent CIP version, if the Authority 
does not already have it. Otherwise, list the resolution number and date of adoption of the 
most recent five-year CIP. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


7. Transportation Systems Management Program 
Please attach a copy of the jurisdiction’s TSM ordinance or list the date of ordinance or 
resolution adoption and its number. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


209 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021   


8. Adoption of a voter-approved Urban Limit Line 


The local jurisdiction’s adopted ULL is on file at the Authority offices. Please specify any 
actions that were taken during the reporting period regarding changes or modifications to the 
voter approved ULL, which should include a resolution making a finding of consistency with 
Measure J and a copy of the related public hearing notice. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


9. Adoption of the Measure J Growth Management Element 


Please attach the adopted Final Measure J Growth Management Element to the local 
jurisdiction’s General Plan or list the date of ordinance or resolution adoption and its number.  


 


 


 


10.  Posting of Signs 


Provide a list of all projects exceeding $250,000 within the jurisdiction, noting which ones are 
or were signed according to Authority specifications. 


 


 


210 of 829







Measure J GMP Compliance Checklist Attachments 


Reporting Jurisdiction: _______________________________________ 
For Fiscal Years 2021-22 and 2022-23 
Reporting Period: Calendar Years 2020 & 2021  


11. Maintenance of Effort (MoE)


Please indicate the jurisdiction’s MoE requirement and MoE expenditures for the past two 
fiscal years (FY 2019-20 and FY 2020-21). See the Instructions to identify the MoE 
requirements.


12. Submittal of LSM Reporting Form and Audit Reporting Form
Please attach LSM (Summary) Reporting and LSM Audit (Detail) Forms for FY 2019-20 


and FY 2020-21. 


PLEASE ADD ATTACHMENTS TO END OF PDF 


13. Other Considerations
Please specify any alternative methods of achieving compliance for any components for the
Measure J Growth Management Program


211 of 829







Jurisdiction Pinole ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT Note: "+" indicates an optional field
Reporting Year 2020 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation


Date 
Application 
Submitted


Total 
Approved 
Units by 
Project


Total 
Disapproved 


Units by 
Project


Streamlining Notes


2 3 4 6 7 8 9 10


Prior APN+ Current APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+


Unit Category
(SFA,SFD,2 to 
4,5+,ADU,MH)


Tenure


R=Renter
O=Owner


Date 
Application 
Submitted 


(see 
instructions)


Very Low-
Income Deed 


Restricted


Very Low-
Income Non 


Deed 
Restricted


Low-Income 
Deed 


Restricted


Low-Income 
Non Deed 
Restricted


Moderate-
Income Deed 


Restricted


Moderate- 
Income  


Non Deed 
Restricted


Above
Moderate-


Income


Total PROPOSED 
Units by Project


Total 
APPROVED 


Units by project


Total 
DISAPPROVED 
Units by Project


Was APPLICATION 
SUBMITTED 


Pursuant to GC 
65913.4(b)?  


(SB 35 
Streamlining)  


Notes+


Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below 0 0 0 0 1 0 9 10 10 0 0
403-500-020 403-500-020 472 Limerick Rd New SFR and attached 


ADU PL20-0040
SFD O


10/28/2020
1 1 1 No


SFR part of the project
403-500-020 403-500-020 472 Limerick Rd New SFR and attached 


ADU PL20-0040
ADU O 10/28/2020 1 1 1 No


ADU part of the project
360-411-006 360-411-006 2698 Silverado Dr ADU conversion BP20-0136 ADU O 10/2/2020 1 1 1 No
401-100-029 401-100-029 759 Pine Ave ADU conversion BP20-0114 ADU O 10/21/2020 1 1 1 No
402-161-025 402-161-025 814 E Meadow Ave ADU conversion BP20-0060 ADU O


8/7/2020
1 1 1 No


402-013-058 402-013-058 204 Pinon Ave Attached ADU BP20-0188 ADU O 9/14/2020 1 1 1 No
402-013-060 402-013-060 APN 402-013-060 Hazel Street Four-Lot  


Subdivision
DR17-10, TSM17-
01, DA17-01


SFD O
8/14/2020


1 3 4 4 No


0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0


Housing Development Applications Submitted
Table A


Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas
(CCR Title 25 §6202)


51


Project Identifier Unit Types Proposed Units - Affordability by Household Incomes 


EXHIBIT B


212 of 829







Jurisdiction Pinole ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2020 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas


Table A2
Annual Building Activity Report Summary - New Construction, Entitled, Permits and Completed Units


Streamlining Infill
Housing without Financial 


Assistance or Deed 
Restrictions


Term of Affordability 
or Deed Restriction Notes


2 3 5 6 8 9 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21


Prior APN+ Current APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+


Unit Category               
(SFA,SFD,2 to 
4,5+,ADU,MH)


Tenure


R=Renter
O=Owner


Very Low- 
Income Deed 


Restricted


Very Low- 
Income   Non 


Deed Restricted


Low- Income 
Deed 


Restricted


Low- Income   
Non Deed 
Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Deed 


Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Non 


Deed Restricted


Above
Moderate-


Income


Entitlement
Date Approved # of Units issued 


Entitlements


Very Low- 
Income Deed 


Restricted


Very Low- 
Income   Non 


Deed 
Restricted


Low- Income 
Deed 


Restricted


Low- Income   
Non Deed 
Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Deed 


Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Non 


Deed Restricted


Above
Moderate-


Income


Building Permits 
Date Issued


# of Units Issued 
Building Permits 


Very Low- 
Income Deed 


Restricted


Very Low- 
Income   Non 


Deed 
Restricted


Low- Income 
Deed 


Restricted


Low- Income   
Non Deed 
Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Deed 


Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Non 


Deed Restricted


Above
Moderate-


Income


Certificates of 
Occupancy or other 
forms of readiness          


(see instructions)    Date 
Issued


# of  Units 
issued 


Certificates of 
Occupancy or 
other forms of 


readiness


How many of 
the units were 
Extremely Low 


Income?+


Was Project    
APPROVED using 


GC 65913.4(b)?  
(SB 35 


Streamlining)            
Y/N


Infill Units?
Y/N+


Assistance Programs 
for Each Development         


(see instructions)


Deed Restriction 
Type


(see instructions)


For units affordable without 
financial assistance or deed 
restrictions, explain how the 
locality determined the units 


were affordable
(see instructions)


Term of Affordability or 
Deed Restriction (years) 
(if affordable in perpetuity 


enter 1000)+ 


Number of 
Demolished/Dest


royed Units+


Demolished or 
Destroyed Units+


Demolished/De
stroyed Units    


Owner or 
Renter+ 


Notes+


Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below 0 0 0 0 1 0 10 11 0 0 0 0 0 0 9 9 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 0


402-050-023 402-050-023 1479 San Pablo 
Ave Triplex PL19-0009, DR19-03 2 to 4 R 3 6/24/2019 3 3 5/5/2020 3 0 N Y


402-050-021 402-050-021 980 Second Ave New SFD PL19-0018, DR19-04 SFD O 1 9/4/2019 1 1 1/14/2021 1 0 N Y


401-193-006 401-193-006 1169 Pinole Valley 
Rd


New SFD and 
attached ADU PL19-0071, DR19-13 SFD O 1 12/16/2019 1 1 11/18/2020 1 0 N Y


401-193-006 401-193-006 1169 Pinole Valley 
Rd


New SFD and 
attached ADU PL19-0071, DR19-14 ADU O 1 12/16/2019 1 1 11/18/2020 1 0 N Y


401-020-017 401-020-017 2256 Orleans Dr Convert Garage to 
ADU BP19-0363 ADU O 1 10/23/2019 1 1 10/23/2019 1 1 1/14/2020 1 N Y


402-161-025 402-161-025 808 E Meadow Ave New Residence BP18-0354/ PL17-
00053 SFD R 1 6/6/2018 1 1 6/3/2019 1 1 7/14/2020 1 N Y


402-161-024 402-161-024 810 E Meadow Ave New Residence BP18-0355/ PL17-
00053 SFD R 1 6/6/2018 1 1 6/3/2019 1 1 7/14/2020 1 N Y


430-260-013 430-260-013 209 N Rancho Pl New Residence PL19-0040/ BP20-0201 SFD O 1 7/1/2020 1 0 0 N N


403-500-020 403-500-020 472 Limerick Rd New SFR and 
attached ADU


PL20-0040 SFD O 1 11/30/2020 1 0 0 N Y


403-500-020 403-500-020 472 Limerick Rd New SFR and 
attached ADU


PL20-0040 ADU O 1 11/30/2020 1 0 0 N Y


360-411-006 360-411-006 2698 Silverado Dr ADU conversion BP20-0136 ADU O 1 10/2/2020 1 1 10/8/2020 1 0 N Y
401-100-029 401-100-029 759 Pine Ave ADU conversion BP20-0114 ADU O 1 10/21/2020 1 1 11/12/2020 1 0 N Y


402-161-025 402-161-025 814 E Meadow Ave ADU conversion BP20-0060 ADU O 1 8/7/2020 1 1 8/17/2020 1 1 12/17/2020 1 N Y


402-013-058 402-013-058 204 Pinon Ave Attached ADU BP20-0188 ADU O 1 9/14/2020 1 1 9/14/2020 1 0 N Y


402-013-060 402-013-060 APN 402-013-060 Hazel Street Four-Lot  
Subdivision


DR17-10, TSM17-01, 
DA17-01 SFD O 1 3 11/17/2020 4 0 0 N Y INC 55


0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0


(CCR Title 25 §6202)


Note: "+" indicates an optional field


Housing with Financial Assistance 
and/or Deed Restrictions Demolished/Destroyed UnitsProject Identifier


1


Unit Types Affordability by Household Incomes - Completed Entitlement Affordability by Household Incomes - Building Permits Affordability by Household Incomes - Certificates of Occupancy


4 7 10


213 of 829







Jurisdiction Pinole ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2020 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation


(CCR Title 25 §6202)


1 3 4


RHNA Allocation 
by Income Level 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total Units to 


Date (all years)
Total Remaining RHNA 


by Income Level


Deed Restricted
Non-Deed Restricted
Deed Restricted
Non-Deed Restricted
Deed Restricted
Non-Deed Restricted 1


Above Moderate 126 2 2 2 7 9 22 104


297
3 2 2 7 9 23 274


Note: units serving extremely low-income households are included in the very low-income permitted units totals
Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas


Total RHNA
Total Units


Income Level


Very Low


Low


42


This table is auto-populated once you enter your jurisdiction name and current year data. Past year 
information comes from previous APRs.


1
Moderate


80


48


43


Please contact HCD if your data is different than the material supplied here


2


Table B
Regional Housing Needs Allocation Progress


Permitted Units Issued by Affordability


80


48


214 of 829







Jurisdiction Pinole ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2020 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation


Date of Rezone Type of Shortfall


2 4 5 6 7 9 10 11


APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+ Date of Rezone Very Low-Income Low-Income Moderate-Income Above Moderate-


Income
Type of Shortfall Parcel Size


(Acres)
General Plan 
Designation Zoning Minimum    


Density Allowed 
Maximum    


Density Allowed Realistic Capacity Vacant/Nonvacant Description of Existing 
Uses


Note: "+" indicates an optional field


Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas
(CCR Title 25 §6202)


Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below


83


Project Identifier RHNA Shortfall by Household Income Category Sites Description


1


Sites Identified or Rezoned to Accommodate Shortfall Housing Need
Table C


215 of 829







Jurisdiction Pinole ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT Note: "+" indicates an optional field
Reporting Year 2021 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation


Planning Period 5th Cycle 01/31/2015 - 01/31/2023


Date 
Application 
Submitted


Total 
Approved 
Units by 
Project


Total 
Disapproved 


Units by 
Project


Streamlining


2 3 4 6 7 8 9


Prior APN+ Current APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+


Unit Category
(SFA,SFD,2 to 
4,5+,ADU,MH)


Tenure


R=Renter
O=Owner


Date 
Application 
Submitted+


(see 
instructions)


Very Low-
Income Deed 


Restricted


Very Low-
Income Non 


Deed 
Restricted


Low-Income 
Deed 


Restricted


Low-Income 
Non Deed 
Restricted


Moderate-
Income Deed 


Restricted


Moderate- 
Income   


Non Deed 
Restricted


Above
Moderate-


Income


Total PROPOSED 
Units by Project


Total 
APPROVED 


Units by project


Total 
DISAPPROVED 
Units by Project


Was APPLICATION 
SUBMITTED 


Pursuant to GC 
65913.4(b)?  


(SB 35 
Streamlining)     


Was a Density 
Bonus requested 
for this housing 
development?


Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below 33 0 142 0 68 0 131 374 220 0


402-166-030 402-166-030 811 San Pablo Ave SAHA Project PL21-0013 5+ R
6/28/2021


26 7 33 33 No Yes


401-240-017 401-240-017 2151 Appian Way Appian Village PL21-0016 5+ O 4/2/2021 31 123 154 No No
402-023-007, 402-023-


003, 405-023-002
402-023-007, 402-
023-003, 405-023-


002
600 Roble Ave Vista Woods PL21-0030


5+ R 7/18/2021 7 135 37 179 179 No Yes


360-551-002 360-551-002 2466 Faria Ave 2466A Faria Ave BP21-0148 ADU R 9/13/2021 1 1 1 No No
360-025-003 360-025-003 2987 Higuera Ave 2987A Higuera Ave BP21-0276 ADU R 12/14/2021 1 1 1 No No
360-055-002 360-055-002 3213 Estates Ave 3213 Estates Ave BP20-0142 ADU R 2/17/2021 1 1 1 No No
402-164-009 402-164-009 831 Betty Ave 831A Betty Ave BP21-0068 ADU R 10/26/2021 1 1 1 No No
401-192-015 401-192-015 2525 Brandt Ct 2525 Brandt Ct PL21-0006 SFD O 3/9/2021 1 1 1 No No
401-192-015 401-192-015 2525 Brandt Ct 2525 Brandt Ct PL21-0006 ADU R 3/9/2021 1 1 1 No No
430-240-025 430-240-025 8 N Rancho Ct 8 N Rancho Ct PL20-0069 SFD O 2/9/2021 1 1 1 No No
430-240-025 430-240-025 8 N Rancho Ct 8 N Rancho Ct PL20-0069 ADU R 2/9/2021 1 1 1 No No


0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0


Table A
Housing Development Applications Submitted


Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas


51


Project Identifier Unit Types Proposed Units - Affordability by Household Incomes 


(CCR Title 25 §6202)


Density Bonus Applications


10


216 of 829







Jurisdiction Pinole ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2021 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas
Planning Period 5th Cycle 01/31/2015 - 01/31/2023


Table A2
Annual Building Activity Report Summary - New Construction, Entitled, Permits and Completed Units


Streamlining Infill
Housing without Financial 


Assistance or Deed 
Restrictions


Term of Affordability 
or Deed Restriction Notes


2 3 5 6 8 9 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 25


Prior APN+ Current APN Street Address Project Name+ Local Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+


Unit Category               
(SFA,SFD,2 to 
4,5+,ADU,MH)


Tenure


R=Renter
O=Owner


Very Low- 
Income Deed 


Restricted


Very Low- 
Income   Non 


Deed 
Restricted


Low- Income 
Deed 


Restricted


Low- Income   
Non Deed 
Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Deed 


Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Non 


Deed 
Restricted


Above
Moderate-


Income


Entitlement
Date Approved # of Units issued 


Entitlements


Very Low- 
Income 
Deed 


Restricted


Very Low- 
Income   Non 


Deed 
Restricted


Low- Income 
Deed 


Restricted


Low- Income   
Non Deed 
Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Deed 


Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Non 


Deed 
Restricted


Above
Moderate-


Income


Building Permits 
Date Issued


# of Units Issued 
Building Permits 


Very Low- 
Income Deed 


Restricted


Very Low- 
Income   Non 


Deed 
Restricted


Low- 
Income 
Deed 


Restricted


Low- 
Income   


Non Deed 
Restricted


Moderate- 
Income 
Deed 


Restricted


Moderate- 
Income Non 


Deed 
Restricted


Above
Moderate-


Income


Certificates of 
Occupancy or other 
forms of readiness          
(see instructions)    


Date Issued


# of  Units 
issued 


Certificates of 
Occupancy or 
other forms of 


readiness


How many of 
the units were 
Extremely Low 


Income?+


Was Project    
APPROVED using 


GC 65913.4(b)?  
(SB 35 


Streamlining)            
Y/N


Infill Units?
Y/N+


Assistance Programs 
for Each Development
(may select multiple - 


see instructions)


Deed Restriction 
Type


(may select 
multiple - see 
instructions)


For units affordable without 
financial assistance or deed 
restrictions, explain how the 
locality determined the units 


were affordable
(see instructions)


Term of Affordability or 
Deed Restriction 


(years) (if affordable in 
perpetuity enter 1000)+ 


Number of 
Demolished/De


stroyed Units


Demolished or 
Destroyed 


Units


Demolished/D
estroyed Units    


Owner or 
Renter


Total Density Bonus Applied 
to the Project (Percentage 


Increase in Total Allowable 
Units or Total Maximum 


Allowable Residential Gross 
Floor Area)


Number of Other 
Incentives, 


Concessions, Waivers, 
or Other Modifications 
Given to the Project 
(Excluding Parking 
Waivers or Parking 


Reductions)


List the incentives, 
concessions, 
waivers, and 
modifications 


(Excluding Parking 
Waivers or 


Parking 
Modifications)


Did the project receive 
a reduction or waiver of 
parking standards? (Y/N)


Notes+


Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below 33 0 142 0 37 0 8 220 0 0 0 0 0 0 4 4 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 0 0 0 0
402-050-021 402-050-021 980 Second Ave New SFD BP19-0433 SFD O 0 1 1/14/2021 1 0 N Y
402-090-011 402-090-011 1409 Nob Hill Ave New SFD BP18-0130 SFD O 0 0 1 9/23/2021 1 N Y
402-090-010 402-090-010 1431 Nob Hill Ave New SFD BP18-0131 SFD O 0 0 1 9/1/2021 1 N Y
360-551-002 360-551-002 2466 Faria Ave 2466A Faria Ave BP21-0148 ADU R 1 9/13/2021 1 1 10/5/2021 1 0 N Y
360-025-003 360-025-003 2987 Higuera Ave 2987A Higuera Ave BP21-0276 ADU R 1 12/14/2021 1 0 0 N Y
360-055-002 360-055-002 3213 Estates Ave 3213 Estates Ave BP20-0142 ADU R 1 2/17/2021 1 1 2/13/2021 1 0 N Y
402-164-009 402-164-009 831 Betty Ave 831A Betty Ave BP21-0068 ADU R 1 10/26/2021 1 1 11/8/2021 1 0 N Y


402-166-030 402-166-030 811 San Pablo 
Ave SAHA Project PL21-0013 5+ R 26 7 6/28/2021 33 0 0 N Y VHHP DB 55 73.7% 3


On-Site 
Improvements, 
Development 
Standards 
Modification


Yes


402-023-007, 402-
023-003, 405-023-


002


402-023-007, 402-
023-003, 405-023-


002
600 Roble Ave Vista Woods PL21-0030 5+ R 7 135 37 9/27/2021 179 0 0 N Y DB 55 77.2% 6


On-Site 
Improvements, 
Development 
Standards 
Modification


Yes


401-192-015 401-192-015 2525 Brandt Ct 2525 Brandt Ct PL21-0006 SFD O 1 3/22/2021 1 0 0 N Y
401-192-015 401-192-015 2525 Brandt Ct 2525 Brandt Ct PL21-0006 ADU R 1 3/22/2021 1 0 0 N Y
430-240-025 430-240-025 8 N Rancho Ct 8 N Rancho Ct PL20-0069 SFD O 1 3/22/2021 1 0 0 N Y
430-240-025 430-240-025 8 N Rancho Ct 8 N Rancho Ct PL20-0069 ADU R 1 3/22/2021 1 0 0 N Y


0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0
0 0 0


Note: "+" indicates an optional field


Housing with Financial Assistance 
and/or Deed Restrictions Demolished/Destroyed UnitsProject Identifier


(CCR Title 25 §6202)


Density Bonus


1


Unit Types Affordability by Household Incomes - Completed Entitlement Affordability by Household Incomes - Building Permits Affordability by Household Incomes - Certificates of Occupancy


4 7 10


217 of 829







Jurisdiction Pinole ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2021 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation
Planning Period 5th Cycle 01/31/2015 - 01/31/2023 (CCR Title 25 §6202)


1 3 4


RHNA Allocation 
by Income Level 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 Total Units to 


Date (all years)


Total Remaining 
RHNA by Income 


Level


Deed Restricted                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Non-Deed Restricted                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Deed Restricted                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Non-Deed Restricted                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Deed Restricted                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   
Non-Deed Restricted                           -                              1                           -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -                             -   


Above Moderate                            126                           -                              2                            2                            2                            7                            9                            4                           -                             -                            26                               100 


                           297 
                          -                              3                            2                            2                            7                            9                            4                           -                             -                            27                        270 


Note: units serving extremely low-income households are included in the very low-income permitted units totals and must be reported as very low-income units.


                                48 


Please note: For the last year of the 5th cycle, Table B will only include units that were permitted during the portion of the year that was in the 5th cycle. For the first year of the 6th cycle, Table B will include units that were permitted 
since the start of the planning period.


Total RHNA
Total Units


Income Level


Very Low


Low


Please note: The APR form can only display data for one planning period. To view progress for a different planning period, you may login to HCD's online APR system, or contact HCD staff at apr@hcd.ca.gov.


                                42 


                          -   


This table is auto-populated once you enter your jurisdiction name and current year data. Past year 
information comes from previous APRs.


                           1 
Moderate


                             80 


                             48 


                             43 


Please contact HCD if your data is different than the material supplied here


                          -   


2


Table B
Regional Housing Needs Allocation Progress


Permitted Units Issued by Affordability


                                80 


218 of 829







Jurisdiction Pinole ANNUAL ELEMENT PROGRESS REPORT
Reporting Year 2021 (Jan. 1 - Dec. 31) Housing Element Implementation
Planning Period 5th Cycle 01/31/2015 - 01/31/2023


Date of Rezone Rezone Type


2 4 5 6 7 9 10 11


APN Street Address Project Name+
Local 


Jurisdiction 
Tracking ID+


Date of Rezone Very Low-Income Low-Income Moderate-Income Above Moderate-
Income


Rezone Type Parcel Size
(Acres)


General Plan 
Designation Zoning Minimum    


Density Allowed 
Maximum    


Density Allowed
Realistic 
Capacity Vacant/Nonvacant Description of Existing 


Uses


Note: "+" indicates an optional field


Cells in grey contain auto-calculation formulas


Summary Row: Start Data Entry Below


83


Project Identifier RHNA Shortfall by Household Income Category Sites Description


1


Sites Identified or Rezoned to Accommodate Shortfall Housing Need and No Net-Loss Law
Table C


(CCR Title 25 §6202)


219 of 829







          CITY OF PINOLE              


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


FY 2022/23 – 2026/27 


Adopted: June 21, 2022


EXHIBIT C


220 of 829







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN
FY 2022/23 – 2026/27 


 


 


CITY COUNCIL 
Vincent Salimi, Mayor 


Devin T. Murphy, Mayor Pro Tem 


Anthony L. Tave, Council Member 


Maureen Toms, Council Member 


Norma Martínez-Rubin, Council Member 


 


CITY MANAGER 
Andrew Murray 


 


PUBLIC WORKS 
DIRECTOR  
Sanjay Mishra 


 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
& ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROGRAM MANAGER 
Misha Kaur  


 


 


 
221 of 829







 
 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 


 


 
Introduction ................................................................................................................................. 1 


Next Steps in Capital Planning .................................................................................................. 2 


Project Funding ........................................................................................................................... 2 


Funding Sources ......................................................................................................................... 3 


Grants .......................................................................................................................................... 4 


Overview of Recommended Capital Budget ............................................................................ 5 


Funding Summary ...................................................................................................................... 6 


Project Description Sheets – Facilities ............................................................................. 9-17 


Project Description Sheets –  Parks ............................................................................... 18-22 


Project Description Sheets – Sanitary Sewer ................................................................. 23-29 


Project Description Sheets – Stormwater ....................................................................... 30-32 


Project Description Sheets – Roads ............................................................................... 33-44 


Project Description Sheets – Infrastructure Assessments .............................................. 45-53 


Unfunded and Unprogrammed Project List ........................................................................... 55 


Project Description Sheets  ............................................................................................ 56-67 


 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


222 of 829







 
 


Introduction 
 
The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a multi-year planning tool used to identify and implement 
the City’s capital needs over the upcoming five-year period. The CIP aligns the needs with 
appropriate funding, scheduling, and implementation. This document is a working blueprint for 
building and sustaining publicly funded physical infrastructure. Capital improvements refer to 
physical assets and include the design, purchase, construction, maintenance, or improvement 
of public resources (i.e. parks public infrastructure, equipment, public spaces). These 
improvements influence Pinole’s built and natural environment and help guide the trajectory of 
future growth or change.  
 
The projects in the CIP fall into the following broad categories: facility maintenance, parks, 
sewer collection and treatment, stormwater, streets and roads. These projects are developed in 
collaboration with department heads, and division managers under the direction of the City 
Manager to ensure all department needs are represented.  
 
The CIP is reviewed and updated annually for capital projects and programs that support City 
goals and objectives including priorities identified in the 2020-2025 Strategic Plan of developing 
a disciplined approach to funding infrastructure maintenance and improvements. The City seeks 
to enhance its focus on the state of the infrastructure throughout the community by first 
inventorying all the assets, assessing their contributions to a safe and vibrant Pinole, assessing 
their current conditions, and creating a disciplined investment approach resulting in a strong and 
purpose driven Capital Investment Plan.  
 
The preparation and adoption of the CIP is an important part of Pinole’s financial planning and 
budgeting process. Proposed projects are reviewed by the Planning Commission for 
consistency with the General Plan. The Finance Subcomittee also reviews and analyzes all 
aspects of the CIP and makes recommendations. Project priority and selection is based on 
specific criteria, such as: 


 Consistency with community plans and policies; 
 Regulatory compliance; 
 Public and political support; 
 Sustainability; 
 Cost savings or revenue generation; 
 Project demand, determined by inventory of existing land, equipment, and facility 


conditions; 
 Economic, environmental, aesthetic or social impacts; and 
 Public health, safety or other legal concerns. 


The process for developing the CIP involves the following steps: 


 


 


 


Identify projects 
for CIP budget


Prioritize projects 
and identify 


funding


Prepare budget 
for CIP


CIP Review by 
Finance 


Subcommittee 
and Planning 
Commission 


City Council 
adoption


Implementation of 
approved projects 


in CIP


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 1 of 67223 of 829







 
 


Next Steps in City Capital Planning 
 
The City will complete condition assessment of all the City’s capital assets and identify the 
funding levels required to maintain these assets. The City will continue to integrate capital 
planning information into the Long-Term Financial Plan, so City decision makers are aware of 
the City’s capital needs when they consider allocation of the City’s limited financial resources 
and consider possibly pursuing additional sources of City revenue.  
 


Project Funding  


A variety of funding sources support projects listed in the CIP. The first year’s program in the 
CIP is adopted by the City Council as the Capital Budget, as a counterpart to the annual 
Operating Budget. The fiscal resources are appropriated only in the first year, the subsequent 
four years of the CIP are important for long term planning and subject to further review and 
modification.  


The CIP is funded primarily with funds restricted for specific purposes. The next page descibes 
various funding sources and their restrictions. Some projects are entirely or partially funded by 
grants and reimbursements from state and federal government and other agencies.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 2 of 67224 of 829







 
 


Funding Sources 


Fund # Fund Name 
(restriction) 


Description 


100 General Fund 
(unrestricted) 


The General Fund is the main operating fund for the City. 
It accounts for sources and uses of resources that 
(primarily) are discretionary to the City Council in the 
provision of activities, programs and services deemed 
necessary and desirable by the community. 


106 
Measure S 2014 
(unrestricted) 


Accounts for 2014 voter-approved half-cent Local Use Tax 
which levies 0.5% each on all merchandise. Although these 
are unrestricted General Fund revenues, the 2014 Use 
Taxes have been allocated by the City Council to fund 
Infrastructure Projects as their highest funding priority.  


200 
Gas Tax - RMRA 
(roads and right-of-
way) 


Accounts for the Highway Users Tax (HUTA) State imposed 
excise taxes on gasoline and diesel fuel sales within the 
City limits. Gas Tax funds are restricted for use in the 
construction, improvement and maintenance of public 
streets. The taxes are allocated to Pinole through the Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 
established by the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017.  


214 Solid Waste 


Accounts for special revenue received from Republic 
Services from a surcharge assessed on customer rates for 
solid waste services. These funds are set aside for future 
solid waste capital and for a rate stabilization fund.   


215 
Measure J 
(roads only) 


Accounts for special sales tax revenues collected by Contra 
Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) and reapportioned 
to cities for local street projects.  This fund also accounts 
for return to source funds and grant funds.  


276 
Growth Impact Fees 
(nexus identified 
needs) 


Accounts for development fees collected to mitigate the 
impact of new development. Provides funds for nexus 
identified needs only. 


325 
City Street 
Improvements  
(roads only) 


Accounts for funds set aside by the City of Pinole to fund 
street improvement projects. The Measure S 2014 funding 
plan allocates $250k annually to this fund.  


327 
Park Grants 
(parks only) 


Accounts for grants and reimbursements from the state and 
federal government and other agencies related to parks. 


377 
Arterial Street 
Rehabilitation  
(roads only) 


Accounts for funds set aside by the City of Pinole to fund 
arterial street rehabilitation projects. The Measure S 2014 
funding plan allocates $250k annually to this fund. 


500 
Sewer Enterprise 
(sewer only) 


Accounts for fees charged to residents and businesses for 
sewer utilities.  Fees are used to operate the Pinole-
Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant which services the 
Pinole and Hercules areas.


 
 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 3 of 67225 of 829







Grants  


Certain projects are eligible to receive grant funds from state, federal, or other agencies. Road 
projects listed in the CIP receive grant funding from a variety of sources such as: 


 California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)
o Highway Bridge Program (HBP) – funds to improve bridge structural safety.


 Project: RO1710


o Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) – funds projects that significantly
reduce fatalities and injuries on all public roads.


 Project: IN2104


 West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC)
o Subregional Transportation Mitigation Program (STMP) – funds projects that provide


congestion relief and mitigate traffic impacts on regional routes through capacity
improvements on those routes, improved transit services for subregional and
regional travel, and improved facilities that allow West County residents to more
efficiently access regional routes and transit service.


 Projects: RO2105, RO1902, and RO1710


 Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)
o One Bay Area Grant 2 (OBAG2) – policy framework for MTC’s distribution of


federal State Transportation Program and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality
Improvement Program funds. The OBAG2 program provides funding for local
street and road maintenance, streetscape enhancements, bicycle and pedestrian
improvements, Safe Route to School projects, Priority Conservation Areas, and
Transportation planning.
 Project: RO1714


o Transportation Developlment Act (TDA) Article 3 – funds construction and/or
engineering of bicycle or pedestrian capital or quick build projects, maintenance
of Class I or Class IV separated bikeways, bicycle and/or pedestrian safety
education projects, development of a comprehensive bicycle or pedestrian
facilities plans, and restriping Class II bicycle lanes and buffered bicycle lanes.


 Project: RO1714


The receipt of certain grants and reimbursements typically follow the award of contracts; 
therefore, other City funding is programmed for front-end financing of the total estimated project 
costs.  


City of Pinole
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 4 of 67226 of 829







Overview of Recommended Capital Budget 


The FY 2022/23 – 2026/27 CIP contains 36 planned public improvement projects, which 
includes 10 new projects. In addition, there are 9 infrastructure assessments programmed for 
FY 2022/23 – 2026/27. The CIP also contains information for 24 unfunded and unprogrammed 
projects. A funded project is one that has identified specific funding, including on-going existing 
resources to fully implement the project. A partially funded project has funding to accomplish 
various phases of the project but lacks sufficient funding to complete the project. An unfunded 
project is one that has been identified in the CIP as a need but no funding secured to implement 
the project. Should funding become available through grant or other sources, the unfunded list 
can be reviewed to determine if it is suitable to seek such funding.  


CIP projects fall into the following categories: Facilities, Parks, Sanitary Sewer, Stormwater, 
Streets & Roads, and Infrastructure Assessments. The nomenclature for the project number is 
derived as follows:  


Project numbers begin with the abbreviation of the project 
category, followed by the year the project was first 
programmed, and then a unique sequence number. For 
example, FA2001 refers to a facilities project which was first 
programmed in 2020 with a unique sequence number of 01. 
Unfunded projects begin with UF and are followed by a unique 
sequence number. 


In FY2022/23, there are 23 public improvement projects and 8 
infrastructure assessments programmed. Below is a summary 
of the various funding sources based on project category.  


FY 2022/23 PROJECT CATEGORIES
FY 2022/23


TOTALS 
BY FUND 


Funding 
Sources 


Fund Facilities 


FA 


Parks 


PA 


Sanitary 
Sewer 


SS


Storm-
water  


SW


Streets & 
Roads 


RO 


Infrastructure 
Assessments 


IA
General Fund  100 $170,000 $165,000 $335,000
Measure S 
2014 


106 $834,931 $112,440 $418,460 $149,328 $210,000 $1,725,159 


Gas Tax 200 $528,910 $528,910
Solid Waste 214 $425,000 $425,000
Measure J 215 $350,000 $350,000
Growth Impact 
Fees 


276 $58,000 $58,000 


City Street 
Improvements 


325 $1,685,563 $20,650 $1,706,213 


Park Grants 327 $189,758 $189,758
Arterial Street 
Rehabiliation 


377 $758,624 $758,624 


Sewer 
Enterprise 


500 $2,300,00 $10,382 $89,853 $2,400,235 


FY 2022/23 TOTALS 
BY PROJECT 
CATEGORY 


$834,931 $727,198 $2,300,000 $476,460 $3,652,807 $3,652,807 $8,476,899 


Category Abbreviation
Facilities FA
Parks PA
Sewer SS
Stormwater SW
Streets & 
Roads


RO 


Infrastructure 
Assessments 


IA 


Unfunded UF


City of Pinole
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 5 of 67227 of 829







 


 
 


 


CITY OF PINOLE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 


FUNDING SUMMARY 
           


 
 


SOURCES BY FUND FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 5-Year Total 


100 – General Fund $      435,000 $      310,000 $          745,000 


106 – Measure S 2014 $   1,625,159 $   1,990,860 $      890,000  $      100,000 $        4,606,019 


200 – Gas Tax $      528,910 $      381,082  $           909,992 


200 – Solid Waste $      425,000 $           425,000 


215 – Measure J $      350,000 $           350,000 


276 – Growth Impact Fees $        58,000 $        30,000 $      520,000  $           608,000 


325 – City Street Improvements $   1,706,213 $      890,000 $      727,321  $      890,000 $        4,213,534 


327 – Park Grants $      189,758 $           189,758 


377 – Arterial Streets Rehabilitation $      758,624 $        32,250 $           790,874 


500 – Sewer Enterprise Fund $   2,400,235 $   2,000,000 $      906,597  $      800,000 $   3,800,000 $        9,906,832 


Sources Total  $   8,476,899  $   5,253,110  $   3,425,000   $   1,790,000  $   3,800,000  $      22,745,009 


Unfunded Total  $ 16,293,235  $   9,231,700   $   8,439,200  $      970,000  $      34,934,135 


Total Sources Required  $   8,476,899  $ 21,546,345  $ 12,656,700   $ 10,229,200  $   4,770,000  $      57,679,144 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 6 of 67228 of 829







SOURCES BY FUND FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 5-Year Total


100 - General Fund 435,000$       310,000$       745,000$            


106 - Measure S 2014 1,625,159$    1,990,860$    890,000$       100,000$       4,606,019$         


200 - Gas Tax 528,910$       381,082$       909,992$            


214 - Solid Waste 425,000$       425,000$            


215 - Measure J 350,000$       350,000$            


276 - Growth Impact Fees 58,000$         30,000$         520,000$       608,000$            


325 - City Street Improvements 1,706,213$    890,000$       727,321$       890,000$       4,213,534$         


327 - Park Grants 189,758$       189,758$            


377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation 758,624$       32,250$         790,874$            


500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 2,400,235$    2,000,000$    906,597$       800,000$       3,800,000$    9,906,832$         


Sources Total 8,476,899$    5,253,110$    3,425,000$    1,790,000$    3,800,000$    22,745,009$       
Unfunded Total 16,293,235$  9,231,700$    8,439,200$    970,000$       34,934,135$       


Total Sources Required 8,476,899$    21,546,345$  12,656,700$  10,229,200$  4,770,000$    57,679,144$       


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


FA2302 Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements $80,000
FA2301 Public Safety Building Modernization $100,000 $100,000 $100,000
FA2202 Senior Center Modernization $60,000 $100,000 $100,000 106-343-47201 $60,000  Measure S 2014 
FA2201 Faria House Renovations $420,000 106-343-47201 $420,000  Measure S 2014 
FA2002 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations $50,000 106-343-47201 $50,000  Measure S 2014 
FA1902 Energy Upgrades $120,811 106-343-47201 $120,811  Measure S 2014 
FA1901 Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot                         $184,120 $1,088,860 106-343-47201 $184,120  Measure S 2014 
FA1703 City Hall Modernization                                               $125,000 $125,000
FA1702 Citywide Roof repairs and replacement $272,000 $140,000


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


106-343-47201 $47,440 Measure S 2014
327-345-47203 $189,758 Park Grants


PA2202 Skatepark Rehabilitation $150,000
PA2201 Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd. $65,000 106-343-47201 $65,000  Measure S 2014 
PA2101 Installation of high-capacity trash bins $425,000 214-345-47203 $425,000  Solid Waste Fund 
PA1901 Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation $200,000


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


SS2203 Effulent Outfall* $150,000 $3,000,000 500-641-47201 $150,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS2202 Replacement of Diesel Tank* $150,000 500-641-47201 $150,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation $1,500,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 $800,000 500-642-47201 $1,500,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS2101 Secondary Clarifier - Center Column Rehabilitation* $350,000 500-641-47201 $350,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacements* $50,000 500-641-47201 $50,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel* $100,000 500-641-47201 $100,000 Sewer Enterprise
SS1702 Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation $1,200,000


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


SW2001 Roble Road Drainage Improvements $30,000 $320,000
SW2002 Adobe Road Repair and Drainage Improvements $30,000 $200,000


106-344-47206 $418,460  Measure S 2014 
276-344-47206 $58,000  Growth Impact Fees 


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


RO2501 Residential Slurry Seal $890,000
RO2401 Cape Seal $560,000
RO2301 Residential Slurry Seal $890,000


200-342-47205 $428,910  Gas Tax - RMRA 
377-342-47205 $758,624  Arterial Rehabilitation 


RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation $10,382 $655,000 500-641-47201 $10,382  Sewer Enterprise 
RO2105 Appian Way Complete Streets $100,000 $970,000 325-342-47205 $100,000  WCCTAC - STMP Fees  
RO2107 Brandt St. Improvements $170,000 100-342-47205 $170,000  General Fund 
RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. near R X $61,556 $800,000 325-342-47205 $61,556  WCCTAC - STMP Fees  
RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) $200,000


325-342-47205 $1,223,746  WCCTAC - STMP Fees  
325-342-47205 $80,000  CCTA Measure J 
325-342-47205 $81,717  Caltrans - HBP 


RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements $100,000 200-342-47205 $100,000  Gas Tax - RMRA 
325-342-47205 $9,144  City Street Improvements 
215-342-47205 $350,000  MTC/OBAG2 
325-342-47205 $129,400  MTC/TDA Article 3 
106-344-47206 $149,328  Measure S 2014 


PRJ # USES BY PROJECT FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 Account # FY 2022-23 
Funds Funding Source


IN2201 Energy Audit $50,000 106-344-47206 $50,000  Measure S 2014 
IN2101 Emergency Power for Critical Facilities $30,000 $170,000 100-343-47201 $30,000  General Fund 
IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility $60,000 106-118-47201 $60,000  Measure S 2014 
IN2103 Recycled Water Feasibility $60,000 $140,000 100-341-42101 $60,000  General Fund 
IN2104 Local Road Safety Plan $20,650 325-342-47205 $20,650  Caltrans - HSIP 
IN2106 Active Transportation Plan $75,000 100-341-42101 $75,000  General Fund 
IN2001 Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan $89,853 500-642-47201 $89,853  Sewer Enterprise 
IN1703 Storm Drainage Master Plan $75,000 $75,000
IN1704 Park Master Plan $100,000 106-344-47206 $100,000  Measure S 2014 


Uses by Project Total $8,476,899 $21,546,345 $12,656,700 $10,229,200 $4,770,000


LEGEND:
• Project numbers: FA = Facilities; PA = Parks; SS = Sanitary Sewer; SW = Storm Water; RO = Streets & Roads; IN = Infrastructure Assessments
* Project cost to be split 50% with the City of Hercules


RO2101 Arterial Rehabilitation $1,187,534 $32,250


$237,198PA2203 Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements


RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta Rd. 
formerly known as HAWK at Appian Way and Marlesta


$637,872


$8,439,200RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge over BNSF Railroad $1,385,463 $16,293,235 $8,431,700


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS


CITY OF PINOLE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27


 FUNDING SUMMARY


FACILITIES


PARKS


SANITARY SEWER


STORMWATER


SW1901 Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements $476,460


STREETS & ROADS


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 7 of 67229 of 829







 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION SHEETS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 8 of 67230 of 829







   


 


FA2302 - Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2023 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: To provide a secure parking area for Police vehicles in the Plum St. parking lot. The parking lot will remain open for the public. A 
portion of the parking lot, approximately 25 spaces will be secured with a chain-link fence with security gates for Police vehicles. The layout of the 
parking lot is in the preliminary design phase.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      80,000 


Subtotal  $      80,000 


80,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 9 of 67231 of 829







   


 


FA2301 - Public Safety Building Modernization 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2023 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2026 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: To extend the useful life of the Public Safety building, there are several items that require attention including but not limited to              
replacement of the HVAC system, carpet, flooring, water heaters, light fixtures, fans, etc. In addition, the building requires painting (interior and 
exterior), and the locker rooms also require renovation.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     100,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


300,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 10 of 67232 of 829







   


 


FA2202 - Senior Center Modernization 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: The project includes a facilities condition assessment and design and construction of improvements to modernize the existing              
Senior Center building located at 2525 Charles Avenue. Work will include upgrades to energy system, roof replacement, and interior renovations.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      60,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $      60,000  $     100,000  $     100,000 


260,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 11 of 67233 of 829







   


 


FA2201 - Faria House Renovations 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: The building commonly referred to as the “Faria House” is a two-story residence constructed in about 1890 and originally located at 
what is now 1301 Pinole Valley Road. In 2005, the Faria House was relocated to 2100 San Pablo Avenue. On June 7, 2022, City Council directed 
staff pursue hazard remediation and renovations to create a lower-level office, and upper-level warm shell. The first step is the site remediation to 
removal all hazardous materials (i.e., asbestos and/or lead based paint) from the first and second floors. This will involve removal of all interior 
baseboard, door, window trim, lath and plaster (from the ceilings and walls). This will also include removal of all lighting and plumbing fixtures, 
kitchen “built-in-place” cabinets. Once the site remediation is complete, the lower level of the structure will be ready for tenant improvement for an 
office use. The upper level will be a warm shell, which means that the upper level will be fully insulated, with walls open and ceiling covered with 
wallboard, but no other improvements beyond the hazard mitigation work. The upper level would be separated from the lower level with secured 
“temporary” framing and wallboard partition wall built at the top of the stairs. The lower level will have rough electrical, plumbing, and mechanical 
installation for an office use. All lower-level rooms would have new wall and ceiling insulation installed and covered with new drywall. The kitchen 
would remain in the same location, the dining room, which would become the conference room/meeting room would include low-voltage, data, 
communications for teleconferencing, meetings, the existing bathroom would become a single All Gender restroom, renovated to meet ADA com-
pliance, the existing rooms would become office suites with new electrical sub-panel, rough electrical, rough plumbing and rough mechanical         
installed. Lower-level rooms will have renewed (or new) flooring, baseboard, and doors etc. 


Supplemental Information:  


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     420,000 


Subtotal  $     420,000 


420,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 12 of 67234 of 829







   


 


FA2002 - Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:  December 30, 2022 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: This project will install a level II dual port electric vehicle charging station at the parking lot serving the Public Safety  Building.  


Supplemental Information: City staff continue to assess other public locations throughout Pinole for opportunities to incorporate EV charging 
infrastructure. An energy audit (Project IN2201) of City owned facilities will inform future installations of electric vehicle charging stations.  


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         


 


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 106  $        6,235 


Construction 106  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $        6,235  $      50,000 


56,235$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 13 of 67235 of 829







   


 


FA1902 - Energy Upgrades 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The heating, ventilation, and cooling (HVAC) systems at City Hall and Senior Center have reached the end of their useful life and 
need to be replaced. A portion of the roof at the Senior Center will also need to be replaced.  


Supplemental Information: In October 2020, City staff began working with Marin Clean Energy’s (MCE’s) Energy Efficiency program to        
explore opportunities for energy conservation and generation at City owned facilities by replacing the HVAC systems and upgrading streetlights. It 
was determined that the MCE program could not incentivize HVAC replacement project or the upgrade of the streetlights. This project was        
formerly known as FA1706 and FA1801. In April 2021, the AC unit at City Hall broke down and was replaced.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget:  


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      99,189  $     120,811 


Subtotal  $      99,189  $     120,811 


220,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 14 of 67236 of 829







   


 


FA1901 - Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:     


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Fowler Lot Re-Use Committee 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: On April 16, 1990 City Council adopted Resolution 2380 authorizing the purchase of 2548 Charles Street. At the time of purchase, 
City Council determined that construction of a Senior Center was necessary, and that this property was needed to provide sufficient parking for the 
Center. The parcel is surrounded by municipal parking lots which serve the Senior Center and Old Town Pinole. On February 2, 2021 City Council 
adopted Resolution 2021-07 and awarded a contract to a consultant for the preliminary engineering and design for the parking lot. The parking lot 
will be designed to be a multi-benefit project that includes pavement structural section, striping, lighting, bicycle parking, electric vehicle charging 
stations, stormwater capture and retention, and drought tolerant landscaping. The final design will offer the maximum number of parking spaces 
while allowing access for both vehicles and pedestrians and include aesthetic design components. On June 7, 2022, City Council directed staff to 
incorporate the installation of a solar canopy at the site.  


Supplemental Information: The Fowler House tenants remained in the properly till 2010 and many discussions took place to determine the 
best use of the property. It was determined that the house had asbestos and lead paint. On July 17, 2018, City Council adopted Resolution 2018-
67 to create the Fowler Lot Re-use Committee to evaluate the reuse and redevelopment of the property. The Committee evaluated uses for the lot 
and determined the best use of the property is a parking lot. On October 16, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2018-93 to approve a 
contract with a construction company to abate and demolish the Fowler house.  The property demolition was completed on March 11, 2019. On 
July 21, 2020, City Council adopted Resolution 2020–68 to accept the final recommendation of the Committee.                                                                 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 106  $      42,535  $     184,120 


Construction 106  $  1,088,860 


Subtotal  $      42,535  $     184,120  $  1,088,860 


Total Cost Estimate: $1,315,515


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 15 of 67237 of 829







   


 


FA1703 - City Hall Modernization (formerly known as Paint City Hall) 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022  


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  To extend the useful life of the City hall building, there are several items that require attention including but not limited to carpet, 
flooring, window coverings, light fixtures, etc. The interior and exterior surfaces of the building require repainting as the paint system has reached 
the end of its useful life. Exterior painting is necessary to maintain external protection from the environment. Fading, chipping paint, along with    
water and mildew damage necessitates the painting project. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     125,000  $     125,000 


Subtotal  $     125,000  $     125,000 


250,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 16 of 67238 of 829







   


 


FA1702 - Citywide Roof repairs and replacement 


FACILITIES 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022  


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  In 2015, comprehensive visual roof inspections were completed by a contractor on various City owned facilities. The purpose of 
the inspection was to identify the extent, if any, of moisture intrusion into the existing roof assemblies, document observed roof system              
deficiencies, determine the overall condition of the existing roof systems and to estimate the service life of the in-place roof assemblies. The roof 
inspection identified several roofs which need to be repaired or replaced. The roofs at City hall and the Public Safety building need to be replaced. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     272,000  $     140,000 


Subtotal  $     272,000  $     140,000 


412,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 17 of 67239 of 829







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: Replacement of panel rubberized surfaces at Fernandez Park and Pinole Valley Park. Fernandez Park involves replacement of 
rubberized surface improvements at tot lot and replacement of existing engineered mulch with rubberized surface at older age play equipment. 
The rubberized surfaces around the play equipment will also be replaced at Pinole Valley Park. These improvements are grant funded through the 
State of California Department of Parks and Recreation Per Capita funds.  


Supplemental Information:                                                                                                                                                                                             


 


 


 


                                           


                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                     


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


PA2203 - Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


327  $     189,758 


106  $        7,640  $      47,440 


Subtotal  $        7,640  $     237,198 


244,838$ 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 18 of 67240 of 829







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2024 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Settling of ramps 


Supplemental Information:                                                                                                                                                                                             


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                     


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


PA2202 - Skatepark Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     150,000 


Subtotal  $     150,000 


150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 19 of 67241 of 829







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Installation of two ADA compliant benches and waste receptacles within two pocket parks at a suitable location on Galbreth Ave.  


Supplemental Information: To develop the pocket parks, a lot line adjustment may be required.   


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                     


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


PA2201 - Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd. 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $      65,000 


Subtotal  $      65,000 


65,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 20 of 67242 of 829







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Beautification Ad Hoc Committee 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Installation of high capacity, solar powered compacting trash bins at City parks.  To get the best value and uniformity at City parks, 
a RFP will be released to solicit proposals from qualified vendors to provide these bins. Exact costs will not be known until the bidding  is complete 
however staff estimates that 40 bins will be procured for the budgeted project cost.  


Supplemental Information: In 2019, the City Council established a Beautification Ad Hoc Committee to analyze options for, and to make              
recommendations to the Council regarding clean-up and beautification projects in Pinole. Among other projects, the Committee recommended the 
installation of high capacity, solar powered compacting trash bins at City parks.  


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                    


PA2101 - Installation of high capacity trash bins 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 214  $     425,000 


Subtotal  $     425,000 


425,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 21 of 67243 of 829







   


 


PARKS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  There are two soccer fields at Pinole Valley Park which are utilized on an annual basis, the Wright Avenue Soccer Field at the 
southerly end, and Savage Avenue Soccer Field at the northern end. Both fields are heavily used by soccer leagues and the general public. The 
Savage Avenue Soccer Field requires substantial rehabilitation which includes: upgrading the irrigation system and ongoing turf maintenance. Turf 
maintenance includes mowing, fertilizing, aeration, overseeding, and topdressing.   


Supplemental Information: This project has been delayed pending the development of a Park Master Plan (CIP Project# PA1704). 


 


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


Budget: 


PA1901 - Pinole  Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 106  $     200,000 


Subtotal  $     200,000 


200,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 22 of 67244 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2027 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Regulatory Requirement  


Multi-year Project:    Yes  


Description:  Effluent pumping capacity of the treatment plant is limited by the capacity of the pipe size at the effluent outfall in Rodeo.              
Increasing the pipe size at the Effluent Outfall Eductor Station will increase the wet weather effluent pumping capacity and increase the lifespan of 
the effluent pipe by reducing the pressure in the line during storm events. Project requires coordination with Rodeo.  


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2203 - Effluent Outfall 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $        150,000  $  3,000,000 


Subtotal  $        150,000  $  3,000,000 


3,150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 23 of 67245 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  In-kind replacement of a 4,000 gallon diesel storage tank used to supply fuel to standby generators and City vehicles. The existing 
tank is compromised. 


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2202 - Replacement of Diesel Tank 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     150,000 


Subtotal  $     150,000 


150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 24 of 67246 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2027 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Master Plan  


Multi-year Project:    Yes  


Description:  Various improvements to the Sanitary Sewer collection system, as identified in the Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2201 - Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     1,500,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000 


Subtotal  $     1,500,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000  $     800,000 


4,700,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 25 of 67247 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The Secondary Clarifier #5 has reached the end of its useful life. The project will involve removal and replacement of catwalk, 
drive mechanism, center column, and rake arm.   


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


 


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2101 - Secondary Clarifier—Center Column Rehabilitation  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     350,000 


Subtotal  $     350,000 


350,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 26 of 67248 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  There are four air relief valves at various locations on the WPCP Effluent Pipeline between the WPCP and the Rodeo treated     
water discharge point. This project includes removal and replacement of the pipe saddle, short pipe section, isolation valve, and air relief valve. 
The four locations are: 1) across from the WPCP at 11 Tennent Ave., near the entrance of the SF Bay Trail, 2) On the SF Bay Trail near the cor-
ner of Santa Fe and Railroad Ave., 3) At the intersection of Mariposa St. and Railroad Ave. (Rodeo), 4) Outside the gate of Rodeo Sanitary District 
at 800 San Pablo Ave. (Rodeo).  


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.  


                                             


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2102 - Air Release Valve Replacements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $      50,000 


50,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 27 of 67249 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Regulatory Requirement 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The California Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) is responsible for accrediting environmental testing labs 
including the Pinole - Hercules WPCP. The 2019 ELAP inspection results indicated the lab apparatus, countertops, and the fume hood are past 
their useful life and recommended replacement.  


Supplemental Information: The City of Hercules will be reimburse the Sewer Enterprise fund for 50% of the total project cost.   
                                       


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


SS2002 - Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Construction 500  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000 


100,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 28 of 67250 of 829







   


 


SANITARY SEWER 


Initial Project Start:    October 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   August 31, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     End of lifecycle  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  The City owns and operates two lift stations to convey flow from low lying areas to high elevations where the flow continues by 
gravity to the wastewater treatment plant. Both pump stations have reached the end of their useful life and need to be rehabilitated.  


Supplemental Information: The two pump stations are located on San Pablo Ave. and Hazel St. In FY 2019/20, this project was renamed to 
include both pump stations. Previously, this project was titled, “Hazel Street Sewer Pump Rehabilitation.” 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


SS1702 - Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 500  $      22,500 


Engineering 500  $     150,000 


Construction 500  $     884,000 


Contingency 500  $     143,500 


Subtotal  $  1,200,000 


 $1,200,000 Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 29 of 67251 of 829







   


 


STORMWATER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The existing system appears to have capacity issues at Roble Ave. and Encina Ave. that warrant review and upgrade. This project 
will assess the collection system for capacity and hydraulic profile and upgrade the system as necessary.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                              


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


SW2001 - Roble Road Storm Drainage Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 276  $      30,000 


Construction 276  $     280,000 


Contingency 276  $      40,000 


Subtotal  $      30,000  $     320,000 


350,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 30 of 67252 of 829







   


 


STORMWATER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Adobe Road experienced a failure due to drainage impacts. Installation of a culvert will be required to control the drainage in the 
area. The area will then be regraded and the road surface will be restored. This road serves only as a service access route.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


  


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


           


 


SW2002 - Adobe Road Storm Drainage Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 106  $      30,000 


Construction 106  $     175,000 


Contingency 106  $      25,000 


Subtotal  $      30,000  $     200,000 


230,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 31 of 67253 of 829







   


 


STORMWATER 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Development Driven 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The existing stormwater collection is an open trench system and needs to be converted to an underground conveyance system to 
facilitate construction of a through road. This project will include connecting the existing storm drain network within Hazel Street between 1087  
Hazel St (eastern limits) and 1081 Hazel St. (western limits). In January 2020, the City contacted with Schaff and Wheeler to prepare the              
preliminary design  which includes plan and profile of the pipe and technical specifications.  


Supplemental Information: This conversion also aids in compliance with the MSP4 by reducing the potential of contaminants including litter 
from entering the stormwater system.                                                                 


 


 


 


                                 
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


           


SW1901 - Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 106  $      54,910 


106  $     356,460 


276  $      58,000 


Contingency 106  $      62,000 


Subtotal  $      54,910  $     476,460 


 $   531,370 Total Cost Estimate:


Construction


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 32 of 67254 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2025 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2026 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Based on the most current P-TAP report various segments will be recommended for slurry seal treatment. A slurry seal functions 
as a topcoat to existing asphalt pavement to preserve and protect the pavement. It is best suited for pavements with mild to moderate damage, 
such as narrow cracks, but not for severe damage such as potholes.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2501 - Residential Slurry Seal  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 325  $      10,000 


Construction 325  $     800,000 


Contingency 325  $      80,000 


Subtotal  $     890,000 


890,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 33 of 67255 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2024 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Based on the most current P-TAP report, various pavement segments will benefit from a cape seal. A cape seal is applied when a 
slurry seal or  micro-surfacing will not adequately address the pavement deterioration. Cape seals are a multi-layered treatment pavement               
preservation treatment which can extend the life of a pavement by 6-8 years. 


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2401 - Cape Seal 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 325  $      10,000 


Construction 325  $     500,000 


Contingency 325  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $     560,000 


560,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 34 of 67256 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2023 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Based on the most current P-TAP report various segments will be recommended for slurry seal treatment. A slurry seal functions 
as a topcoat to   existing asphalt pavement to preserve and protect the pavement. It is best suited for pavements with mild to moderate damage, 
such as narrow cracks, but not for severe damage such as potholes.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                          


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2301 - Residential Slurry Seal  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 325  $      10,000 


Construction 325  $     800,000 


Contingency 325  $      80,000 


Subtotal  $     890,000 


890,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 35 of 67257 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Based on the 2019  P-TAP report, various segments were recommended for treatment by StreetSaver®. The recommendations 
will be further validated through a comparative pavement analysis to explore additional treatment options which are not discussed in the P-TAP 
report. This will allow the City to optimize the available funding.  In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the preliminary            
engineering for this project.   


 


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2101 - Arterial Rehabilitation 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 377  $      18,606  $      39,874 


200  $     428,910 


377  $     625,000  $     215,000 


Contingency 377  $      93,750  $      32,250 


Subtotal  $      18,606  $  1,187,534  $     247,250 


Construction


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 36 of 67258 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Pavement Management Program 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The construction impacts from the WPCP upgrade project resulted in pavement deterioration. This project will rehabilitate Tennent 
Ave. from San Pablo Ave. to WPCP. In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the preliminary engineering for this project.   


Supplemental Information: In preparation of this project, the City retained a consultant to perform internal CCTV on this section of roadway. 
The inspection was completed in  early 2021. Coordinating collection system improvements with street resurfacing projects ensures that sewer                    
improvements are made prior to the resurfacing so that manholes and valve covers may be properly realigned, and repairs and replacements are 
made in a cost-effective manner. This also avoids cutting and patching recently paved streets. The City of Hercules will reimburse $86,430 for this 
project.  


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


RO2102 - Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 500  $      27,423  $      10,382 


200  $     381,082 


500  $      74,597 


325  $     167,321 


Contingency 500  $      32,000 


Subtotal  $      27,423  $      10,382  $     655,000 


 $   692,805 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 37 of 67259 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Completion of preliminary engineering and design to provide continuous sidewalks and bike lanes along Appian Way beginning 
from unincorporated El Sobrante to about 1500 lineal feet north of the City limit within Pinole. In December 2021, City Council approved a              
Cooperative Funding Agreement with WCCTAC to receive STMP funds to complete preliminary design for this project.  


Supplemental Information: This project will connect with the Contra Costa County’s project to provide continuous sidewalks and bike lanes 
along Appian Way from San Pablo Dam Rd. in unincorporated El  Sobrante.  This project will involve coordination with Contra Costa County. The 
construction phase of this project is unfunded and appears in the Unfunded and Unprogrammed list. 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


RO2105 - Appian Way Complete Streets  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


325  $     100,000 


UF  $     970,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000  $     970,000 


 $1,070,000 Total Cost Estimate:


Engineering


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 38 of 67260 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Provide improvements on Brandt St. including application of pavement treatments based on type and severity of distresses on  
existing pavement.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


RO2107 - Brandt St. Improvements  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 100  $      50,000 


Construction 100  $     120,000 


Subtotal  $     170,000 


170,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 39 of 67261 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  In 2018, the East Bay Regional Park District completed a trail link to connect Pinole Shores Regional Shoreline to Bayfront Park 
trail. There remains one very small gap on Tennent Ave. from Bayfront Park to Railroad Ave. Improvements to Tennent Ave. at the Railroad 
Crossing will facilitate safe movement of bicycles and pedestrians. Since project inception, the scope of work has evolved to include                              
improvements that would maximize parking on Railroad Avenue for park users. In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the 
preliminary engineering for this project.   


Supplemental Information: WCCTAC held its STMP Call for Projects in 2018 which committed $100k in funding for preliminary engineering 
from the 2006 STMP program for this project. This project is eligible to respond to future STMP Call for Projects to compete for funding to advance 
the project through construction.  


                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


RO1902 - Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. near R x R 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 325  $      37,324  $      61,556 


325  $      19,700 


UF  $     680,000 


Contingency UF  $     100,300 


Subtotal  $      37,324  $      61,556  $     800,000 


898,880$ 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 40 of 67262 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  July 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Development Driven 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  A developer has proposed to develop on a vacant lot identified as APN 402-013-060 at the end of Hazel Street. The project pro-
poses the subdivision of the lot into four new parcels and development of single family residences on each new parcel, and execution of a devel-
opment agreement to make public improvements, including the extension of Hazel Street for roadway connection to Sunnyview Drive - West end 
of Hazel St. 


Supplemental Information: Completion of Project SW1901 prior to this project.  


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Budget: 


 


 


RO1802 - Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


276  $      50,000 


Developer  $     150,000 


Subtotal  $     200,000 


 $   200,000 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 41 of 67263 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2017 


Initial Project Completion:   Beyond 5 year term 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2026 


Project Origin:     End of life cycle 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The San Pablo Avenue bridge over the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad is an integral part of the area’s transportation                
network. The age and condition assessment of the bridge supports replacement. The City was approved for initial funding from the Caltrans          
Highway Bridge Program (HBP). In February 2020, the City awarded a contract to a consultant for preliminary engineering (PE) to advance the 
project. The PE will be completed in two phases due to funding limitations. Completion of preliminary design is necessary to develop a final cost 
estimate for the project. Unfunded portions of this project appear in the Unfunded and Unprogrammed project list as Project UF022. 


Supplemental Information: The total budget identified to complete the PE exceeds the amount of funding Caltrans committed to the 
project of the State’s share in the current HBP.  


Budget: 


 


                    


 


                    


 


 


 


RO1710 - San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


PM 325  $     257,061  $        80,000  $      42,439 


325  $     537,176  $   1,225,463  $     (42,439)  $       (7,500)


STMP  $     (91,089)  $  (1,223,746)  $    (285,165)


HBP  $    (708,856)  $       (81,717)


UF


STMP


UF  $16,578,400  $  8,439,200  $  8,439,200 


Subtotal  $       (5,709)  $               -    $16,293,235  $  8,431,700  $  8,439,200 


Planning & 
Design


Construction


Total Cost Estimate: $33,158,426


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 42 of 67264 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  As part of the high school construction project WCCUSD provided road improvements along the school frontage. Improvements to 
Pinole Valley Road - from Shea Dr. to Helena Ct. will extend the useful life of the pavement. The existing pavement score is high in this area, so a 
slurry seal may be the recommended treatment. 


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                        
Budget: 


 


 


 


RO1708 - Pinole Valley Road Improvements 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Engineering 200  $        5,000 


Construction 200  $      87,000 


Contingency 200  $        8,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000 


 $   100,000 Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 43 of 67265 of 829







   


 


ROADS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2024 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2025 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2020 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     TAPS 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  The key elements affecting the safety of pedestrians and cyclists at the Appian Way and Marlesta Way intersection is speed and 
reduced visibility of approaching traffic due to the topography of the  project area. Safety improvements are required to improve crossing                        
conditions for pedestrians and bicyclists. In February 2021, the City selected a Consultant to complete the preliminary engineering for this project.   


Supplemental Information: The City secured grant funds to install a traffic signal at this intersection instead of a HAWK. 


 


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           
Budget: 


 


                    


 


                    


                    


RO1714 - Safety Improvements at Appian Way and Marlesta Rd. (formerly known as HAWK at Appian Way and Marlesta Rd.) 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 325  $      25,193  $        9,144 


OBAG2  $     350,000 


TDA  $     129,400 


106  $      67,278 


Contingency 106  $      82,050 


Subtotal  $      25,193  $     637,872 


 $   663,065 


Construction


Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 44 of 67266 of 829







   


 


IN2201 - Energy Audit 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:   


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $      50,000 


Subtotal  $      50,000 


50,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 45 of 67267 of 829







   


 


IN2101 - Emergency Power for Critical Facilities 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description: During severe natural hazard events, it is highly likely that utility power will not be available for an extended period of time. Critical 
facilities will need reliable sources of sustained electrical power to continue operations. This project will: 1) identify critical facilities in need of              
back-up power in coordination with an Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) , 2) assess power loads in each critical facility that requires back-up 
power, 3) determine the costs and technology options including solar battery storage, and 4) make any additional recommendations to Council 
before advancing to construction.  


Supplemental Information: The Public Safety Building, Fire Station 74, and the Water Pollution Control Plant have stand by generators.  


 


 


 


 


 


                             
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 100  $      30,000 


Construction 100  $     170,000 


Subtotal  $      30,000  $     170,000 


200,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 46 of 67268 of 829







   


 


IN2102 - Municipal Broadband Feasibility 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2024 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022  


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Council Request  


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: A feasibility study will determine a successful deployment strategy and associated costs for implementing municipal broadband      
service in Pinole.   


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


                                  
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $      60,000 


Subtotal  $      60,000 


60,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 47 of 67269 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2022 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2024 


Project Origin:     Council Request 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  A feasibility study will allow the City to plan and phase the construction of future recycled water distribution system infrastructure. 
The study will identify potential recycled water customers, evaluate the quantity, quality, and recycled water distribution system options to address 
the needs of potential users in surrounding areas, seek opportunities to phase the construction of a recycled water delivery system, and develop 
planning-level cost options for the phased system.  


Supplemental Information: Recycled water delays or eliminates the need to construct more potable water facilities, sustains the economy with 
increased water supply reliability, protects the environment, safeguards investments in parks and landscaping with drought proof or drought              
resistant water supply, and contributes to a green and healthy environment. In 2019, East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) prepared an              
Updated Recycled Waster Plan which considered the potential for potable reuse in EBMUD’s water service area. The development of a new              
recycled water supply for the Phillips 66 refinery in Rodeo using effluent from the Pinole-Hercules and Rodeo wastewater treatment plants was 
among the recommended non-potable reuse projects. This project is estimated to deliver up to 3.67 MGD of recycled water to the refinery for use 
in their boilers and cooling towers. The combined final disinfected effluent from both plants would be pumped at the Rodeo Pump Station to the 
refinery for treatment a new advanced recycled water treatment plan. This project was recommended by EBMUD because it would deliver a large 
amount of water to a single customer, with comparatively few pipelines required due to the short distance between the sources of wastewater and 
the Phillips 66 Refinery          


Budget: 


                    


 


 


 


 


 


IN2103 - Recycled Water Feasibility 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Design 100  $      60,000 


Construction 100  $     140,000 


Subtotal  $      60,000  $     140,000 


200,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 48 of 67270 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  December 30, 2022 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Development of a Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP) which will include an existing conditions assessment, development of traffic 
measures in areas of engineering, education, encouragement, enforcement, emerging technologies along with associated evaluation. The LRSP 
will include a prioritized list of roadway infrastructure improvements.   


Supplemental Information: In July 2020, staff submitted a grant application to Caltrans for funding to develop and implement an LRSP for the 
City of Pinole. LRSP’s allow local governments to identify, analyze, and prioritize roadway safety improvements on roads within their jurisdiction. 
In the future, an LRSP or its equivalent, will be required for agencies to apply for federal Highway Safety Improvement Plan funds. In October 
2020, the City was selected for funding and implementation of an LRSP. In December 2020, the City released a Request for Proposals to seek 
professional services from licensed engineering firms to develop a LRSP. A contract was awarded to a consultant in April 2021.  


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


IN2104 - Local Road Safety Plan  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 325  $      19,013  $      20,650 


Subtotal  $      19,013  $      20,650 


39,663$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 49 of 67271 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2021 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2022 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     TAPS 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description:  Development of an Active Transportation Plan will act as a guide for active mobility within and around Pinole. The Plan will identify 
an integrated network of walkways and bikeways that connect Pinole neighborhoods and communities to employment, education, commercial, 
recreational, and tourist destinations. The plan will prioritize a set of connected projects, that when fully implemented, will increase active                
transportation opportunities and make it safe and more convenient for people to walk, bike, and use non-auto forms of travel.  


Supplemental Information:  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Budget: 


 


IN2106 - Active Transportation Plan  


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 100  $      75,000 


Subtotal  $      75,000 


75,000$   Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 50 of 67272 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2022 


Revised Project Start:    


Revised Project Completion:  December 30, 2022 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  In September 2020, the City Council awarded a contract to Carollo Engineers, Inc. to develop a Sanitary Sewer Collection System 
Master Plan (Plan). The Plan will provide a condition assessment of the sewer collection assets to inform capital planning and effectively serve the 
wastewater needs of residents and businesses.  This plan will also provide a capacity analysis to identify pipes that need to be upsized. Master 
planning is critical to identify when and where infrastructure upgrades or improvements will be needed to accommodate growth.  


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


  


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


IN2001 - Sanitary Sewer Collection System Master Plan 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 500  $     359,147  $      89,853 


Subtotal  $     359,147  $      89,853 


449,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 51 of 67273 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2023 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2023 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2025 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation  


Multi-year Project:    Yes 


Description:  Preparation of a storm drain master plan will provide an analysis of the existing collection system. The plan will identify system  
deficiencies related to capacity, functionality, and permit compliance. The plan can serve to guide future budget allocations for improvements to 
the system. 


Supplemental Information:                                         


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                           


 


 


  


 


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                       
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


IN1703 - Storm Drainage Master Plan 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $      75,000  $      75,000 


Subtotal  $      75,000  $      75,000 


150,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 52 of 67274 of 829







   


 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Initial Project Start:    July 1, 2020 


Initial Project Completion:   June 30, 2021 


Revised Project Start:   July 1, 2021 


Revised Project Completion:  June 30, 2023 


Project Origin:     Staff Recommendation 


Multi-year Project:    No 


Description: Preparation of a park master plan will aid the City in developing a strategic approach to park maintenance and operation. The   
master plan will allow the City to quantify and qualify the existing park system, identify deficiencies, and develop a financial analysis of the cost to  
maintain and operate park assets.  


Supplemental Information: This project was added to the CIP in 2017 as an unfunded project; Council approved funding in 2020.  


 


 


 


 


                                                


 


                                                                                                                                                                                                                            


                                                                                                                                                                                                                    
Budget: 


 


 


 


 


 


 IN1704 - Park Master Plan 


Fund
Prior      


Funding
FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27


Planning 106  $     100,000 


Subtotal  $     100,000 


100,000$ Total Cost Estimate:


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 53 of 67275 of 829







 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


UNFUNDED AND UNPROGRAMMED PROJECTS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 
 
 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 54 of 67276 of 829







 


 
 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 
UNFUNDED AND UNPROGRAMMED PROJECTS 


 


#  Unfunded/Unprogrammed Projects 


UF001 Railroad Avenue Bridge Removal and Replacement


UF002 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in City lots


UF003 Parking lot resurfacing  


UF004 LLAD Landscape Restoration and Improvement


UF005 Dog Park Restroom Replacement


UF006 Dog Park resurfacing and fencing improvements


UF007 Eucalyptus Grove Restoration


UF008 Fernandez Park Baseball grandstand improvement


UF009 Repave Trails 


UF010 ADA Ramps  


UF011 Appian Complete Streets 


UF012 Bridge Maintenance  


UF013 Installation of High intensity Activated crossWALK (HAWK)


UF014 Pavement Maintenance  


UF015 I-80/Pinole Valley Rd. Interchange Improvements


UF016 Shale Hill Retaining wall and sidewalk gap


UF017 Sidewalks gaps  


UF018 Signal System Upgrades 


UF019 San Pablo Sewer Lift Station Upgrade


UF020 Sewer Collection Systemwide Rehabilitation


UF021 Tree Master Plan 


UF022 San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad


UF023 Installation of Solar at City Facilities


UF024 All weather access roads 
 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 
 


 


 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 55 of 67277 of 829







 


  


UF001 - Railroad Avenue Bridge Removal and Replacement 


Project Information             


The Contra Costa County Flood Control and 


Water Conservation District has advised         


removal of the Railroad Avenue Bridge. The 


bridge is a flood barrier. The first step is to                 


determine if the City of Pinole is the responsible 


agency for this project.   


UF002 - Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in City lots 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads/Sanitary Sewer/


Stormwater 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The City desires to promote and encourage the 


use of electric vehicles. With increased adoption 


of alternative fuel vehicles, the need for                 


charging infrastructure is growing. The City 


wishes to install charging stations in city owned 


parking lots. The first step is to complete a load 


study at City owned parking lots to determine 


the electrical capacity at each site. There may 


be significant electrical upgrades necessary to 


install charging stations. Electrical capacity and 


siting determine ultimately determine the cost of 


each project. There are incentives available for 


the charging equipment.  


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Bay Area 


Air Quality Management District, West 


Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 


Marin Clean Energy 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 56 of 67278 of 829







 


  


UF003 - Parking lot resurfacing 


Project Information             


This project is to maintain and enhance 


existing City owned parking facilities and 


infrastructure, to increase parking supply, 


and to support ongoing multi-modal and 


streetscape improvements. Improvements 


include saw cutting and demolition,             


pavement removal, earthwork, pavement 


installation, curb and gutter, striping, and 


signage.  


UF004 - LLAD Landscape Restoration and Improvement 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Economic 


stimulus funding 


The Pinole Valley Road Landscape and Lighting 


Assessment District was formed in 2008. The 


City installed various improvements on Pinole 


Valley Road between Henry Avenue and          


Ramona Street. The district provides                          


maintenance to traffic signals, streetlights,                


median landscaping, irrigation for landscaping, 


electricity to traffic signals and streetlights, and 


graffiti removal. This project will maintain and 


restore turf, shrubs, plants and trees within the 


District.  


Origin: LLAD Report 


 


Budget Unit: LLAD 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 345 


& 348 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 57 of 67279 of 829







 


  


UF005 - Dog Park Restroom Replacement 


Project Information             


The existing restroom located at the Dog 


Park is beyond its useful life and requires 


replacement.  


UF006 - Dog Park resurfacing and fencing improvements 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:  - 


Resurfacing and fencing improvements 


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 58 of 67280 of 829







 


  


UF007 - Eucalyptus Grove Restoration 


Project Information             


The open space located between the Old Town 
area between John St. and Pinole Valley Road 
is forested with Eucalyptus trees. In 2014, a 
Safety Inspection was conducted by a                 
consultant. A total of 8 trees were                         
recommended for removal, and root crown          
excavation was recommended for 3 trees. 2 
trees were determined to be hollow and                            
recommended for further investigation to            
evaluate the level of internal decay. In 2018, the 
City hired a company to remove 20 Eucalyptus 
trees in the area. There are still many trees left 
and many of the prior trees were felled with the 
trunks remaining on site. This project will        
remove the remaining trees, both standing and, 
on the ground, and regreen this area with native 
trees.  


UF008 - Fernandez Park Baseball grandstand improvement 


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The current grandstand is aging and                


requires increased maintenance to               


maintain its serviceability.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 59 of 67281 of 829







 


  


UF009 - Repave Trails 


Project Information             


The City’s goal is to develop safe,                   


connected, and comfortable bicycle and 


pedestrian facilities for people of all ages 


and abilities. Repaving trails will enhance 


trail access from the City ’s roadway                   


network to encourage alternative modes of 


transportation.  


UF010 - ADA Ramps 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


This project involves removing barriers to 


accessibility for persons using wheelchairs 


or other personal assistance devices and 


improving pedestrian accessibility and 


safety by reconstructing or upgrading curb 


ramps at various locations throughout the 


City.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 60 of 67282 of 829







 


  


UF011 -  Appian Complete Streets 


Project Information             


This project will provide continuous side-


walks and bike lanes along Appian Way 


from San Pablo Dam Rd. in unincorporated 


El Sobrante to about 1500 lineal feet north 


of the city limit within the City of Pinole. 


The City will seek 2019 STMP funds                 


from West Contra Costa Transportation 


Authority for preliminary design.  


UF012 - Bridge Maintenance  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $970,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  - 


Maintenance of vehicular and pedestrian 


bridges as identified in the Caltrans Bridge 


Inspection Reports and Pedestrian Bridge 


Inspection Reports completed by Quincy 


Engineering, Inc.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 61 of 67283 of 829







 


  


UF013 - Installation of High intensity Activated crossWALK (HAWK) 


Project Information             


A High Intensity Activated crossWALK 


(HAWK) beacon is a traffic control device 


used to stop road traffic and facilitate                       


pedestrians to cross more safely. HAWKS 


are candidate treatments for roads with 


three or more lanes and generally have an                    


annual average daily traffic above 9,000. 


HAWKS are considered for all midblock 


and intersection crossings where roadway 


speed limits are equal or greater than 40 


mph. The safety of various crossings can 


be improved in Pinole through the                           


installation of a HAWK.  


UF014 - Pavement Maintenance  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The City uses a pavement management 


software known as StreetSaver to                  


strategize the most cost effective method 


to extend the pavement life. Pavement 


Maintenance is necessary to maintain the 


City’s pavement network. Deferred           


maintenance results in increased costs 


over time.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $42,000,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 200 


and Fund 106 


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 62 of 67284 of 829







 


  


UF015 - I-80/ Pinole Valley Rd. Interchange Improvements  


Project Information             


This project will widen Pinole Valley Road 


ramp terminal intersections at I-80 to                   


provide a dedicated right turn lane to the 


eastbound and westbound I-80 on ramps. 


This project will also provide crossing                  


enhancements at the Pinole Valley Road 


and I-80 intersection.  


UF016 - Shale Hill Retaining wall and sidewalk gap  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $10,959,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


Shale Hill is located on San Pablo Ave. 


near Oak Ridge Road. The cut slope 


above the pavement is comprised of shale 


which is loose and sloughs onto the road. 


There is no sidewalk in this area because 


the toe of the embankment is uncontrolled 


and there is inadequate space to                      


accommodate a sidewalk. Staff has not 


been successful in securing grant funds for 


this project.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 63 of 67285 of 829







 


  


UF017 - Sidewalk gaps 


Project Information             


This project will address sidewalk gaps by 


installing public sidewalks where sidewalks 


are missing on one or both sides of the 


street. This work will be coordinated with 


other construction projects. Sidewalk gaps 


often exist in places with site constraints 


(i.e. right of way, grade/slopes, or utility 


conflicts) or are adjacent to properties that 


have been required to provide sidewalks in 


the past due to land uses or ownerships. 


Locations for repair will be selected based 


on site conditions, pedestrian safety, and 


adjacent property attributes.  


UF018 - Signal System Upgrades  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


This project will upgrade various aspects 


of the City’s traffic signal system including: 


traffic signal controller equipment, vehicle 


detection, traffic signal arms and heads, 


battery backup systems, and                          


communications  systems to reduce                 


congestion and improve safety for the                


Pinole community.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 64 of 67286 of 829







 


  


UF019 - San Pablo Sewer Lift Station Upgrade  


Project Information             


This project involves upgrading the                 


structural and electrical needs of the San 


Pablo Ave. lift station to address the safety 


and operational deficiencies.   


UF020 - Sewer Collection Systemwide Rehabilitation   


Project Information      


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


In 2020, the City contracted with a                 


consultant to prepare a sanitary sewer col-


lection system master plan. The Master 


Plan will provide condition assessment of 


sewer collection assets that will inform 


capital planning.  


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 65 of 67287 of 829







 


  


UF021 - Tree Master Plan  


Project Information             


In 2019, the City Council established a 


Beautification Ad Hoc Committee to                 


analyze options for, and to make                          


recommendations to Council regarding 


clean-up and beautification projects in                  


Pinole. Among other projects, the                     


Committee recommended the development 


of a Tree Master Plan to inventory the                  


existing trees, and to develop a plan for 


managing the tree inventory, including 


finding tree planting opportunities.  


UF022 - San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


Project Information      


Origin: Beautification AdHoc Committee  


 


Budget Unit:  


 


Cost Estimate: $375,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Cal Fire 


Urban and Community Forestry Grant 


Program 


This project will replace the existing               


thirteen span reinforced concrete span 


structure over the Burlington Northern 


Santa Fe Railroad adjacent to San Pablo 


Avenue at the easterly limits of the City. 


On 02/18/20, Council awarded a contract 


to a Consultant to begin the preliminary 


engineering (PE) for this project (CIP               


Project RO1710). The PE will be                       


completed in two phases due to funding 


limitations. The first phase was necessary 


to develop a   final cost estimate to                           


facilitate pursuing additional funding                        


required to complete all phases including 


construction.  


Origin: End of life cycle 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $35,582,665 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 213, 


Fund 214, and Economic Stimulus funds.  


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 66 of 67288 of 829







 


  


UF023 - Installation of Solar at City Facilities 


Project Information             


This project involves procurement and               


installation of solar panels at City owned 


facilities to offset the City ’s electricity  


consumption and  reduce the greenhouse 


gas impacts.  


UF024 - All access weather roads 


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


The General Plan, Chapter 8 discusses  


improvement of open space management 


to reduce wildfire risks. There is a desire 


to have improved, all-weather access 


roads through open space to improve ac-


cess to and from Hercules and El Sobrante 


to shorten response times and improve              


mutual aid.  


Origin: General Plan  


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:    


City of Pinole 
Capital Improvement Plan: FY 2022/23 through 2026/27


Page 67 of 67289 of 829







EXHIBIT D


290 of 829







291 of 829







292 of 829







CHAPTER 4: GROWTH
MANAGEMENT


EXHIBIT E


293 of 829







294 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 4 


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 4.0-i 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 4.0-1 


Purpose ........................................................................................................................... 4.0-1 


Government Code Authority ............................................................................................ 4.0-2 


Relationship to Other General Plan Elements ................................................................. 4.0-2 


Background ..................................................................................................................... 4.0-3 


Planning for Growth......................................................................................................... 4.0-4 


Service Capacity Considerations ..................................................................................... 4.0-6 


Issues this Element Addresses ............................................................................................. 4.0-9 


Goals, Policies and Actions ................................................................................................... 4.0-9 


 


TABLES 


Table 4.1  Regional Population Comparison ................................................................... 4.0-7 


Table 4.2  Local Population Comparison ........................................................................ 4.0-8 


 


295 of 829







296 of 829







 


 


  


 CHAPTER 4 


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 4.0-1 


 


INTRODUCTION 


PURPOSE 


The Growth Management Element establishes policies to 
direct growth within Pinole and indicates how the City 
intends to participate in regional land use and 
transportation planning efforts. The Growth Management 
Element includes level of service standards and 
performance standards for traffic and the provision of 
public services (e.g., fire, police, parks, sanitary sewer 
facilities, water and flood control) in order to ensure that 
public facilities are provided to accommodate growth 
consistent with adopted standards. By adopting and 
implementing this element, the City of Pinole establishes 
a comprehensive, long-range program that will match the 


demands for public facilities and services generated by new development or redevelopment with 
plans, capital improvement programs and development mitigation programs to ensure facilities 
are provided at an appropriate time and level to serve new development. Specifically, the 
Growth Management Element seeks to: 


1. Attain a new level of mutually beneficial communication and coordinated planning 
between Pinole and its neighboring jurisdictions, other public agencies and regional 
agencies. 


2. Provide community facilities, commercial services and amenities easily accessible to 
and from residential neighborhoods. 


3. Support further development of bicycle and pedestrian facilities. 


4. Provide a safe, attractive and efficient circulation system that ensures convenient access 
to all residential, business and recreational areas by various modes of transportation. 


5. Encourage future growth to locate along the primary travel corridors through the 
community and in areas that are or can easily be served by transit. 


6. Guide future growth so that at buildout the community remains an attractive, uncrowded 
and pleasant place to live and work.   


The Growth Management Element also expresses a vision for the future where sustainable 
development and land use practices provide for the needs of existing residents and businesses 
while preserving choices for future generations.1  


                                                 
1 Sustainable development practices refer to the use of architectural and planning methods that address the needs of 
the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. Specific examples include 
the use of solar panels for energy conservation, placing jobs near housing to reduce vehicle trips, and infill 
development in urban areas to reduce the consumption of agricultural land. Policies related to sustainability are 
identified with a  symbol.   


VISION STATEMENT 


Pinole will play an active role 


in promoting coordinated 


regional land use and 


transportation planning, while 


promoting sound local land 


use choices that support infill 


development along circulation 


corridors that are served by 


existing infrastructure and 


transit. 


297 of 829







 


 


   


CHAPTER 4   


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


   


4.0-2 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


GOVERNMENT CODE AUTHORITY 


While a Growth Management Element is not a State-mandated general plan element, the 
Growth Management Element of the Pinole General Plan is adopted pursuant to the authority 
granted to local jurisdictions by Section 65303 of the Government Code of the State of 
California, which states: 


The general plan may include any other elements or address other subjects 
which, in the judgment of legislative body, relate to the physical development of 
the county or city. 


The content of the Growth Management Element is dictated by the requirements of the Contra 
Costa County Transportation Authority (CCTA), and this element follows a specific format 
required by that agency. The element also serves as a means for the CCTA to determine 
whether the City is in compliance with policies that support the receipt of Measure J funding.   


RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER GENERAL PLAN ELEMENTS 


The Growth Management Element is not intended to supersede the goals or policies of the 
other elements of the General Plan. When other elements of the General Plan are updated, it 
may be appropriate to amend the Growth Management Element to ensure an internally 
consistent and comprehensive set of City goals, policies and actions. 


Chapter 5: The land use framework for implementing the Growth Management Element 
policies and the Urban Limit Line (Figure 5.1) are established by the Land Use 
and Economic Development Element. 


Chapter 6: Consistent with the requirements of Measure J, the City of Pinole has an adopted 
Housing Element that meets the requirements of the California Department of 
Housing and Community Development (HCD).   


Chapter 7: The Circulation Element establishes level of service standards that govern traffic 
operations in Pinole. 


Chapter 8: The Community Services and Facilities Element establishes performance 
standards for public services and facilities that are used to evaluate the effect of 
new development in Pinole. 


Chapter 10 The Natural Resources and Open Space Element discusses man-made hazards, 
development constraints, conservation policies that affect the potential siting of 
land uses and open space policies. 


Chapter 11: The Sustainability Element discusses ways for Pinole to incorporate more green 
practices, including ways affecting how Pinole will grow.   


298 of 829







 


 


  


 CHAPTER 4 


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 4.0-3 


 


BACKGROUND 


Local Requirements 


In November 2004, voters approved Measure J, extending the Contra Costa County 
Transportation Improvement and Growth Management Program (Measure C, 1988) by 25 
years. That action established a 0.5 percent countywide sales tax through the year 2034 that 
will be used to address existing major regional transportation problems. To qualify for its share 
of the sales tax, the City of Pinole will: 


1. Adopt a Growth Management Element as part of the General Plan;  


2. Adopt a development mitigation program (adopted by Resolution 2008-92 on June 17, 
2008); 


3. Provide diverse housing options for people who live and work in Pinole (refer to Chapter 
6, Housing Element); 


4. Participate in cooperative multi-jurisdictional planning (Pinole continues to be an active 
participant on the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee); 


5. Maintain the adopted Urban Limit Line (ULL) (adopted by Resolution 2007-12 on 
February 6, 2007); 


6. Implement a five-year Capital Improvement Program (the 5-year CIP is updated 
annually); and 


7. Adopt a Transportation Systems Management Ordinance or Resolution (adopted by 
Ordinance 2006-06 on June 20, 2006). 


Measure J requires that tax revenues be dedicated to transportation projects in Contra Costa 
County and to the implementation of a Growth Management Program by all the cities and the 
County. Specifically, Measure J provides funding for three categories of transportation projects: 


1. Transportation projects identified in Measure J; 


2. Paratransit programs; and 


3. Transportation projects funded by Local Street Maintenance and Improvement or 
“Return-to-Source” funds. 


Return-to-Source funds are revenues derived from the additional sales tax that are distributed to 
participating general purpose governments in Contra Costa County. The system of distribution 
is based on a formula which includes the jurisdiction’s population and the miles of streets and 
highways within the jurisdiction. Measure J requires that in order to receive Return-to-Source 
funds, participating jurisdictions prepare a Growth Management Element. This element satisfies 
the requirement for the City of Pinole and is consistent with the standards established by 
Measure J and the Contra Costa County General Plan.   


299 of 829







 


 


   


CHAPTER 4   


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


   


4.0-4 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


PLANNING FOR GROWTH 


As discussed in the Background Report, the Pinole population is projected to grow by about 
2,761 people between 2000 and 2030 (an almost 13 percent increase).2 The number of 
households is expected to increase by 1,317 between 2000 and 2030 (a 16 percent increase). 
The average household size in the Pinole Planning Area is projected to decrease from 2.91 
persons per household in 2000 to 2.82 in 2030. The City of Pinole is planning for growth to 
occur primarily along San Pablo Avenue, Appian Way and Pinole Valley Road. By concentrating 
development on these corridors and coordinating policy and capital improvement planning with 
neighboring jurisdictions and other transit agencies, the City seeks to: 


1. Ensure a healthy jobs/housing balance; 


2. Accommodate the housing needs of people who live and work in Pinole; 


3. Accommodate the City’s share of regional growth while maintaining acceptable traffic 
circulation standards; and 


4. Participate in regional planning efforts. 


Jobs/Housing Balance 


For purposes of the Growth Management Element, jobs/housing balance is defined as the 
reasonable opportunity for people to live and work within the Planning Area. Three components 
of jobs/housing balance were analyzed: 


1. The number of jobs as a percentage of the number of employed residents (i.e., total 
jobs/total employed residents);  


2. Average household income and the implicit relationship between income and the ability 
to pay housing costs; and  


3. The amount of vacant land by current zoning designation.  


Maintaining a reasonable jobs/housing balance is important because it: 


1. Reduces the need for residents to use regional transportation infrastructure; 


2. Reduces the amount of household income that must be used for transportation costs; 


3. Has positive environmental impacts, because of overall reduction in commute trips; 


4. Reduces the amount of time residents must spend commuting and allows the use of that 
time for leisure activities; and 


                                                 
2 ABAG, Projections 2007.    


300 of 829







 


 


  


 CHAPTER 4 


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 4.0-5 


 


5. Is important to the overall health and vitality of the community, by creating greater 
opportunities for community involvement and interaction. 


Housing Needs 


For Pinole, the regional housing need is determined by the Association of Bay Area 
Governments (ABAG), based upon an overall regional housing need number established by the 
State. In accordance with state law, ABAG has determined the fair share of the regional housing 
need that must be planned for during the 2007 to 2014 planning period. State law also requires 
that the allocation of regional housing needs consider the need for housing across all income 
levels. These income categories, as defined by the State, are:  


 Very Low: up to 50 percent of median income 


 Low: between 50 and 880 percent of median income 


 Moderate: between 80 and 120 percent of median income 


 Above Moderate: above 120 percent of median income 


Pinole’s allocation for the 2007–2014 period is 323 total housing units, of which 180 must be 
affordable. The breakdown of required affordable units is 83 (26 percent) must be affordable to 
very low-income households, 49 (15 percent) affordable to low-income households, and 48 (15 
percent) affordable to moderate-income households. The allocation for above moderate-income 
households is 143 (44 percent) housing units.   


Most of the vacant or redevelopable sites that are designated in the General Plan for single-
family or multiple-family use within the Pinole Planning Area are small infill lots that are already 
served by necessary infrastructure and are within the existing service areas of the City’s Police 
and Fire departments.   


Traffic Capacity 


Pinole has participated in the development of the West County Traffic Model and Action Plan 
and has developed specific standards for traffic level of service based on the model and on the 
subregional Action Plan for Routes of Regional Significance. Measure J, which extended 
Measure C through the year 2034, established two basic categories of routes: (1) routes of 
regional significance and (2) basic routes. 


Routes of regional significance in Pinole are Interstate 80, San Pablo Avenue and Appian Way. 
In west Contra Costa County, the Action Plan for Routes of Regional Significance is developed 
by the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC). 


Actions to improve basic routes are addressed at the local level through the development of 
other General Plan implementation programs and the City’s Capital Improvement Program 
(CIP). The City has established traffic level of service (LOS) standards in the Circulation 
Element (Chapter 7). Currently, all roadways meet City standards.  


301 of 829







 


 


   


CHAPTER 4   


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


   


4.0-6 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


The Circulation Element also projects future traffic conditions through the year 2030. According 
to projected volumes, only a few intersections and road segments will eventually function at 
LOS F, which is the lowest level of service and indicates “breakdown conditions.” Increases in 
daily volumes in segments along San Pablo Avenue, Appian Way and Pinole Valley Road will 
begin to exceed the capacity of the roadways. The increase in daily volumes can be attributed 
to growth in Pinole as well as in the adjacent areas, such as Hercules, San Pablo and the 
unincorporated county. Solutions for the LOS F street sections will need to be developed.   


While there may be improvements at some intersections and road segments that could improve 
the level of service, constraints in Old Town Pinole make it difficult to increase traffic capacity 
without detracting from important community attributes. Traffic improvements that would widen 
San Pablo Avenue in Old Town, or support vehicular circulation at the expense of pedestrian 
circulation, have the potential to change the historic character of Old Town Pinole, damage the 
economic vitality of the area and potentially decrease public safety and enjoyment. For those 
reasons, the City favors acceptance of LOS F as the traffic circulation threshold for the Old 
Town section of San Pablo Avenue.   


The West County computerized traffic model, developed in conjunction with CCTA, the five west 
Contra Costa County cities and the local transit agencies, can be used to analyze existing and 
anticipated traffic levels impact on basic and regional routes. The model integrates 
transportation demands in the cities of El Cerrito, Hercules, Pinole, Richmond and San Pablo, 
and the surrounding unincorporated areas, including Bay Area-wide through traffic along the 
major travel corridors. Refer to the Circulation Element (Chapter 7) for a discussion of existing 
and anticipated circulation conditions. 


West County Action Plan  


The West County Action Plan is a program of improvements to be carried out by the members 
of the West Contra Costa County Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC) to improve 
and maintain the network of regional routes in west Contra Costa County. The five west county 
cities, the County, Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART), WestCAT and the other transit agencies 
combine their efforts to ensure that traffic and transit facilities can handle the needs of the 
community into the future. 


The Action Plan is required as part of the Growth Management Program and is prepared by 
CCTA, in consultation with WCCTAC, to reflect a regional view of transportation needs and 
issues, and ultimately, implementing actions and projects for regional routes of significance. 
Projects are funded and carried out through local capital improvement programs, Return–to-
Source funding and Measure J project funding. 


SERVICE CAPACITY CONSIDERATIONS 


There are a number of conditions and infrastructure considerations that affect service capacity 
in Pinole. Some of the most important issues (e.g., traffic, sewage disposal and the provision of 
emergency services) will require coordinated efforts with adjoining communities and regional 
planning agencies. The following trends and inter-jurisdictional considerations are fundamental 
to Pinole’s growth management planning. 


302 of 829







 


 


  


 CHAPTER 4 


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 4.0-7 


 


1. Regional growth has occurred at a much higher rate than growth in Pinole and has 
impacted transportation infrastructure at a disproportionately high rate. 


Based on ABAG Projections 2007, the Planning Area of Pinole grew at a much slower rate 
in the last decade than did Contra Costa County and neighboring Solano County (see Table 
4.1–Regional Population Comparison). The Pinole Planning Area includes unincorporated 
portions of the county that abut Pinole. 


Table 4.1 


Regional Population Comparison 


  2000 2010 % Change 


Pinole Planning Area 30,806 32,300 5% 


Contra Costa County 948,816 1,061,900 12% 


Solano County 394,542 455,200 15% 


Bay Region 6,783,762 7,412,500 9% 


Source: ABAG, Projections 2007 


Accordingly, growth in surrounding communities has placed a much higher demand on 
transportation infrastructure than has growth in Pinole. This condition has resulted in 
increased congestion at Interstate 80 ramps in Pinole and has contributed to traffic 
congestion on surface streets as motorists seek alternative routes to a congested interstate. 
While Pinole has the ability to influence local traffic conditions, participation in regional 
planning efforts is critical for ensuring adequate transportation improvements to serve the 
City of Pinole. 


2. Wastewater treatment capacity is shared between the cities of Pinole and Hercules. 


Wastewater treatment capacity at the Pinole/Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP) 
is currently shared between the cities of Hercules and Pinole. In the last decade, growth in 
the City of Hercules has generated greater demand for new service connections than has 
growth in Pinole, and this trend is expected to continue into the future (see Table 4.2–Local 
Population Comparison). Service limitations, however, are a function of peak flows during 
periods of wet weather. Aging infrastructure in Pinole contributes substantially to wet 
weather flow as the result of inflow and infiltration. It is worth noting that a little over half of 
the Pinole Planning Area is served by the WPCP. Accordingly, the absolute population 
numbers contained in Table 4.2 are less informative for planning purposes than the 
percentage of change over time. 


303 of 829







 


 


   


CHAPTER 4   


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


   


4.0-8 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


Table 4.2 


Local Population Comparison 


 2000 2010 
Population 


Change 


% 


Change 
2030 


Population 


Change 


% 


Change 


Pinole Planning Area 30,806 32,300 1,494 5% 35,100 4,294 14% 


Hercules 19,497 23,900 4,403 23% 28,700 9,203 47% 


Source: ABAG, Projections 2007 


The Pinole/Hercules WPCP needs to upgrade in order to accommodate existing wet 
weather peak period flows. Any future WPCP upgrade should also be designed to 
accommodate projected growth in the cities of Pinole and Hercules. Growth management 
policies should establish appropriate mechanisms for addressing existing infrastructure 
needs, accounting for future projected growth and assigning available capacity. Please see 
the Community Services and Facilities Element (Chapter 8) for more information.   


3. The growth rate of local employment opportunities exceeds the growth rate in the 
number of employed residents, providing local work for Pinole Planning Area 
residents.  


Between 2000 and 2030, based solely in the number of jobs and employed residents in the 
city, the ratio of employed residents to jobs is expected to improve in Pinole from 2.6 to 2.3 
employed residents per job. The number of employed residents is expected to increase by 
3,596 over the next 30 years, while the number of local jobs is expected to increase 
by 2,410.   


4. Housing and commercial development is anticipated to occur slowly and 
incrementally over the next 30 years.  


Most large land holdings in Pinole have been developed. With few exceptions, growth in 
Pinole is expected to occur on small infill lots that can accommodate housing and mixed-use 
development. Exceptions to this condition exist in redevelopment opportunities at the Appian 
80 Shopping Center, Gateway West, and Doctors Hospital, and at industrial properties 
located at the west end of San Pablo Avenue. 


5. The high cost of market-rate housing, in conjunction with an increase in lower-paying 
employment opportunities, reinforces the need to provide diverse housing 
opportunities to households at all income levels.  


While the number of jobs is expected to increase, many will be at salary levels that are 
below what is needed to afford market-rate housing in Pinole. While Pinole remains 
comparatively affordable for the San Francisco Bay region, proximity to employment 
centers, an attractive small-town character and an advantageous climate are expected to 
perpetuate increasing demand in a community with limited supply and generate higher 
housing costs. Job growth in Pinole has been primarily in the services industries, jobs with 
traditionally lower earning potential. This combination will make it difficult to provide housing 


304 of 829







 


 


  


 CHAPTER 4 


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 4.0-9 


 


opportunities for people who work in the community unless services and infrastructure are 
capable of accommodating increased housing production. 


ISSUES THIS ELEMENT ADDRESSES 


This element provides goals, policies and actions that address the following issues: 


 Encouraging cooperative transportation and land use planning between Pinole and its 
neighbors and regional agencies. 


 Ensuring that appropriate funding mechanisms are in place to pay for facilities and 
services that are required to meet the demand generated by growth. 


 Encouraging growth in areas where infrastructure and transportation, including transit 
services, are available. 


GOALS, POLICIES AND ACTIONS 


 Goal GM.1: Support cooperative transportation, land use and public service planning in 
Contra Costa County. 


 Goal GM.2: Ensure that new development pays for the facilities required to meet the 
demands generated by development. 


 Goal GM.3: Support land use patterns that make efficient use of the transportation 
system and enhance public safety. 


 Goal GM.4: Encourage infill and redevelopment in areas that are already served by 
utilities, infrastructure and public services. 


GOAL GM.1 Regional Planning. Support cooperative transportation, land use and public 
service planning in Contra Costa County. 


POLICY GM.1.1  West Contra Costa County Planning Activities. Achieve efficient public 
service delivery by coordinating with affected jurisdictions and agencies 
concerning public and private developments. 


Action GM.1.1.1  Regional Planning. Work with regional planning agencies (e.g., 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission, Association of Bay Area 
Governments, Contra Costa Transportation Authority, West Contra Costa 
Transportation Advisory Committee, Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission, and Bay Area Air Quality Management District) and transit 
providers (e.g., WestCAT, AC Transit, and Bay Area Rapid Transit) to 
address regional land use, transportation and environmental issues.   


305 of 829







 


 


   


CHAPTER 4   


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


   


4.0-10 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


Action GM.1.1.2  LAFCO. Work with the Local Agency Formation Commission (LAFCO) to 
periodically review the efficacy of public services and take advantage of 
opportunities to defray City costs without sacrificing services. 


Action GM.1.1.3  WCCTAC. Work with WCCTAC to develop and update the Action Plan for 
Routes of Regional Significance, to establish Multimodal Transportation 
Service Objectives (MTSOs), and to coordinate planning for projects and 
programs of regional importance. 


Action GM.1.1.4 CCTA. Continue to help maintain the Contra Costa Transportation 
Authority’s travel demand modeling system by providing information on 
proposed improvements to the transportation system and planned and 
approved development within Pinole. 


Action GM.1.1.5  Emergency Preparedness. Continue to participate in regional 
emergency preparedness planning efforts and in shared emergency 
services and mutual aid opportunities. 


Action GM.1.1.6  Hercules. Endeavor to work with the City of Hercules to address 
wastewater disposal issues and opportunities to ensure compliance with 
operating permits, to provide sewage disposal to accommodate 
anticipated growth, and to remedy existing facilities deficiencies.   


Action GM.1.1.7 CCTA. Continue to maintain the adopted voter-approved Urban Limit Line 
according to the Principles of Agreement developed by the Contra Costa 
Transportation Authority. 


GOAL GM.2 Development Mitigation. Ensure that new development pays for the facilities 
required to meet the demands generated by development.   


POLICY GM.2.1  Plan for Public Facility and Service Needs. Future development shall be 
planned based on public facility and service capacity, community-wide needs, 
sound citywide and neighborhood planning, and public improvement 
programming. 


Action GM.2.1.1  Service Standards. Periodically monitor, review and update Pinole’s 


service standards to maintain fire, police, parks, sewer, water, and flood 
control services within Pinole. The following standards will be used to 
guide decision making through the development review process. 


Parks and Recreation 


Parks: 3.0 acres of neighborhood or regional parks, or 5.0 acres of 
dedicated open space per 1,000 residents. 


306 of 829







 


 


  


 CHAPTER 4 


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 4.0-11 


 


Fire 


Pinole will endeavor to maintain capital facilities, equipment and staffing 
sufficient to maintain the following service level: 


1. First Engine Company: 5-minute response time for emergency calls 
90 percent of the time. 


2. Water Requirements: 3,500 gallons per minute (gpm) minimum on 
initial response assignment. 


Police 


Pinole will strive to maintain capital facilities, equipment and staffing to 
maintain a 5-minute response time for emergency calls.   


Sanitary Facilities 


Pinole will continue to work with Hercules and the West County 
Wastewater District to monitor, manage and maintain Pinole’s wastewater 
collection and treatment system and to upgrade as necessary to meet 
permit requirements and capacity needed for current flow amounts and 
projected future growth. 


Water 


Verification by East Bay Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) that adequate 
water supply and quality can be provided shall be required for approval of 
new development. 


Flood Control 


1. Capacity: Flood protection facilities should be designed to contain a 
100-year flood event, as determined by the Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA). 


2. Climate Change: Flood protection improvements should anticipate 
the probable effect of climate changes as they relate to sea level. 


3. Upstream Improvements: Coordinate with EBMUD to plan for a 
detention/diversion basin south of the city to meter peak period flows 
in Pinole Creek. 


POLICY GM.2.2 Costs of New Development. Ensure that any new development within, and 
adjacent to the City pays its share of the costs associated with the provision 
of facilities for fire, police, schools, parks, sanitary facilities, water, and flood 
control necessitated by it, by attaching project-specific mitigation 
requirements as conditions of approval.  


307 of 829







 


 


   


CHAPTER 4   


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


   


4.0-12 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


Action GM.2.2.1  Regional Development Mitigation Program. Participate in the 
development and implementation of a regional or subregional 
development mitigation program based on any nexus established through 
the Action Plan process. 


Action GM.2.2.2  Growth Management Fees. Continue participating in the regional 
development mitigation program to establish fees, exactions, 
assessments or other mitigation measures to fund regional and 
subregional transportation improvements. The City will update and collect 
applicable fees to mitigate impacts of developments on the local and 
regional transportation system. 


Action GM.2.2.3  Growth Management Capital Projects. Include capital projects, 
generally showing complete project cost and intended project phasing, in 
Pinole’s annual Capital Improvement Program which are necessary to: 


1. Extend services to new development. 


2. Maintain traffic standards established in the General Plan. 


3. Address the City’s responsibilities under the adopted West Contra 
Costa Action Plan. 


4. Maintain standards for fire, police, parks, sewer, water, and flood 
control established in Pinole’s Growth Management Element. (Note: 
See Measure J program relating to Capital Improvement Program.) 


Action GM.2.2.4 Development Review. Participate in regional review of development 
proposals that have the potential to impact regional facilities, resources 
and services. 


1. Circulate environmental documents to surrounding jurisdictions for 
review and comment. 


2. Submit to the West Contra Costa County Technical Advisory 
Committee proposed revision(s) to the West County Action Plan to 
mitigate impacts associated with proposed General Plan amendments 
over the threshold specified in the adopted West County Action Plan. 


3. Participate in the conflict resolution process established by the CCTA 
in the Growth Management Implementation Documents as a means of 
resolving disputes between neighboring jurisdictions related to the 
Action Plan and other Measure C/J transportation-related issues. 


4. Ensure that all new development bears a fair share cost of mitigating 
impacts on the City’s ability to provide essential services. 


308 of 829







 


 


  


 CHAPTER 4 


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 4.0-13 


 


POLICY GM.2.3 Development Costs. Services and capital improvements necessary to serve 
new development should be installed and funded by the project.   


Action GM.2.3.1 Where feasible, development should provide improvements necessary to 
ensure adequate service to the project and create an adequate 
mechanism for ensuring ongoing funding for necessary services. 


Action GM.2.3.2  Where improvements are needed to serve multiple projects or existing 
development, the City will maintain a development mitigation program to 
collect the proportionate share of a development’s contribution to capital 
and service costs associated with regional and local facilities and services 
needed to support the development. The development mitigation program 
may include, but not be limited to: 


a. Development Impact Fees; 


b. User Fees; 


c. Quimby Act Fees or other Park and Recreation Fees; 


d. Transportation Management Fees; and 


e. Connection Fees. 


GOAL GM.3 Efficient Transportation. Support land use patterns that make efficient use of 
the transportation system and enhance public safety. 


POLICY GM.3.1  Transportation Management. Make more efficient use of the regional and 
subregional transportation system. 


Action GM.3.1.1 Transportation System Management. Update the Transportation 
System Management (TSM) ordinance to reflect General Plan policies. 


Action GM.3.1.2 Transportation Demand Management. Adopt Transportation Demand 
Management practices that can be applied in new development projects.  


POLICY GM.3.2 Multimodal Transportation. Establish service standards for multiple modes 
of transportation that are focused on moving people rather than solely on 
moving automobiles. 


Action GM.3.2.1 Traffic Operations. Apply the traffic operation standards (level of 
service) established in the Circulation Element.   


Action GM.3.2.2 Exceptions. Maintain traffic operation standards at intersections except 
where: 


309 of 829







 


 


   


CHAPTER 4   


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


   


4.0-14 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


1. Operations exceed adopted standards but which are expected to 
meet standards following implementation of projects in the adopted 
five-year Capital Improvement Program.  


2. Alternative modes of transportation are available (e.g., bicycle lanes 
and facilities, bus transit and shuttle service). 


3. Projects result in housing that is affordable to people who work and 
live in Pinole. 


Action GM.3.2.3 Alternative Modes of Transportation. Work with regional transportation 
agencies to develop circulation standards that: 


1. Emphasize the movement of people, not solely automobiles, as the 
performance objective. 


2. Adjust service standards to include trips accommodated by bicycle 
routes and facilities, pedestrian connections and transit service. 


POLICY GM.3.3  Provide Adequate Transportation Facilities and Services. Provide 
adequate transportation facilities while maintaining neighborhood integrity. 
The following considerations are aimed at reducing traffic on residential 
streets and improving available transportation alternatives: 


a. Through-traffic should be discouraged as much as possible from 
residential streets. 


b. New commercial development should be focused along arterial corridors. 


c. Transit services that are accessible to children, adults, senior citizens and 
people with disabilities should be located within half a mile of schools, 
public facilities and shops. 


d. Commuters should have easy access to the BART system. 


e. A shuttle bus, especially for seniors, at regular intervals throughout the 
city, as well as hiking and biking trails, is desirable. 


f. Maintenance of AC Transit, BART feeder and WestCAT services. 


Action GM.3.3.1 Bus Service. Coordinate with WestCAT and AC Transit to strategically 
expand commute and local bus services in Pinole. Transit service 
planning should consider the following: 


1. Loop service along primary circulation corridors.  


310 of 829







 


 


  


 CHAPTER 4 


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 4.0-15 


 


2. Enhanced access to major employment centers or transit hubs to 
minimize the number of transfers associated with trips. 


Action GM.3.3.2 Carpools and Transit. The City will develop a plan to make more 
efficient use of the regional and subregional transportation system that 
includes the following considerations. 


1. Improved access to commuter bus service by enhancing access to 
nearby park-and-ride facilities or by providing a park-and-ride facility 
in Pinole to support commuter bus service.  


2. Promoting the use of carpools and vanpools. 


POLICY GM.3.4  Coordinate Transportation. Coordinate capital improvements and transit 
services to support medium- and high-density commercial and residential 
development along San Pablo Avenue, Appian Way and Pinole Valley Road 
with multiple modes of transportation. 


Action GM.3.4.1 Circulation Corridors. Adopt the Three Corridors Specific Plan for the 
San Pablo Avenue, Appian Way and Pinole Valley Road corridors to 
include bicycle, pedestrian and transit facilities and services and 
convenient vehicle access.  


POLICY GM.3.5  West Contra Costa County Transportation Planning Activities. 


Participate in regional transportation planning, particularly with the West 
Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC). 


POLICY GM.3.6  Trips Within the Community. Place a higher priority on facilitating trips with 
origins or destinations within the community than on efforts to provide 
improvements for through trips. 


Action GM.3.6.1 Discourage Trip Diversion. Discourage use of San Pablo Avenue 
through Old Town as a bypass for Interstate 80 through street designs 
and improvements that slow traffic.  


Action GM.3.6.2 Route of Regional Significance. Consider designating Fitzgerald 
Avenue as a route of regional significance that could replace or 
supplement Appian Way as the north-south route of regional significance 
in Pinole. 


POLICY GM.3.7  Mobility-Impaired. Support efforts to provide safe and convenient 
transportation systems for all citizens of Pinole, particularly mobility-impaired 
individuals. 


POLICY GM.3.8  Public Transit. Encourage the development of a safe, efficient and reliable 
transit system, in coordination with the West Contra Costa Action Plan, to 
provide a convenient alternative to driving. 


311 of 829







 


 


   


CHAPTER 4   


GROWTH MANAGEMENT 


   


4.0-16 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


GOAL GM.4  Compact Development and Service Areas. Encourage infill and 
redevelopment in areas that are already served by utilities, infrastructure and 
public services. 


POLICY GM.4.1 Planning for Present and Future Community Needs. Plan for, provide and 
maintain a level of public infrastructure facilities and services that adequately 
serves the present and future needs of the community. 


POLICY GM.4.2  Regional Jobs/Housing Balance. Consistent with the Land Use and 
Economic Development Element of the Pinole General Plan, encourage 
reasonable opportunity for people to live and work within west Contra Costa 
County. 


Action GM.4.2.1  Housing Element Programs. In accordance with the General Plan’s 
Housing Element, provide housing opportunities in a variety of structure 
and tenure types for all economic sectors and compositions of 
households to maintain a jobs/housing balance as a method of potentially 
reducing commute trip lengths. 


312 of 829







CHAPTER 7: CIRCULATION 


EXHIBIT F


313 of 829







314 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 7 


CIRCULATION 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 7.0-i 


 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Introduction ........................................................................................................................... 7.0-1 


Purpose ........................................................................................................................... 7.0-1 


Relationship to Other General Plan Elements ................................................................. 7.0-1 


Issues and Objectives ........................................................................................................... 7.0-2 


Local and Regional Requirements................................................................................... 7.0-2 


Pinole’s Existing Circulation System ................................................................................ 7.0-3 


Bicycling Facilities and Programs .......................................................................................... 7.0-4 


Pedestrian Systems .............................................................................................................. 7.0-7 


Other Transportation Systems .............................................................................................. 7.0-7 


Airports............................................................................................................................ 7.0-7 


Parking ............................................................................................................................ 7.0-7 


Existing Transportation Programs ......................................................................................... 7.0-7 


Traffic Calming Program ................................................................................................. 7.0-7 


Transportation Demand Management Program ............................................................... 7.0-8 


East Bay Smart Corridor Program ................................................................................... 7.0-8 


I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility Project .......................................................................... 7.0-8 


FOCUS ........................................................................................................................... 7.0-8 


Pinole’s Future Circulation Conditions ................................................................................. 7.0-13 


Issues this Element Addresses ........................................................................................... 7.0-14 


Goals, Policies and Actions ................................................................................................. 7.0-19 


 


FIGURES 


Figure 7.1 WestCAT and AC Transit Bus Service ........................................................... 7.0-5 
Figure 7.2 Bicyclists Lanes and Roadways ..................................................................... 7.0-9 
Figure 7.3 Major Roadways .......................................................................................... 7.0-11 
Figure 7.4  LOS Thresholds ........................................................................................... 7.0-15 
Figure 7.5 Old Town Parking District ............................................................................. 7.0-17 
 


315 of 829







316 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 7 


CIRCULATION 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 7.0-1 


 


VISION STATEMENT 


Pinole will maintain and improve 


a well-planned, multimodal 


circulation system. The City will 


promote accessible, economically 


viable and environmentally 


sound transportation options that 


meet the needs of residents, 


employers, employees and 


visitors for safe, convenient and 


efficient travel by a variety of 


methods. 


INTRODUCTION 


This element of the General Plan describes the existing 
transportation conditions in the City of Pinole. It 
describes the various modes in the existing 
transportation system, the existing traffic volumes on 
area roadways, and current levels of service. Relevant 
planning documents and policies and planned roadway 
improvements for the area are also described. 


A Circulation Element has been required as part of local 
general plans since 1955. Guidelines adopted by the 
California Office of Planning and Research emphasize 
the need to develop a “balanced, multimodal 
transportation system.” Cost efficiency and protection of 


environmental quality, including air quality, require attention to non-auto transportation facilities 
and careful coordination with the Land Use and Economic Development Element (Chapter 5). 
Section 65302(b) of the Government Code summarizes state law requirements: 


A circulation element consisting of the general location and extent of existing and 
proposed major thoroughfares, transportation routes, terminals, and other local 
public utilities and facilities all correlated with the land use element of the plan.  


PURPOSE 


Traffic congestion and other circulation constraints are major considerations in determining 
appropriate land uses and responding to future conditions that will affect the quality of life in 
Pinole. The Circulation Element provides data concerning existing and future conditions as a 
factual basis for community goals, policies and implementing actions for existing and proposed 
roadway improvements and other transportation needs. 


Pinole’s Circulation Element addresses such issues as regional traffic congestion, traffic 
impacts on neighborhoods, public transit, trails and parking. More than other elements, the 
Circulation and Land Use elements act in concert to help achieve a vision of sustainability for 
the city. This element expresses a vision for the future where sustainable options of 
transportation, in conjunction with thoughtful development, provide for the needs of existing 
residents and businesses while preserving choices for future generations. 


RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER GENERAL PLAN ELEMENTS 


Chapter 4: The Growth Management Element encourages future growth to locate along the 
primary travel corridors through the community and in areas that are or can 
easily be served by transit.   


Chapter 5: The Land Use and Economic Development Element establishes land use 
designations that guide future Pinole growth and demands on the circulation 
system.   


317 of 829







 


   


CHAPTER 7   


CIRCULATION 


   


7.0-2 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


Chapter 8: The Community Services and Facilities Element sets policies for the future 
maintenance of the road network in Pinole.   


Chapter 10: The Natural Resources and Open Space element addresses pedestrian trails 
and linkages for Pinole. 


Chapter 11: The Sustainability Element encourages transit options for Pinole and guides 
future growth to Pinole’s transit corridors. This element also addresses 
greenhouse gas (GHG) reductions that may be realized by reducing automobile 
trips. 


ISSUES AND OBJECTIVES 


LOCAL AND REGIONAL REQUIREMENTS 


A number of agencies and pieces of legislation govern the growth and maintenance of regional 
and local transportation systems. The Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) is the 
regional organization responsible for prioritizing transportation projects. 


In November 2004, voters approved Measure J, extending the Contra Costa County 
Transportation Improvement and Growth Management Program (Measure C, 1988) by 25 
years. Measure C is enacted by the Contra Costa Transit Authority (CCTA). Full details of 
pertinent Measure J requirements can be found in the Growth Management Element. Below are 
highlights of Measure J that relate to the Circulation Element.  


Measure J continues a 0.5 percent countywide sales tax through the year 2034 that will be used 
to address existing major regional transportation problems. To qualify for its share of the sales 
tax, the City of Pinole will:  


1. Adopt a development mitigation program (adopted by Resolution 2008-92 on June 17, 
2008); 


2. Provide diverse housing options for people who live and work in Pinole (refer to Chapter 
6 – Housing Element); 


3. Participate in cooperative multi-jurisdictional planning (Pinole continues to be an active 
participant on the West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee); 


4. Maintain the adopted Urban Limit Line (ULL) (adopted by Resolution 2007-12 on 
February 6, 2007; 


5. Implement a five-year capital improvement program (the 5-year CIP is updated 
annually); and 


6. Adopt a Transportation Systems Management Ordinance (adopted by Ordinance 
2006-06 on June 20, 2006). 


318 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 7 


CIRCULATION 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 7.0-3 


 


Pinole has an adopted Growth Management Element as part of its General Plan, as required by 
Measure J. In addition, Measure J requires that tax revenues be dedicated to transportation 
projects in Contra Costa County and to the implementation of a Growth Management Program 
by all the cities and the County. Specifically, Measure J provides funding for three categories of 
transportation projects: 


1. Transportation projects identified in Measure J; 


2. Paratransit programs; 


3. Transportation projects funded by Local Street Maintenance and Improvement or 
“Return-to-Source” funds.  


Pinole has met and will continue to meet all Measure J requirements.  


The West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC) is one of four Regional 
Transportation Planning Committees in Contra Costa County, and the committee of which 
Pinole is a member. The Regional Transportation Planning Committees were created to 
manage the 1988 Measure C 1/2 cent transportation sales tax projects and programs, as well 
as its extension, Measure J, approved by Contra Costa voters in 2004. In addition to managing 
revenues from Measures C and J, WCCTAC also administers the subregional transportation 
mitigation fee program (STMP) and participates in defining and implementing policies, programs 
and projects to improve local and regional transportation and air quality. 


PINOLE’S EXISTING CIRCULATION SYSTEM 


The roadway network in Pinole is made up of Interstate 80 (I-80), operated by the California 
Department of Transportation, arterials, collectors, and local streets. Roadways in Pinole also 
support pedestrian and bicycle facilities, though there are some deficiencies in those areas that 
are discussed below. Two railroad lines run along the San Pablo Bay shoreline and support 
both passenger (Amtrak) and freight rail service (Union Pacific and Burlington Northern Santa 
Fe). This circulation network connects to neighboring jurisdictions which offer access to ferry 
service, passenger rail service, and the Bay Area Regional Transit (BART) system. Routes of 
regional significance in Pinole are I-80, San Pablo Avenue, and Appian Way. The Background 
Report contains more details of Pinole’s transportation services and facilities.  


Transit Systems 


Transit systems provide a motorized alternative to private vehicles. As discussed in the 
Sustainability Element (Chapter 11), local governments are taking on responsibility for 
combating climate change. This is done primarily through reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions, a large portion of which are caused by automobile transportation. By reducing 
vehicle miles traveled and single-occupancy vehicle use, and encouraging the use of other 
transit options, Pinole can meet GHG reduction targets, meet state government requirements 
for reducing GHG emissions, contribute to efforts to combat climate change and become more 
sustainable. 


319 of 829







 


   


CHAPTER 7   


CIRCULATION 


   


7.0-4 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


Bus Service 


Bus service in Pinole is provided by the West Contra Costa Transit Authority (WestCAT) and the 
Alameda Contra Costa Transit Authority (AC Transit). Bus service facilities run primarily along 
Pinole’s main transportation corridors: San Pablo Avenue, Pinole Valley Road and Appian Way. 


Passenger Rail Service 


The San Francisco Bay Area Rapid Transit District (BART) provides regional transit service to 
Alameda, San Francisco, Contra Costa and San Mateo counties. There is currently no BART 
service in Pinole. However, WestCAT operates the J bus route, which connects to the BART 
station at El Cerrito del Norte. In addition, the Orinda BART station is approximately 12 miles 
from the city and the Richmond BART station is approximately 6 miles from the city.  


Amtrak operates passenger rail service for three routes that traverse western Contra Costa 
County. While there is no station in Pinole, the closest stations are an Amtrak station at the 
Richmond BART station (approximately 6 miles) and the Martinez station (approximately 9 
miles), and there are plans to build a ferry and Amtrak station in neighboring Hercules. Two of 
Amtrak’s routes that stop in Richmond are intrastate services, the Capitol Corridor serving 
Sacramento/San Jose and the San Joaquin serving Oakland/Bakersfield. The other route is the 
California Zephyr, an interstate service serving Emeryville/Chicago. The Coast Starlight route, 
which serves Los Angeles and Seattle, also shares the existing track.   


Freight Rail Service 


The Union Pacific and Burlington Northern Santa Fe railroads operate freight services that pass 
through Pinole. The Union Pacific tracks are located along the San Pablo Bay shoreline, which 
limits possible public access to the shoreline. Amtrak passenger trains share these tracks with 
the freight trains.  


BICYCLING FACILITIES AND PROGRAMS 


Pinole currently has few designated bicycle facilities. Reasons for this include disconnection, 
lack of signage, lack of roadway crossing aids, topography, and lack of bicycle lanes, and road 
width issues make it difficult to encourage the use of bicycles as a more sustainable 
transportation alternative.  


Bicyclists need parking facilities to access various places and services. Bicycle rack parking is 
located at City Hall and Fernandez Park. According to the Contra Costa Countywide Bicycle and 
Pedestrian Plan, Pinole requires adequate bike parking facilities at transportation centers, public 
parks and buildings, recreational facilities, commercial centers, and large multi-family residential 
projects. Other facilities that may enhance the bicycle system include directional signage 
indicating points of interest and mileage, water fountains, bicycle loops and bicycle showers at 
private facilities, and bike boxes at intersections to facilitate high-volume left turns.  


320 of 829







"J
"J


"J "J


"J
"J"J


"J
"J "J


"J "J
"J
"J


"J"J


"J


"J
"J


"J


"J


"J


"J
"J


"J"J


"J
"J


"J
"J
"J


"J
"J


"J
"J


"J"J


"J


"J


"J


"J"J


"J
"J "J


"J


"J


"J


"J
"J


"J"J


"J


"J
"J


"J


"J"J
"J "J


!"c$


Pinole Val ley  Rd


Pinole Valley Rd
Wright Ave


Simas Ave


Sarah Dr


Fitz


gerald Dr


Estates Ave


Tennent Ave


Ap
pia


n W
ay


Shea Dr


Tara Hil ls D r


Henry Ave


Canyon D rShawn D
r Foothill Ave


Marlesta Rd


Appian Way


San Pablo Ave


He
nry A ve


Del Monte Dr


Su
nn


yv
iew


 D
r


Pinole Shores Dr


Ra
ilro


ad
 Av


e


Richmond Pkwy


Hazel St


Belmont Way


Source: ESRI Streetmap USA, Contra Costa County, 


T:\
_G


IS\
CO


NT
RA


_C
OS


TA
_C


OU
NT


Y\
MX


DS
\P


IN
OL


E\
GP


_U
PD


AT
E_


20
09


\S
EP


T0
9\


BU
S S


ER
VIC


E.M
XD


 - 1
1/


25
/2


00
9 @


 11
:58


:31
 A


M


´
0.25 0 0.25


Miles


Legend
"J Bus Stops


City Limits
Bus Lines


16
17
19
C3
JL
JPX (Commute)
JPX (Midday)
JR


S a n  P a b l o  B a y


Figure 7.1
WestCAT and AC Transit Bus Service


321 of 829







322 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 7 


CIRCULATION 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 7.0-7 


 


PEDESTRIAN SYSTEMS 


Due to the age of existing infrastructure, many sidewalks in Pinole are too narrow to meet the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) standards and have utility poles and other obstructions in 
the pedestrian pathway. Certain sidewalks in Pinole also are too narrow to facilitate convenient 
pedestrian travel. Most signalized intersections have marked crosswalks on all roads and 
pedestrian-activated signals. Intersections close to I-80 prohibit pedestrian crossing across 
some road segments, though some pedestrians cross in spite of these prohibitions. Only one 
intersection has audible crossing signals (San Pablo Avenue at Sunnyview Drive) and none 
have audible actuation. Marked crosswalks are also generally found at unsignalized 
intersections on some legs. Pedestrian curb ramps are located at most intersections except at 
some T-intersections; however, many ramps are steep and are not optimally positioned to lead 
into the crosswalk. Additionally, many existing pedestrian ramps lack high-contrast textured 
markings that optimally delineate the pedestrian and vehicle areas of the intersection. 


The city’s multi-use paths along Pinole Creek and in Bayfront Park at the Bay Trail provide 
recreational and transportation opportunities to walkers. The Pinole Creek Trail provides 
connections to several activity centers, but the Bay Trail must still be completed along the Bay 
shoreline as discussed in the Community Services and Facilities Element (Chapter 8) and 
Natural Resources and Open Space Element (Chapter 10). Disconnection, inadequate signage 
and width issues for bicyclists are equally problematic for pedestrians. Additionally, pathway 
connections from Tennent Avenue and Railroad Avenue to the Bay Trail are unpaved and 
unsigned. Neighborhood access to the Pinole Creek Trail is provided at Prune Street but 
discouraged at Plum Street.  The Old Town area also includes convenient transit stops along 
portions of San Pablo Avenue and Tennent Avenue that are easily accessible to pedestrians. 


OTHER TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS 


AIRPORTS 


The closest airports to Pinole are Oakland International Airport, which is 27 miles away, and 
San Francisco International Airport, which is 34 miles away. Buchanan Field is a local airport 
that does not currently support commercial airline service and is located in Concord, 
approximately 15 miles east of Pinole.   


PARKING 


Parking in Pinole is generally readily available except in Old Town, though off-street parking lots 
and metered on-street parking have not been used as a method to manage parking demand.   


EXISTING TRANSPORTATION PROGRAMS 


TRAFFIC CALMING PROGRAM 


Neighborhoods wishing to install or remove speed humps on local or collector streets within 
residential areas may submit an application to the Public Works Department. According to the 
adopted residential traffic calming policy approved by the City Council on April 21, 2009, the 


323 of 829







 


   


CHAPTER 7   


CIRCULATION 


   


7.0-8 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


installation or removal of speed humps requires approval from 65 percent of the property 
owners within a defined area determined by the Public Works Department 


TRANSPORTATION DEMAND MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


Developed because of the growth management requirement of Measure C, a transportation 
demand management program, 511 Contra Costa, was created to promote alternatives to the 
single-occupant vehicle, such as carpooling, vanpooling, telecommuting, biking, transit and 
walking in Contra Costa County. The program has three offices in the county. Pinole is 
represented by the office located in San Pablo.  


EAST BAY SMART CORRIDOR PROGRAM 


The City of Pinole is a partner of the East Bay SMART Corridors program, the goals of which 
are to “better manage congestion and incidents along regional routes, improve transportation 
mobility, efficiency and safety, and to provide timely, multi-modal transportation information to 
agency transportation managers and to the public”1 along three major arterial corridors including 
the San Pablo Avenue corridor, which runs through Pinole.  


I-80 INTEGRATED CORRIDOR MOBILITY PROJECT 


The I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility (I-80 ICM) project is sponsored by the Alameda County 
Congestion Management Agency, WCCTAC, CCTA, California Department of Transportation 
(Caltrans), MTC, local agencies including the City of Pinole and local transit agencies in 
Alameda and Contra Costa counties. The I-80 ICM project’s goal is to enhance the current 
transportation network along I-80 and its parallel arterials, such as San Pablo Avenue, by 
building an integrated system that would improve the safety and mobility of all users.   


FOCUS 


FOCUS, short for the Focusing Our Vision initiative, is a regional planning initiative undertaken 
by the Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and the MTC in coordination with the Bay 
Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD) and the Bay Conservation and Development 
Commission (BCDC) to support regional development patterns that are compact and transit-
oriented.   


As part of the FOCUS program, all three of Pinole’s major corridors have been designated as 
potential or planned Priority Development Areas (PDA). PDAs are eligible for capital 
infrastructure funds, planning grants and technical assistance. 


Designation of PDAs in Pinole expresses the City’s priorities for managed growth and 
sustainability. This is one way the City is continuing to work with regional agencies to 
accommodate growth and plan future development in a more sustainable manner. 


                                              
1 East Bay Smart Corridor Program, 2007. http://www.smartcorridors.net/about.php 


324 of 829







Not to Scale


Source: Contra Costa County Countywide Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan 2009


T:
\_


C
S\


W
or


k\
Pi


no
le


, C
ity


 o
f\


G
PU


\G
ra


ph
ic


s\
Fi


gu
re


s


Figure 7.2
Bicyclists Lanes and Roadways


325 of 829







326 of 829







!"c$


Pinole Val ley  Rd


Pinole


Pinole Valley Rd Wright Ave


Simas Ave


Sarah Dr


Fitz


gerald Dr


Estates Ave


Tennent Ave


Ap
pia


n W
ay


Shea Dr


Tara Hil ls D r


Henry Ave


Canyon D rShawn Dr Foothill Ave


Marlesta Rd


San Pablo Ave


He
nry A ve


Del Monte Dr


Su
nn


yv
iew


 D
r


Pinole Shores Dr


Ra
ilro


ad
 Av


e


Richmond Pkwy


Hazel St


Belmont Way


Source: ESRI Streetmap USA, Contra Costa County, Dowling Associates, Inc. 2010


T:\
_G


IS\
CO


NT
RA


_C
OS


TA
_C


OU
NT


Y\
MX


DS
\P


INO
LE


\G
P_


UP
DA


TE_
20


09
\S


EP
T09


\M
AJ


OR
 RO


AD
WA


YS
.M


XD
 - 5


/19
/2


01
0 @


 1:
29


:23
 PM


´
0.25 0 0.25


Miles


Legend
Highway
Arterial Route of Regional Significance
Arterial
Collector
Local Street
City Limits


S a n  P a b l o  B a y


Figure 7.3
Major Roadways


327 of 829







328 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 7 


CIRCULATION 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 7.0-13 


 


Regional agencies are working with cities to provide technical assistance and grants and to 
facilitate development within PDAs. Future funding opportunities are anticipated in partnership 
with state agencies and other sources to focus regional development within PDAs as part of a 
long-term strategy to accommodate future growth in a more sustainable manner. 


PINOLE’S FUTURE CIRCULATION CONDITIONS 


Future traffic conditions for Pinole are projected using the CCTA Travel Demand Model. Level of 
service (LOS) is a measure of effectiveness by which traffic engineers measure auto and truck 
service on existing or planned roadways. The definitions of the LOS measures are:  


A. Traffic flowing freely 


B. Generally unimpeded traffic flow 


C. Slower but stable flow with minor delays 


D. Reduced speeds and increased delays 


E. Slow speeds and significant delays 


F. Stop-and-go traffic, high level of delay 


According to projected volumes, the future auto traffic conditions in Pinole will generally function 
at acceptable LOS, with only two intersections and four road segments that will eventually 
function at LOS E or LOS F. Please see Figure 7.4. While most of Pinole’s roadway system will 
continue to function within acceptable levels, increases in daily volumes in segments along San 
Pablo Avenue, Appian Way and Pinole Valley Road will slowly begin to exceed the capacity of 
the roadway. Since increase in daily volumes is minimally due to growth in Pinole, the increase 
in daily volumes can mostly be attributed to growth adjacent areas, such as Hercules, San 
Pablo and the unincorporated county, as well as the lack of alternate transportation options. 
Another cause of the degradation in operations can be attributed to the diversion of through 
traffic from the congested I-80 onto local streets. The anticipated growth in both the San 
Francisco Bay Area and the Sacramento region is expected to result in increased demand on 
the I-80 corridor.  


Traffic improvements that would widen San Pablo Avenue in Old Town in order to avoid LOS F, 
or support vehicular circulation at the expense of pedestrian circulation, have the distinct 
potential to change the historic character of Old Town Pinole, damage the economic vitality of 
the area, and potentially decrease public safety and enjoyment. The viability of the City being 
able to purchase additional public right-of-way in that area is not feasible.  


For these reasons, and with the overarching theme of sustainability in mind, the City has chosen 
to adopt policies to enhance bicycle, pedestrian and public transit options.  


As part of the ongoing effort to encourage future development along the three main 
transportation corridors in Pinole (San Pablo Avenue, Pinole Valley Road and Appian Way), the 


329 of 829







 


   


CHAPTER 7   


CIRCULATION 


   


7.0-14 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


City will adopt the Three Corridors Specific Plan. This Specific Plan provides new land use 
designations, design standards and transit opportunities for the three corridors. One of the 
development projects that the Specific Plan encourages is the narrowing of San Pablo Avenue 
through Old Town Pinole. The road would be narrowed down to two lanes, a bike lane added, 
and pedestrian facilities enhanced, which would slow down traffic, discourage the use of San 
Pablo Avenue as a bypass for I-80, and encourage economic activity in the Old Town area.  


The City will encourage economic development in Old Town that supports this area as a 
destination and the vibrant cultural heart of the community and discourage the use of San Pablo 
Avenue in Old Town as a bypass for I-80. Old Town will continue to be served by shared 
parking facilities and on-street parking as specified in the Zoning Code in order to preserve the 
character of Old Town.  Please see Figure 7.5 for a map of the Old Town Parking District. In 
addition, the City will encourage road improvements that increase pedestrian safety, especially 
in areas such as Old Town where there are destinations easily accessed by pedestrians. To this 
end, the City will support vehicle LOS F as the traffic circulation threshold for the Old Town 
section of San Pablo Avenue.  


It should be noted that several planning efforts are under way to address regional traffic issues 
that may improve the LOS in Old Town. They include (1) the I-80 Corridor Study by the 
Sacramento Area Council of Governments, ABAG, the MTC, and the Solano Transportation 
Authority; and (2) the I-80 Integrated Corridor Mobility Project. Further, the WCCTAC (West 
Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee) Action Plan includes objectives to help 
alleviate congestion along the I-80 corridor and could reduce the traffic impacts on the local 
streets in Pinole. The City will continue to work with regional agencies toward improving 
transportation conditions in Pinole. 


ISSUES THIS ELEMENT ADDRESSES 


This element provides goals, policies and actions that address the following issues, many of 
which were raised at public meetings for the Three Corridors Specific Plan, as well as during 
research to prepare for the update of the General Plan. Some areas of Pinole’s circulation 
system that are addressed in the goals, policies and actions are:  


 Expanding and enhancing the pedestrian trail system in Pinole.  


 Concentration of future development and circulation improvements around Pinole’s three 
primary transportation corridors: San Pablo Avenue, Pinole Valley Road and Appian 
Way (also see the Land Use and Economic Development Element (Chapter 5) and the 
Sustainability Element (Chapter 11)).  


 Improvements to Pinole’s bicycle facilities. 


 More walkable streets with wider sidewalks, pedestrian buffers, and more signalized 
crossings with higher visibility and actuation. 


 Maintain level of service (LOS) standards for traffic operations, except in Old Town, 
where the City will work with CCTA to reduce the threshold to LOS F. 


330 of 829







!"c$


Pinole Va lley Rd


Pinole Valley Rd
Wright Ave


Simas Ave


Sarah Dr


Fit
zgerald Dr


Estates Ave


Tennent Ave


Ap
pia


n W
ay


Shea Dr


Tara Hi lls D r


Henry Ave


Canyon D rShawn Dr Foothill Ave


Marlesta Rd


Appian Way


San Pablo Ave


He


nry A ve


Del Monte Dr


Su
nn


yv
iew


 D
r


Pinole Shores Dr


Ra
ilro


ad
 Av


e


Richmond Pkwy


Hazel St


Belmont Way


Source: ESRI Streetmap USA, Contra Costa County, 


T:\
_G


IS\
CO


NT
RA


_C
OS


TA
_C


OU
NT


Y\
MX


DS
\P


IN
OL


E\
GP


_U
PD


AT
E_


20
09


\S
EP


T0
9\


LO
S.M


XD
 - 1


/7
/2


01
0 @


 2:
01


:54
 PM


´
0.25 0 0.25


Miles


Legend
Highway
Arterial
Collector
Local Street
LOS D (80 to 89 V/C)
LOS D- (85 to 89 V/C)
LOS E+ (90 to 94 V/C)
LOS F (100+ V/C)
City Limits


S a n  P a b l o  B a y


Figure 7.4
LOS Thresholds


Notes: 
1) All areas not otherwise indicated are LOS D+ (80 to 85 V/C).
2) LOS Thresholds apply to intersections within each roadway segment.


331 of 829







332 of 829







Buena Vista Dr


Tennent Ave


San P
ablo


 Ave


Pear St


Pinole Valley Rd


Plum St


John St


Quinan St


Oak Ridge Ln


Prune St


Fernandez Ave
Samuel StRafael


a St


Downer Ave


Peach St


Park St


Fra
nc


isc
a C


t


Charle
s S


t


Antonia Ct


Brandt Ct


Buena Vista Dr


Ellerhorst St


Willow Ave


Calais Dr


Antonia Cir


Valley Rd


Bernardo Ct


Fraser Ct


Antonia Cir


At and SF Railroad


Figure 7.5
Source:  Bing Maps; Dowling & Associates, April 2008; PMC


T:\
_G


IS\
CO


NT
RA


_C
OS


TA
_C


OU
NT


Y\
MX


DS
\P


IN
OL


E\
GP


_U
PD


AT
E_


20
09


\S
EP


T0
9\


OL
D 


TO
WN


.M
XD


 - 1
/7


/2
01


0 @
 1:


31
:56


 PM


´
150 0 150


FEET Old Town Parking District


Legend
Public Parking
Old Town Parking District
Parcels


333 of 829







334 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 7 


CIRCULATION 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 7.0-19 


 


 Plan for future growth and meet Measure J requirements (see Background Report and 
the Growth Management Element (Chapter 4)).  


 Keep Pinole accessible for all members of the community.  


GOALS, POLICIES AND ACTIONS 


The goals of this element are as follows and are listed subsequently with corresponding policies 
and actions. 


 Goal CE.1: Reduce vehicle miles traveled and encourage the use of public transit. 


 Goal CE.2: Achieve a coordinated regional and local transportation system that 
minimizes traffic congestion and efficiently serves users. 


 Goal CE.3: Provide timely input and effective means (as appropriate) of programming 
street and highway improvements to maintain the objective peak hour level of service 
without detrimentally impacting community character or commercial activity.  


 Goal CE.4: Establish programs to support sidewalk, trail and street enhancements, 
where feasible. 


 Goal CE.5: Provide adequate parking and loading facilities while encouraging alternative 
means of transportation.  


 Goal CE.6: Reduce the amount of peak hour automobile congestion on city streets, as 
appropriate. 


 Goal CE.7: Support bicycle use as a mode of transportation by enhancing infrastructure 
to accommodate bicycles and riders.  


 Goal CE.8: Provide a safe network of well-maintained pedestrian walkways throughout 
Pinole that encourages walking as a form of non-motorized transportation.  


GOAL CE.1 Reduce vehicle miles traveled and encourage the use of public transit. 


POLICY CE.1.1 Encourage strategic growth that concentrates future development along 
Pinole’s three primary transit corridors (San Pablo Avenue, Appian Way and 
Pinole Valley Road).  


Action CE.1.1.1 Adopt and implement the Three Corridors Specific Plan. 


Action CE.1.1.2 Adopt a Resolution of Support for the designation of Appian Way, San 
Pablo Avenue and Pinole Valley Road as Preferred Development Areas 
(PDAs). 


335 of 829







 


   


CHAPTER 7   


CIRCULATION 


   


7.0-20 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


Action CE.1.1.3 Apply for grants and other funding, as appropriate to implement the 
PDAs. 


POLICY CE.1.2 Coordinate development of the circulation system with sustainable land use 
planning.  


Action CE.1.2.1  Give priority to projects that will contribute to a reduction in vehicle miles 
traveled per capita, while maintaining economic vitality and sustainability.   


Action CE.1.2.2 Require development to provide bus, bicycle, pedestrian and alternative 
fuel vehicle facilities, as appropriate.   


Action CE.1.2.3 Provide safe and convenient access for pedestrians and bicyclists, 
wherever feasible. 


Policy CE.1.3 Encourage development that is sensitive to both local and regional transit 
measures and that promotes the use of alternative modes of transportation.   


Action CE.1.3.1 Consult with transit providers during review of development proposals.  


Action CE.1.3.2 Include facilities that support alternative modes of transportation 
(pedestrian, bicycles, public transit, electric vehicles, etc.) where feasible.  


POLICY CE.1.4 Encourage maximum utilization of the existing public transit system and 
alternate modes of transportation in Pinole.   


Action CE.1.4.1 Study the feasibility of increasing public transit frequency in areas 
currently served, and continue evaluating the possibility of expanding 
service to areas currently without service.   


Action CE.1.4.2 Include links to public transit resources, bike trails maps, pedestrian trails 
maps and carpool/van pool information on the City’s website. 


Action CE.1.4.3 Pursue extension of rapid bus service to Pinole and enhance transit 
facilities that serve Pinole users. 


Action CE.1.4.4 Support provision of wayfinding signage and markers for transit stops and 
multi-use trails. 


POLICY CE.1.5 Encourage transit facilities that will provide good access to major public 
facilities and employment centers in the city.   


Action CE.1.5.1 Enhance existing and provide additional bus shelters and other amenities 
that support transit use, where feasible and appropriate. 


POLICY CE.1.6 Encourage transit services between major employment centers in each area 
of the city and surrounding communities. 


336 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 7 


CIRCULATION 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 7.0-21 


 


Action CE.1.6.1 The City shall continue to work cooperatively with local and regional 
transit with transportation agencies and other jurisdictions such as BART, 
WCCTAC, Transit Providers, West County Jurisdictions, CCTA, 
Railroads, to maximize connectivity to existing or proposed transit 
stations within the GPU Planning Area.  


Action CE.1.6.2 Work with WestCAT, AC Transit and other transit providers to support 
expanded transit lines and increased frequency of service on major transit 
arterials. 


GOAL CE.2 Achieve a coordinated regional and local transportation system that minimizes 
traffic congestion and efficiently serves users. 


POLICY CE.2.1 Local circulation system improvements should be consistent with the goals 
and objectives stated in the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) 
Regional Transportation Plan.   


Action CE.2.1.1 Work with local and regional jurisdictions in the preparation of regional 
and State-mandated regional plans.  


Action CE.2.1.2 Work with WCCTAC to develop and update the Action Plan for Routes of 
Regional Significance, to establish Multimodal Transportation Service 
Objectives (MTSOs), and to coordinate planning for projects and 
programs of regional importance.   


Action CE.2.1.3 Work with emergency service providers to ensure the transportation 
system facilitates efficient service delivery and protects public safety. 


POLICY CE.2.2 Identify needed improvements to the highway/interstate facilities in the city 
and in order to aid Caltrans in implementing necessary programs on the state 
highway system and its interchanges/intersections with local roadways.   


Action CE.2.2.1 Work with Caltrans and adjacent jurisdictions to improve the operational 
performance of I-80 and local transit corridors designated Priority 
Development Areas (San Pablo Avenue, Appian Way and Pinole Valley 
Road).   


Action CE.2.2.2 Work with Caltrans in analyzing the performance of freeway interchanges 
located in the General Plan area and seek appropriate improvements.   


Action CE.2.2.3 Improve the principal arterial gateways to Pinole to facilitate the 
movement of traffic flowing into and out of the city.    


GOAL CE.3 Provide timely input and effective means (as appropriate) of programming street 
and highway improvements to maintain the objective peak hour level of service 
without detrimentally impacting community character or commercial activity.   


337 of 829







 


   


CHAPTER 7   


CIRCULATION 


   


7.0-22 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


POLICY CE.3.1 Apply the traffic service objectives indicated on Figure 7.4 [of the Circulation 
Element] for the identified roadways. LOS (level of service) and volume to 
capacity (V/C) thresholds are defined as follows: 


Level of Service A (50 to 59 V/C): Indicates a relatively free flow of traffic, 
with little or no limitation on vehicle movement or speed. 


Level of Service B (60 to 69 V/C): Describes a steady flow of traffic, with 
only slight delays in vehicle movement and speed. All queues clear in a 
single signal cycle. 


Level of Service C (70 to 79 V/C): Denotes a reasonably steady, high-
volume flow of traffic, with some limitations on movement and speed, and 
occasional backups on critical approaches. LOS C+ = 70 to 75 V/C. LOS C- = 
75 to 79 V/C.  


Level of Service D (80 to 89 V/C): Denotes the level where traffic nears an 
unstable flow. Intersections still function, but short queues develop and cars 
may have to wait through one cycle during short peaks. LOS D+ = 80 to 85 
V/C. LOS D- = 85 to 89 V/C.   


Level of Service E (90 to 99 V/C): Describes traffic characterized by slow 
movement and frequent (although momentary) stoppages. This type of 
congestion is considered severe, but is not uncommon at peak traffic hours, 
with frequent stopping, long-standing queues, and blocked intersections. LOS 
E+ = 90 to 94 V/C.   


Level of Service F (100+ V/C): Describes stop-and-go traffic characterized 
by traffic jams and stoppages of long duration. Vehicles at signalized 
intersections usually have to wait through one or more signal changes, and 
“upstream” intersections may be blocked by the long queues. 


Action CE.3.1.1 Work with WCCTAC and CCTA to revise the Action Plan level of service 
standard for San Pablo Avenue within Old Town to LOS F and for Appian 
Way between Mann Drive and I-80 to LOS E as well as new MTSO’s that 
reflect non-motorized LOS to create a more pedestrian-friendly 
environment and facilitate pedestrian and bicycle access and circulation.   


Action CE.3.1.2 Project applicants shall provide a traffic study forecasting traffic impacts, 
identifying deficient roadways and intersections, and providing an 
implementation plan for needed improvements to the satisfaction of the 
Public Works Director/City Engineer. 


Action CE.3.1.3 The City shall develop a Roadway/Trail Master Plan to improve the 
sidewalk, bike trail, pedestrian trail and roadway system, as necessary for 
buildout of the General Plan.   


338 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 7 


CIRCULATION 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 7.0-23 


 


POLICY CE.3.2 Maintain roadway network at or above established LOS thresholds. 


POLICY CE.3.3 All projects shall pay their fair share of the cost for project impacts on the 
circulation network in order to ensure that established levels of service are 
met.  


Action CE.3.3.1 Establish a mechanism for collecting appropriate fees from development 
projects that will offset negative impacts on LOS thresholds. 


Action CE.3.3.2 Adopt traffic impact fees that are based upon peak hour trip generation.  


POLICY CE.3.4 Reduce traffic congestion at key intersections throughout the city, as 
appropriate and in line with the overall sustainability goals of the City. 


Action CE.3.4.1 Construct necessary improvements to intersections to ensure that the 
applicable levels of service mentioned in Policy CE.3.1 are achieved.   


GOAL CE.4  Establish programs to support sidewalk, trail and street enhancements, where 
feasible.    


POLICY CE.4.1 Pinole will coordinate local transportation plans and programs with the CCTA 
to ensure eligibility for state and federal funding.   


POLICY CE.4.2 Pinole will coordinate local funding with the Regional Transportation Plan 
(RTP) to ensure eligibility for maximum available funding under the Regional 
Transportation Improvement Plan (RTIP).   


POLICY CE.4.3 The City will assess transit and multimodal impact fees on new developments 
to fund public transportation infrastructure, bicycle infrastructure, pedestrian 
infrastructure and other multimodal accommodations, as appropriate.   


Action CE.4.3.1 Study multimodal impact fees to determine an appropriate amount and 
means of assessing them.  


POLICY CE.4.4 Prioritize transportation funding to support public transit and other non-auto 
modes of transportation.  


Action CE.4.4.1 Before funding transportation improvements that increase roadway 
capacity and vehicle miles traveled, the City will evaluate the feasibility 
and effectiveness of funding projects that support alternative modes of 
transportation and reduced vehicle miles traveled, including transit and 
bicycle and pedestrian access.    


Action CE.4.4.2 Roadways experiencing or forecast to experience worse than applicable 
level of service conditions (unstable or forced traffic flows) shall be 
improved, unless economic conditions, community character issues or 


339 of 829







 


   


CHAPTER 7   


CIRCULATION 


   


7.0-24 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


public health, safety or welfare factors are such that needed 
improvements would be detrimental to other City goals and objectives.   


POLICY CE.4.5 Inventory sidewalk conditions to identify opportunities for enhancements to 
the circulation system and to help prioritize repair and maintenance activities 
as funding becomes available.  


GOAL CE.5 Provide adequate parking and loading facilities while encouraging alternative 
means of transportation.  


POLICY CE.5.1 Provide off-street parking to employees; however preferential parking at 
several locations in the city shall be made available to vanpools, carpools, 
alternative fuel vehicles and other transit users, where feasible and 
appropriate. 


Action CE.5.1.1 Continue to encourage shared parking facilities for both private 
businesses and public agencies.   


Action CE.5.1.2 Continue to maintain the Old Town parking district as described in 
Figure 7.5.   


POLICY CE.5.2 Reserve on-street parking in commercial areas for short-term users.   


Action CE.5.2.1 Consider as needed the use of timed/metered parking to discourage long-
term parking in Old Town, provided resources are available for 
enforcement. 


POLICY CE.5.3 Work with various government agencies to provide secure parking at park-
and-ride lots and transit stations.   


POLICY CE.5.4 Establish parking policies and requirements that support alternative modes of 
transportation.  


Action CE.5.4.1 Allow reduction of minimum on-site parking requirements for development 
that includes exceptional features that support multiple modes of 
transportation.   


Action CE.5.4.2 Encourage shared parking programs in mixed-use and transit-oriented 
development areas.     


GOAL CE.6 Reduce the amount of peak hour automobile congestion on city streets, as 
appropriate. 


POLICY CE.6.1 Encourage the use of carpooling and vanpooling to maintain an acceptable 
LOS on city streets and I-80. 


340 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 7 


CIRCULATION 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 7.0-25 


 


Action CE.6.1.1 Designate a certain percentage of parking spaces for ride-sharing 
vehicles. 


Action CE.6.1.2 Require the development of Transportation Management Associations 
(TMA) for large employers and commercial/industrial complexes. These 
TMAs would develop plans to encourage their employees to use some 
form of collective transportation to commute to and from work. These 
plans should not only include information regarding rideshare lists and 
available transit, but may also include provision of transit passes, 
preferential parking and other incentives to participating employees.   


POLICY CE.6.2 Implement transportation demand management strategies in conjunction with 
land uses in order to prevent future traffic congestion in the city.   


Action CE.6.2.1 Coordinate with ride-sharing programs to provide up-to-date lists of 
potential riders and to educate the public on commuting options.   


Action CE.6.2.2 Encourage the development of employer-funded vanpool and shuttle bus 
services to new employment centers.    


Action CE.6.2.3 Encourage employer provision of information on alternative modes of 
transit. 


Action CE.6.2.4 Encourage employers to offer flextime arrangements to their employees 
in order to reduce the percentage of trips made during peak hours.  


Action CE.6.2.5 Work with schools to encourage carpooling and a flexible class schedule 
in order to reduce the percentage of trips made during peak hours.  


Action CE.6.2.6 Establish and apply minimum carpool requirements for all nonresidential 
developments. 


POLICY CE.6.3 Strive to achieve a 30 percent reduction in the total number of peak period 
employee trips. 


Action CE.6.3.1 Encourage and utilize shuttles to serve neighborhoods, employment 
centers and major destinations.   


Action CE.6.3.2 Work with existing shuttle service providers to coordinate their services 
with other forms of transit, special events and work centers. 


Action CE.6.3.3 Encourage home offices, live/work sites and satellite work centers in 
appropriate locations. 


Action CE.6.3.4 Encourage telecommuting options through public outreach and with new 
and existing employers, as appropriate.   


341 of 829







 


   


CHAPTER 7   


CIRCULATION 


   


7.0-26 CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 


 


Action CE.6.3.5 Explore the potential for creation of a transportation assessment district to 
help fund transportation improvements and repairs throughout the city. 


Action CE.6.3.6 Explore the creation of a network of park-and-ride facilities to support and 
encourage the use of regional transit.  


Action CE.6.3.7 Identify and correct gaps in the pedestrian travel network, whenever 
feasible. 


Action CE.6.3.8 Work with WestCAT and AC Transit to construct additional bus turnouts 
along the following Pinole Roadways:  San Pablo Avenue, Pinole Valley 
Road, Appian Way, and Fitzgerald Drive. 


GOAL CE.7 Support bicycle use as a mode of transportation by enhancing infrastructure to 
accommodate bicycles and riders.   


POLICY CE.7.1 Enhance the city's bikeway network through the use of Class I, II and III 
bikeways. 


Action CE.7.1.1 Develop street design and bikeway design standards to address all street 
users, autos, public transit, bicycles and pedestrians of all ages and abilities. 


Action CE.7.1.2 Prepare and regularly update a Pinole bikeways map and make it 
available on the City’s website. 


Action CE.7.1.3 Provide safe access to public transportation and other non-motorized 
uses through construction of dedicated bicycle paths. 


POLICY CE.7.2 Establish standards for new development and redevelopment projects to 
support bicycle use.  


Action CE.7.2.1 Establish engineering standards for pedestrian and bicycle facilities. 


Action CE.7.2.2 Require provision of adequate, convenient and secure bike parking in 
conjunction with private development. 


Action CE.7.2.3 Provide public bike parking as funding is available. 


Action CE.7.2.4 Require projects to include bicycle facilities, as appropriate. 


POLICY CE.7.3 Establish a network of multi-use paths to facilitate safe and direct off-street 
bicycle and pedestrian travel.   


Action CE.7.3.1 Where feasible, provide bike racks along these trails at safe, lighted 
locations. 


342 of 829







 


  


 CHAPTER 7 


CIRCULATION 


  


CITY OF PINOLE GENERAL PLAN 7.0-27 


 


Action CE.7.3.2 Pursue enhanced funding for bicycle and pedestrian facilities and access 
projects.   


Action CE.7.3.3 Adopt bicycle parking standards that encourage and facilitate bicycle travel.   


Action CE.7.3.4 Minimize bicycle/pedestrian/motor vehicle conflicts by providing proper 
trail, street and intersection design and separation.  


POLICY CE.7.4 Establish bicycle safety as a priority through ongoing public education.  


Action CE.7.4.1 Assist in the development and dissemination of public education 
programs to promote bicycle safety. 


GOAL CE.8 Provide a safe network of well-maintained pedestrian walkways throughout 
Pinole that encourages walking as a form of non-motorized transportation.  


POLICY CE.8.1 Require development to provide pedestrian walkways that are safe, 
interconnected and accessible by all members of the community 


Action CE.8.1.1 As feasible, ensure that all intersections in areas with pedestrian usage 
are signalized with curb ramps, bulbouts, high-contrast crosswalks and 
pedestrian actuation, and other safety measures. 


Action CE.8.1.2 Where feasible, use landscaping or physical barriers on high-capacity 
arterials to separate vehicles and pedestrians. 


POLICY CE.8.2 Encourage the community to take advantage of Pinole’s pedestrian facilities 


and recreational opportunities and increase non-motorized modes of 
transportation.   


POLICY CE.8.3 Design access ways to school facilities that will ensure public safety.   


Action CE.8.3.1 In conjunction with the public school system and other appropriate public 
facilities and programs, assist in developing public education programs to 
promote pedestrian safety.  


Action CE.8.3.2 Ensure that all intersections near schools are signalized with curb ramps, 
high-contrast crosswalks and pedestrian actuation, where feasible.   


Action CE.8.3.3 Actively support the Safe Routes to Schools program, including making 
use of available funding and technical assistance. 


POLICY CE.8.4 Encourage the location of basic shopping and services within walkable 
distances to residential areas.   


Action CE.8.4.1 Use strategic planning to establish land use patterns that encourage 
mixed-use, walkable development.   


343 of 829







5098295.1 


 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 


9I


DATE: June 6, 2023 


TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: ERIC CASHER, CITY ATTORNEY 


SUBJECT: SECOND READING OF ORDINANCE APPROVING A MILITARY 
EQUIPMENT USE POLICY AND APPROVING RENEWAL OF 
CHAPTER 2.60 “MILITARY EQUIPMENT POLICY” OF THE PINOLE 
MUNICIPAL CODE 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends the City Council waive the second reading and adopt an ordinance 
approving a Military Equipment Use Policy and approving renewal of Chapter 2.60 
“Military Equipment Policy” of the Pinole Municipal Code, based upon approval of the 
Pinole Police Department’s Annual Military Equipment Report May 2022 – April 2023 
and Pinole Police Department Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and Use Policy 
707, in compliance with AB 481. 


BACKGROUND 


California Assembly Bill (AB) 481 (Government Code §7070 et seq.) requires the Pinole 
Police Department (“Department”) to obtain City Council approval of a military 
equipment use policy by ordinance before purchasing, raising funds for, acquiring or 
using "military equipment" as defined in Government Code §7070 (c). Under AB 481, 
the City Council may only approve the policy if it makes specific findings regarding the 
equipment including safeguards, cost effectiveness, reasonableness of use, and fiscal 
impact.  


On May 3, 2022, the City Council approved the Department’s Policy (identified as 
Department Policy 707) finding it meets the requirements under AB 481 and introduced 
and adopted an ordinance adding Chapter 2.60 “Military Equipment Policy” to the Pinole 
Municipal Code (Ord. 2022-02). 


AB 481 requires the Department submit to the City Council an annual military equipment 
report for each type of military equipment approved within one year of approval, and 
annually thereafter for as long as the military equipment is available for use. The 
Department must also make each annual military equipment report publicly available on 
its internet website for as long as the military equipment is available for use. Additionally, 
the City Council must review the ordinance that it has adopted, approving of the funding, 
acquisition, or use of military equipment, at least annually, and vote on whether to renew 
the ordinance at a regular meeting. During the review process, the City Council must 


344 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023 


determine, based on the military equipment report, whether each type of military 
equipment in the report has complied with the standards for approval 
 
On May 1, 2023, the Pinole Police Department’s annual military equipment report was 
posted on the Department’s internet website and within thirty (30) days, the Department 
conducted a well-publicized public meeting concerning the renewal of the military 
equipment at issue in compliance with Government Code Section 7072(b).  
 
On May 16, 2023, at a regularly scheduled City Council Meeting, a public hearing was 
held. The Department presented its Annual Military Equipment Report (May 2022-April 
2023) and the Department’s Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and Use Policy 
707 to Council for approval. The City Council received a presentation and staff report to 
introduce and conduct a first reading of the proposed ordinance to approve and renew 
Chapter 2.60 to the Pinole Municipal Code adopting the Policy in compliance with AB 
481. Four councilmembers voted affirmatively and one councilmember voted against. 
The purpose of the proposed ordinance is to confirm City Council’s approval of the 
proposed Policy based upon approval of the Department’s annual report. If approved 
on second read, the ordinance and policy will go in to effect in thirty (30) days. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact from the adoption of the ordinance. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 


 A. Staff Report dated May 16, 2023 (with attachments) 
 


 


345 of 829







 CITY COUNCIL 
 REPORT 


10A


DATE: MAY 16, 2023 


TO: HONORABLE MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: LIEUTENANT JEREMY CRONE 


SUBJECT: CONDUCT FIRST READING OF ORDINANCE 
ADOPTING A MILITARY EQUIPMENT POLICY AND APPROVING 
RENEWAL OF CHAPTER 2.60 “MILITARY EQUIPMENT POLICY” 
OF THE PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE; AND REVIEW OF 2022-2023 
ANNUAL REPORT IN COMPLIANCE WITH AB 481 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council conduct a public hearing, review and approve the 
2022-2023 Pinole Police Department Annual Military Equipment Report, and waive full 
reading and introduce by title only an ordinance approving and re-adopting a Military 
Equipment Use Policy as Stated in Chapter 2.60 “Military Equipment Policy” of the Pinole 
City Municipal Code in compliance with AB 481. 


BACKGROUND 


On September 30, 2021, Governor Newsom signed into law Assembly Bill (AB) 481, to 
address the use of military equipment by law enforcement agencies in California. AB 481’s 
stated goals are to increase transparency, accountability and oversight related to the acquisition 
and use of military equipment by law enforcement agencies, as well as, to provide legally 
enforceable safeguards to protect the public’s welfare, safety, civil rights, and civil liberties 
before military equipment is funded, acquired, or used by local law enforcement agencies. 


Effective January 1, 2022, AB 481, codified as Government Code sections 7070 et seq., 
requires that the City of Pinole Police Department (“Department”) adopt a written military 
equipment use policy approved by the City Council by way of an ordinance, prior to taking 
certain actions relating to the funding, acquisition, or use of military equipment as defined by 
the State legislature. Specifically, the Department must adopt a military equipment use policy 
approved by the City Council before the Department: (1) continues to use any military 
equipment acquired before January 1, 2022; (2) purchases, raises funds for, or acquires military 
equipment after January 1, 2022; or (3) collaborates with another law enforcement agency in 
the deployment or use of military equipment within the Department’s jurisdiction, or allows 
use of said equipment by any person not previously approved by Council.  


346 of 829







City Council Report  
May 16, 2023 


Under AB 481, the City Council may only approve the policy if it makes specific findings 
regarding the equipment including safeguards, cost effectiveness, reasonableness of use, and 
fiscal impact. Specifically, City Council must make all of the following findings: 
 


1. The military equipment is necessary because there is no reasonable alternative that can 
achieve the same objective of officer and civilian safety. 


2. The policy will safeguard the public’s welfare, safety, civil rights, and civil liberties. 
3. If purchasing the equipment, the equipment is reasonably cost effective compared to 


available alternatives that can achieve the same objective of officer and civilian safety. 
4. Prior military equipment use complied with the military equipment use policy that was 


in effect at the time, or if prior uses did not comply with the accompanying military 
equipment use policy, corrective action has been taken to remedy nonconforming uses 
and ensure future compliance. 


 
On May 3, 2022, the City Council approved the Department’s Policy (identified as Department 
Policy 707) finding it meets the requirements under AB 481 and introduced and adopted an 
ordinance adding Chapter 2.60 “Military Equipment Policy” to the Pinole Municipal Code 
(Ord. 2022-02). 
 
AB 481 (Government Code §7072) requires that the Department submit to the City Council an 
annual military equipment report for each type of military equipment approved within one year 
of approval, and annually thereafter for as long as the military equipment is available for use. 
Additionally, the City Council must review the ordinance that it has adopted, approving of the 
funding, acquisition, or use of military equipment, at least annually, and vote on whether to 
renew the ordinance at a regular meeting. During the review process, the City Council must 
determine, based on the military equipment report, whether each type of military equipment in 
the report has complied with the standards for approval set forth in Government Code sections 
7071(d)(1) and 7071(e)(2). If it determines a type of equipment identified in the report has not 
complied with the standards for approval, the City Council must either disapprove of the 
renewal of the ordinance or require modifications to the military equipment use policy in a 
manner that will resolve the lack of compliance.  
 
Attachment A is the proposed ordinance. Attachment B is the 2022-2023 Annual Report, 
including the inventory list of military equipment the Department has and intends to use in the 
future that falls within the definition of “military equipment” under AB 481. Attachment C is 
the Department’s military equipment use policy.  
 
DISCUSSION  
 
AB 481 requires a law enforcement agency that receives approval for a military equipment use 
policy to submit to the City Council an annual military equipment report for each type of 
military equipment approved within one year of approval, and annually thereafter for as long 
as the military equipment is available for use. The law enforcement agency must also make 
each annual military equipment report publicly available on its internet website for as long as 
the military equipment is available for use.  Government Code section  7072 (a) states that the 
annual report must include the following information: 
 


347 of 829







City Council Report  
May 16, 2023 


1. A summary of any complaints or concerns received concerning the military equipment. 
2. The results of any internal audits or information about violations of the military 


equipment use policy.  This includes any actions taken in response. 
3. The total annual cost for each type of military equipment, including acquisition, 


personnel, training, transportation, maintenance, storage, upgrade, and other ongoing 
costs, and from what source funds will be provided for the military equipment in the 
calendar year following submission of the annual military equipment report. 


4. The quantity possessed for each type of military equipment. 
5. If the law enforcement agency intends to acquire additional military equipment in the 


next year, the quantity sought for each type of military equipment. 
6. A summary of how the military equipment was used and the purpose of its use. 


 
In compliance with the Government Code, the Department’s annual use report was released to 
the community, via the Department’s transparency portal on May 1, 2023 and provided to City 
Council. Within 30 days of submitting and publicly releasing its annual military equipment 
report, the Department is required hold at least one well-publicized and conveniently located 
public meeting, at which the general public may discuss and ask questions regarding the annual 
military equipment report and the law enforcement agency’s funding, acquisition, or use of 
military equipment. That meeting is being held concurrently with the presentation of this 
ordinance. The annual use report contains all the required elements of Government Code 
section 7072 (a) set forth above.  
 
In addition, the Department is required to re-submit the previously approved policy for re-
approval consideration, as an agenda item during open session. The previously approved policy 
is attached to this report (Exhibit C). The Department does not anticipate any significant 
change in the previously approved policy or previously authorized military equipment. At this 
time, the Department does not intend to acquire additional types of military equipment, 
however, future attempts to obtain new equipment will comply with procedures set forth in the 
Government Code and the approved military equipment policy; this includes a public hearing 
and City Council approval prior to acquisition. At this time, forecasted purchases for the 
Department in 2023 only include additional ammunition which need to be replenished after 
being used in either the field or training environments. All items needing to be replenished are 
included in the policy and attached inventory which were previously approved by the City 
Council.   
 
Through acceptance of the annual report and renewal of the ordinance, the City Council will 
authorize the continued use of preexisting equipment considered “military equipment” under 
AB 481. This includes a Mine Resistant Ambush Protected Vehicle (MRAP) for use as an 
Emergency Rescue Vehicle (ERV) to safely evacuate residents in the event of a natural disaster 
or critical incidents, to move personnel and/or resources in support of natural disasters (i.e. 
flood, fire, earthquake), large scale logistics, active shooter incidents, and incidents where there 
is reason to expect potential armed resistance requiring protection. The Policy also includes a 
single unmanned, remotely piloted, powered ground vehicle used to enhance peace officer and 
community safety when encountering potentially dangerous situations by providing first 
responders with the ability to capture video and still images, and to transport communication 
equipment or other resources prior to, or in lieu of, sending in personnel into hazardous 
incidents or environments. 


348 of 829







City Council Report  
May 16, 2023 


 
Other items deemed to be “military equipment” under AB 481 include foundational equipment 
such as rifles and ammunition. These rifles allow peace officers to address lethal threats from 
a greater distance and with greater precision. The Department also seeks authorization to use 
four preexisting pepper ball launchers and projectiles, to limit the escalation of conflict where 
employment of lethal force is prohibited or undesirable. The projectiles provide officers with 
a less-lethal option in incidents of combative or self-destructive individuals, riot/crowd control 
and civil unrest incidents, circumstances where a tactical advantage can be obtained, 
potentially vicious animals, and training exercises or approved demonstrations. The equipment 
allows for more time and opportunity to attempt to deescalate situations and provide for safer 
tactics to resolve life threatening events in the safest way possible. 
 
The Policy safeguards the public’s welfare, safety, civil rights and civil liberties by ensuring 
that there are safeguards, including transparency, oversight, and accountability measures in 
place. For instance, the Policy authorizes the Chief of Police to designate a member of the 
Department to act as the military equipment coordinator. The responsibilities of the military 
equipment coordinator include, but are not limited, acting as a liaison to City Council for all 
matters related to the requirements of AB 481, identifying “military equipment” as defined 
under the statute, conducting annual inventory and review, collaborating with outside agencies, 
and scheduling and coordinating an annual community engagement hearing to address the 
Department's funding, acquisition, and use of military equipment.  
 
During this period (May 2022 – April 2023), the Department has used military equipment 
under this policy during community events (ERV, command post, and iRobot) and officer 
training (ERV and rifles). No equipment has been used in a law enforcement incident.  
 
During this period, the Colt AR-15/M4 Carbine rifles underwent maintenance and internal 
upgrades to maintain the safety and functionality of the rifles. The Emergency Rescue Vehicle 
(ERV) underwent routine maintenance and deferred repairs to ensure the proper and safe 
operation of the vehicle. The PepperBall system required minimal maintenance during this 
period. 
 
The Department has a significant interest in continuing to have access to equipment that will 
provide peace officers as many options as possible to safeguard lives, ensure safety, and protect 
civil liberties of the citizens of the City of Pinole. The use of the military equipment identified 
on the inventory list is vital to the Department’s mission and will continue to be strictly 
regulated through internal processes and oversight. 
 
In compliance with the Government Code, the Military Equipment Policy has remained on the 
Department’s transparency portal continuously since prior to Council adoption in 2022.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no direct fiscal impact from the acceptance of the annual report or the approval of 
continuing the ordinance approving the military equipment use policy. The Policy explicitly 
references the fiscal impact related to costs to maintain or acquire equipment and are included 
in the existing department’s budget allocation. 


349 of 829







City Council Report  
May 16, 2023 


 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A. Ordinance of the City Council of the City of Pinole Approving and Re-Adopting a 


Military Equipment Use Policy as Stated In Chapter 2.60 “Military Equipment Policy” 
of the Pinole Municipal Code In Compliance With Assembly Bill 481 


B. 2022-2023 Pinole Police Department Annual Military Equipment Report May 2022 – 
April 2023 


C. Pinole Police Department Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and Use Policy 
707 


 


350 of 829







ORDINANCE NO. 2023-XX 


AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PINOLE APPROVING AND RE-ADOPTING A 
MILITARY EQUIPMENT USE POLICY AS STATED IN CHAPTER 2.60 “MILITARY 


EQUIPMENT POLICY” OF THE PINOLE MUNICIPAL CODE IN COMPLIANCE 
WITH ASSEMBLY BILL 481 (GOVERNMENT CODE SECTION 7070, et. seq.) 


WHEREAS, on September 30, 2021, Governor Gavin Newsom signed into law Assembly Bill 
481 relating to the use of military equipment by California law enforcement agencies; and 


WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 481 seeks to provide transparency, oversight, and an opportunity for 
meaningful public input on decisions regarding whether and how military equipment is funded, 
acquired, or used by law enforcement agencies; and 


WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 481, codified at California Government Code section 7070, et. seq., 
requires law enforcement agencies obtain approval of the applicable governing body, by an 
ordinance adopting a “military equipment” use policy, at a regular meeting held pursuant to open 
meeting laws, prior to taking certain actions relating to the funding, acquisition, or use of 
military equipment. The term “military equipment” is defined in California Government Code 
section 7070(c); and 


WHEREAS, the policy must be a document covering the inventory, description, purpose, use, 
acquisition, maintenance, fiscal impacts, procedures, training, oversight, and complaint process, 
applicable to the police department’s use of such equipment; and 


WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 481 allows the governing body of a city to approve the military 
equipment use policy for continued or future funding, acquisition, or use of military equipment 
within its jurisdiction only if it makes specified determinations specified in Government Code 
section 7071(d); and 


WHEREAS, on May 3, 2022, the City Council adopted Ordinance 2022-02 approving and 
adopting a military equipment use policy identified as Pinole Police Department Policy 707, 
having received the information required under Assembly Bill 481 regarding the Pinole Police 
Department’s use of military equipment as defined in said law and upon a finding of the 
specified determinations required under Government Code Section 7071(d); and  


WHEREAS, Government Code section 7072 provides that a law enforcement agency that 
receives approval for a military equipment use policy pursuant to Section 7071 shall submit to 
the governing body an annual military equipment report for each type of military equipment 
approved by the governing body within one year of approval, and annually thereafter for as long 
as the military equipment is available for use; and 


WHEREAS, the law enforcement agency shall also make each annual military equipment report 
publicly available on its internet website for as long as the military equipment is available for 
use; and 


WHEREAS, the annual military report shall include the following information for the 
immediately preceding calendar year for each type of military equipment:  


ATTACHMENT A


351 of 829







a. A summary of how the military equipment was used and the purpose of its use; 


b. A summary of any complaints or concerns received concerning the military 
equipment; 


c. The results of any internal audits, any information about violations of the military 
equipment use policy, and any actions taken in response; 


d. The total annual cost for each type of military equipment, including acquisition, 
personnel, training, transportation, maintenance, storage, upgrade, and other 
ongoing costs, and from what source funds will be provided for the military 
equipment in the calendar year following submission of the annual military 
equipment report; 


e. The quantity possessed for each type of military equipment;  


f. If the law enforcement agency intends to acquire additional military equipment in 
the next year, the quantity sought for each type of military equipment; and 


WHEREAS, Government Code section 7071(d) provides the governing body shall determine, 
based on the annual military equipment report submitted pursuant to Section 7072, whether each 
type of military equipment identified in that report has complied with the following standards for 
approval: 


a. The military equipment is necessary because there is no reasonable alternative 
that can achieve the same objective of officer and civilian safety; 


b. The proposed military equipment use policy will safeguard the public’s welfare, 
safety, civil rights, and civil liberties; 


c. If purchasing the equipment, the equipment is reasonably cost effective compared 
to available alternatives that can achieve the same objective of officer and civilian 
safety; 


d. Prior military equipment use complied with the military equipment use policy that 
was in effect at the time, or if prior uses did not comply with the accompanying 
military equipment use policy, corrective action has been taken to remedy 
nonconforming uses and ensure future compliance; and 


WHEREAS, if the governing body determines that a type of military equipment identified in 
that annual military equipment report has not complied with the standards for approval set forth 
above, the governing body shall either disapprove a renewal of the authorization for that type of 
military equipment or require modifications to the military equipment use policy in a manner that 
will resolve the lack of compliance; and 


WHEREAS, the governing body shall review any ordinance that it has adopted approving the 
funding, acquisition, or use of military equipment at least annually and vote on whether to renew 
the ordinance at a regular meeting held pursuant to open meeting laws; and 


352 of 829







WHEREAS, the Pinole Police Department’s annual military equipment report was posted on the 
department’s internet website on May 1, 2023 and within thirty (30) days conducted a well-
publicized public meeting concerning the renewal of the military equipment at issue in 
compliance with Government Code Section 7072 (b); and 


WHEREAS, the Pinole Police Department seeks renewal of Policy 707; and 


WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Pinole, having received the information required 
under Assembly Bill 481 regarding the Pinole Police Department’s renewed use of military 
equipment as defined in said law, and makes the specified determinations required under 
Government Code Section 7070, et. seq., deems it to be in the best interest of the City to approve 
and renew the Pinole Police Department’s Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and Use 
Policy as set forth in the policy identified as Pinole Police Department Policy 707. 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, in accordance with Government Code Section 7070 et. 
seq., and pursuant to the findings stated herein, that the City Council of the City of Pinole hereby 
finds as follows: 


Section 1.  Recitals.   


The above recitals are true and correct and made a part of this Ordinance. 


Section 2.   Determinations. 


Based on the findings above, in addition to information provided to the City Council at the 
public meeting, the City Council determines as follows: 


1. The military equipment identified in the annual military equipment report has complied 
with the standards for approval as set forth in Government Code section 7071 subdivision 
(d). 


2. The Pinole Police Department’s Military Equipment Use Policy is necessary because 
there are no reasonable alternatives that can achieve the same objectives of officer and 
civilian safety. 


3. The Pinole Police Department’s Military Equipment Use Policy will safeguard the 
public’s welfare, safety, civil rights, and civil liberties. 


4. The military equipment identified in the Pinole Police Department’s Military Equipment 
Use Policy is reasonably cost effective compared to available alternatives that can 
achieve the same objectives of officer and civilian safety. 


5. Prior military equipment use by the Pinole Police Department complied with the Military 
Equipment Use Policy although it was not yet in effect at the time, or if prior uses did not 
comply with the accompanying military equipment use policy, corrective action has been 
taken to remedy nonconforming uses and ensure future compliance. 


353 of 829







6. The Pinole Police Department’s Military Equipment Use Policy, Policy 707, setting forth 
the City’s military equipment use policy is approved and renewed.  


Section 3.  Severability.   
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is for any reason 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a decision of any court of competent jurisdiction, 
such decision will not affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. The 
City Council hereby declares that it would have passed this ordinance and each of every 
section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase not declared invalid or unconstitutional 
without regard to whether any portion of the ordinance would be subsequently declared 
invalid or unconstitutional. 


 
Section 4.  Effective Date and Duration.    
 
This ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days after its final adoption. 


 
Section 5.  Publication.   
 
The City Clerk is directed to cause this ordinance to be published in a manner required by 
law. 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Pinole City Council held on June 6, 
2023, the City Council passed this urgency ordinance by the following vote: 
 
 AYES:   COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 NOES:   COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 ABSTAIN:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 ABSENT:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
IN WITNESS of this action, I sign this document and affix the corporate seal of the City 
of Pinole on June 6, 2023. 
     
                                                                           _________________________________ 


Devin T. Murphy      
         Mayor 


 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC  
City Clerk 
 
 


354 of 829







PINOLE POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 


ANNUAL MILITARY  
EQUIPMENT REPORT 


MAY 2022 – APRIL 2023 


ATTACHMENT B


355 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


1 


 


 


 
 


Table of Contents 
Introduction .................................................................................................................... 3 


Definitions ...................................................................................................................... 4 


Summary of Military Equipment ................................................................................... 5 


Military Equipment Inventory ..................................................................................... 5 


2022 Equipment Training Use & Purchase .................................................................. 8 


Community Concerns and Complaints ........................................................................ 8 


Internal Military Equipment Inventory & Audit ............................................................ 9 


Projected Military Equipment Acquisition (2023/2024) ............................................. 10 


356 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


2 


 


 


INTRODUCTION 


 
On September 30, 2021, the Governor of the State of California approved Assembly Bill 
481 (codified as Chapter 12.8 of the California Government Code) requiring law 
enforcement agencies such as the Pinole Police Department to have a military use policy 
approved by the City Council prior to requesting, seeking funding, acquiring or using 
military equipment. Assembly Bill 481 allows the governing body to approve the policy 
within its jurisdiction only if it determines that the military equipment meets specified 
standards. 


 
On May 3, 2022, the City of Pinole Council approved Ordinance 2022-02 approving Pinole 
Police Department Policy #707: Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition, and Use. As 
required by Assembly Bill 481 and the Ordinance, annually the Pinole Police Department 
must prepare a report on the use of each type of military equipment approved in the Policy 
over the last year. Subsequently, the City Council must then review the Ordinance, Policy 
and Annual Report, and determine whether the Department’s use of military equipment 
in the past year complied with the Policy, and whether to continue the Ordinance and 
Policy, take action (by ordinance) to modify the Policy or repeal the Ordinance. 


 
As set forth in the Policy, the Pinole Police Department retains and employs limited 
military equipment to safeguard its community. Pinole Police Department officers and 
certified instructional staff, receive training throughout the year on the use of military 
equipment approved under the Policy. 


 
This Annual Report outlines the Pinole Police Department’s military equipment inventory 
and usage, community complaints over use of military equipment, and internal audits from 
May 1, 2022, through April 30, 2023. The Department will submit its Military Equipment 
Annual Report to City Council annually in compliance with AB 481. 


357 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


3 


 


 


DEFINITIONS 


 
Definitions of Military Equipment established by California Government Code §7070: 


(Pinole Police Department utilizes a limited number of the resources listed below) 


Military equipment includes but is not limited to the following types of equipment: 
 


• Unmanned, remotely piloted, powered aerial or ground vehicles 
• Mine-resistant ambush-protected (MRAP) vehicles or armored personnel carriers 
• High mobility multipurpose wheeled vehicles (HMMWV), two-and-one-half-ton 


trucks, five-ton trucks, or wheeled vehicles that have a breaching or entry 
apparatus attached 


• Tracked armored vehicles that provide ballistic protection to their occupants 
• Command and control vehicles that are either built or modified to facilitate the 


operational control and direction of public safety units 
• Weaponized aircraft, vessels, or vehicles or any kind 
• Battering rams, slugs, and breaching apparatuses that are explosive in nature. 


This does not include a handheld, one-person ram 
• Firearms and ammunition of .50 caliber or greater, excluding standard-issue 


shotguns and standard-issue shotgun ammunition 
• Specialized firearms and ammunition of less than .50 caliber, including firearms 


and accessories identified as assault weapons in Penal Code §30510 and Penal 
Code §30515, with the exception of standard-issue firearms 


• Any firearm or firearm accessory that is designed to launch explosive projectiles 
• Noise-flash diversionary devices and explosive breaching tools 
• Munitions containing tear gas or OC, excluding standard, service-issued handheld 


pepper spray 
• Taser Shockwave, microwave weapons, water cannons, and long-range acoustic 


devices (LRADs) 
• Kinetic energy weapons and munitions (e.g. 40MM launcher, bean bag shotgun, 


foam tipped projectiles) 
• Any other equipment as determined by a governing body or a state agency to 


require additional oversight. 


358 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


4 


 


 


Pinole Police Department Military Equipment Inventory 
 


1. Equipment Type: Mine Resistant Ambush Protected Vehicle (MRAP) – CA Govt Code 
§7070(c)(2) 


Quantity Owned or Sought: 1 Lifespan: Unknown 


Purpose/Authorized User: Emergency Rescue Vehicle (ERV) to safely evacuate residents 
in the event of a natural disaster or critical incidents. To move personnel and/or resources in 
support of natural disasters (i.e. flood, fire, earthquake), large scale logistics, active shooter 
incidents, and incidents where there is reason to expect potential armed resistance requiring 
protection. Use may be authorized by Watch Commander or Tactical/Operations 
Commander, based on the circumstances of the given incident. 
Fiscal Impact: Acquired under the Law Enforcement Support Program Office (LESO): $0 for 
equipment. $9,200 for delivery, paint and upfitting. Annual maintenance cost is approximately 
$1,000.00 


Legal and Procedural Rules Governing: It is the policy of the department to utilize armored 
vehicles only for law enforcement purposes and pursuant to State and Federal law. 


Training Required: Department provided training. 


Other Notes: The MRAP is an armored vehicle manufactured by BAE Systems/Caiman 
weighing over 34,000 pounds and can carry a payload of over 4,000 pounds. The vehicle has 
six (6) wheels fitted with tires and is all-wheel drive, powered by a diesel engine. The vehicle 
measures approximately 22 feet long, 8 feet wide, and 10 feet tall. 


 
 


2. Equipment Type: Unmanned, remotely piloted, powered ground vehicles - CA Gov’t Code 
§7070(c)(1) 


Quantity Owned/Sought: 1 Lifespan: Approximately 15 years 


Equipment Capabilities: Vehicle is capable of being remotely navigated to provide scene 
information and intelligence in the form of video and still images transmitted to first 
responders. 


Manufacturer Product Description: iRobot PackBot 510 Multi Mission Robot (MMR) 
Purpose/Authorized Uses: To enhance officer and community safety when encountering 
potentially dangerous situations by providing first responders with the ability to capture video 
and still images, to transport communication equipment or other resources prior to, in lieu of 
sending in personnel into hazardous incidents or environments. 
Fiscal Impacts: Acquired under the Law Enforcement Support Program Office (LESO): $0 
for equipment. Annual maintenance cost is approximately $500. 


Legal/Procedural Rules Governing Use: The use of unmanned, remotely piloted, powered 
ground vehicles potentially involves privacy considerations. Absent a warrant or exigent 
circumstances, operators and observers shall adhere to all applicable privacy laws and shall 


359 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


5 


 


 


 


not intentionally record or transmit images of any location where a person would have a 
reasonable expectation of privacy. 


Training Required: Department provided training. 


Other Notes: None 


 
 


3. Equipment Type: Command and control vehicles that are either built or modified to 
facilitate the operational control and direction of public safety units – CA Govt Code 
§7070(c)(5) 
Quantity Owned or Sought: 1 Lifespan: 20 years 


Purpose/Authorized User: Trailer is purpose‐built to facilitate the operational control and 
direction of public safety units conducting DUI enforcement checkpoints, traffic safety 
operations, and responding to or at an incident. The Command and Control (C&C) trailer 
serves as a centralized location for command decision making, enhanced communication and 
other situational awareness capabilities. Use may be authorized by Watch Commander or 
Tactical/Operations Commander, based on the circumstances of the given incident. 


Fiscal Impact: Acquired by grant issued by the State of California Office of Traffic Safety 
under a Traffic Safety Grant. $40,415 for equipment. Annual maintenance cost is 
approximately $1000. 
Legal and Procedural Rules Governing: It is the policy of the department to utilize C&C 
trailer only for law enforcement purposes and pursuant to State and Federal law. 


Training Required: Department provided training. 


Other Notes: The command-and-control trailer is standard tow-behind trailer with dual axels 
manufactured by Universal Trailer with a GVW of 3,100 pounds. The trailer measures 
approximately 16 feet long, 8.5 feet wide, and 9 feet tall. The trailer is equipped with a fold- 
down rear door, lighting, and a generator. 


 
 


4. Equipment Type: Semiautomatic Rifles and Ammunition - CA Gov’t Code §7070(c)(10) 


Quantity Owned or Sought: 28 Lifespan: 15 years 


Purpose/Authorized User: Colt AR-15/M4 Carbine semiautomatic shoulder fired rifle with 
long spirally grooved barrel that fires .223 Rem/5.56 mm projectile bullet. The rifles are 
equipped with 10.5” barrel, Surefire muzzle brake, and Surefire SOCOM556-RC2 
suppressors. Ammunition is Speer Gold Dot caliber .223 62 grain for duty/range and 
Winchester .556 62 grain for target/range. 


 
A standard officer issue to be used as a precision weapon to address a threat with more 
precision and/or greater distances than a handgun, if present and feasible. 
Fiscal Impact: 


• Colt AR-15/M4 Rifle: $32,400, quantity: 28 
• Surefire muzzle brake: $2,779, quantity: 28 


360 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


6 


 


 


 


• Surefire SOCOM556-RC2 Suppressors: $22,408, quantity: 28 
• .223 62 gr ammunition: $1,700, quantity: 3,920 (1,780 Speer duty ammo, 2,140 


Winchester target/range) 
• Annual maintenance and ammo cost is approximately $4,000 


Legal and Procedural Rules Governing: All applicable State, Federal and Local laws 
governing police use of force. Various Pinole Police Department Policies on Use of Force and 
Firearms. 
Training Required: Department firearms training and qualifications as required by law and 
policy by POST certified instructors. CA POST certified 24-hour patrol rifle course. 
Other Notes: These rifles are standard issue service weapons for our officers and therefore 
exempted from this Military Equipment Use Policy per CA Gov’t Code §7070 (c)(10). They 
have been included in this document in an abundance of caution and in the interest of 
transparency. 


 


5. Equipment Type: Pepper Ball Launcher and Projectiles - CA Gov’t Code §7070(c)(12) 


Quantity Owned or Sought: 4 Lifespan: 20 years 


Purpose/Authorized User: PepperBall VKS Carbine is a Variable Kinetic System (VKS) 
launcher utilizing compressed-air to fire non-lethal PepperBall projectiles. The VKS features a 
dual feed system that offers the ability to quickly switch between hopper fed and magazine 
fed projectiles. Projectiles: 2% PAVA ball containing pepper powder designed for direct 
impact and area saturation, Glass Breaker ball composed of hardened plastic designed to 
break glass barriers, and Inert/H2O balls for training. 


 
To limit the escalation of conflict where employment of lethal force is prohibited or 
undesirable. Provides officers with a less-lethal option in incidents of combative or self- 
destructive individuals, riot/crowd control and civil unrest incidents, circumstances where a 
tactical advantage can be obtained, potentially vicious animals, and training exercises or 
approved demonstrations. 
Fiscal Impact: 


• PeppberBall VKS Launcher: $5,360, quantity: 4 
• 2% PAVA Ball: $2,900, quantity: 1,100 
• Glass Breaker Ball: $480, quantity: 200 
• Inert/H2O Training Ball: $950, quantity: 1,000 
• Annual maintenance cost is approximately $250 


Legal and Procedural Rules Governing: All applicable State, Federal and Local laws 
governing police use of force. Various Pinole Police Department Policies on Use of Force. 
Training Required: Department provided training conducted by POST certified instructors. 
Other Notes: None 


 
 


6. Equipment Type: Less-Lethal Shotgun and Bean Bag Projectile - CA Gov’t Code 
§7070(c)(14) 
Quantity Owned or Sought: 4 Lifespan: 25 years 


361 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


7 


 


 


 


Purpose/Authorized User: Remington 870 Less-Lethal 12-gauge Shotgun with orange and 
black marked stocks is used to deploy the less lethal 12-guage CTS Super-Sock Beanbag 
round. The Combined Tactical Systems (CTS) Super-Sock Beanbag round is a less-lethal 
2.4-inch 12-gauge shotgun round firing a ballistic fiber bag filled with 40 grams of lead shot. 


 
To limit the escalation of conflict where employment of lethal force is prohibited or 
undesirable. Provides officers with a less-lethal option in incidents of combative or self- 
destructive individuals, riot/crowd control and civil unrest incidents, circumstances where a 
tactical advantage can be obtained, potentially vicious animals, and training exercises or 
approved demonstrations. 
Fiscal Impact: 


• Remington 870 Less-Lethal 12-guage Shotgun: $2,200, quantity: 4 
• CTS Model 2581 Super-Sock Beanbag Round: $1,090, quantity: 200 
• Glass Breaker Ball: $480, quantity: 200 
• Annual maintenance $0 


Legal and Procedural Rules Governing: All applicable State, Federal and Local laws 
governing police use of force. Various Pinole Police Department Policies on Use of Force. 
Training Required: Department provided training conducted by POST certified instructors. 
Other Notes: None 


362 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


8 


 


 


Equipment Purchase and Training Use 
2022/2023 Purchases and Maintenance 


 
 
Military Equipment 


 
Quantity 


 
Cost 


 
Date of Purchase 


 
Bolt Carrier Group 
upgrade for AR-15/M4 


 
30 


 
$4,531 


 
06/01/2022 


T-Handle upgrade for AR- 
15/M4 


 
30 


 
$1,800 


 
06/03/2022 


Emergency Response 
Vehicle (ERV) deferred 
maintenance 


 
1 


 
$6,334.23 


 
05/19/2023 


 
Refill Air Tank for 
PepperBall System 


 
1 


 
$20 


 
4/14/2023 


 
2022/2023 Training/ Military Equipment Utilized 


 
 
Training 


 
Military 
Equipment 


 
Dates 


 
Officer Training - Range 


Colt AR-15/M4 
Carbine w/ 
.223/556 
ammunition 


10/6-7/2022 
11/8 & 10/2022 
03/15 & 17/2023 


Officer Training – Active 
Shooter Response - 
FLETC 


Emergency 
Rescue Vehicle 
(ERV) 


 
07/14/2022 


 
 
Community Concerns and Complaints 
In April of 2022, the Pinole Police Department published its Military Equipment Funding, 
Use and Acquisition policy on its website. Community concerns and complaints can be 
received via the Department’s website, in-person at the police department or in the field 
during police contacts, telephone, emails and social media. 


2022/2023 Community Concerns, Complaints & PD Internal Investigations Related 
to Military Equipment Use 


363 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


9 


 


 


 


 
Community Concerns 


 
Community Complaints 


 
PD Internal Investigations 


0 0 0 
 
 
 


Internal Inventory & Audit (PPD Military Equipment) 
 
Per Pinole Police Department policy 707.3 (c), the Department’s military equipment 
coordinator, is required to complete an internal inventory of all military equipment within 
the possession of the Department at least once annually. 


An inventory was completed on April 12, 2023, which identified all of the Department’s 
military equipment in preparation to fulfill the obligations set by Assembly Bill 481. 


The Department did not add any new military equipment to its inventory since that time. 
All current military equipment inventory was found to be in good shape and working order. 


 
 


2022/2023 Event or Incident Military Equipment Utilized 
 


 
Case# / 
Incident# 


 
Date 


 
Equipment 
Used 


 
Classification 


 
Reason 


2206260034 06/26/2022 
Emergency 
Rescue 
Vehicle (ERV) 


Event Pinole Car Show 


2207040120 07/04/2022 
Command 
Post Event Fourth of July Fireworks 


N/A 08/27/2022 Command 
Post, 
Emergency 
Rescue 
Vehicle 
(ERV) 


Event Pinole Police Department 
Family Day 


2210010074 10/01/2022 Command 
Post Event Bike the Bridges 


 
 
2210040155 


 
 
10/04/2022 


Command 
Post, 
Emergency 
Rescue 
Vehicle (ERV), 
iRobot 


 
 


Event 


 
 
National Night Out 


364 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


10 


 


 


2212150137 12/15/2022 Command 
Post Event Shop with a Cop & Annual 


Toy Drive 


365 of 829







May 4, 2023 Annual Military Equipment Report for 2022/2023 


11 


 


 


 
 
 


Projected Military Equipment Acquisition 
(2023/20224) 


 
For 2023/2024 (May - April), the Pinole Police Department projects the purchase of 
ammunition to replenish inventory due to training. The estimated purchase price of this 
equipment is approximately $4,000.00. The operating costs of this equipment, which 
includes acquisition, personnel time, training facilities, transportation/storage of 
equipment, equipment upgrades and other ongoing costs is budgeted within the 
Department’s approved operating budget for FY2022-2023 and FY2023-2024. 


 
 
 


 
Military Equipment 


 
Projected Purchase 


Amount 


 
Projected Purchase Price 


 
.223 62 gr ammunition 


 
7,000 rounds 


 
$4,000 


 


366 of 829







Policy


707
Pinole Police Department


Pinole PD CA Policy Manual


Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2023/04/13, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Pinole Police Department


Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and
Use Policy - 1


Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and Use
Policy
707.1   PURPOSE AND SCOPE
The purpose of this policy is to provide guidelines for the approval, acquisition, and reporting
requirements of military equipment (Government Code § 7070; Government Code § 7071;
Government Code § 7072). This policy applies to all members of the Department


707.1.1   DEFINITIONS
Definitions related to this policy include (Government Code § 7070):


Governing body – The elected or appointed body that oversees the Department.


Military equipment – Includes but is not limited to the following:


• Unmanned, remotely piloted, powered aerial or ground vehicles.


• Mine-resistant ambush-protected (MRAP) vehicles or armored personnel carriers.


• High mobility multipurpose wheeled vehicles (HMMWV), two-and-one-half-ton trucks,
five-ton trucks, or wheeled vehicles that have a breaching or entry apparatus attached.


• Tracked armored vehicles that provide ballistic protection to their occupants.


• Command and control vehicles that are either built or modified to facilitate the
operational control and direction of public safety units.


• Weaponized aircraft, vessels, or vehicles of any kind.


• Battering rams, slugs, and breaching apparatuses that are explosive in nature. This
does not include a handheld, one-person ram.


• Firearms and ammunition of_.50 caliber or greater, excluding standard-issue shotguns
and standard-issue shotgun ammunition.


• Specialized firearms and ammunition of less than_.50 caliber, including firearms and
accessories identified as assault weapons in Penal Code § 30510 and Penal Code §
30515, with the exception of standard-issue firearms.


• Any firearm or firearm accessory that is designed to launch explosive projectiles.


• Noise-flash diversionary devices and explosive breaching tools.


• Munitions containing tear gas or OC, excluding standard, service-issued handheld
pepper spray.


• TASER® Shockwave, microwave weapons, water cannons, and long-range acoustic
devices (LRADs).


• Kinetic energy weapons and munitions.


• Any other equipment as determined by a governing body or a state agency to require
additional oversight.


ATTACHMENT C


367 of 829







Pinole Police Department
Pinole PD CA Policy Manual


Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and Use Policy


Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2023/04/13, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Pinole Police Department


Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and
Use Policy - 2


707.2   POLICY
It is the policy of the Pinole Police Department that members of this department comply with the
provisions of Government Code § 7070 and 7071 with respect to the use and acquisition of military
equipment.


707.3   MILITARY EQUIPMENT COORDINATOR
The Chief of Police should designate a member of this department to act as the military equipment
coordinator. The responsibilities of the military equipment coordinator include but are not limited to:


(a) Acting as liaison to the governing body for matters related to the requirements of this
policy.


(b) Identifying department equipment that qualifies as military equipment in the current
possession of the Department, or the equipment the Department intends to acquire
that requires approval by the governing body.


(c) Conducting an inventory of all military equipment at least annually.


(d) Collaborating with any allied agency that may use military equipment within the
jurisdiction of Pinole Police Department (Government Code § 7071).


(e) Preparing for, scheduling, and coordinating the annual community engagement
meeting to include:


1. Publicizing the details of the meeting.


2. Preparing for public questions regarding the department's funding, acquisition,
and use of equipment.


(f) Preparing the annual military equipment report for submission to the Chief of Police
and ensuring that the report is made available on the department website (Government
Code § 7072).


707.4   MILITARY EQUIPMENT INVENTORY
The following constitutes a list of qualifying equipment for the Department: See attachment: Military
Equipment Pinole Police Department Final 4_2022.pdf


707.5   APPROVAL
The Chief of Police or the authorized designee shall obtain approval from the governing body by
way of an ordinance adopting the military equipment policy. As part of the approval process, the
Chief of Police or the authorized designee shall ensure the proposed military equipment policy
is submitted to the governing body and is available on the website at least 30 days prior to any
public hearing concerning the military equipment at issue (Government Code § 7071). The military
equipment policy must be approved by the governing body prior to engaging in any of the following
(Government Code § 7071):


(a) Requesting military equipment made available pursuant to 10 USC § 2576a.


368 of 829







Pinole Police Department
Pinole PD CA Policy Manual


Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and Use Policy


Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2023/04/13, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Pinole Police Department


Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and
Use Policy - 3


(b) Seeking funds for military equipment, including but not limited to applying for a grant,
soliciting or accepting private, local, state, or federal funds, in-kind donations, or other
donations or transfers.


(c) Acquiring military equipment either permanently or temporarily, including by borrowing
or leasing.


(d) Collaborating with another law enforcement agency in the deployment or other use of
military equipment within the jurisdiction of this department.


(e) Using any new or existing military equipment for a purpose, in a manner, or by a person
not previously approved by the governing body.


(f) Soliciting or responding to a proposal for, or entering into an agreement with, any other
person or entity to seek funds for, apply to receive, acquire, use, or collaborate in the
use of military equipment.


(g) Acquiring military equipment through any means not provided above.


707.6   COORDINATION WITH OTHER JURISDICTIONS
 On occasion, the department may be required to assist or be assisted by other law enforcement
agencies in a formal Mutual Aid Request or support with day to day operational collaboration
(i.e. pursuits, investigative unit assistance, joint law enforcement operations, etc.). The specific
guidance and requirements for Mutual Aid is governed by PPD Policy 331 - Outside Agency
Assistance.


In certain mutual aid or operational collaboration circumstances, it may be necessary for sworn
department members to utilize military equipment in order to fulfill an assigned mission (i.e. active
shooter, civil unrest, barricaded suspects in a vehicle, etc.). When sworn department members
utilize military equipment in instances of mutual aid or law enforcement collaboration, the following
shall apply:


a. Department members are required to adhere to the Department's Military Equipment
Procedure and all policies and procedures outlined within the Pinole Police Department's
Policy and Procedures Manual, regardless of operational jurisdiction.
b. Should the Pinole Police Department request mutual aid from another law enforcement
agency within Contra Costa County and military equipment is required during the course of
the response, the following shall apply:
1. The Pinole Police Department shall remain in charge of the overall incident command.
2. The Incident Commander or designee shall brief the supervisor from the assisting agency
and inform them of the mission, enforcement posture, and any pertinent information related
to the incident.
3. The assisting agency will be expected to adhere to their respective policies and
procedures, particularly those governing the use of military equipment.
4. If the Incident Commander or their designee is informed of or witnesses the utilization of
military equipment by an assisting agency inconsistent with the guidelines set forth in this


369 of 829







Pinole Police Department
Pinole PD CA Policy Manual


Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and Use Policy


Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2023/04/13, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Pinole Police Department


Military Equipment Funding, Acquisition and
Use Policy - 4


procedure, the Incident Commander may elect to cancel the request for mutual aid or re-
assign the assisting agency to a different support mission.


707.7   ANNUAL REPORT
Upon approval of a military equipment policy, the Chief of Police or the authorized designee should
submit a military equipment report to the governing body for each type of military equipment
approved within one year of approval, and annually thereafter for as long as the military equipment
is available for use (Government Code § 7072).


The Chief of Police or the authorized designee should also make each annual military equipment
report publicly available on the department website for as long as the military equipment is
available for use. The report shall include all information required by Government Code § 7072
for the preceding calendar year for each type of military equipment in department inventory.


707.8   COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT
Within 30 days of submitting and publicly releasing the annual report, the Department shall hold
at least one well-publicized and conveniently located community engagement meeting, at which
the Department should discuss the report and respond to public questions regarding the funding,
acquisition, or use of military equipment.


707.9   COMMUNITY CONCERNS AND COMPLAINTS
The Pinole Police Department has established a Community Concerns and Complaints process
with forms available at the department and online. The community will have the ability to provide
verbal concerns/complaints over the telephone or in-person at the Pinole Police Department (PPD
policy 1010).


707.10   CITY COUNCIL APPROVAL
Pursuant to California Government Code section 7071, the City Council of Pinole approved this
Policy pursuant to Ordinance # PMC 2.60_ on _May 3, 2022. Further substantive amendments to
the Policy need to be reviewed and approved by the City Council.


370 of 829







Pinole PD CA Policy Manual


Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2023/04/13, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Pinole Police Department


Attachments - 5


Attachments


371 of 829







Attachment
Pinole PD CA Policy Manual


Copyright Lexipol, LLC 2023/04/13, All Rights Reserved.
Published with permission by Pinole Police Department


Military Equipment Pinole Police Department
Final 4_2022.pdf - 6


Military Equipment Pinole Police
Department Final 4_2022.pdf


Military Equipment Pinole Police Department Final 4_2022.pdf


372 of 829







AB 481 Qualifying Equipment Inventory: Pinole Police Department 
 


Pinole Police Department 
Finalized: April 13, 2022 


1. Equipment Type: Mine Resistant Ambush Protected Vehicle (MRAP) – CA Govt Code 
§7070(c)(2) 
 
Quantity Owned or Sought: 1 
 


Lifespan: Unknown 


Purpose/Authorized User: Emergency Rescue Vehicle (ERV) to safely evacuate residents in 
the event of a natural disaster or critical incidents. To move personnel and/or resources in 
support of natural disasters (i.e. flood, fire, earthquake), large scale logistics, active shooter 
incidents, and incidents where there is reason to expect potential armed resistance requiring 
protection. Use may be authorized by Watch Commander or Tactical/Operations Commander, 
based on the circumstances of the given incident. 
Fiscal Impact: Acquired under the Law Enforcement Support Program Office (LESO): $0 for 
equipment. $9,200 for delivery, paint and upfitting. Annual maintenance cost is approximately 
$1,000.00 
 
Legal and Procedural Rules Governing: It is the policy of the department to utilize armored 
vehicles only for law enforcement purposes and pursuant to State and Federal law.  
 
Training Required: Department provided training. 
 
Other Notes: The MRAP is an armored vehicle manufactured by BAE Systems/Caiman 
weighing over 34,000 pounds and can carry a payload of over 4,000 pounds. The vehicle has 
six (6) wheels fitted with tires and is all-wheel drive, powered by a diesel engine. The vehicle 
measures approximately 22 feet long, 8 feet wide, and 10 feet tall. 
 
 


2. Equipment Type: Unmanned, remotely piloted, powered ground vehicles - CA Gov’t Code 
§7070(c)(1) 


Quantity Owned/Sought: 1 Lifespan: Approximately 15 years 


Equipment Capabilities: Vehicle is capable of being remotely navigated to provide scene 
information and intelligence in the form of video and still images transmitted to first responders.   


Manufacturer Product Description: iRobot PackBot 510 Multi Mission Robot (MMR) 
Purpose/Authorized Uses: To enhance officer and community safety when encountering 
potentially dangerous situations by providing first responders with the ability to capture video 
and still images, to transport communication equipment or other resources prior to, in lieu of 
sending in personnel into hazardous incidents or environments. 
Fiscal Impacts: Acquired under the Law Enforcement Support Program Office (LESO): $0 for 
equipment. Annual maintenance cost is approximately $500.  


Legal/Procedural Rules Governing Use: The use of unmanned, remotely piloted, powered 
ground vehicles potentially involves privacy considerations. Absent a warrant or exigent 
circumstances, operators and observers shall adhere to all applicable privacy laws and shall not 
intentionally record or transmit images of any location where a person would have a reasonable 
expectation of privacy. 


Training Required: Department provided training. 


373 of 829







AB 481 Qualifying Equipment Inventory: Pinole Police Department 
 


Pinole Police Department 
Finalized: April 13, 2022 


Other Notes: None 


 


3. Equipment Type:  Command and control vehicles that are either built or modified to facilitate 
the operational control and direction of public safety units – CA Govt Code §7070(c)(5) 
Quantity Owned or Sought: 1 Lifespan: 20 years 


Purpose/Authorized User: Trailer is purpose‐built to facilitate the operational control and 
direction of public safety units conducting DUI enforcement checkpoints, traffic safety 
operations, and responding to or at an incident. The Command and Control (C&C) trailer serves 
as a centralized location for command decision making, enhanced communication and other 
situational awareness capabilities. Use may be authorized by Watch Commander or 
Tactical/Operations Commander, based on the circumstances of the given incident. 
 
Fiscal Impact: Acquired by grant issued by the State of California Office of Traffic Safety under 
a Traffic Safety Grant. $40,415 for equipment. Annual maintenance cost is approximately 
$1000. 
Legal and Procedural Rules Governing: It is the policy of the department to utilize C&C trailer 
only for law enforcement purposes and pursuant to State and Federal law. 
 
Training Required: Department provided training.  
 
Other Notes: The command-and-control trailer is standard tow-behind trailer with dual axels 
manufactured by Universal Trailer with a GVW of 3,100 pounds. The trailer measures 
approximately 16 feet long, 8.5 feet wide, and 9 feet tall. The trailer is equipped with a fold-down 
rear door, lighting, and a generator. 
 


4. Equipment Type:  Semiautomatic Rifles and Ammunition - CA Gov’t Code §7070(c)(10) 


Quantity Owned or Sought: 28 Lifespan: 15 years 


Purpose/Authorized User: Colt AR-15/M4 Carbine semiautomatic shoulder fired rifle with long 
spirally grooved barrel that fires .223 Rem/5.56 mm projectile bullet. The rifles are equipped with 
10.5” barrel, Surefire muzzle brake, and Surefire SOCOM556-RC2 suppressors. Ammunition is 
Speer Gold Dot caliber .223 62 grain. 
 
A standard officer issue to be used as a precision weapon to address a threat with more 
precision and/or greater distances than a handgun, if present and feasible. 
Fiscal Impact:  


• Colt AR-15/M4 Rifle: $32,400, quantity: 28 
• Surefire muzzle brake: $2,779, quantity: 28 
• Surefire SOCOM556-RC2 Suppressors: $22,408, quantity: 28 
• Speer Gold Dot caliber .223 62 gr ammunition: $4,300, quantity: 9,780 
• Annual maintenance cost is approximately $1,500 


Legal and Procedural Rules Governing: All applicable State, Federal and Local laws 
governing police use of force. Various Pinole Police Department Policies on Use of Force and 
Firearms. 


374 of 829







AB 481 Qualifying Equipment Inventory: Pinole Police Department 
 


Pinole Police Department 
Finalized: April 13, 2022 


Training Required: Department firearms training and qualifications as required by law and 
policy by POST certified instructors. CA POST certified 24-hour patrol rifle course. 
Other Notes: These rifles are standard issue service weapons for our officers and therefore 
exempted from this Military Equipment Use Policy per CA Gov’t Code §7070 (c)(10).  They have 
been included in this document in an abundance of caution and in the interest of transparency. 
 


5. Equipment Type:  Pepper Ball Launcher and Projectiles - CA Gov’t Code §7070(c)(12) 


Quantity Owned or Sought: 4 Lifespan: 20 years 


Purpose/Authorized User: PepperBall VKS Carbine is a Variable Kinetic System (VKS) 
launcher utilizing compressed-air to fire non-lethal PepperBall projectiles. The VKS features a 
dual feed system that offers the ability to quickly switch between hopper fed and magazine fed 
projectiles. Projectiles: 2% PAVA ball containing pepper powder designed for direct impact and 
area saturation, Glass Breaker ball composed of hardened plastic designed to break glass 
barriers, and Inert/H2O balls for training. 
 
To limit the escalation of conflict where employment of lethal force is prohibited or undesirable. 
Provides officers with a less-lethal option in incidents of combative or self-destructive 
individuals, riot/crowd control and civil unrest incidents, circumstances where a tactical 
advantage can be obtained, potentially vicious animals, and training exercises or approved 
demonstrations. 
Fiscal Impact:  


• PeppberBall VKS Launcher: $5,360, quantity: 4 
• 2% PAVA Ball: $2,900, quantity: 1,100 
• Glass Breaker Ball: $480, quantity: 200 
• Inert/H2O Training Ball: $950, quantity: 1,000 
• Annual maintenance cost is approximately $250 


Legal and Procedural Rules Governing: All applicable State, Federal and Local laws 
governing police use of force. Various Pinole Police Department Policies on Use of Force. 
Training Required: Department provided training conducted by POST certified instructors.  
Other Notes:  None 
 


6. Equipment Type:  Less-Lethal Shotgun and Bean Bag Projectile - CA Gov’t Code 
§7070(c)(14) 
Quantity Owned or Sought: 4 Lifespan: 25 years 


Purpose/Authorized User: Remington 870 Less-Lethal 12-gauge Shotgun with orange and 
black marked stocks is used to deploy the less lethal 12-guage CTS Super-Sock Beanbag 
round. The Combined Tactical Systems (CTS) Super-Sock Beanbag round is a less-lethal 2.4-
inch 12-gauge shotgun round firing a ballistic fiber bag filled with 40 grams of lead shot.  
 
To limit the escalation of conflict where employment of lethal force is prohibited or undesirable. 
Provides officers with a less-lethal option in incidents of combative or self-destructive 
individuals, riot/crowd control and civil unrest incidents, circumstances where a tactical 
advantage can be obtained, potentially vicious animals, and training exercises or approved 


375 of 829







AB 481 Qualifying Equipment Inventory: Pinole Police Department 
 


Pinole Police Department 
Finalized: April 13, 2022 


demonstrations. 


Fiscal Impact:  
• Remington 870 Less-Lethal 12-guage Shotgun: $2,200, quantity: 4 
• CTS Model 2581 Super-Sock Beanbag Round: $1,090, quantity: 200 
• Glass Breaker Ball: $480, quantity: 200 
• Annual maintenance $0 


Legal and Procedural Rules Governing: All applicable State, Federal and Local laws 
governing police use of force. Various Pinole Police Department Policies on Use of Force. 
Training Required: Department provided training conducted by POST certified instructors.  
Other Notes: None 
 


376 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 9J 


DATE: 


TO: 


FROM: 


JUNE 6, 2023 


MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND 


ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER 


SUBJECT: AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR HAZEL STREET STORM 
DRAIN IMPROVEMENTS (CIP PROJECT # SW1901) 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a resolution (Attachment A) to: 


1. Award a construction contract (Attachment B) to the lowest responsive and
responsible bidder, W.R. Forde Associates Inc., for the Hazel Street Storm Drain
Improvement Project (CIP Project # SW1901 “the “Project”);


2. Authorize the City Manager to execute a construction contract (Attachment B) with
W.R. Forde Associates Inc. in an amount not to exceed $431,821.50 (including a
10% contingency) for the Project; and


3. Authorize the City Manager or his designee to issue any necessary change orders
to complete additional work within contract authority for the Project.


BACKGROUND 


The Project is an approved project in the City of Pinole’s current adopted Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) and involves construction of a new storm drain with connections 
to existing storm water facilities on Hazel Street and existing site improvement plans. The 
existing stormwater collection is an open trench system and needs to be converted to an 
underground conveyance system to facilitate construction of a through road (CIP Project 
# RO1802). This project will include connecting the existing storm drain network within 
Hazel Street between 1087 Hazel St (eastern limits) and 1081 Hazel St. (western limits). 
In January 2020, the City contracted with Schaff and Wheeler to prepare the preliminary 
design, which includes plan and profile of the pipe and technical specifications. 


On April 12, 2023, City staff released the Project bid on www.publicpurchase.com and 
also posted contract documents on www.ci.pinole.ca.us/bids. Sealed bids were opened 
on May 10, 2023.  


377 of 829



http://www.publicpurchase.com/

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/bids





City Council Report  
June 6, 2023   2 


REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
On May 10, 2023, six (6) bids were received and publicly read at 2:00 PM at City Hall. 
Per project bid documents, the City will award the project to the lowest responsive and 
responsible bidder based on the total bid amount. The following table summarizes the 
bids received: 
 


Name of Bidder Amount Bid 
W.R. Forde Associates Inc. $392,565.00 
FJ&I Engineering Inc. $396,800.00 
Terocons Inc. $418,075.00 
Basset Engineering $430,629.00 
Golden State Construction & Utility Inc. $486,000.00 
Paulson Cox Construction Inc. $651,700.00 


 
The engineer’s estimate for the Project construction is $400,000.00 and the lowest bidder 
W.R. Forde Associates Inc.’s bid is $392,565.00, which is $7,435.00 lower than the 
engineer’s estimate.  
 
Staff evaluated W.R. Forde Associates Inc.’s bid package, insurance, and bonding, and 
determined W.R. Forde Associates Inc.’s bid to be responsive. Staff contacted various 
construction references listed in the bid submittal and the references indicated that W.R. 
Forde Associates Inc. has satisfactorily completed their contracts of similar size and 
scope. No bid protests were received. Staff believes that W.R. Forde Associates Inc. has 
the experience and professional competency that will result in a satisfactory product for 
the City. 
 
W.R. Forde Associates Inc.’s bid proposal documentation is complete, and staff has 
determined them to be the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. Staff recommends 
the City Council accept the bid and award the construction contract to W.R. Forde 
Associates Inc. for the Project. Furthermore, staff recommends that City Council authorize 
the City Manager to execute a contract with W.R. Forde Associates Inc. in an amount not 
to exceed $431,821.50 (including a 10% contingency) for the Project. The contingency 
will allow staff to address any issues that may arise during the work as approved by the 
City Manager or his designee. In addition, staff recommends that City Council authorize 
the City Manager or his designee to issue any necessary change orders to complete 
additional work within contract authority for the Project.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The current adopted capital construction budget has sufficient funding for the Project.  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 


A. Resolution 
B. Construction Contract 


378 of 829







RESOLUTION NO. 2023 – XX 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA COUNTY, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, AWARDING A 


CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR HAZEL STREET STORM DRAIN IMPROVEMENTS 
(CIP PROJECT # SW1901)  


WHEREAS, the City of Pinole (“City”) has adopted the FY 2022/23 through FY 
2026/27 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) which includes the Hazel Street Storm Drain 
Improvements (CIP Project # SW1901, the “Project”) as a funded project; and 


WHEREAS, the Project involves construction of a new storm drain with connections to 
existing storm water facilities on Hazel Street and existing site improvement plans; and  


WHEREAS, on April 12, 2023, City staff released the bid on 
www.publicpurchase.com and also posted contract documents on 
www.ci.pinole.ca.us/bids; and 


WHEREAS, on May 10, 2023, at 2:00 p.m., the Public Works staff publicly opened 
and examined the sealed bids for the Project; and 


WHEREAS, staff has determined that W.R. Forde Associates Inc. is the lowest 
responsive and responsible bidder; and 


WHEREAS, the current adopted capital construction budget for the Project has 
adequate funds to award the construction contract. 


   NOW THERFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pinole 
as follows: 


1. W.R. Forde Associates Inc.’s bid of $392,565 is found to be lowest responsive
and responsible bid and is accepted by the City Council at the unit prices set
forth in the bid for the Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements project (CIP
Project # SW1901, the “Project”). This bid is on file with the Public Works
Department and incorporated herein by this reference as though set forth in
full.


2. A construction budget of $392,565 and project contingency funds in the
amount of $39,256.50 (10% of bid) are authorized by the City Council at the
unit prices set forth in W.R. Forde Associates Inc.’s bid.


3. The City Manager is authorized to execute a construction contract with W.R.
Forde Associates Inc.’s bid in an amount not to exceed $431,821.50 for the
Project in a form to be approved by the City Attorney.


4. The City Manager or his designee is authorized to issue any necessary
change orders to complete additional work within contract authority for the
Project.


ATTACHMENT A


379 of 829



http://www.publicpurchase.com/

http://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/bids





 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a special meeting of the Pinole City Council held on the 6th 
day of June 2023 by the following vote: 


 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:  
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:  
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:  


 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and adopted 
on the 6th day of June 2023. 


 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


380 of 829







CITY OF PINOLE 
CONTRACT FOR SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS AT APPIAN WAY AND MARLESTA ROAD 


THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered this 11th day of October 2022, by and between the City of Pinole, 
hereinafter referred to as “City” and Gruendl Inc. DBA Ray’s Electric, hereinafter referred to as “Contractor.” 


WITNESSETH: 


WHEREAS, Contractor and Contractor’s Surety are providing the bonds attached hereto and incorporated by this 
reference, and 


WHEREAS, City desires to contract with Contractor to perform the services detailed in this contract, including the 
Proposal, and 


WHEREAS, Contractor has represented that it is fully qualified to assume and discharge such responsibility; 


NOW, THEREFORE, the parties hereto do agree as follows: 


1. Contract Documents. The Contract Documents referred to herein are incorporated by reference as if set
forth in full in this Agreement. The Contract Documents shall include the shall include the Notice Inviting
Bids, Instructions to Bidders, Bid Forms (including the Bid, Bid Schedule(s), Information Required of Bidder,
Bid Bond, and all required certificates, affidavits and other documentation), this Agreement, Performance
Bond, Labor and Materials Bond, Maintenance Bond, General Conditions, any Supplementary General
Conditions, Special Provisions, Specifications, Drawings, all Addenda, and Change Orders executed
pursuant to the provisions of the Contract Documents. This Agreement, and the Contract Documents,
includes the exhibits to this Agreement, including Exhibit A Insurance, Exhibit B Minimum Wage Rates


2. Scope of Services.  City hereby employs Contractor to perform the work and provide the services and
materials for the project identified as:  Safety Improvements at Appian Way and Marlesta Road, as
described in these Plans and Specifications, attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference,
including miscellaneous appurtenant work.  Such work shall be performed in a good and workmanlike
manner, under the terms as stated herein and in these Plans and Specifications.  In the event of any
conflict between the terms of this agreement and any of the above-referenced documents, the terms of
this agreement shall be controlling.


3. Compensation.  In consideration of the services rendered hereunder, Contractor shall be paid $650,810.00
in accordance with the prices as submitted on the Bid Sheet of the Proposal, attached hereto as a part of
these Plans and Specifications and in accordance with the Special Provisions.


4. Independent Contractor.  It is specifically understood and agreed by all parties hereto that Contractor is,
for the purposes of this Agreement, an independent contractor and not an employee of the City.
Accordingly, Contractor shall not be deemed the City’s employee for any purpose whatsoever.  Contractor
shall not incur or have the power to incur any debt, obligation or liability whatever for or against City.


5. Assignment.  This agreement may not be assigned by Contractor, in whole or in part, without the prior
written consent of City.


6. Termination.  This Agreement may be canceled by City at any time without penalty upon thirty (30) days’
written notice.  In the event of termination without fault of Contractor, City shall pay Contractor for all
services rendered prior to date of termination, and such payment shall be in full satisfaction of all services
rendered hereunder.


ATTACHMENT B


381 of 829







7. Worker’s Compensation Insurance.  California Labor Code Sections 1860 and 3700 provide that every 
contractor will be required to secure the payment of compensation to its employees.  In accordance with 
the provisions of California Labor Code Section 1861, the Contractor hereby certifies as follows: 


 
“I am aware of the provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code 
which require every employer to be insured against liability for 
worker’s compensation or to under take self-insurance in 
accordance with the provisions of that code, and I will comply 
with such provisions before commencing the performance of the 
work of this contract.” 


 
8. Prevailing Wages and General Rate of Per Diem Wages.  Pursuant to the Labor Code of the State of 


California, the Director of Industrial Relations has determined the general prevailing rate of wages and 
employer payments for health and welfare, vacation, pension and similar purposes applicable to the work 
to be done.  This rate and scale are on file with the CITY ENGINEER and copies will be made available to 
any interested party on request. The Contractor to whom the contract is awarded, and the subcontractors 
under him must pay not less than these rates for this area to all workers employed in the execution of this 
contract. 


 
9. Dispute resolution is subject to the provision of Article 1.5 (commencing at Section 20104) of Division 2, 


Part 3 of the California Public Contract Code regarding the resolution of public works claims of less than 
$375,000. Article 1.5 mandates certain procedures for the filing of claims and supporting documentation 
by the contractor, for the response to such claims by the contracting public agency, for a mandatory meet 
and confer conference upon the request of the contractor, for mandatory non-binding mediation in the 
event of litigation is commenced, and for mandatory judicial arbitration upon the failure to resolve the 
dispute through mediation.  This contract hereby incorporates the provisions of Article 1.5 as though fully 
set forth herein. 


 
10. Suit; Recovery of Attorney Fees & Costs.  Should either party bring any action to protect or enforce its 


rights hereunder, the prevailing party in such action shall be entitled to recover, in addition to all other 
relief, its reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs. 


 
 
11. Severability.  If any term or provision or portion of a term or provision of this contract is declared invalid 


or unenforceable by any court of lawful jurisdiction, then the remaining terms and provisions or portions 
of terms or provisions will not be affected thereby and will remain in full force and effect. 


 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed the within Agreement the day and year first above 
written. 
 
CITY OF PINOLE       CONTRACTOR: Gruendl Inc. DBA Ray’s Electric 
 
 
By: _______________________________________________                   By: _____________________________________________ 
 Andrew Murray, City Manager                          
                                          _____________________________________________ 
                                                                               Print Name, Title 
 
Date: _____________________________________________       Date: __________________________________________ 


 
ATTEST: 
 
 382 of 829







By:         
             Heather Bell, City Clerk 
 
 
Date: _____________________________________________ 
 
Approved as to Form 
 
 
By:         
             Eric Casher, City Attorney 
 
 
Date: _____________________________________________ 


383 of 829







CITY OF PINOLE 
 


INSTRUCTIONS FOR EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS 


THIS IS INSTRUCTION ONLY – IT IS NOT TO BE SIGNED OR USED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE 
AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER FORMS THAT MUST BE TURNED INTO THE CITY OF PINOLE – IT IS SIMPLY A 
FORMAT TO USE WHEN FILLING OUT DOCUMENTS. 
 
1.  By an Individual.  The individual must sign the instrument, and if he/she is doing business under a 


fictitious name, the fictitious name must be set forth.  The signature must be acknowledged 
before a Notary Public, using the proper form of acknowledgment. 


 
2. By a Partnership.  The name of the partnership must be set forth followed by the signatures of 


less than all of the partners will be acceptable only if submitted with evidence of authority to act 
on behalf of the partnership.  The signatures must be acknowledged before a Notary Public, using 
the proper form of acknowledgment. 


 
3. By a Corporation.  The name of the corporation must be set forth, followed by the signatures of 


the President or Vice President  and  Secretary or Assistant Secretary.  The signatures must be 
acknowledged before a Notary Public, using in substance the following form of acknowledgment. 


 
4. By a Surety.  The name of the surety must be set forth, followed by an authorized signature.  The 


signatures must be acknowledged before a Notary Public, using the proper form of 
acknowledgment. 


 
STATE OF    ) 


)  SS. 
COUNTY OF    ) 
 
On       , 20____, before me, the undersigned, appeared   
known to me to be the President or Vice President and known to be to be the Secretary or Assistant 
Secretary of the corporation that executed the within instrument, and acknowledged to me that such 
corporation executed the within instrument pursuant to its by-laws or a resolution of its City Council. 
 
WITNESS my signature and seal. 
 


 
Notary Public 
 
 
 
(Seal) 
 


384 of 829







INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CITY OF PINOLE 


Public Works Contract 
 
The Contractor shall at all time during the term of this Agreement carry, maintain, and keep in full force 
and effect, with an insurance company admitted to do business in California and approved by the City (1) 
a policy or policies of broad-form comprehensive general liability insurance with minimum limits of 
$1,000,000.00 combined single limit coverage against any injury, death, lose, or damage as a result of 
wrongful or negligent acts by the Contractor, its officers, employees, agents, and independent contractors 
in performance of services under this Agreement; (2) property damage insurance with a minimum limit of 
$1,000,000.00; (3) automotive liability insurance with a minimum combined single limits coverage of 
$1,000,000.00; and (4) worker’s compensation insurance with a minimum limit of $1,000,000.00 or the 
amount required by law, whichever is greater.  The City, its officers, employees, attorneys, and volunteers 
shall be named as additional insureds on the policy(ies) as to comprehensive general liability and property 
damage. 
 


1. All insurance policies shall provide that the insurance coverage shall not be non-renewed, 
canceled, reduced, or otherwise modified (except through addition of additional insureds 
to the policy) by the insurance carrier without the insurance carrier giving the City thirty 
(30) day’s prior written notice thereof.  The Contractor agrees that it will not cancel, 
reduce or otherwise modify said insurance coverage. 


 
2. The Contractor agrees that if it does not keep the aforesaid insurance in full force and 


effect, and such insurance is available at a reasonable cost, the City may take out the 
necessary insurance and pay the premium thereon, and the repayment thereof shall be 
deemed an obligation of the Contractor and the cost of such insurance may be deducted, 
at the option of the City, from payments due the Contractor. 


 
3. The Contractor shall submit to the City (1) insurance certificates indicating compliance 


with the minimum worker’s compensation insurance requirements above, and (2) 
insurance policy endorsements above, not less than one (1) day prior to beginning of 
performance under this Agreement.  Endorsements must be executed on the City’s 
appropriate standard forms entitled “Additional Insured Endorsement,” copies of which 
are attached hereto. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


385 of 829







    CITY COUNCIL 
   REPORT   


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: ADOPT A RESOLUTION TO APPROVE A LIST OF PROJECTS FOR 
FISCAL YEAR 2023/24 FUNDED BY SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND 
ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017  


RECOMMENDATION 


It is recommended that the City Council adopt a resolution to approve the list of City 
projects to be funded in fiscal year (FY) 2023/24 by SB 1: The Road Repair and 
Accountability Act of 2017. 


BACKGROUND 


In April 2017, the Governor signed into law Senate Bill 1 (SB 1): The Road Repair and 
Accountability Act of 2017 (Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017).  SB 1 provides additional gas 
tax funding to State and local agencies to address significant multi-modal transportation 
infrastructure funding shortfalls. 


SB 1 will provide additional funding to the City of Pinole to be used to maintain the City’s 
existing road system.  The City expects to receive $468,053 in SB 1 funding for FY 
2023/24.    


The City will continue to use gas taxes for routine road maintenance including crack 
sealing, pothole patching, sidewalks, signage, signals, streetlights, street trees, and 
sound walls. SB 1 funds will be used for road maintenance treatments to extend the life 
of the pavement as intended by the Governor at the time SB 1 was signed into law. 
Maintenance treatments include slurry seals, cape seals, and thin asphalt overlays. 
Measure J and Measure S 2014 also contribute funds for road maintenance and 
rehabilitation.  


SB 1 requires cities and counties to provide detailed information annually about the 
projects funded by SB 1. The details include project name, description, location, budget 
amount, completion date, and the useful life of the project. For FY 2023/24, this 
information must be submitted to the California Transportation Commission by July 1, 
2022.    


The City is responsible for the maintenance and repair of approximately 52.02 centerline 
miles of streets, which are defined in 351 pavement sections. The City’s arterial and 


9K


386 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2022   2 


 


 


residential roadways are maintained and rehabilitated using various pavement 
treatments.  


The City participates in the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) Pavement 
Technical Assistance Program (P-TAP), which provides grant funding to utilize a 
pavement management program (PMP) software called StreetSaver to evaluate the 
pavement network and provides funding for a consultant to prepare a P-TAP Pavement 
Management Report.  


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


The PTAP-22 Pavement Management Report was presented to Council on April 18, 
2023. The report was prepared for the City by AMS Consulting, who visually inspected 
every section of pavement in Pinole. The data collected in the field was imported into the 
StreetSaver database, which generates a scoring of the condition of each street segment. 
This score is known as the Pavement Condition Index (PCI) and is based on a scale of 
0-100. Each road section received a condition score. StreetSaver identifies where to 
invest limited road maintenance funds in order to achieve the best return on investment 
in terms of improving the overall PCI. This computer model uses a “fix it first” approach 
to recommend which segments of the road system should be targeted for treatment based 
on different spending levels. Constrained spending, as experienced in Pinole, results in 
selecting roads that are in fairly good condition.  


On December 10, 2020, the City issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) for preliminary 
engineering and design services to advance CIP Project RO2101 along with other 
projects. On February 2, 2021, City Council awarded a contract to CSW/Stuber-Stroeh 
Engineering Group, Inc. to complete preliminary engineering and design for several 
roadway projects including CIP Project RO2101. Preliminary engineering for this project 
involved a comparative pavement analysis on various segments of Estates Avenue, 
Marlesta Road, Pinole Valley Road, Sarah Drive, and Shea Drive to validate StreetSaver 
recommendations and to suggest the optimum utilization of available funds.   


After a comparative analysis and field visits to inspect the various sections noted below, 
Pinole Valley Road (Section ID 010, 020, 030, and 035) were recommended for treatment 
for CIP Project RO2101. The estimated cost of these improvements is $2,269,000. This 
cost exceeds the amount of funding available. The current amount programmed for 
construction for CIP Project RO2101 is $1,187,534.   


In FY 2022/23, the City adopted Resolution 2022-53 to allocate $428,910 in Road 
Maintenance & Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) funds (also known as SB 1 funds) for this 
project. Staff recommends programming an additional $468,053 in SB1 funds in FY 
2023/24 for this project. 


387 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2022   3 


 


 


It is recommended that the City direct SB 1 funds to the following project:  
 


Name : Arterial Rehabilitation RO2101 
Description : Repair base failures, mill and fill, and reinstall striping 
Location : Pinole Valley Road from City limits (East of Marlin Ct)    


  to Simas Ave 
Total Budget : $2,269,000 
City Budget FY 2023/24 : $1,187,534 
SB 1 Funds : $468,053 
Completion Date : Multi-year project (anticipated completion by July 2024) 
Remaining Service Life : Varies from 1 Year to 8 years. 


  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
SB 1 funding augments the annual gas tax funding the City receives for road 
maintenance. Adopting this detailed project description is required to receive SB 1 funds.  
Without this action the City would lose our SB 1 allocation of $468,053 for FY 2023/24. 
 
The Final Revised Capital Improvement Plan FY 2023/24 presented to Council for 
adoption includes this project.    
  
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Resolution 
 


388 of 829







RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF 
CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING A LIST OF PROJECTS 


FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-24 FUNDED BY 
SB 1: THE ROAD REPAIR AND ACCOUNTABILITY ACT OF 2017 


WHEREAS, Senate Bill 1 (SB 1), the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 
(Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017) was passed by the Legislature and signed into law by the 
Governor in April 2017 in order to address the significant multi-modal transportation 
funding shortfalls statewide; and  


WHEREAS, SB 1 includes accountability and transparency provisions that will 
ensure the residents of our City of Pinole are aware of the projects proposed for funding 
in our community and which projects have been completed each fiscal year; and 


WHEREAS, the City of Pinole must  adopt by resolution a list of all projects 
proposed to receive funding from the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account, 
created by SB 1, which must include a description and the location of each proposed 
project, a proposed schedule for the project’s completion, and the estimated useful life of 
the improvement; and 


WHEREAS, the City of Pinole, will receive an estimated $468,053 in Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account funding in Fiscal Year 2023-24 from SB 1; and 


WHEREAS, SB 1 funding received by the City of Pinole will allow the City of Pinole 
to perform essential road maintenance and rehabilitation projects, safety improvements, 
and increasing access and mobility options for the traveling public that would not have 
otherwise been possible without SB 1; and  


WHEREAS, in 2022, the City of Pinole completed a Pavement Management 
Report as part of Pavement Management Technical Assistance Program (P-TAP) Round 
22; and  


WHEREAS, the final P-TAP 22 Pavement Management Report was presented to 
the City Council in April 18, 2023; and  


WHEREAS, the City of Pinole developed the SB 1 project list to ensure SB 1 funds 
are being used in the most cost-effective projects that also meet the community’s priorities 
for transportation investment; and  


ATTACHMENT A


389 of 829







WHEREAS, the funding from SB 1 in FY 2023/24 will help the City of Pinole 
maintain and rehabilitate more sections of streets throughout the City of Pinole this year, 
and SB 1 funding in future years will help us tackle essential road maintenance and 
rehabilitation projects, safety improvements, and increasing access and mobility options 
into the future; and 


 
WHEREAS, the City of Pinole’s streets and roads average Pavement Condition 


Index (PCI) will decrease from 57 to 52 over the next five years and this revenue will help 
us address the decline in the overall serviceability of our road system, and over the next 
decade will assist in bringing streets and roads into good condition; and  


  
WHEREAS, the SB 1 project list and overall investment in our local streets and 


roads infrastructure with a focus on basic maintenance and safety, investing in complete 
streets infrastructure, and using cutting-edge technology, materials and practices, will 
have significant positive co-benefits statewide, and  


 
NOW, THEREFORE IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City 


of Pinole, State of California,  
 
1.  The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 
2.  The fiscal year 2023-24 project planned to be funded with Road Maintenance and 


Rehabilitation Account revenues is as follows: 
 


Name : Arterial Rehabilitation RO2101 
Description : Repair base failures, mill and fill, and reinstall striping 
Location : Pinole Valley Road from City limits (East of Marlin Ct)  


  to Simas Ave 
Total Budget : $2,269,000 
City Budget FY 2023/24 : $1,187,534 
SB1 Funds : $468,053 
Completion Date : Multi-year project (anticipated completion by July 2024) 
Remaining Service Life : Varies from 1 Year to 8 years. 


 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Pinole, 
held this 6th day of June 2023, by the following vote: 


 
AYES:    COUNCILMEMBERS:    


 NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:   
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:   


 


390 of 829







 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed, and adopted on the 
6th day of June 2023. 
 
   
 
____________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 
 


 
 


391 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


9L 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: PUBLIC COMMUNICATION PLAN REGARDING CITY STREET 
CONDITION AND PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 


RECOMMENDATION 


It is recommended that the City Council receive this report and provide direction to staff. 


BACKGROUND 


At its meeting on April 18, 2023, the City Council received a report on the condition of the 
City’s streets and the City’s Pavement Management Program. The City Council continued 
discussion of this issue at its meeting on May 2, 2023. At that meeting, the City Council 
directed staff to prepare a public communication plan to educate the public and gather 
community input about the current condition of City streets and the desired future 
condition. 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


The City’s Pavement Management Program is the process through which the City 
regularly assesses the condition of the City’s street pavement and recommends, through 
the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and operating budget, what road repair and 
maintenance to undertake. The City participates with the Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission (MTC) in their Pavement Technical Assistance Program (P-TAP), through 
which an MTC-selected consultant assesses the conditions of all of the City’s public 
roads, resulting in a pavement condition index (PCI) score for the City’s public roads. The 
City uses an MTC decision support software system called StreetSaver to invest limited 
street repair and maintenance funds where they will have the greatest impact on PCI. 


The City’s streets are in various conditions ranging from good to failed and are expected 
to deteriorate over time unless additional resources are invested in repair and 
maintenance. The City must make a decision about what street condition it would like to 
achieve, and identify commensurate financial resources. Public input is critical to this 
decision. 


The issue of road conditions and associated costs is complicated. For instance, an 
average Pavement Condition Index (PCI) of 70 could indicate that 50% of the roads have 
a PCI of 40, while the other 50% have a PCI of 100. Alternatively, it could mean that all 
roads have a PCI of 70. 


392 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023   2 


 


 


Staff proposes to implement a public engagement process to educate the public on this 
issue and get input on the appropriate road condition goal for the future. The public 
communication plan will strive to inform the public about the pavement condition, the cost 
of road repairs, and other related expenses. It will also include visual aids and highlight 
street locations in Pinole where residents can take self-guided tours to better understand 
the road conditions and their correlation with the PCI. This public engagement process 
will involve gathering input on road condition preferences from the community. Staff will 
then provide a summary of this input to the Council for discussion and decision-making 
regarding potential scenarios and funding levels analysis as part of the Long-Term 
Financial Plan (LTFP). 
 
The proposed communication plan and implementation schedule is as follows. 
 
June 2023 
 
Develop a dedicated webpage on the City website to host pavement condition reports 
and visual aids. This page will include an overview and definitions of relevant terms, 
information about different road rehabilitation scenarios and their costs, photos depicting 
road conditions and their corresponding PCI, and a timeline of upcoming pavement 
condition decision steps. Conduct an in-person pop-up event during the Car Show on 
June 25, 2023. This event will feature informational flyers, photos, and definitions, as well 
as survey forms (available through quick response (QR) codes and paper) for gathering 
feedback. 
 
July 2023 
 
Host a public meeting or town hall, which can be conducted virtually or in-person, to 
educate residents about pavement conditions and maintenance programs. This gathering 
will provide an opportunity for one-on-one conversations with residents, offering an 
overview of road conditions, an explanation of the costs associated with road 
rehabilitation, details on the selection process for various sections, and a timeline of future 
steps. 
 
August 2023 
 
Compile a report containing the data collected from various outreach events, town hall 
meetings, online surveys, and emails. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
There is no fiscal impact to receiving this report. The staff time and materials and 
supplies costs to implement this proposed communication plan can be absorbed by 
current staff and budget. 
  
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 


393 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


9M 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: LILLY WHALEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN 
AGREEMENT WITH RSG, INC. FOR ASSISTANCE WITH 
IMPLEMENTATION OF VARIOUS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
ACTION STEPS IN YEAR 1 OF THE ADOPTED ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution (Attachment A) 
that authorizes the City Manager to execute a Consultant Services Agreement with RSG, 
Inc., in an amount not to exceed $149,000 for assistance with the implementation of 
various Year 1 Action Steps in the City’s adopted Economic Development Strategy. 


BACKGROUND 


In 2020, the Pinole City Council adopted a thoughtful and ambitious Strategic Plan1 for 
the City. Among other priorities, Goal 3 (Vibrant and Beautiful Pinole), Strategy 4 directed 
the creation of a comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (EDS). From January 
– October 2022 the City worked with The Natelson Dale Group (TNDG) to help develop
the EDS. On October 18, 2022, the City Council adopted the EDS. 


The EDS is a strategic framework to guide the City’s ED (Economic Development) 
policies and programs over the next five years and is designed to achieve the following 
major goals: 


• Expand economic opportunities for Pinole’s resident workforce by fostering
creation of a diverse range of quality jobs accessible to residents across the
spectrum of education/skill levels


• Leverage the economic development potentials of Pinole’s historic downtown and
waterfront areas through placemaking initiatives and targeted
business/development attraction


• Revitalize Pinole’s other commercial and industrial areas by encouraging private
investment that responds to anticipated real estate market demand


1 View the Strategic Plan 


394 of 829



https://pinoleca.hosted.civiclive.com/cms/one.aspx?portalId=10947056&pageId=16476320





City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  2 


• Strengthen the City’s fiscal position by attracting land uses and business types that 
have the potential to generate General Fund revenue 


 
A component of the EDS process is to develop branding as a part of the ED program, 
including the development of the name of the Pinole ED program, logo/tagline and 
development of a brand style guide and identity materials (such as letterhead, envelope, 
business cards). The branding process will be facilitated by TNDG’s partner agency, the 
Golden Shovel Agency. As the City is currently working on a citywide branding initiative, 
the ED branding will be on pause until the broader work has been concluded. The ED-
specific branding process will be concluded prior to finalization of the EDS contract with 
TNDG.  
 
A principal purpose of the EDS was to recommend an organizational structure for the 
implementation of an expanded City of Pinole ED program. Currently the City has no ED-
specific staff positions and ED-related functions are largely carried out by the City 
Manager’s Office and Community Development Department. In order to effectively 
implement the ED initiatives, the EDS recognizes that the City will realistically need to 
add ED-specific staffing to complement the existing organizational framework.  
 
The work program assumes that lead responsibility for implementing the various 
initiatives would be shared between a new economic development staff position 
(tentatively titled “ED Coordinator”) and the Community Development Director. The new 
ED Coordinator position would be housed in the Community Development Department 
and be dedicated to economic development on a 0.5 FTE basis, with an associated 
$80,000 annual budget. The City has not yet recruited for this part-time position. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
EDS ACTION PLAN 
The EDS Action Plan is organized around six major initiatives, as shown in Table 1. 
 
Table 1: EDS Action Plan Major Initiatives 


 
 


395 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023 3 


Each EDS Initiative includes a list of specific Action Steps, which are intended to be 
implemented from January 2023 through June 2028. In Year 1 of the EDS there are 28 
Action Steps. 


EDS STAFFING 
To begin timely implementation of the EDS staff is recommending professional consultant 
support for Year 1 activities, which would fill the role of the part time ED Coordinator. The 
consultant would work with the Community Development Director to ensure that all Year 
1 Action Steps are completed by June 2024. 


Staff solicited proposals for assistance with the implementation of various Economic 
Development Action Steps in Year 1 (which covers January 2023-June 2024) from eight 
qualified firms, and received three letter proposals. The proposal received from RSG was 
the most comprehensive with an overall approach and strategy that demonstrates the 
firm’s ability to effectively provide assistance to the City. 


Pursuant to the proposal (Attachment B), RSG will provide over 650 hours of support in 
either a lead or advisory role on Year 1 Action Items. They would take the lead on seven 
of the Action Items and provide a support/advisory role on 11 Action Items. The City would 
lead the remaining eight Action Items, working with regional economic development 
partners. 


FISCAL IMPACT


The City Council budgeted $80,000 in FY22/23 for staff support in implementing the EDS. 
(account 100-466-42101). To date, the balance in account 100-466-42101 is $71,416. 
Through the FY23/24 budget process, Staff is recommending that the balance of funds in 
account 100-466-42101 be carried over and added to the recommended FY 2023/24 
budget for economic development in Pinole. The recommended FY 2023/24 budget for 
professional services is $80,000 for staff support and $15,000 for economic development 
branding, which is expected to occur after the City-wide branding is complete.  


The total budget for FY23/24 would therefore be $151,416 for the implementation of the 
EDS and $15,000 for Economic Development branding. The contract amount with RSG 
for assistance in the implementation of the EDS in Year 1 (FY23/24) is not to exceed 
$149,000.  


ATTACHMENTS 


A- Resolution 
B- Proposal from RSG 


Exhibit A- Consulting Services Agreement


396 of 829







RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH RSG, INC (RSG) FOR A 
TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT OF $149,000 FOR ASSISTANCE WITH 
IMPLEMENTATION OF VARIOUS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACTION STEPS IN 
YEAR 1 OF THE ADOPTED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY 


WHEREAS, in 2020, the Pinole City Council adopted a five-year Strategic Plan for 
the City, with Goal 3 (Vibrant and Beautiful Pinole), Strategy 4 directing the creation of a 
comprehensive Economic Development Strategy (EDS); and 


WHEREAS, on October 18, 2022 the City Council adopted the EDS, which is a 
strategic framework to guide the City’s Economic Development policies and programs 
through June of 2028; and 


WHEREAS, in order to effectively implement the ED initiatives, the EDS 
recognizes that the City will realistically need to add ED-specific staffing to complement 
the existing organizational framework.; and 


WHEREAS, Staff solicited proposals for assistance with the implementation of 
various Economic Development Action Steps in Year 1 (covering January 2023-June 
2024); and 


WHEREAS, Staff received a proposal from RSG in response to the solicitation; 
and 


WHEREAS, staff evaluated the proposal, which is strong and will be able to 
thoroughly meet the City’s needs for this scope of work; and 


WHEREAS, the RSG proposal includes options for desired economic 
development support to Community Development staff, including providing over 650 
hours of support in a lead or advisory role through June 2024, taking the lead on seven 
Action Items and a support/advisory role on eleven Action Items; and 


WHEREAS, through the FY23/24 budget process, Account 100-566-42101 is 
expected to have a balance of $151,416 for economic development professional services 
in FY23/24.  


       NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the above recitals are true and 
correct and made part of this resolution. 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council does hereby authorize 
the City Manager to execute an agreement, incorporated herein as Exhibit A, with RSG 
for assistance with implementation of various economic development Action Steps in 
Year 1 of the Adopted Economic Development Strategy through June 30, 2024. 


ATTACHMENT A


397 of 829







  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 6th day of June, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 6th day of June, 2023. 
 
 
 
____________________________________  
Heather Bell, CMC  
City Clerk 


398 of 829







April 27, 2023 Via Electronic Mail 


Lilly Whalen, Community Development Director 
CITY OF PINOLE 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, California 94564 


CONSULTING SERVICES PROPOSAL – REVISED 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY YEAR 1 IMPLEMENTATION 


Dear Ms. Whalen: 


Thank  you for inviting RSG, Inc. (“RSG”) to submit a proposal to assist the City of Pinole (“City”) 
with implementing the Economic Development Strategy (“EDS”) adopted in October of 2022. We 
would be pleased to assist the City with implementing Year 1 Action Steps (“Action Steps”). 


The following table presents a menu of options from which the City can choose and an estimated 
timeline for completion. An estimated budget per task is provided in a separate table. Depending 
on the options chosen, completion times may change based on staffing availability. Once the city 
has chosen the options they would like to undertake, a finial timeline and budget will be developed. 


Like the EDS, the Action Steps are color coded for ease of review and are categorized as follows: 


• Green = RSG can take the lead on implementing
• Blue = RSG can assist with, but City would need to take the lead
• Orange = City specific tasks


ATTACHMENT B


399 of 829







Lilly Whalen, Community Development Director 
CITY OF PINOLE 
April 27, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Major Initiative Essential Year 1 Action Steps RSG Role Timeline 


1. Branding/Marketing  1. Economic Development (“ED”) 
website/new brand (1A) 


2. Ensure EDS marketing targets 
are included in other regional 
efforts (1B) 


3. Ensure business friendliness 
message is integrated into 
applicable platforms (1C) 


4. Launch retail/restaurant tenant 
recruitment effort and attend 
ICSC (1D) 


5. Convene civic organization 
summit (1E, 1F) 


6. Plan marketing services (1G) 


1. City specific item  
2. City specific item  
3. City specific item  
4. RSG will develop a retail 


attraction plan, create marketing 
materials and work with Pinole 
staff to attend ICSC 2024 


5. RSG can support the city’s 
convening of a Civic summit by 
providing best practice guidance 
for this type of event to debut the 
EDS and gain program 
ambassadors. The budget 
assumes City staff would attend 
meetings. 


6. RSG will support the City to 
research and advise on best 
practices for Economic 
Development marketing on an 
as-needed basis. 


 


1. n/a  
2. n/a 
3. n/a 
4. 1 Year (ICSC in May 


2024) 
5. 4 Months 
6. 4 Months 


 
 
 


400 of 829







Lilly Whalen, Community Development Director 
CITY OF PINOLE 
April 27, 2023 
Page 3 
 
 


 


Major Initiative Essential Year 1 Action Steps RSG Role Timeline 


2. Business Retention/ 
Expansion/Attraction  


1. Define partner roles (MOU) for 
coordination on business 
attraction  


2. Identify list of 6-8 focus clusters 
for business attraction and 
retention (2A) 


3. Compile cluster list of 
Pinole/Contra Costa County 
firms in each target cluster (2B) 


4. In-house plan for existing 
business outreach for business 
retention and expansion (2C) 


1. RSG can provide templates and 
guidance on how to best define 
partner roles for business 
attraction 


2. RSG can develop a cluster list 
with 6-8 focus industries for City 
acceptance  


3. Item 2 and 3 in this category 
would be combined 


4. RSG can create an in-house 
plan for the city’s business 
retention and attraction efforts 


1. Depends on City 
timing 


2. 5 Months 
3. (Combined w/ Item 2) 
4. 5 Months  


3. Entrepreneurial 
Development  


1. Meetings with regional partners 
to unveil EDS target cluster list 
and strategies and identify 
industries likely to offer 
significate entrepreneurial 
opportunities (3A) 


2. Webpage (partner links) (3B) 
 


1. City specific item  
2. City specific item  


 


1. n/a 
2. n/a 


  


401 of 829







Lilly Whalen, Community Development Director 
CITY OF PINOLE 
April 27, 2023 
Page 4 
 
 


 


Major Initiative Essential Year 1 Action Steps RSG Role Timeline 


4. Business/ 
Development 
Friendliness  


1. Establish “Business Concierge” 
and “Quick Response Team” 
programs (4A) 


2. Conduct annual survey of 
Pinole’s and competing cities’ 
fees and recommend 
adjustments if needed. (4B) 


1. Provide to the city best practices 
document for Business 
Concierge and Quick Response 
Team and provide internal 
training for same 


2. Assist City with research on an 
as-needed basis (i.e. call other 
cities if fees are not clear on 
their website) 


1. 7 Months 
2. 5 Months 


 


5. Development 
Capacity/Placemaking  


1. Launch “reposition retail” 
strategy (5A) 


2. Initiate contact with 
ownership/management of 
key shopping centers to 
assess interest in revitalizing 
and/or redeveloping 
properties (5A.A) 


3. Investigate if ARPA or other 
funds could be used to 
incentivize/leverage private 
shopping center revitalization 
(5A.B) 


4. Investigate options/costs for 
EIFD formation and if ARPA or 
other resources can be used to 
fund this effort and recommend 


1. Undertake this activity in 
combination with similar activity 
under Major Initiative 1 


2. Undertake a survey of at least 5 
major shopping centers to 
assess their desire to 
revitalize/redevelop and any 
barriers or incentives they that 
may be impacting their decisions 
(potentially undertake with Major 
Initiative 1 to meet with retailers 
at ICSC) 


3. Undertake a review of the use of 
ARPA funds for potential retail 
revitalization and redevelopment 


4. City specific item 
5. City specific item 


1. Undertake with 
Initiative 1, Item 4 
(1D) 


2. 5 Months 
3. 3 Months 
4. n/a 
5. n/a 
6. Depends on City 


timing 


402 of 829







Lilly Whalen, Community Development Director 
CITY OF PINOLE 
April 27, 2023 
Page 5 
 
 


 


Major Initiative Essential Year 1 Action Steps RSG Role Timeline 


course of action to City 
Manager (5B) 


5. Internal game plan (scope, 
etc.) for revising Three 
Corridors Specific Plan (if 
needed) (5C) 


6. Convene working group 
(consisting of City Manager, 
Community Development 
Department staff and Public 
Works staff) to review existing 
land use plans and policies 
relevant to the EDS, 
determine necessary changes 
and make recommendations 
to the City Manager. (5C) 


 


6. Support staff with their 
evaluation land use policies 
related to the EDS Initiatives and 
Action Steps for their proposal 
and presentation to the city 
leadership for consideration 


 


6. Workforce Interface  1. Establish Pinole Workforce 
Development Consortium 
(PWDC) (6A) 


2. Strategy to connect firms with 
training resources (6B) 


3. Webpage listing workforce 
development resources 


1. Support in the creation of a 
Pinole Workforce Development 
Consortium and provide past 
experience and best practices 
for this type of effort. 


2. Develop a strategy for staff 
implementation that will connect 
Pinole firms with existing 
regional training resources.  


3. City specific item 


1. Depends on City 
timing 


2. 4 Months 
3. n/a 


 


403 of 829







Lilly Whalen, Community Development Director 
CITY OF PINOLE 
April 27, 2023 
Page 6 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


STAFFING 
This engagement would be led Tara Matthews, Principal-in-Charge, and Kevin Ham and Suzy 
Kim, Directors. Ms. Matthews and Ms. Kim have intimate knowledge of Pinole by partnering with 
the City on affordable housing and property disposition activities since 2017. Ms. Kim serves on 
the California Association of Local Economic Development’s Real Estate, Economic 
Development, and Finance Committee as a technical expert to develop educational materials for 
member jurisdictions. Mr. Ham would be the lead economic development advisor for this 
engagement. Kevin has directly led economic development programs for over 35 years. He has 
hands on experience in each area of this proposal. Kevin has worked with regional partners on 
economic development strategies and created a regional effort called Innovate78. He has also 
led successful retail recruitment efforts, developed and implemented award winning business 
retention programs, led civic engagement efforts with local and regional leaders/partners, led 
several city and regional branding efforts, and led an internal city effort to become more business 
friendly that has been recognized and followed by other communities. Additional staff may be 
assigned as needed. Resumes are available on our website at https://webrsg.com/meet-team/. 
 
FEE ESTIMATE 
 
RSG proposes to provide the tasks described in the Scope of Services on a time-and-materials 
basis as outlined in the following table.   The estimated fee for all services outlined in this proposal 
is $149,000 for a term ending June 30, 2024 or December 31, 2024 depending on the timeline of 
each initiative agreed upon by City staff. 


404 of 829







Lilly Whalen, Community Development Director 
CITY OF PINOLE 
April 27, 2023 
Page 7 
 
 


 


Scope of Services
Economic Development Strategy Implementation: Year 1 Action Items
City of Pinole (April 2023)


Reimb. Total
Prin./Dir. Analyst Total Hrs Est.


275$       135$      Budget


Initiative 1 Branding Marketing 115        90         205          6,500$    50,275$     
1.1      1A Draft ED website material -         -        -           -          -             
1.2      1B Target market inclusion in regional efforts -           -          -             
1.3      1C Integrate business friendliness message -           -          -             
1.4      1D Retail/restaurant recruitment and ICSC 80          80         160          6,500      39,300       
1.5      1E, 1F Convene civic organization summit 25          10         35            -          8,225         
1.6      1G Plan marketing services 10          -        10            -          2,750         


Initiative 2 Business Retention/Expansion/Attraction 75          50         125          -$        27,375$     
2.1      Define partner roles (MOU) for business attraction 20          20            -          5,500         
2.2      2A Identify list of 6-8 focus clusters 5            40         45            -          6,775         
2.3      2B Compile list of local/regional firms in each target cluster (combined w/ 2.2) -           -          -             
2.4      2C In-house plan for outreach, retention, and expansion 50          10         60            -          15,100       


Initiative 3 Entrepreneurial Development -         -        -           -$        -$           
3.1      3A Meetings with regional partners -           -          -             
3.2      3B Webpage (partner links) -           -          -             


Initiative 4 Business Development/Friendliness 63          20         83            -$        20,025$     
4.1      4A Establish Business Concierge and Quick Response Team 60          10         70            -          17,850       
4.2      4B Annual survey of Pinole and competing city fees 3            10         13            -          2,175         


Initiative 5 Development Capacity/Placemaking 70          45         115          -$        25,325$     
5.1      5A Launch "reposition retail" strategy (combined with 1.4) -           -          -             
5.2      5A.A Initiate contact with key shopping centers re revitalization 20          20         40            -          8,200         
5.3      5A.B Investigate funds to incentivize/leverage private revitalization 20          15         35            -          7,525         
5.4      5B EIFD formation options/costs -         -        -           -          -             
5.5      5C Three Corridors Specific Plan revision game plan -           -          -             
5.6      5C Convene working group to review land use plans and policies 30          10         40            9,600         


Initiative 6 Workforce Interface 65          60         125          -$        25,975$     
6.1      6A Establish Pinole Workforce Development Consortium 40          20         60            -          13,700       
6.2      6B Strategy to connect firms with training resources 25          40         65            -          12,275       
6.3      Webpage listing workforce development resources -           -          -             


TOTAL 6,500$    148,975$   


Task Hours & Billing Rate


405 of 829







Lilly Whalen, Community Development Director 
CITY OF PINOLE 
April 27, 2023 
Page 8 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


RSG’s 2023 billing rates are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Our fee is based upon an estimate of the number of hours needed for each task.  If the Scope of 
Services is substantially changed in the future, RSG will notify the City and request a fee 
adjustment.  Any revisions to the Scope of Services will be billed on a time-and-materials basis 
at RSG’s hourly rates. The services would be provided per the terms and conditions of a 
consulting services agreement by and between the City of Pinole and RSG.   
 
RSG does not charge clients for travel or mileage (except direct costs related to field 
work/surveys), parking, standard telephone/fax expenses, general postage, or incidental copies. 
However, we do charge for messenger services, overnight shipping/express mail costs, and 
teleconferencing services. We also charge for copies of reports, documents, notices, and support 
material in excess of five copies. These costs are charged back at the actual expense plus a 10% 
surcharge. RSG issues monthly invoices payable upon receipt, unless otherwise agreed upon in 
advance. Invoices identify tasks completed to date, hours expended, and the hourly rate. 
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact Suzy Kim at 714-316-2116. 
 
Sincerely, 
RSG, INC. 
 
 
 
Tara Matthews  
Principal  


Principal/Director $ 275 
Senior Associate $ 200 
Associate $ 185 
Senior Analyst $ 150 
Analyst $ 135 
Research Assistant 
Technician 
Clerical 


$ 125 
$  80 
$  60 


Reimbursable    
Expenses 


Cost plus 
10% 


406 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 1 of 17 


CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE CITY OF PINOLE AND RSG 


THIS AGREEMENT for consulting services is made by and between the City of Pinole (“City”) and 
RSG, Inc. (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to as the “Parties”) as of _______, 20 (the 
“Effective Date”) in Pinole, California. 


Section 1. SERVICES. Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant 
shall provide to City the services described in the Scope of Work attached as Exhibit A at the time and 
place and in the manner specified therein.  In the event of a conflict in or inconsistency between the terms 
of this Agreement and Exhibit A, the Agreement shall prevail. 


1.1 Term of Services. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and shall 
end on June 30, 2024, and Consultant shall complete the work described in Exhibit A by 
that date, unless the term of the Agreement is otherwise terminated or extended, as 
provided for in Section 8. The time provided to Consultant to complete the services 
required by this Agreement shall not affect the City’s right to terminate the Agreement, as 
provided for in Section 8. 


1.2 Standard of Performance. Consultant shall perform all services required pursuant to this 
Agreement in the manner and according to the standards observed by a competent 
practitioner of the profession in which Consultant is engaged in the geographical area in 
which Consultant practices its profession. Consultant shall prepare all work products 
required by this Agreement in a professional manner and shall conform to the standards of 
quality normally observed by a person practicing in Consultant's profession. 


1.3 Assignment of Personnel. Consultant shall assign only competent personnel to perform 
services pursuant to this Agreement. In the event that City, in its sole discretion, at any 
time during the term of this Agreement, desires the reassignment of any such persons, 
Consultant shall, immediately upon receiving notice from City of such desire of City, 
reassign such person or persons. 


1.4 Time. Consultant shall devote such time to the performance of services pursuant to this 
Agreement as may be reasonably necessary to meet the standard of performance 
provided in Section 1.1 above and to satisfy Consultant’s obligations hereunder. 


Section 2. COMPENSATION. City hereby agrees to pay Consultant an amount not to exceed 
ONE HUNDRED FORTY-NINE DOLLARS ($149,000), for all work set forth in Exhibit A and all 
reimbursable expenses incurred in performing the work. In the event of a conflict between this Agreement 
and Consultant’s proposal regarding the amount of compensation, the Agreement shall prevail. City shall 
pay Consultant for services rendered pursuant to this Agreement at the time and in the manner set forth 
herein.  The payments specified below shall be the only payments from City to Consultant for services 
rendered pursuant to this Agreement. 


Consultant shall submit all invoices to City in the manner specified herein. Except as specifically 
authorized by City, Consultant shall not bill City for duplicate services performed by more than one person. 


EXHIBIT A


407 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 2 of 17 


 


 
Consultant and City acknowledge and agree that compensation paid by City to Consultant under this 
Agreement is based upon Consultant’s estimated costs of providing the services required hereunder, 
including salaries and benefits of employees and subcontractors of Consultant.  Consequently, the parties 
further agree that compensation hereunder is intended to include the costs of contributions to any pensions 
and/or annuities to which Consultant and its employees, agents, and subcontractors may be eligible. City 
therefore has no responsibility for such contributions beyond compensation required under this Agreement. 


 
2.1 Invoices. Consultant shall submit invoices, not more often than once a month during the 


term of this Agreement, based on the cost for services performed and reimbursable costs 
incurred prior to the invoice date. Invoices shall contain the following information: 


 
▪ Serial identifications of progress bills; i.e., Progress Bill No. 1 for the first invoice, 


etc.; 
▪ The beginning and ending dates of the billing period; 
▪ A Task Summary containing the original contract amount, the amount of prior 


billings, the total due this period, the balance available under the Agreement, and 
the percentage of completion; 


▪ At City’s option, for each work item in each task, a copy of the applicable time 
entries or time sheets shall be submitted showing the name of the person doing 
the work, the hours spent by each person, a brief description of the work, and 
each reimbursable expense; 


▪ The total number of hours of work performed under the Agreement by Consultant 
and each employee, agent, and subcontractor of Consultant performing services 
hereunder, as well as a separate notice when the total number of hours of work by 
Consultant and any individual employee, agent, or subcontractor of Consultant 
reaches or exceeds 800 hours, which shall include an estimate of the time 
necessary to complete the work described in Exhibit A; 


▪ The Consultant’s signature. 
 


2.2 Monthly Payment. City shall make monthly payments, based on invoices received, for 
services satisfactorily performed, and for authorized reimbursable costs incurred. City 
shall have 30 days from the receipt of an invoice that complies with all of the requirements 
above to pay Consultant. 


 
2.3 Final Payment.  City shall pay the last 10% of the total sum due pursuant to this 


Agreement within sixty (60) days after completion of the services and submittal to City of a 
final invoice, if all services required have been satisfactorily performed. 


 
2.4 Total Payment.  City shall pay for the services to be rendered by Consultant pursuant to 


this Agreement. City shall not pay any additional sum for any expense or cost whatsoever 
incurred by Consultant in rendering services pursuant to this Agreement. City shall make 
no payment for any extra, further, or additional service pursuant to this Agreement. 


 
In no event shall Consultant submit any invoice for an amount in excess of the maximum 
amount of compensation provided above either for a task or for the entire Agreement, 


408 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 3 of 17 


 


unless the Agreement is modified prior to the submission of such an invoice by a properly 
executed change order or amendment. 


 
2.5 Hourly Fees.  Fees for work performed by Consultant on an hourly basis shall not exceed 


the amounts shown on the following fee schedule attached hereto as Exhibit B. 
 


2.6 Reimbursable Expenses. Reimbursable expenses are specified in Exhibit B, and shall 
not exceed Six Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($6,500). Expenses not listed in Exhibit 
B are not chargeable to City. Reimbursable expenses are included in the total amount 
of compensation provided under this Agreement that shall not be exceeded. 


 
2.7 Payment of Taxes.  Consultant is solely responsible for the payment of employment taxes 


incurred under this Agreement and any similar federal or state taxes. 
 


2.8 Payment upon Termination.  In the event that the City or Consultant terminates this 
Agreement pursuant to Section 8, the City shall compensate the Consultant for all 
outstanding costs and reimbursable expenses incurred for work satisfactorily completed as 
of the date of written notice of termination. Consultant shall maintain adequate logs and 
timesheets in order to verify costs incurred to that date. 


 
2.9 Authorization to Perform Services.  The Consultant is not authorized to perform any 


services or incur any costs whatsoever under the terms of this Agreement until receipt of 
authorization from the Contract Administrator. 


 
Section 3. FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT. Except as set forth herein, Consultant shall, at its sole 
cost and expense, provide all facilities and equipment that may be necessary to perform the services 
required by this Agreement. City shall make available to Consultant only the facilities and equipment listed 
in Exhibit C, and only under the terms and conditions set forth therein. 


 


Section 4. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS. Before beginning any services under this Agreement, 
Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall procure the types and amounts of insurance specified herein and 
maintain that insurance throughout the term of this Agreement.  The cost of such insurance shall be included in 
the Consultant’s bid or proposal.  Consultant shall be fully responsible for the acts and omissions of its 
subcontractors or other agents.  


 
4.1  Workers’ Compensation.  Consultant shall, at its sole cost and expense, maintain 


Statutory Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Employer’s Liability Insurance for 
any and all persons employed directly or indirectly by Consultant in the amount 
required by applicable law.  The requirement to maintain Statutory Workers’ 
Compensation and Employer’s Liability Insurance may be waived by the City upon 
written verification that Consultant is a sole proprietor and does not have any 
employees and will not have any employees during the term of this Agreement.  


 
4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance. 


 


409 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 4 of 17 


 


4.2.1 General requirements. Consultant, Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall 
maintain commercial general and automobile liability insurance for the term of this 
Agreement in an amount not less than TWO MILLION DOLLARS ($2,000,000) per 
occurrence and FOUR MILLION DOLLARS ($4,000,000) aggregate, combined single 
limit coverage for risks associated with the work contemplated by this Agreement.  


 
4.2.2 Minimum scope of coverage.  Commercial general coverage shall be at least as 


broad as Insurance Services Office Commercial General Liability occurrence form 
CG 0001 (most recent edition) covering comprehensive General Liability on an 
“occurrence” basis.  Automobile coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance 
Services Office Automobile Liability form CA 0001 (most recent edition) covering 
any auto (Code 1), or if Consultant has no owned autos, hired (code 8) and non-
owned autos (Code 9).  No endorsement shall be attached limiting the coverage. 


 
4.2.3 Additional requirements. Each of the following shall be included in the 


insurance coverage or added as a certified endorsement to the policy: 
 
a. The Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance shall cover on 


an occurrence basis. 
b. City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be 


covered as additional insureds for liability arising out of work or operations 
on behalf of the Consultant, including materials, parts, or equipment 
furnished in connection with such work or operations; or automobiles 
owned, leased, hired, or borrowed by the Consultant.  Coverage can be 
provided in the form of an endorsement to the Consultant’s insurance at 
least as broad as CG 20 10 11 85, or  both CG 20 10 10 01 and CG 20 37 
10 01.  


c. For any claims related to this Agreement or the work hereunder, the 
Consultant’s insurance covered shall be primary insurance as respects the 
City, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers.  Any 
insurance or self-insurance maintained by the City, its officers, officials, 
employees, agents or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant’s 
insurance and non-contributing. 


d. The policy shall cover inter-insured suits and include a “separation of 
Insureds” or “severability” clause which treats each insured separately. 


e. Consultant agrees to give at least 30 days prior written notice to City before 
coverage is canceled or modified as to scope or amount. 
 


4.3 Professional Liability Insurance. 
 


4.3.1 General requirements. Consultant, at its own cost and expense, shall maintain 
for the period covered by this Agreement professional liability insurance for 
licensed professionals performing work pursuant to this Agreement in an amount 
not less than ONE MILLION DOLLARS ($1,000,000) per occurrence or claim 
covering the Consultant’s errors and omissions.   


 


410 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 5 of 17 


 


4.3.2 Claims-made limitations. The following provisions shall apply if the professional 
liability coverage is written on a claims-made form: 


 
a. The retroactive date of the policy must be shown and must be before the 


date of the Agreement. 
 


b. Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be 
provided for at least five (5) years after completion of the Agreement or 
the work.  


 
c. If coverage is canceled or not renewed and it is not replaced with another 


claims-made policy form with a retroactive date that precedes the date of 
this Agreement, Consultant must provide extended reporting coverage for 
a minimum of five (5) years after completion of work under this Agreement.  


 
d. A copy of the claim reporting requirements must be submitted to the City 


prior to the commencement of any work under this Agreement. 
 


4.4 All Policies Requirements. 
 


4.4.1 Submittal Requirements. Consultant shall submit the following to City prior to 
beginning services: 
a. Certificate of Liability Insurance in the amounts specified in this 


Agreement; and 
b. Additional Insured Endorsement as required for the General 


Commercial and Automobile Liability Polices. 
 


4.4.2 Acceptability of insurers. All insurance required by this section is to be placed 
with insurers with a Bests' rating of no less than A:VII. 
 


4.4.3 Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions. Insurance obtained by the 
Consultant shall have a self-insured retention or deductible of no more than 
ONE HUNDRED THOUSAND DOLLARS ($100,000). 
 


4.4.4 Wasting Policies.  No policy required herein shall include a “wasting” policy 
limit (i.e. limit that is eroded by the cost of defense).    
 


4.4.5 Waiver of Subrogation.  Consultant hereby agrees to waive subrogation which 
any insurer or contractor may require from Consultant by virtue of the payment 
of any loss.  Consultant agrees to obtain any endorsements that may be 
necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation, but this provision applies 
regardless of whether or not the City has received a waiver of subrogation 
endorsement from the insurer. 
 


4.4.6 Subcontractors.  Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds under 
its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each 


411 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 6 of 17 


 


subcontractor.  All coverages for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the 
requirements stated herein, and Consultant shall ensure that City, its officers, 
officials, employees, agents, and volunteers are covered as additional insured 
on all coverages. 
 


4.4.7 Excess Insurance.  If Consultant maintains higher insurance limits than the 
minimums specified herein, City shall be entitled to coverage for the higher 
limits maintained by the Consultant.   
 


4.5 Remedies.  In addition to any other remedies City may have if Consultant fails to 
provide or maintain any insurance policies or policy endorsements to the extent and 
within the time herein required, City may, at its sole option: 1) obtain such insurance and 
deduct and retain the amount of the premiums for such insurance from any sums due 
under the Agreement; 2) order Consultant to stop work under this Agreement and 
withhold any payment that becomes due to Consultant hereunder until Consultant 
demonstrates compliance with the requirements hereof; and/or 3) terminate this 
Agreement. 
 


Section 5. INDEMNIFICATION AND C ONSULTANT’S R ESPONSIBILITIES.   
 
5.1 General Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, Contractor shall defend, 


indemnify and hold City, its officials, officers, employees, volunteers and agents free and 
harmless from any and all claims, demands, causes of action, costs, expenses, liability, 
loss, damage or injury, in law or equity, to property or persons, including wrongful death, 
in any manner arising out of or incident to any alleged negligent acts, omissions or willful 
misconduct of Contractor, its officials, officers, employees, agents, subcontractors and 
subcontractors arising out of or in connection with the performance of the Services, the 
Project or this Agreement, including without limitation the payment of all consequential 
damages, attorneys’ fees and other related costs and expenses.  Contractor shall defend, 
at Contractor's own cost, expense and risk, any and all such aforesaid suits, actions or 
other legal proceedings of every kind that may be brought or instituted against City, its 
directors, officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers.  Contractor shall pay and 
satisfy any judgment, award or decree that may be rendered against City or its directors, 
officials, officers, employees, agents or volunteers, in any such suit, action or other legal 
proceeding.  Contractor shall reimburse City and its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents and/or volunteers, for any and all legal expenses and costs, including 
reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by each of them in connection therewith or in 
enforcing the indemnity herein provided.  Contractor's obligation to indemnify shall not be 
restricted to insurance proceeds, if any, received by City or its directors, officials, officers, 
employees, agents or volunteers.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, to the extent 
Contractor's Services are subject to Civil Code Section 2782.8, the above indemnity shall 
be limited, to the extent required by Civil Code Section 2782.8, to claims that arise out of, 
pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness, or willful misconduct of the 
Contractor. This Section 5.1 shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. 
 


412 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 7 of 17 


 


5.2 PERS Indemnification. In the event that Consultant or any employee, agent, or 
subcontractor of Consultant providing services under this Agreement is determined by a 
court of competent jurisdiction or the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) to be eligible for enrollment in PERS as an employee of City, Consultant shall 
indemnify, defend, and hold harmless City for the payment of any employee and/or 
employer contributions for PERS benefits on behalf of Consultant or its employees, 
agents, or subcontractors, as well as for the payment of any penalties and interest on 
such contributions, which would otherwise be the responsibility of City. 


 
Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT. 


 


6.1 Independent Contractor. At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall 
be an independent contractor and shall not be an employee of City.  City shall have the 
right to control Consultant only insofar as the results of Consultant's services rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement and assignment of personnel pursuant to Subparagraph 1.3; 
however, otherwise City shall not have the right to control the means by which Consultant 
accomplishes services rendered pursuant to this Agreement.  Notwithstanding any other 
City, state, or federal policy, rule, regulation, law, or ordinance to the contrary, Consultant 
and any of its employees, agents, and subcontractors providing services under this 
Agreement shall not qualify for or become entitled to, and hereby agree to waive any and 
all claims to, any compensation, benefit, or any incident of employment by City, including 
but not limited to eligibility to enroll in the California Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) as an employee of City and entitlement to any contribution to be paid by City for 
employer contributions and/or employee contributions for PERS benefits. 


 
6.2 Consultant No Agent. Except as City may specify in writing, Consultant shall have no 


authority, express or implied, to act on behalf of City in any capacity whatsoever as an 
agent.  Consultant shall have no authority, express or implied, pursuant to this Agreement 
to bind City to any obligation whatsoever. 


 
Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS. 


 


7.1 Governing Law.  The laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 
 


7.2 Compliance with Applicable Laws. Consultant and any subcontractors shall comply with 
all laws applicable to the performance of the work hereunder. 


 
7.3 Other Governmental Regulations.  To the extent that this Agreement may be funded by 


fiscal assistance from another governmental entity, Consultant and any subcontractors 
shall comply with all applicable rules and regulations to which City is bound by the terms of 
such fiscal assistance program. 
 


7.4 Licenses and Permits.  Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant and 
its employees, agents, and any subcontractors have all licenses, permits, qualifications, 
and approvals of whatsoever nature that are legally required to practice their respective 
professions. Consultant represents and warrants to City that Consultant and its 


413 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 8 of 17 


 


employees, agents, any subcontractors shall, at their sole cost and expense, keep in effect 
at all times during the term of this Agreement any licenses, permits, and approvals that are 
legally required to practice their respective professions. In addition to the foregoing, 
Consultant and any subcontractors shall obtain and maintain during the term of this 
Agreement valid Business Licenses from City. 


 
7.5 Pinole Business  License. Consultant  shall obtain  a City of  Pinole  business license 


according to the terms of Title 5 of the City of Pinole Municipal Code and deliver to City 
proof of such business license prior to beginning work under this Agreement. Work under 
this Agreement cannot begin until the City receives proof that Consultant has obtained a 
City of Pinole business license. 


 
7.6 Nondiscrimination and Equal Opportunity.  Consultant shall not discriminate, on the 


basis of a person’s race, religion, color, national origin, age, physical or mental handicap or 
disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, or sexual orientation, against any 
employee, applicant for employment, subcontractor, bidder for a subcontract, or participant 
in, recipient of, or applicant for any services or programs provided by Consultant under this 
Agreement. Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, 
policies, rules, and requirements related to equal opportunity and nondiscrimination in 
employment, contracting, and the provision of any services that are the subject of this 
Agreement, including but not limited to the satisfaction of any positive obligations required 
of Consultant thereby. 


 
Consultant shall include the provisions of this Subsection in any subcontract approved by 
the Contract Administrator or this Agreement. 


 
Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION. 


 


8.1 Termination.  City may cancel this Agreement at any time and without cause upon written 
notification to Consultant. 


 
In the event of termination, Consultant shall be entitled to compensation for services 
performed to the effective date of termination; City, however, may condition payment of 
such compensation upon Consultant delivering to City any or all documents, photographs, 
computer software, video and audio tapes, and other materials provided to Consultant or 
prepared by or for Consultant or the City in connection with this Agreement. 


 
8.2 Extension. City may, in its sole and exclusive discretion, extend the end date of this 


Agreement beyond that provided for in Subsection 1.1. Any such extension shall be 
specified in writing by the City. Consultant understands and agrees that if City issues such 
an extension, City shall have no obligation to provide Consultant with compensation 
beyond the maximum amount provided for in this Agreement. Similarly, unless authorized 


 


by the City, City shall have no obligation to reimburse Consultant for any otherwise 
reimbursable expenses incurred during the extension period. 


 


414 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 9 of 17 


 


8.3 Amendments.  The parties may amend this Agreement only by a writing signed by all the 
parties. 


 
8.4 Assignment and Subcontracting.  City and Consultant recognize and agree that this 


Agreement contemplates personal performance by Consultant and is based upon a 
determination of Consultant’s unique professional competence, experience, and 
specialized professional knowledge. Moreover, a substantial inducement to City for 
entering into this Agreement was and is the personal reputation and competence of 
Consultant. Consultant may not assign this Agreement or any interest therein without the 
prior written approval of the City. Consultant shall not subcontract any portion of the 
performance contemplated and provided for herein, other than to the subcontractors noted 
in the proposal, without prior written approval of the City. 


 
8.5 Survival. All obligations arising prior to the termination of this Agreement and all 


provisions of this Agreement allocating liability between City and Consultant shall survive 
the termination of this Agreement. 


 
8.6 Options upon Breach by Consultant. If Consultant materially breaches any of the terms 


of this Agreement, City’s remedies shall included, but not be limited to, the following: 
 


8.6.1 Immediately terminate the Agreement; 
 


8.6.2 Retain the plans, specifications, drawings, reports, design documents, and any 
other work product prepared by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement; 


 
8.6.3 Retain a different consultant to complete the work described in Exhibit A not 


finished by Consultant; or 
 


8.6.4 Charge Consultant the difference between the cost to complete the work 
described in Exhibit A that is unfinished at the time of breach and the amount that 
City would have paid Consultant pursuant to Section 2 if Consultant had 
completed the work. 


 
Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS. 


 


9.1  Rec ords Created as Part of Consultant’s Performan ce. All reports, data, maps, 
models, charts, studies, surveys, photographs, memoranda, plans, studies, specifications, 
records, files, or any other documents or materials, in electronic or any other form, that 
Consultant prepares or obtains pursuant to this Agreement and that relate to the matters 
covered hereunder shall be the property of the City. Consultant hereby agrees to deliver 
those documents to the City upon termination of the Agreement.  It is understood and 


 


agreed that the documents and other materials, including but not limited to those described 
above, prepared pursuant to this Agreement are prepared specifically for the City and are 
not necessarily suitable for any future or other use. City and Consultant agree that, until 
final approval by City, all data, plans, specifications, reports and other documents are 


415 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 10 of 17 


 


confidential and will not be released to third parties without prior written consent of both 
parties. 


 
9.2  Consultant’s Books and Rec ords.  Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books 


of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks, and other records or documents 
evidencing or relating to charges for services or expenditures and disbursements charged 
to the City under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) years, or for any longer period 
required by law, from the date of final payment to the Consultant to this Agreement. 


 
9.3 Inspection and Audit of Records. Any records or documents that Section 9.2 of this 


Agreement requires Consultant to maintain shall be made available for inspection, audit, 
and/or copying at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of 
the City. Under California Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds 
expended under this Agreement exceeds TEN THOUSAND DOLLARS ($10,000.00), the 
Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the 
request of City or as part of any audit of the City, for a period of three (3) years after final 
payment under the Agreement. 


 
Section 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS. 


 


10.1  Attorneys’ Fees.  If a party to this Agreement brings any action, including an action for 
declaratory relief, to enforce or interpret the provision of this Agreement, the prevailing 
party shall be entitled to reasonable attorneys’ fees in addition to any other relief to which 
that party may be entitled. The court may set such fees in the same action or in a 
separate action brought for that purpose. 


 
10.2 Venue.  In the event that either party brings any action against the other under this 


Agreement, the parties agree that trial of such action shall be vested exclusively in the 
state courts of California in the County of Contra Costa or in the United States District 
Court for the Northern District of California. 


 
10.3 Severability.  If a court of competent jurisdiction finds or rules that any provision of this 


Agreement is invalid, void, or unenforceable, the provisions of this Agreement not so 
adjudged shall remain in full force and effect.  The invalidity in whole or in part of any 
provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision of this 
Agreement. 


 
10.4 No Implied Waiver of Breach. The waiver of any breach of a specific provision of this 


Agreement does not constitute a waiver of any other breach of that term or any other term 
of this Agreement. 


 
 


10.5 Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of 
and shall apply to and bind the successors and assigns of the parties. 


 


416 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 11 of 17 


 


10.6 Use of Recycled Products. Consultant shall endeavor to prepare and submit all reports, 
written studies and other printed material on recycled paper to the extent it is available at 
equal or less cost than virgin paper. 


 
10.7 Conflict of Interest.  Consultant may serve other clients, but none whose activities within 


the corporate limits of City or whose business, regardless of location, would place 
Consultant in a “conflict of interest,” as that term is defined in the Political Reform Act, 
codified at California Government Code Section 81000 et seq. 


 
Consultant shall not employ any City official in the work performed pursuant to this 
Agreement.  No officer or employee of City shall have any financial interest in this 
Agreement that would violate California Government Code Sections 1090 et seq. 


 
Consultant hereby warrants that it is not now, nor has it been in the previous twelve (12) 
months, an employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City. If Consultant was an 
employee, agent, appointee, or official of the City in the previous twelve months, 
Consultant warrants that it did not participate in any manner in the forming of this 
Agreement.  Consultant understands that, if this Agreement is made in violation of 
Government Code §1090 et.seq., the entire Agreement is void and Consultant will not be 
entitled to any compensation for services performed pursuant to this Agreement, including 
reimbursement of expenses, and Consultant will be required to reimburse the City for any 
sums paid to the Consultant.  Consultant understands that, in addition to the foregoing, it 
may be subject to criminal prosecution for a violation of Government Code § 1090 and, if 
applicable, will be disqualified from holding public office in the State of California. 


 
Consultant will comply with all conflict of interest laws and regulations including, without 
limitation, City’s Conflict of Interest Code (on file in the City Clerk’s Office). It is incumbent 
upon the Consultant or Consultant’s firm to notify the City pursuant to section 10.10 
Notices of any staff changes relating to this Agreement. 


 
a. In accomplishing the scope of services of this Agreement, all officers, employees 


and/or agents of Consultant(s), unless as indicated in Subsection b., will be 
performing a very limited and closely supervised function, and, therefore, are unlikely 
to have a conflict of interest arise.  No disclosures are required for any officers, 
employees, and/or agents of Consultant, except as indicated in Subsection b. 


 
 
 


 


 


Initialed by City Attorney’s Office 
 
 


b. In accomplishing the scope of services of this Agreement, Consultant(s) will be 
performing a specialized or general service for the City, and there is substantial 
likelihood that the Consultant’s work product will be presented, either written or orally, 
for the purpose of influencing a governmental decision. As a result, the following 


417 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 12 of 17 


 


Consultant(s) shall be subject to the Disclosure Category “1-5” of the City’s Conflict of 
Interest Code: 


 
 


  


 
 


  


 
 


10.8 Solicitation. Consultant agrees not to solicit business at any meeting, focus group, or 
interview related to this Agreement, either orally or through any written materials. 


 
10.9 Contract Administration. This Agreement shall be administered by 


Community Development Director who shall act as the City’s representative. All 
correspondence shall be directed to or through Community Development Director or his 
or her designee. 


 
10.10 Notices.  


 
Any written notice to Consultant shall be sent to: 
Tara Matthews, Principal 
RSG, Inc. 
17872 Gillette Ave., Suite 350 
Irvine CA 92614 
 


 


Any written notice to City shall be sent to: 
City Manager 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 
 


10.11 Professional Seal. Where applicable in the determination of the City, the first page of a 
technical report, first page of design specifications, and each page of construction 
drawings shall be stamped/sealed and signed by the licensed professional responsible for 
the report/design preparation. 


 
10.12 Integration; Incorporation. This Agreement, including all the exhibits attached hereto, 


represents the entire and integrated agreement between City and Consultant and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or oral. All 
exhibits attached hereto are incorporated by reference herein. 


 
10.13 Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which 


shall be an original and all of which together shall constitute one agreement. 
 


/// 
/// 
/// 
/// 


418 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 13 of 17 


 


The Parties have executed this Agreement as of the Effective Date. 
 
 


CITY OF PINOLE CONSULTANT 
 
 
 


  


Andrew Murray, City Manager Tara Matthews, Principal, RSG, Inc. 
 


Consultant’s City of Pinole Business 
License #:_  


 
 


Attest: 
 
 
 


 


Heather Bell, City Clerk 
Approved as to Form: 


 
 


 


Eric S. Casher, City Attorney


419 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 14 of 17 


 


 
EXHIBIT A 


SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
The Consultant’s scope of services will include the scope of work listed on pages 2-5 of the Consultant’s 
proposal of April 27, 2023 and any modifications or additions agreed to by the Parties in writing and signed by 
the parties pursuant to Section 8.3. 


420 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 15 of 17 


 


 


EXHIBIT B 
 


COMPENSATION SCHEDULE AND HOURLY FEES 
 


The fees charged by Consultant for work performed on an hourly basis shall not exceed the hourly rates 
shown in the fee proposal contained on page 8 of the Consultant’s proposal of April 27, 2023. 
 
Reimbursable expenses include efforts in Major Initiative 1 (Branding/Marketing) to support the development of 
the retail attraction plan, marketing materials and support of staff to attend the (International Council of 
Shopping Centers (ICSC) in 2024 in a total amount not to exceed two thousand five hundred dollars ($6,500).


421 of 829







Consulting Services Agreement between 
City of Pinole and RSG 


[DATE] 
Page 16 of 17 


 


 


EXHIBIT C 
CITY-FURNISHED FACILITIES 


 
City shall furnish physical facilities such as desks, filing cabinets, and conference space, as may be 
reasonably necessary for Consultant’s use while consulting with City employees and reviewing records and 
the information in possession of the City. The location, quantity, and time of furnishing those facilities shall 
be in the sole discretion of City.  In no event shall City be obligated to furnish any facility that may involve 
incurring any direct expense, including but not limited to computer, long-distance telephone or other 
communication charges, vehicles, and reproduction facilities. 


422 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


9N 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: LILLY WHALEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE THE 
FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT WITH STRATEGIC 
ENERGY INNOVATIONS (SEI) TO EXTEND THE CLIMATE FELLOW 
CONTRACT BY TWO MONTHS  


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution that: 


1. Authorizes the City Manager to execute the first amendment to the Consultant
Services Agreement with Strategic Energy Innovations (SEI) to extend the 10-
month agreement by two months for continued Sustainability Fellow services; and


2. Appropriate Eleven Thousand Two Hundred and Thirty Dollars ($11,230) from the
Building and Planning fund to support the extension.


BACKGROUND 


In May of 2022 the City Council authorized the City Manager to enter into a contract with 
Strategic Energy Innovations (SEI), a non-profit with a mission to “inspire and empower 
to advance solutions for a thriving, healthy planet” to support a Climate Corps Fellow 
through SEI’s Climate Corps Program.1 Climate Corps is an award-winning fellowship 
program that provides professional development opportunities for emerging leaders 
through the implementation of sustainability and resiliency projects with local 
governments, nonprofits, and businesses. The program typically provides 10 months of 
Fellowship service. However, the contract can be extended if the Fellow is willing. Climate 
Corps simultaneously addresses climate and sustainability projects and cultivates the 
next generation of environmental leaders. The primary work of the Pinole Climate Corps 
Fellow (referred to as Pinole’s Sustainability Fellow) is to help develop the Climate Action 
and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) and also support a number of other important City 
sustainability initiatives.  


1 www.climatecorps.org 


423 of 829



http://www.climatecorps.org/





City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  2 


DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Pinole Sustainability Fellow Kapil Amin was placed in September 2022 for a ten-month 
Fellowship ending June 30, 2023. In working with the City’s Community Development 
Department along with regional partners, Sustainability Fellow Amin has represented the 
City on all things related to sustainable planning. He has made great strides in helping 
with the development of the City’s first CAAP, including data analysis, document review, 
report drafting, community presentations, social media development and communication 
management. A second workshop regarding the CAAP is scheduled for May 2023, with 
the Plan being drafted for public review in the summer of 2023.  
 
Additionally, Sustainability Fellow Amin has been leading the City’s outreach efforts in the 
development of regulations related to single-use plastics in the City, including the 
development and distribution of a survey to residents and businesses and designing and 
hosting a Single Use Plastics Expo. The next steps for the effort will be to compile all 
input received and begin to work with the City’s Municipal Code Update Subcommittee 
on policy recommendations.  
 
In order to continue the positive momentum created by Sustainability Fellow Amin and 
keep projects on track, staff recommends the City Council authorize the City Manager to 
extend the SEI contract so that Fellow Amin can continue to work with the City through 
August 31, 2023.  
 
The Fellowship program has shown to be cost-effective staff support for sustainability-
related work. Staff will recommend in the FY 2023/24 budget that funds are budgeted to 
support a new Sustainability Fellow through the Climate Corps program. If approved, the 
new Fellow would come on board in September 2023.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The total additional cost to extend the contract by two months is Eleven Thousand Two 
Hundred and Thirty Dollars ($11,230). These costs are to be allocated from the Planning 
and Building Fund. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 


A. Resolution 
Exhibit A- Contract Amendment 


424 of 829







RESOLUTION NO.  2023-XX 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE AUTHORIZING 
THE CITY MANAGER TO AMEND A CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 
STRATEGIC ENERGY INNOVATIONS (SEI) TO EXTEND THE ASSIGNMENT OF A 
CLIMATE ACTION FELLOW BY TWO MONTHS (THROUGH AUGUST 2023) AND 
APPROPRIATES $11,230 IN THE FY23/24 BUDGET FROM THE PLANNING AND 
BUILDING FUND    


WHEREAS, the City’s leading planning document addressing Climate Change is 
the Sustainability Element of the General Plan, last updated in 2010; and 


WHEREAS, in 2016 the State of Californica adopted Senate Bill 32, which 
establishes new greenhouse gas emissions targets for 2030 (40% below 1990 levels) 
and 2050 (80% below 1990 levels) and Senate Bill 379, which requires cities to address 
climate adaptation and effectively plan for the impacts of climate change; and 


WHEREAS, in 2018 Governor Brown issued Executive Order B-55-18, 
establishing a new statewide goal to achieve carbon neutrality as soon as possible, and 
no later than 2045, and achieve and maintain net negative emissions thereafter; and 


WHEREAS, on October 19, 2021, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2021-
93, which declared a climate emergency, directed staff to complete a greenhouse gas 
(GHG) emissions inventory, and directed staff to prepare a Climate Action Plan (CAP) 
that includes GHG emission reduction goals that align with the State’s GHG emission 
reduction goals of SB 32 and Executive Order B-55-18; and 


WHEREAS, Climate Corps is an award-winning fellowship program that provides 
professional development opportunities for emerging leaders through implementation of 
sustainability and resiliency projects with local governments, nonprofits, and for-profit 
businesses; and  


WHEREAS, Strategic Energy Innovations (SEI), is an environmental nonprofit that 
offers a Climate Corps program and partners with schools, communities, and businesses 
to develop a sustainability leadership pathway from elementary school to early career to 
create thriving, resilient communities; and 


WHEREAS, the City entered into a Consulting Service Agreement (the 
“Agreement”) with SEI on August 16, 2022 to support a full time Climate Corps Fellow for 
10 months (from September 2022 through June 2023) to augment and provide cost-
effective staff support for work related to the development of Climate Action and 
Adaptation Plan (CAAP) and other sustainability-related initiatives; and 


WHEREAS, the City and SEI desires to amend the Agreement to extend the 
contract term through August 31, 2023; and 


WHEREAS, additional funding will be required to extend the service term by two 


ATTACHMENT A


425 of 829







months. 
 
          NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the above recitals are true and 
correct and made part of this resolution. 
 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Pinole takes the 
following actions: 
 


1. Authorizes the City Manager to amend a Consultant Services Agreement with SEI 
in the following manner: 


a. Increase the total compensation in Section 2 in an amount not to exceed an 
additional Eleven Thousand Two Hundred and Thirty Dollars ($11,230), to 
a total not to exceed amount of Sixty-Thousand Thirty Dollars ($60,030), for 
the continued engagement with a Climate Action Fellow to support 
development of the CEQA-Qualified Climate Action and Adaptation Plan 
and other sustainability initiatives during FY22-23 and FY23-24; and  


b. Extend the term of the Agreement through August 31, 2023 
2. Appropriate $11,230 from the Planning and Building Fund to support the two-


month extension of the Sustainability Fellow.  
 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 6th day of June, 2022 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSENT:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 6th day of June, 2022 
 
 
 
____________________________________  
Heather Bell, CMC  
City Clerk 


426 of 829







AMENDMENT No. 1 TO THE 
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 
STRATEGIC ENERGY INNOVATIONS 


This Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement (the “Amendment”), is made by 
and entered into between the City of Pinole, a California municipal corporation, (“City”) 
and Strategic Energy Innovations (SEI) (“Consultant”) (together sometimes referred to 
as “Parties”) as of the date executed below. 


RECITALS 


WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into a Consulting Services Agreement 
dated August 22, 2022 (the “Agreement”) with a Scope of Services in Exhibit A and total 
compensation in Section 2, with the term of the contract to end on June 30, 2023 
unless otherwise extended as provided for in Section 8.2 of the Agreement; and  


WHEREAS, the Parties now wish to increase the total compensation in Section 2 
by Eleven Thousand Two Hundred and Thirty Dollars ($11,230) to a total not to exceed 
amount of Sixty-Thousand Thirty Dollars ($60,030) and extend the term of the 
Agreement through August 31, 2023; and 


NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein and 
good and valuable consideration the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 


1. Term. Section 1.1 and Exhibit B of the Agreement shall be amended to extend the
contract term through August 31, 2023. 


2. Compensation. Section 2 and Exhibit B of the Agreement shall be amended to
increase the total compensation in Section 2 by Eleven Thousand Two Hundred and 
Thirty Dollars ($11,230) to a total not to exceed amount of Sixty-Thousand Thirty Dollars 
($60,030). 


3. Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended
by the Parties to modify the Agreement. With the exception of the foregoing, all other 
terms and conditions in the Service Agreement, as previously amended, remain in force 
and effect. To the extent there is any inconsistency between the terms of this 
Amendment and the terms of the Agreement, the terms of this Amendment shall control. 


4. Effective Date. This Amendment will become effective June 30, 2023.


The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the City. 
/// 
/// 
/// 
/// 
/// 


EXHIBIT A


427 of 829







  


 
City of Pinole  
 
___________________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager 
 
Dated: __________________ 
  


Contractor 
 
___________________________ 
David W. Krout, Managing Partner 
 
Dated: __________________ 
 


 
 
Attest:    
 
___________________________ 
Heather Bell, City Clerk 


 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
___________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 


 


428 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


9O 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: LILLY WHALEN, COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: ADOPT RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO 
EXECUTE A SECOND AMENDMENT TO A CONSULTING SERVICES 
AGREEMENT WITH MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL (MBI) TO 
COMPLETE DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES STUDY  


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council adopt the attached resolution (Attachment A) 
that authorizes the City Manager to execute a second amendment to the Consultant 
Services Agreement with Michael Baker International (MBI) in an additional amount not 
to exceed $8,900 in order to conclude the Development Impact Fee study (proposal in 
Attachment B). 


BACKGROUND 


The City last updated its Development Impact Fees in 2008. Development Impact Fees 
are payments that local governments require of new building developments so that the 
local government can construct new facilities to serve the developments’ inhabitants and 
customers. The fees typically require cash payments in advance of the completion of 
development, are based on a methodology and calculation derived from the cost of the 
required additional municipal facility and the nature and size of the development, and are 
used to finance improvements offsite of, but to the benefit of, the development. 


To review and potentially update the City of Pinole’s 15-year-old Development Impact 
Fees, the City must conduct a study pursuant to California Government Code Section 
66000 et seq. The study determines what new facilities the City would need to construct 
to serve new development projects, the cost of those new facilities (including Police 
Facilities, Fire Protection, Public Facilities & Equipment, Wastewater, Transportation, 
Drainage, and Parks & Recreation), and the fair share that a specific new development 
should pay toward the new facilities. 


In 2017, the City Council authorized the City Manager to approve a Consultant Services 
Agreement with Michael Baker International (MBI) to conduct a study related to the City’s 
Development Impact Fees, among other fees, in an amount of $60,000 (see Attachment 
C). The contract was amended in 2019 to include a nexus study update for fire inspection 


429 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  2 


and permit fees in the amount of $9,500 (see Attachment D). MBI prepared draft studies 
in 2019 for internal staff review, however, the studies were not finalized.  
 
Program 14 (Fee Evaluation and Publicization) of the City’s Housing Element adopted on 
April 4, 2023 requires a review of the City’s Development Impact Fees by the end of 
calendar year 2023. Staff recommends that Council authorize staff to work with MBI to 
complete the Development Impact Fee study and present the study in the fall of 2023 for 
public review and Council consideration/adoption. 
 
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff recommends that the City engage MBI to update the draft Development Impact Fee 
study completed in 2019, including updating growth projections, capital improvements, 
and construction costs and finalizing the analysis with recommendations for updated fees. 
The scope includes presenting the results of the analysis to the City Council. See 
Attachment B for the full proposal. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
The contract cost, with the 2019 amendment, was a total of $69,500, which has been fully 
expended. The additional cost to update the 2019 Draft Development Impact Fee Study 
is $8,900. Staff recommends that $8,900 be allocated from Account 212-462-42101. The 
cost will be offset by the Administrative Fee charged in the Development Impact Fee that 
is collected in 212-462-34410 to support this work.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 


A- Resolution 
  Exhibit A – Task Order 2 
B- Letter Proposal from MBI 
C- Original Agreement (2017) 
D- Amendment to Agreement (2019) 


430 of 829







RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX 


RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT 
WITH MBI FOR AN ADDITIONAL $8,900 TO UPDATE AND COMPLETE 
DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE STUDY 


WHEREAS, the City of Pinole, in 2008, adopted Development Impact Fees to pay 
for additional infrastructure and additional service needs required by such growth 
associated with commercial and residential development; and 


WHEREAS, California state law establishes a process allowing cities to determine 
what costs might be paid for by impact fees. This process is used to establish fees that 
serve to ensure that development pays the added cost of services required to meet new 
demand; and that ensures fees for services cover the cost of those services; and 


WHEREAS, in 2017 the City of Pinole sought to analyze and update Development 
Impact Fees to reflect infrastructure needs and services as currently defined by the City 
and by increased regulatory compliance expectations; and 


WHEREAS, on June 6, 2017 the City of Pinole entered into a Consulting Services 
Agreement (the “Agreement”) with Michael Baker International (“MBI”) to conduct fee 
study updates to conduct fee study updates (Building and Planning Services fees, 
Recreation Program fees, PCTV Program charges, and Development Impact Fees) in a 
not to exceed the amount of $60,000; and 


WHEREAS, on April 23, 2019 the Agreement was amended to include a nexus 
study update for fire inspection and permit fees in the amount of $9,500; and 


WHEREAS, a draft Development Impact Fee Study was prepared in 2019 by MBI; 
and 


WHEREAS, global, national, regional and local conditions have changed since the 
time the draft Development Impact Fee Study was prepared; and  


WHEREAS, the City desires to direct MBI to finalize the Development Impact Fee 
Study by bringing the 2019 draft studies up to date with current growth projections, capital 
improvements, and construction costs and finalizing the analysis with recommendations 
for updated fees for presentation to the public and Council. 


       NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the above recitals are true and 
correct and made part of this resolution. 


 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Pinole City Council does hereby authorize 
the City Manager to execute an amendment the Agreement, incorporated herein as 
Exhibit A, with MBI for update and completion of the Development Impact Fees prepared 
in 2019, for a total additional cost of $8,900 (Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars). 


ATTACHMENT A


431 of 829







  PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of 
Pinole held on the 6th day of June, 2023 by the following vote: 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBERS: 
NOES:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSENT:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
ABSTAIN:  COUNCILMEMBERS: 
 
I, hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was regularly introduced, passed, and 
adopted on the 6th day of June, 2023. 
 
 
____________________________________  
Heather Bell, CMC  
City Clerk 


432 of 829







AMENDMENT No. 2 TO THE 
CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND 


MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL, INC. 


This Second Amendment to the Consulting Services Agreement dated June 6, 2017 
(the “Agreement”), between the City of Pinole, a general law city and municipal 
corporation, (“City”) and Michael Baker International, Inc. (“Consultant”) (together 
sometimes referred to as “Parties”) is approved as of the date executed below. 


Effect of Amendment.  The terms and conditions of this Amendment are intended by 
the Parties to modify the Agreement.  To the extent there is any inconsistency between 
the terms of this Amendment and the terms of the Agreement and/or its Appendix, the 
terms of this Amendment shall control. 


Task 1 – Update the draft Development Impact Fee and Wastewater Capacity 
Charge studies and recommended fees prepared in December 2019 pursuant to 
the scope of work in Exhibit A of this amendment, and increase the total 
compensation by $8,900 (Eight Thousand Nine Hundred Dollars). 


With the exception of the foregoing, all other terms and conditions in the Service 
Agreement, as previously amended, remain in force and effect.  


The Parties have executed this Amendment to the Agreement as of the date signed 
by the City. 


City of Pinole  Contractor 


____________________________ _______________________ 
Andrew Murray, City Manager   Michael Baker International 


Dated: _____________________  Dated: __________________ 


Attest:  


___________________________________ 
Heather Bell, City Clerk 


Approved as to Form: 


___________________________________ 
Eric S. Casher, City Attorney 


EXHIBIT A


433 of 829







  


Exhibit A: Letter Proposal for Update of Development Impact Fees (DIF) 


434 of 829







M B A K E R I N T L . C O M  
2729 Prospect Park Drive, Suite 220 Rancho Cordova, CA 95670 


P: (916) 361-8384 F: (916) 361-1574 


February 16, 2023 


Lilly Whalen 
Community Development Director 
CITY OF PINOLE 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 


RE: LETTER PROPOSAL FOR UPDATE OF DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES (DIF) 


Dear Lilly: 


It was a great pleasure to meet and speak with you, Markisha, and David about the draft DIF and 
Wastewater Capacity Charge studies and recommended fees that we first submitted to the City in 
December 2019. We share the City’s goal of completing the studies and bringing them to City 
Council for approval and adoption of updated fees and charges. Essential to this goal is meeting 
with each department responsible for identifying the facilities needed to serve new development, 
quantifying the costs of improvements, and appropriately allocating costs to the projected new 
development. We propose the following scope of work, schedule, and budget to bring the draft 
studies up to date with current growth projections, capital improvements, and construction costs 
and finalize our analysis with recommendations for updated fees.  


SCOPE OF WORK 


TASK 1: CONDUCT KICKOFF MEETING TO DISCUSS STATUS OF THE 2019 DRAFT IMPACT FEE REPORT


Michael Baker will meet with the relevant departments to review our findings in the draft impact 
fee study that we prepared in 2019 (2019 Draft). We will identify the methodology and 
assumptions used to develop our recommended fees for each facility category, as well as the data 
used in the 2019 Draft leading to our fee recommendations. With the assistance of City staff, we 
will determine if new information is available that more accurately reflects current conditions and 
needs for new development to be served by new or expanded facility improvements.  


TASK 2: REVIEW AND VERIFY IMPROVEMENTS, COST OF IMPROVEMENTS


We will verify with City staff that the list of the facility improvements identified in the 2019 Draft 
is accurate or how it should be modified. The following facility categories were analyzed in the 
2019 Draft (and also included in the 2008 DIF schedule that is still in effect):  


• Police Facilities • Transportation


• Fire Protection • Drainage


EXHIBIT B


435 of 829







Lilly Whalen 
Community Development Director 
City of Pinole 
RE: Letter Proposal for update of Development Impact FeeS (DIF)  
2/16/2023 
Page 2 


 


• Public Facilities and Equipment • Parks and Recreation 


• Wastewater (provided as a 
separate Capacity Charge 
Study) 


 


We will work with staff to update the cost basis of the planned improvements and recalculate the 
fees based on the 2019 costs inflated by the most recently available ENR Construction Cost Index 
for San Francisco, or where unit costs suggested by City staff would be more accurate. Specific 
cost information, such as current land values and cost of specialty items, will be incorporated into 
the analysis where appropriate. Where cost estimates are not available, we will work with City staff 
to develop the project descriptions and cost estimates of the facilities to be included in the impact 
fee program. This may include preparation of conceptual-level cost estimates of eligible 
improvements or portions of improvements. 


TASK 3: REVIEW GROWTH PROJECTIONS AND VERIFY LEVELS OF SERVICE 
We will review the City’s current population and growth assumptions contained in the 2019 Draft 
and revise as necessary. The revised growth and population data may indicate that levels of service 
(LOS) for each facility category may need adjustment, which would be reflected in the newly 
recommended fees. LOS may also be impacted by the construction of new facilities over the years 
since the 2019 Draft  


TASK 4: NEXUS ANALYSIS AND CONFIRM FINDINGS 
We propose to use the same basic cost allocation methodology for each facility category as in the 
2019 Draft, and verify the findings required by California Government Code Section 66000 et seq. 
as follows: 


• Identify the purpose of the fee. 


• Identify the use of fee revenues. 


• Determine a reasonable relationship between the fee's use and the type of development 
paying the fee. 


• Determine a reasonable relationship between the need for the fee and the type of 
development paying the fee. 


• Determine a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the cost of the 
facility attributable to development paying the fee. 


We will discuss with staff any issues regarding implementation of the fees and changes to the fee 
structure that might be more appropriate for the City. We will also recommend program 
modifications as necessary. 


436 of 829







Lilly Whalen 
Community Development Director 
City of Pinole 
RE: Letter Proposal for update of Development Impact FeeS (DIF)  
2/16/2023 
Page 3 


 


TASK 5: PREPARE AND SUBMIT DRAFT AND FINAL NEXUS REPORT/ATTEND MEETINGS AND PUBLIC 
HEARING 
We will prepare a final draft nexus report and submit an electronic PDF copy to City staff for 
review. Following discussion and staff’s review and comment, we will prepare a public hearing 
draft for the City Council. The final report will follow the format of the 2019 Draft with revisions as 
noted above. The final draft will summarize key results and findings, how the costs of 
improvements are allocated to new development, and the proposed fee schedule. Our NTE fee 
proposal for the final report includes virtual attendance at up to four meetings to present the 
nexus findings to the Planning Commission, Finance Subcommittee and City Council at a public 
hearing to adopt the final nexus report and fee. 


SCHEDULE 


Pending the availability of City staff, an estimate of timing for delivering the draft study report is 
in the range of 90–120 days from receipt of a notice to proceed and/or executed contract issued 
by the City. 


BUDGET 


A not-to-exceed budget of $8,900 is proposed to prepare final draft reports and present findings 
at a public hearing. 


STAFF 
This project will be conducted through Michael Baker’s Public Finance Group. The overall project 
manager will be Dino Serafini, PE, Senior Financial Analyst. Other staff contributors will include 
Derek Wong, AICP, Public Finance Manager, Tyler Brant, Budget and Cost Analyst and Ana Cotham 
Quality Control Specialist. The Michael Baker Public Finance Group has in-depth experience with 
development impact fees and cost of service/user fee studies for the past 20 years, primarily 
serving small urban communities. 


We appreciate this opportunity to resume working with the City of Pinole on this critical project. 
Please do not hesitate to contact Dino Serafini at (619) 218-9578 or email 
dserafini@mbakerintl.com, should you have any questions. 


 


 


 


437 of 829



mailto:dserafini@mbakerintl.com





Lilly Whalen 
Community Development Director 
City of Pinole 
RE: Letter Proposal for update of Development Impact FeeS (DIF)  
2/16/2023 
Page 4 


 


Sincerely, 


Ali Seyedmadani PhD, PE 
Vice President/Office Executive 


 


 


Dino Serafini, PE 
Project Manager 


438 of 829







ORIGINAL
Term 2-28-18ATTACHMENT C


439 of 829







440 of 829







441 of 829







442 of 829







443 of 829







444 of 829







445 of 829







446 of 829







447 of 829







448 of 829







449 of 829







450 of 829







451 of 829







452 of 829







453 of 829







454 of 829







455 of 829







456 of 829







457 of 829







458 of 829







459 of 829







460 of 829







ATTACHMENT D


461 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


9P 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: MARKISHA GUILLORY, FINANCE DIRECTOR 
SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: REPORT ON HOW THE CITY IS PREPARING TO APPLY FOR FUNDS 
FROM THE INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT AND JOBS ACT (IIJA) 


RECOMMENDATION 


It is recommended that the City Council receive a report on how the City is preparing to 
apply for funds from the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA), including 
broadband funding. 


BACKGROUND 


At a meeting in February 2023, the City Council approved a future Council agenda item 
to receive a report on how the City is preparing to apply for funds from the IIJA, including 
broadband funding. 


The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA), also known as the Bipartisan 
Infrastructure Law (BIL), was signed into law by President Biden on November 15, 2021. 
The law authorizes $1.2 trillion for transportation and infrastructure spending with $550 
billion of that figure going toward “new” investments and programs. Funding from the IIJA 
is expansive in its reach, addressing energy and power infrastructure, access to 
broadband internet, water infrastructure, and more. Some of the new programs funded 
by the bill could provide the resources needed to address a variety of infrastructure needs 
at the local level. 


The BIL devotes roughly $65 billion to help ensure that every American has access to 
reliable high-speed internet through an investment in broadband infrastructure 
deployment. Attachment A includes two tables, one listing road, bridge, and other 
transportation funding in the IIJA and the other listing broadband funding in the IIJA. 


REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 


City staff has reviewed the funding opportunities available through IIJA and has 
determined that the City is eligible and might be competitive for two grants: 


462 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  2 


 
1. Charging and Fueling Infrastructure (CFI) Discretionary Grant Program  
2. Safe Streets and Roads for All (SS4A) Grant Program 


 
Staff is working with consultants to prepare grant application materials for these two 
programs. 
 
The City is also in the process of hiring one or more firms to assist the City in grant 
research, writing, and management. The City will direct that firm(s) to conduct additional 
review of IIJA and identify whether there is any other funding contained therein that the 
City would be eligible and competitive for. Attachments B and C contain additional 
information about IIJA funding opportunities. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact to receiving this report. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
 


A. Summary of IIJA Grant Opportunities 
B. IIJA – California State Transportation Agency  
C. List of upcoming Notice of Funding Opportunities (NOFO) 


463 of 829







REPORT ON INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT AND JOBS ACT (IIJA) AND STAFF EFFORTS 


LIST OF PROGRAMS AND FUNDING ALLOCATIONS 


The following table summarizes Road, Bridges and other major projects which will be 
funded through the IIJA. 


TABLE 1: 
Program Name Agency Name Funding Amount 


National Highway Performance Program Department of Transportation $148,000,000,000 
Surface Transportation Block Grant Program Department of Transportation $72,000,000,000 
Bridge Formula Program Department of Transportation $26,675,000,000 
Tribal Transportation Facility Bridges (Bridge 
Formula Funding Set-Aside)  


Department of Transportation $825,000,000 


Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement 
Program  


Department of Transportation $13,200,000,000 


Bridge Investment Program Department of Transportation $12,200,000,000 
Grants for Planning, Feasibility Analysis, and 
Revenue Forecasting (Bridge Investment Program 
Set-aside)  


Department of Transportation $100,000,000 


Local and Regional Project Assistance Grants 
(RAISE)  


Department of Transportation $7,500,000,000 


Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects 
(INFRA)  


Department of Transportation $7,250,000,000 


State Incentives Pilot Program (Set-aside within 
Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects - 
INFRA)  


Department of Transportation $750,000,000 


National Highway Freight Program Department of Transportation $7,150,000,000 
Carbon Reduction Program Department of Transportation $6,419,999,998 
National Infrastructure Project Assistance 
(Megaprojects)  


Department of Transportation $5,000,000,000 


Tribal Transportation Program Department of Transportation $2,966,800,000 
Metropolitan Planning Department of Transportation $2,280,000,000 
Rural Surface Transportation Grant Program Department of Transportation $2,000,000,000 
Federal Lands Transportation Program (funds for 
National Park Service)  


Department of Transportation $1,731,187,250 


Federal Lands Access Program Department of Transportation $1,487,875,000 
Transportation Infrastructure Finance and Innovation 
Act  


Department of Transportation $1,250,000,000 


Appalachian Development Highway System Department of Transportation $1,250,000,000 
National Culvert Removal, Replacement, & 
Restoration Grant  


Department of Transportation $1,000,000,000 


Reconnecting Communities Pilot Program Department of Transportation $1,000,000,000 
Puerto Rico Highway Program Department of Transportation $900,995,000 
Advanced Transportation Technologies & Innovative 
Mobility Deployment  


Department of Transportation $900,000,000 


Highway Research & Development Program Department of Transportation $310,000,000 
Nationally Significant Federal Lands and Tribal 
Projects  


Department of Transportation $275,000,000 


Congestion Relief Program Department of Transportation $250,000,000 
Intelligent Transportation Systems Program Department of Transportation $250,000,000 
Territorial Highway Program Department of Transportation $239,505,000 
Tribal Transportation Facility Bridge (Set-aside) Department of Transportation $200,000,000 
Federal Lands Transportation Program (Funding for 
U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service) 


Department of Transportation $180,000,000 


Federal Lands Transportation Program (For other 
Federal Land Management Agencies) 


Department of Transportation $153,637,750 


Federal Lands Transportation Program (Funding for 
U.S. Forest Service) 


Department of Transportation $130,000,000 


ATTACHMENT A


464 of 829







 


REPORT ON INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT AND JOBS ACT (IIJA) AND STAFF EFFORTS 


Accelerated Implementation and Deployment of 
Advanced Digital Construction Management 
Systems (Set-aside) 


Department of Transportation $100,000,000  


Strategic Innovation for Revenue Collection (Set-
aside) 


Department of Transportation $75,000,000  


Accelerated Implementation and Deployment of 
Pavement Technologies (Set-aside) 


Department of Transportation $60,000,000  


National Motor Vehicle Per-Mile User Fee Pilot (Set-
aside) 


Department of Transportation $50,000,000  


Disadvantaged Business Enterprises Department of Transportation $50,000,000  
On-the-Job Training Program Department of Transportation $50,000,000  
Tribal High Priority Projects Program Department of Transportation $45,000,000  
Highway Use Tax Evasion Projects Department of Transportation $20,000,000  


 
TOTAL- ROADS, BRIDGES AND MAJOR PROJECTS  


 
$326,274,999,998 


 
 
The following table summarizes the funding allocation for Broadband infrastructure and 
related programs. 
 
TABLE 2: 
Program Name  Agency Name  Funding Amount  
Broadband Equity, Access, And 
Deployment Program  


Department of Commerce  $42,450,000,000  


Affordable Connectivity Program  Federal Communications 
Commission  


$14,200,000,000  


Tribal Broadband Connectivity 
Program  


Department of Commerce  $2,000,000,000  


Distance Learning, Telemedicine, And 
Broadband Program: Reconnect 
Program  


Department of Agriculture  $1,926,000,000  


State Digital Equity Capacity Grant  Department of Commerce  $1,440,000,000  
State Digital Equity Competitive Grant  Department of Commerce  $1,250,000,000  
Middle Mile Grant Program  Department of Commerce  $1,000,000,000  
Distance Learning, Telemedicine, And 
Broadband Program: Broadband 
Loans  


Department of Agriculture  $74,000,000  


State Digital Equity Planning Grant  Department of Commerce  $60,000,000  
Broadband Deployment Locations 
Map  


Federal Communications 
Commission  


$10,000,000  


Denali Commission Broadband 
Funding  


Denali Commission  $250,000  


TOTAL - BROADBAND  $64,410,250,000  
 


465 of 829







 
 
 
 


 
 
 


 
  


 
 


   
 


 


  
     


   
 
 
 


 


                  
                  


 


                
          


            
              


               
        


 
               
             
            


            
        


            
           
          


   
 
           


          
          


    
           
                


       
             


            
      


 
               


          
            


            
 


           
            


  


Gavin Newsom 915 Capitol Mall, Suite 350B 
Governor Sacramento, CA 95814 


916-323-5400 
David S. Kim www.calsta.ca.gov 
Secretary 


The Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act of 2021 (IIJA, P.L. 117-58) is a federal bill that 
addresses provisions related to federal-aid highway, transit, highway safety, motor 
carrier, research, hazardous materials, and rail programs of the U.S. Department of 
Transportation (U.S. DOT). The bill was approved by the 117th Congress (Senate passage 
on August 10, 2021 and House passage on November 5, 2021). On Monday November 
15, 2021, President Biden signed IIJA into law. 


The bill includes $1.2 trillion in investments over five years, from Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 
2022 through FY 2026, including $550 billion in new spending on transportation, water 
and power infrastructure, and pollution cleanup, in addition to regular annual spending 
on infrastructure projects. This memo focuses on major IIJA transportation formula 
(apportionment) and discretionary (competitive) funding programs, particularly in 
areas where California actively sought to shape the bill through engagement with 
Congress (climate action, equity, freight/goods movement, rail/transit, etc.). Under IIJA, 
California is estimated to receive the following guaranteed formula transportation 
funding: 


 $25.3 billion for federal-aid highway apportioned programs over five years 
(compared to approximately $19.4 billion under the Fixing America’s Surface 
Transportation Act (FAST Act), the last five-year authorization of federal-aid 
highway programs); 


 $4.2 billion over five years from a new bridge program; 
 $384 million over five years from a new program to support the expansion of an 


electric vehicle (EV) charging network; and 
 $9.45 billion over five years to improve public transportation options across the 


state (compared to approximately $8.1 billion under the FAST Act, the last five-
year authorization of federal-aid highway programs). 


It should be noted that in the past, California - through the California Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) - traditionally reached an agreement with local transportation 
agencies to divide federal-aid highway funding apportioned to California at 60 percent 
to be controlled by the state and 40 percent by local agencies. 


IIJA also creates new transportation discretionary grant programs and increases funding 
for existing discretionary grant programs between FY 2022 and FY 2026 including: 


California Transportation Commission  Board of Pilot Commissioners  California Highway Patrol  Department of Motor Vehicles 
Department of Transportation  High Speed Rail Authority  Office of Traffic Safety  New Motor Vehicle Board 


ATTACHMENT B


466 of 829







   
  


 
 


         
            


  
              


   
           


    
            


    
          


       
            


        
           


          
                 


    
            
            


      
         


       
               
             


    
 


              
              


          
            


 
             


     
 
       


     
 


         
 


               
             
            


              
  


 


November 19, 2021 
Page 2 


 Existing: Local and Regional Project Assistance (formerly RAISE/BUILD/TIGER) 
funded at $7.5 billion over five years ($15 billion total including authorized 
funding); 


 Existing: INFRA funded at $8 billion over five years ($14 billion total including 
authorized funding); 


 Existing: Federal Railroad Administration’s (FRA) CRISI program funded at $5 
billion over five years; 


 Existing: Federal-State Partnership for Intercity Passenger Rail funded at $36 billion 
over five years; 


 Existing: Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Low-No Emission Vehicle Program 
funded at $5.6 billion over five years; 


 New: Bridge Investment Program (in addition to bridge formula program) funded 
at $12.5 billion over five years; 


 New: National Infrastructure Project Assistance (for megaprojects) funded at $5 
billion over five years ($15 billion total including authorized funding); 


 New: Safe Streets and Roads for All funded at $5 billion over five years ($6 billion 
total including authorized funding); 


 New: Railroad Crossing Elimination Program at $3 billion over five years; 
 New: Culvert removal, replacement, and restoration funded at $1 billion over 


five years; and 
 New: Strengthening Mobility and Revolutionizing Transportation Grant Program 


funded at $500 million over five years. 
 New: Reconnecting Communities Pilot Program at $1 billion over five years. 
 New: Charging and Fueling Infrastructure Discretionary Grants at $2.5 billion over 


five years. 


IIJA also provides five years of National Network funding to Amtrak, totaling $16 billion, 
which can be used to upgrade California Amtrak stations and related facilities to full 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliance, rehabilitate and replace old Amtrak-
owned fleet and conduct corridor development activities. More detail is below. 


Finally, IIJA guarantees $8 billion, and authorizes $15 billion more in future appropriations 
for FTA Capital Investment Grants. 


I. Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) Core Apportionment 
Programs and Bridge Funding 


 National Highway Performance Program (NHPP, Section 11105) 


IIJA provides $148 billion nationally for the NHPP between FFY 2022 and FFY 2026, of 
which California is estimated to receive approximately $12.8 billion during that period. 
Under IIJA, California’s NHPP funding will increase by almost $400 million annually 
between FFY 2021 and FFY 2022 and by approximately $600 million annually by FFY 
2026. 


467 of 829







   
  


 
 


       
                  


      
 


             
               


           
           


                 
             


              
            


                
                 


              
     


 
          


 
               


             
             


              
  


 
       


                  
      


 
               


            
             


         
 


             
          


               
               
                    


          
       


 
            


        
         


       


November 19, 2021 
Page 3 


California IIJA NHPP Apportionment (in $ millions) 
FFY 21 (actual) FFY 22 (Est) FFY 23 (Est) FFY 24 (Est) FFY 25 (Est) FFY 26 (Est) 
2,065 2,459 2,509 2,559 2,610 2,662 


The NHPP provides support for the condition and performance of the National Highway 
System (NHS), for the construction of new facilities on the NHS, and to ensure that 
investments of federal-aid funds in highway construction are directed to support 
progress toward performance targets established in a State's asset management plan 
for the NHS. IIJA augments the purpose of the NHPP to include a focus on measures 
that increase resiliency to the impacts of sea level rise, extreme weather events, 
flooding, and other natural disasters. It expands eligibility to use NHPP funds for 
resiliency, cybersecurity, and undergrounding utility infrastructure. It also allows a state 
to use up to 15 percent of its NHPP funding for protective features on a federal-aid 
highway or bridge that is off the NHS if the protective feature is designed to mitigate the 
risk of recurring damage or the cost of future repairs from extreme weather events, 
flooding, or other natural disasters. 


 Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG, Section 11109) 


IIJA also provides $72 billion nationally for the STBG program between FFY 2022 and FFY 
2026, of which California is estimated to receive approximately $6.3 billion during that 
period. Under IIJA, California’s STBG funding will increase by approximately $150 million 
annually between FFY 2021 and FFY 2022 and by approximately $250 million annually by 
FFY 2026. 


California IIJA STBG Apportionment (in $ millions) 
FFY 21 (actual) FFY 22 (Est) FFY 23 (Est) FFY 24 (Est) FFY 25 (Est) FFY 26 (Est) 
1,041 1,196 1,220 1,245 1,269 1,295 


The STBG program provides flexible funding that may be used by states and localities 
for projects to preserve and improve the conditions and performance on any federal-
aid highway, bridge and tunnel projects on any public road, pedestrian and bicycle 
infrastructure, and transit capital projects, including intercity bus terminals. 


IIJA increases the amount of funding set-aside within the STBG Program for the 
Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP), increases the minimum percentage of TAP 
funding that is sub-allocated on the basis of population to 59 percent, and provides a 
process by which states may opt to increase that percentage to as high as 100 
percent. It also allows a state to elect to use up to 5 percent of TAP funds on technical 
and application assistance and administration, and adds eligibilities for smaller 
communities to apply for TAP funding. 


IIJA also adds new eligibilities to STBG including construction of wildlife crossing 
structures, electric vehicle charging infrastructure and vehicle-to-grid infrastructure, 
installation and deployment of intelligent transportation technologies, projects that 
facilitate intermodal connections between emerging transportation technologies, 


468 of 829







   
  


 
 


          
          


    
 


            
              


       
 


         
       


 
           


        
             


             
                


    
 


       
 


             
              


            
               


                
               


    
 


         
 


            
            


          
 


            
                  
  


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


 
 


              
            
               


              
 


November 19, 2021 
Page 4 


resilience features, cybersecurity protections, and rural barge landings, docks, and 
waterfront infrastructure projects, and the construction of certain privately-owned ferry 
boats and terminals. 


Additionally, IIJA increases the off-system bridge set-aside and allows low water crossing 
replacement projects to be eligible for use under this set-aside, and creates a new set-
aside for projects in rural areas. 


 Bridge Replacement, Rehabilitation, Preservation, Protection and Construction 
Program (Division J – Appropriations Title VIII) 


IIJA creates a new $27 billion needs-based apportionment / formula Bridge 
Replacement, Rehabilitation, Preservation, Protection and Construction Program. 
California is estimated to receive approximately $4.2 billion between FFY 2022 and FFY 
2026 in guaranteed bridge funding from this new apportionment formula program. 
Additionally, IIJA allows 15 percent of these funds to be used for brides off the NHS (“off-
system bridges”). 


 Bridge Investment Program (Section 11118) 


IIJA also creates a new competitive Bridge Investment Program funded at $12.5 billion 
over five years to assist state, local, federal and tribal entities in rehabilitating or 
replacing bridges, including culverts, and eligibility for large projects and bundling of 
smaller bridges. Under this program, at least 50 percent of program funds, in the 
aggregate from FFY 2022 through FFY 2026, must be used for large projects, and a total 
of $100 million over five years would be set-aside for tribal bridge projects. 


II. Freight/Goods Movement 


 National Highway Freight Program (NHFP, Section 11114) 


IIJA provides $7.15 billion nationally for the National Highway Freight Program (NHFP, 
Section 11114) guaranteed apportionment between FFY 2022 and FFY 2026, of which 
California is estimated to receive approximately $662 million. 


California IIJA NHFP Apportionment (in $ millions; 30 percent multimodal in parenthesis) 
FFY 21 (actual) FFY 22 (Est) FFY 23 (Est) FFY 24 (Est) FFY 25 (Est) FFY 26 (Est) 


127.2 129.8 132.4 135.1 137.8 
(38) (39) (40) (41) (41) 


NHFP exists to support projects that will improve efficient movement of freight on the 
National Highway Freight Network (NHFN). IIJA increases the maximum number of 
highway miles a state may designate as critical rural freight corridors from 150 to 300 
miles, and as critical urban freight corridors from 75 to 150 miles. 


137 


469 of 829







   
  


 
 


               
                 
              


          
 


           
 


               
           


            
              


                
             


 
             


            
             


         
          


             
              


  
 


         
 


          
            


           
            
            


         
       


                 
      


 
         


 
           


               
          


               
            


             
          


            


November 19, 2021 
Page 5 


It also increases the percent of program funds that may be used for eligible multimodal 
projects from a 10 percent cap to a 30 percent cap, and adds lock, dam, and marine 
highway projects as eligible if the projects are functionally connected to the NHFN and 
are likely to reduce on-road mobile source emissions. 


 Nationally Significant Freight and Highway Projects (INFRA, Section 11110) 


IIJA provides $8 billion over five years (averaging $1.6 billion a year) for the INFRA 
competitive grant program for freight projects ($14 billion total including authorized 
funding). IIJA makes some noteworthy amendments to the INFRA program, including 
raising the cap on eligible multimodal projects to 30 percent of the amounts made 
available annually for grants. It also sets aside $150 million annually for a pilot program 
that prioritizes applications offering the greatest non-federal share of project costs. 


This section also adds the enhancement of freight resilience to natural hazards or 
disasters such as high winds, heavy snowfall, flooding, rockslides, mudslides, wildfire, or 
steep grades as an additional consideration by the U.S. DOT when making NSFHP 
grants. The section adds wildlife crossings, surface transportation improvements 
functionally connected to an international border crossing, and marine highway 
projects functionally connected to the NHFN as eligible projects. In addition, 10 
percent of the funds for the NSFHP are set aside annually for multistate corridor 
organizations. 


 National Infrastructure Project Assistance Program (Section 21201) 


IIJA creates a new National Infrastructure Project Assistance Program (for 
megaprojects) competitive grant program. This new program provides $5 billion for 
single- or multi-year grants to projects generating national or regional economic, 
mobility, or safety benefits ($15 billion total including authorized funding). Eligible 
projects include highway or bridge projects, freight intermodal or freight rail projects, 
railway-highway grade separation or elimination projects, intercity passenger rail 
projects, and certain public transportation projects. 
Fifty percent of funding in this program is set aside for projects with a cost between $100 
million and $500 million. 


 Local and Regional Project Assistance (Section 21202) 


IIJA authorizes the Rebuilding American Infrastructure with Sustainability and Equity 
program (RAISE – formerly known as “TIGER” and “BUILD” grants) as a new Local and 
Regional Project Assistance program that emphasizes safety, sustainability and equity 
criteria funded at $7.5 billion ($1.5 billion annually) between FFY 2022 – FFY 2026 ($15 
billion total including authorized funding). IIJA effectively doubles current funding levels 
for the RAISE program. Eligible projects include highway or bridge projects, passenger 
or freight rail projects, port infrastructure projects, and surface transportation 
components of airport projects, among other surface transportation projects. IIJA limits 


470 of 829







   
  


 
 


                
  


 
             


 
              


           
           


              
            
          


          
           


    
 


               
            


             
   


            
 


               
               


             
             


      
 


           
 


                
               
               


 
       


 
               


         
            


          
          


            
      


 
 
 


November 19, 2021 
Page 6 


the size of each grant to $25 million and provides an equal split between rural and 
urban areas. 


 Port Infrastructure Development Program (Division J – Appropriations Title VIII) 


IIJA includes $2.25 billion over five years, or $450 million annually, for the Port 
Infrastructure Development Program (PIDP). The program provides grants to improve 
facilities, operations, and intermodal connections near or within seaports, inland ports, 
and Great Lakes ports. The PIDP program has been subject to the annual 
appropriations process and most recently received $230 million in the FFY 2021 
appropriations act. The program remains separate from surface transportation 
authorizations within IIJA, funded through multi-year direct appropriations from the 
General Fund at significantly increased levels to enhance maritime and intermodal 
transportation infrastructure. 


Note: Section 110013 of the Build Back Better Act (H.R. 5376) federal budget 
reconciliation now pending in Congress includes $600 million (available through FFY 
2026) for port infrastructure and supply chain resilience grants through MARAD. 


 Reduction of Truck Emissions at Port Facilities (Section 11402) 


IIJA establishes a $400 million program to reduce idling and emissions at port facilities. 
IIJA requires the U.S. DOT to study how ports would benefit from electrification and to 
study emerging technologies that reduce emissions from idling trucks. It also requires 
the U.S. DOT to coordinate and fund projects through competitive grants that reduce 
port-related emissions from idling trucks. 


 Office of Multimodal Freight and Infrastructure Policy (Section 21101) 


IIJA creates a new Office of Multimodal Freight and Infrastructure Policy at the U.S. DOT. 
The creation of this new office will elevate and focus national attention on supply chain 
and goods movement issues that are critical to California’s and the nation’s economy. 


 Freight planning and research 


As guided by the new Freight Office, IIJA calls for changes to State Freight Advisory 
Committees, Multi-State Freight Corridor Planning, the National Multimodal Freight 
Network, and the National Freight Strategic Plan to align overarching priorities, improve 
public and private industry collaboration, and consider emerging opportunities and 
challenges. IIJA also reinstates the National Cooperative Freight Transportation 
Research Program to study issues related to freight efficiency and resiliency, future 
freight trends, and workforce considerations. 


471 of 829







   
  


 
 


  
 


         
 


              
             


          
          


 
              


                
               


             
             


              
            


           
            


              
  


 
 


           
 


             
         


 
           


            
             


       
 
                 


     
  
                 


              
                


   
 


               
            


           
                


               
 


November 19, 2021 
Page 7 


III. Rail 


 National Network Grants to Amtrak (Section 22101) 


IIJA provides five years of National Network funding to Amtrak, totaling $16 billion, which 
can be used to upgrade California Amtrak stations and related facilities to full 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) compliance, rehabilitate and replace old Amtrak-
owned fleet and facilities, and conduct corridor development activities. 


Amtrak has conducted a thorough evaluation of stations that could be eligible for such 
ADA upgrades, and they span the state. A small portion of the equipment used in 
California is Amtrak owned and old enough to be replaced. Nearly all of the long-
distance route equipment used in California is on Amtrak’s near-term replacement list. 
While Amtrak owns relatively few facilities in California, investments may be seen in 
Oakland and Los Angeles. Finally, Amtrak has a strong desire to conduct corridor 
development, starting with the Los Angeles-Phoenix-Tucson route. It has recently begun 
to support efforts by Caltrans, Riverside County Transportation Commission and the 
LOSSAN Rail Corridor Agency to advance service extension into the Coachella Valley 
as a supporting project to the broader goal of increasing rail service between California 
and Arizona. 


 Federal-State Partnership for Intercity Passenger Rail grants (Section 22307) 


IIJA provides $36 billion over five years ($7.2 billion annually) for the Federal-State 
Partnership for Intercity Passenger Rail competitive grants. 


IIJA would reform the Federal-State Partnership grant program by broadening project 
eligibility beyond Amtrak- and state-owned assets and to allow expansion of or 
construction on new intercity passenger rail routes, in addition to capital projects that 
address state-of-good repair. The program requires: 


 At least 45 percent of the funds ($16.2 billion of total) to go to projects located 
on the Northeast Corridor, and 


 At least 45 percent of the funds ($16.2 billion of total) to be for projects not 
located on the Northeast Corridor, of which not less than 20 percent ($3.24 billion 
of total) shall be for projects that benefit (in whole or in part) an Amtrak National 
Network long-distance route. 


Note: Section 110006 of the Build Back Better Act (H.R. 5376) federal budget 
reconciliation now pending in Congress includes $10 billion (available through FFY 
2026) for Passenger Rail Improvement, Modernization, and Emissions (PRIME) reduction 
grants for high-speed rail projects (160 miles per hour or faster on a shared use right-of-
way; or 186 miles per hour or faster on a dedicated right-of-way). 


472 of 829







   
  


 
 


           
 


 
            


             
               


           
        


 
          


    
 


           
              


               
               


   
 


        
                  
      


 
              


            
            


          
              
                
                


 
   


 
         


 
              


             
             


              
   


       
                  


      
 


          
           


November 19, 2021 
Page 8 


 Consolidated Rail Infrastructure and Safety Improvement Program (CRISI, Section 
22303) 


IIJA provides $5 billion to the Federal Railroad Administration’s (FRA) CRISI competitive 
grant program for projects that improve the safety, efficiency, and reliability of intercity 
passenger and freight rail. IIJA would expand CRISI’s eligibility to tribes and short line 
associations and clarifies eligibility for projects that prevent trespassing, fund innovative 
rail technologies, and improve hazardous material response plans. 


 Railway-Highway Crossings (Section 11108) and Railroad Crossing Elimination 
Program (Section 22305) 


IIJA provides $1.2 billion nationally for the FHWA Railway-Highway Crossings program 
(a.k.a., Section 130 program) over five years (FFY 2022 – FFY 2026); California is 
estimated to receive $83.6 million over five years. IIJA amends the Section 130 program 
to increase the federal share for projects funded under the program from 90 percent to 
100 percent. 


California IIJA Railway-Highway Crossings Apportionment (in $ millions) 
FFY 21 (actual) FFY 22 (Est) FFY 23 (Est) FFY 24 (Est) FFY 25 (Est) FFY 26 (Est) 
16.7 16.6 16.6 16.6 16.6 16.6 


IIJA also creates a new $3 billion five year ($600 million annually) competitive Railroad 
Crossing Elimination competitive grant program whereby U.S. DOT will award grants for 
projects that make improvements to highway and pathway rail crossings, such as 
eliminating highway-rail at-grade crossings that are frequently blocked by trains, 
adding gates or signals, relocating track, or installing a bridge. The program would 
improve the safety of communities and the mobility of people and goods. At least 20 
percent of grant funds are reserved for projects located in rural areas or on tribal lands. 


IV. Safety 


 Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP, Section 11111) 


IIJA provides $15.6 billion nationally between FFY 2022 and FFY 2026, of which California 
is estimated to receive approximately $1.37 billion during that period. Under IIJA, 
California’s HSIP funding will increase by approximately $50 million annually between 
FFY 2021 and FFY 2022 and by approximately $75 million annually by FFY 2026. 


California IIJA HSIP Apportionment (in $ millions) 
FFY 21 (actual) FFY 22 (Est) FFY 23 (Est) FFY 24 (Est) FFY 25 (Est) FFY 26 (Est) 
209.2 262.3 267.9 273.6 279.4 285.3 


Additionally, IIJA restores flexibility to fund certain non-infrastructure activities and 
behavioral safety projects, such as educational campaigns about traffic safety and 


473 of 829







   
  


 
 


                
   


 
          


             
            


         
            


              
 


 
            


             
                 


                 
               
                


 
           


 
                
              


          
           


            
            


 
              


            
        


 
         


 
            


           
               


  
 


              
 


                 
         


            
           


   
 


November 19, 2021 
Page 9 


enforcement activities, and allows a state to spend up to 10 percent of its HSIP funding 
on such projects. 


The IIJA HSIP authorization includes leading pedestrian intervals, construction or 
installation of features, measures, and road designs to calm traffic and reduce vehicle 
speeds, installation or upgrades of traffic control devices for pedestrians and bicyclists, 
roadway improvements that provide separation between pedestrians and motor 
vehicles or between bicyclists and motor vehicles, and a pedestrian security feature 
designed to slow or stop a motor vehicle as an eligible highway safety improvement 
project. 


Amendments to the IIJA HSIP program define a “safe system approach” and 
“vulnerable road user” and requires that when total annual fatalities of vulnerable road 
users in a state represents not less than 15 percent of the total annual crash fatalities in 
the state, that state shall be required to obligate not less than 15 percent of its HSIP 
funds for the following fiscal year for projects to address the safety of vulnerable road 
users. IIJA also directs the U.S. DOT to update the study on high-risk rural roads. 


 Safe Streets and Roads for All Grant Program (Section 24112) 


IIJA creates a new Safe Streets for All program funded at $5 billion between FFY 2022 
and FFY 2026 ($1 billion annual average; $6 billion total including authorized funding). 
This program will provide competitive grants for metropolitan planning organizations 
(MPOs), local governments, and tribal governments to develop and carry out 
comprehensive safety plans to prevent death and injury on roads and streets, 
commonly known as “Vision Zero” or “Toward Zero Deaths” initiatives. 


Note: It does not appear that state departments of transportations are eligible to apply 
for these competitive grants, but Caltrans may need to coordinate with local 
governments or provide technical assistance to tribal governments. 


NHTSA Funding Authorization and Changes to NHTSA Grant Programs 


IIJA authorizes continued funding of NHTSA highway safety grant programs and makes 
various changes to specific grant programs, including eligibility criteria and allowable 
uses, many of which will take effect with the FFY 2024 Highway Safety Plan. These 
changes include: 


 Section 402 - State and Community Highway Safety Grant Program (Section 24102) 


IIJA will allow Section 402 funds to be used for programs to address driver misuse of new 
technology, pediatric vehicular hyperthermia education, prevent move over crashes, 
address unsecured vehicle loads, and increase recall awareness. States with legalized 
marijuana are also directed to take into consideration implementing programs to 
address marijuana-impaired driving. 


474 of 829







   
  


 
 


               
                  


             
            


               
             


 
              


 
          


         
           


             
  


 
           


 
            


             
              


 
 


            
 


            
            


           
             


            
               
            


     
 


      
 


              
          
             


    
 


      
 


            
          


    
 


November 19, 2021 
Page 10 


The annual Highway Safety Plan (HSP) will be changed to a triennial HSP, beginning for 
FFY 2024. Triennial HSPs will be due July 1 every three years. In addition, states must 
produce an Annual Grant Application that includes any updates of analysis in the 
triennial plan, identification of projects and subrecipients to be funded, and application 
for any additional grants. States must continue to submit an Annual Report 120 days 
after the end of each Federal Fiscal Year that has a performance report. 


 Section 405 - National Priority Safety Program Grants (Sections 24105 and 4106) 


IIJA adjusts Section 405 allocations between national priority safety programs 
(occupant protection, traffic records, impaired driving, distracted driving, motorcyclist 
safety, nonmotorized safety, preventing roadside deaths (new), and driver and officer 
traffic stop safety education (new). It also eliminates funding for graduated driver 
licensing programs. 


 Section 1906 - Racial Profiling Prohibition Grants (Section 25024) 


IIJA amends allowable uses of 1906 grant program funds to include implementing 
programs, public outreach, and training to reduce the impact of racial profiling in 
traffic enforcement. Annual funding is increased from $7.5 million to $11.5 million per 
year. 


 New USDOT Grant Program for Crash Data (Section 24108) 


IIJA directs NHTSA to revise federal crash reporting databases to distinguish “personal 
conveyance devices”, to add data elements on vulnerable road users, coordinate with 
the CDC on pedestrian injury health data linkage, and coordinate with 
states on related Model Minimum Uniform Crash Criteria (MMUCC) updates. A new 
competitive grant program will be available for states for data system modernization 
and electronic data transfer capability to NHTSA. States are eligible if they submit an e-
data transfer plan; funds may be used for database updates, electronic crash 
reporting, and MMUCC updates. 


 Section 403 (Section 24103) 


Among other changes in this section, IIJA directs NHTSA to evaluate the effectiveness of 
innovative behavioral traffic safety countermeasures, other than enforcement, that are 
considered promising or likely to be effective in order to further enrich the 
“Countermeasures That Work” publication. 


 Vehicle Safety (Subtitle B) 


IIJA directs various actions by NHTSA, the Government Accountability Office (GAO), or 
Original Equipment Manufactures (OEMs) related to vehicle safety, recall campaigns, 
and research, including: 


475 of 829







   
  


 
 


        
           


           
          


       
 
              


          
           


        


      


         
 


             
            


            
       


 
         


                  
      


 
           
            
          


            
            
         


         
        


          
           


          


          
     


 
           


          
             


          
         


 


November 19, 2021 
Page 11 


 Advanced Impaired-Driving Technology (Section 24220): Requires the 
development of a new Federal Motor Vehicle Safety Standards (FMVSS) to 
require all new passenger motor vehicles be equipped with advanced drunk 
and impaired driving prevention technology that can passively monitor and 
accurately detect that a driver is impaired. 


 Child Safety (Section 24222): Directs development of a final rule to require 
passenger vehicle be equipped with rear passenger awareness technologies to 
alert the operator to check rear-designated seating positions after the vehicle 
engine or motor is deactivated by the operator. 


V. Climate Action and Resilience 


 Carbon Pollution Reduction Program (Section 11403) 


IIJA creates a new Carbon Pollution Reduction Program that provides a five-year $6.42 
billion national apportionment to the states to fund projects that reduce transportation 
emissions. California is estimated to receive approximately $555.3 million from this 
program (about $110 million annually). 


California IIJA Carbon Reduction Program Apportionment (in $ millions) 
FFY 21 (actual) FFY 22 (Est) FFY 23 (Est) FFY 24 (Est) FFY 25 (Est) FFY 26 (Est) 
N/A 106.7 108.8 111.0 113.2 115.5 


Projects eligible for Carbon Pollution Reduction program funding include projects to 
establish or operate a traffic monitoring, management, and control facility or program, 
including advanced truck stop electrification systems, a public transportation project 
that is eligible for assistance under Section 142 (Public Transportation), the construction, 
planning, and design of on-road and off-road trail facilities for pedestrians and 
bicyclists, a project for advanced transportation and congestion management 
technologies, a project for the deployment of infrastructure-based intelligent 
transportation systems capital improvements and the installation of vehicle-to-
infrastructure communications equipment, a project to replace street lighting and 
traffic control devices with energy-efficient alternatives, the development of a carbon 
reduction strategy, and retrofitting of DSRC technology under certain conditions. 


 Promoting Resilient Operations for Transformative, Efficient, and Cost-saving 
Transportation (PROTECT, Section 11405) 


IIJA creates a new Promoting Resilient Operations for Transformative, Efficient, and Cost-
saving Transportation (PROTECT) competitive and formula grant program that provides 
a five-year $7.3 billion national apportionment to help states improve the resiliency of 
transportation infrastructure. California is estimated to receive approximately $631 
million from this program over five years. 


476 of 829







   
  


 
 


             
      


 
       


                  
      


 
           


 
            


              
              
        


   
       


                  
      


 
           
            


                
            


           
            


              
              


            
              
          


 
       


 
            
             


          
         


 
            


           
             


               
            
            


 
          


           


November 19, 2021 
Page 12 


IIJA also includes a PROTECT competitive grant program that provides $1.4 billion over 
five years. 


California IIJA PROTECT Apportionment (in $ millions) 
FFY 21 (actual) FFY 22 (Est) FFY 23 (Est) FFY 24 (Est) FFY 25 (Est) FFY 26 (Est) 
N/A 121.3 123.8 126.2 128.8 131.3 


 Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ, Section 11115) 


IIJA provides a five-year $13.2 billion national apportionment for CMAQ; California is 
estimated to receive $2.63 billion over five years. Under IIJA, California’s CMAQ funding 
will increase by approximately $10 million annually between FFY 2021 and FFY 2022 and 
by approximately $50 million annually by FFY 2026. 


California IIJA CMAQ Apportionment (in $ millions) 
FFY 21 (actual) FFY 22 (Est) FFY 23 (Est) FFY 24 (Est) FFY 25 (Est) FFY 26 (Est) 
494.5 505.7 515.8 526.1 536.6 547.3 


The CMAQ program supports surface transportation projects and other related efforts 
that contribute air quality improvements and provide congestion relief. IIJA adds 
flexibility to the CMAQ program by allowing states to spend up to 10 percent of CMAQ 
funds on certain lock and dam modernization or rehabilitation projects and certain 
marine highway corridor, connector, or crossings projects if such projects are 
functionally connected to the federal-aid highway system and are likely to contribute 
to the attainment or maintenance of a national ambient air quality standard. This 
section also clarifies when eligible transit operating costs are not subject to a time 
limitation or phase-out requirement. It also adds eligibility for shared micromobility, 
including bike share and shared scooter systems, as well as for the purchase of 
medium- or heavy-duty zero-emission vehicles and related charging equipment. 


 Congestion Relief Program (Section 11404) 


IIJA establishes a $250 million congestion relief program to provide competitive grants 
($50 million annually) to states, local governments, and MPOs, for projects in large 
urbanized areas to advance innovative, integrated, and multimodal solutions to 
congestion relief in the most congested metropolitan areas. 


The goals of the congestion relief program are to reduce highway congestion, 
economic and environmental costs related to congestion, and to optimize existing 
highway capacity and usage of transit systems that provide alternatives to highways. 
To achieve these goals, the program allows states and MPOs to compete for grants for 
eligible projects within urbanized areas containing populations of more than 1 million 
people. Grant awards shall be not less than $10 million. 


Eligible projects consist of planning, design, implementation, and construction activities 
to achieve program goals, including the deployment and operation of mobility 


477 of 829







   
  


 
 


          
          


            
              


             
              


       
 


                
                 


                
           


 
               


              
            


            
             


 
 


          
 


 
              


           
            


           
 
 


         
 


 
            


          
         


         
            


   
 


               
             


     


       
 


            


November 19, 2021 
Page 13 


services, integrated congestion management systems, and systems that implement or 
enforce high-occupancy vehicle toll lanes, cordon pricing, parking pricing, or 
congestion pricing. Incentive programs that encourage travelers to carpool or use 
non-highway travel modes are also included. When selecting grants, the U.S. DOT shall 
give priority to eligible projects located in urbanized areas that are experiencing high 
degrees of recurrent congestion. The federal cost-share shall not exceed 80 percent of 
the total cost of a project. 


In addition, the congestion relief program permits the U.S. DOT to allow the use of tolls 
on the Interstate System as part of a project carried out with a program grant, subject to 
certain requirements. The U.S. DOT may not approve the use of tolls on the Interstate 
System under the program in more than 10 urbanized areas. 


Subsection (b) of Section 11404 amends Section 129(a) of Title 23 to require toll facilities 
on the Interstate System constructed or converted after the date of enactment to allow 
high-occupancy vehicles, transit, and paratransit vehicles to use the facility at a 
discounted rate or without charge unless the public authority determines that the 
number of such discounted vehicles would reduce the travel time reliability of the 
facility. 


 National Culvert Removal, Replacement, and Restoration Grant Program (Section 
21203) 


IIJA provides $1 billion over five years ($200 million annually) for a National Culvert 
Removal, Replacement, and Restoration Program to provide grants to states, local 
governments, and tribes to address anadromous fish passage as well as provide 
funding for certain freshwater impacts to marine fish and shellfish species. 


 Strengthening Mobility and Revolutionizing Transportation Grant Program (Section 
25005) 


IIJA establishes a new $500 million five-year ($100 million annually) competitive grant 
program for city or community demonstration projects that incorporate innovative 
transportation technologies or uses of data, including coordinated automation, 
connected vehicles, and intelligent sensor-based infrastructure. The Secretary is 
directed to consider geographic diversity and select projects across rural, midsized, and 
large communities. 


Note: Section 110002 of the Build Back Better Act (H.R. 5376) federal budget 
reconciliation now pending in Congress includes $4 billion (available through FFY 2026) 
for Community Climate Incentive Grants. 


VI. Zero-Emission Vehicle (ZEV) Charging Infrastructure 


 National Electric Vehicle Formula Program (Division J – Appropriations Title VIII) 


478 of 829







   
  


 
 


 
             


             
           


             
      


 
         


         
    


             
       
        
                


            
              


                
    


              
       


          
 


         
 


             
                


                
              


         
        


            
             


              
               


             
        


   
 


             
           


          
            


   
 
 


November 19, 2021 
Page 14 


IIJA creates a new “National Electric Vehicle Formula Program” that provides a $5 
billion apportionment for FFY 2022 through FFY2026 to states for strategic deployment of 
electric vehicle charging infrastructure; California is estimated to receive $383.7 million 
in guaranteed apportionment funding from this program over five years. Key features 
of this new program: 


 Eligible activities include strategically deploying electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure and establishing an interconnected network to facilitate data 
collection, access, and reliability. 
 Can be used for contractor, which can cover 20 percent non-federal share. 
 Federal share at 80 percent. 
 Only for publicly accessible charging stations. 
 Must be used on a designated alternative fuel corridor; if fuel corridor is built 
out, can be used on any public road or publicly-accessible parking facilities. 
 State department of transportation plans required on use of funding for each 
FFY 2022 to FFY 2026. If actions are not taken, funds could be reallocated to 
localities and other states. 
 $300 million for establishment of Joint Office of Energy and Transportation at 
U.S. DOT and U.S. Department of Energy. 
 10 percent set-aside for “additional assistance” on deployment. 


 Grants for Charging and Fueling Infrastructure (Section 11401) 


IIJA directs the U.S. Secretary of Transportation to establish a $2.5 billion five-year 
competitive grant program (FFY 2022 - $300 million, FFY 2023 - $400 million, FFY 2024 -
$500 million, FFY 2025 - $600 million, FFY 2026 - $700 million) for alternative fuel corridors, 
as well as a set-aside grant program for community grants. These programs are 
designed to strategically deploy publicly accessible electric vehicle charging 
infrastructure, hydrogen fueling infrastructure, propane fueling infrastructure, and 
natural gas fueling infrastructure along designated alternative fuel corridors or in certain 
other locations that will be accessible to all drivers of electric vehicles, hydrogen 
vehicles, propane vehicles, and natural gas vehicles. Eligible entities include a state or 
political subdivision of a state, a MPO, a unit of local government, a special purpose 
district or public authority with a transportation function, including a port authority, tribe, 
and a territory of the United States. 


VII. Road Charge 


California has conducted the nation’s largest VMT road charge pilot to date, which 
included 5,000 participating vehicles traveling more than 37 million miles. 
CalSTA/Caltrans and the California Transportation Commission (CTC) urged Congress to 
continue providing funding to states willing to research or pilot innovative transportation 
user-based revenue mechanisms. 


479 of 829







   
  


 
 


           
 


          
              
              
            


            
 


           
                


                
                 
                  


          
 


             
 


              
             


                
           


            
              


         
             


              
             


          
          


       
 


             
           


           
        


 


          
 


         
            
             


              
           


 


November 19, 2021 
Page 15 


 Strategic Innovation for Revenue Collection (Section 13001) 


IIJA reauthorizes and renames the Surface Transportation System Funding Alternatives 
Program at $15 million annually between FFY 2022 and FFY 2026, to continue the 
program to test the feasibility of a road usage fee and other user-based alternative 
revenue mechanisms to help maintain the long-term solvency of the Highway Trust 
Fund, through pilot projects at the state, local, and regional level. 


The section expands eligible applicants from state departments of transportation to 
include a local government or a group of local governments, an MPO, and a group of 
MPOs. The section also increases the federal-share for the program to 80 percent of the 
total cost of a project carried out by an eligible entity that has not otherwise received a 
grant under this section, and 70 percent of the total cost of a project carried out by an 
eligible entity that has received at least one grant previously. 


 National Motor Vehicle Per-Mile User Fee Pilot (Section 13002) 


IIJA directs the U.S. Secretary of Transportation, in coordination with the Secretary of the 
Treasury, to establish a pilot program to demonstrate a national motor vehicle per-mile 
user fee. In carrying out the pilot program, the Secretary, in coordination with the 
Secretary of the Treasury, shall provide different methods that volunteer participants 
can choose from to track motor vehicle miles traveled, solicit volunteer participants 
from all 50 states, the District of Columbia, and Puerto Rico, ensure an equitable 
geographic distribution by population among volunteer participants, and include 
commercial vehicles and passenger motor vehicles. For the purposes of the pilot 
program, the Secretary of the Treasury shall establish, on an annual basis, per-mile user 
fees for passenger motor vehicles, light trucks, and medium- and heavy-duty trucks, the 
amount for which may vary between vehicle types and weight 
classes to reflect estimated impacts on infrastructure, safety, congestion, the 
environment, or other related social impacts. 


IIJA also establishes a Federal System Funding Alternative Advisory Board to assist with 
providing the Secretary with recommendations related to the structure, scope, and 
methodology for developing and implementing the pilot program, carrying out the 
public awareness campaign, and developing a report. 


VIII. Project Delivery – NEPA Assignment (Sections 11313 and 11314) 


Caltrans has performed federal responsibilities for environmental decisions and 
approvals under the National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) for highway projects in 
California funded by the FHWA. Through “NEPA Assignment,” Caltrans has been able 
to cut the regulatory burden on thousands of road projects, achieving time savings of 
months and years in reviewing and approving environmental documents. 


480 of 829







   
  


 
 


             
           


           
 


        
 


           
             


           
              
               


              
           


            
                


                   
            


 
              


              
                


             
           


             
              
             
    


 
               


             
      


   
   


 
             


             
          


     
 
 


              
  


            
            
                 
         


November 19, 2021 
Page 16 


IIJA (Sections 11313 and 11314) include provisions that extend the statutory term of 
years for NEPA Assignment agreements, including for categorical exclusions. This 
provision will help California deliver transportation projects more efficiently. 


IX. Equity / Reconnecting Communities (Section 11509) 


IIJA establishes a community connectivity pilot program through which eligible entities 
may apply for planning funds to study the feasibility and impacts of removing, 
retrofitting, or mitigating existing transportation facilities that create barriers to mobility, 
access, or economic development, and for construction funds to carry out a project to 
remove, retrofit or mitigate an eligible facility and, if appropriate, replace it with a new 
facility. An eligible facility includes a limited access highway, viaduct, or any other 
principal arterial facility that creates a barrier to community connectivity, including 
barriers to mobility, access, or economic development, due to high speeds, grade 
separations, or other design factors. The program is funded at $1 billion over five years 
(FFY 2022 – $195 million, FFY 2023 - $198 million, FFY 2024 - $200 million, FFY 2025 - $202 
million, FFY 2026 - $ 205 million). 


Under IIJA, the U.S. DOT will award planning grants and provide technical assistance to 
eligible entities. Planning grant awards may not exceed $2 million, and the federal 
cost-share for a project may not exceed 80 percent. IIJA also allows the Secretary to 
award capital construction grants to owners of eligible facilities for eligible projects for 
which all necessary feasibility studies (and other planning activities) have been 
completed. Eligible projects include the removal and replacement of eligible facilities. 
Capital construction grants must be at least $5 million. The federal cost-share for a 
project may not exceed 50 percent, and the maximum federal involvement shall not 
exceed 80 percent. 


Note: Section 110003 of the Build Back Better Act (H.R. 5376) federal budget 
reconciliation now pending in Congress includes $4 billion (available through FFY 26) 
for Neighborhood Access and Equity Grants. 


X. Transit 


IIJA provides an overall $91.1 billion funding level for Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
discretionary and apportionment programs between FFY 2022 and FFY 2026. Under IIJA, 
California would receive approximately $9.45 billion in FTA-apportioned federal funding 
over five years. 


 Low-No Emission Vehicle Program (Section 30018; 49 U.S.C § 5339(c)) 


IIJA provides $5.6 billion nationally between FFY 2022 and FFY 2026 (approximately 
$1.125 billion annually) for the FTA’s Low-No Emission Bus Grants Program competitive 
grants. In FFY 2022, this program will be funded at $1.12 billion, a 523 percent increase 
above the FFY 2021 $180 million funding level. 


481 of 829







   
  


 
 


 
             


 
              


      
 


      
 


 
             


  
 


               
   


 
              


          
 


            
 
 


November 19, 2021 
Page 17 


 Capital Investment Grants (Section 30005; 49 U.S.C § 5309) 


IIJA guarantees $8 billion ($1.6 billion annually) and authorizes $15 billion more in future 
appropriations for FTA Capital Investment Grants. 


XI. Additional IIJA Non-Surface Transportation Infrastructure 
Funding 


 A minimum of $100 million to help provide broadband coverage across 
the state; 


 $84 million over five years to protect against wildfires and $40 million to 
protect against cyberattacks; 


 $3.5 billion over five years to improve water infrastructure across the state 
and ensure clean, safe drinking water for California communities; and 


 $1.5 billion for infrastructure development for airports over five years. 


482 of 829







1 


OPEN AND UPCOMING INFRASTRUCTURE FUNDING 
OPPORTUNITIES 


Updated as of: February 6, 2023 


Since President Biden signed the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law, his 
Administration has hit the ground running to deliver investments that 
change people’s lives for the better and get America moving again. The 
Biden-Harris Administration is committed to making funding opportunities 
accessible and transparent, so communities across America know what to 
apply for, who to contact, and how to get ready to rebuild. This document 
highlights funding opportunities that communities can apply for today as 
well as a calendar of key upcoming funding opportunities for 2023. For 
more information on the full set of programs in the Bipartisan Infrastructure 
Law, including upcoming milestones, visit build.gov.  


Contents 


OPEN NOTICE OF FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES TO APPLY FOR TODAY ................... 2 


2023 CALENDAR OF UPCOMING FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES ................................ 6 


ATTACHMENT C


483 of 829



https://www.whitehouse.gov/build/?utm_source=build.gov





2 


OPEN FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES TO APPLY FOR TODAY 
Program 
*Inflation Reduction Act 
(IRA) Program 


Agency Description Deadline Link to 
Application/
Information 


TRANSPORTATION 


Culvert Removal, 
Replacement, and 
Restoration 
Program  


Department of 
Transportation/ 
FHWA 


Funding for projects to 
improve or restore 
anadromous fish passage 
through the replacement, 
removal, repair, or 
improvement of culverts or 
weirs.  


2/6/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


RAISE (Rebuilding 
American 
Infrastructure with 
Sustainability and 
Equity) 


Department of 
Transportation 


Funding for surface 
transportation projects that will 
improve safety, environmental 
sustainability, quality of life, 
mobility and community 
connectivity, and economic 
competitiveness.  


2/28/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


Fed-State 
Partnership - 
Northeast Corridor 


Department of 
Transportation/
FRA  


Funding to expand and 
modernize intercity passenger 
rail in the Northeast Corridor 


3/27/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


Bus and Bus 
Facilities; Low and 
No Emission 
Vehicles 


Department of 
Transportation/ 
FTA  


Funding to replace, 
rehabilitate, purchase, or lease 
bus and bus related 
equipment & facilities & low or 
no emission buses.  


4/13/2023 Link to 
NOFO  


Fed-State 
Partnership - 
National Program  


Department of 
Transportation/
FRA 


Funding to expand and 
modernize intercity passenger 
rail outside of the Northeast 
Corridor.  


4/21/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


Port Infrastructure 
Development 
Program (PIDP) 


Department of 
Transportation/
MARAD 


Funding to modernize, 
upgrade, and expand U.S. 
ports.  


4/28/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


POWER & CLEAN ENERGY 


Long-Duration 
Energy Storage 
(LDES) 
Demonstrations  


Department of 
Energy 


Funding for demonstration 
projects capable of delivering 
electricity for 10-24 hours or 
longer to support a low-cost, 
reliable, carbon-free electric 
grid. 


3/3/2023: 
Full 
Application 
Deadline 
Deadline for 
LOI already 
passed.   


Link to 
application 
form 


484 of 829



https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=343962

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=343962

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=344667

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=344667

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/12/27/2022-28034/notice-of-funding-opportunity-for-projects-located-on-the-northeast-corridor-for-the-federal-state

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/12/27/2022-28034/notice-of-funding-opportunity-for-projects-located-on-the-northeast-corridor-for-the-federal-state

https://www.transit.dot.gov/notices-funding/low-or-no-emission-and-grants-buses-and-bus-facilities-competitive-programs-fy2023

https://www.transit.dot.gov/notices-funding/low-or-no-emission-and-grants-buses-and-bus-facilities-competitive-programs-fy2023

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/12/07/2022-26610/notice-of-funding-opportunity-for-the-federal-state-partnership-for-intercity-passenger-rail-program

https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2022/12/07/2022-26610/notice-of-funding-opportunity-for-the-federal-state-partnership-for-intercity-passenger-rail-program

https://www.maritime.dot.gov/office-port-infrastructure-development/port-and-terminal-infrastructure-development/2019-port-1

https://www.maritime.dot.gov/office-port-infrastructure-development/port-and-terminal-infrastructure-development/2019-port-1

https://oced-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx

https://oced-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx

https://oced-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx





3 


Preventing Outages 
and Enhancing the 
Resilience of the 
Electric Grid – 
Formula 


Department of 
Energy 


Funding to States and Indian 
Tribes to improve the 
resilience of the electric grid 
against disruptive events. 


3/31/2023 
 


Link to 
application 
form.  


Regional Clean 
Hydrogen Hubs 


Department of 
Energy  


Funding for projects that 
demonstrate the production, 
processing, delivery, storage, 
and end-use of clean 
hydrogen through regional 
clean hydrogen hubs. 


4/7/2023: 
Full 
Application 
Deadline 
 
Deadline for 
concept 
paper 
already 
passed.  


Link to 
Funding 
Opportunity 
Announcem
ent 


Energy Efficiency 
Revolving Loan 
Fund Capitalization 
Grant Program 


Department of 
Energy 


Funding for states and 
territories to establish 
revolving loan funds to invest 
in energy efficiency upgrades.  


4/21/2023 Link to 
Application 
Instructions 


Energy Efficiency in 
Public Schools 
Program 


Department of 
Energy 


Funding for projects that 
reduce the energy costs such 
as technology, infrastructure, 
and similar items.  


4/21/2023: 
Full 
Application 
Due 
Deadline for 
letters of 
intent has 
passed.  


Link to 
Application 
Instructions  


Wind Tech Program  Department of 
Energy 


Funding for projects to lower 
costs and address barriers to 
deployment of wind energy in 
all its applications—offshore, 
land-based, and distributed. 


3/10/2023: 
Full 
Application 
Due 
 
 


Link to 
Application 
Instructions  


Energy Efficiency 
and Conservation 
Block Grant 


Department of 
Energy 


Funding for clean energy 
projects and programs in local 
communities. Funding can be 
used for a variety of projects, 
such as developing clean 
energy strategies, making 
buildings more energy-
efficient, installing renewable 
energy on government 
buildings, and funding  a 
community solar campaign. 
  


Rolling  Link to 
Application 
Instructions 


485 of 829



https://netl.doe.gov/bilhub/grid-resilience/formula-grants

https://netl.doe.gov/bilhub/grid-resilience/formula-grants

https://netl.doe.gov/bilhub/grid-resilience/formula-grants

https://oced-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaId4dbbd966-7524-4830-b883-450933661811

https://oced-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaId4dbbd966-7524-4830-b883-450933661811

https://oced-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaId4dbbd966-7524-4830-b883-450933661811

https://oced-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaId4dbbd966-7524-4830-b883-450933661811

https://oced-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaId4dbbd966-7524-4830-b883-450933661811

https://www.energy.gov/sites/default/files/2022-11/EE-RLF-IIJA-Application-Instructions_0.pdf

https://www.energy.gov/sites/default/files/2022-11/EE-RLF-IIJA-Application-Instructions_0.pdf

https://www.energy.gov/sites/default/files/2022-11/EE-RLF-IIJA-Application-Instructions_0.pdf

https://eere-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaId06985843-f32c-494e-880a-cb5db6d787a4

https://eere-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaId06985843-f32c-494e-880a-cb5db6d787a4

https://eere-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaId06985843-f32c-494e-880a-cb5db6d787a4

https://eere-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaIdac8901f4-e765-482b-9931-f425cb8e1fbd

https://eere-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaIdac8901f4-e765-482b-9931-f425cb8e1fbd

https://eere-exchange.energy.gov/Default.aspx#FoaIdac8901f4-e765-482b-9931-f425cb8e1fbd

https://www.energy.gov/scep/eecbg-program-formula-grant-application-hub

https://www.energy.gov/scep/eecbg-program-formula-grant-application-hub

https://www.energy.gov/scep/eecbg-program-formula-grant-application-hub





4 


RESILIENCE, ENVIRONMENT, AND LEGACY POLLUTION 


Brownfields 
Workforce Training, 
Research, & 
Technical 
Assistance Grant  


Environmental 
Protection 
Agency  


Funding to eligible entities to 
provide training, research, and 
technical assistance to 
facilitate the inventory of 
brownfield sites, site 
assessments, remediation of 
brownfield sites, community 
involvement, or site 
preparation. 


2/14/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


Technical 
Assistance for 
Brownfields 


Environmental 
Protection 
Agency  


Funding for technical 
assistance to communities to 
help cleanup and reuse 
brownfields sites. 


2/14/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


Pacific Coastal 
Salmon Recovery  


Department of 
Commerce / 
NOAA 


Funding to support coastal 
salmon recover.  


3/17/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


Wood Innovations 
Grants 


Department of 
Agriculture 


Funding to expand traditional 
wood use projects, advance 
wood energy markets, and 
promote wood use in 
commercial building 
construction. 


3/23/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


Community Wood 
Energy and Wood 
Innovation Program 
Grant 


Department of 
Agriculture 


Funding for projects to install 
thermally led community wood 
energy systems or build 
innovative wood product 
facilities to support healthy 
forests and stimulate local 
economies. 


3/23/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


Abandoned Mine 
Lands 


Department of 
the Interior 


Funding to states and Navajo 
Nation to reclaim hazardous 
abandoned mine lands caused 
by past coal mining while 
creating good-paying jobs and 
revitalizing coal communities. 


03/31/2023 
Application 
due 


Link to 
NOFO 


EJ Collaborative 
Problem-Solving 
Cooperative 
Agreement* 


Environmental 
Protection 
Agency 


Funding to build collaborative 
partnerships with other 
stakeholders to develop 
solutions to environmental or 
public health issue(s) at the 
community level. 


4/23/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


EJ Government to 
Government 
Program* 


Environmental 
Protection 
Agency 


Funding to governmental 
entities at the state, local, 
territorial and tribal level to 


4/23/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


486 of 829



https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=344534

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=344534

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=344532

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=344532

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=345226

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=345226

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=345548

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=345548

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=345549

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=345549

https://www.osmre.gov/sites/default/files/inline-files/BIL_NOFO_0.pdf

https://www.osmre.gov/sites/default/files/inline-files/BIL_NOFO_0.pdf

https://www.epa.gov/environmentaljustice/environmental-justice-collaborative-problem-solving-cooperative-agreement-5

https://www.epa.gov/environmentaljustice/environmental-justice-collaborative-problem-solving-cooperative-agreement-5

https://www.epa.gov/environmentaljustice/environmental-justice-government-government-program

https://www.epa.gov/environmentaljustice/environmental-justice-government-government-program





5 


support and/or create model 
government activities that lead 
to measurable environmental 
or public health results in 
communities 
disproportionately burdened 
by environmental harms & 
risks.  


Safeguarding 
Tomorrow 
Revolving Loan 
Fund Program 


Department of 
Homeland 
Security / 
FEMA 


Capitalization grants to states, 
eligible federally recognized 
tribes, territories and DC to 
establish revolving loan funds 
that provide hazard mitigation 
assistance for local 
governments to reduce risks 
from natural hazards and 
disasters.  


04/28/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


Pollution 
Prevention Grants 


Environmental 
Protection 
Agency 


Provides technical assistance 
to businesses in order to help 
them develop and adopt 
source reduction practices.  


4/23/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


WATER 


Drinking Water and 
Clean Water State 
Revolving Funds 


Environmental 
Protection 
Agency 


Funding to public water 
systems to address drinking 
water needs, promote clean 
water, and replace lead pipes 


Rolling 
Basis: 
States 
develop 
Intended 
Use Plan & 
request 
local project 
proposals 


Link to 
Additional 
Information 


WaterSMART: 
Environmental 
Water Resources 


Department of 
the Interior  


Funding for environmental 
water resources, cooperative 
watershed management, and 
multi-benefit projects to 
improve watershed health.  


03/28/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


WaterSMART: 
Water Recycling & 
Desalination 
Planning 


Department of 
the Interior 


Funding for planning and 
implementation of activities to 
increase water supply through 
infrastructure investments.  


02/28/2023 Link to 
NOFO 


 
  


487 of 829



https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html?keywords=storm%20act

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html?keywords=storm%20act

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=340576

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/view-opportunity.html?oppId=340576

https://www.epa.gov/dwsrf/bipartisan-infrastructure-law-srf-memorandum

https://www.epa.gov/dwsrf/bipartisan-infrastructure-law-srf-memorandum

https://www.epa.gov/dwsrf/bipartisan-infrastructure-law-srf-memorandum

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html?keywords=R23AS00089

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html?keywords=R23AS00089

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html?keywords=R23AS00076

https://www.grants.gov/web/grants/search-grants.html?keywords=R23AS00076





6 


2023 CALENDAR OF UPCOMING FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES 
Program 
*IRA Program 


Agency Estimated Open 
Date 


February 2023 
 
Asset Concessions and Innovative 
Finance Assistance Program 


Department of 
Transportation 


February 2023 


Charging & Fueling Infrastructure 
Grants  


Department of 
Transportation / FHWA 


February 2023 


America’s Marine Highway Grants Department of 
Transportation/MARAD 


February 2023 


Civil Nuclear Credit Program 
(Round 2) 


Department of Energy February 2023 


Advanced Energy Manufacturing 
and Recycling 


Department of Energy February 2023 


Carbon Capture Demonstration 
and Large-Scale Pilots 


Department of Energy February 2023 


Earth Mapping Resources Initiative 
State Mine Waste Activities 


Department of the 
Interior 


February 2023 


Aquatic Ecosystem Restoration 
and Protection Projects 


Department of the 
Interior 


February 2023 


Pipeline and Hazardous Materials 
Safety Administration NOFOs  


Department of 
Transportation/PHMSA 


February 2023 


Tribal Transit (Set Aside from 
Formula Grants for Rural Areas) 


Department of 
Transportation/FTA 


February 2023 


Denali Commission Grants Denali Commission February 2023 
Spring 2023 
 
Climate Pollution Reduction – 
Planning Grants* 


Environmental 
Protection Agency 


March 2023 


States’ Economic Development 
Assistance Program (SEDAP) 


Delta Regional 
Authority 
 


March 2023 
 


Community Infrastructure Fund  Delta Regional 
Authority 


March 2023 
 


Tribal Broadband Program Department of 
Commerce 


March 2023 


Clean Energy Demonstrations on 
Former Mine Lands 


Department of Energy March 2023 


Assisting Federal Facilities with 
Energy Conservation 
Technologies (AFFECT) Grant 
Program 


Department of Energy March 2023 


488 of 829







7 


Energy Improvements in Rural or 
Remote Areas 


Department of Energy March 2023 


Industrial Emissions 
Demonstrations  


Department of Energy March 2023 


Natural Gas Distribution 
Infrastructure Safety and 
Modernization Grants 


Department of 
Transportation/PHMSA 


March 2023 


Tribal High Priority Projects 
Program 


Department of 
Transportation 


March 2023 


Catalyst Program Northern Border 
Regional Commission  


March 2023 


Emerging Contaminants in Small 
or Disadvantaged Communities 


Environmental 
Protection Agency 


March 2023 


Water Recycling and Desalination  
Planning, Design, and 
Construction  


Department of the 
Interior 


March/April 2023 


Clean School Bus Program – Grant 
Competition 


Environmental 
Protection Agency 


April 2023 


Tribal Cybersecurity Grant 
Program 


Department of 
Homeland Security / 
FEMA 


April 2023 


Safe Streets and Roads for All Department of 
Transportation 


April 2023 


Ferries Programs: Ferry Service 
for Rural Communities, Electric / 
Low Emitting Ferry Program, and 
Passenger Ferry Program 


Department of 
Transportation 


April 2023 


Brownfields Job Training Grants Environmental 
Protection Agency 


May 2023 


Transit Oriented Development 
 


Department of 
Transportation 


May 2023 


Restoring Fish Passage through 
Barrier Removal 


Department Commerce May 2023 


Restoring Tribal Priority Fish 
Passage through Barrier Removal 
 


Department of 
Commerce / NOAA 


May 2023 


Coastal Zone Management  Department of 
Commerce / NOAA 


May 2023 


National Estuarine Research 
Reserve System 


Department of 
Commerce / NOAA 


May 2023 


Transformational Habitat 
Restoration and Coastal 
Resilience 


Department of 
Commerce / NOAA 


May 2023 


Coastal Habitat Restoration and 
Resilience Grants for Underserved 
Communities 


Department of 
Commerce / NOAA 


May 2023 


489 of 829







8 


Wildlife Crossings Pilot Program Department of 
Transportation 


Spring 2023 


National Electric Vehicle Formula 
Program – Discretionary Grants  


Department of 
Transportation / FHWA 


Spring 2023 


MEGA/INFRA/Rural Department of 
Transportation 


Spring 2023 


Applied Science Grants Department of the 
Interior 


Spring 2023 


Neighborhood Access and Equity 
Grants* 


Department of 
Transportation 


Spring 2023 


Reconnecting Communities Department of 
Transportation 


Spring 2023 


PROTECT Grants Department of 
Transportation / FHWA 


Spring 2023 


Community Wildfire Defense Department of 
Agriculture 


Spring 2023 


Interstate Rail Compacts Department of 
Transportation / FRA 


Spring 2023 


University Transportation Centers 
of Excellence 


Department of 
Transportation  


Spring 2023 


Crash Data Grants Department of 
Transportation / NHTSA  


Spring 2023 


Summer 2023 
 
Abandoned Mine Reclamation 
Fund NOFO 


Department of the 
Interior 


Summer 2023 


Alternative Fuel and Low-Emission 
Aviation Technology Program* 


Department of 
Transportation 


Spring 2023/ 
Summer 2023 


Bridge Investment Program Department of 
Transportation 


Summer 2023 


Railroad Crossing Elimination 
Program 


Department of 
Transportation 


Summer 2023 


National Geological and 
Geophysical Data Preservation 
Program  


Department of the 
Interior 


Summer 2023 


Environmental & Climate Justice 
Thriving Communities Block 
Grant* 


Environmental 
Protection Agency 


Summer 2023 


READY Appalachia: Community 
Capacity Building 


Appalachian Regional 
Commission  


Summer 2023 


Appalachian Regional Initiative for 
Stronger Economies (ARISE) 


Appalachian Regional 
Commission 


Summer 2023 


Fall 2023 
 


490 of 829







9 


Strengthening Mobility & 
Revolutionizing Transportation 
(SMART) Grants 


Department of 
Transportation 


Fall 2023 


Regional Infrastructure 
Accelerators Demonstration 
Program 


Department of 
Transportation 


Fall 2023 


Rural and Tribal Assistance Pilot 
Program 


Department of 
Transportation/Build 
America Bureau 


Fall 2023 


Transportation Access Pilot 
Program 


Department of 
Transportation / FHWA 


Fall 2023 


Railroad Crossing Elimination Department of 
Transportation 


Fall 2023 


Consolidated Rail Infrastructure 
and Safety Improvements 


Department of 
Transportation 


Fall 2023 


Building Resilient Infrastructure 
and Communities Program 


Department of 
Homeland Security 
(DHS) / FEMA 


Fall 2023 


Flood Mitigation Assistance 
Program 


DHS / FEMA Fall 2023 


National Dam Safety Program DHS / FEMA Fall 2023 
State & Local Cybersecurity Grant 
Program 


DHS / FEMA Fall 2023 


Digital Equity Capacity Grant 
Program 


Department of 
Commerce  


Fall 2023 


Winter 2023-2024 
 
National Culvert Removal, 
Replacement, and Restoration 
Grants 


Department of 
Transportation 


Winter 2023 


Innovative Coordinated Access 
and Mobility Program 


Department of 
Transportation / FTA 


Winter 2023 


Nationally Significant Federal 
Lands and Tribal Projects Program 
(NSFLTP) 


Department of 
Transportation / FHWA 


Winter 2023 


Asset Concessions and Innovative 
Finance Assistance Program 


Department of 
Transportation 


Winter 2023 


 


491 of 829







    CITY COUNCIL 
   REPORT 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: MARKISHA GUILLORY, FINANCE DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: FY 2022/23 ANNUAL REVIEW OF UTILITY USERS’ TAX AND 
ADOPTION OF A RESOLUTION MODIFYING HOUSEHOLD INCOME 
ELIGIBILITY THRESHOLDS FOR UTILITY USERS’ TAX EXEMPTIONS 
FOR FY 2023/24 


RECOMMENDATION 


It is recommended that the City Council: 


1. Conduct the FY 2022/23 Annual Review of the Utility Users’ Tax (UUT); and
2. Adopt a Resolution modifying the Household Income eligibility thresholds for


exemptions from the Utility Users’ Tax for FY 2023/24.


BACKGROUND 


In November 1998, voters approved the City of Pinole’s Utility Users’ Tax (UUT) at a rate 
of 8% on electricity, gas, and telecommunication services. Voters approved ballot 
measures to extend the UUT in 2004, 2012, and 2018. The UUT does not have a sunset 
date. Renewal of the UUT was essential to secure the City’s fourth largest General Fund 
revenue source.  Revenue generated by the UUT amounts to approximately 9% of the 
City’s General Fund (excluding transfers in) and remains necessary to fund critical City 
services.  


Currently, Section 3.26.150(A) of the Pinole Municipal Code authorizes the City Council 
to exempt the following classes of persons from paying UUT: (1) Persons who receive 
Aid to Families with Dependent Children (AFDC), (2) Persons who receive Veterans’ 
benefits and Veterans’ survivor pension benefits, (3) Persons on Supplemental Security 
Income or State Supplemental Payments (SSI/SSP); and (4) Persons who receive 
benefits from the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP).  


Additionally, Section B of the Code states: In addition, customers may also qualify for an 
exemption if their total household income does not exceed household incomes set by 
resolution of the City Council. Each year, the City Council adopts a resolution setting the 
household income thresholds. The City has used as the threshold the limits set annually 
by the California Alternative Rates for Energy (CARE) program, administered by Pacific 
Gas & Electricity (PG&E). 


10A


492 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  2 


Pursuant to Section 3.26.170 of the Pinole Municipal Code, in June of every year, as part 
of the budget process, UUT is required to be reviewed through a report to the City Council. 
The report shall contain a summary of amounts of UUT realized, which is provided in the 
subsequent section of this report.  
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff anticipates that the City will close FY 2022/23 with a projected $2,074,092 in actual 
UUT collected, which is 1% above the $2,063,773 collected for FY 2021/22.  Although 
the City continues to see a decline in the taxes collected on telecommunication services, 
gas and electricity collections continue to increase year-over-year.  Table 1 below is a 
ten-year history of UUT collections. 
 
Table 1 – Ten-Year History of UUT Collections 


      
  2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 


Gas and Electricity 1,278,552 1,290,533 1,347,738 1,564,702 1,452,015 


% Total UUT 68% 70% 72% 76% 75% 


Telecommunications 601,672 553,085 528,580 501,921 474,780 


% Total UUT 32% 30% 28% 24% 25% 


Total UUT  1,880,224 1,843,618 1,876,318 2,066,623 1,926,796 


% Change     -4.8% -1.9% 1.8% 10.1% -6.8% 
 


       Estimate 


  2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 
Gas and Electricity 1,416,001 1,484,969 1,651,216 1,797,374 1,815,348 


% Total UUT 78% 82% 85% 87% 88% 
Telecommunications 396,843 324,863 288,510 266,399 258,745 


% Total UUT 22% 18% 15% 13% 12% 
Total UUT  1,812,844 1,809,832 1,939,726 2,063,773 2,074,092 
% Change     -5.9% -0.2% 7.2% 6.4% 1% 


 
 
Looking ahead to FY 2023/24, the UUT budget proposed is at $2,085,485, which is an 
8% increase from the current year revised budget amount of $1,934,000 and is based on 
trend analysis.  As noted above, UUT revenue from energy services continues to increase 
annually while telecommunication services continue to decline because of an increase in 
internet-based forms of telephone use and a decrease in use of landline telephones. 
 
Utility Users Tax Exemption 
 
Pursuant to Pinole Municipal Code Section 3.26.150(B), the City establishes by resolution 
the household income limits. The City uses those set by the California Alternative Rates 


493 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  3 


for Energy (CARE) program for exemption from the UUT.  PG&E administers the CARE 
program and confirms customers’ eligibility based on IRS income tax returns and certifies 
continued eligibility every two years. 
 
This is consistent with the process other California cities use as a basis for exemption 
from the UUT levy.  In some cases, agencies rely on PG&E to administer the exemption 
in which case they automatically do not charge the UUT to customers who are eligible for 
the CARE program.  In other cases, customers apply for the exemption with the agency 
who verifies eligibility for the CARE program. The City of Pinole relies on PG&E to 
administer the exemption program for gas and electricity services. PG&E provides a 
listing of customers who have received an exemption from UUT on a monthly basis. 
Eligible customers who meet the same income guidelines as those for UUT exemption 
from gas and electricity services may receive exemption from UUT on telecommunication 
services by applying to the City.  
   
Household Income Exemption Thresholds 
 
Staff has obtained the current household income guidelines for the California Alternative 
Rates for Energy (CARE) program in the PG&E service area and recommends continuing 
to set the City’s household income exemption at the CARE amounts.  The current 
thresholds effective June 1, 2023 through May 31, 2024 are displayed in Table 2 below. 
 
Table 2 – Household Income Exemption Thresholds 


Household 
Size 


Current CARE 
Threshold 


Previous CARE 
Threshold 


1-2 Persons $39,440 $36,620 
3 Persons $49,720 $46,060 
4 Persons $60,000 $55,500 
5 Persons $70,280 $64,940 
6 Persons $80,560 $74,380 
7 Persons $90,840 $83,820 
8 Persons $101,120 $93,260 
9 Persons $111,400 $102,700 
10 Persons $121,680 $112,140 
Each additional person, add $10,280 $9,440 


 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact as a result of this report itself.  
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A Resolution  
 
B PG&E CARE Program Guidelines  
 


494 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  4 


 


495 of 829







RESOLUTION 2023-XX 


A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE 
COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA SETTING HOUSEHOLD 
INCOME LEVELS FOR UTILITY USERS TAX EXEMPTIONS FOR FISCAL YEAR 


(FY) 2023/24 


WHEREAS, Section 3.26.170 (Review) of the Pinole Municipal Code provides for 
the establishment and modification of classes of exemptions of persons or service from 
utility users taxes; and  


WHEREAS, the City Council held a Public Hearing, on June 6, 2023, to discuss 
and receive public comment on the tax and whether or not changes to household income 
levels for utility users tax exemptions should be made; and  


WHEREAS, the City Council desires to continue to allow exemptions for telephone 
users tax, electricity users tax and gas users tax based upon the Household Income 
Thresholds adopted by the State Public Utilities Commission’s California Alternative Rate 
for Energy (CARE) Program for the 2023/24 budget year. 


NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL of the City of 
Pinole that, as provided in Section 3.26.150 of the Pinole Municipal Code, utility 
customers may qualify for exemption from the telephone users tax (P.M.C. Section 
3.26.040), electricity users tax (P.M.C. Section 3.26.050) and gas users tax (P.M.C. 
Section 3.26.060) if their total household income does not exceed the following 
thresholds: 


AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the City Manager or his designee, and 
the City Attorney are hereby authorized and directed, to make all approvals and take all 
actions necessary or appropriate to carry out the intent of this Resolution. 


********************************* 


Household 
Size 


Current CARE 
Threshold 


Previous CARE 
Threshold 


1-2 Persons $39,440 $36,620 
3 Persons $49,720 $46,060 
4 Persons $60,000 $55,500 
5 Persons $70,280 $64,940 
6 Persons $80,560 $74,380 
7 Persons $90,840 $83,820 
8 Persons $101,120 $93,260 
9 Persons $111,400 $102,700 
10 Persons $121,680 $112,140 
Each additional person, add $10,280 $9,440 


ATTACHMENT A


496 of 829







PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Pinole this 6th day of 
June, 2023, by the following vote to-wit: 
 
AYES:  COUNCILMEMBERS:   
NOES: COUNCILMEMBERS:    
ABSENT: COUNCILMEMBERS:    
ABSTAIN: COUNCILMEMBERS:    
 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing resolution was introduced, passed and adopted on this 
6th day of June, 2023. 
 
 
____________________________ 
Heather Bell, CMC 
City Clerk 
 


497 of 829







CARE Program Guidelines 


Reduce your energy bill through the CARE Program 


To qualify for CARE: 


• The PG&E bill must be in your name. (For sub-metered tenants, the energy bill
from your landlord must be in your name.)


• You must live at the address to which the discount applies.


• Another person (besides your spouse) can’t claim you as a dependent on an
income tax return.


• You must not share an energy meter with another home.


• You must account for all sources of qualifying household income and meet the
program income guidelines.


• You must notify PG&E if your household no longer qualifies for the CARE
discount.


• After you enroll, you may need to provide proof of qualifying household income,
including IRS tax returns. You may also be required to participate in the Energy
Savings Assistance Program.


• Your monthly electric usage must not exceed six times the Tier 1 allowance. This
is the lowest-priced rate tier within PG&E’s standard Tiered Base Plan.


• You must renew your eligibility every two years (or every four years if you’re on a
fixed income).


• Qualification is based on the total income of everyone living in the home or
participation in qualifying public assistance programs.


Qualifying for CARE based on public assistance program participation 
You may qualify for the CARE Program if you or someone in your household takes part 
in any of the following public assistance programs. 


• Low Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP)


• Women, Infants, and Children (WIC)


• CalFresh/SNAP (Food Stamps)


ATTACHMENT B


498 of 829







CARE Program Guidelines 


• CalWORKs (TANF) or Tribal TANF 


• Head Start Income Eligible (Tribal Only) 


• Supplemental Security Income (SSI) 


• Medi-Cal for Families (Healthy Families A & B) 


• National School Lunch Program (NSLP) 


• Bureau of Indian Affairs General Assistance 


• Medicaid/Medi-Cal (under age 65) 


• Medicaid/Medi-Cal (age 65 and over) 
 
 


Qualifying for CARE based on household income 
Add all household members' incomes from all eligible sources for your total gross 
annual household income. The total combined gross annual household income must be 
at or below the amounts shown in the following table. 
 
COVID-19 NOTE: Household income is calculated as your income as of the date you 
apply. Your income eligibility is based on current earnings of all persons living in your 
household going forward. It is not based on your past income, so if you have had a 
change in circumstances such as job loss or decreased wages, you may now qualify. 
 
 


Number of Persons in Household  Total Gross Annual Household Income*  
1-2  $39,440 or less  
3 $49,720 or less  
4  $60,000 or less  
5 $70,280 or less  
6 $80,560 or less 
7 $90,840 or less  
8 $101,120 or less  
9 $111,400 or less 
10 $121,680 or less 
Each additional person, add $10,280 
 


*Before taxes based on current income sources. Valid through May 31, 2024. 
 
 


499 of 829







CARE Program Guidelines 


Household income includes all taxable and nontaxable revenues from all people living in 
the home. It includes, but is not limited to the following sources: 


• Wages 


• Salaries 


• Interest and dividends 


• Spousal and child support payments 


• Public assistance payments 


• Social Security and pensions 


• Housing and military subsidies 


• Rental income 


• Self-employment income 


• All employment-related, non-cash income 
  
PLEASE NOTE: Your household income must meet the program income guidelines. 
 


https://www.pge.com/en_US/residential/save-energy-money/help-paying-your-bill/longer-term-


assistance/care/program-guidelines.page  


500 of 829



https://www.pge.com/en_US/residential/save-energy-money/help-paying-your-bill/longer-term-assistance/care/program-guidelines.page

https://www.pge.com/en_US/residential/save-energy-money/help-paying-your-bill/longer-term-assistance/care/program-guidelines.page





 CITY COUNCIL REPORT 
 REPORT 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: MARKISHA GUILLORY, FINANCE DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: REVISED PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2023/24 OPERATING 
AND CAPITAL BUDGET 


RECOMMENDATION 


City staff recommends that the City Council review the Revised Proposed Fiscal Year 
(FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget and provide direction to staff for changes 
to incorporate into the next draft of the document, the Final Proposed version. 


BACKGROUND 


The City operates on an annual budget cycle. Through the budget, the City Council 
approves revenue estimates and authorizes City staff to expend the City’s limited 
financial resources. City staff is responsible for preparing a proposed budget for City 
Council’s consideration, modification, and adoption. 


As noted above, the City goes through an annual process of developing a budget for 
the upcoming fiscal year. The City’s budget is considered an “incremental” budget, 
meaning that the budget for the upcoming year is developed based on the current 
year’s budget and includes incremental changes. City staff takes the following steps 
to create the Preliminary Proposed budget: 


• Finance Department uses the current FY 2022/23 budget, which incorporates
any mid-year changes approved by the City Council, as the starting point;


• Finance Department creates a “baseline” budget for FY 2023/24 by taking the
ongoing revenues and expenditures included in the current FY 2022/23 budget
and factoring in known or assumed changes to revenues and expenditures (i.e.,
forecasted changes to different revenue streams, general inflation, known
changes to debt service, etc.);


• Departments review and confirm the known and assumed changes
incorporated into the baseline budget;


• Departments submit requests for changes from the baseline budget to address
proposed special projects or increased service levels; and


11A


501 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  2 


• Finance Department and City Manager consider department requests for 
changes to the baseline budget and prepare a Preliminary Proposed budget 
for the City Council’s consideration. 


 
City staff presented the baseline General Fund budget to the Finance Subcommittee 
on April 12, 2023 and to the City Council at a special meeting on April 25, 2023 to 
receive feedback on the assumptions contained in the baseline budget.  The Finance 
Subcommittee and City Council did not direct staff to make any changes to the 
baseline General Fund budget. Staff has reviewed and revised the baseline budget 
multiple times to ensure that it does not include any one-time revenues or 
expenditures and that all of the estimates it contains are as precise as feasible. This 
resulted in a final baseline budget. 
 
City staff is required by the City’s Financial Policy on a Structurally Balanced Budget 
to create a proposed General Fund operating budget that is structurally balanced, 
meaning that ongoing revenues equal or exceed ongoing expenditures. The final 
baseline General Fund budget contained a shortfall of approximately $274,000. City 
staff collaborated to identify ongoing General Fund expenditure reductions in order to 
eliminate that gap. This resulted in a Preliminary Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 
Operating and Capital Budget that is structurally balanced.  
 
City staff presented the Preliminary Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and 
Capital Budget to the City Council at its meeting on May 16, 2023. The City Council 
did not direct staff to make any changes. Staff has prepared the Revised Proposed 
Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget for City Council consideration. 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Revised Proposed budget contains staff’s recommendations regarding revenues 
and expenditures for FY 2023/24. The total (all funds) revenue budget is 
approximately $47.2 million. The City’s total (all funds) expenditure budget is 
approximately $76.5 million. The Revised Proposed budget is structurally balanced, 
meaning that ongoing revenues are sufficient to cover ongoing expenditures. One-
time expenditures are paid for using one-time revenues and other sources, including 
fund balance, which is why total expenditures can exceed total revenues. The budget 
projection assumes a net use of fund balance of $29.3 million for all funds combined 
as shown in Table 1 below. The majority of the use of fund balance is for several large, 
multi-year capital improvement projects, notably in the wastewater enterprise fund. It 
is important to note that the total estimated costs of capital projects are budgeted in 
year one (FY 2023/24) of the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) although some projects 
may take several years to complete. The total costs are budgeted up front to earmark 
the full amount of funding needed to complete the CIP projects.   
 
 
 
 


502 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  3 


Table 1 – All Funds Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures 


 
 
The General Fund (including Measure S 2006 and 2014) total revenue budget is 
approximately $25.6 million, and its total expenditure budget is approximately $34.5 
million. The Revised Proposed FY 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget includes the 
use of approximately $8.9 million from the General Fund and Measure S unassigned 
fund balance to fund several one-time capital projects that were budgeted in the FY 
2022/23 Operating and Capital Budget but were not completed and have been carried 
over. 
 
The Revised Proposed budget for FY 2023/24 is a status quo budget, meaning that it 
does not include any significant new City programs or services, and does not include 
any new City staff positions. The Revised Proposed budget recommends that the City 
carry out the same ongoing programs and activities in FY 2023/24 as it has in the 
current fiscal year. 
 
City staff will undertake a thoughtful and substantial set of programs and activities in 
FY 2023/24. Staff will complete routine work and staff-initiated special projects to 


Fund


Estimated 
Beginning 


Fund Balance 
July 1, 2023


 Total 
Revenues 


 Total 
Expenditures 


 Contribution 
To/(From)    


Fund Balance 


 Estimated 
Ending      


Fund Balance     
June 30, 2024 


General Fund 
General Fund (including Measure S 2006 and 2014) 9,848,344$     25,610,623$ 34,504,230$  (8,893,608)$    954,736$         
General Reserve Fund 9,367,440        764,520         -                   764,520           10,131,960      
Equipment Reserve Fund 121,166           150,000         205,000          (55,000)            66,166              
Special Revenue Funds
Gas Tax Fund 535,954           1,046,400      1,980,986       (934,586)          (398,632)          
Restricted Real Estate Maintenance Fund 178,876           39,991           26,000            13,991             192,867           
Public Safety Augmentation Fund 377,419           241,853         482,009          (240,156)          137,263           
Traffic Safety Fund 277,267           46,500           21,595            24,905             302,172           
Supplemental Law Enforcement Fund 427,819           166,600         339,864          (173,264)          254,555           
NPDES Storm Water Fund (122,454)          253,422         364,769          (111,347)          (233,801)          
Recreation Fund -                    1,288,997      2,135,264       (846,267)          (846,267)          
Building & Planning Fund (565,001)          1,411,477      2,151,083       (739,606)          (1,304,607)       
Refuse Management Fund 108,298           66,060           174,358          (108,298)          -                    
Solid Waste Fund 2,048,446        368,000         589,381          (221,381)          1,827,065        
Measure C/J Fund 2,071,416        1,152,257      1,023,719       128,538           2,199,954        
Rate Stabilization Fund 217,153           15,000           -                   15,000             232,153           
Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund 41,658             -                  41,236            (41,236)            422                   
Growth Impact Fund 3,136,824        1,039,594      1,348,000       (308,406)          2,828,418        
Housing Assets Fund 8,275,331        55,000           339,254          (284,254)          7,991,077        
Capital Projects Funds
Lighting & Landscaping District Fund 44,896             63,911           85,175            (21,264)            23,632              
Pinole Valley Caretaker Fund 14,017             15,000           15,002            (2)                      14,015              
Public Facilities Fund 471,649           -                  70,000            (70,000)            401,649           
City Street Improvements Fund 1,497,987        2,064,683      2,232,004       (167,321)          1,330,666        
Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund 755,361           250,000         758,624          (508,624)          246,737           
Parks Grants 25,236             189,758         189,758          -                    25,236              
Enterprise Funds
Sewer Enterprise Fund 19,159,654     9,254,209      24,145,339    (14,891,130)    4,268,524        
Cable Access Television (PCTV) -                    535,052         682,056          (147,004)          (147,004)          
Information Systems Fund -                    -                    -                    
Fiduciary/Agency Funds
Pension Fund 14,521,075     837,168         2,295,480       (1,458,312)      13,062,763      
Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund -                    255,000         251,177          3,823               3,823                
Total 72,835,831$   47,181,075$ 76,451,363$  (29,270,287)$  43,565,544$    


503 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  4 


improve efficiency and services; 2020-2025 Strategic Plan “strategies”; Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) projects; and other Council-directed special projects. These 
Council-directed special projects, which are all consistent with City goals, are listed 
below. They are sorted by level of completion. 
 
Nearly Complete 


• Continuing to implement additional City-coordinated community events (United 
Against Hate Week, Earth Month, etc.) 


• Development of the Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) 
• Disposal and/or visioning for surplus City property 
• Development of regulations regarding single-use plastics 


 
Partially Complete 


• Research on options for just cause eviction regulations 
• Research on a potential citywide project labor agreement (PLA) 
• Research on steps the City would need to take to establish a public bank 
• Creation of a sister city agreement 
• Creation of a public art program/City mural program update 
• Implementation of a City of Pinole job fair 
• Implementation of a weatherization program 


 
Recently Underway 


• Research on additional food security and recovery activities 
 
Not Yet Underway 


• Options for Old Town wayfinding signage 
• Completion of an electric vehicle (EV) charging station feasibility study 
• Research on the process required to establish a fire prevention maintenance 


district 
• Establishing a business development/community help reserve 
• Establishing a revitalization reserve 


 
City staff believes that it will be able to complete all of the Council-directed special 
projects listed above by the end of FY 2023/24, and they have been included in the 
Revised Proposed budget, but staff does not have the capacity to take on any 
additional special projects. Staff recommends that the City adopt a practice of not 
adding any special projects mid-fiscal year unless an existing comparable special 
project is eliminated. 
 
Structural Balance 
 
As noted above, it is a goal of the City’s Financial Policy on a Structurally Balanced 
Budget, and a public finance best practice, to create a structurally balanced proposed 
budget. Table 1 below shows the ongoing General Fund revenues and expenditures 
in the Revised Proposed baseline budget and illustrates the balance. The small 


504 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  5 


surplus of $71,205 mainly results from savings identified in the fire services agreement 
with the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District.  
 
               Table 1 - Revised Proposed Baseline Budget 


  FY 2023/24  


 
 Revised Proposed         


Baseline Budget  
Sources   
PROPERTY TAX  $              5,678,211  
SALES TAX                   4,621,023  
LOCAL SALES TAX - MEASURE S 2006 & 2014                   4,972,000  
UTILITY USERS TAX                   2,085,485  
FRANCHISE TAX                      794,658  
INTERGOVERNMENTAL TAX                    2,319,918  
TRANSIENT OCCUPANCY TAX                      453,200  
BUSINESS LICENSE                      450,014  
CHARGES FOR SERVICES                   1,432,539  
OTHER REVENUES                      558,095  


Total Revenues                 23,365,143  
TRANSFERS IN                   2,245,480  


Total Sources                 25,610,623  
  
Uses   
SALARIES & WAGES                   9,359,141  
BENEFITS                    6,219,651  
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE                   2,166,288  
CCCFPD FIRE SERVICES AGREEMENT                   5,391,485  
CAPITAL OUTLAY                      332,990  
DEBT SERVICE                      611,107  


Total Expenditures                 24,080,662  
TRANSFERS OUT                    1,458,756  


Total Uses                 25,539,418  
  


Net Surplus/(Deficit)  $                   71,205  
 


The General Fund Revised Proposed Budget consists of the baseline budget (ongoing 
operating budget), one-time operating budget items such as special Council-directed 
initiatives, and capital improvement projects that are funded by the General Fund and 
Measure S Funds. The graphic below depicts the composition of the Revised 
Proposed Budget. As shown, the budget assumes the use of $9.0 million of fund 
balance. Table 2 on the following page provides a detailed list of the one-time budget 
items and capital improvement projects to be funded by available unassigned fund 
balance.  


505 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  6 


 
  
 
 
 
 
Table 2 – One-Time Budget Items and Capital Improvement Projects (Some are 
Projects Budgeted in FY 2022/23, but Not Completed, so Carried Forward to FY 
2023/24) 
Baseline Budget   
Total Ongoing Expenditures  $      25,539,418    


One-Time Items and Initiatives    
Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) Consulting                 40,000  
Digital Billboard                 25,000  
Miscellaneous Consulting                 20,000  
Citywide Records Project Support                 11,300  
Policies & Procedures Update Support                 20,000  
Strategic Financial Planning Support                  40,000  
Economic Development Branding                 15,000  
Economic Development Strategy Year 1 Implementation                 71,416  
Holiday Lights Over San Pablo Ave.                 30,000  
Event Planning Vendor                 30,000  
City Hall Landscaping Improvements                 20,000  
CERT Program Supplies                 20,000  
Citizen Request Software                 15,000  
Alex Clark Room Transformation                 20,000  
Dispatch Chair Replacement                 15,324  
City Clerk Furniture Replacement                   5,000  
City Council Furniture Replacement                 15,000  
Weatherization/Energy Efficiency               250,000  


Revised Proposed 
Budget


$34,504,230


Baseline Budget  
(Ongoing Operating 


Budget)
$25,539,418


One-time Operating 
Budget Items 
$2,217,552


Capital Improvement 
Projects


$6,747,260


Use of Available Fund Balance = $8,964,812 


506 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  7 


Street Improvements               200,000  
On-Call Consultants for Capital Projects                 75,000  
Business Development/Community Help Reserve                 10,000  
Revitalization Reserve                 10,000  
Pedestrian Bridge Inspection                 50,000  
Tiny Tots Restroom Walls/Floor Repair and Replacement                 11,000  
Youth Center Vinyl Flooring                 10,000  
Citywide Information Technology Refresh and Replacement               122,400  
Fire General Liability               151,592  
Transfer to Equipment Replacement Fund               150,000  
Transfer to General Reserve Fund               764,520  
Total One-Time Items and Initiatives            2,217,552    


Capital Improvement Projects   
Active Transportation Plan               170,000  
Emergency Power for Critical Failures                 30,000  
Recycled Water Feasibility                 60,000  
Brandt St. Improvements               170,000  
Municipal Broadband Feasibility                 60,000  
Energy Audit                 50,000  
Facilities & Real Estate Master Plan               200,000  
Storm Drainage Master Plan                 75,000  
Citywide Roof Repairs and Replacement               900,000  
City Hall Modernization               125,000  
Senior Center Auxiliary Parking            1,327,831  
Energy Upgrades               150,000  
Senior Center Modernization               115,000  
Public Safety Building Modernization               225,000  
Park Master Plan               150,000  
Skatepark Rehabilitation               150,000  
Tree Mitigation               150,000  
San Pablo Ave Bridge Replacement               300,000  
Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta               193,029  
Pinole Smart Signals               154,302  
Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave./Pear & Plum               910,000  
Hazel St. Storm Drain Improvements               382,098  
Roble Road Drainage Improvements               700,000  
Total Capital Improvement Projects            6,747,260    


Total Revised Proposed Budget   $        34,504,230  
 


507 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  8 


Balancing Act Survey Results 
 
The City launched its FY 2023/24 Pinole Community Priorities Survey on April 20, 
2023 using the Balancing Act online simulation. Respondents were asked to select 
their top five priorities, then to rank them in order of priority with one (1) being the 
highest and five (5) being the lowest.  As of May 31, 2023, a total of 234 self-selected 
community members completed the survey. The results are shown in the table 3 
below.  
 
Unweighted (not ranked) represents the number of times an item was selected as a 
priority irrespective of ranking. Weighted (ranked) represents the number of times an 
item was selected as a priority as well as how it was ranked in order of priority. As 
shown below, respondents’ top five priorities (unweighted and weighted) are 
pavement maintenance and rehabilitation; parks and facilities maintenance; public 
safety services; community services; and economic development. 
 
Table 3 – FY 2023/24 Pinole Community Priorities Survey Results 


 
 
NEXT STEPS 
 
City staff invites the feedback of the City Council and members of the public on the 
Revised Proposed budget at the City Council’s June 6, 2023 meeting. The City has 
also developed a Revised Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 – 2027/28 Five-Year 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP), which contains the capital budget for FY 2023/24 
and a conceptual capital budget for FY 2024/25 – FY 2027/28.  
 
Following the June 6, 2023 Council meeting, staff will incorporate the Council’s 
feedback as well as additional staff-generated content into a Final Proposed version. 
Staff plans to present the resulting version of the budget, the Final Proposed budget, 
to the City Council on June 20, 2023. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 


Item
Unweighted 
(not ranked) Item


Weighted 
(ranked)


Pavement Maintenance and Rehabilitation 148 Pavement Maintenance and Rehabilitation 148.35          
Parks and Facilities Maintenance 129 Public Safety Services 137.45          
Public Safety Services 124 Parks and Facilities Maintenance 117.82          
Community Services 117 Economic Development 107.82          
Economic Development 112 Community Services 104.30          
Community Spaces and Facilities 100 Community Spaces and Facilities 93.88            
Road Safety 92 Road Safety 83.85            
Climate and Environmental Sustainability 82 Climate and Environmental Sustainability 78.40            
Active Transportation 63 Active Transportation 66.00            
Financial Reserves 49 Financial Reserves 44.27            
Housing Assistance 39 Housing Assistance 37.65            
Other Ideas 37 Other Ideas 35.03            
Municipal Broadband 22 Municipal Broadband 20.47            


508 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023  9 


The City Council’s review and direction on the Revised Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 
2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget does not itself have any fiscal impact on the 
City. The fiscal impact of the Revised Proposed budget is well described in the budget 
document itself. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
A –  Revised Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 


509 of 829







OPERATING AND
CAPITAL BUDGET


City of Pinole


FISCAL YEAR 2023/24


Revised Proposed - June 6, 2023


ATTACHMENT A


510 of 829







Page intentionally blank 


511 of 829







June 20, 2023 


Dear City Council and Residents - 


City staff is pleased to present the Final Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating 
and Capital Budget (“FY 2023/24 Budget”). 


City staff is responsible for preparing a proposed budget for City Council’s consideration. 
The FY 2023/24 Budget incorporates input that was provided by the City Council and 
members of the community through multiple meetings of the Finance Subcommittee, City 
Council, and other engagement opportunities. 


FY 2023/24 Budget is a structurally balanced, status quo budget. This means that 
ongoing revenues are sufficient to cover ongoing expenditures, and that service levels 
and revenue mechanisms in the budget are essentially the same as those in the current 
year budget, FY 2022/23. 


The Pinole community demonstrated incredible resilience in 2020 and 2021 while facing 
COVID-19 and other challenges. The City maintained all core municipal services during 
that period. As COVID-19 waned, in FY 2021/22 and FY 2022/23 the City began work on 
and completed a number of special projects and program expansions to improve City 
operations and community quality of life. The City added a number of new staff positions 
in FY 2022/23 to add capacity, and also entered a contract with Contra Costa County Fire 
Protection District (CCCFPD) for fire protection and emergency medical services. The 
City’s accomplishments in 2022 and plans for 2023 are well-summarized in the City of 
Pinole 2022 Year in Review and 2023 Look Ahead document, which was recently 
published. 


In FY 2023/24, the City will continue to work on completing the City’s 2020 – 2025 
Strategic Plan strategies, Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) projects, routine staff work, 
staff-initiated process improvements, and other Council-directed special projects. These 
include the implementation of additional community events, development of a Climate 
Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP), development of an Active Transportation Plan, and 
feasibility assessments regarding a public bank, municipal broadband, and recycled 
water. It is a thoughtful and ambitious work program that will create improved services 
and plans for a better future. The FY 2023/24 Budget does not include any new City 
positions. 


CITY OF PINOLE 
Office of the City Manager 


City of Pinole i
512 of 829



https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/common/pages/DownloadFileByUrl.aspx?key=WFDdOmPhXn2CHMvsiLpZHkfVFBJ6G%2bJo7BbOKUti7MFzzyQGo%2fSIbxRnRWdmDAk7JicTSSu%2fCPbVH97FubU8djQzz3j%2bGtrfjzocAgkvKF9yzrfwIf%2f04veOwD2NK2OatdUiWyPGAjhLNr0Mw5qX2RBXaf5J24ETU2HgMfd1raDqFVaUDU8nAzWP6kDmAempNLQZog%3d%3d

https://cdnsm5-hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_10946972/File/City%20Government/City%20Manager/2023/2023%20Look%20Ahead%20and%202022%20Review.pdf

https://cdnsm5-hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_10946972/File/City%20Government/City%20Manager/2023/2023%20Look%20Ahead%20and%202022%20Review.pdf

https://cdnsm5-hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_10946972/File/City%20Government/Strategic%20Plan/3281001_Pinole_StrategicPlan_Final.pdf

https://cdnsm5-hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_10946972/File/City%20Government/Strategic%20Plan/3281001_Pinole_StrategicPlan_Final.pdf





Looking to the future, the City will complete an updated Long-Term Financial Plan (LTFP) 
in summer or fall 2023. While the FY 2023/24 Budget is structurally balanced, and the 
City’s long-term financial forecast shows that ongoing City revenues are expected to 
generally be sufficient to cover ongoing routine City services, existing City revenue 
mechanisms are not going to be sufficient to address the City’s two main unfunded 
liabilities, which are deferred capital maintenance and other post-employment benefits 
(medical insurance coverage for retired City employees). The LTFP will illustrate all of the 
City’s mandatory and discretionary future financial obligations and identify how to address 
them. 


A key goal of the City’s is to engage with the community and provide welcoming, high-
quality services. City staff looks forward to working with you to make Pinole the best that 
it can be for current and future generations. Please connect and engage with the City 
through its numerous platforms. 


I would like to thank all of the members of the community that participated in this year’s 
budget development process, as well as the City’s Finance Department for preparing the 
budget. 


Sincerely, 


Andrew Murray 
City Manager 


City of Pinole ii
513 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Table of Contents 


Table of Contents 


City of Pinole iii
514 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Table of Contents 


Page intentionally blank 


City of Pinole iv
515 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Table of Contents 


CITY OF PINOLE 


 FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2023/24 OPERATING AND CAPITAL BUDGET 


TABLE OF CONTENTS 


Transmittal Letter ....................................................................................................................... i 
Table of Contents ..................................................................................................................... iii 
Executive Summary .................................................................................................................. 1 


Executive Summary ................................................................................................................. 3 
Background ............................................................................................................................... 9 


Elected Officials and Department Heads ............................................................................... 11 
Strategic Plan 2020 – 2025 Vision, Mission, and Goals ......................................................... 13 
Profile of the City ................................................................................................................... 14 
City Organizational Structure ................................................................................................. 15 


Budget Development Process and Budget Award ............................................................... 17 
Budget Development Process ............................................................................................... 19 
Budget Award ........................................................................................................................ 23 


Revenue and Expenditure Summaries .................................................................................. 25 
General Fund Revenue and Expenditures ............................................................................. 27 
Major Non-General Funds ..................................................................................................... 39 
All Funds Revenue and Expenditures .................................................................................... 43 
Long-Term Financial Forecast ............................................................................................... 57 
Budget Positions.................................................................................................................... 59 
Labor Allocations ................................................................................................................... 63 


Department Budgets ............................................................................................................... 65 
Elected Officials ..................................................................................................................... 67 


City Council ....................................................................................................................... 67 
City Treasurer .................................................................................................................... 73 


Appointed Officials ................................................................................................................. 75 
City Manager ..................................................................................................................... 75 


Information Technology ................................................................................................. 80 
City Attorney ...................................................................................................................... 83 
City Clerk ........................................................................................................................... 87 


Administration ........................................................................................................................ 91 


City of Pinole v
516 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Table of Contents 


Finance .............................................................................................................................. 91 
Human Resources ............................................................................................................. 97 


Public Safety ....................................................................................................................... 103 
Police ............................................................................................................................... 103 
Fire .................................................................................................................................. 117 


Public Works ....................................................................................................................... 119 
Administration & Engineering ........................................................................................... 127 
Road Maintenance ........................................................................................................... 129 
Facility Maintenance ........................................................................................................ 132 
National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Storm Water  ........................ 135 
Park Maintenance ............................................................................................................ 137 
Waste Reduction ............................................................................................................. 140 
Lighting & Landscape District ........................................................................................... 141 
Water Pollution Control Plant ........................................................................................... 142 


Community Development .................................................................................................... 149 
Planning ........................................................................................................................... 155 
Building Inspection ........................................................................................................... 157 
Successor Agency Administration .................................................................................... 160 
Housing Assets for Resale ............................................................................................... 161 
Code Enforcement ........................................................................................................... 162 
Economic Development ................................................................................................... 164 


Community Services ............................................................................................................ 165 
Administration .................................................................................................................. 171 
Recreation ....................................................................................................................... 173 


Senior Center .............................................................................................................. 173 
Tiny Tots ..................................................................................................................... 176 
Youth Center ............................................................................................................... 178 
Swim Center ................................................................................................................ 181 
Memorial Hall .............................................................................................................. 182 
Tennis ......................................................................................................................... 183 
Library Services ........................................................................................................... 184 
Animal Control ............................................................................................................. 185 


Pinole Community Television ........................................................................................... 186 
General Government ........................................................................................................... 193 


Schedule of Transfers ................................................................................................. 197 
Debt Obligations .......................................................................................................... 199 


Appendix ............................................................................................................................... 201 
Accounting Basis ................................................................................................................. 203 
Monitoring the Budget ......................................................................................................... 203 
Fund Structure ..................................................................................................................... 204 
Glossary of Budget Terms & Acronyms ............................................................................... 207 
Financial and Investment Policies ........................................................................................ 213 
Employee Compensation and Benefits ................................................................................ 217 


City of Pinole vi
517 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Executive Summary 


Executive Summary 


City of Pinole 1
518 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Executive Summary 


Page intentionally blank


City of Pinole 2
519 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Executive Summary 


EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 


The City operates on an annual budget cycle. Through the budget, the City Council 
approves revenue estimates and authorizes City staff to expend the City’s limited financial 
resources. City staff is responsible for preparing a proposed budget for City Council’s 
consideration. 


The Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget was created through a 
collaborative, iterative process involving the City Council, community, and City staff and 
included the creation of a Preliminary Proposed, Revised Proposed, and ultimately Final 
Proposed budget. The budget development process is more fully described in the Budget 
Development Process section below. 


The Fiscal Year (FY) 2032/24 Operating and Capital Budget is primarily a status quo 
budget, meaning that it does not include any major changes to City programs or services. 


The budget includes the following two noteworthy assumptions: 


• A “vacancy savings factor” of 4% to account for savings in salaries and benefits
resulting from normal position vacancies; and


• A 3% cost of living adjustment (COLA) for all employees, as the City is in the
process of negotiating successor MOUs and compensation plans for all
employees.


The City’s all funds revenue in the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
is approximately $47.2 million, and the all funds expenditures are approximately $76.5 
million. The budget projection assumes a net use of fund balance of $29.3 million for all 
funds combined as shown in Table 1 below. The majority of the use of fund balance is for 
several large, multi-year capital improvement projects, notably in the wastewater 
enterprise fund. Important to note that the total estimated costs of capital projects are 
budgeted in year one (FY 2023/24) of the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) although some 
projects may take several years to complete. The total costs are budgeted up front to 
earmark the full amount of funding needed to complete the CIP projects.   


City of Pinole 3
520 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Executive Summary 


Table 1 – All Funds Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures 


The General Fund (including Measure S 2006 and 2014 Funds) revenue is approximately 
$25.6 million, and General Fund expenditures are approximately $34.0 million. The 
budget includes the use of fund balance in a number of funds to complete one-time 
projects. 


The budget includes a transfer from the General Fund to the General Reserve Fund to 
meet the City’s Reserve Policy requirement of maintaining a General Reserve balance 
equal to 50% of total ongoing General Fund expenditures. The budget anticipates a 
General Reserve balance of $10.3 million, General Fund unassigned fund balance of 
$954,736 million, and a Pension Trust Fund balance of $13.1 million at the end of FY 
2023/24. 


The budget includes funding for a number of Council-directed special projects, beyond 
staff’s baseline work, Strategic Plan strategies, and Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) 
projects. These Council-directed special projects are the following: 


Fund


Estimated 


Beginning 


Fund Balance 


July 1, 2023


 Total 


Revenues 


 Total 


Expenditures 


 Contribution 


To/(From)  


Fund Balance 


 Estimated 


Ending 


Fund Balance 


June 30, 2024 


General Fund 


General Fund (including Measure S 2006 and 2014) 9,848,344$     25,610,623$ 34,504,230$  (8,893,608)$    954,736$   


General Reserve Fund 9,367,440        764,520         - 764,520           10,131,960      


Equipment Reserve Fund 121,166           150,000         205,000          (55,000) 66,166 


Special Revenue Funds


Gas Tax Fund 535,954           1,046,400      1,980,986       (934,586)          (398,632)          


Restricted Real Estate Maintenance Fund 178,876           39,991 26,000 13,991 192,867 


Public Safety Augmentation Fund 377,419           241,853         482,009          (240,156)          137,263 


Traffic Safety Fund 277,267           46,500 21,595 24,905 302,172 


Supplemental Law Enforcement Fund 427,819           166,600         339,864          (173,264)          254,555 


NPDES Storm Water Fund (122,454)          253,422         364,769          (111,347)          (233,801)          


Recreation Fund - 1,288,997      2,135,264       (846,267)          (846,267)          


Building & Planning Fund (565,001)          1,411,477      2,151,083       (739,606)          (1,304,607)       


Refuse Management Fund 108,298           66,060 174,358          (108,298)          - 


Solid Waste Fund 2,048,446        368,000         589,381          (221,381)          1,827,065        


Measure C/J Fund 2,071,416        1,152,257      1,023,719       128,538           2,199,954        


Rate Stabilization Fund 217,153           15,000 - 15,000 232,153 


Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund 41,658 - 41,236 (41,236) 422 


Growth Impact Fund 3,136,824        1,039,594      1,348,000       (308,406)          2,828,418        


Housing Assets Fund 8,275,331        55,000 339,254          (284,254)          7,991,077        


Capital Projects Funds


Lighting & Landscaping District Fund 44,896 63,911 85,175 (21,264) 23,632 


Pinole Valley Caretaker Fund 14,017 15,000 15,002 (2) 14,015 


Public Facilities Fund 471,649           - 70,000 (70,000) 401,649 


City Street Improvements Fund 1,497,987        2,064,683      2,232,004       (167,321)          1,330,666        


Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund 755,361           250,000         758,624          (508,624)          246,737 


Parks Grants 25,236 189,758         189,758          - 25,236 


Enterprise Funds


Sewer Enterprise Fund 19,159,654     9,254,209      24,145,339    (14,891,130)    4,268,524        


Cable Access Television (PCTV) - 535,052         682,056          (147,004)          (147,004)          


Information Systems Fund - - - 


Fiduciary/Agency Funds


Pension Fund 14,521,075     837,168         2,295,480       (1,458,312)      13,062,763      


Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund - 255,000         251,177          3,823 3,823 


Total 72,835,831$   47,181,075$ 76,451,363$  (29,270,287)$  43,565,544$    


City of Pinole 4
521 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Executive Summary 


• Additional City-coordinated community events (United Against Hate Week, Earth
Month, etc.);


• Development of the Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP);


• Disposal and/or visioning for surplus City property;


• Development of regulations regarding single-use plastics;


• Research on options for just cause eviction regulations;


• Research on a potential citywide project labor agreement (PLA);


• Research on steps the City would need to take to establish a public bank;


• Creation of a sister city agreement;


• Creation of a public art program/City mural program update;


• Implementation of a City of Pinole job fair;


• Implementation of a weatherization program;


• Research on additional food security and recovery activities;


• Options for Old Town wayfinding signage;


• An electric vehicle (EV) charging station feasibility study;


• Research on the process required to establish a fire prevention maintenance
district;


• Establishing a business development/community help reserve; and


• Establishing a revitalization reserve.


City staff believes that it will be able to complete the Council-directed special projects 
listed above by the end of FY 2023/24, but does not have the capacity to take on any 
additional special projects. Staff also recommends that the City adopt a practice of not 
adding any special projects mid-fiscal year unless an existing special project is taken off 
of the list. 


It is a public finance best practice, and a goal of the City’s Financial Policy on a 
Structurally Balanced Budget, to create a proposed General Fund operating budget that 
is structurally balanced, meaning that ongoing revenues equal or exceed ongoing 
expenditures. 


The Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget is structurally balanced in 
that ongoing revenues equal or exceed ongoing expenditures. The budget does use one-
time sources, such as fund balance, for one-time expenditures. 


The General Fund Revised Proposed Budget consists of the baseline budget (ongoing 
operating budget), one-time operating budget items such as special Council-directed 
initiatives, and capital improvement projects that are funded by the General Fund 
including the Measure S Funds. The graphic below depicts the composition of the 
Revised Proposed Budget. As shown, the budget assumes the use of $9.0 million of fund 
balance. Table 2 on the following page provides a detailed list of the one-time budget 
items and capital improvement projects.  


City of Pinole 5
522 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Executive Summary 


Table 2 – One-Time Budget Items and Capital Improvement Projects (Some are Projects 


Budgeted in FY 2022/23, but Not Completed, so Carried Forward to FY 2023/24) 


Baseline Budget 


Total Ongoing Expenditures  $  25,539,418 


One-Time Items and Initiatives 


Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) Consulting  40,000 


Digital Billboard  25,000 


Miscellaneous Consulting  20,000 


Citywide Records Project Support  11,300 


Policies & Procedures Update Support  20,000 


Strategic Financial Planning Support  40,000 


Economic Development Branding  15,000 


Economic Development Strategy Year 1 Implementation  71,416 


Holiday Lights Over San Pablo Ave.  30,000 


Event Planning Vendor  30,000 


City Hall Landscaping Improvements  20,000 


CERT Program Supplies  20,000 


Citizen Request Software  15,000 


Alex Clark Room Transformation  20,000 


Dispatch Chair Replacement  15,324 


City Clerk Furniture Replacement  5,000 


City Council Furniture Replacement  15,000 


Revised Proposed 
Budget


$34,504,230


Baseline Budget  
(Ongoing Operating 


Budget)


$25,539,418


One-time Operating 
Budget Items 


$2,217,552


Capital Improvement 
Projects


$6,747,260


Use of Available Fund Balance = $8,964,812 


City of Pinole 6
523 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Executive Summary 


Weatherization/Energy Efficiency  250,000 


Street Improvements  200,000 


On-Call Consultants for Capital Projects  75,000 


Business Development/Community Help Reserve  10,000 


Revitalization Reserve  10,000 


Pedestrian Bridge Inspection  50,000 


Tiny Tots Restroom Walls/Floor Repair and Replacement  11,000 


Youth Center Vinyl Flooring  10,000 


Citywide Information Technology Refresh and Replacement  122,400 


Fire General Liability  151,592 


Transfer to Equipment Replacement Fund  150,000 


Transfer to General Reserve Fund  764,520 


Total One-Time Items and Initiatives  2,217,552 


Capital Improvement Projects 


Active Transportation Plan  170,000 


Emergency Power for Critical Failures  30,000 


Recycled Water Feasibility  60,000 


Brandt St. Improvements  170,000 


Municipal Broadband Feasibility  60,000 


Energy Audit  50,000 


Facilities & Real Estate Master Plan  200,000 


Storm Drainage Master Plan  75,000 


Citywide Roof Repairs and Replacement  900,000 


City Hall Modernization  125,000 


Senior Center Auxiliary Parking  1,327,831 


Energy Upgrades  150,000 


Senior Center Modernization  115,000 


Public Safety Building Modernization  225,000 


Park Master Plan  150,000 


Skatepark Rehabilitation  150,000 


Tree Mitigation  150,000 


San Pablo Ave Bridge Replacement  300,000 


Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta  193,029 


Pinole Smart Signals  154,302 


Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave./Pear & Plum  910,000 


Hazel St. Storm Drain Improvements  382,098 


Roble Road Drainage Improvements  700,000 


Total Capital Improvement Projects  6,747,260 


Total Revised Proposed Budget  $  34,504,230 


City of Pinole 7
524 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Executive Summary 


Page intentionally blank


City of Pinole 8
525 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Background 


Background 


City of Pinole 9
526 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Background 


Page intentionally blank


City of Pinole 10
527 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Background – Elected Officials and Department Heads 


ELECTED OFFICIALS 


   Devin Murphy      Maureen Toms     Anthony Tave 
  Mayor Mayor Pro Tempore   Council Member 


 Cameron Sasai  Norma Martínez-Rubin  Roy 
Swearingen 
 Council Member   Council Member    City Treasurer 


DEPARTMENT HEADS 


City Manager Andrew Murray 
City Attorney (Contract) Eric Casher 


City Clerk Heather Bell 
Community Development Director Lilly Whalen 


Community Services Director Jeremy Rogers 
Finance Director Markisha Guillory 


Human Resources Director Stacy Shell 
Police Chief Neil Gang 


Public Works Director Sanjay Mishra 


City of Pinole 11
528 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Background – Elected Officials and Department Heads 


Page intentionally blank 


City of Pinole 12
529 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Background – City of Pinole Strategic Plan 2020-2025 


CITY OF PINOLE STRATEGIC PLAN 2020-2025  


In February 2020, the City of Pinole adopted a Strategic Plan 2020 – 2025. The Strategic 


Plan established the following vision, mission, and goals for the City, as well as 22 specific 


“strategies” (special projects), to be completed over a five-year timeframe, that would help 


the City achieve the goals. 


VISION 


Pinole is a safe, vibrant, and innovative community with small town charm and high 


quality of life. 


MISSION 


Pinole will be efficient, ethical, and effective in delivering quality services with 


community involvement and fiscal stewardship. 


GOALS 


1. Safe and Resilient Pinole: Develop and communicate resilience through quality


public safety service delivery, property maintenance policies and practices, and


disciplined investment in community assets.


2. Financially Stable Pinole: Ensure the financial health and long-term sustainability


of the City.


3. Vibrant and Beautiful Pinole: Facilitate a thriving community through


development policies and proactive relationship building.


4. High Performance Pinole: Build an organization culture that is efficient, ethical,


and effective in delivering quality services with community involvement and fiscal


stewardship.


The City Council held a special strategic planning meeting on April 29, 2023 during which 


it reaffirmed the vision, mission, and goals of the Strategic Plan and made some 


adjustments to some strategies. 


City of Pinole 13
530 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Background – Profile of the City 


PROFILE OF THE CITY 


The City is primarily a residential community located in the San Francisco Bay Area on 


the shores of San Pablo Bay in West Contra Costa County.  Highway Interstate 80, which 


traverses Pinole, connects the San Francisco/Oakland metropolitan area with 


Sacramento and points east.  Pinole is linked to central Contra Costa County which 


includes the cities of Martinez, Concord, and Pleasant Hill by State Route 4 which begins 


just north of Pinole and connects with Interstate 680.  There are approximately four-


square miles of land included in Pinole’s boundary.  The City’s population on January 1, 


2022 was 18,628, according to the California Department of Finance.   


The City of Pinole is a general law city that was incorporated on June 25, 1903. The City 


operates under a Council-Manager form of operation, whereby policies of the City Council 


are administered by a City Manager who is appointed by the City Council.  All municipal 


departments operate under the supervision of the City Manager. The Council consists of 


five members who are elected at large for four-year overlapping terms.  The Council elects 


one of the Council members to serve as Mayor each year.    


The City is a full-service city that provides the following services: public safety (police), 


public works, community services (including recreation and Pinole community television), 


community development, and general administration services. 


City of Pinole 14
531 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Background – Organizational Structure 


ORGANIZATIONAL STRUCTURE 


City of Pinole 15
532 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Background – Organizational Structure 


Page intentionally blank 


City of Pinole 16
533 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Budget Development Process and Budget Award 


Budget Development Process and Budget Award 


City of Pinole 17
534 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Budget Development Process and Budget Award 


Page intentionally blank 


City of Pinole 18
535 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Budget Development Process and Budget Award 


BUDGET DEVELOPMENT PROCESS 


The City’s budget is created through a collaborative, iterative process involving the City 
Council, community, and City staff. The City’s budget development process is considered 
an “incremental” budget process, meaning that the budget for the upcoming year is 
developed based on the current year’s budget and includes incremental changes. 


City staff takes the following steps to create the budget: 


• Finance Department uses the current budget, which incorporates any mid-year
changes approved by the City Council, as the starting point;


• Finance Department creates a “baseline budget” for the upcoming year by
taking the ongoing revenues and expenditures included in the current budget
and factoring in known or assumed changes to revenues and expenditures
(i.e., forecasted changes to different revenue streams, general inflation, known
changes to debt service, etc.);


• Departments review and confirm the known and assumed changes
incorporated into the baseline budget;


• Departments submit requests for changes from the baseline budget to address
proposed special projects or increased service levels;


• Finance Department and City Manager consider department requests for
changes to the baseline budget and prepare a Preliminary Proposed budget
for the Finance Subcommittee and/or City Council’s consideration;


• Finance Department incorporates changes and prepares the Revised
Proposed budget for the Finance Subcommittee and/or City Council’s
consideration;


• Finance Department incorporates any final changes as necessary and submits
the Final Proposed Budget to the City Council for adoption.


City staff presented the General Fund baseline budget to the Finance Subcommittee on 
April 12, 2023 and to the City Council on April 25, 2023 (budget workshop). At the April 
25, 2023 meeting, staff asked the City Council whether it would like to add any special 
projects or other changes to the baseline budget. The City Council did not direct staff to 
add any additional items to the budget. Staff then prepared the Preliminary Proposed 
budget and the status quo ten-year financial forecast, which was to the City Council on 
May 16, 2023. At that time, the City Council did not direct staff to make any changes. City 
staff has prepared this Revised Proposed budget which will be presented to the City 
Council on June 6, 2023.  


City of Pinole 19
536 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Budget Development Process and Budget Award 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


City of Pinole 20
537 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Budget Development Process and Budget Award 


KEY MILESTONES OF THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUDGET AND CIP FOR FY 


2023/24 


 


 


 


March 14, 
2023


•Department Proposed FY 2023/24 Budget Requests due to Finance


April 12, 
2023


•Finance Subcommittee Meeting


•FY 2023/24 General Fund Baseline Budget


•Draft FY 2023/24 - FY 2027/28 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)


April 13-
20, 2023


•Budget Review Meetings


•City Manager and Finance Department meet with Department Directors to 
review and discuss proposed budgets


April 25, 
2023


•City Council Special Meeting (Budget Workshop)


•FY 2023/24 General Fund Baseline Budget


•Proposed Projects for FY 2023/24 - FY 2027/28 Five-Year Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP)


May 16, 
2023


•City Council Meeting


•Preliminary Proposed FY 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget


•Preliminary Proposed FY 2023/24 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)


•Preliminary Status Quo Ten-Year Financial Forecast for FY 2023/24 - FY 
2032/33


June 6, 
2023


•City Council Meeting


•Revised Proposed FY 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget


•Revised Proposed FY 2023/24 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)


June 20, 
2023


•City Council Meeting


•Adopt Final Proposed FY 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget


•Adopt Final Proposed FY 2023/24 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP)


•Adopt FY 2023/24 Appropriations Limit


City of Pinole 21
538 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Budget Development Process and Budget Award 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 22
539 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Budget Development Process and Budget Award 


BUDGET AWARD 


The City received its nineth consecutive Operating Budget Excellence Award from the 
California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO) for its FY 2022/23 budget. The 
City previously received the Meritorious Award for its FY 2005/06 through FY 2010/11 
budgets, and Outstanding Financial Reporting for its FY 1995/96 through FY 2000/01 
budgets. The award reflects the commitment of the City to meeting the highest principles 
of government budgeting. To receive this award, the City had to satisfy nationally 
recognized guidelines for effective budget presentation. 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 23
540 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Budget Development Process and Budget Award 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 24
541 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Revenue and Expenditure Summaries 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 25
542 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 26
543 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUMMARIES  


The City’s General Fund accounts for all general revenues received by the City. The 
General Fund supports various City operations, including primarily public safety. The City 
also has numerous other funds that account for revenue received and expended for 
specific purposes. 
 
GENERAL FUND REVENUE  


The major revenue sources for the General Fund are property tax, sales tax, utility users’ 
tax, intergovernmental tax, franchise fees, business license tax, and transient occupancy 
tax. The City’s Finance Department creates the estimates of these General Fund 
revenues for the budget using economic information obtained from several sources, 
including the State of California, Contra Costa County, and third-party consultants. 
Estimates of revenues generated by City departments are prepared by the respective 
department with assistance from the Finance Department. Each of these revenue sources 
is described in detail below. 
 
Total General Fund (including Measure S 2006 and 2014 Funds) revenue is projected to 
be $25.6 million, including transfers in, as summarized below. 
 


Revenue Category  FY 2023/24 
Budget 


% Total 
Budget 


 Property Taxes  $5,678,211 22% 


 Sales and Use Taxes  4,621,023 18% 


 Sales and Use Taxes - Measure S 2006 and 2014 4,972,000 19% 


 Utility Users Tax  2,085,485 8% 


 Franchise Taxes  794,658 3% 


 Transient Occupancy Tax 453,200 2% 


 Business License Tax 450,014 2% 


 Intergovernmental Taxes  2,319,918 9% 


 Public Safety Charges  1,432,539 6% 


 Other Revenues  558,094 2% 


 Transfers In   2,245,480 9% 


 Total  $25,610,623   


 
 
Property Tax 
 
Property tax is an ad valorem tax imposed on real property (land and permanently 
attached improvements such as buildings) and tangible personal property (movable 
property). The fixed statutory rate is 1% of assessed valuation.  Assessed value is based 
on the 1975 property values with subsequent increases limited to 2% or CPI growth, 
whichever is less. However, when there is a change in property ownership, property 
renovation or new construction, property is reappraised at its full current market value. 
Proposition 8 allows the County Assessor to decrease these assessed values when 


City of Pinole 27
544 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


property values decline and recapture these valuations back to the original amounts in 
the following years if property values increase. 
 
The General Fund receives on average 19% of the total ad valorem property taxes levied 
(excluding voter approved tax overrides pledged for the retirement of bonded debt) on 
property located within the City’s boundary (exclusive of the Redevelopment Project 
Areas).  Property tax settlements are received in December (55%), April (40%) and June 
(5%). Property tax is imposed and collected by the County.  Contra Costa County is on a 
Teeter Plan. The County absorbs the delinquencies under this plan. The chart below 
illustrates the breakdown of the agencies that receive the property tax dollar. 
 
The City uses property tax estimates provided by consulting firm HdL as the basis for the 
budget. For FY 2023/24, property tax is estimated to be $5.7 million, a 19% increase over 
the FY 2022/23 revised budget. The increase is largely due to the increase in residual 
property tax revenue that the City expects to receive from the former Redevelopment 
agency due to the retirement of outstanding debt.  
 


Property Tax Dollar Breakdown 


 


Sales Tax  
 
Sales tax is the General Fund’s single largest revenue source. The City’s 9.75% Sales 


tax is levied on all merchandise and includes the 1% Bradley Burns Sales Tax, and Local 


Sales and Use Taxes Measure S 2006 (0.5%) and Measure S 2014 (0.5%) both of which 


have no sunset date. The City uses sales tax estimates provided by consulting firm HdL 


as the basis for the budget. For FY 2023/24, General Fund sales tax, including Measure 


S 2006 and 2014, is projected to be $9.6 million, a 1% increase over the FY 2022/23 


revised budget. 


 


 


 


West Contra Costa 
Unified


34%


Pinole General 
Fund
19%


County General
14%


K-12 Schools ERAF
14%


Community 
College District


5%


East Bay Regional 
Park
3%


Community 
College ERAF


2%


Health Care, 
Library, EBMUD


5%


Other
3%


City of Pinole 28
545 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


 


Sales Tax Dollar Breakdown 


 


Utility Users’ Tax  
 
Utility Users’ Tax (UUT) is levied in accordance with Chapter 3.26 of the Municipal Code, 


amended in 2018 which levies an 8% tax on the value public utilities services consumed 


within the City limits for electricity, natural gas, and telecommunications.  Low-income 


households are eligible for exemption from payment.  The Electorate ratified renewal of 


the taxing authority in November 2018 with no sunset date. The City estimates UUT based 


on historical trends and industry resources. For FY 2023/24, UUT is projected to be $2.1 


million, an 8% increase over the FY 2022/23 revised budget.  


Franchise Fees  
 
Franchise tax is levied on organizations that use the public right of way to furnish gas 


(PG&E) (1%) and electricity (PG&E) (2%), refuse (Republic Services) (10%), and cable 


television (Comcast and AT&T) (5%). The various fees are delineated in franchise 


agreements and are paid directly to the city by these franchisees.  Estimates are based 


on historical experience considering contract amendments which impact future years. For 


FY 2023/24, franchise tax is projected to be $794,658, a 1% increase over the FY 2022/23 


revised budget.  


Business License Tax 
 
Business license tax is assessed on all businesses doing business within City limits in 


accordance with Municipal Code Title 5.  The City charges business license tax in 


accordance with the provisions of Government Code 37101.  Pinole’s tax is computed 


based on a flat tax of $160 (current) per year combined with a variable tax component 


based on number of employees engaged in each business. Estimates are based on trend 


State General 
Fund 


3.94%


Bradley-Burns
1.00%


County Mental 
Health/Welfare/P


ublic Safety
1.56%


Measure S 2006
0.50%


Measure S 2014
0.50%


County Public 
Safety (Prop 172), 


0.50%


Countywide 
Transportation 


Fund, 0.25%


BART, 0.50%


Contra Costa 
Transportation 


Authority, 0.50%


CCC Transaction 
& Use Tax, 0.50%


City of Pinole 29
546 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


analysis. For FY 2023/24, business license is projected to be $450,014, a 9% increase 


over the FY 2022/23 revised budget.  


Transient Occupancy Tax (Motel or Bed Tax)  
 
Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT) is a 10% tax levied by the City for the privilege of 


occupying quarters on a transient basis (Chapter 3.24 of Municipal Code).  This tax is 


imposed upon persons staying 30 days or less in a motel or lodging facility.  The tax rate 


is set at the discretion of the City Council, subject to ratification by the City’s electorate. 


For FY 2023/24, transient occupancy tax is projected to be $453,200, a 3% increase over 


the FY 2022/23 revised budget. 


Motor Vehicle In-lieu 
 
Motor Vehicle In-lieu (VLF) is the City’s share of motor vehicle license fees levied, 


collected and apportioned by the State.  VLF, also called the “motor vehicle in-lieu tax” is 


a tax on the ownership of registered motor vehicles which takes the place of taxation of 


this personal property.  The VLF is paid annually at the time vehicle licenses are renewed 


based on current value adjusted for depreciation. The budget projection is based on 


projections provided by the City’s property tax consultant HdL.  For FY 2023/24, VLF is 


projected to be $2.3 million, a 5% increase over the FY 2022/23 revised budget. 


Public Safety Charges 
 
Public safety charges are received for dispatch services provided to the cities of Hercules 


and San Pablo under an Intergovernmental Service Sharing agreement.  A portion of the 


costs of this activity are reimbursed by the City of Hercules and City of San Pablo.  Under 


the current agreement, the City’s recovers approximately 67% of the activity’s budget. 


The budget projection is based on the formula provided in the agreement. For FY 


2023/24, public safety charges are projected to be $1.4 million, a 2% increase over the 


FY 2022/23 revised budget. A new agreement is under negotiation as the current 


agreement expires June 30, 2023. 


Other Revenue 
 
Other revenue is made up of all other revenue sources, such as fees, permits, interest 
income, grants, reimbursements, and other miscellaneous revenue. These revenues are 
projected primarily using historical trend analysis. The FY 2023/24 budget assumes an 
average 1% increase over the FY 2022/23 revised budget.  
 
The City completed a comprehensive fee study that resulted in a number of changes to 
fees beginning in FY 2022/23. The City is still reviewing the fees for the Police Department 
and development impact fees and expects to present recommendations for changes to 
those to the City Council sometime during FY 2023/24.  


City of Pinole 30
547 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


 
Transfers In  
 
Transfers in shown in the FY 2023/24 budget comes from the Pension Section 115 


Trust to offset the increase in pension costs in the General Fund and Measure S Funds. 


The amount transferred is based on the difference between the City’s base year (FY 


2018/19) contribution toward employee pensions and the forecasted required City 


contribution in future years.  


GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 


General Fund revenues are not restricted to any specific use and can be expended on 
any allowable municipal purpose. For FY 2023/24, total General Fund expenditures are 
projected to be $34.5 million, including transfers out, as summarized below.  
 


Expenditure Category  FY 2023/24 
Budget 


% Total 
Budget 


Salaries and Wages $9,359,141 27% 


Employee Benefits 6,219,651 18% 


Professional/Admin Services 3,952,515 11% 


Contra Costa County Fire Protection District 5,391,485 16% 


Other Operating  292,711 1% 


Materials and Supplies 183,200 1% 


Interdepartmental Charges (774,328) -2% 


Capital Outlay 6,894,974 20% 


Debt Service 611,107 2% 


Transfers Out 2,373,775 7% 


 Total    $34,504,230    


 
 
Salaries and Wages 


The forecast for salaries and wages is based on the City’s current staffing level (116) full-


time equivalents (FTEs), future salary increases for different classifications already 


agreed upon in the City’s current labor memorandums of understanding (MOUs), and an 


assumption about salary increases for classifications after current labor MOUs expire (3% 


annually). The forecast includes a savings factor equal to 4% of total annual salary and 


benefits expenditures to account for savings resulting from position vacancies. For FY 


2023/24, salaries and wages are projected to be $9.4 million, am 18 % decrease over the 


FY 2022/23 revised budget. The decrease is due to the transition of 16 Fire Department 


staff to Con Fire. 


 


 


City of Pinole 31
548 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


Employee Benefits 


The cost of retirement benefits is the City’s annual required contribution for employees’ 


pension to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS). The City’s 


annual required contribution is determined by an annual actuarial valuation report, the 


most recent of which is as of July 2021. The forecast reflects the net cost to the City (the 


required total contribution minus the employee contributions). All classic employees 


currently contribute the required employee contribution plus a portion of the employer’s 


contribution for a total of 15%.  


Other benefits include employee medical/dental/vision care, workers’ compensation, and 


others. The benefits cost in the forecast is based primarily trends and information 


provided by service providers.  


For FY 2023/24, benefits are projected to be $6.2 million, a 17% decrease over the FY 


2022/23 revised budget. The decrease is due to the transition of 16 Fire Department staff 


to Con Fire. 


Professional and Administrative Services 


Professional and administrative services includes City Attorney services, temporary 


services, network and software maintenance, and equipment and building maintenance. 


Contract services with other government agencies, such as the County animal services 


and library services, are also included in professional services. This category is primarily 


projected based on historic trends. For FY 2023/24, professional and administrative 


services are projected to be $4.0 million, a 9% decrease over the FY 2022/23 revised 


budget. The decrease is mainly due to the reduction in non-personnel expenses resulting 


from the transition of the Fire Department to Con Fire. 


Contra Costa County Fire Protection District Fire Services Agreement  


Effective March 1, 2023, the City entered into an agreement with the Contra Costa County 


Fire Protection District (CCCFPD) to provide fire protection services to Pinole residents. 


For FY 2023/24, the cost is $5.4 million per the approved five-year agreement.  


Other Operating Expenses 


Other operating expenses include all other expenditure categories, such as 


travel/training, office expenses, utilities, indirect costs, and materials and supplies. This 


category is projected based on historic trends. For FY 2023/24, other operating expenses 


are projected to be $292,711, a 2% increase over the FY 2022/23 revised budget.  


 


 


City of Pinole 32
549 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


Capital Outlay  


Capital outlay includes non-major asset acquisition and improvements, such as computer 


equipment and furniture, as well as several major capital projects. This category is 


projected based on historic trends as well as estimated costs of capital projects. For FY 


2023/24, capital outlay is projected to be $6.9 million. 


Capital improvement projects are detailed in a separate Five-Year Capital Improvement 


Plan (CIP). Each fiscal year, capital needs are assessed and prioritized through the CIP 


planning process.  


Debt Service  


Debt service includes the payment of debt for the 2006 pension obligation bonds (POBs) 


that were issued to finance the City’s unfunded accrued actuarial liability with CalPERS. 


The future years are forecasted based on the long-term debt obligation schedule. 


Transfers Out  


Transfers out includes the transfers from the General Fund and Measure S to other funds 


to support Recreation programs, Pinole Community Television (PCTV), vehicle and 


equipment replacement. Transfers out also includes the transfer from the General Fund 


to the General Reserve Fund. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 33
550 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 34
551 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


GENERAL FUND 


(Including Measure S 2006 and 2014)


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21


Actual


FY 2021/22


Actual


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2023/24


Proposed 


Budget


Revenue by Category


311 - Property Taxes 4,514,755     4,091,345     4,307,208     4,776,626     5,678,211     


312 - Sales and Use Taxes 7,689,917     8,927,361     9,613,625     9,484,095     9,593,023     


313 - Utility Users Tax 1,809,832     1,939,726     2,063,773     1,934,150     2,085,485     


314 - Franchise Taxes 750,002       751,598       788,146       786,790       794,658       


315 - Other Taxes 826,504       795,839       929,466       852,500       903,214       


321 - Intergovernmental Taxes 1,952,717     2,034,203     2,108,808     2,215,948     2,319,918     


322 - Federal Grants -              -              -              -              -              


323 - State Grants 40,193         10,951         13,847         40,000         65,882         


324 - Other Grants 47,026         287,768       46,937         47,026         47,025         


332 - Permits 65,987         77,992         120,780       68,700         108,700       


341 - Review Fees 13,730         37,139         42,210         28,000         500              


342 - Other Fees 41,929         56,754         23,880         43,194         15,054         


343 - Abatement Fees 46,060         3,844           5,127           36,000         33,500         


351 - Fines and Forfeiture 16,874         13,166         10,411         22,050         22,050         


361 - Public Safety Charges 1,260,013     1,345,588     1,477,492     1,405,108     1,432,539     


370 - Interest and Investment Income 289,324       33,340         (134,495)      150,000       150,000       


381 - Rental Income 89,661         86,880         96,516         89,896         89,896         


383 - Reimbursements 23,257         83,285         16,341         18,674         16,928         


384 - Other Revenue 47,205         3,788           35,606         5,100           7,560           


392 - Proceeds from Sale of Property 13,855         83,209         240,182       1,000           1,000           


393 - Loan/Bond Proceeds 500,000       55,197         -              -              -              


399 - Transfers In from Section 115 Trust -              1,327,427     1,061,736     2,016,612     2,245,480     


399 - Transfers In from ARPA Fund -              -              -              4,090,010     


Revenue Total 20,038,840   22,046,398   22,867,595   28,111,479   25,610,623   


Expenditures by Category


40 - Salaries and Wages 9,182,685     9,687,549     10,550,396   11,462,312   9,359,141     


41 - Employee Benefits 5,315,443     5,492,537     6,030,608     7,496,535     6,219,651     


42 - Professional/Administrative Services 2,841,245     3,120,915     4,083,329     4,670,075     9,344,000     


43 - Other Operating Expenses 276,628       332,324       304,499       286,311       292,711       


44 - Materials and Supplies 152,349       148,389       261,505       229,200       183,200       


46 - Interfund/Interdepartmental Charges (807,690)      (916,482)      (838,609)      (683,039)      (774,328)      


47 - Asset Acquisition, Improvement, Disposal 1,031,960     1,397,824     697,550       3,308,553     6,894,974     


48 - Debt Service 606,554       558,607       608,736       596,107       611,107       


49 - Transfers Out 1,255,058     1,588,652     3,360,117     2,071,880     2,373,775     


Expenditures Total 19,854,232   21,410,315   25,058,131   29,437,934   34,504,230   


Expenditures by Department


10 - City Council 210,303       221,252       215,904       188,396       182,212       


11 - City Manager 206,565       603,505       527,117       615,943       590,960       


12 - City Clerk 183,241       243,065       327,468       586,347       624,354       


13 - City Treasurer 8,592           8,286           8,375           8,662           8,727           


14 - City Attorney 489,469       489,955       406,476       321,057       320,428       


15 - Finance Department 482,166       573,555       561,011       727,747       809,301       


16 - Human Resources 430,578       292,727       377,614       768,472       888,227       


17 - Non-Departmental 3,495,716     3,534,790     5,274,979     3,629,942     3,950,120     


18 - Information Systems 21,748         -              -              102,600       3,600           


22 - Police Department 8,057,519     8,495,554     9,847,359     10,535,459   11,062,112   


23 - Fire Department 4,514,810     5,429,808     5,100,962     5,564,428     5,571,985     


34 - Public Works 1,521,779     1,335,586     1,824,492     5,366,545     9,444,870     


46 - Community Development 217,153       173,504       263,181       546,464       625,599       


55 - Community Services 14,593         8,727           272,629       475,872       421,736       


64 - Sewer 50,563         


Expenditures Total 19,854,232   21,410,315   25,058,131   29,437,934   34,504,230   


Net Operating Results 184,609       636,084       (2,190,536)    (1,326,455)    (8,893,608)     
City of Pinole 35


552 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


 


 


 


Property Taxes, 
5,678,211 , 22%


Sales and Use 
Taxes, 9,593,023 , 


37%


Utility Users Tax, 
2,085,485 , 8%


Franchise Taxes, 
794,658 , 3%


Other Taxes, 
903,214 , 4%


Intergovernmental 
Taxes, 2,319,918 , 


9%


Public Safety 
Charges, 


1,432,539 , 6%


Other Revenues, 
558,095 , 2%


Transfers In , 
2,245,480 , 9%


General Fund Revenue by Type: $25,610,623


Salaries and Wages, 
9,359,141 , 26%


Employee Benefits, 
6,219,651 , 17%


Professional/Admin 
Svcs, 3,952,515 , 


11%


CCCFPD Fire 
Services Agreement, 


5,391,485 , 15%


Other Operating , 
292,711 , 1%


Materials and 
Supplies, 183,200 , 


2%


Interdepartmental 
Charges, (774,328), -


2%


Capital Outlay, 
6,894,974 , 19%


Debt Service, 
611,107 , 2%


Transfers Out, 
2,373,775 , 7%


General Fund Expendiures by Type: $34,504,230


City of Pinole 36
553 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City Council, 182,212 
, 1%


City Manager, 
590,960 , 2%


City Clerk, 624,354 , 
2%


City Treasurer, 8,727 
, 0%


City Attorney, 
320,428 , 1%


Finance Department, 
809,301 , 2%


Human Resources, 
888,227 , 3%


Non-Departmental, 
3,950,120 , 11%


Information Systems, 
3,600 , 0% Police Department, 


11,062,112 , 32%


Fire Department, 
5,571,985 , 16%


Public Works, 
9,444,870 , 27%


Community 
Development, 
625,599 , 2%


Community Services, 
421,736 , 1%


General Fund Expendiures by Department: $34,504,230


City of Pinole 37
554 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 38
555 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – Major Non-General Funds 


MAJOR NON-GENERAL FUNDS  


 
Aside from the General Fund, the City also maintains special revenue funds, capital 


project funds, and enterprise funds. These funds generate revenue from many sources, 


such as taxes, charges for services, and user fees. Below find descriptions of the major 


Non-General Funds.  


Special Revenue Funds 
 
Gas Tax Fund - 200 
 
The Gas Tax Fund accounts for the Highway Users Tax Account (HUTA) State imposed 
excise taxes on gasoline and diesel fuel sales within the City Limits.  These taxes are 
distributed primarily on the basis of population pursuant to formulas specified in Streets 
and Highways Code Sections 2105, 2106, 2107, 2107.5, and Section 2103. As a result 
of the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017 (SB1 Beall), funds received as part of 
the Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) Section 2106 are also 
accounted for in this fund.  Gas Tax funds are restricted for use in the construction, 
improvement, and maintenance of public streets.  These funds support both annual 
operating and capital projects related to streets. It is common for funds that support capital 
projects to accrue significant fund balances over multiple years while cities save 
resources over time to invest in large projects, which have greater economies of scale. 
For FY 2023/24, revenue is projected to be $1.0 million. Expenditures are projected to be 
$2.0 million for road maintenance projects. It is anticipated that approximately $934,586 
of fund balance will be used for capital projects. 
 


Recreation Fund - 209 
 
The Recreation Fund accounts for program fees, fundraising proceeds, and donations for 
Recreation programs.  Resources are used towards staffing and maintenance costs to 
operate the programs. The fund receives a transfer in from the General Fund to offset a 
recurring operating loss. For FY 2023/24, revenue is projected to be $1.3 million. 
Expenditures are projected to be $2.1 million. The budget assumes that Recreation 
programs to be open at full capacity during FY 2023/24.  


Building and Planning Fund - 212 
 
The Building and Planning Fund accounts for fees collected for building permits and plan 
check fees.  Fees collected are used to cover the cost involved in plan checks and 
inspections performed. The City recently conducted a fee study to determine the City’s 
total cost of providing certain services that have a specific beneficiary. The study 
recommended changes to the City’s building and planning fees, which is expected to 
result in increased revenue. Several large developments projects are anticipated to be 
initiated in FY 2023/24.  For FY 2023/24, revenues are projected to be $1.4 million. 
Expenditures are projected to be $2.2 million.  


City of Pinole 39
556 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – Major Non-General Funds 


 


Solid Waste Fund – 214 
 
The Solid Waste Fund accounts for funds received from Republic Services, Inc. from a 
surcharge it assesses on customer rates for solid waste services. These funds are set 
aside for future solid waste capital projects and for a rate stabilization fund. For FY 
2023/24, revenues are budgeted at $368,000 and expenditures are budgeted at 
$589,381. It is anticipated that approximately $221,831 of fund balance will be used for 
capital projects. 
 
Measure C/J Fund - 215 


The Measure C/J Fund accounts for special override sales tax revenues collected by the 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority (CCTA) and reapportioned to the cities for local 
street projects.  The City must submit a checklist each year to confirm compliance with a 
Growth Management Program to maintain eligibility for the funds.  Estimates of annual 
funding are provided by the CCTA, and jurisdiction allocations are based on a formula 
split (50/50) between population and road mileage. It is common for funds that support 
capital projects to accrue significant fund balances over multiple years while cities save 
resources over time to invest in large projects, which have greater economies of scale. 
For FY 2023/24, revenues are projected to be $1.2 million. Expenditures are projected to 
be $1.0 million.  
 
Growth Impact Fund – 276 
 
The Growth Impact Fund accounts for development fees collected to mitigate the impact 
of new development. Specifically, it provides for the expansion, design, construction, or 
upgrade to facilities, roadways, and equipment. The City collects impact fees for police, 
fire protection, municipal, community, wastewater, roadways, and drainage. For FY 
2023/24, revenue is budgeted $1.0 million due from developers for several large multi-
unit developments.  Expenditures are projected at $1.3 million for capital projects. It is 
anticipated that approximately $308,406 of fund balance will be used for capital projects. 
 
Housing Assets Fund – 285 


The Housing Assets Fund accounts for resources related to the affordable housing 
activities and portfolio of the former Redevelopment Agency. Funds must be expended 
for housing activities. The fund balance has increased in recent years due to the 
repayment of a significant loan due to the fund. For FY 2023/24, expenditures are 
projected to be $339,254 for housing administration activities. It is anticipated that 
approximately $284,254 of fund balance will be used for housing administration activities. 
 
 
 
 
 


City of Pinole 40
557 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – Major Non-General Funds 


Capital Project Funds 
 
City Street Improvements Fund – 325 
 
The City Street Improvements Fund receives a transfer of $250,000 per year from 


Measure S 2014 to fund road maintenance projects. It has a substantial fund balance due 


to the accumulation of unspent funds from prior fiscal years. For FY 2023/24, revenues 


are budgeted at $2.1 million due to anticipated grants from the West County Subregional 


Transportation Mitigation Program (STMP), CalTrans Highway Bridge Program, CalTrans 


Highway Safety Improvement Program, and Transportation for Livable Communities 


(TLC) Program. Expenditures are budgeted at $2.2 million for street improvement 


projects. It is anticipated that approximately $167,321 of fund balance will be used for 


capital projects. 


Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund - 377 
 
The Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund receives a transfer of $250,000 per year from the 


Measure S 2014 to fund road rehabilitation projects. For FY 2023/24, expenditures are 


budgeted at $758,624 for street rehabilitation projects. It is anticipated that approximately 


$508,624 of fund balance will be used for capital projects. 


Enterprise Funds 
 
Sewer Enterprise Fund -500 
 
The Sewer Enterprise Fund accounts for fees charged to residents and businesses for 


sewer service provided by the City’s Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP). Sewer user 


fees are charged in the amount specified by City Council Resolution (Section 13.04.040 


PMC).  Fees are used to operate, maintain, and renew the WWTP. The cost of operations 


is shared between the two cities using a cost sharing formula based on sewage inflows 


by each city. For FY 2023/24, revenue is projected to be $9.2 million. Expenditures are 


projected to be $24.1 million. It is anticipated that approximately $14.9 million of its 


projected fund balance will be used to complete several key capital projects. 


Pinole Community Television (PCTV) Fund - 505  
 
The Pinole Community Television (PCTV) Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures 


related to the operation of PCTV. Revenue is received from video production charges to 


other cities, Public, Educational, and Governmental (PEG) access fees, and the General 


Fund.  PEG fees are designated for equipment purchases. For FY 2023/24, revenue is 


projected to be $535,052. Expenditures are projected to be $682,056. 


 


City of Pinole 41
558 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – Major Non-General Funds 


Information Systems -525 
 
The Information Systems Fund is an internal service fund used to account for activities 
that provide technology goods or services to other City funds and departments on a cost-
reimbursement basis. The budget includes funding for routine operating activities as well 
as special initiatives identified in the City’s Information Technology Plan.  For FY 2023/24, 
revenue and expenditures are balanced with each projected to be $1.5 million.  
 
Fiduciary Funds 
 
Pension Fund – 700 
 
The Pension Fund accounts for funds in the City’s Section 115 trust, funded with one-


time General Fund resources, to offset growth in the City’s annual required contribution 


to CalPERS pension.  


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


City of Pinole 42
559 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


ALL FUNDS FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21


Actuals


FY 2021/22


Actuals


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2023/24


Proposed 


Budget


Revenue by Category


311 - Property Taxes 4,514,755   4,091,345    4,307,208    5,026,626   5,928,211        


312 - Sales and Use Taxes 7,689,917   8,927,361    9,613,625    9,484,095   9,593,023        


313 - Utility Users Tax 1,809,832   1,939,726    2,063,773    1,934,150   2,085,485        


314 - Franchise Taxes 778,835      776,957       810,080       839,762      847,630           


315 - Other Taxes 826,506      795,839       929,466       852,500      903,214           


321 - Intergovernmental Taxes 3,226,870   3,319,719    3,530,117    3,686,532   3,902,718        


322 - Federal Grants -             -              911,070       2,353,773   92,662             


323 - State Grants 317,822      383,315       290,576       769,292      1,243,319        


324 - Other Grants 752,777      677,915       785,671       1,733,337   2,241,952        


332 - Permits 376,690      342,120       601,210       620,083      586,583           


341 - Review Fees 367,649      243,014       398,529       1,089,242   405,169           


342 - Other Fees 121,809      109,215       116,892       395,647      461,517           


343 - Abatement Fees 46,060       3,844          5,127          55,600       33,500             


344 - Impact Fees 59,943       49,560        2,453,146    580,048      1,070,230        


351 - Fines and Forfeiture 68,576       41,235        39,392        67,050       87,050             


361 - Public Safety Charges 1,260,013   1,345,588    1,477,492    1,405,108   1,432,539        


362 - Public Works Charges -             -              -              -             -                  


363 - Sewer Enterprise Charges 7,093,734   7,414,842    7,764,868    8,266,176   9,154,209        


364 - Recreation Charges 379,124      128,296       311,782       379,636      359,786           


365 - Cable TV Charges 191,537      223,342       216,837       316,956      316,956           


370 - Interest and Investment Income 2,158,670   2,935,849    (2,978,741)   1,479,767   1,176,918        


381 - Rental Income 185,594      131,335       121,141       161,225      163,025           


382 - Concession Revenue -             -              -              -             -                  


383 - Reimbursements 408,597      606,594       444,545       411,154      407,064           


384 - Other Revenue 67,681       61,571        87,107        33,560       58,060             


385 - Indirect Cost Allocations -             -              -              -             -                  


392 - Proceeds from Sale of Property 13,855       83,209        688,940       1,000         1,000              


393 - Loan/Bond Proceeds 559,344      120,594       112,662       872,883      10,000             


399 - Transfers In 819,655      3,094,268    3,581,953    8,178,502   4,619,255        
Revenue Total 34,095,848 37,846,652  38,684,468  50,993,703 47,181,075      


Expenditures by Category


40 - Salaries and Wages 11,111,582 11,508,885  12,977,267  14,522,679 13,010,293      


41 - Employee Benefits 6,658,509   6,710,186    7,765,562    9,052,769   7,910,040        


42 - Professional/Administrative Services 4,794,326   5,136,136    7,179,480    9,170,159   13,652,920      


43 - Other Operating Expenses 1,583,741   1,565,131    1,773,766    1,601,912   1,681,788        


44 - Materials and Supplies 958,065      909,837       1,227,452    1,774,193   1,707,611        


46 - Interfund/Interdepartmental Charges 572,926      650,094       733,387       630,883      863,995           


47 - Asset Acquisition, Improvement, Disposal 2,606,766   4,629,080    4,711,084    11,965,066 30,786,879      


48 - Debt Service 1,569,641   1,455,787    1,415,202    2,207,731   2,218,583        


49 - Transfers Out 1,255,058   3,094,268    4,421,853    8,178,502   4,619,255        
Expenditures Total 31,110,614 35,659,404  42,205,053  59,103,895 76,451,363      


Expenditures by Department


10 - City Council 210,303      221,252       215,904       188,396      182,212           


11 - City Manager 206,565      603,505       527,117       615,943      590,960           


12 - City Clerk 183,241      243,065       327,468       586,347      624,354           


13 - City Treasurer 8,592         8,286          8,375          8,662         8,727              


14 - City Attorney 489,469      489,955       406,476       321,057      320,428           


15 - Finance Department 482,166      573,555       561,011       767,747      859,301           


16 - Human Resources 430,578      292,727       377,614       768,472      888,227           


17 - Non-Departmental 3,601,499   5,049,270    7,026,762    9,736,564   6,195,600        


18 - Information Systems 21,748       -              95,874        102,600      3,600              


19 - Cable Access TV 374,875      391,792       439,347       646,780      682,056           


22 - Police Department 8,630,931   8,823,952    10,153,924  11,113,181 11,946,816      


23 - Fire Department 4,514,810   5,429,808    5,100,962    5,564,428   5,571,985        


34 - Public Works 2,832,214   4,128,522    4,807,382    11,230,986 17,902,646      


46 - Community Development 2,420,250   2,093,699    3,154,647    3,494,421   3,372,112        


55 - Community Services 1,014,993   824,176       1,630,344    2,569,687   2,557,000        


64 - Sewer 5,688,381   6,485,839    7,371,846    11,388,624 24,745,339      


31,110,614 35,659,404  42,205,053  59,103,895 76,451,363      


Net Operating Results 2,985,234   2,187,249    (3,520,585)   (8,110,192)  (29,270,287)      
City of Pinole 43


560 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


Property Taxes, 
5,928,211 , 13%


Sales and Use Taxes, 
9,593,023 , 20%


Utility Users Tax, 
2,085,485 , 4%


Franchise Taxes, 
847,630 , 2%Intergovernmental 


Taxes, 7,480,651 , 
16%


Public Safety Charges, 
1,432,539 , 3%


Sewer Enterprise 
Charges, 9,154,209 , 


19%


Other Revenues, 
2,579,859 , 6%


Transfers In, 
4,619,255 , 10%


Other Taxes, 903,214 
, 2%


Permits and Fees, 
2,557,000 , 5%


All Funds Revenue by Category: $47,181,075


 


Salaries and Wages, 
13,010,293 , 17%


Employee Benefits, 
7,910,040 , 11%


Professional/Admin 
Svcs, 13,652,920 , 


18%Other Operating , 
1,681,788 , 2%


Materials and Supplies, 
1,707,611 , 2%


Interdepartmental 
Charges, 863,995 , 1%


Capital Outlay, 
30,786,879 , 40%


Debt Service, 
2,218,583 , 3%


Transfers Out, 
4,619,255 , 6%


All Funds Expenditures by Category: $76,451,363


 


City of Pinole 44
561 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


City Council, 182,212 , 0%


City Manager, 590,960 , 
1%


City Clerk, 624,354 , 1%


City Treasurer, 8,727 , 0%


City Attorney, 320,428 , 
0%


Finance Department, 
859,301 , 1%


Human Resources, 
888,227 , 1%


Non-Departmental, 
6,195,600 , 8%


Information Systems, 
3,600 , 0%


Cable Access TV, 
682,056 , 1%


Police Department, 
11,946,816 , 16%


Fire Department, 
5,571,985 , 7%


Public Works, 17,902,646 
, 23%


Community Development, 
3,372,112 , 4%


Community Services, 
2,557,000 , 3%


Sewer, 24,745,339 , 32%


All Funds Expenditures by Department: $76,451,363


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 45
562 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


City of Pinole 46
563 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21 


Actual


FY 2021/22 


Actual


FY 2022/23


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Actual Thru 


Mar-23


FY 2022/23


Projected    


Year-end


FY 2023/24 


Proposed


Prop to Rev 


Percent 


Change


General Fund (including Measure S 2006 and 2014)


Revenue


311 - Property Taxes 4,514,755     4,091,345      4,307,208     4,776,626    4,776,626          2,995,539      4,776,626       5,678,211 19%


Basic 1% Property Tax 2,595,604    2,770,607     2,946,085     3,285,675   3,285,675        1,701,685      3,285,675      3,278,749 0%


RPTTF and Passthrough Payments 1,919,151    1,320,738     1,361,123     1,490,951   1,490,951        1,293,854      1,490,951      2,399,462 61%


312 - Sales and Use Taxes 3,788,080     4,303,800      4,612,708     4,582,095    4,582,095          2,864,125      4,582,095       4,621,023 1%


312 - Sales and Use Taxes- Measure S 2006 1,951,039     2,309,123      2,501,974     2,451,000    2,451,000          1,602,302      2,451,000       2,486,000 1%


312 - Sales and Use Taxes- Measure S 2014 1,950,798     2,314,438      2,498,944     2,451,000    2,451,000          1,601,309      2,451,000       2,486,000 1%


313 - Utility Users Tax 1,809,832     1,939,726      2,063,773     1,934,150    1,934,150          1,739,524      2,074,092       2,085,485 8%


314 - Franchise Taxes 750,002        751,598         788,146         786,790       786,790                490,853          786,790          794,658 1%


315 - Other Taxes 826,504        795,839         929,466         852,500       852,500       731,222                 852,500 903,214        6%


Other Tax/Transient Occupancy Tax 444,453        446,105        487,687        440,000       440,000               331,343          440,000         453,200 3%


Other Tax/Business License 382,051        349,733        441,779        412,500       412,500               399,879          412,500         450,014 9%


321 - Intergovernmental Taxes 1,952,717     2,034,203      2,108,808     2,215,948    2,215,948          1,119,272      2,215,948       2,319,918 5%


322 - Federal Grants -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


323 - State Grants 40,193           10,951           13,847           40,000          40,000                     39,804            40,000            65,882 65%


324 - Other Grants 47,026           287,768         46,937           47,026          47,026                               -              47,026            47,025 0%


332 - Permits 65,987           77,991           120,780         68,700          68,700                   117,628          117,628          108,700 58%


341 - Review Fees 13,730           37,139           42,210           28,000          28,000                     49,174            49,174                  500 -98%


342 - Other Fees 41,929           56,754           23,880           43,194          43,194                     21,066            43,194            15,054 -65%


343 - Abatement Fees 46,060           3,844              5,127             36,000          36,000                     22,495            36,000            33,500 -7%


351 - Fines and Forfeiture 16,874           13,166           10,411           22,050          22,050                     11,467            22,050            22,050 0%


361 - Public Safety Charges 4,051             73,021           29,558           33,548          33,548                     30,227            33,548            33,548 0%


361 - Public Safety Charges/Dispatch 1,255,962    1,272,567     1,447,934     1,371,560   1,371,560        1,200,101      1,371,560      1,398,991 2%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 289,324        33,339           (134,495)       150,000       150,000                  96,624          150,000          150,000 0%


381 - Rental Income 89,661           86,880           96,516           89,896          89,896                     65,975            89,896            89,896 0%


383 - Reimbursements 23,257           83,285           16,341           18,674          18,674                     26,698            26,698            16,928 -9%


384 - Other Revenue 47,205           3,788              35,606           5,100            5,100                       12,054            12,054               7,560 48%


392 - Proceeds from Sale of Property 13,855           83,209           240,182         1,000            1,000                          2,760              2,760               1,000 0%


393 - Loan/Bond Proceeds 500,000        55,197           -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Revenue Total 20,038,840   20,718,970   21,805,859   22,004,857  22,004,857  14,840,218   22,231,639  23,365,143   6%


399 - Transfers In -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   


399 - Transfers In from Section 115 Pension Fund -                 1,327,427      1,061,736     2,016,612    2,016,612                         -        2,016,612       2,245,480 11%


399 - Transfers In from ARPA Fund 4,090,010    4,090,010          4,071,404      4,090,010 100%


Sources Total 20,038,840   22,046,397   22,867,595   28,111,479  28,111,479  18,911,622   28,338,261  25,610,623   -9%


Fund: 100 - General Fund


Expenditures


Division: 110 - City Council Total: 163,703        215,352         215,904         170,496       182,496                149,921          182,496          182,212 0%


Division: 111 - City Manager Total: 206,565        603,505         527,117         615,943       615,943                410,795          615,943          590,960 -4%


Division: 112 - City Clerk Total: 183,241        243,065         327,468         586,347       586,347                366,780          586,347          624,354 6%


Division: 113 - City Treasurer Total: 8,592             8,286              8,375             8,662            8,662                          5,732              8,662               8,727 1%


Division: 114 - City Attorney Total: 462,151        489,955         406,476         321,057       321,057                378,073          321,057          320,428 0%


114 - City Attorney Services 721,388        763,076        833,500        583,740       583,740               604,119          583,740         596,245 2%


114 - City Attorney Indirect Cost Allocations (259,237)      (273,121)       (427,024)       (262,683)     (262,683)            (226,046)        (262,683)        (275,817) 5%


Division: 115 - Finance Department Total: 477,675        571,900         560,362         627,847       722,847                472,619          722,847          804,401 11%


Division: 116 - Human Resources Total: 430,578        292,727         377,614         768,472       768,472                514,484          768,472          888,227 16%


Division: 117 - General Government Total: 1,704,538     1,387,531      1,306,126     961,955       961,955             1,068,717      1,068,717          965,238 0%


Administrative Total 3,637,043     3,812,321      3,729,442     4,060,779    4,167,779    3,367,121     4,274,540     4,384,546     5%


Division: 221 - Police Operations Total: 3,335,075     3,802,334      4,433,521     4,892,111    4,892,111          3,697,884      4,892,111       5,440,241 11%


Division: 222 - Police Support Services Total: 908,771        1,087,828      1,118,708     1,538,502    1,538,502             922,295      1,538,502       1,494,478 -3%


Division: 223 - Dispatch WBCC Total: 1,878,391     1,988,812      2,215,114     2,169,105    2,169,105          1,796,784      2,169,105       2,315,202 7%


Division: 231 - Fire Total: 3,195,023     4,604,922      3,992,507     4,212,704    4,212,704          3,401,853      4,212,704       3,842,727 -9%


Public Safety Total 9,317,260     11,483,896   11,759,851   12,812,422  12,812,422  9,818,816     12,812,422  13,092,647   2%


Division: 341 - Administration/Engineering Total: 273,487        151,103         219,407         736,363       742,363                299,841          398,452          655,449 -12%


Division: 342 - Road Maintenance Total: 28,451           32,157           62,776           212,969       212,969                  58,114            99,367          625,824 194%


Division: 343 - Facility Maintenance Total: 457,490        513,141         552,239         611,147       611,147                473,057          611,147          715,442 17%


Division: 345 - Park Maintenance Total: 228,811        253,021         276,594         539,309       539,309                203,817          307,034          372,315 -31%


Public Works Total 988,239        949,421         1,111,016     2,099,788    2,105,788    1,034,828     1,416,000     2,369,030     13%


Division: 461 - Planning Total: 4,683             10,583           64,712           77,192          77,192                     51,469            98,550            16,713 -78%


Division: 465 - Code Enforcement Total: 169,010        162,921         198,324         253,452       272,452                160,040          272,452          281,894 3%


Division: 466 - Economic Development Total: -                 -                  145                 176,820       176,820                  78,276          124,728          306,992 74%


Community Development Total 173,693        173,504         263,181         507,464       526,464       289,785        495,730        605,599        15%


Division: 551 - Recreation Admin Total 253,414         454022 454,022       217,704        454,022        43,600           -90%


Division: 560 - Library Services Total: -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -                       -            182,585 100%


Division: 561 - Animal Control Services Total: -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -                       -            169,701 100%


Recreation Total -                 -                  253,414         454,022       454,022       217,704        454,022        395,886        -13%


481 - Debt Service 536,120        558,607         608,736         596,107       596,107                596,045          596,107          611,107 3%


Sub-Total 14,652,356   16,977,749   17,725,639   20,530,582  20,662,582  15,324,299   20,048,821  21,458,815   4%


499 - Transfers Out 562,558        921,762         2,667,216     1,353,880    1,353,880          1,353,880      2,406,835       1,590,275 17%


Expenditure Total: 15,214,914   17,899,511   20,392,855   21,884,462  22,016,462  16,678,179   22,455,656  23,049,090   5% 


City of Pinole 47
564 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21 


Actual


FY 2021/22 


Actual


FY 2022/23


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Actual Thru 


Mar-23


FY 2022/23


Projected    


Year-end


FY 2023/24 


Proposed


Prop to Rev 


Percent 


Change


Fund: 105 - Measure S 2006 Fund


Expenditures


Division: 115 - Finance Department Total: 2,246             300                 475                 2,450            2,450                          1,367              2,450               2,450 0%


Division: 221 - Police Operations Total: 1,476,686     1,443,123      1,589,658     1,718,135    1,718,135          1,016,861      1,718,135       1,697,340 -1%


Division: 222 - Police Support Services Total: 330,507         -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Division: 223 - Dispatch WBCC Total: 1,955             -                  -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Division: 231 - Fire Total: 1,018,699     457,612         682,546         727,182       777,182                572,427          777,182          780,955 0%


Expenditure Total: 2,499,586     1,901,034      2,603,185     2,447,767    2,497,767    1,590,655     2,497,767     2,480,745     -1%


Fund: 106 - Measure S 2014 Fund


Expenditures


Division: 110 - City Council Total: 46,600           5,900              -                  5,900            5,900                                 -                5,900                      -   -100%


Division: 114 - City Attorney Total: 27,318           -                  -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Division: 115 - Finance Department Total: 2,246             1,356              175                 2,450            2,450                          1,667              2,450               2,450 0%


Division: 117 - General Government Total: 692,500        666,890         692,901         718,000       718,000                718,000          718,000          783,500 9%


Division: 118 - Information Systems Total: 21,748           -                  -                  102,600       102,600                            -                       -                 3,600 -96%


Administrative Total 790,412        674,146         693,076         828,950       828,950       719,667        726,350        789,550        -5%


Division: 221 - Police Operations Total: 363,908        70,953           59,161           110,000       110,000                  37,269          110,000                      -   -100%


Division: 222 - Police Support Services Total: 67,734           102,505         100,690         107,606       107,606                  82,274          107,606          114,852 7%


Division: 223 - Dispatch WBCC Total: 25,000           -                  -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Division: 231 - Fire Total: 301,089        367,274         425,909         574,542       574,542                452,289          574,542          948,303 65%


Public Safety Total 757,731        540,731         585,760         792,148       792,148       571,832        792,148        1,063,155     34%


Division: 341 - Administration/Engineering Total: -                 59,825           70,077           296,518       296,518                  46,938          296,518          225,317 -24%


Division: 342 - Road Maintenance Total: 29,210           66,590           153,392         627,512       824,675                  50,756          824,675       1,786,888 117%


Division: 343 - Facility Maintenance Total: 131,848        165,352         352,421         1,298,025    1,058,655             132,459          908,655       3,296,097 211%


Division: 344 - NPDES Storm Drain Total: 13,759           5,562              28,290           418,460       418,460                     2,502            10,000       1,157,098 177%


Division: 345 - Park Maintenance Total: 358,722        88,836           109,297         359,449       549,449                  30,426          549,449          610,440 11%


Division: 642 - Sewer Collections Total: -                 -                  50,563           -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Public Works Total 533,539        386,165         764,039         2,999,964    3,147,757    263,081        2,589,297     7,075,840     125%


Division: 461 - Planning Total: 14,030           -                  -                  20,000          20,000                               -              20,000                      -   0%


Division: 465 - Code Enforcement Total: 29,430           -                  -                  -                -                                     -                        -   0%


Division: 466 - Economic Development Total: -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -              20,000 0%


Community Development Total 43,460           -                  -                  20,000          20,000          -                 20,000          20,000           0%


Division: 551 - Recreation Administration Total: -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -                        -   0%


Division: 552 - Senior Center Total: -                 -                  19,150           7,000            7,000                          1,960              7,000                      -   -100%


Division: 553 - Tiny Tots Total: 14,593           -                  -                  4,850            4,850                                 -                4,850            15,850 227%


Division: 554 - Youth Center Total: -                 8,727              65                   10,000          10,000                               -              10,000            10,000 0%


Recreation Total 14,593           8,727              19,215           21,850          21,850          1,960             21,850          25,850           18%


Expenditure Total: 2,139,735     1,609,769      2,062,091     4,662,912    4,810,705    1,556,540     4,149,645     8,974,395     87%


General Fund and Measure S Expenditure Total 19,854,235   21,410,314   25,058,131   28,995,141  29,324,934  19,825,374   29,103,068  34,504,230   18%


General Fund and Measure S Net Results 184,605        636,083         (2,190,536)    (883,662)      (1,213,455)   (913,751)       (764,807)       (8,893,608)    


Fund Balance, July 1 11,982,999   12,167,604   12,803,687   10,613,151  10,613,151  10,613,151  9,848,344     


Fund Balance, June 30 12,167,604   12,803,687   10,613,151   9,729,489    9,399,696    9,848,344     954,736        


Fund: 150 - General Reserve Fund


Revenue


370 - Interest and Investment Income 319,153        35,654           (249,883)       -                -                122,919        76,500          -                 0%


399 - Transfers In 949,715         650,925       650,925       650,925        1,098,338     764,520        17%


Revenue Total: 319,153        35,654           699,832         650,925       650,925       773,844        1,174,838     764,520        17%


Expenditures


Expenditure Total:


Fund: 150 - General Reserve Net Results 319,153        35,654           699,832         650,925       650,925       773,844        1,174,838     764,520        


Fund Balance, July 1 7,137,963     7,457,116      7,492,770     8,192,602    8,192,602    8,192,602     9,367,440     


Fund Balance, June 30 7,457,116     7,492,770      8,192,602     8,843,527    8,843,527    9,367,440     10,131,960   


City of Pinole 48
565 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21 


Actual


FY 2021/22 


Actual


FY 2022/23


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Actual Thru 


Mar-23


FY 2022/23


Projected    


Year-end


FY 2023/24 


Proposed


Prop to Rev 


Percent 


Change


Fund: 160 - Equipment Reserve Fund


Revenue


384 - Other Revenue 43,459           -                  0 -                -                 -                 0 0%


392 - Proceeds from Sale of Property -                  17,000           0 -                -                 -                 0 0%


399 - Transfers In 85,000           85,000           85,000           85,000          85,000                     85,000            85,000          150,000 76%


Revenue Total: 85,000           128,459         102,000         85,000          85,000          85,000           85,000          150,000        76%


Expenditures


Division: 221 - Police Operations Total: -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -                        -   0%


Division: 342 - Road Maintenance Total: 104,242         120,000       120,000                  39,434          120,000          120,000 0%


Division: 345 - Park Maintenance Total: -                 -                  -                  80,000          80,000                               -              80,000            80,000 0%


Division: 461 - Planning Total: -                 -                  -                  5,000            5,000                                 -                5,000               5,000 0%


Expenditure Total: -                 -                  104,242         205,000       205,000       39,434           205,000        205,000        0%


Fund: 160 - EQUIPMENT RESERVE Net Results 85,000           128,459         (2,242)            (120,000)      (120,000)      45,566           (120,000)       (55,000)         


Fund Balance, July 1 29,949           114,949         243,408         241,166       241,166       241,166        121,166        


Fund Balance, June 30 114,949        243,408         241,166         121,166       121,166       121,166        66,166           


Fund: 200 - Gas Tax Fund


Revenue


321 - Intergovernmental Taxes 789,998        795,113         850,633         990,635       990,635                648,347          990,635       1,033,764 4%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 18,024           1,878              (5,931)            5,000            5,000                          9,626              5,000               5,000 0%


383 - Reimbursements 9,074              18,050           7,636            7,636                          1,417              7,636               7,636 0%


Revenue Total: 808,022        806,065         862,752         1,003,271    1,003,271    659,390        1,003,271     1,046,400     4%


Expenditures


Division: 341 - Administration/Engineering Total: 2023 0 0 -                2,064             2,064             -                 0%


Division: 342 - Road Maintenance Total: 577,100        1,374,969      489,964         1,144,557    1,194,557             424,635      1,194,557       1,980,986 66%


Expenditure Total: 577,100        1,376,992      489,964         1,144,557    1,194,557    426,699        1,196,621     1,980,986     66%


Fund: 200 - Gas Tax Fund Net Results 230,922        (570,927)        372,787         (141,286)      (191,286)      232,690        (193,350)       (934,586)       


Fund Balance, July 1 696,522        927,444         356,517         729,304       729,304       729,304        535,954        


Fund Balance, June 30 927,444        356,517         729,304         588,018       538,018       535,954        (398,632)       


Fund: 201 - Restricted Real Estate Maintenance Fund


Revenue


342 - Other Fees 475                475                 475                 3,175            3,175                             475              3,175               3,175 0%


381 - Rental Income 3,787             34,150           -                  36,816          36,816                               -              36,816            36,816 0%


384 - Other Revenue -                 -                  2,700             -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Revenue Total: 4,262             34,625           3,175             39,991          39,991          475                39,991          39,991           0%


Expenditures


Division: 343 - Facility Maintenance Total: 24,414           20,118           19,478           26,000          26,000                     12,630            26,000            26,000 0%


Expenditure Total: 24,414           20,118           19,478           26,000          26,000          12,630           26,000          26,000           0%


Fund: 201 - Restricted RE Maintenance Fund Net Results          (20,152)             14,507           (16,303)           13,991           13,991           (12,155)            13,991            13,991 


Fund Balance, July 1 186,832        166,680         181,187         164,884       164,884       164,884        178,876        


Fund Balance, June 30 166,680        181,187         164,884         178,876       178,876       178,876        192,867        


Fund: 203 - Public Safety Augmentation Fund


Revenue


321 - Intergovernmental Taxes 185,306        187,448         265,501         170,266       170,266                159,520          245,094          239,353 41%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 7,117             1,269              (4,630)            2,500            2,500                          5,527              2,500               2,500 0%


Revenue Total: 192,423        188,717         260,870         172,766       172,766       165,047        247,594        241,853        40%


Expenditures


Division: 221 - Police Operations Total: 179,741        143,643         154,595         387,365       387,365                141,766          387,365          482,009 24%


Expenditure Total: 179,741        143,643         154,595         387,365       387,365       141,766        387,365        482,009        24%


Fund: 203 - Public Safety Augmentation Fund Net Results           12,682             45,074          106,275       (214,599)       (214,599)            23,281        (139,771)        (240,156)


Fund Balance, July 1 353,158        365,840         410,914         517,190       517,190       517,190        377,419        


Fund Balance, June 30 365,840        410,914         517,190         302,591       302,591       377,419        137,263        


Fund: 204 - Police Grants Fund


Revenue


323 - State Grants 9,197             -                  -                  -                -                                     -                        -   0%


324 - Other Grants 300,500        -                  -                  -                -                                     -                        -   0%


384 - Other Revenue -                  -                -                                     -                        -   0%


Revenue Total: 309,697        -                  -                  -                -                -                 -                 -                 0%


399 - Transfers In -                 29,428           -                  -                -                                     -                        -   0%


Sources Total 309,697        29,428           -                  -                -                -                 -                 -                 0%


Expenditures


Division: 227 - Police Grants Total: 304,023        85,999           -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Expenditure Total: 304,023        85,999           -                  -                -                -                 -                 -                 0%


Fund: 204 - Police Grants Net Results               5,674           (56,571)                      -                       -                       -                        -                       -                        -   


Fund Balance, July 1 119,824        125,498         68,927           68,927          68,927          68,927          68,927           


Fund Balance, June 30 125,498        68,927           68,927           68,927          68,927          68,927          68,927            


City of Pinole 49
566 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21 


Actual


FY 2021/22 


Actual


FY 2022/23


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Actual Thru 


Mar-23


FY 2022/23


Projected    


Year-end


FY 2023/24 


Proposed


Prop to Rev 


Percent 


Change


Fund: 205 - Traffic Safety Fund


Revenue


351 - Fines and Forfeiture 46,640           27,491           28,821           45,000          45,000                     15,348            45,000            45,000 0%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 3,821             750                 (2,754)            1,500            1,500                          2,831              1,500               1,500 0%


Revenue Total: 50,461           28,241           26,067           46,500          46,500          18,180           46,500          46,500           0%


Expenditures


Division: 227 - Police Grants Total: 6,399             565                 9,219             21,059          21,059                        7,676            21,059            21,595 3%


Expenditure Total: 6,399             565                 9,219             21,059          21,059          7,676             21,059          21,595           3%


Fund: 205 - Traffic Safety Fund Net Results 44,062           27,676           16,848           25,441          25,441          10,504           25,441          24,905           


Fund Balance, July 1 163,240        207,302         234,979         251,826       251,826       251,826        277,267        


Fund Balance, June 30 207,302        234,979         251,826         277,267       277,267       277,267        302,172        


Fund: 206 - Supplemental Law Enforcement Svc Fund


Revenue


323 - State Grants 155,948        156,727         161,285         156,727       156,727                165,271          165,271          165,000 5%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 4,955             1,080              (4,472)            1,600            1,600                          5,086              1,600               1,600 0%


Revenue Total: 160,903        157,807         156,813         158,327       158,327       170,357        166,871        166,600        5%


Expenditures


Division: 227 - Police Grants Total: 60,170           98,192           113,750         111,067       111,067                  97,171          111,067          339,864 206%


Expenditure Total: 60,170           98,192           113,750         111,067       111,067       97,171           111,067        339,864        206%


Fund: 206 - Supplemental Law Enforcement Svc Fund Net Results100,733        59,615           43,063           47,260          47,260          73,186           55,804          (173,264)       


Fund Balance, July 1 168,604        269,337         328,953         372,015       372,015       372,015        427,819        
Fund Balance, June 30 269,337        328,953         372,015         419,275       419,275       427,819        254,555        


Fund: 207 - NPDES Storm Water Fund


Revenue


321 - Intergovernmental Taxes 259,103        260,430         255,408         253,272       253,272                154,312          253,272          253,272 0%


332 - Permits -                 -                  -                  -                -                              1,200                     -                        -   0%


370 - Interest and Investment Income (190)               51                   884                 150               150                              (775)                  150                  150 0%


384 - Other Revenue -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Revenue Total: 258,913        260,480         256,292         253,422       253,422       154,737        253,422        253,422        0%


Expenditures


Division: 117 - General Government Total: 2,222              -                  0 0 -                 -                 0 0%


Division: 342 - Road Maintenance Total: 10000 12,005          12,005          -                 12,005                     13,693 14%


Division: 344 - NPDES Storm Drain Total: 289,103        272,838         287,082         324,933       324,933                232,230 324,933                 351,076 8%


Expenditure Total: 289,103        275,059         297,082         336,938       336,938       232,230        336,938        364,769        8%


Fund: 207 - NPDES Storm Water Fund Net Results (30,190)         (14,579)          (40,791)          (83,516)        (83,516)        (77,493)         (83,516)         (111,347)       


Fund Balance, July 1 46,622           16,432           1,853             (38,938)        (38,938)        (38,938)         (122,454)       


Fund Balance, June 30 16,432           1,853              (38,938)          (122,454)      (122,454)      (122,454)       (233,801)       


Fund: 209 - Recreation Fund
Revenue


Division: 551 - Recreation Administration Total: 13,104           19,603           48,737           70,268          77,268                     11,358            77,268            82,981 7%


Division: 552 - Senior Center Total: 270,294        26,358           103,253         216,130       167,050                123,570          167,050          169,290 1%


Division: 553 - Tiny Tots Total: 110,474        41,022           124,659         172,021       138,539                111,101          138,539          141,596 2%


Division: 554 - Youth Center Total: 26,713           2,592              2,451             17,855          4,787                          6,259              6,259            13,500 182%


Division: 555 - Day Camp Total: 14,406           5,014              11,887           7,560            7,560                          5,799              7,560                      -   -100%


Division: 556 - Performing Arts Total: 2,630             -                  587                 -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Division: 557 - Swim Center Total: 31,407           63,959           95,420           63,500          82,500                     38,140            82,500            82,500 0%


Division: 558 - Memorial Hall Total: 10,982           3,649              3,308             10,316          10,316                               -              10,316                      -   -100%


Division: 559 - Tennis Total: 674                204                 289                 350               200                                110                  200                      -   0%


Revenue Total: 480,684        162,400         390,592         558,000       488,220       296,335        489,691        489,867        0%


399 - Transfers In 522,254        624,721         950,998         675,831       675,831                730,831      1,158,775          799,131 18%


399 - Transfers In from Section 115 Pension Fund -                 7,334              0%


Sources Total 1,002,938     794,455         1,341,590     1,233,831    1,164,051    1,027,166     1,648,466     1,288,997     11%


Expenditures


Division: 117 - General Government Total: 7,980             7,987              7,549             -                -                              5,358              5,358                      -   0%


Division: 551 - Recreation Administration Total: 187,153        273,358         532,479         694,990       713,850                399,357          589,094          825,617 16%


Division: 552 - Senior Center Total: 438,540        201,229         399,599         579,673       715,143                374,884          495,420          626,187 -12%


Division: 553 - Tiny Tots Total: 133,396        102,241         141,106         174,421       175,135                117,629          175,135          193,758 11%


Division: 554 - Youth Center Total: 140,656        110,557         111,936         247,067       241,921                108,825          141,181          335,802 39%


Division: 555 - Day Camp Total: 2,087             20,453           25,228           74,116          74,616                     25,236            74,616                      -   -100%


Division: 556 - Performing Arts Total: 221                -                  -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Division: 557 - Swim Center Total: 81,400           88,099           137,822         126,917       153,900                103,605          153,900          153,900 0%


Division: 558 - Memorial Hall Total: 10,587           13,214           5,162             14,200          14,200                        5,820            14,200                      -   -100%


Division: 559 - Tennis Total: 6,359             6,300              4,385             6,650            5,050                          2,618              5,050                      -   -100%


Expenditure Total: 1,008,380     823,437         1,365,264     1,918,034    2,093,815    1,143,332     1,653,954     2,135,264     2%


Fund: 209 - Recreation Fund Net Results (5,442)            (28,982)          (23,674)          (684,203)      (929,764)      (116,165)       (5,487)           (846,267)       


Fund Balance, July 1 63,585           58,144           29,162           5,488            5,488            5,488             0                     


Fund Balance, June 30 58,144           29,162           5,488             (678,716)      (924,277)      0                     (846,266)        


City of Pinole 50
567 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21 


Actual


FY 2021/22 


Actual


FY 2022/23


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Actual Thru 


Mar-23


FY 2022/23


Projected    


Year-end


FY 2023/24 


Proposed


Prop to Rev 


Percent 


Change


Fund: 212 - Building & Planning Fund


Revenue


315 - Other Taxes 2                     -                  -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


323 - State Grants -                  225,000       225,000                            -            225,000            40,000 -82%


332 - Permits 310,704        264,128         480,430         2,427,800    551,383                249,793          551,383          477,883 -13%


341 - Review Fees 353,919        205,875         356,319         1,020,000    1,061,242             353,794      1,061,242          404,669 -62%


342 - Other Fees 63,816           31,877           65,442           1,036,000    331,278                102,291          331,278          425,288 28%


343 - Abatement Fees -                  19,600          19,600                               -              19,600                      -   -100%


344 - Impact Fees 1,443              572                 87,049          87,049                           402            87,049            30,636 -65%


351 - Fines and Forfeitures -                 -                  -                  -                -                              6,065              6,065            20,000 100%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 12,265           (422)                3,072             7,000            7,000                      (12,542)              7,000               7,000 0%


383 - Reimbursements 7,360             -                  -                  -                -                                   32                    32                      -   0%


384 - Other Revenue (449)               -                  -                  6,000            6,000                                 -                6,000               6,000 0%


Revenue Total: 747,616        502,902         905,836         4,828,449    2,288,552    699,835        2,294,648     1,411,477     -38%


399 - Transfers In -                 192,000         481,051         -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Sources Total 747,616        694,902         1,386,887     4,828,449    2,288,552    699,835        2,294,648     1,411,477     -38%


Expenditures 0


Division: 461 - Planning Total: 431,016        422,064         749,792         1,183,849    1,183,849             752,809      1,183,849          926,742 -22%


Division: 462 - Building Inspection Total: 645,050        565,540         1,035,536     1,226,944    1,143,045             693,037      1,143,045       1,224,340 7%


Division: 465 - Code Enforcement Total: -                                    -   0%


Expenditure Total: 1,076,066     987,604         1,785,329     2,410,793    2,326,894    1,445,846     2,326,894     2,151,083     -8%


Fund: 212 - Building & Planning Net Results (328,450)       (292,702)        (398,442)       2,417,656    (38,342)        (746,011)       (32,246)         (739,606)       


Fund Balance, July 1 486,839        158,389         (134,313)       (532,755)      (532,755)      (532,755)       (565,001)       


Fund Balance, June 30 158,389        (134,313)        (532,755)       1,884,901    (571,097)      (565,001)       (1,304,607)    


Fund: 213 - Refuse Management Fund


Revenue


323 - State Grants 111,950        66,635           66,826           60,060          60,060                     46,444            60,060            60,060 0%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 7,176             1,008              (1,768)            6,000            6,000                          1,136              6,000               6,000 0%


392 - Proceeds from Sale of Property -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Revenue Total: 119,125        67,643           65,058           66,060          66,060          47,580           66,060          66,060           0%


Expenditures


Division: 344 - NPDES Storm Drain Total: -                  -                


Division: 346 - Waste Reduction Total: 93,143           210,444         106,591         167,825       167,825                  94,690          108,605          174,358 4%


Expenditure Total: 93,143           210,444         106,591         167,825       167,825       94,690           108,605        174,358        4%


Fund: 213 - Refuse Management Fund Net Results 25,983           (142,801)        (41,533)          (101,765)      (101,765)      (47,110)         (42,545)         (108,298)       


Fund Balance, July 1 309,195        335,178         192,376         150,843       150,843       150,843        108,298        


Fund Balance, June 30 335,178        192,376         150,843         49,078          49,078          108,298        0                     


Fund: 214 - Solid Waste Fund


Revenue


323 - State Grants 28,327           -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 27,628           5,804              (20,738)          8,000            8,000                       24,244              8,000               8,000 0%


383 - Reimbursements 375,749        347,367         386,514         360,000       360,000                321,043          360,000          360,000 0%


Revenue Total: 403,377        353,171         394,103         368,000       368,000       345,287        368,000        368,000        0%


Expenditures


Division: 342 - Road Maintenance Total: 2239.74 194240.94 257778 257,778       67,475           257,778                 164,381 -36%


Division: 343 - Facility Maintenance Total: 45,700           -                  -                -                                     -   -                                      -   0%


Division: 345 - Parks Maintenance Total: -                  425,000       125,000                            -   125,000                 425,000 240%


Expenditure Total: -                 47,940           194,241         682,778       382,778       67,475           382,778        589,381        0%


Fund: 214 - Solid Waste Fund Net Results 403,377        305,231         199,862         (314,778)      (14,778)        277,812        (14,778)         (221,381)       


Fund Balance, July 1 1,154,755     1,558,131      1,863,362     2,063,224    2,063,224    2,063,224     2,048,446     


Fund Balance, June 30 1,558,131     1,863,362      2,063,224     1,748,446    2,048,446    2,048,446     1,827,065     


Fund: 215 - Measure C and J Fund


Revenue


323 - Federal Grants -                 -                  -                  -                -                              2,463                     -                        -   0%


323 - State Grants -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -                       -            722,619 100%


324 - Other Grants 405,252        390,147         470,247         382,848       382,848                  21,965          382,848          421,638 10%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 23,857           6,297              (23,256)          8,000            8,000                       20,515              8,000               8,000 0%


Revenue Total: 429,109        396,444         446,991         390,848       390,848       44,943           390,848        1,152,257     195%


Expenditures


Division: 117 - General Government Total: 48,930           49,664           -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Division: 341 - Administration/Engineering Total: 82,819           111,905         118,988         186,999       186,999                  99,872          186,999          195,466 5%


Division: 342 - Road Maintenance Total: 18,651           -                  10,073           450,881       455,881                116,444          455,881          826,253 81%


Division: 343 - Facility Maintenance Total: -                  2,000            2,000                                 -                2,000               2,000 0%


Expenditure Total: 101,471        160,835         178,725         639,880       644,880       216,316        644,880        1,023,719     59%


Fund: 215 - Measure C and J Fund Net Results 327,638        235,609         268,266         (249,032)      (254,032)      (171,374)       (254,032)       128,538        


Fund Balance, July 1 1,493,934     1,821,573      2,057,182     2,325,448    2,325,448    2,325,448     2,071,416     


Fund Balance, June 30 1,821,573     2,057,182      2,325,448     2,076,416    2,071,416    2,071,416     2,199,954      


City of Pinole 51
568 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21 


Actual


FY 2021/22 


Actual


FY 2022/23


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Actual Thru 


Mar-23


FY 2022/23


Projected    


Year-end


FY 2023/24 


Proposed


Prop to Rev 


Percent 


Change


Fund: 216 - Rate Stabilization Fund


Revenue


370 - Interest and Investment Income -                 -                  (2,216)            -                -                2,194             2,194             -                 0%


383 - Reimbursements -                 31,171           17,499           15,000          15,000          -                 15,000          15,000           0%


399 - Transfers In -                 153,505         -                  -                -                -                 -                 0 0%


Revenue Total: -                 184,676         15,283           15,000          15,000          2,194             17,194          15,000           0%


Expenditures


Division: 117 - General Government Total: -                 -                  -                  -                 -                 0%


Expenditure Total: -                 -                  -                  -                -                -                 -                 -                 0%


Fund: 216 - Rate Stabilization Fund Net Results -                 184,676         15,283           15,000          15,000          2,194             17,194          15,000           


Fund Balance, July 1 -                 -                  184,676         199,959       199,959       199,959        217,153        


Fund Balance, June 30 -                 184,676         199,959         214,959       214,959       217,153        232,153        


Fund: 217 - American Rescue Plan Act Fund


Revenue


322 - Federal Grants -                 -                  533,606         2,302,505    2,302,505    4,071,404     4,071,404     -                 -100%


Revenue Total: -                 -                  533,606         2,302,505    2,302,505    4,071,404     4,071,404     -                 -100%


Expenditures


Division: 117 - General Government Total: -                 -                  533,606         4,090,010    4,090,010    4,071,404     4,071,404     -                 -100%


Expenditure Total: -                 -                  533,606         4,090,010    4,090,010    4,071,404     4,071,404     -                 -100%


Fund: 217 - American Rescue Plan Act Fund Net Results -                 -                  -                  (1,787,505)   (1,787,505)   -                 -                 -                 


Fund Balance, July 1 -                 -                  -                  -                -                -                 -                 


Fund Balance, June 30 -                 -                  -                  (1,787,505)   (1,787,505)   -                 -                 


Fund: 225 - Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund


Revenue


351 - Fines and Forfeiture 5,000             545                 -                  -                -                -                 -                 -                 0%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 2,139             235                 (766)               -                -                430                430                0 0%


Revenue Total: 7,139             779                 (766)               -                -                430                430                -                 0%


Expenditures


Division: 221 - Police Operations Total: 23,079           -                  29,000           58,231          58,231          16,348           16,348          41,236           -29%


Expenditure Total: 23,079           -                  29,000           58,231          58,231          16,348           16,348          41,236           -29%


Fund: 225 - Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund Net Results (15,940)         779                 (29,766)          (58,231)        (58,231)        (15,918)         (15,918)         (41,236)         


Fund Balance, July 1 102,502        86,562           87,341           57,576          57,576          57,576          41,658           


Fund Balance, June 30 86,562           87,341           57,576           (655)              (655)              41,658          422                


Fund: 226 - CASp Certification and Training Fund


Revenue


342 - Other Fees 7,282             6,668              8,172             -                -                7,005             7,500             -                 0%


Revenue Total: 7,282             6,668              8,172             -                -                7,005             7,500             -                 0%


Expenditures


Division: 462 - Building Total: -                 -                  -                  0 0 -                 0%


Expenditure Total: -                 -                  -                  -                -                -                 -                 -                 0%


Fund: 226 - CASp Certification and Training Fund Net Results 7,282             6,668              8,172             -                -                7,005             7,500             -                 


Fund Balance, July 1 13,467           20,749           27,417           35,590          35,590          35,590          43,090           


Fund Balance, June 30 20,749           27,417           35,590           35,590          35,590          43,090          43,090           


Fund: 275 - Parkland Dedication Fund


Revenue


344 - Impact Fees 26,227           16,027           -                  1,293,134    (0)                   -                 (0)                                        -   0%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 1,506             351                 (8,595)            -                -                -                 -                 -                 0%


Revenue Total: 27,733           16,378           (8,595)            1,293,134    (0)                   -                 (0)                   -                 0%


Expenditures


Division: 344 - NPDES Storm Drain Total:


Division: 345 - Park Maintenance Total: 799                -                  -                  -                -                -                 (22,654)         -                 0%


Expenditure Total: 799                -                  -                  -                -                -                 (22,654)         -                 0%


Fund: 275 - Parkland Dedication Fund Net Results 26,934           16,378           (8,595)            1,293,134    (0)                   -                 22,654          -                 


Fund Balance, July 1 (57,371)         (30,437)          (14,059)          (22,654)        (22,654)        (22,654)         (0)                    


Fund Balance, June 30 (30,437)         (14,059)          (22,654)          1,270,480    (22,654)        (0)                   (0)                    


Fund: 276 - Growth Impact Fund


Revenue


344 - Impact Fees 33,716           32,090           2,452,573     1,608,476    493,000       13,414           493,000              1,039,594 111%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 1,842             477                 (10,748)          -                -                29,842           -                 -                 0%


Revenue Total: 35,557           32,567           2,441,826     1,608,476    493,000       43,256           493,000        1,039,594     111%


Expenditures


Division: 343 - Facility Maintenance Total: -                 -                  -                  -                -                -                 -                 425,000        100%


Division: 344 - NPDES Storm Drain Total: -                 -                  -                  58,000          58,000          -                 58,000          58,000           0%


Division: 345 - Park Maintenance Total: -                 -                  -                  -                -                -                 -                 265,000        100%


Division: 642 - Sewer Collection Total: -                 -                  -                  -                -                -                 -                 600,000        100%


Expenditure Total: -                 -                  -                  58,000          58,000          -                 58,000          1,348,000     2224%


Fund: 276 - Growth Impact Fund Net Results 35,557           32,567           2,441,826     1,550,476    435,000       43,256           435,000        (308,406)       


Fund Balance, July 1 191,875        227,432         259,999         2,701,825    2,701,825    2,701,825     3,136,824     


Fund Balance, June 30 227,432        259,999         2,701,825     4,252,300    3,136,824    3,136,824     2,828,419      


City of Pinole 52
569 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21 


Actual


FY 2021/22 


Actual


FY 2021/22


Original 


Budget


FY 2021/22


Revised 


Budget


FY 2021/22


Actual Thru 


Mar-22


FY 2021/22


Projected    


Year-end


FY 2022/23 


Proposed


Prop to Rev 


Percent 


Change


Fund: 285 - Housing Assets Fund


Revenue


342 - Other Fees -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -                        -   0%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 62,291           7,374              (44,948)          50,000          50,000                     61,280            50,000            50,000 0%


381 - Rental Income -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


384 - Other Revenue 750                -                  41,492           -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


392 - Proceeds from Sale of Property -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


393 - Loan/Bond Proceeds 44,892           52,715           11,658           867,883       867,883                     7,783          867,883               5,000 -99%


Revenue Total: 107,933        60,089           8,202             917,883       917,883       69,062           917,883        55,000           -94%


Expenditures


Division: 461 - Planning Total: 47,382           53,436          53,436          38,169           53,436          60,373           13%


Division: 464 - Housing Administration Total: 69,688           44,092           50,199           274,039       335,249                  69,717 335,249                 278,881 -17%


Expenditure Total: 69,688           44,092           97,581           327,475       388,685       107,886        388,685        339,254        -13%


Fund: 285 - Housing Assets for Resale Net Results 38,245           15,998           (89,379)          590,408       529,198       (38,824)         529,198        (284,254)       


Fund Balance, July 1 7,781,270     7,819,515      7,835,513     7,746,133    7,746,133    7,746,133     8,275,331     


Fund Balance, June 30 7,819,515     7,835,513      7,746,133     8,336,541    8,275,331    8,275,331     7,991,077     


Fund: 310 - Lighting & Landscape District Fund


Revenue


321 - Intergovernmental Taxes 39,746           42,525           49,768           56,411          56,411                     28,741            56,411            56,411 0%


383 - Reimbursements 14,839           -                  7,500            7,500                                 -                7,500               7,500 0%


399 - Transfers In -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Revenue Total: 39,746           57,364           49,768           63,911          63,911          28,741           63,911          63,911           0%


Expenditures


Division: 347 - Landscape & Lighting PVR North Total: 18,297           19,545           22,221           32,315          32,315                     19,694            32,315            39,795 23%


Division: 348 - Landscape & Lighting PVR South Total: 19,875           34,055           20,389           29,810          29,810                        8,668            29,810            45,380 52%


Expenditure Total: 38,172           53,599           42,611           62,125          62,125          28,362           62,125          85,175           37%


Fund: 310 - Lighting & Landscape Districts Net Results 1,575             3,765              7,157             1,786            1,786            379                1,786             (21,264)         


Fund Balance, July 1 30,613           32,188           35,953           43,110          43,110          43,110          44,896           


Fund Balance, June 30 32,188           35,953           43,110           44,896          44,896          44,896          23,632           


Fund: 317 - Pinole Valley Caretaker Fund


Revenue


381 - Rental Income 15,000           11,250           -                  15,000          15,000                               -              15,000            15,000 0%


Revenue Total: 15,000           11,250           -                  15,000          15,000          -                 15,000          15,000           0%


Expenditures


Division: 345 - Park Maintenance Total: 15,360           11,268           656                 15,055          15,055                               -                       -              15,002 0%


Expenditure Total: 15,360           11,268           656                 15,055          15,055          -                 -                 15,002           0%


Fund: 317 - Pinole Valley Caretaker Fund Net Results (360)               (18)                  (656)               (55)                (55)                -                 15,000          (2)                    


Fund Balance, July 1 51                   (309)                (327)               (983)              (983)              (983)               14,017           


Fund Balance, June 30 (309)               (327)                (983)               (1,038)           (1,038)           14,017          14,015           


Fund: 324 - Public Facilities Fund


Expenditures


Division: 343 - Facility Maintenance Total: 50                   3,356              -                  60,000          60,000                               -              60,000            60,000 0%


Division: 345 - Park Maintenance Total: 10,000          10,000                               -              10,000            10,000 0%


Expenditure Total: 50                   3,356              -                  70,000          70,000          -                 70,000          70,000           0%


Fund: 324 - Public Facilities Fund Net Results (50)                 (3,356)            -                  (70,000)        (70,000)        -                 (70,000)         (70,000)         


Fund Balance, July 1 545,055        545,005         541,649         541,649       541,649       541,649        471,649        


Fund Balance, June 30 545,005        541,649         541,649         471,649       471,649       471,649        401,649        


Fund: 325 - City Street Improvements Fund


Revenue


322 - Federal Grants -                 -                  336,189         -                -                         146,416                     -              41,394 100%


323 - State Grants 535                149,002         20,292           97,747          97,747                        2,046            97,747                      -   -100%


324 - Other Grants -                 -                  268,486         1,303,463    1,303,463               42,760      1,303,463       1,773,289 36%


351 - Fines and Forfeiture 18                   -                  160                 -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


383 - Reimbursements 1,417              -                  -                -                            (1,417)                     -                        -   0%


399 - Transfers In 250,000        250,000         250,000         250,000       250,000                250,000          250,000          250,000 0%


Revenue Total: 250,553        400,419         875,127         1,651,210    1,651,210    439,806        1,651,210     2,064,683     25%


Expenditures


Division: 342 - Road Maintenance Total: 45,622           448,469         569,001         1,706,213    1,706,213             127,626      1,706,213       2,232,004 31%


Expenditure Total: 45,622           448,469         569,001         1,706,213    1,706,213    127,626        1,706,213     2,232,004     31%


Fund: 325 - City Street Improvements Net Results 204,930        (48,050)          306,126         (55,003)        (55,003)        312,180        (55,003)         (167,321)       


Fund Balance, July 1 1,089,984     1,294,914      1,246,864     1,552,990    1,552,990    1,552,990     1,497,987     
Fund Balance, June 30 1,294,914     1,246,864      1,552,990     1,497,987    1,497,987    1,497,987     1,330,666      


City of Pinole 53
570 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21 


Actual


FY 2021/22 


Actual


FY 2022/23


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Actual Thru 


Mar-23


FY 2022/23


Projected    


Year-end


FY 2023/24 


Proposed


Prop to Rev 


Percent 


Change


Fund: 327 - Parks Grants (Measure WW) Fund


Revenue


323 - State Grants -                 -                  -                  189,758       189,758       -                 189,758        189,758        


370 - Interest and Investment Income 533                83                   (285)               -                -                49                   -                 -                 


Revenue Total: 533                83                   (285)               189,758       189,758       49                   189,758        189,758        


Expenditures
Division: 345- Park Maintenance  Total: -                 -                  -                  189,758       189,758       47,721           189,758        189,758        0%


Expenditure Total: -                 -                  -                  189,758       189,758       47,721           189,758        189,758        0%


Fund: 327 - Parks Grants (Measure WW) Fund Net Results 533                83                   (285)               -                -                (47,672)         -                 -                 


Fund Balance, July 1 24,904           25,437           25,521           25,236          25,236          25,236          25,236           


Fund Balance, June 30 25,437           25,521           25,236           25,236          25,236          25,236          25,236           


Fund: 377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund


Revenue


322 - Federal Grants 41,275           -                -                                     -            541,462                      -   0%


383 - Reimbursements -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


399 - Transfers In 250,000        250,000         250,000         250,000       250,000                250,000          250,000          250,000 0%


Revenue Total: 250,000        250,000         291,275         250,000       250,000       250,000        791,462        250,000        0%


Expenditures


Division: 342 - Road Maintenance Total: 125,202        236,007         1,029,962     810,312       810,312                  61,674            85,988          758,624 -6%


Expenditure Total: 125,202        236,007         1,029,962     810,312       810,312       61,674           85,988          758,624        -6%


Fund: 377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund Net Results 124,798        13,993           (738,687)       (560,312)      (560,312)      188,326        705,474        (508,624)       


Fund Balance, July 1 649,783        774,582         788,574         49,887          49,887          49,887          755,361        
Fund Balance, June 30 774,582        788,574         49,887           (510,425)      (510,425)      755,361        246,737        


Fund: 500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund


Revenue


344 - Impact Fees -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -                        -   0%


363 - Sewer Enterprise Charges 7,093,734     7,414,842      7,764,868     8,266,176    8,266,176          4,709,624      8,266,176       9,154,209 11%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 277,807        44,066           (196,765)       100,000       100,000                194,443          100,000          100,000 0%


383 - Reimbursements 22,234           3,046             -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


384 - Other Revenue 366                 -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


392 - Proceeds from Sale of Property 67,262           -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Revenue Total: 7,371,541     7,481,142      7,638,777     8,366,176    8,366,176    4,904,067     8,366,176     9,254,209     11%


399 - Transfers In from Section 115 Pension Fund -                 -                  0%


Sources Total 7,371,541     7,481,142      7,638,777     8,366,176    8,366,176    4,904,067     8,366,176     9,254,209     11%


Expense


Division: 117 - General Government Total: 16,365           16,643           12,191           -                -                           16,369            16,369                      -   0%


Division: 641 - Sewer Treatment Plant/Shared Total: 3,979,819     4,355,345      4,718,679     6,229,371    6,289,371          3,325,563      6,289,371       9,751,938 55%


Division: 642 - Sewer Collections Total: 906,883        1,055,212      1,295,873     3,417,629    3,487,629             893,056      3,487,629    12,785,925 267%


Division: 643 - Sewer Projects/Shared Total: -                 4,275              -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Division: 644 - WPCP Equipment/Debt Service Total: 612,491        621,332         596,719         1,611,624    1,611,624             522,440      1,611,624       1,607,476 0%


Expense Total: 5,515,558     6,052,806      6,623,463     11,258,624  11,388,624  4,757,427     11,404,993  24,145,339   112%


Fund: 500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund Net Results 1,855,983     1,428,336      1,015,314     (2,892,448)   (3,022,448)   146,639        (3,038,817)   (14,891,130) 


Fund Balance, July 1 17,898,838   19,754,821   21,183,157   22,198,471  22,198,471  22,198,471  19,159,654   


Fund Balance, June 30 19,754,821   21,183,157   22,198,471   19,306,023  19,176,023  19,159,654  4,268,524     


Fund: 505 - Cable Access TV Fund


Revenue


314 - Franchise Taxes 28,833           25,359           21,934           52,972          52,972                     14,367            25,000            52,972 0%


365 - Cable TV Charges 191,537        223,342         216,837         316,956       316,956                162,424          316,956          316,956 0%


370 - Interest and Investment Income -                 -                  1,297             -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


383 - Reimbursements 341                 -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


384 - Other Revenue 3,000             -                  -                  5,000            5,000                                 -                5,000               5,000 0%


399 - Transfers In 147,804        174,853         197,184         160,124       160,124                105,124          187,577          160,124 0%


Revenue Total: 371,175        423,895         437,252         535,052       535,052       281,914        534,533        535,052        0%


399 - Transfers In from Section 115 Pension Fund -                 -                  -                0%


Sources Total 371,175        423,895         437,252         535,052       535,052       281,914        534,533        535,052        0%


Expense


Division: 119 - Cable Access TV Total: 374,875        391,792         306,964         444,432       444,432                252,449          372,789          473,459 7%


Division: 120 - Cable Access-Community Services Total: -                  4,642            4,642                               47                    90               1,713 -63%


Division: 121 - Cable Access-Contract Services Total: 132,383         197,707       197,707                119,103          156,427          206,884 5%


Expense Total: 374,875        391,792         439,347         646,780       646,780       371,599        529,306        682,056        5%


Fund: 505 - Cable Access TV Net Results (3,700)            32,104           (2,095)            (111,728)      (111,728)      (89,685)         5,227             (147,004)       


Fund Balance, July 1 (31,535)         (35,235)          (3,132)            (5,227)           (5,227)           (5,227)           (0)                    


Fund Balance, June 30 (35,235)         (3,132)            (5,227)            (116,956)      (116,956)      (0)                   (147,004)       


Fund: 525 - Information Systems Fund


Revenue


393 - Debt Proceeds -                 -                  95,874           -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


399 - Transfers In -                 -                  196,169         -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Sources Total -                 -                  292,043         -                -                -                 -                 -                 0%


Expense
Division: 118 - Information Systems Total: 795,641        702,008         792,558         1,449,406    1,791,006             882,440      1,791,006       1,488,121 -17%


461 - Indirect cost allocations (795,641)       (702,008)        (696,684)       (1,449,406)   (1,791,006)          (875,626)     (1,791,006)     (1,488,121) -17%


Expense Total: -                 -                  95,874           -                -                6,814             -                 -                 0%


Fund: 525 - Information Systems Net Results: -                 -                  196,169         -                -                (6,814)            -                 -                 


Fund Balance, July 1 (196,169)       (196,169)        (196,169)       0                    0                    0                     0                     


Fund Balance, June 30 (196,169)       (196,169)        0                     0                    0                    0                     0                     


City of Pinole 54
571 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21 


Actual


FY 2021/22 


Actual


FY 2022/23


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Actual Thru 


Mar-23


FY 2022/23


Projected    


Year-end


FY 2023/24 


Proposed


Prop to Rev 


Percent 


Change


Fund: 327 - Parks Grants (Measure WW) Fund


Revenue


323 - State Grants -                 -                  -                  189,758       189,758       -                 189,758        189,758        


370 - Interest and Investment Income 533                83                   (285)               -                -                49                   -                 -                 


Revenue Total: 533                83                   (285)               189,758       189,758       49                   189,758        189,758        


Expenditures
Division: 345- Park Maintenance  Total: -                 -                  -                  189,758       189,758       47,721           189,758        189,758        0%


Expenditure Total: -                 -                  -                  189,758       189,758       47,721           189,758        189,758        0%


Fund: 327 - Parks Grants (Measure WW) Fund Net Results 533                83                   (285)               -                -                (47,672)         -                 -                 


Fund Balance, July 1 24,904           25,437           25,521           25,236          25,236          25,236          25,236           


Fund Balance, June 30 25,437           25,521           25,236           25,236          25,236          25,236          25,236           


Fund: 377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund


Revenue


322 - Federal Grants 41,275           -                -                                     -            541,462                      -   0%


383 - Reimbursements -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


399 - Transfers In 250,000        250,000         250,000         250,000       250,000                250,000          250,000          250,000 0%


Revenue Total: 250,000        250,000         291,275         250,000       250,000       250,000        791,462        250,000        0%


Expenditures


Division: 342 - Road Maintenance Total: 125,202        236,007         1,029,962     810,312       810,312                  61,674            85,988          758,624 -6%


Expenditure Total: 125,202        236,007         1,029,962     810,312       810,312       61,674           85,988          758,624        -6%


Fund: 377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund Net Results 124,798        13,993           (738,687)       (560,312)      (560,312)      188,326        705,474        (508,624)       


Fund Balance, July 1 649,783        774,582         788,574         49,887          49,887          49,887          755,361        
Fund Balance, June 30 774,582        788,574         49,887           (510,425)      (510,425)      755,361        246,737        


Fund: 500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund


Revenue


344 - Impact Fees -                 -                  -                  -                -                                     -                        -   0%


363 - Sewer Enterprise Charges 7,093,734     7,414,842      7,764,868     8,266,176    8,266,176          4,709,624      8,266,176       9,154,209 11%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 277,807        44,066           (196,765)       100,000       100,000                194,443          100,000          100,000 0%


383 - Reimbursements 22,234           3,046             -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


384 - Other Revenue 366                 -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


392 - Proceeds from Sale of Property 67,262           -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Revenue Total: 7,371,541     7,481,142      7,638,777     8,366,176    8,366,176    4,904,067     8,366,176     9,254,209     11%


399 - Transfers In from Section 115 Pension Fund -                 -                  0%


Sources Total 7,371,541     7,481,142      7,638,777     8,366,176    8,366,176    4,904,067     8,366,176     9,254,209     11%


Expense


Division: 117 - General Government Total: 16,365           16,643           12,191           -                -                           16,369            16,369                      -   0%


Division: 641 - Sewer Treatment Plant/Shared Total: 3,979,819     4,355,345      4,718,679     6,229,371    6,289,371          3,325,563      6,289,371       9,751,938 55%


Division: 642 - Sewer Collections Total: 906,883        1,055,212      1,295,873     3,417,629    3,487,629             893,056      3,487,629    12,785,925 267%


Division: 643 - Sewer Projects/Shared Total: -                 4,275              -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Division: 644 - WPCP Equipment/Debt Service Total: 612,491        621,332         596,719         1,611,624    1,611,624             522,440      1,611,624       1,607,476 0%


Expense Total: 5,515,558     6,052,806      6,623,463     11,258,624  11,388,624  4,757,427     11,404,993  24,145,339   112%


Fund: 500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund Net Results 1,855,983     1,428,336      1,015,314     (2,892,448)   (3,022,448)   146,639        (3,038,817)   (14,891,130) 


Fund Balance, July 1 17,898,838   19,754,821   21,183,157   22,198,471  22,198,471  22,198,471  19,159,654   


Fund Balance, June 30 19,754,821   21,183,157   22,198,471   19,306,023  19,176,023  19,159,654  4,268,524     


Fund: 505 - Cable Access TV Fund


Revenue


314 - Franchise Taxes 28,833           25,359           21,934           52,972          52,972                     14,367            25,000            52,972 0%


365 - Cable TV Charges 191,537        223,342         216,837         316,956       316,956                162,424          316,956          316,956 0%


370 - Interest and Investment Income -                 -                  1,297             -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


383 - Reimbursements 341                 -                  -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


384 - Other Revenue 3,000             -                  -                  5,000            5,000                                 -                5,000               5,000 0%


399 - Transfers In 147,804        174,853         197,184         160,124       160,124                105,124          187,577          160,124 0%


Revenue Total: 371,175        423,895         437,252         535,052       535,052       281,914        534,533        535,052        0%


399 - Transfers In from Section 115 Pension Fund -                 -                  -                0%


Sources Total 371,175        423,895         437,252         535,052       535,052       281,914        534,533        535,052        0%


Expense


Division: 119 - Cable Access TV Total: 374,875        391,792         306,964         444,432       444,432                252,449          372,789          473,459 7%


Division: 120 - Cable Access-Community Services Total: -                  4,642            4,642                               47                    90               1,713 -63%


Division: 121 - Cable Access-Contract Services Total: 132,383         197,707       197,707                119,103          156,427          206,884 5%


Expense Total: 374,875        391,792         439,347         646,780       646,780       371,599        529,306        682,056        5%


Fund: 505 - Cable Access TV Net Results (3,700)            32,104           (2,095)            (111,728)      (111,728)      (89,685)         5,227             (147,004)       


Fund Balance, July 1 (31,535)         (35,235)          (3,132)            (5,227)           (5,227)           (5,227)           (0)                    


Fund Balance, June 30 (35,235)         (3,132)            (5,227)            (116,956)      (116,956)      (0)                   (147,004)       


Fund: 525 - Information Systems Fund


Revenue


393 - Debt Proceeds -                 -                  95,874           -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


399 - Transfers In -                 -                  196,169         -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Sources Total -                 -                  292,043         -                -                -                 -                 -                 0%


Expense
Division: 118 - Information Systems Total: 795,641        702,008         792,558         1,449,406    1,791,006             882,440      1,791,006       1,488,121 -17%


461 - Indirect cost allocations (795,641)       (702,008)        (696,684)       (1,449,406)   (1,791,006)          (875,626)     (1,791,006)     (1,488,121) -17%


Expense Total: -                 -                  95,874           -                -                6,814             -                 -                 0%


Fund: 525 - Information Systems Net Results: -                 -                  196,169         -                -                (6,814)            -                 -                 


Fund Balance, July 1 (196,169)       (196,169)        (196,169)       0                    0                    0                     0                      


City of Pinole 55
572 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – All Funds 


FY 2019/20


Actual


FY 2020/21 


Actual


FY 2021/22 


Actual


FY 2022/23


Original 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Revised 


Budget


FY 2022/23


Actual Thru 


Mar-23


FY 2022/23


Projected    


Year-end


FY 2023/24 


Proposed


Prop to Rev 


Percent 


Change


Fund: 700 - Pension Fund


Revenue


370 - Interest and Investment Income 1,010,988     2,792,382      (2,248,500)    1,140,017    1,140,017    518,409        492,464        837,168        100%


399 - Transfers In 0 0 0 0 -                 0 0%


Revenue Total: 1,010,988     2,792,382      (2,248,500)    1,140,017    1,140,017    518,409        492,464        837,168        100%


Expense


Division: 115 - Finance Total: -                 -                  -                  40,000          40,000          58,546           60,000          50,000           25%


Division: 117 - General Government Total: 81,434           86,587           87,037           -                -                -                 -                 -                 0%


Sub-Total: 81,434           86,587           87,037           40,000          40,000          58,546           60,000          50,000           0%


499 - Transfers Out -                 1,352,111      1,061,736     2016612 2,016,612    -                 2,016,612     2,245,480     11%


Expense Total: 81,434           1,438,698      1,148,773     2,016,612    2,056,612    58,546           2,016,612     2,295,480     12%


Fund: 700 - Pension Fund Net Results 929,554        1,353,684      (3,397,273)    1,100,017    (916,595)      459,863        (1,524,148)   (1,458,312)    


Fund Balance, July 1 17,159,258   18,088,811   19,442,495   16,045,223  16,045,223  16,045,223  14,521,075   
Fund Balance, June 30 18,088,811   19,442,495   16,045,223   17,145,240  15,128,628  14,521,075  13,062,763   


Fund: 750 - Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund


Revenue


311 - Property Taxes 250,000        265,900         6,220,857     250,000       250,000                171,210          250,000          250,000 0%


370 - Interest and Investment Income 82,725           3,185              (27,548)          -                -                           14,814            14,814                      -   0%


392 - Proceeds from Sale of Property 342,326         -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


393 - Loan/Bond Proceeds 14,452           12,681           5,131             5,000            5,000                                 -                5,000               5,000 0%


399 - Transfers In -                 -                  (839,901)       -                -                                     -                       -                        -   0%


Revenue Total: 347,176        281,766         5,700,865     255,000       255,000       186,024        269,814        255,000        0%


Expense


Division: 463 - Successor Agency to RDA Total: 300,640        352,370         1,008,557     227,378       227,378             4,617,016          227,378          251,177 10%


Expense Total: 300,640        352,370         1,008,557     227,378       227,378       4,617,016     227,378        251,177        10%


Fund: 750 - Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund Net Results46,536           (70,603)          4,692,309     27,622          27,622          (4,430,992)    42,436          3,823              


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 56
573 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund Long-Term Financial Forecast 


GENERAL FUND LONG-TERM FINANCIAL FORECAST  


The City periodically updates its Long-Term Financial Plan (LTFP). As part of the LTFP, 


the City creates a long-term forecast of baseline General Fund revenues and 


expenditures. Below find the ten-year General Fund forecast that will be incorporated into 


the next LTFP. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 57
574 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – General Fund Long-Term Financial Forecast 


 


 GE
N


ER
AL


 F
U


N
D 


SU
M


M
AR


Y


IN
CL


U
DE


S 
M


EA
SU


RE
 S


 2
00


6 
&


 2
01


4


20
18


-1
9


Ac
tu


al


20
19


-2
0


Ac
tu


al


20
20


-2
1


Ac
tu


al


20
21


-2
2


Ac
tu


al


 2
02


2-
23


Re
vi


se
d 


Bu
dg


et


20
23


-2
4


Fo
re


ca
st


20
24


-2
5


Fo
re


ca
st


20
25


-2
6 


Fo
re


ca
st


20
26


-2
7 


Fo
re


ca
st


20
27


-2
8 


Fo
re


ca
st


20
28


-2
9 


Fo
re


ca
st


20
29


-3
0 


Fo
re


ca
st


20
30


-3
1 


Fo
re


ca
st


20
31


-3
2 


Fo
re


ca
st


20
32


-3
3 


Fo
re


ca
st


RE
VE


N
U


E


PR
O


PE
RT


Y 
TA


X
3,


83
7,


16
7


   
   


4,
51


4,
75


5
   


  
4,


09
1,


34
5


   
   


4,
30


7,
20


8
   


   
 


4,
77


6,
62


6
   


  
5,


67
8,


21
1


   
  


6,
18


2,
55


7
   


  
6,


38
6,


58
2


   
  


6,
63


5,
02


0
   


  
6,


83
4,


07
0


   
   


 
7,


03
9,


09
2


   
   


 
7,


25
0,


26
5


   
   


 
7,


46
7,


77
3


   
   


 
7,


69
1,


80
6


   
   


 
7,


92
2,


56
1


   
   


 


SA
LE


S 
TA


X
3,


99
4,


72
0


   
   


3,
78


8,
08


0
   


  
4,


30
3,


80
0


   
   


4,
61


2,
70


8
   


   
 


4,
58


2,
09


5
   


  
4,


62
1,


02
3


   
  


4,
72


4,
31


0
   


  
4,


85
3,


17
3


   
  


5,
00


4,
32


8
   


  
5,


16
0,


97
2


   
   


 
5,


31
5,


80
1


   
   


 
5,


47
5,


27
5


   
   


 
5,


63
9,


53
3


   
   


 
5,


80
8,


71
9


   
   


 
5,


98
2,


98
1


   
   


 


M
EA


S 
S 


20
06


 &
 2


01
4 


LO
CA


L 
SA


LE
S 


TA
X


4,
28


6,
32


8
   


   
3,


90
1,


83
7


   
  


4,
62


3,
56


1
   


   
5,


00
0,


91
7


   
   


 
4,


90
2,


00
0


   
  


4,
97


2,
00


0
   


  
5,


08
4,


00
0


   
  


5,
22


2,
00


0
   


  
5,


38
4,


00
0


   
  


5,
55


4,
00


0
   


   
 


5,
72


0,
62


0
   


   
 


5,
89


2,
23


9
   


   
 


6,
06


9,
00


6
   


   
 


6,
25


1,
07


6
   


   
 


6,
43


8,
60


8
   


   
 


UT
IL


IT
Y 


US
ER


S 
TA


X
1,


81
2,


84
4


   
   


1,
80


9,
83


2
   


  
1,


93
9,


72
6


   
   


2,
06


3,
77


3
   


   
 


1,
93


4,
15


0
   


  
2,


08
5,


48
5


   
  


2,
16


8,
90


4
   


  
2,


25
5,


66
1


   
  


2,
34


5,
88


7
   


  
2,


43
9,


72
2


   
   


 
2,


53
7,


31
1


   
   


 
2,


63
8,


80
4


   
   


 
2,


74
4,


35
6


   
   


 
2,


85
4,


13
0


   
   


 
2,


96
8,


29
5


   
   


 


FR
AN


CH
IS


E 
TA


X
73


5,
31


1
   


   
   


75
0,


00
1


   
   


  
75


1,
59


8
   


   
   


 
78


8,
14


6
   


   
   


  
78


6,
79


0
   


   
  


79
4,


65
8


   
   


  
80


2,
60


5
   


   
  


81
0,


63
1


   
   


  
81


8,
73


7
   


   
  


82
6,


92
4


   
   


   
 


83
5,


19
4


   
   


   
 


84
3,


54
5


   
   


   
 


85
1,


98
1


   
   


   
 


86
0,


50
1


   
   


   
 


86
9,


10
6


   
   


   
 


IN
TE


RG
O


VE
RN


M
EN


TA
L 


TA
X


1,
83


6,
50


1
   


   
1,


95
2,


71
7


   
  


2,
03


4,
20


3
   


   
2,


10
8,


80
8


   
   


 
2,


21
5,


94
8


   
  


2,
31


9,
91


8
   


  
2,


38
5,


43
5


   
  


2,
46


0,
10


2
   


  
2,


54
4,


91
2


   
  


2,
64


5,
00


6
   


   
 


2,
74


9,
60


6
   


   
 


2,
85


8,
39


0
   


   
 


2,
97


1,
52


6
   


   
 


3,
08


9,
18


7
   


   
 


3,
21


1,
55


5
   


   
 


TR
AN


SI
EN


T 
O


CC
UP


AN
CY


 T
AX


48
5,


49
9


   
   


   
44


4,
45


3
   


   
  


44
6,


10
5


   
   


   
 


48
7,


68
7


   
   


   
  


44
0,


00
0


   
   


  
45


3,
20


0
   


   
  


46
6,


79
6


   
   


  
48


0,
80


0
   


   
  


49
5,


22
4


   
   


  
51


0,
08


1
   


   
   


 
52


5,
38


3
   


   
   


 
54


1,
14


5
   


   
   


 
55


7,
37


9
   


   
   


 
57


4,
10


0
   


   
   


 
59


1,
32


3
   


   
   


 


BU
SI


N
ES


S 
LI


CE
N


SE
 T


AX
39


9,
25


8
   


   
   


38
2,


05
1


   
   


  
34


9,
73


3
   


   
   


 
44


1,
77


9
   


   
   


  
41


2,
50


0
   


   
  


45
0,


01
4


   
   


  
46


3,
51


4
   


   
  


47
7,


42
0


   
   


  
49


1,
74


2
   


   
  


50
6,


49
5


   
   


   
 


52
1,


69
0


   
   


   
 


53
7,


34
0


   
   


   
 


55
3,


46
0


   
   


   
 


57
0,


06
4


   
   


   
 


58
7,


16
6


   
   


   
 


CH
AR


GE
S 


FO
R 


SE
RV


IC
ES


96
7,


31
8


   
   


   
1,


26
0,


01
3


   
  


1,
34


5,
58


8
   


   
1,


47
7,


49
2


   
   


 
1,


40
5,


10
8


   
  


1,
43


2,
53


9
   


  
1,


47
5,


51
5


   
  


1,
51


9,
78


1
   


  
1,


56
5,


37
4


   
  


1,
61


2,
33


5
   


   
 


1,
66


0,
70


5
   


   
 


1,
71


0,
52


6
   


   
 


1,
76


1,
84


2
   


   
 


1,
81


4,
69


8
   


   
 


1,
86


9,
13


8
   


   
 


O
TH


ER
 R


EV
EN


UE
86


7,
16


7
   


   
   


73
5,


10
0


   
   


  
77


8,
11


5
   


   
   


 
51


7,
34


1
   


   
   


  
54


9,
64


0
   


   
  


55
8,


09
4


   
   


  
56


3,
67


5
   


   
  


56
9,


31
2


   
   


  
57


5,
00


5
   


   
  


58
0,


75
5


   
   


   
 


58
6,


56
2


   
   


   
 


59
2,


42
8


   
   


   
 


59
8,


35
2


   
   


   
 


60
4,


33
6


   
   


   
 


61
0,


37
9


   
   


   
 


LO
AN


/B
O


N
D 


PR
O


CE
ED


S
1,


50
0,


00
0


   
   


50
0,


00
0


   
   


  
55


,1
97


   
   


   
   


-
   


   
   


   
   


  


   
  T


ot
al


 R
ev


en
ue


20
,7


22
,1


14
20


,0
38


,8
40


20
,7


18
,9


71
21


,8
05


,8
60


22
,0


04
,8


57
23


,3
65


,1
42


24
,3


17
,3


12
25


,0
35


,4
60


25
,8


60
,2


29
26


,6
70


,3
61


27
,4


91
,9


65
28


,3
39


,9
58


29
,2


15
,2


09
30


,1
18


,6
18


31
,0


51
,1


13


TR
AN


SF
ER


S 
IN


6,
29


0,
68


8


PE
N


SI
O


N
 T


RA
N


SF
ER


 IN
  (


FY
 1


9/
20


 a
llo


c)
85


1,
06


1


PE
N


SI
O


N
 T


RA
N


SF
ER


 IN
 


47
6,


36
6


1,
06


1,
73


6
2,


01
6,


61
2


2,
24


5,
48


0
2,


42
5,


11
8


2,
52


2,
12


3
2,


59
7,


78
7


2,
67


5,
72


0
2,


75
5,


99
2


2,
83


8,
67


2
0


0
0


   
  T


ot
al


 S
ou


rc
es


27
,0


12
,8


02
20


,0
38


,8
40


22
,0


46
,3


98
22


,8
67


,5
96


24
,0


21
,4


69
25


,6
10


,6
22


26
,7


42
,4


30
27


,5
57


,5
83


28
,4


58
,0


16
29


,3
46


,0
81


30
,2


47
,9


57
31


,1
78


,6
29


29
,2


15
,2


09
30


,1
18


,6
18


31
,0


51
,1


13


EX
PE


N
DI


TU
RE


S


SA
LA


RI
ES


8,
59


5,
48


5
9,


18
2,


68
5


9,
68


7,
54


9
10


,5
50


,3
96


11
,4


62
,3


12
9,


35
9,


14
1


9,
63


9,
91


5
9,


92
9,


11
3


10
,2


26
,9


86
10


,5
33


,7
96


10
,8


49
,8


10
11


,1
75


,3
04


11
,5


10
,5


63
11


,8
55


,8
80


12
,2


11
,5


56


BE
N


EF
IT


S 
- P


ER
S 


RE
TI


RE
1,


79
2,


25
9


2,
45


1,
41


1
2,


77
2,


01
5


3,
09


3,
18


4
3,


80
8,


87
1


2,
83


4,
29


0
3,


17
4,


40
5


3,
42


8,
35


7
3,


66
8,


34
2


3,
85


1,
75


9
4,


27
5,


45
3


4,
44


6,
47


1
4,


62
4,


33
0


4,
80


9,
30


3
5,


00
1,


67
5


BE
N


EF
IT


S 
- O


TH
ER


3,
07


9,
45


8
2,


86
4,


03
3


2,
72


0,
52


2
2,


93
7,


42
4


3,
68


7,
66


4
3,


38
5,


36
1


3,
53


7,
70


2
3,


69
6,


89
9


3,
86


3,
25


9
4,


03
7,


10
6


4,
21


8,
77


6
4,


40
8,


62
1


4,
60


7,
00


9
4,


81
4,


32
4


5,
03


0,
96


9


O
PE


RA
TI


O
N


S 
AN


D 
M


AI
N


TE
N


AN
CE


1,
91


7,
71


1
2,


46
2,


53
3


2,
68


5,
14


6
3,


81
0,


72
4


3,
29


8,
05


0
2,


14
4,


19
6


2,
40


8,
52


2
2,


48
0,


77
8


2,
55


5,
20


1
2,


63
1,


85
7


2,
71


0,
81


3
2,


79
2,


13
7


2,
87


5,
90


1
2,


96
2,


17
8


3,
05


1,
04


3


CC
CF


PD
 F


IR
E 


SE
RV


IC
ES


 A
GR


EE
M


EN
T


5,
48


4,
78


1
5,


70
4,


17
2


5,
93


2,
33


9
6,


16
9,


63
3


6,
41


6,
41


8
6,


67
3,


07
5


6,
93


9,
99


8
7,


21
7,


59
8


7,
50


6,
30


2
7,


80
6,


55
4


DE
BT


 S
ER


VI
CE


64
3,


84
6


60
6,


55
4


55
8,


60
7


60
8,


73
6


59
6,


10
7


61
1,


10
7


63
6,


10
0


65
1,


10
0


72
1,


10
0


72
1,


10
0


72
1,


10
0


72
1,


10
0


72
1,


10
0


84
8,


10
0


84
8,


10
0


CA
PI


TA
L 


O
UT


LA
Y


67
2,


01
0


1,
03


1,
96


0
1,


39
7,


82
4


69
7,


55
0


29
4,


99
3


33
2,


99
0


34
2,


98
0


35
3,


26
9


36
3,


86
7


37
4,


78
3


38
6,


02
7


39
7,


60
7


40
9,


53
6


42
1,


82
2


43
4,


47
6


TR
AN


SF
ER


S 
O


UT
21


,7
32


,8
33


1,
25


5,
05


8
1,


58
8,


65
2


2,
41


0,
40


2
1,


42
0,


92
5


1,
45


8,
75


6
1,


50
2,


51
9


1,
54


7,
59


4
1,


59
4,


02
2


1,
64


1,
84


3
1,


69
1,


09
8


1,
74


1,
83


1
1,


79
4,


08
6


1,
84


7,
90


8
1,


90
3,


34
6


To
ta


l E
xp


en
di


tu
re


s
38


,4
33


,6
03


19
,8


54
,2


32
21


,4
10


,3
15


24
,1


08
,4


16
24


,5
68


,9
22


25
,6


10
,6


22
26


,9
46


,3
15


28
,0


19
,4


49
29


,1
62


,4
10


30
,2


08
,6


62
31


,5
26


,1
50


32
,6


23
,0


68
33


,7
60


,1
22


35
,0


65
,8


17
36


,2
87


,7
19


Su
rp


lu
s/


De
fic


it
(1


1,
42


0,
80


1)
  


18
4,


60
8


   
   


  
63


6,
08


4
   


   
   


(1
,2


40
,8


20
)


   
   


(5
47


,4
53


)
   


   
 


-
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


(2
03


,8
85


)
   


   
 


(4
61


,8
66


)
   


   
 


(7
04


,3
95


)
   


   
 


(8
62


,5
81


)
   


   
  


(1
,2


78
,1


93
)


   
  


(1
,4


44
,4


39
)


   
  


(4
,5


44
,9


12
)


   
  


(4
,9


47
,1


99
)


   
  


(5
,2


36
,6


06
)


   
  


Fu
nd


 B
al


an
ce


, J
ul


y 
1


23
,4


78
,4


48
12


,0
57


,6
47


12
,2


42
,2


55
12


,7
26


,0
83


10
,5


35
,5


48
8,


88
9,


75
7


8,
12


5,
23


7
7,


69
9,


35
4


7,
00


6,
61


1
6,


06
2,


10
3


4,
94


9,
80


5
3,


41
1,


90
5


1,
69


7,
37


2
(3


,1
28


,4
39


)
(8


,3
67


,7
72


)


Pr
el


im
in


ar
y 


Fu
nd


 B
al


an
ce


, J
un


e 
30


12
,0


57
,6


47
12


,2
42


,2
55


12
,8


78
,3


38
11


,4
85


,2
63


9,
98


8,
09


5
8,


88
9,


75
7


   
  


7,
92


1,
35


2
   


  
7,


23
7,


48
9


   
  


6,
30


2,
21


6
   


  
5,


19
9,


52
2


   
   


3,
67


1,
61


2
   


   
1,


96
7,


46
6


   
   


(2
,8


47
,5


40
)


   
  


(8
,0


75
,6


38
)


   
  


(1
3,


60
4,


37
8)


   


Ge
ne


ra
l R


es
er


ve
s A


dj
us


tm
en


t
-


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
  


(9
49


,7
15


)
   


   
   


(1
,0


98
,3


38
)


   
 


(7
64


,5
20


)
   


   
 


(2
21


,9
98


)
   


   
 


(2
30


,8
78


)
   


   
 


(2
40


,1
13


)
   


   
 


(2
49


,7
18


)
   


   
   


(2
59


,7
06


)
   


   
   


(2
70


,0
95


)
   


   
   


(2
80


,8
98


)
   


   
   


(2
92


,1
34


)
   


   
   


(3
03


,8
20


)
   


   
   


Fu
nd


 B
al


an
ce


, J
un


e 
30


12
,0


57
,6


47
   


12
,2


42
,2


55
   


12
,7


26
,0


83
   


 
10


,5
35


,5
48


   
  


8,
88


9,
75


7
   


  
8,


12
5,


23
7


   
  


7,
69


9,
35


4
   


  
7,


00
6,


61
1


   
  


6,
06


2,
10


3
   


  
4,


94
9,


80
5


   
   


3,
41


1,
90


5
   


   
1,


69
7,


37
2


   
   


(3
,1


28
,4


39
)


   
  


(8
,3


67
,7


72
)


   
  


(1
3,


90
8,


19
7)


   


Pe
ns


io
n 


Fu
nd


 B
al


an
ce


, J
ul


y 
1


16
,2


87
,5


10
   


 
17


,1
59


,2
58


   
18


,0
88


,8
12


   
 


19
,4


42
,4


96
   


  
16


,0
45


,2
23


   
14


,4
59


,5
97


   
13


,0
02


,7
74


   
11


,2
86


,8
16


   
9,


37
9,


32
8


   
  


7,
29


5,
54


3
   


   
 


5,
02


2,
96


4
   


   
 


2,
54


8,
30


4
   


   
 


-
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


  
-


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
  


-
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


  


Re
ve


nu
es


 - 
In


te
re


st
92


4,
66


9
   


   
   


1,
01


0,
98


8
   


  
2,


79
2,


38
2


   
   


(2
,2


48
,5


00
)


   
   


49
0,


98
6


   
   


  
83


8,
65


7
   


   
  


75
4,


16
1


   
   


  
65


4,
63


5
   


   
  


54
4,


00
1


   
   


  
42


3,
14


1
   


   
   


 
29


1,
33


2
   


   
   


 
14


7,
80


2
   


   
   


 
-


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
  


-
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


  
-


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
  


Ex
pe


nd
itu


re
 - 


Tr
an


sf
er


s O
ut


1,
35


2,
11


1
   


   
1,


06
1,


73
6


   
   


 
2,


01
6,


61
2


   
  


2,
24


5,
48


0
   


  
2,


42
5,


11
8


   
  


2,
52


2,
12


3
   


  
2,


59
7,


78
7


   
  


2,
67


5,
72


0
   


   
 


2,
75


5,
99


2
   


   
 


2,
83


8,
67


2
   


   
 


-
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


  
-


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
  


-
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


  


Ex
pe


nd
itu


re
s


52
,9


21
   


   
   


  
81


,4
34


   
   


   
  


86
,5


87
   


   
   


   
87


,0
37


   
   


   
   


 
60


,0
00


   
   


   
  


50
,0


00
   


   
   


  
45


,0
00


   
   


   
  


40
,0


00
   


   
   


  
30


,0
00


   
   


   
  


20
,0


00
   


   
   


   
10


,0
00


   
   


   
   


Pe
ns


io
n 


Fu
nd


 B
al


an
ce


, J
un


e 
30


17
,1


59
,2


58
   


18
,0


88
,8


12
   


19
,4


42
,4


96
   


 
16


,0
45


,2
23


   
  


14
,4


59
,5


97
   


13
,0


02
,7


74
   


11
,2


86
,8


16
   


9,
37


9,
32


8
   


  
7,


29
5,


54
3


   
  


5,
02


2,
96


4
   


   
2,


54
8,


30
4


   
   


(1
42


,5
67


)
   


   
  


-
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


 
-


   
   


   
   


   
   


   
 


-
   


   
   


   
   


   
   


 


Fu
nd


 B
al


an
ce


, J
ul


y 
1


7,
45


7,
11


6
   


   
7,


49
2,


77
0


   
   


 
8,


19
2,


60
2


   
  


9,
36


3,
36


9
   


  
10


,2
93


,1
89


   
10


,7
05


,7
60


   
11


,1
46


,3
14


   
11


,6
04


,7
35


   
 


12
,0


81
,7


45
   


 
12


,5
78


,0
92


   
 


13
,0


94
,5


54
   


 
13


,6
31


,9
42


   
 


14
,1


91
,0


97
   


 


Re
ve


nu
es


 - 
In


te
re


st
35


,6
54


   
   


   
   


(2
49


,8
83


)
   


   
   


72
,4


29
   


   
   


  
16


5,
30


1
   


   
  


19
0,


57
3


   
   


  
20


9,
67


5
   


   
  


21
8,


30
9


   
   


  
22


7,
29


2
   


   
   


 
23


6,
64


1
   


   
   


 
24


6,
36


8
   


   
   


 
25


6,
48


9
   


   
   


 
26


7,
02


1
   


   
   


 
27


7,
97


9
   


   
   


 


Re
ve


nu
es


 - 
Tr


an
sf


er
 In


 
94


9,
71


5
   


   
   


  
1,


09
8,


33
8


   
  


76
4,


52
0


   
   


  
22


1,
99


8
   


   
  


23
0,


87
8


   
   


  
24


0,
11


3
   


   
  


24
9,


71
8


   
   


   
 


25
9,


70
6


   
   


   
 


27
0,


09
5


   
   


   
 


28
0,


89
8


   
   


   
 


29
2,


13
4


   
   


   
 


30
3,


82
0


   
   


   
 


Ge
ne


ra
l R


es
er


ve
 B


al
an


ce
, J


un
e 


30
 


7,
13


7,
96


3
7,


45
7,


11
6


7,
49


2,
77


0
8,


19
2,


60
2


9,
36


3,
36


9
10


,2
93


,1
89


10
,7


05
,7


60
11


,1
46


,3
14


11
,6


04
,7


35
12


,0
81


,7
45


12
,5


78
,0


92
13


,0
94


,5
54


13
,6


31
,9


42
14


,1
91


,0
97


14
,7


72
,8


96


CI
TY


 O
F 


PI
N


O
LE


 L
O


N
G-


TE
RM


 F
IN


AN
CI


AL
 F


O
RE


CA
ST


City of Pinole 58
575 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – Budgeted Positions 


BUDGETED POSITIONS 


Through the budget, the City Council authorizes the City’s hiring of employees to fill 


positions. Below find a table illustrating the positions included in the FY 2023/24 budget. 


 


 


City of Pinole 59
576 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – Budgeted Positions 


 Department FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24


CITY MANAGER


City Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Assistant City Manager 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Management Analyst 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00


Assistant to the City Manager 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00


Administrative Assistant 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.20


Total Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) 1.00 4.00 3.00 3.00 2.20


CITY CLERK


City Clerk 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Deputy City Clerk 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Administrative Assistant, part-time 0.48 0.48 0.48 1.00 1.00


Total Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) 1.48 1.48 2.48 3.00 3.00


FINANCE DEPARTMENT


Finance Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Accountant 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Accounting Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Accounting Technician, part-time 0.48 0.48 0.48 0.48 0.00


Administrative Assistant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.75


Total Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) 3.48 3.48 3.48 3.48 3.75


HUMAN RESOURCES


Assistant City Manager 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Human Resources Director 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Human Resources Analyst 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00


Human Resources Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00


Human Resources Technician 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00


Administrative Assistant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.05


Total Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) 2.00 1.00 2.00 3.00 3.05


GENERAL GOVERNMENT


Management Analyst 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Total Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


POLICE DEPARTMENT


SWORN


Police Chief 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Police Lieutenant 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00


Police Sergeant 6.00 6.00 6.00 7.00 7.00


Police Officer 19.00 19.00 19.00 20.00 20.00


Sub-total Sworn 28.00 28.00 28.00 30.00 30.00


NON-SWORN


Administrative Secretary 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Community Safety Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Community Service Officer 0.96 0.96 2.00 2.00 2.00


Crossing Guards, part-time/temporary 0.50 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25


Dispatcher 11.00 11.00 11.00 10.00 10.00


Lead Dispatcher 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00


Police Property Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Police Records Specialist 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00


Sub-total Non-Sworn 18.46 18.21 19.25 19.25 19.25


Total Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) 46.46 46.21 47.25 49.25 49.25  


City of Pinole 60
577 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – Budgeted Positions 


 Department FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24


FIRE DEPARTMENT


SWORN


Fire Chief 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00


Battalion Chief 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00


Fire Captain 3.00 3.00 5.00 5.00 0.00


Fire Engineer 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 0.00


Fire Fighter/Paramedic 3.00 3.00 3.00 6.00 0.00


Fire Fighter 3.00 3.00 3.00 0.00 0.00


Sub-total Sworn 14.00 14.00 16.00 16.00 0.00


NON-SWORN


Management Analyst 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00


Sub-total Non-Sworn 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00


Total Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) 15.00 15.00 17.00 17.00 0.00


PUBLIC WORKS


Public Works Director 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00


Development Services Director/City Engineer 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.00 0.00


Senior Project Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00


Capital Improvement and Environmental Program Manager0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00


Associate Civil Engineer 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00


Public Works Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00


Administrative Assistant 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00


Management Analyst 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Development Services Technician 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 0.50


Public Works Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Public Works Maintenance Supervisor 2.00 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00


Public Works Maintenance Workers 7.00 7.00 8.00 8.00 8.00


Park Caretaker 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25


Treatment Plant Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Water Pollution Control Plant Operation Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


WWTP Senior Operator 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00


WWTP Operator 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.00 4.00


Environmental Analyst 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Environmental Assistant 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


WWTP Maintenance Mechanic 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 2.00


Water Pollution Control Plant Intern 0.48 0.48 0.48 0.48 0.48


Total Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) 24.23 23.23 27.73 30.23 30.23


COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT


Development Services Director/City Engineer 0.50 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.00


Community Development Director 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Planning Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Senior Building Inspector 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00


Building Official 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00


Building Inspector 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00


Building Inspector I/II 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00


Code Enforcement Officer 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00


Code Enforcement Officer I/II 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00


Permit Technician 2.00 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.00


Permit Technician I/II 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 2.00


Development Services Technician 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 0.50


Total Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) 5.50 6.50 7.00 7.50 7.50  


City of Pinole 61
578 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – Budgeted Positions 


 Department FY 2019-20 FY 2020-21 FY 2021-22 FY 2022-23 FY 2023-24


COMMUNITY SERVICES DEPARTMENT


RECREATION


Community Services Director 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Recreation Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Cook, part-time/regular 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75


Recreation Coordinator 2.60 2.60 2.60 3.50 3.50


Recreation Leader 2.88 2.88 2.88 2.88 2.88


Recreation Leader [Tiny Tots] 1.13 1.13 1.13 1.13 1.13


Rental Facility Custodian, part-time/temporary 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65


Senior Recreation Leader 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50


Sub-total Recreation 11.50 11.50 12.50 13.40 13.40


PINOLE COMMUNITY TELEVISION (PCTV)


Cable Access Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Cable Access Technician 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00


Cable Equipment Operators 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75


Sub-total Cable Access Television 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75 2.75


Total Full-Time Equivalents (FTEs) 14.25 14.25 15.25 16.15 16.15


GRAND TOTAL ALL DEPARTMENTS 114.40 115.15 125.19 132.61 115.13  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 62
579 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – Labor Allocations 


LABOR COST ALLOCATIONS ($) 


 


 Po
sit


io
n T


itl
e 


 To
ta


l W
ag


es
 an


d 


Be
ne


fit
s 


 G
en


er
al 


Fu
nd


 10
0 


 Se
we


r E
nt


er
pr


ise
 


(W
W


TP
)   


   F
un


d 5
00


 


 Se
we


r E
nt


er
pr


ise
 (C


or
p 


Ya
rd


)   
 Fu


nd
 50


0 
 Ca


bl
e T


V 
Fu


nd
 50


5 


 In
fo


rm
at


io
n S


ys
te


m
s 


Fu
nd


 52
5 


 Su
cc


es
so


r 


Ag
en


cy
    


    


Fu
nd


 75
0 


 H
ou


sin
g 


Ad
m


in
 Fu


nd
 


28
5 


 G
as


 Ta
x  


  


Fu
nd


 20
0 


 Bu
ild


in
g F


un
d 


21
2 


 M
ea


su
re


 "S
-


20
14


"  
 Fu


nd
 


10
6 


 PS
AF


    
Fu


nd
 20


3 


 SL
ES


F  
Fu


nd
 


20
6 


 St
or


m
 W


at
er


  


Fu
nd


 20
7 


 Re
cre


at
io


n  


Fu
nd


 20
9 


 Re
fu


se
 M


gm
t  


Fu
nd


 21
3 


 So
lid


 W
as


te
   


Fu
nd


 21
4 


 M
ea


su
re


 "J
"  


    
 


Fu
nd


 21
5 


 To
ta


l 


10
0-


11
0 C


ou
nc


il M
em


be
rs 


(5
)


78
,70


1
    


    
    


    
    


59
,02


6
    


    
    


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
19


,67
5


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
78


,70
1


    
    


    
  


10
0-


11
1 C


ity
 M


an
ag


er
50


3,3
19


    
    


    
    


  
21


1,3
94


    
    


    
    


   
25


,16
6


    
    


    
    


    
    


12
5,8


30
    


    
    


    
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


90
,59


7
    


    
  


25
,16


6
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


25
,16


6
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


50
3,3


19
    


    
    


10
0-


11
1 A


ss
ist


an
t t


o t
he


 C
ity


 M
an


ag
er


19
5,2


51
    


    
    


    
  


15
6,2


01
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
39


,05
0


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


19
5,2


51
    


    
    


10
0-


11
1 A


dm
in 


As
sis


ta
nt


16
7,3


01
    


    
    


    
  


16
7,3


01
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


16
7,3


01
    


    
    


10
0-


11
2 C


ity
 C


ler
k


23
9,7


88
    


    
    


    
  


19
6,6


26
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


43
,16


2
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


23
9,7


88
    


    
    


10
0-


11
3 T


re
as


ur
er


10
,62


4
    


    
    


    
    


7,9
68


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


2,6
56


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


10
,62


4
    


    
    


  


10
0-


11
5 F


ina
nc


e D
ire


cto
r


38
0,6


21
    


    
    


    
  


23
2,1


79
    


    
    


    
   


57
,09


3
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
72


,31
8


    
    


  
19


,03
1


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
38


0,6
21


    
    


    


10
0-


11
5 A


cc
ou


nt
an


t
15


1,3
60


    
    


    
    


  
12


8,6
56


    
    


    
    


   
22


,70
4


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


15
1,3


60
    


    
    


10
0-


11
5 A


cc
ou


nt
ing


 Sp
ec


ial
ist


13
3,0


94
    


    
    


    
  


11
3,1


30
    


    
    


    
   


19
,96


4
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
13


3,0
94


    
    


    


10
0-


11
6 H


R 
An


aly
st


13
5,7


92
    


    
    


    
  


12
2,2


12
    


    
    


    
   


13
,57


9
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
13


5,7
92


    
    


    


10
0-


11
6 H


R 
Di


re
cto


r
40


3,3
71


    
    


    
    


  
36


3,0
34


    
    


    
    


   
40


,33
7


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


40
3,3


71
    


    
    


10
0-


11
6 H


R 
Te


ch
12


4,7
89


    
    


    
    


  
11


2,3
10


    
    


    
    


   
12


,47
9


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


12
4,7


89
    


    
    


10
0-


22
1 P


oli
ce


 O
ffi


ce
r


19
6,6


58
    


    
    


    
  


90
,46


3
    


    
    


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


10
6,1


95
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


19
6,6


58
    


    
    


10
0-


22
1 P


oli
ce


 O
ffi


ce
r (


2)
33


7,3
76


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


33
7,3


76
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
33


7,3
76


    
    


    


10
0-


22
1 P


oli
ce


 O
ffi


ce
r (


Ca
nin


e)
19


0,1
22


    
    


    
    


  
13


3,0
85


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


57
,03


7
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
19


0,1
22


    
    


    


10
0-


34
1 P


W
 D


ire
cto


r
28


4,6
21


    
    


    
    


  
71


,15
5


    
    


    
    


    
 


56
,92


4
    


    
    


    
    


    
28


,46
2


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
42


,69
3


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


   
28


,46
2


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


14
,23


1
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
28


,46
2


    
    


 
14


,23
1


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
28


4,6
21


    
    


    


10
0-


34
1 A


ss
oc


iat
e E


ng
ine


er
16


0,8
83


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


16
,08


8
    


    
    


    
    


    
24


,13
2


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
80


,44
1


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
40


,22
1


    
    


  
16


0,8
83


    
    


    


10
0-


34
1 P


W
 Sp


ec
ial


ist
 (2


)
26


0,8
05


    
    


    
    


  
52


,16
1


    
    


    
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


65
,20


1
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


39
,12


1
    


    
  


52
,16


1
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
26


,08
1


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


26
,08


1
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


26
0,8


05
    


    
    


10
0-


34
1 C


ap
ita


l Im
pr


ov
em


en
t M


an
ag


er
20


7,0
68


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


20
,70


7
    


    
    


    
    


    
31


,06
0


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
41


,41
4


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


10
,35


3
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
20


,70
7


    
    


 
31


,06
0


    
    


 
51


,76
7


    
    


  
20


7,0
68


    
    


    


10
0-


34
1 M


an
ag


em
en


t A
na


lys
t


13
6,9


29
    


    
    


    
  


27
,38


6
    


    
    


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
13


,69
3


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
27


,38
6


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


   
27


,38
6


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


13
,69


3
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
27


,38
6


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
13


6,9
29


    
    


    


10
0-


34
2 P


W
 M


ain
t. 


Su
pe


rvi
so


r
12


3,5
18


    
    


    
    


  
49


,40
7


    
    


    
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


24
,70


4
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


24
,70


4
    


    
 


24
,70


4
    


    
  


12
3,5


18
    


    
    


10
0-


34
3 P


ub
lic


 W
or


ks
 M


an
ag


er
30


0,2
66


    
    


    
    


  
15


0,1
33


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
60


,05
3


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
15


,01
3


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


60
,05


3
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
15


,01
3


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
30


0,2
66


    
    


    


10
0-


34
3 P


W
 M


ain
t. 


Su
pe


rvi
so


r
21


1,0
03


    
    


    
    


  
94


,95
1


    
    


    
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


52
,75


1
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


10
,55


0
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
42


,20
1


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


10
,55


0
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


21
1,0


03
    


    
    


10
0-


34
3 M


ain
te


na
nc


e W
or


ke
rs 


(4
)


50
5,3


28
    


    
    


    
  


15
1,5


98
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


10
1,0


66
    


    
    


    
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


75
,79


9
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
75


,79
9


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


25
,26


6
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
  


75
,79


9
    


    
  


50
5,3


28
    


    
    


10
0-


34
3 M


ain
te


na
nc


e W
or


ke
r (


1)
14


3,2
66


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


14
3,2


66
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
14


3,2
66


    
    


    


 10
0-


34
3 M


ain
te


na
nc


e W
or


ke
r (


1)
10


1,0
16


    
    


    
    


  
50


,50
8


    
    


    
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


50
,50


8
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


10
1,0


16
    


    
    


20
9-


55
1 C


om
mu


nit
y S


vc
s D


ire
cto


r
25


9,6
73


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


25
,96


7
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


23
3,7


06
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


25
9,6


73
    


    
    


21
2-


46
1 C


om
mu


nit
y D


ev
. D


ire
cto


r
40


2,4
88


    
    


    
    


  
10


0,6
22


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
60


,37
3


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
24


1,4
93


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


40
2,4


88
    


    
    


21
2-


46
1 P


lan
nin


g M
an


ag
er


23
4,2


55
    


    
    


    
  


11
,71


3
    


    
    


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
11


,71
3


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
21


0,8
29


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


23
4,2


55
    


    
    


21
2-


46
2 P


er
mi


t T
ec


hn
ici


an
 III


12
0,4


45
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
12


0,4
45


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


12
0,4


45
    


    
    


21
2-


46
2 P


er
mi


t T
ec


hn
ici


an
 I


10
4,4


27
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
10


4,4
27


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


10
4,4


27
    


    
    


21
2-


46
2 A


dm
ini


str
at


ive
 C


oo
rd


ina
to


r
12


4,7
22


    
    


    
    


  
83


,14
0


    
    


    
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


41
,58


2
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


12
4,7


22
    


    
    


50
0-


64
2 P


W
 M


ain
t. 


Su
pe


rvi
so


r
18


6,8
28


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


14
0,1


21
    


    
    


    
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


9,3
41


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


18
,68


3
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
9,3


41
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


9,3
41


    
    


    
18


6,8
28


    
    


    


50
0-


64
2 M


ain
te


na
nc


e W
or


ke
rs 


(2
)


27
8,7


56
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
20


9,0
67


    
    


    
    


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
13


,93
8


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


27
,87


6
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
13


,93
8


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


  
13


,93
8


    
    


  
27


8,7
56


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


7,3
94


,46
2


$  
    


    
   


2,9
36


,35
8


$  
    


    
    


28
5,0


41
$  


    
    


    
    


  
87


3,7
67


$  
    


    
    


    
    


 
25


,96
7


$  
    


    
    


   
 


39
,05


0
$  


    
    


    
    


  
20


6,0
77


$  
    


11
6,2


83
$  


   
23


3,8
41


$  
    


79
6,1


04
$  


   
39


6,1
80


$  
    


33
7,3


76
$  


    
   


16
3,2


32
$  


   
28


8,9
69


$  
    


23
3,7


06
$  


    
   


14
9,3


58
$  


   
97


,38
1


$  
    


 
21


5,7
70


$  
    


7,3
94


,46
2


$  
    


 


PE
RC


EN
T O


F T
OT


AL
40


%
4%


12
%


0%
1%


3%
2%


3%
11


%
5%


5%
2%


4%
3%


2%
1%


3%
10


0%


 G
en


er
al 


Fu
nd


 
 Sp


ec
ial


 Re
ve


nu
e 


 Se
we


r E
nt


er
pr


ise
  


 Su
cc


es
so


r A
ge


nc
y 


 In
te


ra
nl


 Se
rv


ice
 


 M
ea


su
re


 S 


    
    


    
    


    
    


2,9
36


,35
8 


2,6
32


,02
0


$  
    


    
    


    
   


1,1
58


,80
9


$  
    


    
    


    
    


    
20


6,0
77


$  
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
65


,01
7


$  
    


    
    


    
    


    
39


6,1
80


$  
    


    
    


    
    


    
 


 10
0-


11
1 


 10
0-


11
2 


 10
0-


11
5 


 10
0-


11
6 


 10
0-


22
1 


 10
0-


22
3 


 10
0-


34
1 


10
0-


34
2


10
0-


34
3


10
0-


34
5


10
0-


46
5


20
9-


55
4


20
9-


55
5


21
2-


46
1


21
2-


46
2


50
5-


11
9


50
5-


12
0


50
5-


12
1


 To
ta


l 


10
0-


11
1 A


dm
in 


As
sis


ta
nt


33
,46


0
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
12


5,4
76


    
    


    
    


    
  


8,3
65


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


16
7,3


01
    


    
    


10
0-


22
1 P


oli
ce


 C
hie


f
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
33


5,9
34


    
    


    
    


  
37


,32
6


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


37
3,2


60
    


    
    


10
0-


22
1 L


ieu
te


na
nt


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


35
7,3


04
    


    
    


    
  


89
,32


6
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
44


6,6
30


    
    


    


10
0-


34
2 M


ain
te


na
nc


e S
up


er
vis


or
 (1


)
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
24


,70
4


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
24


,70
4


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
49


,40
7


    
    


    
  


10
0-


34
3 M


ain
te


na
nc


e W
or


ke
rs 


(4
)


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


30
,32


0
    


    
 


60
,63


9
    


    
  


60
,63


9
    


    
 


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


15
1,5


98
    


    
    


10
0-


34
3 M


ain
te


na
nc


e W
or


ke
r (


1)
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
35


,81
6


    
    


  
35


,81
6


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
71


,63
3


    
    


    
  


21
2-


46
1 C


om
mu


nit
y D


ev
. D


ire
cto


r
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


12
0,7


46
    


    
12


0,7
46


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
24


1,4
93


    
    


    


21
2-


46
2 A


dm
ini


str
at


ive
 C


oo
rd


ina
to


r
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
62


,36
1


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
20


,77
9


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


20
,79


1
    


    
  


20
,79


1
    


    
    


 
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
12


4,7
22


    
    


    


21
2-


46
2 P


er
mi


t T
ec


hn
ici


an
 III


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
   


30
,11


1.3
2


    
 


90
,33


3.9
7


    
    


-
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
12


0,4
45


    
    


    


21
2-


46
2 P


er
mi


t T
ec


hn
ici


an
 I


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
   


26
,10


6.8
7


    
 


78
,32


0.6
0


    
    


-
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
10


4,4
27


    
    


    


50
5-


11
9 C


ab
le 


Ac
ce


ss
 C


oo
rd


ina
to


r
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
12


8,6
38


    
   


73
6


    
    


    
  


87
,18


8
    


    
  


21
6,5


62
    


    
    


50
5-


11
9 C


ab
le 


Ac
ce


ss
 Te


ch
nic


ian
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


  
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
  


-
    


    
    


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


   
-


    
    


    
    


    
-


    
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
   


-
    


    
    


    
    


-
    


    
    


    
    


   
10


2,4
72


    
   


58
7


    
    


    
  


69
,45


4
    


    
  


17
2,5


13
    


    
    


City of Pinole 63
580 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Revenue and Expenditure Summaries – Labor Allocations 


LABOR COST ALLOCATIONS (%) 


 


 


 P
os


it
io


n 
Ti


tl
e 


 T
ot


al
 W


ag
es


 


an
d 


Be
ne


fi
ts


 


 G
en


er
al


 


Fu
nd


 1
00


* 


 S
ew


er
 


En
te


rp
ri


se
 


(W
W


TP
) 


Fu
nd


 5
00


 


 S
ew


er
 


En
te


rp
ri


se
 


(C
or


p 
Ya


rd
) 


Fu
nd


 5
00


 


 C
ab


le
 T


V
 


Fu
nd


 5
05


 


 


In
fo


rm
at


io
n 


Sy
st


em
s 


Fu
nd


 5
25


 


 S
uc


ce
ss


or
 


A
ge


nc
y 


Fu
nd


 7
50


 


 H
ou


si
ng


 


A
dm


in
 


Fu
nd


 2
85


 


 G
as


 T
ax


 


Fu
nd


 2
00


 


 B
ui


ld
in


g 


Fu
nd


 2
12


 


 M
ea


su
re


 


"S
-2


01
4"


 


Fu
nd


 1
06


 


 P
SA


F 


Fu
nd


 2
03


 


 S
LE


SF
 


Fu
nd


 2
06


 


 S
to


rm
 


W
at


er
   


  


Fu
nd


 2
07


 


 


Re
cr


ea
ti


on
 


Fu
nd


 2
09


 


 R
ef


us
e 


M
gm


t  


Fu
nd


 2
13


 


 S
ol


id
 


W
as


te
 


Fu
nd


 2
14


 


 M
ea


su
re


 


"J
" 


   
  F


un
d 


21
5 


 T
o


ta
l 


10
0-


11
0 


C
ou


nc
il 


M
em


be
rs


 (
5)


78
,7


01
   


   
   


  
75


%
25


%
10


0%


10
0-


11
1 


C
it


y 
M


an
ag


er
50


3,
31


9
   


   
   


42
%


5%
25


%
18


%
5%


5%
10


0%


10
0-


11
1 


A
ss


is
ta


nt
 t


o 
th


e 
C


it
y 


M
an


ag
er


19
5,


25
1


   
   


   
80


%
20


%
10


0%


10
0-


11
1 


A
dm


in
 A


ss
is


ta
nt


16
7,


30
1


   
   


   
10


0%
10


0%


10
0-


11
2 


C
it


y 
C


le
rk


23
9,


78
8


   
   


   
82


%
18


%
10


0%


10
0-


11
3 


Tr
ea


su
re


r
10


,6
24


   
   


   
  


75
%


25
%


10
0%


10
0-


11
5 


Fi
na


nc
e 


D
ir


ec
to


r
38


0,
62


1
   


   
   


61
%


15
%


19
%


5%
10


0%


10
0-


11
5 


A
cc


ou
nt


an
t


15
1,


36
0


   
   


   
85


%
15


%
10


0%


10
0-


11
5 


A
cc


ou
nt


in
g 


Sp
ec


ia
lis


t
13


3,
09


4
   


   
   


85
%


15
%


10
0%


10
0-


11
6 


H
R


 A
na


ly
st


13
5,


79
2


   
   


   
90


%
10


%
10


0%


10
0-


11
6 


H
R


 D
ir


ec
to


r
40


3,
37


1
   


   
   


90
%


10
%


10
0%


10
0-


11
6 


H
R


 T
ec


h
12


4,
78


9
   


   
   


90
%


10
%


10
0%


10
0-


22
1 


Po
lic


e 
O


ff
ic


er
19


6,
65


8
   


   
   


46
%


54
%


10
0%


10
0-


22
1 


Po
lic


e 
O


ff
ic


er
 (


2)
33


7,
37


6
   


   
   


0%
10


0%
10


0%


10
0-


22
1 


Po
lic


e 
O


ff
ic


er
 (


C
an


in
e)


19
0,


12
2


   
   


   
70


%
30


%
10


0%


10
0-


34
1 


PW
 D


ir
ec


to
r


28
4,


62
1


   
   


   
25


%
20


%
10


%
15


%
10


%
5%


10
%


5%
10


0%


10
0-


34
1 


A
ss


oc
ia


te
 E


ng
in


ee
r


16
0,


88
3


   
   


   
10


%
15


%
50


%
25


%
10


0%


10
0-


34
1 


PW
 S


pe
ci


al
is


t 
(2


)
26


0,
80


5
   


   
   


20
%


25
%


15
%


20
%


10
%


10
%


10
0%


10
0-


34
1 


C
ap


it
al


 P
ro


je
ct


 M
an


ag
er


20
7,


06
8


   
   


   
0%


10
%


15
%


20
%


5%
10


%
15


%
25


%
10


0%


10
0-


34
1 


M
an


ag
em


en
t 


A
na


ly
st


13
6,


92
9


   
   


   
20


%
10


%
20


%
20


%
10


%
20


%
10


0%


10
0-


34
2 


PW
 M


ai
nt


. S
up


er
vi


so
r


12
3,


51
8


   
   


   
40


%
20


%
20


%
20


%
10


0%


10
0-


34
3 


Pu
bl


ic
 W


or
ks


 M
an


ag
er


30
0,


26
6


   
   


   
50


%
20


%
5%


20
%


5%
10


0%


10
0-


34
3 


PW
 M


ai
nt


. S
up


er
vi


so
r


21
1,


00
3


   
   


   
45


%
25


%
5%


20
%


5%
10


0%


10
0-


34
3 


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


 W
or


ke
rs


 (
4)


50
5,


32
8


   
   


   
30


%
20


%
15


%
15


%
5%


15
%


10
0%


10
0-


34
3 


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


 W
or


ke
r 


(1
)


14
3,


26
6


   
   


   
0%


10
0%


10
0%


10
0-


34
3 


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


 W
or


ke
r 


(1
)


10
1,


01
6


   
   


   
50


%
50


%
10


0%


20
9-


55
1 


C
om


m
un


it
y 


Sv
cs


 D
ir


ec
to


r
25


9,
67


3
   


   
   


0%
10


%
0%


0%
90


%
10


0%


21
2-


46
1 


C
om


m
un


it
y 


D
ev


. D
ir


ec
to


r
40


2,
48


8
   


   
   


25
%


15
%


60
%


10
0%


21
2-


46
1 


Pl
an


ni
ng


 M
an


ag
er


23
4,


25
5


   
   


   
5%


5%
90


%
10


0%


21
2-


46
2 


Pe
rm


it
 T


ec
hn


ic
ia


n 
III


12
0,


44
5


   
   


   
0%


10
0%


10
0%


21
2-


46
2 


Pe
rm


it
 T


ec
hn


ic
ia


n 
I


10
4,


42
7


   
   


   
0%


10
0%


10
0%


21
2-


46
2 


A
dm


in
is


tr
at


iv
e 


C
oo


rd
in


at
or


12
4,


72
2


   
   


   
67


%
33


%
10


0%


50
0-


64
2 


PW
 M


ai
nt


. S
up


er
vi


so
r


18
6,


82
8


   
   


   
0%


75
%


5%
10


%
5%


5%
10


0%


50
0-


64
2 


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


 W
or


ke
rs


 (
2)


27
8,


75
6


   
   


   
0%


75
%


5%
10


%
5%


5%
10


0%


-
   


   
   


   
 


7,
39


4,
46


2
$ 


   
36


%
4%


14
%


0%
1%


3%
2%


4%
9%


6%
6%


2%
4%


4%
2%


1%
3%


10
0%


 1
00


-1
11


 
 1


00
-1


12
 


 1
00


-1
15


 
 1


00
-1


16
 


 1
00


-2
21


 
 1


00
-2


23
 


10
0-


34
1


10
0-


34
2


10
0-


34
3


10
0-


34
5


10
0-


46
5


20
9-


55
4


20
9-


55
5


21
2-


46
1


21
2-


46
2


50
5-


11
9


50
5-


12
0


50
5-


12
1


 T
ot


al
 


10
0-


11
1 


A
dm


in
 A


ss
is


ta
nt


20
%


75
%


5%
10


0%


10
0-


22
1 


Po
lic


e 
C


hi
ef


90
%


10
%


10
0%


10
0-


22
1 


Li
eu


te
na


nt
80


%
20


%
10


0%


10
0-


34
2 


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


 S
up


er
vi


so
r 


(1
)


20
%


20
%


40
%


10
0-


34
3 


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


 W
or


ke
rs


 (
4)


6%
12


%
12


%
30


%


10
0-


34
3 


M
ai


nt
en


an
ce


 W
or


ke
rs


 (
1)


25
%


25
%


50
%


21
2-


46
1 


C
om


m
un


it
y 


D
ev


. D
ir


ec
to


r
30


%
30


%
60


%


21
2-


46
2 


A
dm


in
is


tr
at


iv
e 


C
oo


rd
in


at
or


50
%


17
%


17
%


17
%


10
0%


21
2-


46
2 


Pe
rm


it
 T


ec
hn


ic
ia


n 
III


25
%


75
%


10
0%


21
2-


46
2 


Pe
rm


it
 T


ec
hn


ic
ia


n 
I


25
%


75
%


10
0%


50
5-


11
9 


C
ab


le
 A


cc
es


s 
C


oo
rd


in
at


or
59


%
0%


40
%


10
0%


50
5-


11
9 


C
ab


le
 A


cc
es


s 
Te


ch
ni


ci
an


59
%


0%
40


%
10


0%


City of Pinole 64
581 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets 


Department Budgets 


 


This section contains detailed information for the City’s organizational units, its 


departments. The budget summaries illustrate how the City’s various funding sources are 


allocated to individual departments to fund their specific activities and programs.  


The department sections are arranged in the following order: 


• Elected Officials 


o City Council  


o City Treasurer 


• Appointed Officials 


o City Manager 


o City Attorney 


o City Clerk 


• Administration 


o Finance  


o Human Resources 


• Public Safety 


o Police  


o Fire 


• Public Works 


• Community Development 


• Community Services 


• General Government 


The following information is provided below in each department budget section:  


• Mission;  


• Major services and functions;  


• FY 2022/23 key accomplishments;  


• FY 2023/24 key priorities and projects;  


• Significant special projects for FY 2024/25 – FY 2027/28; 


• Major changes in FY 2023/24 budget;  


• Position summary;  


• Budget summaries at the department and division levels; and  


• Major non-personnel expense details.  


 


 


City of Pinole 65
582 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 66
583 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Council 


CITY COUNCIL 


Mission 
 
The mission of the City Council is to use the tools at its disposal to create a safe, healthy, 
and prosperous community. In February 2020, the City Council adopted the City of Pinole 
Strategic Plan 2020 – 2025, which contained the following vision, mission, and goals for 
the City.  
 
Vision 
 
Pinole is a safe, vibrant, and innovative community with small town charm and high quality 
of life. 
 
Mission 
 
Pinole will be efficient, ethical, and effective in delivering quality services with community 
involvement and fiscal stewardship. 
 
Goals 
 
1. Safe and Resilient 
2. Financially Stable 
3. Vibrant and Beautiful 
4. High Performance 
 
Major Services and Functions 
 
The primary role of the City Council is to create local laws to support a safe, healthy, and 
prosperous community. The City Council also creates a vision and goals for the 
community, approves policies for the conduct of municipal affairs, and appropriates City 
funds through the budget process to support City programs and services. The City 
Council holds regularly scheduled meetings, hearings, and study sessions to receive 
citizens’ input and conduct the City's business in a public forum. Council Members 
represent the City at local, regional, and State organizations. The five-member City 
Council is elected at large and serves four-year overlapping terms. The City Council 
appoints one of its members to serve as the Mayor each year. The City Council also 
serves as the governing body of the Successor Agency to the Pinole Redevelopment 
Agency (“Successor Agency”), and appoints members of the community to serve on 
various boards and commissions. The City Council appoints three City officers: the City 
Manager, City Attorney, and City Clerk. 
 
FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 
 


• Recognized numerous individuals, community organizations, and causes for their 
contributions to Pinole and society 


City of Pinole 67
584 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Council 


• Analyzed and approved a new five-year fire and emergency medical service 
agreement with the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District ("Con Fire") 


• Researched a potential local ballot measure to transition to a charter city and 
establish an increased real property transfer tax (RPTT) 


• Approved an Economic Development Strategy 


• Approved a Communication and Engagement Plan 


• Adopted a new City of Pinole Local Roadway Safety Plan (LRSP) 


• Approved a new 223-unit multifamily housing development on Fitzgerald Avenue 
("Pinole Vista" apartment complex) 


• Approved a preliminary design for the replacement of the San Pablo Avenue bridge 
between Pinole and Hercules 


• Provided direction on and authorized the submittal of the draft 2023-2031 Housing 
Element Update 


• Provided direction to staff on new City events, such as a Pinole Pride 
(civic/anniversary and LBGT) event in June 2023 


• Provided direction on safety improvements on the Tennent Avenue corridor 


• Established a Project Labor Agreement (PLA) Ad Hoc Subcommittee 


• Improved the capital planning process by providing direction to staff on a capital 
projects prioritization methodology 


• Authorized the sale of surplus City properties 


• Adopted resolutions taking positions on key policy issues 


• Adopted ordinances changing City laws on certain key issues 


• Appropriated funding for a new Property and Facilities Master Plan 


• Provided funding and direction on transportation safety capital projects 
 
FY 2023/24 Key Priorities and Projects 
 


• Create new or updated ordinances to support a safe, healthy, and prosperous 
community 


• Continue to recognize individuals, organizations, and causes through 
proclamations and resolutions 


• Continue to advocate for the City in regional and State policy matters 


• Continue to review and approve City policies and service models that will improve 
City efficiency and effectiveness 


• Provide leadership and oversight of the implementation of the Strategic Plan 


• Consider development applications that will improve the community 


• Provide direction and adopt updates to the City General Plan Safety and Health 
and Environmental Justice elements 


• Create an updated Long-Term Financial Plan that determines how to address the 
City’s unfunded liabilities 


• Establish a process to quickly respond to advocacy opportunities regarding 
proposed State legislation 


• Direct staff on the redevelopment of “Community Corner” (lot at the corner of San 
Pablo Avenue and Tennent) 


• Review City’s use of its Section 115 Pension Trust 


City of Pinole 68
585 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Council 


• Continue to expand relationships with elected officials in neighboring cities, special 
districts, and at the State and federal levels 


 
Significant Special Projects for FY 2024/25 through FY 2027/28 
 


• Create new or updated ordinances to support a safe, healthy, and prosperous 
community 


 
Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
There are no major changes in the FY 2023/24 budget compared to the FY 2022/23 
budget. 
 
Position Summary 
 
There are no staff positions budgeted for the City Council department. Support to the City 
Council is provided by City staff budgeted in other departments, such as the City 
Manager, City Attorney, City Clerk, and others. 
 


 


City of Pinole 69
586 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Council 


CITY COUNCIL BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 215,352    215,904    149,921       182,496 182,212 (284)          0%


Measure S 2014 - 106 5,900        -                -                   5,900        -                (5,900)       -100%


Total 221,252    215,904    149,921       188,396    182,212    (6,184)       -3%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages -401 49,871      48,302      35,427         48,150      33,750      (14,400)     -43%


Employee Benefits - 410 45,345      53,393      32,806         55,241      42,550      (12,691)     -30%


Total Personnel 95,216      101,696    68,233         103,391    76,300      (27,091)     -36%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 


42 145,509    135,565    95,944         108,375    107,155    (1,220)       -1%


Other Operating Expenses -43 1,466        921           831              1,030        1,030        -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 146,975    136,486    96,776         109,405    108,185    (1,220)       -1%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                 -             130 -                   -                15,000      15,000      0%


Total Capital Outlay                 -             130                    -                 -        15,000 15,000      0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 (22,714)     (24,463)     (17,170)        (26,331)     (19,675)     6,656        -34%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 1,776        2,054        2,082           1,931        2,402        471           20%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations (20,939)     (22,408)     (15,088)        (24,400)     (17,273)     7,127        -41%


Total 221,252    215,904    149,921       188,396    182,212    (6,184)       -3%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


City Council - 110 221,252    215,904    149,921       188,396    182,212    (6,184)       -3%


Total 221,252    215,904    149,921       188,396    182,212    (6,184)       -3%  


 


 


 


City of Pinole 70
587 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Council 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42201  Office Expense 500$           500$           


4230X  Travel and Training 21,000$      25,380$      


ABAG Delegate $250


Allocated Appropriation (5 @ $2,900) 14,500


CCC Mayor's Conference monthly dinners (24 @ $70) 1,680


East Bay Division meetings 600


Funding for council members on League committees 500


League of California Cities Conference (5 @ $600) 3,000            


Mayor's travel expenses 600


Other identified City sponsored events 250


Various dinners/award ceremonies 750               


42302 Mileage, Toll, Air & Hotel 2,250            


42303 Meal Allowance 1,000            


42401  Memberships 21,485$      21,785$      


   ABAG dues $5,500


   Contra Costa Mayor's Conference membership & exp. 1,400            


   LAFCO dues 6,300            


   League of CA Cities 7,685            


   League of California Cities East Bay Division 400               


   Other Memberships 500               


42514  Special Department Expense 59,490$      59,490$      


   City Council meetings recorded by PCTV $56,490


   Mayoral Celebration expense 400               


   Misc. supplies and food for meetings 1,000            


   Other special department expenses 1,000            


West County Mayor's Breakfast meetings 600               


Total Professional/Administrative Services 107,155$    


4310X  Utilities 1,030$        1,030$        


Gas/Electric 980$             


Water 50                 


47103 Furniture -$           15,000$      


   Council office furniture $15,000


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


42101  Professional Services 5,900$        -$           


Teambuilding and Strategic Planning -$                   


City of Pinole 71
588 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Council 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 72
589 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Treasurer 


CITY TREASURER 


Mission 
 
The mission of the City Treasurer is to, in collaboration with the Finance Director, ensure 
that all City funds are received, deposited, disbursed, and invested effectively in 
accordance with the City’s Investment Policy and Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP). 
  
Major Services and Functions 
 
The City Treasurer provides input to the Finance Director on quarterly investment reports 
that the Finance Director creates for the City Council. The reports include reconciled bank 
balances, the type and amount of investments and deposits of City funds, the institution 
in which these deposits are made, market values, maturity dates, and rates of interest. In 
addition, the City Treasurer reviews the weekly check run and is one of the authorized 
City counter signatories of checks in an amount of $5,000 or greater. The City’s 
Investment Policy prioritizes safety, liquidity, and yield. The City Treasurer is an elected 
position and serves a four-year term. 
 
FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 
 


• Collaborated with the Finance Director to provide quarterly investment reports to 
the City Council and to achieve the Investment Policy priorities of safety, liquidity, 
and yield 


• Collaborated with the Finance Director to ensure that all City funds were received, 
deposited, disbursed, and invested effectively in accordance with the City’s 
Investment Policy and GAAP 


 
FY 2023/24 Key Priorities and Projects 
 


• Continue to collaborate with the Finance Director on investment management and 
treasury functions 


 
Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
There are no major changes in the FY 2023/24 budget compared to the FY 2022/23 
budget. 
 
Position Summary 
 
There are no staff positions budgeted for the City Treasurer department. Support to the 
City Treasurer is provided by City staff budgeted in other departments, primarily the 
Finance Department. 
 


City of Pinole 73
590 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Treasurer 


CITY TREASURER BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 8,286        8,375        5,732        8,662        8,727        65               1%


Total 8,286        8,375        5,732        8,662        8,727        65               1%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 8,431        8,427        6,072        8,400        3,000        (5,400)         -180%


Employee Benefits - 410 1,633        1,197        1,146        1,964        7,410        5,446          73%


Total Personnel 10,063      9,624        7,217        10,364      10,410      46               0%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 


42 783           911           250           760           760           -                  0%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 -                -                -                -                -                -                  0%


Total Services and Supplies 783           911           250           760           760           -                  0%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                 -                 - -                -                -                -                  0%


Total Capital Outlay                 -                 -                  -                 -                 - -                  0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Admin Credits - 46121 (2,718)       (2,341)       (1,921)       (2,634)       (2,656)       (22)              1%


Legal Charges - 46126 -                -                -                -                -                -                  0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 158           182           185           172           213           41               19%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations (2,560)       (2,160)       (1,736)       (2,462)       (2,443)       19               -1%


Total 8,286        8,375        5,732        8,662        8,727        65               1%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


City Treasurer - 113 8,286        8,375        5,732        8,662        8,727        65               1%


Total 8,286        8,375        5,732        8,662        8,727        65               1%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42301 Travel & Training 400$           400$           


Misc. training 400$           


42401  Memberships 110$           110$           


  CSMFO Dues 110$           


42506  Bonds 250$           250$           


   Bond for City Treasurer position 250$           


Total Professional/Administrative Services 760$             


City of Pinole 74
591 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Manager 


CITY MANAGER 
 
The City Manager department is comprised of the following divisions: 
 


• Administration and Programs; and  


• Information Technology 
 
Mission 
 
The mission of the City Manager’s office (department) is to support the City Council in its 
policy development and to oversee all City staff and operations to ensure efficient and 
effective service delivery. 
 
Major Services and Functions 
 
The City of Pinole is organized under a “council-manager” form of operation. This form of 
operations consists of an elected City Council that is responsible for policymaking and a 
professional City Manager, appointed by the Council, who is responsible for carrying out 
the policies of the Council and overseeing City operations. In addition to overseeing City 
operations, the City Manager’s office also performs or coordinates some specific 
functions on behalf of the entire City organization, including the following: 
 


• Communication and engagement 


• Intergovernmental relations 


• Information technology 


• Strategic planning and organizational assessment 
 
The Information Technology Division maintains hardware and software throughout the 
City organization. The Division collaborates with other City departments to conduct 
business process re-engineering and to select and implement appropriate technology to 
meet City needs. The Division manages information services for over 120 users, 53 
workstations, and 13 servers used throughout the City. The City contracts with a private 
firm, Precision IT Consulting, for managed IT services, including network administration, 
security, equipment and software maintenance, and end user support. Precision IT 
provides two full-time on-site technicians to address short-term and long-term work 
requests. 
 
FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Supported the City Council in its development of policy on key community issues 


• Supported City departments in the implementation of a number of process 
improvements and new policies 


• Worked with local, regional, State, and federal agencies to advance Pinole's 
interests 


City of Pinole 75
592 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Manager 


• Hired staff in key leadership positions 


• Created written policies and procedures on numerous administrative matters 


• Initiated an internal diversity, equity, and inclusion (DEI) program 
 


Strategic Plan Strategies 


• Successfully supported the transition of the Pinole Fire Department to be operated 
under Contra Costa Fire Protection District 


• Implemented many IT projects, including significantly improving network security 


• Created a Communication and Engagement Plan, which is a Strategic Plan 
strategy 


• Expanded communication and engagement with the community through the use 
of new tools and techniques 


• Increased engagement with community and civic organizations, neighboring cities, 
and special districts 


 
FY 2023/24 Key Priorities and Projects 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Assess City operations and implement improvements for diversity, equity, and 
inclusion (DEI) 


 
Strategic Plan Strategies 


• Complete the Strategic Plan strategy of developing an interagency legislative 
advocacy program (Goal 4, Strategy 7) 


• Launch a new website Content Management System (CMS) with expanded online 
services 


• Complete priority projects as outlined in the 2021/22-2025/26 Information 
Technology (IT) Plan 


 
Significant Special Projects for FY 2024/25 through FY 2027/28 
 


• Complete Strategic Plan strategies 
 
Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
The City Manager department Administration and Programs division budget for FY 
2023/24 includes funding for Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion (DEI) consulting, 
intergovernmental affairs consulting, grant management consulting, and communication 
and engagement consulting, all related to high-priority City initiatives in these areas. The 
Information Technology division budget includes a number of projects identified in the 
City’s IT Plan. 
 


City of Pinole 76
593 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Manager 


Position Summary 


Position 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 


City Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Assistant City Manager 0.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Management Analyst 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 


Assistant to the City Manager 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 


Administrative Assistant 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.20 


Total 1.00 4.00 3.00 3.00 2.20 


 


Note that the Administrative Assistant position has been partially allocated to other 


departments in FY 2023/24 to reflect their primary tasks, including with the Finance 


Department, more clearly. 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 77
594 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Manager 


CITY MANAGER BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 603,505    527,117    410,795    615,943    590,960    (24,983)     -4%


Total 603,505    527,117    410,795    615,943    590,960    (24,983)     -4%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 657,031    364,341    320,621    480,353    505,702    25,349      5%


Employee Benefits - 410 394,691    297,436    249,674    304,344    324,181    19,837      6%


Total Personnel 1,051,722 661,777    570,295    784,697    829,883    45,186      5%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 


42 93,633      175,750    111,160    248,004    188,480    (59,524)     -32%


Other operating Expenses - 43 1,995        1,278        1,141        1,425        1,425        -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 95,627      177,028    112,301    249,429    189,905    (59,524)     -31%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Admin Credits - 46121 (577,603)   (338,727)   (302,079)   (445,668)   (464,816)   (19,148)     4%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 33,760      25,861      29,629      27,485      35,988      8,503        24%


Total Internal Cost Allocations (543,844)   (312,866)   (272,450)   (418,183)   (428,828)   (10,645)     2%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -                1,176        649           -                -                -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                 -          1,176             649                 -                 - -                0%


Total 603,505    527,117    410,795    615,943    590,960    (24,983)     -4%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


City Manager - 111 603,505    527,117    410,795    615,943    590,960    (24,983)     -4%


Total 603,505    527,117    410,795    615,943    590,960    (24,983)     -4%  


City of Pinole 78
595 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Manager 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 210,000$    145,000$    


Communication and Engagement Consulting 60,000$      


DEI Consulting 40,000


Digital Billboard 25,000


Misc. Consulting 20,000        


42107 Equipment Maintenance 100$           100$           


$100


42201  Office Expense 13,800$      29,055$      


   Copier Supplies  $1,000


   Mass Mailing Services 17,255        


   Misc Office Expense 800            


   Office Supplies 5,000          


   Other Office Expenses 5,000          


42203 Office Expense/Shipping & Mailing 9,779$        -$           


   Postage & Shipping -$           


   Postage Equipment 0


   (Moved to IT dept FY23/24)


4230X  Travel and Training 7,300$        7,300$        


League of Cities or Other Trainings $1,600


Mayor's Conference monthly dinners 600


Miscellaneous Meetings 1,200


Other Misc. Training 1,500


League of Cities or other training related travel 2,400


42401  Memberships 3,875$        3,875$        


   Bay Area News Group Subscription $550


   CAPIO Membership 200            


   CCC Public Managers Association 500


CCMF Membership 200


   ICMA Membership 2,150


   MISAC Membership 200


   Municipal Management Association (MMANC) 75


42506  Bonds 350$           350$           


   Bonds (CM & ACM) $350


42514  Special Department Expense 2,800$        2,800$        


   Flowers for funerals and Special Occations $300


   Miscellaneous 2,000


   Notary Fees and Supplies 100


   UPS/FedEx/Misc. shipping 400


Total Professional/Administrative Services 188,480$    


4310X  Utilities 1,425$        1,425$        


43103 Gas/Electric 1,300$        


43102 Water 125             


City of Pinole 79
596 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Manager 


INFORMATION SYSTEMS BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 540,026    548,604    611,656    1,126,368  1,021,906  (104,462)   -10%


Measure S-2014 Fund - 106 -                102,600     3,600         (99,000)     -2750%


Recreation Fund - 209 62,029      55,886      52,314      96,243       117,529     21,286      18%


Building and Planning Fund - 212 31,872      46,877      149,655    286,798     154,649     (132,149)   -85%


Sewer Enterprise Fund - 500 49,160      53,850      54,329      124,732     140,834     16,102      11%


Cable Access TV Fund - 505 18,921      23,910      22,738      46,691       92,253       45,562      49%


Total 702,008    729,127    890,693    1,783,432  1,530,771  (252,661)   -17%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 


42 472,808    463,062    709,854 1,361,406  1,072,340  (289,066)   -27%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 168,959    197,415    156,749 174,853     201,726     26,873      13%


Total Services and Supplies 641,766    660,476    866,603    1,536,259  1,274,066  (262,193)   -21%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47* 26,323      107,122    15,836      357,348     217,655     (139,693)   -64%


Total Capital Outlay        26,323      107,122        15,836       357,348      217,655 (139,693)   -64%


Debt Service


Debt Principal - 48101 -                23,255      -                -                 -                 -                0%


Debt Interest - 48102 -                1,705        -                -                 -                 -                0%


Total Debt Service                 -        24,960                 -                  -                  -                 - 0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 33,918      32,443      15,067      32,929       39,050       6,121        16%


Information Systems (IS) Charges - 46 (702,008)   (729,127)   (890,693)   (1,823,935) (1,527,171) 296,765    -19%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations (668,089)   (696,684)   (875,626)   (1,791,006) (1,488,121) 302,886    -20%


Total (0)              95,874      6,814        102,600     3,600         (99,000)     0%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


Information Systems - 118 702,008    825,001    897,507    1,926,536  1,530,771  (395,765)   -26%


Total 702,008    825,001    897,507    1,926,536  1,530,771  (395,765)   -26%


*See CIP  


City of Pinole 80
597 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Manager 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 534,670$     564,550$     


City Website CMS Updates 40,000        


Data Collection & Management Solution 17,000        


Implement Payment Software 5,000          


Labor to replace PD MDC's (carryover) 9,000          


Labor to Update Versatile Software (carryover) 2,000          


Managed IT support (Precision) 396,550      


Misc. IT Consulting, Assessment Services 25,000        


Network Security/Cybersecurity Assessment 10,000        


TrackIT (ClientFirst) Implementation 50,000        


Replace Youth/Senior Center Fiber Network Assessment 10,000        


42105  Network Maintenance  89,550$       75,344$       


Network servers and hardware maintenance, including professional callouts.


AWS hosting for Smart Geotech 1,910$        


Contra Costa County ACCJIN Network Fee 26,523        


Data backup protection for City Hall servers 12,667        


Data backup protection for Public Safety servers 10,609        


Firewall Maintenance for Public Safety 1,591          


Sophos Firewall Annual Maintenance & Support CH 2,122          


Sophos Endpoint Protection for workstations and servers 10,291        


Webstie Annual Hosting 8,359          


Wi-Fi Service 1,273          


42106  Software Maintenance  560,923$     239,541$     


Adobe software for PCTV 637$           


AMAG alarm software maintenance 2,030          


Axon Cloud Storage for PD body cameras 15,914        


CrimeView desktop support 3,183          


Critical Reach maintenance 530            


ESRI- Ainfo, Aedito, Aview maintenance 21,218        


FileOnQ Support & maintenance 3,492          


Fire RMS support (Zoll)- Station 73 645            


Form 700 e-submission Software 3,500          


Granicus (Webstreaming) 7,426          


Laserfiche Annual Maintenance/License 7,575          


Police Department Computer Management software 2,334          


Public Records Management Software 6,180          


RecDesk software 5,562          


Recruiting Software Annual (NeoGov) 5,200          


Scala License for PCTV 1,221          


Selectron Software Annaul 29,166        


TrakIt support maintenance 48,144        


Tyler Incode license & fee maintenance 71,080        


Versatile Express & retention support (Zasio) 4,505          


42107  Equipment Maintenance 51,191$       48,252$       


Copier Lease and Maintenance (Xerox) 45,131$      


Mailing System Meter Lease (Pitney Bowes) 2,060          


Printer Repair Service 1,061          


42203 Shipping and Mailing -$            9,779$         


Citywide Postage Shipping 3,000$        


Postage Equipment 6,779          


42510  Software Purchase & Subscriptions 82,472$       131,274$     


   Adobe Acrobat 10,000$      


   Agenda Management Software 27,210


Copware Site License 300            


Cybersecurity Subscription Purchase 9,200          


Docusign Subscription 14,610        


Livescan maintenance 10,609        


ManageEngine MDM (PD) 645            


Mobile Devise management 2,500          


Office 365 G3 License (150 Licenses) 36,000        


PD background checks (TLO, Transunion) 1,400          


Pinole Municode 500             


City of Pinole 81
598 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Manager 


Realquest maintenance 9,000          


Surveymonkey Subscription 1,000          


Zoom Licenses (21 users, 4 webinar) 8,300          


Total Professional/Administrative Services 1,068,740$  


43101  Communications 174,853$     201,726$     


AT&T AVPN circuit for I-80 sign project 2,843$        


AT&T voice service 94,420        


Comcast Cable and Internet 25,000        


Global Wireless Communications 1,400          


Internet service for the Corp Yard 12,000        


Replace broken phones 1,030          


Tiny Tots solar 618            


Verizon cell service 64,415        


47102  Computer Equipment 297,348$     217,655$     


PD computer monitor replacement PD (carryover) 2,400$        


Emergency Power to City Hall 20,000        


Police Department MDC replacements 12,185        


New Laptops 7,200          


PCTV Data Storage Solutions 40,000        


Phone System Replacement (Citywide) 50,000        


Refresh EOC System 50,000        


Replace 20 workstations per year 35,870        


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


42510  Software Purchase & Subscriptions 42,600$       3,600$         


Laserfiche Software training carryover 3,600$        


47201 Improvements/Building 60,000$       -$            


IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility -$           


INFORMATION SYSTEMS CHARGES FOR COMMUNICATION & TECHNOLOGY


46124  IS Charges for Communication & Technology (1,482,335)$  (1,527,171)$ 


Finance [100-115] (7,114)$       


General Government [100-117] (357,313)$   


Police Services [100-222] (439,297)     


Police Dispatch [100-223] (76,746)       


Public Works [100-341] (136,422)     


Code Enforcement [100-465] (5,015)         


Community Services [209-551] (117,529)     


Planning [212-461] (5,015)         


Development Services [212-462] (149,634)     


Sewer WPCP [500-641] (82,394)       


Sewer Collection (CY) [500-642] (58,440)       


PCTV [505-119-121] (92,253)        


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 82
599 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Attorney 


CITY ATTORNEY 


Mission 
 
The mission of the City Attorney is to provide quality, comprehensive legal representation 
to the City.   
 
Major Services and Functions 
 
The City Attorney is the Chief Legal Officer for the City. The City Attorney provides legal 
advice to the City Council, City officials, and staff.  The City Attorney prepares and reviews 
ordinances, resolutions, and contracts for City Council consideration, and represents the 
City in legal actions, both affirmative claims and defense of claims brought against the 
City.  The City Attorney also serves as general counsel for the Successor Agency for the 
Redevelopment Agency.  The City Attorney plays a key role in risk management for the 
City of Pinole.  The City Attorney prepares legal opinions at the request of the City Council 
and staff as needed and advises on all legal issues related to the City. 
 
FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 
 


• Advised City on compliance with evolving COVID related health orders, AB 361, 
and related workplace / labor issues 


• Prepared organics reduction and recycling ordinance for City compliance with SB 
1383 


• Assisted staff with Code Enforcement matters, real property liens and securing 
Court ordered abatement warrants authorizing City correction of code violations  


• Updated City construction contract documents in compliance with Federal and 
State procurement requirements related to San Pablo Avenue Rehabilitation 
Project 


• Chaired and coordinated multiple Municipal Code Update Subcommittee meetings 


• Advised on disposition of redevelopment surplus properties and development 
projects throughout the City 


• Advised City Council on potential Charter City Ballot Measure and adjustment to 
Real Property Transfer Tax 


• Managed and coordinated City defense, and affirmative litigation, related to PG&E 
Bankruptcy proceeding among other litigation matters and cases 


• Prepared update to City’s ordinance regulating the use and sale of fireworks 
 
FY 2023/24 Special Projects 
 


• Prepare ordinances and resolutions to address City Council priorities 


• Advise City Council and prepare related materials for potential Charter City Ballot 
Measure 


 


City of Pinole 83
600 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Attorney 


• Provide legal assistance and advice in labor negotiations, grievances, 
employment, benefits, and HR related issues, as well as liability avoidance 
management practices 


• Provide legal advice and representation to the City on development projects 
including multi-family housing developments, Pinole Shores II, and the sale of 
former RDA properties, and provide counsel to the City’s Planning Commission 


• Provide training on ethics, conflicts of interest and election related issues to the 
City Council, Commissioners, and staff 


• Draft City Procurement Policy Procedures Manual 
 
Significant Special Projects for FY 2024/25 through FY 2027/28 
  


• Continue to update the Pinole Municipal Code to comply with evolving legal 
requirements, best practices, and City Council directives 


• Provided advice and counsel regarding compliance with new State laws to facilitate 
the development of housing, and assist the City with completion of the updated 
Housing Element 


 
Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
Anticipating the amount of legal services needed by the City in any given year is 


difficult.  The proposed FY 2023/24 budget is a 2% increase over the current year’s 


budget and reflects an increase to legal fee rates per the legal services contract and an 


estimate of the number of hours that will be spent.  Some legal costs incurred by the City 


are reimbursed to the General Fund and are not reflected in the proposed budget.  Those 


include, but are not limited to, code enforcement, development projects and property 


dispositions, and successful defense of claims that have prevailing party attorney fee 


provisions.  These reimbursements will help offset the actual cost of legal services for the 


City.   


Position Summary 
 
No personnel are directly assigned to this department. Legal services are provided to 


the City by a private law firm on a contract basis. 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 84
601 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Attorney 


CITY ATTORNEY BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 489,955    406,476    378,073    321,057    320,428    (629)          0%


Measure S 2014 - 106 -                -                -                0%


Total 489,955    406,476    378,073    321,057    320,428    (629)          0%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Legal Services


Attorney Services - 42102 763,076    833,500    604,119    583,740    596,245    12,505      2%


Total Legal Services 763,076    833,500    604,119    583,740    596,245    12,505      2%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 (273,121)   (427,024)   (226,046)   (262,683)   (250,817)   11,866      -5%


Developer Reimbursements - 46121 -                (25,000)     (25,000)     100%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations (273,121)   (427,024)   (226,046)   (262,683)   (275,817)   (13,134)     5%


Total 489,955    406,476    378,073    321,057    320,428    (629)          0%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


City Attorney - 114 489,955    406,476    378,073    321,057    320,428    (629)          0%


Total 489,955    406,476    378,073    321,057    320,428    (629)          0%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42102  Attorney Services - General Fund 583,740$    596,245$    


General legal services for FY 2023/24 $596,245


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 85
602 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Attorney 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 86
603 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Clerk 


CITY CLERK 


 
Mission 
 
The City Clerk's mission is to fulfill the role as elections official, legislative administrator, 
and records manager for the City in an efficient, professional, and friendly manner; to 
provide outstanding support to the Council throughout the legislative process; and to 
serve the citizens of Pinole as an accessible and responsive representative of transparent 
and open government. 
 
Major Services and Functions 
 
The City Clerk is an appointed officer by the City Council and is responsible for preparing 
agenda packets, producing the official records of Council decisions, maximizing public 
access to municipal government, ensuring transparency to the public, and is the official 
custodian of the records of the City. The City Clerk serves as the Elections Official of the 
City and conducts all City elections; acts as a Compliance Officer for federal, state, and 
local statutes including the Political Reform Act, the Brown Act, and the Public Records 
Act. Some specific functions of the City Clerk’s office include the following: 
 


• Provide accurate and timely minutes for the City Council and Finance 
Subcommittee 


• City Council and Finance Sub-Committee agenda packet management  


• Serve as Elections Official and conduct all City elections in compliance with the 
CA Elections Code  


• Coordinate Citywide Records Management Program and conduct semi-annual 
audit  


• Streamline the paperless filing and electronic submission of Form 700 for FPPC 
filers  


• Administration of the City’s Public Records Act Program  


• Codification of Pinole municipal code  


• Provide excellent customer service to members of the community & staff  
 
FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Improvements to virtual public meeting format and procedures in response to 
COVID-19 pandemic using Zoom software 


• Planning, coordination and implementation of hybrid meeting model for public 
meetings 


• Management of DocuSign account for City contract routing in response to remote 
working Conditions of Employees Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic 


• Management of GovQA Software for Online Public Records Request Management 
Portal 


City of Pinole 87
604 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Clerk 


• Management of Laserfiche electronic management software for the City Clerk’s 
records and continued progress on city-wide records conversion project 


• Timely and accurate delivery of 33 Council, Successor Agency, and Finance Sub-
Committee transcriptions 


• Prepared 33 meeting packets 


• Prepared 127 legislative actions & 18 proclamations 


• Municipal code updated on-line with each ordinance adoption 


• Provided oversight to public records program facilitating response to 150 formal 
public records requests by mid-year 
 


FY 2023/24 Key Priorities and Projects  
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Improve transparency and safe access to public meetings by providing a hybrid 
public meeting format that would allow in-person as well as remote participation 


• Manage implementation of new records and agenda management system 
program 


• Strengthen city-wide records management program and retention/destruction 
practices 


 
Significant Special Projects for FY 2024/25 through FY 2027/28 
 


• Improve City-wide Records Management Program by working with departments to 
assess needs, digitize records, and improve retention and destruction practices 


 
Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
 The City Clerk budget for FY 2023/24 does not include any significant changes relative 
to the FY 2022/23 budget. 
 
Position Summary 


Position 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 


City Clerk 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Deputy City Clerk 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Administrative Assistant 0.4 0.48 0.48 1.00 1.00 


Total 1.48 1.48 2.48 3.00 3.00 


 
 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 88
605 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Clerk 


 


CITY CLERK BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 243,065    327,468    366,780    586,347    624,354    38,007      6%


Total 243,065    327,468    366,780    586,347    624,354    38,007      6%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 162,165    242,602    240,210    323,655    365,077    41,422      11%


Employee Benefits- 410 39,928      61,021      78,773      172,067    171,849    (218)          0%


Total Personnel 202,094    303,623    318,983    495,722    536,926    41,204      8%


Services and Supplies


Professional &Administrative Services - 


42 54,093      31,441      48,842      93,880      98,010      4,130        4%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 2,167        1,379        1,236        1,600        1,600        -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 56,260      32,820      50,078      95,480      99,610      4,130        4%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                  -           2,168 -                5,000        5,000        -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                  -           2,168                  -           5,000           5,000 -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Admin Credits - 46121 (30,110)     (33,760)     (28,161)     (36,606)     (43,162)     (6,556)       15%


Admin Debits - 46122 6,474        6,949        5,917        8,232        -                (8,232)       100%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 8,348        15,670      19,963      18,519      25,980      7,461        29%


Total Internal Cost Allocations (15,288)     (11,142)     (2,280)       (9,855)       (17,182)     (7,327)       43%


Total 243,065    327,468    366,780    586,347    624,354    38,007      6%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


City Clerk - 112 243,065    327,468    366,780    586,347    624,354    38,007      6%


Total 243,065    327,468    366,780    586,347    624,354    38,007      6%  


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 89
606 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – City Clerk 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 55,000$      55,300$      


Citywide historical records project support 11,300$      


   Filming and imaging of permanent records 2,000


   Meeting minutes transcription 20,000


Pinole Municipal Code codification and update 2,000


Policies and procedures update support 20,000


42201  Office Expense 1,600$        1,600$        


   Misc. office expenses & proclamations and certificates $1,600


4230X  Travel and Training 11,500$      12,225$      


   CCAC Annual Conference (2) 1,050$        


   City Clerk's New Law/Election Seminar/Misc. Training (2) 2,400


   IIMC Annual Conference 675            


   Regional Trainings (CCAC) (4) 500            


   Technical Training for Clerks 1,500          


   42302 Other Training Expenses 4,600          


   42302 Travel expense/Mileage 1,000          


   42303 Meal allowance 500            


42401  Memberships 605$           1,210$        


   CCAC Dues (2) 520$           


   IIMC Member Dues (2) 540            


   MMANC Member dues (2) 150            


42506 Bonds 175$           175$           


42514  Special Department Expense 25,000$      27,500$      


   Boards & Commissions Recognition Event 2,500$        


   Election 22,500


Public Notices 2,500          


Total Professional/Administrative Services 98,010$      


4310X  Utilities 1,600$        1,600$        


Gas/Electric 1,500$        


Water 100            


4710X 5,000$        5,000$         


 


City of Pinole 90
607 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Finance 


FINANCE 
 
Mission 
 
The mission of the Finance Department is to provide the City with financial information 
necessary to ensure sound financial decisions and to ensure appropriate procedures to 
protect the City’s financial assets. This is accomplished through timely and effective 
preparation of the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report, Budget, quarterly financial 
and investment reports, and adequate financial controls. 
 
Major Services and Functions 
 
The Finance Department is responsible for accounting operations including accounts 
payable, accounts receivable, payroll processing, and audits; budget management and 
long-range financial planning; purchasing; treasury management; debt and bond 
administration; and business license administration.  In addition, the Finance Department 
prepares the Recognized Obligation Payment Schedule (ROPS) for the Successor 
Agency to the Pinole Redevelopment Agency and submits the ROPS to the County and 
State agencies. 
 
FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Updated City’s Long Term Financial Plan and expanded to include all City funds 


• Adopted annual budget by June 30th  


• Issued Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) by December 31st  


• Received an unqualified opinion for annual financial statements 


• Prepared the Successor Agency Annual ROPS for approval by the County 
Oversight Board and submitted to the State Department of Finance by February 
1st   


• Received California Society of Municipal Finance Officers Budget Excellence 
Award 


• Received Government Finance Officers Association Excellence in Financial 
Reporting Award  


• Submitted financial policies to City Council for annual review 


• Updated the City’s master fee schedule 
 


Strategic Plan Strategies 
 


• Supported the Fire Department in conducting a fiscal impact analysis as a 
requirement for the fire service agreement between the City and the Contra Costa 
County Fire Protection District 


• Conducted a comprehensive fee study and cost allocation plan 
 
 


City of Pinole 91
608 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Finance 


FY 2023/24 Special Projects  
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Expand Long-Term Financial Plan to a 20-year time horizon 


• Update and/or establish finance operating procedures, including comprehensive 


accounting manual 


• Assist with automating processes, including implementation of an online payment 
platform  


• Assist with developing an approach to funding infrastructure maintenance and 
improvements 


 
Strategic Plan Strategies 
 


• Assist with identifying, analyzing, and advancing revenue generating opportunities 


• Assist with establishing a program to evaluate grant opportunities and capacity  
 
Other Council-Directed Special Projects 
 


• Research the process required to establish a fire prevention maintenance district 


 
Significant Special Projects for FY 2024/25 – FY 2027/28 
 


• Assist with strategic financial planning to other City departments in the 
advancement of strategic plan strategies and special projects.  


 
 
Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
There are no major changes to the Finance department budget for FY 2023/24. However, 
the budget does reflect a position change. The vacant part-time Accounting Technician 
position has been removed and is replaced by 0.75 of the existing full-time Administrative 
Assistant who has been performing Accounting Technician duties and was previously 
entirely budgeted in the City Manager department. 
 
Position Summary 


Position 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 


Finance Director 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Accountant 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Accounting Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Accounting Technician, PT 0.48 0.48 0.48 0.48 0.00 


Administrative Assistant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.75 


Total 3.48 3.48 3.48 3.48 3.75 


City of Pinole 92
609 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Finance 


FINANCE BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 571,900    560,362    472,619    722,847    804,401    81,554      10%


Measure S 2006 - 105 300           475           1,367        2,450        2,450        -                0%


Measure S 2014 - 106 1,356        175           1,667        2,450        2,450        -                0%


Pension Fund - 700 -                -                58,546      40,000      50,000      10,000      20%


Total 573,555    561,011    534,199    767,747    859,301    91,554      11%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 364,032    404,096    310,224    442,401    441,479    (922)          0%


Overtime - 402 112           -                2,500        2,500        -                0%


Employee Benefits - 410 91,218      143,242    138,898    178,968    190,527    11,559      6%


Total Personnel 455,363    547,338    449,122    623,869    634,506    10,637      2%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 195,825    122,478    157,536    281,185    242,945    (38,240)     -16%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 5,462        3,499        3,123        4,800        4,800        -                0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -                -                -                -                -                -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 201,287    125,976    160,660    285,985    247,745    (38,240)     -15%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                 -                 - 562           -                -                -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                 -                 -             562                 -                 - -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Admin Credits - 46121 (121,997)   (150,338)   (126,132)   (181,349)   (191,110)   (9,761)       5%


Admin Debits - 46122 6,474        6,949        5,917        8,232        125,476    117,244    93%


Information Systems (IS) Charges - 46 -            1,619        12,902      4,377        7,114        2,737        38%


Legal Charges - 46126 11,192      5,310        4,615        2,000        5,000        3,000        60%


Insurance General Liability - 46201 21,237      24,156      26,554      24,633      30,570      5,937        19%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations (83,094)     (112,303)   (76,144)     (142,107)   (22,950)     119,157    -519%


Total 573,555    561,011    534,199    767,747    859,301    91,554      11%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


Finance - 115 573,555    561,011    534,199    767,747    859,301    91,554      11%


Total 573,555    561,011    534,199    767,747    859,301    91,554      11%  


 


 


City of Pinole 93
610 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Finance 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 189,090$    134,655$    


   Auditing services 55,000$      


Brinks Armored Car service 2,800          


CA Municipal Statistics (ACFR schedule) 500            


Cost Allocation Plan update 5,000          


   GASB 68 PERS Reports 1,750          


   HDL Property Tax Analysis 8,500          


HDL Sales Tax Analysis 5,600          


OPEB Valuation Report 10,000        


Preparation of State Controller's reports 5,505          


Strategic Financial Planning Support (one-time project ) 40,000        


42201  Office Expense 5,800$        6,880$        


   Check stock 1,500$        


   Miscellaneous office expenses 2,500


   Printing services 1,680          


   Year-end tax forms 1,200          


42203  Shipping & Mailing 5,000$        5,000$        


   Mass mailing 5,000$        


4230x  Travel and Training 2,100$        2,100$        


CSMFO annual conference 1,100$        


Staff training 1,000          


42401  Memberships 595$           710$           
CMTA dues 95$            


CSMFO dues 225            


GFOA dues 190            


ICMA dues 200


42501 Bank Fees 15,000$      20,000$      


Mechanics Bank and Bank of the West fees 20,000$      


42506  Admin Exp/Bonds 250$           250$           


Bonds 250$           


42510  Software Subscription 17,795$      17,795$      


Balancing Act 5,800$        


GovInvest labor module 10,000


Long-range forecasting software 1,995          


42514  Special Department Expense 655$           655$           


GFOA ACFR review and certification 505$           


CSMFO budget review and award 150            


Total Professional/Administrative Services 188,045$    


4310X  Utilities 4,800$        4,800$        


43102 Water 300$           


43103 Electricity & Power 4,500          


 


City of Pinole 94
611 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Finance 


MEASURE S - 2006 FUND - 105


42101  Professional Services 2,450$        2,450$        


Measure S Audit (105) 1,200$        


   Sales Tax Analysis 1,250          


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


42101  Professional Services 2,450$        2,450$        


Measure S Audit (106) 1,200$        


   Sales Tax Analysis 1,250          


PENSION FUND 700


42501 Bank Fees 40,000$    50,000$    


Bank fees 50,000$      


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 95
612 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Finance 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 96
613 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Human Resources 


HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
The Human Resources Department is comprised of the following divisions: 
 


• Human Resources Management; and 


• Risk Management 
 
Mission 
 
The mission of the Human Resources Department is to support the City of Pinole by 
providing comprehensive and timely human resources and risk management services.  It 
has the responsibility for developing and implementing innovative strategies and 
programs that enhance the work experience for our employees. Its objective is to attract, 
develop, motivate, and retain the best-qualified employees whose diversity and skills 
contribute to and sustain the City of Pinole as a quality organization.  
 
Major Services and Functions 
 


• Human Resources Administration and Risk Management – Provides support 
and strategic planning services to employees and departments in the development 
of organizational objectives; provides interpretation of City and department 
policies; reviews and evaluates work methods and procedures for improving 
organizational performance, enhancing services, and meeting goals. Administers 
the City’s risk management programs including general and employment liability 
and workers' compensation for on-the-job injuries. 


• Labor Relations – Represents the City Council and City Manager on all labor 
negotiation and grievance matters with bargaining unit representatives of 
recognized employee organizations. 


• Employee Relations – Provides guidance and counseling to employees; initiates, 
conducts and/or oversees investigations relative to disciplinary actions and 
complaints for City departments. 


• Recruitment and Selection – Assists in the administration of the City’s Civil 
Service Merit System; facilitates selection procedures that produce diverse and 
skilled applicant pools; assures that all recruitment, hiring, placements, transfers, 
and promotions are made based on individual qualifications for the position. 


• Benefits Administration – Provides exceptional and affordable employee 
benefits for retirement, medical, dental, vision, wellness and safety, and employee 
assistance to attract and retain a qualified and highly skilled workforce. 


• Organizational Training and Development – Coordinates City-wide training 
including safety, mandated, educational, and development programs for City staff. 


• Classification and Compensation – Plans and conducts classification and 
organization studies; develops classification specifications; designs compensation 
systems that support and reinforce the City's long-range objectives as well as the 
culture, climate, and behaviors needed for the organization to be effective. 


 
 


City of Pinole 97
614 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Human Resources 


FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Completed labor negotiations with PPEA and developed a successor MOU that 
was adopted by City Council on July 19, 2022. 


• Conducted 37 recruitments. 


• Developed a Citywide Volunteers Administrative Policy. 


• Developed a Citywide Classification Series Administrative Policy. 


• Developed a Citywide Cell Phone Use in the Workplace Administrative Policy. 


• Developed a Citizen Request/Complaint Procedure & Form Administrative Policy. 


• Developed a Compensation and Benefits Plan for Elected Officials. 


• Implemented an Employee Wellness Program. 


• Planned and facilitated numerous events for the City’s Public Service Employee 
Recognition Week. 


• Designed an employee benefits overview booklet to incorporate all City benefits 
and vendor resources for the various employee groups and present the booklet by 
both electronic and printed methods. 


 
Strategic Plan Strategies 
 


• Initiated implementation of the City’s Employee Talent Management Plan in 
accordance with the City’s Strategic Plan 2020 – 2025. 


 
FY 2023/24 Priorities and Projects 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Implement successor memorandums of understanding for three bargaining units. 


• Utilize innovative marketing practices such as social media outreach and branding 
to attract candidates.  


• Enhance and promote higher education tuition reimbursement program.  


• Develop a supervisory academy in partnership with other cities in West County.  


• Promote external training opportunities offered to employees.  


• Implement “stay” interviews with annual performance evaluation process.  


• Survey employee benefits satisfaction levels and implement effective 
modifications.  


• Develop safety emergency action plans for identified workplace risks.  


• Review OPEB obligations and alternatives to support the City’s fiscal 


sustainability. 


• Continue to perform a comprehensive review and updating of key City personnel 


rules and policies to ensure compliance with MOU provisions, state and federal 


legislation, and conduct meet and confer sessions with the employee bargaining 


units as required. 


City of Pinole 98
615 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Human Resources 


 
Strategic Plan Strategies 
 


• Implement the recommendations of the Communication and Engagement Plan 
relative to employees.  


 


Significant Special Projects for FY 2024/25 through FY 2027/28 
 


• Human Resources will implement the Employee Talent Management Plan to 
attract and retain high-quality employees and develop their skills. 
 


• In partnership with the City Manager’s Office, Human Resources will develop and 
implement a Citywide Diversity, Equity, and Inclusion Initiative. 


 
Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
The Human Resources Department budget for FY 2023/24 does not include any 
significant changes relative to the FY 2022/23 budget. 
 


Position Summary 


Position 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 


Assistant City Manager 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Human Resources Director 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Human Resources Analyst 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 


Human Resources Technician 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 


Human Resources Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 


Administrative Assistant 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.05 


Total 2.00 1.00 2.00 3.00 3.05 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 99
616 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Human Resources 


HUMAN RESOURCES BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 292,727    377,614    514,484    768,472    888,226    119,754    13%


Total 292,727    377,614    514,484    768,472    888,226    119,754    13%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 84,111      192,397    239,593    391,311    420,389    29,078      7%


Overtime - 402 -                -                -                -                -                -                0%


Employee Benefits - 410 21,679      71,804      110,512    197,438    214,158    16,720      8%


Total Personnel 105,791    264,201    350,105    588,749    634,547    45,798      7%


Services and Supplies


Professional  & Administrative Services - 


42 128,235    104,326    121,046    160,907    210,556    49,649      24%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 1,612        1,040        925           1,750        1,750        -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 129,847    105,365    121,971    162,657    212,306    49,649      23%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                  -             104 1,153        -                -                -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                  -             104           1,153                  -                  - -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 (15,303)     (10,772)     (8,642)       (13,144)     (66,395)     (53,251)     80%


Administrative Debits - 46122 67,836      -                5,917        8,232        8,364        132           2%


Legal Charges - 46126 -                2,502        20,288      -                30,000      30,000      100%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 4,556        16,214      23,692      21,978      69,404      47,426      68%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 57,089      7,944        41,255      17,066      41,373      24,307      59%


Total 292,727    377,614    514,484    768,472    888,226    119,754    13%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


Human Resources - 116 292,727    377,614    514,484    768,472    888,226    119,754    13%


Total 292,727    377,614    514,484    768,472    888,226    119,754    13%  


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 100
617 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Human Resources 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101 Professional Services 96,040$      92,526$      


Annual Performance Evaluations (CM & CC) 8,000$        


Applicant Tracking System License 6,000          


Bilingual Evaluation/Testing 1,000          


Contingencies- Employee Benefits 6,000          


Document Shredding 1,000          


Drug Screening/Fit for Duty/DOT Exams 8,000          


Employee Benefits Broker 25,000        


HRA (Retiree Medical) Admin Fees 1,000          


Labor Negotiator (IEDA) 25,000        


Onboarding System License 1,126          


Pre-employ Backgrounds/Degree & License Verify 2,000          


Random Drug Testing- DOT 6,400          


Section 125 FSA/DCAP & Commuter Admin Fees 2,000          


42102 Attorney Services 25,000$      50,000$      


   Employment Claim Investigations (ERMA) (3) 30,000$      


   Employment Law Advisement (LCW) 10,000        


   Tax and Employee Benefit Advisement 10,000        


4110 Fingerprinting 1,500$        3,000$        


42201 Office Expense 1,000$        1,000$        


   Miscellaneous Office Supplies $500


4230X Travel and Training 13,880$      32,880$      


Citywide EAP Workshops (2) 6,000$        


Citywide Professional Development (2) 6,000


Contingencies - Citywide Training (2) 6,000


HR Staff Professional Development 8,500


Leadership Academy 2,500


Mileage: NorCal, MMANC, CalPELRA (2), LCW (4) 3,680


Meal Allowance: NorCal, MMANC, CalPELRA (2), LCW (4) 200


42401 Memberships 700$           700$           


   MMANC 200$           


   SHRM 500


42504 Recruitment Cost 4,500$        4,500$        


   Recruitment Advertising 2,500$        


   Recruitment Exams/Testing 2,000


42506 Bond 200$           200$           


    Bond 200$           


42514 Special Department Expense 18,087$      25,750$      


Annual Public Service Employee Appreciation $4,500


Condolence Flowers/Donations (20) 3,000          


Employee Polos (110) 6,050          


Employee Wellness/Safety Fair/BBQ 2,300          


MPA Wellness Premium 6,900          


Quarterly Employee Engagement Events (4) 2,000          


Years of Service Plaques 1,000          


Total Professional/Administrative Services 210,556$    


4310X Utilities 1,750$        1,750$        


43103 Gas/Electric 1,600$        


43102 Water 150            


 


City of Pinole 101
618 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Human Resources 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


City of Pinole 102
619 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


POLICE 
 
The Police Department is comprised of the following divisions (referred to as “bureaus”): 
 


• Operations; and 
• Support Services 


 
Mission 
 
The Pinole Police Department is committed to ensuring a safe community by providing 
exemplary law enforcement service while engaging our citizens with Honor, Integrity, 
Professionalism, and Respect.   
 
Major Services and Functions 
 


• Police Operations is responsible for the day-to-day operation of the department.   


• Police Support Services provides support and assistance to Operations and the 
community.  It includes front office staff who work with the public daily; Crime 
Prevention Officers who provide outreach into the community; the collection and 
processing of evidence; and the maintenance and repair of vehicles and 
equipment. 


• The City operates the West Bay Communications Center (WBCC), which provides 
police dispatch services for the City of Pinole as well as Hercules and San Pablo. 
The Cities of Hercules and San Pablo are billed for Dispatch Services based on a 
cost-sharing formula incorporating various usage measurements. 


 
FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Enhanced organizational wellness by adding virtual EMDR and a Zen Den. 


• Implemented a virtual yoga program. 


• Implemented police reform measures as legislation requires, such as California 


Racial and Identity Profiling Act (RIPA) and National Incident-Based Reporting 


(NIBRS). 


• Implemented new RIMS, CADS/RMS Systems. 


• Brought the Community of Pinole innovative and progressive engagement 


opportunities. 


• Enhanced training capacity to meet and industry’s best standards. 


• Enhanced retention and recruitment efforts. 


• Implemented new Community Outreach efforts with a special Halloween-themed 


National Night Out event and Project HOPE-Homeless Intervention. 


• Implemented Cue Hit customer engagement technology to receive real-time 


feedback from the community. 


 


City of Pinole 103
620 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


FY 2023/24 Key Priorities and Projects  
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Innovate with Truleo to expand officer wellness, surface and promote officer 


professionalism, and automate the review of 100% of Body Camera videos. 


• Continue to focus on officer wellness programs. 


• Continue to enhance training capacity to meet and industry’s best standards. 


• Revamp retention and recruitment efforts to meet the new generational 


workforce. 


• Implement an internal reclassification of the Lieutenant position to Commander. 


• Repurpose the Alex Clark Room to the Pinole Police Department Training 


Center. 


• Continue our efforts to bring the community innovative and progressive 


engagement opportunities. 


• Implement a Police Drone program to enhance our abilities to provide the 
community of Pinole with effective and efficient police services. 


• Implement Community Outreach efforts with a special Halloween-themed National 
Night Out event and Project HOPE-Homeless Intervention. 


• Implement new staffing and police service delivery model, which is the addition of 
two positions (a sergeant and an officer) first budgeted in FY 2022/23 to allow the 
department to move to a modified 4/10 schedule. Research indicates that 10-hour 
shifts, as opposed to 12-hour shifts, positively impact employee well-being and 
morale, reduce overtime, and offer flexible scheduling alternatives to leverage 
personnel resources while providing overlaps during peak workload periods. 10-
hour shifts will increase the number of officers on duty as the shifts overlap. 10-
hour shifts are particularly well-suited to the variable workloads found in law 
enforcement. 


• Review Police fees and charges and possibly recommend modifications.  
 
Strategic Plan Strategies 
 


• Create an updated Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) 


• Stand up a working Emergency Operations Center (EOC). 


• Implement a CERT program. 


 
 
Significant Special Projects for FY 2024/25 through FY 2027/28 
 


• Focus on officer wellness programs in order to improve the quality of life for officers 
while strengthening the relationship with the community through exemplary law 
enforcement service.  


• Implement police reform measures as required by legislation. 


• Launch Next Gen 911. 


City of Pinole 104
621 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


• Facility rehabilitation of the Public Safety Building. 
 
Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
There is one notable change in the FY 2023/24 budget relative to the FY 2022/23 budget, 
which is the addition of resources for the department to reinstitute the Community 
Emergency Response Team (CERT) program. 
 
Position Summary 


Position 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 


Police Chief 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Police Commander 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 


Police Sergeant 6.00 6.00 6.00 7.00 7.00 


Police Officer 19.00 19.00 19.00 20.00 20.00 


Administrative Assistant 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Community Safety Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Community Services Officer 0.96 0.96 2.00 2.00 2.00 


Crossing Guards, part-
time/temporary 0.50 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 


Dispatcher 11.00 11.00 11.00 10.00 10.00 


Lead Dispatcher 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 


Police Property Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Police Records Specialist 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 


Total 46.46 46.21 47.25 49.25 49.25 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 105
622 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


POLICE BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 6,878,974 7,767,344  6,416,963 8,599,718   9,249,920   650,202    7%


Measure S 2006 - 105 1,443,123 1,920,165  1,016,861 1,718,135   1,697,340   (20,795)     -1%


Measure S 2014 - 106 173,457    159,851     119,542    217,607      114,852      (102,755)   -89%


Public Safety Augmentation Fund - 203 143,643    154,595     141,766    387,365      482,009      94,644      20%


Police Grants Fund - 204 85,999      -                 -                -                 -                  -            0%


Traffic Safety Fund - 205 565           9,219         7,675        21,059        21,595        536           2%


Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund - 206 98,192      113,750     97,171      111,067      339,864      228,797    67%


Asset Seizure Adjudicated Fund - 225 -                29,000       16,348      58,231        41,236        (16,995)     -41%


Total 8,823,952 ######### 7,816,326 11,113,182 11,946,816 833,635    7%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 4,537,336 4,807,220 3,717,320 5,651,618 5,941,404 289,786    5%


Overtime - 402 613,386    811,266     640,376    395,701      508,041      112,340    22%


Employee Benefits - 410 2,263,243 2,434,895 2,141,820 3,051,206 3,360,106 308,900    9%


Total Personnel 7,413,965 8,053,381  6,499,516 9,098,525   9,809,551   711,026    7%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 480,627    1,216,780  381,467    633,179      642,274      9,094        1%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 76,310      81,984       69,093      64,250        64,250        -                0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 62,413      88,976       102,916    87,000        87,000        -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 619,349    1,387,740  553,476    784,429      793,524      9,094        1%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 196,153    104,313     105,285    274,424      353,729      79,305      22%


Total Capital Outlay      196,153       104,313      105,285       274,424       353,729 79,305      22%


Debt Service


Debt Principal and interest - 48 -                -                 -                -                 -                  -                0%


Total Debt Service                 -                   -                 -                   -                   -                 - 0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46 (308,940)   (362,438)    (319,697)   (609,906)    (627,259)     (17,353)     3%


Administrative Debits - 46 308,940    362,438     319,697    609,906      627,260      17,354      3%


IS Charges - 46 261,357    251,741     265,321    594,057      516,043      (78,015)     -15%


Legal Charges - 46 12,763      19,057       22,263      20,000        20,000        -                0%


General Liability Insurance - 46 320,365    337,692     370,465    341,746      453,969      112,223    25%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 594,486    608,490     658,049    955,803      990,013      34,209      3%


Total 8,823,952 ######### 7,816,326 11,113,182 11,946,816 833,635    7%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


Police Operations - 221 5,460,052 6,265,935  4,910,127 7,165,842   7,660,826   494,984    6%


Police Support Services -222 1,190,332 1,549,905  1,004,568 1,646,109   1,609,330   (36,778)     -2%


Police West Bay Communications Center - 223 1,988,812 2,215,114  1,796,784 2,169,105   2,315,202   146,097    6%


Police Grants Program - 227 184,755    122,970     104,846    132,126      361,459      229,333    63%


Total 8,823,952 ######### 7,816,326 11,113,182 11,946,816 833,635    7%  


City of Pinole 106
623 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


GENERAL FUND - 100


POLICE OPERATIONS - 221


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual    


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel $ Change  % Change


Salaries & Wages - 401 2,341,401 2,542,922 2,054,578 3,093,950 3,374,436 280,486     8%


Overtime - 402 288,235    361,587    314,082    255,209    256,322    1,113         0%


Employee Benefits - 410 1,028,201 1,123,630 1,072,141 1,503,466 1,844,322 340,856     18%


Total Salary & Benefits 3,657,836 4,028,139 3,440,801 4,852,625 5,475,080 622,455     11%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 172,925    473,556    202,439    220,032    221,032    1,000         0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 61,864      78,537      100,774    85,500      85,500      -                 0%


Total Services and Supplies 234,788    552,093    303,213    305,532    306,532    1,000         0%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 12,186      12,581      44,432      133,873    9,240        (124,633)    -1349%


Total Capital Outlay        12,186        12,581        44,432      133,873          9,240 (124,633)    -1349%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 (308,940)   (362,438)   (319,697)   (609,906)   (627,259)   (17,353)      3%


Legal Charges - 46126 12,763      18,196      22,263      20,000      20,000      -                 0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 193,701    184,950    206,872    189,987    256,648    66,661       26%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations (102,477)   (159,292)   (90,562)     (399,919)   (350,611)   49,308       -14%


Total 3,802,334 4,433,521 3,697,884 4,892,111 5,440,241 548,130     10%


Asset Seizure-Adjudicated - 225


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
-                29,000      16,348      58,231      41,236      (16,995)      -41%


Total -                29,000      16,348      58,231      41,236      (16,995)      -41%


MEASURE S-2006 FUND - 105


Salaries & Wages - 401 739,252 781,560 429,693    902,579 825,375 (77,204)      -9%


Overtime - 402 127,233    93,701      57,210      4,156        104,174    100,018     96%


Employee Benefits - 410 527,789 628,584 474,356    746,630 688,341 (58,289)      -8%


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 6,000        1,493        118           13,300      13,300      -                 0%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -                31,842      -                -                -                -                 0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 42,849      52,478      55,484      51,470      66,150      14,680       22%


Total Measure S-2006 Fund 1,443,123 1,589,658 1,016,861 1,718,135 1,697,340 (20,795)      -1%


MEASURE S-2014 FUND - 106


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -                -                -                -                -                -                 0%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 70,953      59,161      37,269      110,000    -                (110,000)    -100%


Total Measure S-2014 Fund 70,953      59,161      37,269      110,000    -                (110,000)    -100%


PUBLIC SAFETY AUGMENTATION FUND - 203


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
-                -                -                -                20,000      20,000       100%


Administrative Debits - 46122 143,643    154,595    141,766    387,365    337,376    (49,989)      -15%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -                -                -                -                124,633    124,633     100%  


City of Pinole 107
624 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 51,712$      51,712$      


Applicant Processing/Recruiting 16,000$      


EBRCSA Contract - Radios (63) 35,712        


42106  Software Maintenance 23,945$      29,945$      


Lexipol Daily Training Bulletins 4,244$        


Starchase GPS 14,976        


The Police One Academy Training 6,000          


Vigilant Solutions Software 4,725          


42107  Equipment Maintenance 35,100$      35,100$      


Radio Repairs 3,000$        


Vehicle Maintenance 9,000


Vehicle Repairs 18,000


Vehicle Washing 5,100


4230X  Travel and Training 60,800$      75,800$      


Firearms Range Rental 10,800$      


State of CA -- P.O.S.T. 30,000


42304 Cordico App 15,000


42304 Officer Wellness Training 20,000


42401  Memberships 3,175$        3,175$        


CA Crime Prevention Officers Assn 120$           


CA Peace Officers Assn. 320            


CA Police Chief's Assn.  800            


County Police Chiefs' Assn. 1,500          


International Assn. of Police Chiefs 200            


National Assn. of Town Watch 35              


Police Executive Research Forum             200 


42514  Special Department Expense 45,300$      25,300$      


Ammunition and firearm repair 9,800$        


Crime Scene Processing/Field Testing Supplies 7,300          


Miscellaneous Supplies 8,200          


Total Professional/Administrative Services 221,032$     


44301 Fuel 73,000$      73,000$      


44410  Safety Clothing 12,500$      12,500$      


Part-time employee uniforms 3,500$        


Protective Vests 9,000          


4710X  Equipment 133,873$    9,240$        


Ballistic Shield (47105) 2,500$        


Patrol Rifle (47105) 1,840          


Tablets and Docking (47105) 4,900          


MEASURE S-2006 FUND - 105
42107  Equipment Maintenance 4,050$        4,050$        


MDC Repairs 1,650$        


Vehicle Maintenance 1,350


Vehicle Repairs 1,050


42510 Software Purchase 6,000$        6,000$        


   Lefta systems subscription 6,000$         
City of Pinole 108


625 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


42514 Special Department Expense 3,250$        3,250$        


Gunshot trauma kits 700$           


Miscellaneous Supplies 2,550          


Total Professional/Administrative Services 13,300$       


MEASURE S-2014 FUND - 106
47104  Vehicles 110,000$    -$           


1 Vehicle -$           


   1 Vehicle (carryover) 0


Public Safety Augmentation Fund - 203
42514 Special Department Expense -$           20,000$      


   Canine expenses 20,000$      


47101  Equipment -$           124,633$    


Axon Body Worn Camera Program 42,412$      


   EBRCSA Equipment 20,940


   Radio Encryption Equipment 61,281         


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 109
626 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


GENERAL FUND - 100


POLICE SUPPORT SERVICES - 222


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual    


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 255,902 332,319 283,910    413,579 427,087 13,508       3%


Overtime - 402 -               1,989        16,952      -                -                -                 0%


Employee Benefits - 410 137,441 163,706 155,433    229,198 242,266 13,068       5%


Total Salary & Benefits 393,343    498,015    456,295    642,777    669,353    26,576       4%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 278,618 301,293 143,924    279,685 279,685 -                 0%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 63,586      68,581      57,750      53,850      53,850      -                 0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 549           10,191      2,142        1,500        1,500        -                 0%


Total Services and Supplies 342,753    380,065    203,816    335,035    335,035    -                 0%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 110,365    729           1,519        400           20,400      20,000       98%


Debt Principal & Interest - 48 -               -               -                -                -                -                 0%


Total Capital Outlay     110,365            729          1,519             400        20,400 20,000       98%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 -               -               -                -                -                -                 0%


Administrative Debits - 46122 -               -               -                -                -                -                 0%


IS Charges - 46124 226,150    217,906    235,156    536,625    439,297    (97,328)      -22%


Legal Charges -46126 -               -               -                -                -                -                 0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 15,216      21,994      25,510      23,665      30,393      6,728         22%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 241,366    239,900    260,666    560,290    469,690    (90,600)      -19%


Total 1,087,828 1,118,708 922,295    1,538,502 1,494,478 (44,024)      -3%


MEASURE S-2006 FUND - 105


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 0 330,507 -                0 0 -                 0%


Total Measure S-2006 Fund -               330,507    -                -                -                -                 0%


MEASURE S-2014 FUND - 106


Salaries & Wages - 401 70,364      84,448      66,454      88,804      92,845      4,041         4%


Employee Benefits - 410 28,789      11,878      10,786      14,133 15,912 1,779         11%


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
0 49 -                1               -                -                 0%


Administrative Debits - 46122 -               -               -                -                -                -                 0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 3,351        4,315        5,033        4,669        6,095        1,426         23%


102,505    100,690    82,274      107,607    114,852    7,246         6%  


City of Pinole 110
627 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 163,530$    163,530$    


Children's interview center 3,500$        


Contra Costa County Jail fees 49,600        


County Crime Lab Services 58,000


EBCRSA Contract - radios (5) 2,880


Family Justice Center 500


Miscellaneous Professional Services 4,050


SART Exams 5,000


Smart Guardian 10,000


Video Surveillance System 30,000


42106 Software Maintenance 28,000$      8,000$        


CAD/RMS 8,000$        


42107  Equipment Maintenance 7,050$        7,050$        


   Crime prevention vehicle maintenance 1,000$        


Radio Repairs 250            


Vehicle Maintenance 4,000          


Vehicle Repairs 1,500          


Vehicle Washing 300            


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 23,065$      23,065$      


Bldg. Maintenance 1,075$        


Elevator Service (NEC) 650            


HVAC Maintenance (City Mechanical) 1,850          


Janitorial Service (UBS) 17,365        


Janitorial Supplies (UBS) 1,700          


Pest control (Western Exterminator) 425            


42201  Office Expense 24,520$      44,520$      


   CERT Program Supplies 20,000$      


   Community outreach office expenses 5,000


Copier Supplies 500            


Office Supplies 12,720        


Postage & Equipment (Pitney) 3,000          


Printing Services (Concord) 800            


Printing Services (Eagle) 2,500          


42301  Travel and Training 10,100$      10,100$      


Conferences (CALNENA) $1,000


Meetings 500


Non-POST training 5,600


POST training 3,000


42401  Memberships 420$           420$           


California Criminal Justice 75$            


CLEARS  50


C.A.P.E. 45              


IAPE  50              


Nat'l Emergency Number Assn 200            


42501 Bank Fees 1,000$        1,000$        


42514  Special Department Expense 22,000$      22,000$      


   Community outreach promotional items 5,000$        


Crime scene supplies 5,700


Fire extinguisher replacement 380


GSR processing 5,335


Lab supplies, mandated processing material 375            


Misc. special department expenses 4,710          


Photographic supplies 500            


Total Professional/Administrative Fees 279,685$      


City of Pinole 111
628 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


4310X  Utilities 53,850$      53,850$      


Electricity & Gas (PG&E)  $     48,000 


Water (EBMUD)           3,800 


   Cable           2,050 


44301 Fuel -$           -$           


44410 Safety Clothing 1,500$        1,500$        


Aramark Uniform Service


4710X  Equipment 400$           20,400$      


Alex Clark Room Transformation 20,000$      


Fax Machine 400


MEASURE S-2006 FUND - 105
42105 Network Maintenance 330,510$    -$           


CAD/RMS City of San Pablo -$           


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 112
629 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


GENERAL FUND - 100


POLICE DISPATCH WEST BAY COMMUNICATIONS CENTER - 223


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 1,072,000 1,058,072 876,344    1,144,906 1,213,601 68,695        6%


Overtime - 402 190,400    353,989    252,133    136,336    147,545    11,209        8%


Employee Benefits - 410 526,715 506,220 428,250 556,766 568,103 11,337        2%


Total Salary & Benefits 1,789,114 1,918,281 1,556,727 1,838,008 1,929,249 91,241        5%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
23,084      80,882      18,638      57,631      62,721      5,090          8%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 12,724      13,403      11,343      10,400      10,400      -                  0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 248           -                


Total Services and Supplies 35,808      94,532      29,981      68,031      73,121      5,090          7%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47          2,648                 - 22,066      22,651      15,324      (7,327)         -48%


Total Capital Outlay          2,648                 -         22,066        22,651        15,324 (7,327)         -48%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 67,106      94,093      80,760 111,474    126,652    15,178        12%


IS Charges - 46124 35,208      33,835      30,165      57,432      76,746      19,314        25%


Legal Charges - 46126 861           


General Liability Insurance - 46126 58,928      73,512      77,085      71,509      94,110      22,601        24%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 161,241    202,301    188,011    240,415    297,508    57,093        19%


Total 1,988,812 2,215,114 1,796,784 2,169,105 2,315,202 146,097      6%


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 113
630 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 9,645$       9,645$       


800 MHz radio system maintenance 4,265$        


EBCRSA Contract - 5 radios 2,880


Language Interpretation Services 2,500         


42105  Network Maintenance 11,926$      11,926$      


CAD/RMS (City of San Pablo) 11,926$      


42106  Software Maintenance 12,000$      12,000$      


CAD/RMS 12,000$      


42107  Equipment Maintenance 3,910$       9,000$       


Dispatch headset/cord replacement 1,265$        


General equipment maintenance 2,735         


Stancil maintenance 5,000         


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 6,500$       6,500$       


Elevator Service 127$          


HVAC Maintenance 241            


Janitorial Services 5,318         


Janitorial Supplies 757            


Pest Control Service 56              


42201  Office Expense 2,000$       2,000$       


General Office Supplies 2,000$        


4230X  Travel and Training 10,000$      10,000$      


Non-POST training $1,500


Meetings associated with dispatch function 500


Conference attendance for APCO, PSAP, CLEWOA 1,000


POST training 3,000


Dispatcher Training 4,000


42401  Memberships 150$          150$          


WBCC portion of costs for APCO and CLEWOA participation. 150$          


42514  Special Department Expense 1,500$       1,500$       


DOJ fingerprints and background investigations on applicants. 1,500$        


Total Professional/Administrative Services 62,721$        


4310X  Utilities 10,400$      10,400$      


43103 Electricity & Gas (PG&E)  $       9,500 


43102 Water (EBMUD)             800 


   43105 Cable             100 


47107 Furniture -$           15,324$      


   Dispatch Chair Replacement 15,324$      


 


City of Pinole 114
631 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


POLICE GRANT FUND - 204


POLICE GRANTS PROGRAM - 227


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual    


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel $ Change  % Change


Salaries & Wages - 401 58,416 0 -                -                -              -                0%


Overtime - 402 7,518      -              -                -                -              -                0%


Employee Benefits- 410 14,101 0 -                -                -              -                0%


Total Salary & Benefits 80,035    -              -                -                -              -                0%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -              -              -                -                -                0%


Total Services and Supplies -              -              -                -                -              -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


General Liability Insurance- 46201 5,964      -              -                -                -              -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 5,964      -              -                -                -              -                0%


Total 85,999    -              -                -                -              -                0%


TRAFFIC SAFETY FUND - 205


Salaries & Wages - 401 -              7,899      6,341        7,800        8,060      260           3%


Employee Benefits - 410 209         877         854           1,013        1,162      149           13%


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -              0             -                4,300        4,300      -                0%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -              -              -                7,500        7,500      -                0%


General Liability Insurance -46201 356         443         481           446           573         127           22%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 565         9,219      7,675        21,059      21,595    536           2%


SUPPLEMENTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES FUND - 206


Administrative Debits - 46122 98,192    113,750  97,171      111,067    163,232  52,165      32%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -              -              -                -                176,632  176,632    0%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


TRAFFIC SAFETY FUND - 205
42107  Equipment Maintenance 2,000$        2,000$      


Lidar repair & Supplies 2,000$        


42514  Special Department Expense 2,300$        2,300$      


Citation printing 2,300$        


Total Professional/Administrative Services 4,300$        


47101  Equipment 7,500$        7,500$       


City of Pinole 115
632 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Police 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 116
633 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Fire 


FIRE 


The City of Pinole Fire Department provided fire protection and emergency medical 
services to the community for many decades. The department partnered through 
automatic aid with the Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (CCCFPD) and the 
Rodeo-Hercules Fire Protection District (RHFPD) to function as a battalion serving this 
region. CCCFPD Dispatch coordinated the three agencies’ responses to incidents in the 
area.  
 
After many years of considering different service models, in October 2022, the City 
entered into a five-year agreement with CCCFPD through which CCCFPD would provide 
fire protection and emergency medical services in Pinole beginning on March 1, 2023 by 
operating Pinole Fire Station 73 (downtown) and Fire Station 74 (in Pinole Valley). This 
arrangement is made possible by the County’s contribution of $2 million annually from 
Measure X proceeds. 
 
Pinole residents and businesses can receive emergency assistance as before by dialing 
9-1-1. 
 
Residents and businesses can get additional information about fire and emergency 
medical services from CCCFPD using the contact information below. 
 
Contra Costa County Fire Protection District 
Administrative Offices 
4005 Port Chicago Highway, Suite 250 
Concord, CA 94520 
General Phone: (925) 941-3300 
General Email: info@cccfpd.org 
Website: www.cccfpd.org 
 
The City continues to be responsible for wildfire mitigation on City-owned property and 
Code Enforcement of City requirements regarding defensible space and weed 
abatement. 
 
The Fire Department budget for FY 2022/23 and prior years is not directly comparable to 
the amount budgeted for FY 2023/24 and beyond because certain costs that we 
previously accounted for in the Fire Department budget, such as wildfire mitigation on 
City-owned property, have been moved to other City departments. 
 


City of Pinole 117
634 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Fire 


FIRE BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 4,604,923 3,992,507 3,401,853 4,212,704 3,842,727 (369,977)    -10%


Measure S 2006 - 105 457,612    682,546    572,427    777,182    780,955    3,773         0%


Measure S 2014 - 106 367,274    425,909    452,289    574,542    948,303    373,761     39%


Total 5,429,809 5,100,962 4,426,570 5,564,428 5,571,985 7,557         0%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 1,627,419 1,998,936 1,771,929 2,353,804 0 (2,353,804) -100%


Overtime - 402 578,185    561,654    275,285    309,936    -                (309,936)    -100%


Employee Benefits - 410 1,097,045 1,363,515 1,263,368 1,602,331 0 (1,602,331) -100%


Total Personnel 3,302,649 3,924,105 3,310,582 4,266,071 -                (4,266,071) -100%


Services and Supplies
Professional & Administrative Services - 


42
857,617    770,085    719,930    893,700    5,511,485 4,617,785  84%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 69,773      74,494      61,763      53,600      50,500      (3,100)        -6%


Materials & Supplies - 44 48,148      90,699      66,494      66,000      -                (66,000)      -100%


Total Services and Supplies 975,537    935,278    848,186    1,013,300 5,561,985 4,548,685  82%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 954,080    6,614        10,782      4,000        -                (4,000)        -100%


Total Capital Outlay 954,080    6,614        10,782      4,000        -                (4,000)        -100%


Debt Service


Debt Principal and interest - 48 -                -                -                -                -                -                 0%


Total Debt Service -                -                -                -                -                -                 0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46 -                -                -                -                -                -                 0%


Administrative Debits - 46 -                -                -                -                -                -                 0%


IS Charges - 46 73,700      70,056      60,862      119,465    -                (119,465)    -100%


Legal Charges - 46 9,730        17,659      28,376      10,000      10,000      -                 0%


General Liability Insurance - 46 114,113    147,249    167,783    151,592    -                (151,592)    -100%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 197,543    234,965    257,020    281,057    10,000      (271,057)    -2711%


Total 5,429,809 5,100,962 4,426,570 5,564,428 5,571,985 7,557         0%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


Fire Operations - 231 5,429,809 5,100,962 4,426,570 5,564,428 5,571,985 7,557         0%


Total 5,429,809 5,100,962 4,426,570 5,564,428 5,571,985 7,557         0%  


 


City of Pinole 118
635 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


PUBLIC WORKS 


The Public Works Department is comprised of the following divisions: 
 


• Administration and Engineering 


• Road Maintenance 


• Facility Maintenance 


• Park Maintenance 


• Storm Water 


• Environmental Services 


• Water Pollution Control Plant (also referred to as the Wastewater Treatment Plan 
(WWTP)) 


• Sewer Collection 


• Landscape and Lighting Assessment District 


• Real Estate and Property Management 


• Fleet Management 
 
Mission 
 
The Public Works Department designs, constructs, and maintains the City’s capital 
assets, operates the wastewater collection system and treatment plant, and manages the 
City’s properties and fleet. Capital assets include roads and bridges, parks and open 
space, city vehicles and equipment, street and traffic lights, and buildings and structures. 
 
Major Services and Functions 
 
The Administration and Engineering Division provides leadership and support to oversee 
the operations and maintenance of infrastructure. The division develops the City’s Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) and oversees the construction of capital projects, which are 
performed by private construction companies. Staff in this division also serves as the City 
Engineer and City Surveyor for development projects. 
 
The Road Maintenance Division protects, repairs, and maintains the City road 
infrastructure network, which includes pavement, medians, street trees, landscaping, 
traffic signs, pavement markings, streetlights, curbs, and sidewalks. This division 
performs light maintenance of streets, including pothole repair, patch paving, and crack 
sealing. Heavy duty maintenance is performed by private contractors as capital projects. 
The City has an agreement with the County through which the County maintains the traffic 
signals in the City. 
 
The Facility Maintenance Division maintains all of the actively used buildings and 
properties owned by the City. Building maintenance includes landscape maintenance, 
janitorial service, maintenance of heating and ventilation systems, maintenance of all 
mechanical aspects of the buildings, general building maintenance, and making 
improvements as needed. 
 


City of Pinole 119
636 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


The Park Maintenance Division is responsible for maintaining 428.56 acres of park area 
contained within the City’s 15 parks. Park spaces provide a variety of outdoor venues that 
include the swimming pool, skate park, soccer fields, baseball diamonds, neighborhood 
play areas, dog park, creek path, and park pedestrian bridges. Maintenance includes all 
work necessary to keep the public park areas safe, clean, and operating efficiently, 
including maintaining park structures, landscaping, lighting, play equipment, parking 
areas, and irrigation systems. 
 
The Storm Water Division operates the City’s storm water collection system, which 
consists of a network of pipes, manholes, and inlets, and operates programs to reduce 
the intrusion of pollution into the storm water system. The Regional Water Quality Control 
Board regulates storm water discharges from municipal storm drains under the National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program and issued a NPDES permit 
in November 2016 to the region. The City of Pinole works with the Contra Costa Clean 
Water Program (CCCWP) for regional permit administration. This program is funded by 
the stormwater benefit assessment. The Equivalent Runoff cost associated with the 
implementation of this program for 2023/24 remains at $35. Assessment fees are 
collected as part of annual property tax collection. The City of Pinole implements street 
sweeping, storm drain cleaning, and maintenance to protect the cleanliness of 
stormwater. 
 
The Environmental Services Division encourages and promotes recycling, source 
reduction, and reuse in accordance with the mandates of the California Integrated Waste 
Management Act of 1989 (Assembly Bill 939). The City of Pinole, in partnership with the 
Cities of Hercules, El Cerrito, San Pablo, Richmond, and unincorporated areas of West 
County, participate in a joint powers authority known as West Contra Costa Integrated 
Waste Management Authority (WCCIWMA), also known as RecycleMore. The City of 
Pinole partners with the City’s franchise waste management company, Republic Services, 
to meet its obligations under the Waste Reduction Program. Under the arrangement, the 
City is responsible for overseeing Republic’s contract provision of solid waste collection 
to Pinole residents and businesses, RecycleMore is responsible for waste reduction 
education, household hazardous waste collection events, and some compliance reporting 
on behalf of the City; and Republic Services is responsible for actual collections, 
processing, and disposal at landfill. The City receives funding for waste reduction 
activities. The Environmental services division coordinated efforts with local community 
groups (i.e., Friends of the Pinole Creek and Earth Team and PVHS Ocean conservation 
club) and provides support for community cleanup events. 
 
The Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP) Division is responsible for the operation of the 
Pinole-Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant. The WPCP, also referred to as the 
wastewater treatment plant, treats the wastewater of most of the City of Pinole and the 
City of Hercules. The treated effluent is discharged into San Pablo Bay and must meet 
certain water quality standards. The City completed a significant project to upgrade the 
WPCP in 2020. The WPCP is jointly owned by the City of Pinole and the City of Hercules. 
 


City of Pinole 120
637 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


The Sewer Collection Division operates the wastewater (sewer) collection system, which 
is a network of pipes that transports wastewater from its point of origin at residences and 
businesses throughout most of the City to the WPCP. The City of Pinole is only 
responsible for the operation of the wastewater collection system that serves the City of 
Pinole. Hercules is responsible for the operation of the wastewater collection system that 
serves the City of Hercules. 
 
The Landscape and Lighting Assessment District (LLAD) services the City’s one LLAD, 
which is composed of two zones that cover sections of Pinole Valley Road. The LLAD 
was formed by a vote of the property owners. Property owners are charged (assessed) a 
fee each year to raise funding for the operation, maintenance, and renewal of capital 
infrastructure in the LLAD. 
 
The Real Estate and Property Management Division is a new division formed in FY 
2021/22 to centralize responsibility for management of the City’s real estate holdings. The 
City owns a number of properties on which City buildings, parks, parking lots, and open 
space are located. The City is in the process of cataloging and assessing the condition of 
its real property holdings such that it can perform thoughtful long-term planning for and 
management of these assets. 
 
The Fleet Management Division is a new division formed in FY 2021/22 to centralize 
responsibility for the City’s vehicle fleet and major pieces of equipment. 
 
FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments  
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Made numerous physical and process upgrades at the WWTP, including 
automated chemical dosing, upgraded the programming of the blower air delivery 
system, and applied epoxy coating to underground access channels at the 
headworks to protect concrete from hydrogen sulfide damage 


• Wrote a standard operating procedure for storm events to improve operations 
during high flows 


• Worked with Human Resources to implement the results of the WWTP Salary 
Survey 


• Implemented an in-house program to complete infrastructure assessment of the 
wastewater collection system 


• Issued tablets to PW Maintenance Supervisors and issued SMART phone to all of 
PW Maintenance and Operation for interface with Beehive and to streamline 
service requests. 


• Hired new pool maintenance contractor. 


• Provided Pinole Residents with 60 tons of sand and sand bags for winter storms. 


• Refreshed 6,100 feet of red curb, Placed 10 tons of asphalt, Crack sealed 
approximately 2,000 feet of road surface, Refreshed 4 stop bars and legends. 


• Terminated about 30 unused irrigation water connections. 


City of Pinole 121
638 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


• Implemented non-capital recommendations of the Beautification Ad Hoc 
Subcommittee (education and awareness campaign, art program, and community 
clean up events) – Installed new trash bin near Sarah drive trail connector adjacent 
to the bridge. 


• Continued work on a pilot project to install high-capacity solar trash bins at two 
select locations 


• Provided interim traffic control devices and continuing to work with Pinole Middle 
school for permanent improvements on Mann Drive 


• Continuing to work with St. Joseph’s school for improvements at Plum and Pear  


• Completed renovations of Fire Station 74 


• Completed barricade removal at Galbreth Road for fire access 


• Achieved 100% compliance to AB 1826 (Commercial Organics Recycling) for City 
of Pinole. 


• Achieved 100% compliance of organics waste collection per SB 1383 for Pinole. 


• Reconvened and supported the Traffic and Pedestrian Safety Committee 


• Completed Pavement Condition Report 


• Installed lights in the street trees in Old Town for the 2022 holiday season and 
installed holiday road swags  


 
Strategic Plan Strategies 
 


• Completed the Strategic Plan strategy of conducting asset condition assessments 
of some City capital asset types, including the Sanitary Sewer Master Plan (Goal 
1, Strategy 1) (CIP Project) 


 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Projects 
 


• Completed and adopted Local Road Safety Plan 


• Completed the Sanitary Sewer Management Plan 


• Completed digester cleaning and repairs for Digester’s #1 and #3 


• Completed construction of the Women’s Locker Room 


• Replace or upgrade playground surface areas at Fernandez Park and Pinole 
Valley Park – Pinole Valley Park resurfaced. Fernandez Park resurfacing will be 
completed by end of this FY. 


• Continued pedestrian improvement project at railroad crossing at Tennent Ave, 
successful in obtaining OBAG3 grant of $1.02m for the project. 


• Completed replacement of Diesel Tank at Water Pollution Control Plant 


• Continued work on replacement of Air release valve 


• Continued working on Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation – Design contract awarded 


• Continued design work for Senior Center Auxiliary parking lot 


• Advanced the San Pablo Avenue bridge project  
 
Other Council-Directed Special Projects 
 


• Continued disposal and/or visioning for surplus City property 


City of Pinole 122
639 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


• Continued engagement for “Community Corner” 


• Conducted research on a potential citywide project labor agreement (PLA) 
 
FY 2023/24 Key Priorities and Projects 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Fill an Associate Engineer and a Public Works Specialist position 


• Perform litter awareness outreach and education, identify high trash areas and 
facilitate interventions with the help from community groups. 


• Begin work on successor waste collection franchise agreement 
 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Projects 
 


• Complete Active Transportation Plan 


• Safety Improvements at Appian and Marlesta 


• Appian Way complete streets 


• Arterial Rehabilitation 


• Pinole Valley road Improvements 


• Brandt Street improvements 


• Electric Vehicle charging station 


• Hazel Street stormwater improvements 


• Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 


• Senior Center Auxiliary parking lot 


• Design and construction of Bay Trail Gap closure - Pedestrian improvements at 
Railroad crossing at Tennent Ave 


• Recycled water feasibility assessment  


• Municipal broadband feasibility assessment 


• Effluent Outfall 


• Secondary Clarifier - Center Column Rehabilitation 


• Complete preliminary design work and environmental review for San Pablo Ave 
replacement bridge 


• Complete traffic safety improvements at various intersections 


• Perform energy efficiency, generation, and storage assessments for all City 
facilities 


 
Other Council-Directed Special Projects 
 


• Disposal and/or visioning for surplus City property 


• Research on a potential citywide project labor agreement (PLA) 
 
Significant Special Projects for FY 2024/25 through FY 2027/28 
 


• Complete work on successor waste collection franchise agreement 


• Continue through to completion the San Pablo Avenue Bridge Replacement 


City of Pinole 123
640 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


• Provide strategic planning of sewer collection system improvements 


• Seek funding opportunities for pavement maintenance and restoration 


• Prepare a storm drainage master plan to analyze the existing collection system. 
The plan will identify system deficiencies related to capacity, functionality, and 
permit compliance 


• Try new road treatment techniques, such as cape seals, which have a longer 
useful life as compared to traditional slurry seals 


• Integrate facilities into the asset management software to accurately identify cost 
associated to maintain each facility 


• Use Beehive to document and schedule work orders 


• Prepare for our next NPDES permit process 


• Perform follow-up assessment of trash management efforts 
 


Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
The Public Works Department budget for FY 2022/23 includes a number of changes 
relative to the FY 2021/22 budget, particularly regarding positions. The FY 2022/23 
budget includes a new Associate Civil Engineer position and an additional Public Works 
Specialist position, both to accelerate the completion of capital projects. The budget also 
includes a new Development Services Technician position, which will be shared with 
Community Development, to manage GIS, record keeping, digitizing and update of public 
works applications, manage and update website information,  and perform computer-
aided design work. 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


City of Pinole 124
641 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


 
 
Position Summary 
 


Position 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2024/25 


Public Works Director 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 


Development Services Director/City 
Engineer 0.50 0.50 1.00 0.00 0.00 


Senior Project Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 


Capital Improvement and 
Environmental Program Manager 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 


Associate Civil Engineer 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 


Public Works Specialist 1.00 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 


Administrative Assistant 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Management Analyst 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Development Services Technician 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 .50 


Public Works Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Public Works Maintenance 
Supervisor 2.00 2.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 


Public Works Workers 7.00 7.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 


Park Caretaker 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 


Treatment Plant Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


WPCP Operations Supervisor 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


WPCP Senior Operator 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 


WPCP Operator 5.00 5.00 5.00 4.00 4.00 


Environmental Analyst 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Environmental Assistant 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Maintenance Mechanic 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 


WPCP Intern 0.48 0.48 0.48 0.48 0.48 


Total 24.23 23.23 27.73 30.23 30.23 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 125
642 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


PUBLIC WORKS BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 949,421      1,111,014   1,034,978    2,105,788   2,369,030   263,242           11%


Measure S 2014 - 106 386,165      764,039      263,081       3,147,757   7,075,840   3,928,083        56%


Gas Tax Fund - 200 1,376,992   489,964      426,699       1,194,557   1,980,986   786,429           40%


Restricted Real Estate Maintenance Fund - 201 20,119        19,478        12,630         26,000        26,000        -                   0%


Stormwater Fund - 207 272,838      297,976      232,230       336,938      364,766      27,828             8%


AB939 Refuse Management Fund - 213 210,444      106,591      94,690         167,825      174,358      6,533               4%


Solid Waste Fund - 214 47,940        194,241      67,475         382,778      589,381      206,603           35%


Measure J Fund - 215 111,905      129,061      216,316       644,880      1,023,719   378,839           37%


Parkland Dedication Fund - 275 -                  -                  -                   -                  -                  -                   0%


Growth Impact Fund - 276 -                  -                  -                   58,000        1,348,000   1,290,000        96%


Lighting and Landscaping District - 310 53,599        42,611        28,362         62,125        85,175        23,050             27%


PV Park Caretaker Fund - 317 11,268        656             0                  15,055        15,002        (53)                   0%


Public Facilities Fund - 324 3,356          -                  -                   70,000        70,000        -                   0%


City Streets Improvement Fund - 325 448,469      569,001      127,626       1,706,213   2,232,004   525,791           24%


Park Grants (Measure WW) - 327 -                  -                  47,721         189,758      189,758      -                   0%


Arterial Street Rehabilitation - 377 236,007      1,029,962   61,674         810,312      758,624      (51,688)            -7%


Sewer Enterprise Fund - 500 6,036,163   6,611,272   4,741,059    11,388,624 24,145,339 12,756,715      53%


Sewer Enterprise Plant Expansion - 503 635,724      710,011      175,727       -                  -                  -                   0%


Total 10,800,410 12,075,877 7,530,269    22,306,610 42,447,982 20,141,372      47%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 1,948,751 2,144,570 1,988,608 2,831,561 3,168,844 337,283           11%


Overtime - 402 44,185        54,870        53,143         40,779        40,573        (206)                 -1%


Employee Benefits - 410 1,459,701 1,690,789 1,077,741 1,468,249 1,560,905 92,656             6%


Total Personnel 3,452,637   3,890,229   3,119,492    4,340,589   4,770,322   429,733           9%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 958,258      944,847      868,931       1,988,601   2,666,088   677,487           25%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 1,130,344   1,204,272   828,350       998,607      1,087,717   89,110             8%


Materials & Supplies - 44 798,173      1,041,431   840,850       1,600,200   1,607,500   7,300               0%


Total Services and Supplies 2,886,775   3,190,549   2,538,132    4,587,408   5,361,305   773,897           14%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 2,681,144   2,926,925   635,625       10,586,958 29,450,558 18,863,600      64%


Total Capital Outlay    2,681,144    2,926,925        635,625   10,586,958   29,450,558       18,863,600 64%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46 (1,245,056)  (1,385,631)  (1,145,061)   (1,957,735)  (2,059,437)  (101,702)          5%


Administrative Debits - 46 1,479,816   1,647,526   1,383,438    2,338,956   2,409,116   70,160             3%


IS Charges - 46 95,314        107,182      132,608       229,842      277,256      47,414             17%


Legal Charges - 46 30,206        147,172      22,498         63,600        63,600        -                       0%


General Liability Insurance - 46 148,465      151,838      178,262       165,368      227,786      62,418             27%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 508,745      668,087      571,744       840,031      918,321      78,290             9%


Debt Service


Debt Principal - 48101 -                  -                  341,000       1,020,383   1,037,932   17,549             2%


Debt Interest - 48102 621,332      596,719      181,440       591,241      569,544      (21,697)            -4%


Total Debt Service       621,332       596,719        522,440     1,611,624     1,607,476               (4,148) 0%


Depreciation


Depreciation Expense - 47401 496,273      803,369      142,836       340,000      340,000      -                       0%


Total Depreciation       496,273       803,369        142,836        340,000        340,000 -                       0%


Transfers Out 


Transfers Out 49901         153,505                   -                    -                    -                    - -                       0%


Total Transfers Out       153,505                   -                    -                   -                   - -                       0%


Total 10,800,410 12,075,877 7,530,269    22,306,610 42,447,982 20,141,372      47%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


Administration & Engineering - 341 324,856      408,471      448,715       1,225,880   1,076,232   (149,648)          -14%


Road maintenance - 342 2,160,432   2,519,407   906,725       5,474,390   8,388,650   2,914,260        35%


Facility Maintenance - 343 747,667      924,137      618,295       1,757,802   4,524,539   2,766,737        61%


NPDES Storm Water - 344 278,400      316,266      234,732       801,393      1,566,174   764,781           49%


Park Maintenance - 345 353,125      386,548      281,963       1,428,571   1,887,515   458,944           24%


Waste Reduction - 346 210,444      106,591      94,690         167,825      174,358      6,533               4%


Pinole Valley Lighting & Landscaping 347-348 53,599        42,611        28,362         62,125        85,175        23,050             27%


Sewer Treatment Plant - 641 4,359,619   4,718,679   3,325,563    6,289,371   9,751,938   3,462,568        36%


Sewer Collection - 642 1,055,212   1,346,437   893,056       3,487,629   13,385,925 9,898,295        74%


Sewer Projects -Shared - 643 635,724      710,011      175,727       -                  -                  -                       0%


WPCP/Equipment & Debt Svc. (Pinole Only) - 


644 621,332      596,719      522,440       1,611,624   1,607,476   (4,148)              0%


Total 10,800,410 12,075,877 7,530,269    22,306,610 42,447,982 20,141,372      47%  


City of Pinole 126
643 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


GENERAL FUND - 100


PUBLIC WORKS - ADMINISTRATION & ENGINEERING - 341


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual    


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salary & Wages - 401 387,725  375,725  327,284    681,299    751,127    69,828      9%


Overtime - 402 1,800      9,631      4,148        120           123           3               0%


Employee Benefits - 410 176,449 148,234 124,584 258,211 245,592 (12,619)     -5%


Total Salary & Benefits 565,974  533,590  456,016    939,630    996,842    57,212      6%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 17,219    140,749  74,882      207,400    49,625      (157,775)   -318%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -              -              32             -               -               -                #DIV/0!


Total Services and Supplies 17,219    140,749  74,913      207,400    49,625      (157,775)   -318%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                -         2,611 542           252,500    252,500    -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                -         2,611             542       252,500       252,500 -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 (514,784) (562,730) (371,843)   (869,923)  (903,763)  (33,840)     4%


Admin Debits - 46122 6,474      6,949      5,917        58,939      62,361      3,422        5%


IS Charges - 46124 46,154    53,035    77,937      105,110    136,422    31,312      23%


Legal Charges - 46126 8,067      15,300    12,478      8,000        8,000        -                0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 21,998    29,902    43,881      40,707      53,462      12,755      24%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations (432,090) (457,544) (231,630)   (657,167)  (643,518)  13,649      -2%


   Total 151,103  219,407  299,841    742,363    655,449    (86,914)     -13%


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -              -              2,755        150,000    75,000      (75,000)     -100%


Administrative Debits - 46122 59,825    70,077    44,183      146,518    150,317    3,799        3%


Total Measure S - 2014 Fund - 106 59,825    70,077    46,938      296,518    225,317    (71,201)     -32%


GAS TAX FUND - 200


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 2,023      -              2,064        -               -               -                0%


Total Gas Tax Fund - 200 2,023      -              2,064        -               -               -                0%


MEASURE J FUND - 215


Other Operating Expenses - 43 5,055      4,915      1,741        4,400        4,400        -                0%


Administrative Debits - 46122 106,850  114,073  98,131      182,599    191,066    8,467        4%  


 


City of Pinole 127
644 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101 Professional Services 145,000$    10,000$      


General engineering services 10,000$      


42103 Temporary Services 30,000$      -$           


Temporary Services -$           


42107  Equipment Maintenance 500$          1,000$       


Maintenance of office equipment. 1,000$        


42201  Office Expense 1,000$       2,500$       


   General office supplies 2,500$        


4230X  Travel and Training 5,200$       6,750$       


Conference Registration 3,000$        


Mileage Air & Hotel 3,000         


Meal Allowance 750            


42401  Memberships 525$          1,200$       


American Public Works Association (APWA) 225$          


Professional License Renewal 975            


42506 Bonds 175$          175$          


175$          


42510 Software Purchase 25,000$      28,000$      


   Beehive (40%) 8,000$        


   ArcGIS 2,500         


   CAD+Misc 2,500         


   GoGov or Similar 15,000        


Total Professional/Administrative Services 49,625$      


47103 Furniture 2,500$       2,500$       


Furniture 2,500$        


4720X 250,000$    250,000$    


47201 Weatherization/Energy Efficient program 250,000$    


Measure S-2014 Fund - 106
42101 Professional Services 150,000$    75,000$      


On-call consultants for capital projects 75,000$      


MEASURE J FUND - 215
4310X Utilities 4,400$       4,400$       


43101 Telephone 4,000$         


City of Pinole 128
645 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


GAS TAX FUND - 200


ROAD MAINTENANCE - 342


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 222,323    121,333    144,216     123,100    123,100    -                0%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 190,744    193,258    131,022     181,000    181,000    -                0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 872           847           2,280         2,000        2,000        -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 413,938    315,438    277,518     306,100    306,100    -                0%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47*       817,521         19,570 -                633,910    1,433,045 799,135     56%


Total Capital Outlay       817,521         19,570                  -       633,910    1,433,045 799,135     56%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 143,510    154,026    147,118     246,547    233,841    (12,706)     -5%


Legal Charges - 46126 -               930           -                8,000        8,000        -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 143,510    154,956    147,118     254,547    241,841    (12,706)     -5%


    Total 1,374,969 489,964    424,635     1,194,557 1,980,986 786,429     51%


GENERAL FUND - 100


Salary & Wages - 401 36,114      68,775       83,113      99,924      16,811       17%


Overtime - 402 -               148           206            -               -               -                0%


Employee Benefits - 410 5,836 9,813 14,331 16,996 2,665         16%


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 8,601        18,425      15,851       -               180,800    180,800     100%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -               1,686        3,296         -               20,000      20,000       100%


Asset Acquisition/Improvements - 47* -               1,306        -                170,000    370,000    200,000     54%


Admin Credits - 46121 -               (29,000)     (64,332)     (87,804)    (98,815)    (11,011)     11%


Administrative Debits - 46122 23,555      23,640      19,357       28,554      30,320      1,766         6%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 -               4,619        5,147         4,775        6,599        1,824         28%


Total General Fund 32,157      62,774      58,114       212,969    625,824    412,855     66%


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
-               -                -                -               50,000      50,000       100%


Administrative Debits - 46122 -               9,667        50,464       94,184      102,597    8,413         8%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47* 66,590      143,725    292            730,491    1,634,291 903,800     55%


Total Measure S - 2014 66,590      153,392    50,756       824,675    1,786,888 912,213     51%


NPDES Storm Water Fund - 207


Admin Debits - 46122 -               10,000      -                12,005      13,690      1,685         12%


Total NPDES Storm Water Fund -               10,000      -                12,005      13,690      1,685         12%


SOLID WASTE  FUND - 214


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
2,240        24,866      15,139       60,000      60,000      -                0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -               1,468        1,818         7,000        7,000        -                0%


Admin Debits - 46122 -               9,667        44,678       88,478      97,381      8,903         9%


Legal Charges - 46126 -               35,959      5,841         -               -               -                0%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement -47*                 -       122,281 -                102,300    -               (102,300)   -100%


Total Solid Waste Fund 2,240        194,241    67,475       257,778    164,381    (93,397)     -57%


MEASURE C AND J FUND - 215


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -               -                56,899       56,899      51,899      (5,000)       -10%


Admin Debits - 46122 -               9,667        16,083       21,951      24,704      2,753         11%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47* -               406           43,463       377,031    749,650    372,619     50%


Total Measure J Fund -               10,073      116,444     455,881    826,253    370,372     45%


City Streets Improvements Fund - 325


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
-               -                -                -               100,000    100,000     100%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47* 448,469    569,001    127,626     1,706,213 2,132,004 425,791     20%


Total City Streets Improvements 448,469    569,001    127,626     1,706,213 2,232,004 425,791     19%


Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund - 377


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47* 236,007    1,029,962 61,674       810,312    758,624    (51,688)     -7%


Total Arterial Streets Rehab Fund 236,007    1,029,962 61,674       810,312    758,624    (51,688)     -7%


*See CIP  


City of Pinole 129
646 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 101,000$    101,000$    


Audit Services 1,000$        


General engineering survey contract 10,000


Professional engineering support 20,000


Traffic and signal maintenance 70,000


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 20,000$      20,000$      


Hardware supplies and median maintenance 20,000$       


42514  Special Department Expense 2,100$       2,100$       


CCTA congestion management plan administration 2,100$        


Pinole's share of  CTA Congestion Management Plan administrative costs.


Total Professional/Administrative Services 123,100$     


4310X  Utilities 181,000$    181,000$    


Electricity costs for street lights, traffic lights and controls 


Electricity & Gas (PG&E) 180,000$     


EBMUD median irrigation 1,000          


44301 Fuel 2,000$       2,000$       


   Fuel 2,000$        


47205 Improvements/Streets 633,910$    1,433,045$ 


   Pothole Repair Program 40,000$       


   Roadway Stripping Program 15,000        


   RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements 100,000       


   RO2101 Arterial Rehab 896,963       


   RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation 381,082       


General Fund 100
42101  Professional Services -$           170,000$    


IN2106 Active Transportation Plan 170,000$     


42107  Equipment Maintenance -$           8,000$       


Equipment Maintenance 8,000$        


42514  Special Department Expense -$           2,800$       


Special department expense 2,800$        


44306 Maintenance Supplies -$           20,000$      


Maintenance Supplies 20,000$       


47205 Improvements/Streets 170,000$    370,000$    


   RO2107 Brand St. Improvements 170,000$     


   Street Improvements 200,000        


City of Pinole 130
647 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106
42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp -$           50,000$      


   Pedestrian Bridge inspections & Maintenance 50,000        


47101 Equipment 28,000$      1,000$       


   Equipment 1,000          


47104 Vehicles 216,000$    -$           


   Bucket truck and service truck -              


   Staff Car replacement -              


47204 Improvements/Sidewalk 20,000$      20,000$      


   Sidewalk Improvements 20,000        


47205 Improvements/Streets 466,491$    1,613,291$ 


   RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge Replacement 300,000$     


   RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta 193,029       


   RO2302 Safety Improvement Arterial Roadway 35,960        


   RO2303 Pinole Smart Signals 154,302       


   RO2304 Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave/Pear & Plum 910,000       


   Traffic Sign Replacement 20,000        


SOLID WASTE  FUND - 214
42101 Professional Services 16,450$      16,450$      


   Professional Services 16,450$       


42514 Special Department Expense 43,550$      43,550$      


   Patch paving materials 43,550$       


44306 Maintenance Supplies 7,000$       7,000$       


   SB1383 OWR1 grant supplies 7,000$        


47104 Vehicles 102,300$    -$           


   Hydro Flush Truck -$            


MEASURE J FUND - 215
42106 Software Maintenance 5,000$       -$           


-$            


42401 Memberships 51,899$      51,899$      


   WCCTAC Dues 51,899$       


47204 Improvements/Sidewalks 12,031$      12,031$      


   Sidewalk Maintenance Program 12,031$       


47205 Improvements/Streets 365,000$    737,619$    


   Miscellaneous Roadway Repair 15,000$       


   RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge Replacement 133,579


   RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta 350,000       


   RO2302 Safety Improvements on Arterial Roadway 239,040       


Road Maintenance Fund - 325
42101 Professional Services -$           100,000$    


   RO2105 Appian Way Complete Streets Project 100,000       


47205 Improvements/Streets 1,706,213$ 2,132,004$ 


   RO1710 San Pablo Ave Bridge over BNSF 1,540,583$  


   RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta 129,400       


   RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave 44,700        


   RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation 167,321       


   RO2301 Residential Slurry Seal 250,000       


 


City of Pinole 131
648 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


GENERAL FUND - 100


PUBLIC WORKS - FACILITY MAINTENANCE - 343


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 557,296  591,504  493,158    685,885    709,965    24,080      3%


Overtime - 402 7,533      9,328      16,033      1,330        1,268        (62)            -5%


Employee Benefits - 410 329,155 368,599 343,106 478,073 500,858 22,785      5%


Total Salary & Benefits 893,983  969,431  852,298    1,165,288 1,212,091 46,803      4%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 97,606    131,201  117,315    150,050    263,200    113,150    43%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 47,294    36,867    26,035      41,000      44,000      3,000        7%


Materials & Supplies - 44 34,897    66,514    54,749      73,200      73,200      -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 179,796  234,582  198,099    264,250    380,400    116,150    31%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47*       14,389            814 2,119        30,000      12,000      (18,000)     -150%


Total Capital Outlay       14,389            814           2,119        30,000        12,000 (18,000)     -150%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 (640,026) (694,237) (622,775)   (887,713)  (940,463)  (52,750)     6%


Administrative Debits - 46122 -              2,282      -                -               -               -                0%


Legal Charges 46126 -              296         341           -               -               -                0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 64,998    39,071    43,125      39,322      51,414      12,092      24%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations (575,028) (652,588) (579,309)   (848,391)  (889,049)  (40,658)     5%


    Total 513,141  552,239  473,207    611,147    715,442    104,295    15%


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -              -              -                -               310,000 310,000    100%


Administrative Debits - 46122 105,932  130,184  104,654    138,776    143,266    4,490        3%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47* 59,420    222,237  27,805      919,879    2,842,831 1,922,952 68%


Total Measure S - 2014 Fund 165,352  352,421  132,459    1,058,655 3,296,097 2,237,442 68%


RESTRICTED REAL ESTATE MAINTENANCE FUND - 201


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 7,592      7,639      5,940        10,000      10,000      -                0%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 12,527    11,838    6,690        11,000      11,000      -                0%


Legal Charges - 46126 -              -              -                5,000        5,000        -                0%


   Total Restricted Real Estate Maint.       20,119       19,478         12,630        26,000        26,000                  - 0%


SOLID WASTE  FUND - 214


Transfers Out 49901       45,700                - -                -               -               -                0%


Total Solid Waste Fund - 214       45,700                -                  -                 -                 -                  - 0%


MEASURE J FUND - 215


Legal Charges - 46126                -                - -                2,000        2,000        -                0%


Total Measure J Fund - 215                -                -                  -          2,000          2,000                  - 0%


GROWTH IMPACT FUND - 276


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                -                - -                -               425,000    -                0%


Total Growth Impact Fund 276                -                -                  -                 -       425,000                  - 0%


PUBLIC FACILITIES FUND - 324


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 3,356      -              -                60,000      60,000      -                0%


Total Public Facilities Fund         3,356                -                  -        60,000        60,000                  - 0%


*See CIP  
City of Pinole 132


649 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 3,500$       93,500$      


EBRCSA Professional Support 3,500$        


IN2101 Emergency Power for critical Facilities 30,000


IN2103 Recycled Water Feasibility 60,000


42107  Equipment Maintenance 40,000$      40,000$      


Vehicle maintenance and repair 40,000$      


42108  Maintenance/Structure Imp 76,000$      87,000$      


City Hall improvements to planting/landscaping 20,000$      


Elevator maintenance 800            


Heating and air repair 16,000        


Janitorial service and supplies 13,000        


Landscape maintenance 3,000          


Lighting supplies 500            


Memorial Hall Maint.e, Pest Control & Sanitary Supplies (moved from Comm Svcs)11,000        


Misc. hardware and maintenance 1,000          


Pest control and weed control 10,700        


Public facilities deferred maintenance 11,000        


42201 Office Expense -$           3,000$       


3,000$        


4230X  Travel and Training 2,100$       11,750$      


Technical training 10,000$      


Mileage, Air & Hotel 1,500


Meal Allowance 250


42401  Memberships 750$          750$          


M.S.A. (Maintenance Superintendents Association) 750$           


T.C.S.A. (Traffic Control Supervisory Association)


Technical publications


42511  Equipment Rental 25,000$      20,000$      


This is used to rent infrequently used equipment. 20,000$      


42513 Rent 2,700$       2,700$       


Tennent Ave Parking lot. 401-142-012 (AT&T) 2,700$        


42514  Special Department Expense -$           4,500$       


4,500$        


Total Professional/Administrative Services 263,200$    


4310X  Utilities 37,000$      40,000$      


Gas/Electricity 24,000$      


Memorial Hall Electricity (moved from Comm Svcs.) 500$           


Water 13,000


Memorial Hall Water (moved from Comm Svcs.) 2,500


43201 Property Tax 4,000$       4,000$       


44301 Fuel 8,200$       8,200$        


City of Pinole 133
650 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


44306 Maintenance Supplies 45,000$      45,000$      


44410  Safety Clothing 20,000$      20,000$      


The worker classifications in this division are supplied: 20,000$      


Uniforms, coveralls, and foul weather gear


47101 Equipment -$           12,000$      


   Miscellaneous Equipment 12,000$      


47201 Improvements/Building 30,000$      -$           


-$           


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106
42101 Professional Services -$           310,000$    


   IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility 60,000$      


   IN2201 Energy Audit 50,000


   IN2301 Facilities Master Plan 200,000


47101 Vehicles 274,318$    -$           


   Hybrid Bucket Truck -$           


47201 Improvements/Building 645,561$    2,842,831$ 


   FA1702 Citywide Roof Repairs and Replacement 900,000$    


   FA1703 City Hall Modernization 125,000$    


   FA1901 Senior center Auxiliary Parking Lot 1,327,831


   FA1902 Energy Upgrades 150,000


   FA2202 Senior Center Modernization 115,000


   FA2301 Public Safety Building Modernization 225,000


RESTRICTED REAL ESTATE MAINTENANCE FUND - 201


42108  Maintenance/Structure Imp 10,000$      10,000$      


   Materials to maintain facilities owned by the 10,000$      


former Redevelopment Agency.


4310X  Utilities 11,000$      11,000$      


Gas/Electricity 5,000$        


Water 6,000


MEASURE J FUND - 215
47202 Improvements/Landscape-Medians 2,000$       2,000$       


   Sign Replacement Program 2,000$        


GROWTH IMPACT FUND - 276
47201 Improvements/Building -$           425,000$    


   FA1703 City Hall Modernization 125,000$    


   FA2202 Senior Center Modernization 145,000


   FA2301 Public Safety Building 75,000


   FA2302 Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements 80,000


PUBLIC FACILITIES FUND - 324  


City of Pinole 134
651 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


STORM WATER FUND - 207


PUBLIC WORKS - National Pollution Discharge Elimination Systems (NPDES) STORM WATER - 344 


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev


Prop to 


Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 32,610   32,610    42,790      49,318    61,000      11,682      19%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 -             -              -                -              -               -                0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 10,254   18,686    8,378        8,800      8,800        -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 42,863   51,296    51,168      58,118    69,800      11,682      17%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 229,588 236,530  181,062    260,815  275,276    14,461      5%


Legal Charges - 46126 386        150         -                6,000      6,000        -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 229,974 236,680  181,062    266,815  281,276    14,461      5%


   Total 272,838 287,976  232,230    324,933  351,076    26,143      7%


MEASURE S-2014 FUND - 106


Professional & Administrative Services - 42              -               - -                -              75,000      75,000      -100%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47*       5,562       28,290 2,502        418,460  1,082,098 663,638    61%


Total Measure S-2014       5,562       28,290           2,502     418,460    1,157,098       738,638 64%


Growth Impact Fund - 276


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47*              -               - -                58,000    58,000      -                0%


Total Growth Impact Fund - 276              -               -                  -       58,000        58,000                 - 0%


*See CIP  


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 135
652 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 5,000$      5,000$       


Contract support for Clean Water and NPDES 5,000$        


42107  Equipment Maintenance 20,000$    20,000$      


Storm drain, trash capture, street sweeper 20,000$      


42108  Building Structure Maintenance 14,779$    15,000$      


Trash capture devices 5,000$        


Lumber and supplies 10,000        


4220X  Office Expenses 1,000$      1,000$       


42201 Miscellaneous office expenses 500$           


42202 Printing and Binding 500            


42514 Special Departmental Expense 8,539$      20,000$      


CCC Clean Water Program Support & Administration (auto collected) -$           


NPDES Annual Permit 20,000        


Total Professional/Administrative Services 61,000$      


44301 Fuel 8,000$      8,000$       


44410 Safety Clothing 800$        800$          


MEASURE S-2014 FUND - 106
42101 Professional Services -$         75,000$      


   IN1703 Storm Drainage Master Plan 75,000$      


47206 Improvements/Storm Drains 418,460$  1,082,098$ 


   SW1901 Hazel St. Strom Drain Improvements 382,098$    


   SW2001 Roble Rd. Drainage Improvements 700,000      


Growth Impact Fund 276
47206 Improvements/Storm Drains 58,000$    58,000$      


   SW1901 Hazel Street Gap Closure (sunnyview) 58,000$       


City of Pinole 136
653 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


GENERAL FUND - 100


PUBLIC WORKS - PARK MAINTENANCE - 345


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 92,314    114,757  60,843      324,900  144,000  (180,900)   -126%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 108,377  91,493    62,016      100,156  106,656  6,500        6%


Materials & Supplies - 44 2,932      13,191    8,970        500         500         -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 203,624  219,441  131,828    425,556  251,156  (174,400)   -69%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47*           487         4,986 -               -              -              -                0%


Total Capital Outlay           487         4,986                 -                -                - -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 47,110    50,451    71,989      113,753  121,159  7,406        6%


Legal Charges - 46126 1,800      540         -               -              -              -                0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 -              1,176      -               -              -              -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 48,910    52,167    71,989      113,753  121,159  7,406        6%


    Total 253,021  276,595  203,817    539,309  372,315  (166,994)   -45%


MEASURE S-2014 FUND - 106


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
-              -              -               120,000  -              (120,000)   -100%


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47*       88,836     109,297 30,426      429,449  610,440  180,991    30%


Total Measure S-2014 Fund - 106       88,836     109,297        30,426     549,449     610,440 60,991      10%


Solid Waste Fund - 214


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47*                -                - -               125,000  425,000  300,000    71%


Total Solid Waste Fund - 214                -                -                 -     125,000     425,000 300,000    71%


Growth Impact Fund - 276


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                -                - -               -              265,000  265,000    0%


Total Parkland Dedication Fund - 276                -                -                 -                -     265,000 265,000    0%


PV PARK CARETAKER FUND - 317


Salaries & Wages - 401 8,892      -              -               11,960    11,960    -                0%


Employee Benefits - 410 1,050      -              -               1,555      1,725      170           11%


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -              -              0               -              -              -                0%


Other Operating Expenses -43 697         656         -               856         466         (390)          -84%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 629         -              -               684         851         167           24%


Total PV Park Caretaker Fund - 317       11,268           656                0       15,055       15,002 (53)            0%


Public Facilities Fund - 324


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                -                - -               10,000    10,000    -                0%


Total Public Facilities Fund  - 324                -                -                 -       10,000       10,000 -                0%


Park Grants (Measure WW) - 327


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47*                -                - 47,721      189,758  189,758  -                0%


Total Park Grants Fund - 327                -                -        47,721     189,758     189,758 -                0%


*See CIP  


City of Pinole 137
654 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 25,000$    -$         


   Professional Support Services -$           


   Park Pedestrian Bridge Inspection 0


42107  Equipment Maintenance 7,500$      7,500$      


Off road equipment maintenance 7,500$       


42108  Maintenance/Structure Imp 227,000$  120,500$  


   Landscape maintenance contract 90,000$      


   Materials for parks, restrooms and play area 30,000


   Tennis Court Maintenance (moved from Comm Svcs.) 500


42401  Memberships 400$         1,000$      


CAPCA (California Agricultural Production 370$          


Consultants Association)


P.A.P.A. (Pest Applicators Association) 30


Other memberships 600


42511  Equipment Rental 5,000$      5,000$      


   Cost to rent infrequently used equipment. 5,000$       


42514  Admin Exp/Special Depart 60,000$    10,000$    


    Recommendations of Beautification Ad Hoc Subcommittee 10,000$      


Total Professional/Administrative Services 144,000$     


4310X  Utilities 100,000$  106,500$  


Gas/Electricity 10,000$      


Tennis Ct. Gas/Electricity (moved from Comm Svcs.) 6,000$       


Water 90,000


Tennis Ct. Water (moved from Comm Svcs.) 500


43201 Property Tax 156$         156$         


44301 Fuel 500$         500$         


MEASURE S-2014 FUND - 106
47101 FF&E/Equipment 17,009$    28,000$    


28,000$      


47103 FF&E/Furniture 5,000$      5,000$      


   Annual Bench/Table repairs & Replacement 5,000$       


47104 Vehicles 45,000$    -$         


   Vehicles -$           


47203 Improvements/Parks 362,440$  577,440$  


   Annual Resod at two parks 10,000$      


   IN1704 Park Master Plan 150,000


   PA2202 Skatepark Rehabilitation 150,000


   PA2301 Tree Mitigation 150,000


   PA2203 Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements 47,440  


City of Pinole 138
655 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


   Public Tree Maintenance 20,000


   Replace Chips/Rubber Matting at various Parks 50,000


Solid Waste Fund - 214
47203 Improvements/Parks 125,000$  425,000$  


   PA2101 Installation of High Capacity Trash Bins 425,000$    


Growth Impact Fund - 276
47203 Improvements/Parks 265,000$  


   PA1901 Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehab 200,000$    


   PA2201 Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd. 65,000


Public Facilities Fund - 324
47203 Improvements/Parks 10,000$    10,000$    


  Annual Building Maintenance program 10,000$      


  


Park Grants (Measure WW) Fund - 327  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 139
656 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


AB 939 REFUSE MANAGEMENT FUND - 213


WASTE REDUCTION - 346


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -              -              -                22,500    22,500    -                0%


Other Operating Expenses -43 -              -              -                -              -              -                0%


Total Services and Supplies -              -              -                22,500    22,500    -                0%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -              -              -                -              -              -                0%


Total -              -              -                -              -              -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 102,639  106,591  94,690      142,825  149,358  6,533        4%


Legal Services - 46126 -              -              -                2,500      2,500      -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 102,639  106,591  94,690      145,325  151,858  6,533        4%


Transfers Out - 49901 107,805  -              -                -              -              -                0%


   Total 210,444  106,591  94,690      167,825  174,358  6,533        4%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 10,000$    10,000$    


Consulting Services 10,000$      


42514  Special Department Expense 12,500$    12,500$    


   Litter pick up services 12,500$       


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 140
657 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


LIGHTING & LANDSCAPE DISTRICTS FUND - 310


PUBLIC WORKS - ZONE A, PINOLE VALLEY ROAD NORTH - 347


PUBLIC WORKS - ZONE B, PINOLE VALLEY ROAD SOUTH - 348


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 35,360    15,228    15,835      33,450    56,500    23,050      41%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 15,059    25,858    8,367        16,695    16,695    -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 50,418    41,086    24,202      50,145    73,195    23,050      31%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                -                - -                5,720      5,720      -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                -                -                  -         5,720         5,720 -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 2,000      -              4,160        4,160      4,160      -                0%


Legal Charges - 46126 1,181      1,525      -                2,100      2,100      -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 3,181      1,525      4,160        6,260      6,260      -                0%


   Total 53,599    42,611    28,362      62,125    85,175    23,050      27%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 14,000$    18,000$    


Contra Costa County traffic signal maintenance - Zone A 10,000$      


Cal Trans traffic signal maintenance - Zone A 2,000          


Contra Costa County traffic signal maintenance - Zone B 5,000          


Cal Trans traffic signal maintenance - Zone B 1,000          


42108  Maintenance Structures/Imp 19,450$    38,500$    


Caltrans Traffic Signal Maintenance - Zone A 3,000          


Contra Costa county Public Works Traffic Signal - Zone A 8,000          


Labor, materials and equipment for maintenance - Zone A 1,000          


Pacific Site Management - Zone A 1,500          


Caltrans Traffic Signal Maintenance - Zone B 3,500          


Contra Costa county Public Works Traffic Signal - Zone B 5,500          


Labor, materials and equipment for maintenance - Zone B 15,000        


Pacific Site Management - Zone B 1,000          


Total Professional/Administrative Services 56,500$      


4310X  Utilities 16,695$    16,695$    


Water (EBMUD) - Zone A 3,800$        


Electricity & Power - Zone A 4,765          


Water (EBMUD) - Zone B 2,800          


Electricity & Power - Zone B 5,330          


47202  Kaiser Medians 5,720$      5,720$      


Capital Replacement Fund- Zone A 2,600$        


PG&E Street and highway lighting - Zone B 3,120$         
City of Pinole 141


658 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND - 500


SEWER TREATMENT PLANT - 641


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 741,861    878,466    888,010    1,088,962 1,307,576 218,614    17%


Overtime - 402 29,534      30,180      26,271      36,010      36,476      466           1%


Employee Benefits - 410 837,547    1,025,647 475,733    547,954    622,392    74,438      12%


Total Personnel 1,608,943 1,934,293 1,390,014 1,672,926 1,966,444 293,518    15%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
348,643    194,110    117,017    373,000    376,814    3,814        1%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 736,747    827,105    583,167    630,000    710,000    80,000      11%


Materials & Supplies - 44 737,165    924,111    744,021    1,494,000 1,479,000 (15,000)     -1%


Total Services and Supplies 1,822,556 1,945,326 1,444,204 2,497,000 2,565,814 68,814      3%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47* 172,459    604           116,967    1,365,382 4,401,597 3,036,215 69%


Total Capital Outlay      172,459             604      116,967   1,365,382   4,401,597 3,036,215 69%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 276,932    303,060    163,728    257,116    285,041    27,925      10%


IS Charges - 46124 29,901      33,067      32,826      77,577      82,394      4,818        6%


Legal Charges - 46126 5,997        1,577        -                15,000      15,000      -                0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 48,175      61,893      69,389      64,370      95,648      31,278      33%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 361,005    399,597    265,943    414,063    478,083    64,021      13%


Depreciation


Depreciation Expense - 47401 394,657    438,859    108,435    340,000    340,000    -                0%


Total Depreciation      394,657      438,859      108,435      340,000      340,000 -                0%


Total 4,359,619 4,718,679 3,325,563 6,289,371 9,751,938 3,462,568 36%


*See CIP  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 142
659 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 85,000$      85,814$      


Engineering contract services 50,000$      


PCTV quarterly subcommittee meeting 5,000          


Railroad Ave. bridge right of way study 30,000        


RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation 814            


42107  Equipment Maintenance 110,000$    110,000$    


Equipment service 110,000$    


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 78,000$      78,000$      


Janitorial services 10,000$      


Various structure refurbishment 68,000        


42109  Compliance Inspections 35,000$      35,000$      


Laboratory supplies and safety equipment 15,000$      


Public outreach materials 10,000        


Sampling analysis 10,000        


42201  Office Expense 7,000$        7,000$        


Miscellaneous office supplies 7,000$        


4230X  Travel and Training 28,000$      31,000$      


42301 State Certified operators training 7,000$        


42301 Class B Driver License Training 20,000        


42302 Mileage, Air 3,000          


42303 Meal Allowance 1,000          


42401  Memberships 20,000$      20,000$      


Bay Area Clean Water Assoc.(BACWA) 12,000$      


Joint CWEA/WEF membership 4,000          


Technical publications 4,000          


42511  Equipment Rental 10,000$      10,000$      


10,000$      


Total Professional/Administrative Services 376,814$    


4310X  Utilities 630,000$    710,000$    


PG&E 700,000$    


EBMUD 10,000        


Total Other Operating Expenses 710,000$    


44301 Fuel 10,000$      20,000$      


44302  Sludge Removal 280,000$    250,000$    


Digester Cleaning 250,000$    


44303  Chemicals 750,000$    750,000$    


Chemicals for Plant Operations 750,000$    


44304  Permit Fees 129,000$    129,000$    


BAAQMD 16,000$      


BACQA 16,000        


NPDES permit fee renewal 75,000        


Regional Monitoring of Metals (SFEI) 22,000        


44305  Laboratory Operations 100,000$    100,000$    


Accelerated Chronic Toxinicy Testing 15,000$      


Laboratory supplies 85,000         


City of Pinole 143
660 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


44306  Maintenance Supplies 200,000$    200,000$    


  200,000$    


44410  Safety Clothing 25,000$      30,000$      


Laundry service for uniforms, safety shoes/boots, gloves, etc. 30,000$      


Total Materials and Supplies 1,479,000$  


47101 Equipment 340,000$    340,000$    


Depreciation- Pinole only 340,000$    


47104 Vehicles 125,000$    175,000$    


WPCP Staff Vehicle 50,000$      


Portable self priming pump 125,000      


47201 Improvements/Building 1,230,000$  4,120,000$  


As-Built WWTP Drawings 25,000        


   Boiler Rehabilitation 45,000        


   Centrifuge Feed Pump Replacement 50,000        


   Digester Feed Pump Replacement 75,000        


   Energy Recovery Building  and Admin Roof 80,000        


   Misc. Plant Improvements 75,000        


   SCADA System Upgrade 45,000        


   SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel 100,000      


   SS2101 Second Clarifier - Center Column Rehabilitation 425,000      


   SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacement 50,000        


   SS2203 Effluent Outfall Project Design 3,150,000   


47205 Improvements/Street 10,382$      106,597$    


RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation 106,597       


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 144
661 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND - 500


SEWER COLLECTION - 642


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 252,977    262,761    211,381    280,342    288,292       7,950         3%


Overtime - 402 5,318        5,583        6,484        3,319        2,706           (613)          -23%


Employee Benefits - 410 115,501    142,473    124,505    168,125    173,342       5,217         3%


Total Personnel 373,796    410,817    342,370    451,786    464,340       12,554       3%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 88,227      143,904    180,943    307,984    656,650       348,666     53%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 13,845      12,281      9,313        13,500      13,500         -                0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 12,054      14,928      17,307      14,700      17,000         2,300         14%


Total Services and Supplies 114,125    171,113    207,563    336,184    687,150       350,966     51%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 147,743    854           19,385      2,192,553 11,133,000  8,940,447  80%


Total Capital Outlay      147,743             854        19,385   2,192,553   11,133,000   8,940,447 80%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 (90,247)     (99,664)     (86,110)     (112,295)   (116,396)     (4,101)       4%


Administrative Debits - 46122 375,401    410,663    337,224    541,736    524,579       (17,157)     -3%


IS Charges - 46124 19,259      20,783      21,504      47,155      58,440         11,284       19%


Legal Charges - 46126 855           1,621        -                15,000      15,000         -                0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 12,664      15,177      16,719      15,510      19,812         4,302         22%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 317,932    348,580    289,337    507,106    501,435       (5,672)       -1%


Depreciation


Depreciation Expense - 47401 101,616    364,510    34,401      -                -                  -                0%


Total Depreciation      101,616      364,510        34,401                 -                    - -                0%


Total 1,055,212 1,295,873 893,056    3,487,629 12,785,925  9,298,295  73%


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47* -                50,563      -                -                -                  -                0%


Total Measure S - 2014 -                50,563      -                -                -                  -                0%


Growth Impact Fund - 276


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47* -                -                -                -                600,000       600,000     0%


Total Growth Impact Fund - 276 -                -                -                -                600,000       600,000     0%  


 


 


 


City of Pinole 145
662 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 255,000$    585,000$       


Contractors for isolated emergency repairs 50,000$      


CCTV Large Sewer pipes 50,000        


Sanitary Sewer overflow mitigation 120,000      


Sewer flow modeling 10,000        


Wildan Assessment services 5,000          


Misc. Professional Services 350,000      


42107  Equipment Maintenance 20,000$      20,000$         


Vehicle maintenance and repair 20,000$      


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 2,500$        2,500$          


2,500$        


42201  Office Expense 150$           150$             


   Office supplies, includes reprinting of map books. 150$           


42301  Travel and Training 1,000$        1,000$          


Technical training programs for sewer maintenance, 1,000$        


confined space entry and street safety procedures.


42401  Memberships 1,000$        1,000$          


Joint CWEA/WEF membership 765$           


Technical publications 235$           


42510 Software Purchase 8,334$        12,000$         


Asset Management Software-annual license fee 12,000$      


42511 Equipment Rent 5,000$        5,000$          


5,000$        


42514  Special Department Expense 15,000$      30,000$         


Maintenance materials (asphalt, concrete, pipe, hardware, etc.) 30,000$      


Total Professional/Administrative Services 656,650$     


4310X  Utilities 13,500$      13,500$         


PG&E 9,000$        


EBMUD 4,500          


44301 Fuel 8,000$        8,000$          


44304 Permit Fee 3,000$        3,000$          


SWRCB Permit Fee 3,000$        


44410  Safety Clothing 3,700$        6,000$          


Uniforms, coveralls, foul weather gear, gloves 6,000$        


47104 Vehicles 207,700$    -$              


Hydro Flush Truck -                 


47201  Improvements 1,984,853$  11,133,000$  


Deferred Collection repairs 250,000$    


SS1702 Sewer Pump Rehab 6,783,000$  


   SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 4,100,000   


Growth Impact Fund  - 276
47207 Improvements/Sewer Lines -$           600,000$       


   SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 600,000$     


City of Pinole 146
663 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


SEWER ENTERPRISE PLANT EXPANSION FUND - 503


SEWER PROJECTS - SHARED - 643


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Service and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 3,500        25             16,444      -                -                -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 3,500        25             16,444      -                -                -                0%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition /Improvement - 47 0 0 0 0 0 -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                 -                 -                 -                 -                 - -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Legal Charges - 46126 11,920      89,571      4,179        -                -                -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 11,920      89,571      4,179        -                -                -                0%


Depreciation


Depreciation Expense - 47401 620,304    620,415    155,104    -                -                -                0%


Total Depreciation      620,304      620,415      155,104                 -                 - -                0%


Total 635,724    710,011    175,727    -                -                -                0%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services -$           -$           


   Construction Management of Plant Upgrades -$               


   Hercules-Construction management of plan


42501 Bank Fees -$           -$           


   Wells Fargo Bank Fees -$           


47201  Building -$           -$           


WPCP upgrades- Contingency -$           


WPCP upgrades- HDR -$           


WPCP upgrades- Hercules Share -$           


WPCP upgrades- Kiewit -              


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 147
664 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Public Works 


SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND - 500


WPCP / EQUIPMENT AND DEBT SERVICE (PINOLE ONLY) - 644


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Service and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -                -                -                -                -                -                0%


Total Services and Supplies -                -                -                -                -                -                0%


Debt Service


Debt Principal - 48101 -                -                341,000    1,020,383 1,037,932 17,549      2%


Debt Interest - 48102 621,332    596,719    181,440    591,241    569,544    (21,697)     -4%


Cost of Issuance - 48103 -                -                -                -                -                -                0%


Total Debt Service      621,332      596,719      522,440   1,611,624   1,607,476        (4,148) 0%


Total 621,332    596,719    522,440    1,611,624 1,607,476 (4,148)       0%


SEWER ENTERPRISE PLANT EXPANSION FUND - 503


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
-                -                -                -                -                -                0%


Legal Charges - 46126 -                -                -                -                -                0%


-                -                -                -                -                -                0%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services -$           -$           


Auditing Services -$               


4810X  Wastewater Revenue Bonds, Series 2016 522,440$    518,292$    


48101 - Principal 347,000$    


48102 - Interest 171,292      


4810X  2016 Clean Water State Revolving fund loan 1,089,184$  1,089,184$  


48101 - Principal 690,932$    


48102 - Interest 398,252      


SEWER ENTERPRISE PLANT EXPANSION FUND - 503


42501 Bank Fees -$           -$           


Wells Fargo Bank Fees -$                


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 148
665 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 
 
The Community Development Department is comprised of the following divisions: 
 


• Planning; 


• Building; 


• Code Enforcement; 


• Affordable Housing; 


• Economic Development; and 


• Redevelopment Successor Agency 
 
Mission 
 
The mission of the Community Development Department is to guide orderly growth and 
development in Pinole, consistent with the General Plan and priorities of the City Council, 
and to protect the quality of life, health, safety, and welfare of residents. 
 
Major Services and Functions 
 
The Planning Division administers and implements the General Plan and Zoning Code 
for the City. It processes land use and development applications, which include use 
permits, design review requests, and subdivisions. The Planning Division seeks to deliver 
on its mission with the highest regard for time, accuracy, completion, customer 
satisfaction, and overall well-being of the City consistent with local, State, and federal 
laws. Planning staff participate in multi-modal transportation and circulation planning. 
 
The Building Division issues building permits and provides building, electrical, 
mechanical, plumbing, Title-24, and accessibility inspections for new construction, 
additions, and alterations of commercial, residential, and public projects to ensure a safe 
environment for the Pinole community. The division also performs rental housing 
inspections on a recurring basis and business license inspections on an as-needed basis. 
The division investigates citizens’ complaints pertaining to construction code compliance 
and/or health and safety issues in a prompt and courteous manner. 
 
The Code Enforcement Division investigates and addresses citizens’ complaints of health 
and safety issues. These issues include blight and graffiti, abandoned vehicles, and illegal 
dumping. The division is complaint driven and maintains a proactive environment to help 
solve community problems in a collaborative and effective manner. 
 
The Affordable Housing Division functions include ensuring that facilities that have 
received City financial assistance to create affordable housing units comply with 
affordability agreements and investing limited City affordable housing resources to 
provide affordable housing units and support to the homeless. 
 


City of Pinole 149
666 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


The Economic Development Division is a relatively new division, instituted in FY 2021/22. 
It coordinates with the City Manager department to create economic development 
strategies for the City and is responsible for carrying out those strategies.  
 
The purpose of the Redevelopment Successor Agency Division is to effectively wind 
down the activities of the Redevelopment Successor Agency by administering the 
remaining enforceable obligations. 
 
FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Upgraded and migrated the City’s current outdated permitting system, including a 
new online citizen portal for paperless Building, Planning, Public Works and 
Finance permitting and licensing, in addition to other integrations such as GIS 
and code enforcement tools 


• Continued to develop and refine forms, policies and procedures related to 
building and planning permits and code enforcement processes 


• Lead the recommencement the Development Impact Fee study 


• Secured a $40,000 grant to implement an automated solar permitting application 
for residential rooftop solar installations, creating efficiencies and enhancing the 
City’s compliance with solar permitting regulations 


• In the first three quarters of FY 2022/23, guided the issuance of 454 construction 
permits with a value of almost $9 million 


• In the first three quarters of FY 2022/23, performed 1,599 inspections for building, 
electrical, mechanical, plumbing, Title-23 and accessibility inspections for new 
construction, additions and alternations of commercial, residential and public 
projects 


• Launched GreenHalo waste management/recycling tracking system in order to 
automate the management, verification and filing of recovery reports  


• Continued to offer “Solar Tuesdays” over the counter solar permitting and 
introduced “Minor Permit Thursdays” to expedite permit processing for minor 
projects including reroofs, water heater replacements, window and door retrofit and 
repair and kitchen and bathroom remodels 


• Conducted outreach and prepared updates to the City’s General Plan Elements 
(Housing, Safety and Health/Environmental Justice) 


• Partnered with Strategic Energy Institute to engage a Climate Corps Fellow to 
provide assistance for sustainability initiatives 


• Submitted reimbursement for LEAP and REAP grant funding (totaling $85,000 for 
Housing Element update activities) 


• Initiated project to create objective design and development standards 


• Developed and presented a framework for outdoor dining/parklet regulations to the 
City Council 


• In the first three quarters of FY22/23, opened 485 and closed 444 code 
enforcement cases and performed 1,782 code enforcement inspections  


City of Pinole 150
667 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


• Established a Tobacco Retailer License fee and ensured that tobacco retailers 
comply with application requirements  


• Assisted the Department of Public Works and the City Attorney’s Office on the sale 
of 612 Tennent Avenue (the “Collin’s House”) and development of four housing 
units at the site, including one affordable unit 


• Worked with the developer of the 811 San Pablo Avenue project (SAHA) to request 
additional Housing Funds in the form of an enhanced construction loan, and held 
a “TEFRA” hearing to support the issuance of tax exempt revenue bonds for the 
project 


 
Strategic Plan Strategies 
 


• Prepared and adopted a five-year Economic Development Strategy (a Strategic 
Plan item) and commenced year one activities 


 
Other Council-Directed Special Projects 
 


• With the Finance Department, assisted with research on environmental 
purchasing policies/practices 


• With the City Manager Department, assisted with Earth Month events in Pinole 


• Designed, launched and administered the Pinole Perks Community Gift Card 
program, which has resulted in over $140,000 at local independent businesses 


• Began to prepare the City’s first Climate Action and Adaptation Plan 


• Conducted outreach related to single use plastics, including hosting a Single Use 
Plastics expo and seeking resident and business input through a survey and 
commence drafting recommendations for single use plastic regulations 


• Presented background information on Just Cause Eviction regulations to the City 
Council 


 
FY 2023/24 Key Priorities and Projects 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Commence implementation of a variety of Year I 6th Cycle Housing Element 
programs 


• Continue to partner with SEI to engage a Climate Corps fellow to provide 
assistance for sustainability initiatives 


• Work with the new owner of Pinole Square (Tara Hills Safeway) on redevelopment 
of the site 


• With the Finance department, prepare and present recommended updates to 
development impact fees 


• With the Planning Commission, prepare regulations for outdoor dining/parklets for 
City Council consideration 


• Prepare and adopt objective design and development standards; evaluate 
required/desired updates to the General Plan, Specific Plan and Zoning Ordinance 
and Old Town Design  Guidelines 


City of Pinole 151
668 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


• Implement improved/enhanced residential rental housing inspection program 


• Complete the sale and transfer of the affordable housing fund and Redevelopment 
Successor Agency surplus properties 


• Nurture an inviting climate for doing business in Pinole  
 
Strategic Plan Strategies 
 


• Continue to implement year one activities of the Economic Development Strategy 


• Evaluate the need to update the General Plan and Three Corridors Specific Plan 
Environmental Impact Report so that high-density residential projects could utilize 
the EIR for project-specific environmental clearances, which would encourage 
streamlining the rehabilitation and reuse of undeveloped or under-developed 
properties (Strategic Plan Goal 1, Strategy 1) 


 
Other Council-Directed Special Projects 
 


• Complete development of the Climate Action and Adaptation Plan (CAAP) 


• Complete development of regulations regarding single-use plastics 


• Complete research on options for just cause eviction regulations 


• Complete research on steps the City would need to take to establish a public bank 


• Implement a City of Pinole job fair 


• Implement a weatherization program 


• Recommend options for Old Town wayfinding signage 


• Conduct an electric vehicle (EV) charging station feasibility study 


• Create, with Community Services, a public art program and City mural program 
update 


• Establish a business development/community help reserve 


• Establishing a revitalization reserve 
 
 
Significant Special Projects for FY 2024/25 through FY 2027/28 
 


• Continue to make progress on Year 2 and Year 3 Housing Element programs 


• Continue to make progress on Year 2 and Year 3 Economic Development Strategy 
action items 


• Monitor the need, if applicable, to update the entire General Plan and Three 
Corridors Specific Plan 


• Seek grant opportunities to help Pinole create a stronger “sense of place” 


• Conclude repayment of outstanding Redevelopment Successor Agency bond 
obligations 


• Close-out the operations of the Redevelopment Successor Agency following 
payment of all obligations 


 
 
 


City of Pinole 152
669 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
The Community Development Department budget for FY 2023/24 does not include major 
changes relative to the FY 2022/23 budget. FY 2022/23 was a year of finding stability in 
the Department following the restructuring in FY 2021/22. The restructuring served to 
develop efficient and thoughtful succession planning retention strategies, bring formerly 
contracted out inspection services in-house and fill vacancies. The focus in FY 2023/24 
will be to fill two vacant positions and continue to nurture stability, collegiality, and 
teamwork with coworkers, internal and external customers. 
 
Position Summary 
 


Position 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 


Development Services Director 0.50 0.50 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Community Development Director 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Planning Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Senior Building Inspector 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 


Building Official 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 


Building Inspector 0.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 


Building Inspector I/II 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 


Code Enforcement Officer 1.00 1.00 1.00 0.00 0.00 


Code Enforcement Officer I/II 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 


Permit Technician 2.00 2.00 2.00 0.00 0.00 


Permit Technician I/II/III 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.00 2.00 


Administrative Coordinator (shared 
with Public Works) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.50 0.50 


Total 5.5 6.50 7.00 7.50 7.50 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 153
670 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 173,504    263,181    289,785    526,464    605,599    79,135      13%


Measure S 2014 - 106 -                -                -                20,000      20,000      -            0%


Building and Planning - 212 987,604    1,785,329 1,445,846 2,326,894 2,151,083 (175,811)   -8%


Housing Assets for Resale - 285 44,092      97,581      107,886    388,685    339,254    (49,431)     -15%


Recognized Obligation Retirement Fund - 750 352,370    261,330    204,174    227,378    251,177    23,799      9%


Total 1,557,569   2,407,421   2,047,691   3,489,421   3,367,112   (122,308)     -4%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 355,144 500,268 407,375 697,688 983,768 286,080    29%


Overtime - 402 2,042        174           544           12,722      13,417      695           5%


Employee Benefits - 410 148,375 188,736 207,803 327,998 443,223 115,225    26%


Total Personnel 505,562    689,178    615,722    1,038,408 1,440,408 402,000    28%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 519,166    1,207,207 915,030    1,746,556 1,394,828 (351,728)   -25%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 16,236      6,483        5,821        8,150        8,150        -                0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 996           1,090        841           5,500        5,500        -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 536,398    1,214,780 921,692    1,760,206 1,408,478 (351,728)   -25%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -                2,943        -                5,500        5,500        -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                 -          2,943                 -          5,500          5,500 -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46 (18,046)     (368,139)   (183,898)   (416,269)   (548,456)   (132,187)   24%


Administrative Debits - 46 337,276    652,746    396,807    683,151    730,556    47,405      6%


IS Charges - 46 31,872      47,340      156,105    288,986    159,663    (129,323)   -81%


Legal Charges - 46 137,269    125,914    82,579      75,000      100,000    25,000      25%


General Liability Insurance - 46 27,239      42,660      58,684      54,439      70,963      16,524      23%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 515,609    500,521    510,277    685,307    512,726    (172,581)   -34%


Operating Transfers Out - 49 -                -                -                -                -                -                0%


Total 1,557,569 2,407,421 2,047,691 3,489,421 3,367,112 (122,308)   -4%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


Development Services Planning - 461 432,647    861,887    842,447    1,334,477 1,003,828 (330,649)   -33%


Development Services Building - 462 565,540    1,035,537 693,037    1,143,045 1,224,340 81,296      7%


Successor Agency to the Pinole Redevelopment - 


463 352,370    261,330    204,174    227,378    251,177    23,799      9%


Housing Administration - 464 44,092      50,199      69,717      335,249    278,881    (56,368)     -20%


Code Enforcement - 465 162,921    198,324    160,040    272,452    281,894    9,442        3%


Economic Development - 466 -                145           78,276      176,820    326,992    150,172    46%


Total 1,557,569 2,407,421 2,047,691 3,489,421 3,367,112 (122,308)   -4%  


City of Pinole 154
671 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


BUILDING & PLANNING FUND - 212


DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - PLANNING - 461


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev


Prop to 


Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 141,945  275,915        260,412    358,220    388,286    30,066      8%


Employee Benefits - 410 46,690    124,520        148,086    199,910    220,824    20,914      9%


Total Salary & Benefits 188,635  400,436        408,498    558,130    609,110    50,980      8%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 188,051  460,915        442,706    825,844    483,094    (342,750)  -71%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 2,348      1,487            1,336        1,550        1,550        -               0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 996         651               481           1,500        1,500        -               0%


Total Services and Supplies 191,394  463,053        444,523    828,894    486,144    (342,750)  -71%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                -              1,034 -                2,000        2,000        -               0%


Total Capital Outlay                -              1,034                  -           2,000          2,000 -               0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 (18,046)   (326,336)      (144,588)   (269,766)   (305,167)  (35,401)    12%


Administrative Debits - 46122 6,474      174,800        -                16,906      77,009      60,103      78%


IS Charges - 46124 -              462               6,450        2,188        5,015        2,827        56%


Legal Charges - 46126 45,975    16,272          15,830      25,000      25,000      -               0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 7,632      20,072          22,095      20,497      27,632      7,135        26%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 42,035    (114,730)      (100,212)   (205,175)   (170,511)  34,664      -20%


Total 422,064  749,792        752,809    1,183,849 926,742    (257,107)  -28%


GENERAL FUND - 100


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
1,560      7,635            4,599        5,000        5,000        -               0%


Administrative Debits - 46122 9,023      57,077          46,870      72,192      11,713      (60,479)    -516%


Total 10,583    64,712          51,469      77,192      16,713      (60,479)    -362%


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
-              -                   -                20,000      -               (20,000)    0%


Total -              -                   -                20,000      -               (20,000)    0%


Housing Fund - 285


Administrative Debits - 46122 -              47,382          38,169      53,436      60,373      6,937        11%


Total -              47,382          38,169      53,436      60,373      (13,063)    -22%  


 


City of Pinole 155
672 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 742,350$    404,350$    


Climate Action Plan (Remainder of Work) 50,000$      


Contract Planning Augmentation (2-3 days/week) 160,000


General Plan Update (Remainder of Work) 30,000


Housing Element Implementation 20,000


Project Traffic Studies and CEQA Assistance 30,000


Scanning/Archiving 50,000


SEI Climate Corps Fellow (July-June, 12 months) 61,000


Translation Services 3,350


4220X  Office Expense 31,000$      26,000$      


42201 Miscellaneous office supplies 1,000$        


42202 Printing Notifications to the Community 10,000        


42202 Single Use Plastic Outreach 10,000        


42203 Mailing Notifications to the Community 5,000          


4230X  Travel and Training 12,600$      12,575$      


42301 California APA Annual Conference (2) 1,250$        


42301 League- PC Conference (5 Commissioners) 3,375          


42301 League- PC Conference (Staff) (2) 1,350          


42301 National APA Conference (virtual, staff) (2) 800             


42302 CA APA Conference Mileage, Toll, Air & Hotel (2) 800             


42302 CA League PC Conference Mileage, Toll, Air & Hotel (7) 3,500          


42303 Meal Allowance 1,500          


42401  Memberships 1,482$        1,757$       


American Planning Assoc (APA) (2) 862$           


Assoc of Environmental Planners (AEP) (2) 550


CA Chapter APA Dues (2) 345


42504 Recruitment Costs -$           -$           


42514  Special Department Expense 38,412$      38,412$      


Publishing Legal Notices 10,000$      


PCTV Planning Commission Meetings 20,412        


Meeting Minute Preparation 8,000


Total Professional/Administrative Services 483,094$    


4310X  Utilities 1,550$        1,550$       


PG&E 1,400$        


EBMUD 150             


44301 Fuel 1,000$        1,000$       


44410 Safety Clothing 500$           500$          


   Uniform 500


General Fund - 100
42101  Professional Services -$           -$           


Economic Development -  Staff Support (moved to Economic Dev. Division) -$            


42514 Special Departmental 5,000$        5,000$       


5,000$        


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106
42101  Professional Services 20,000$      -$           


Business Development/Community Help Reserve -$            


   Revitalization Reserve -             


   (Moved to Economic Development division FY23/24)  


City of Pinole 156
673 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


BUILDING & PLANNING FUND - 212


DEVELOPMENT SERVICES - BUILDING DIVISION - 462


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


Prop to 


Rev


Prop to 


Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 96,147    127,857    135,374    225,278    508,132    282,854  56%


Overtime - 402 2,042      67             55             6,376        7,315        939         13%


Employee Benefits - 410 78,275 41,226 51,269 98,798 177,046 78,248    44%


Total Salary & Benefits 176,464  169,150    186,698    330,452    692,493    362,041  52%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 262,609  701,670    291,427    435,598    371,248    (64,350)   -17%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 5,927      3,761        3,375        4,500        4,500        -              0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -              -               105           1,500        1,500        -              0%


Total Services and Supplies 268,536  705,432    294,907    441,598    377,248    (64,350)   -17%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                -          1,909 -                3,500        3,500        -              0%


Total Capital Outlay                -          1,909                  -          3,500          3,500 -              0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 -              (41,803)    (39,310)     (146,503)  (243,289)  (96,786)   40%


Administrative Debits - 46122 72,697    124,977    75,520      192,343    198,073    5,730      3%


IS Charges - 46124 31,872    46,415      143,205    284,610    149,634    (134,976) -90%


Legal Charges - 46126 536         12,142      2,862        10,000      10,000      -              0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 15,435    17,315      29,154      27,045      36,681      9,636      26%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 120,540  159,046    211,431    367,495    151,099    (216,396) -143%


Total 565,540  1,035,537 693,037    1,143,045 1,224,340 81,296    7%


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 157
674 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 393,500$    338,675$    


Backfill Permit Tech (sick, backlog) 15,000


Contract Plan Check - Appian Village 40,000


Contract Plan Check - BCRE 61,055


Contract Plan Check - Other Routine 50,000


Inspection Services (Backfill Vacant) (2) 23,040


Inspector Services for Multi-Family Projects (4) 46,080


Rental Inspection Services 50,000


Scanning/Archiving 50,000


Translation Services 3,500


42106 Software Maintenance 10,888$      8,888$       


BlueBeam Annual Maintenance 3,800$        


Green Halo (Waste Tracking) 3,288          


R.S. Means (Valuation) 1,800          


42107  Equipment Maintenance 1,000$       1,000$       


Equipment and vehicle maintenance 1,000$        


42108  Building-Structure Maintenance 1,000$       1,000$       


42201  Office Expense 4,000$       3,000$       


Miscellaneous Office Expenses 3000


4230X  Travel and Training 8,400$       10,875$      


   42301 CALBO Business Meeting (March) 695$           


   42301 CALBO Education Week (August) 2,580


42301 Other Educational/Training 2,500          


42301 Permit Tech Certification 300            


42302 CALBO Business Meeting Air & Hotel 1,000          


42302 CALBO Education Week Hotel 3,000          


42302 CALBO Education Week Parking and Mileage 400            


42303 Travel and Training/Meal Allowance 400            


42401  Memberships 730$          730$          


California Building Officials (CALBO) 215$           


Electrical Inspectors IAEI 120


Mechanical and Plumbing Officials (IAMPO) 70


ICC (General & Local) 325


42402 Subscriptions 6,080$       2,080$       


CALDAG (AD) Publication 80$            


Construction Costing Publications 500


Misc. Publications for new codes 1,000


Permit Tech Publications 500


42501 Bank Fees 10,000$      5,000$       


Credit card charges 5,000$        


 


City of Pinole 158
675 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


42514  Special Department Expense -$           -$           


Updates of the assessor parcel information -$           


Blueprints and permits to be scanned. -             


Total Professional/Administrative Services 371,248$  


4310X  Utilities 4,500$       4,500$       


PG&E 4,000$        


EBMUD 500            


44410  Safety Clothing 1,500$       1,500$       


Clothing/Uniforms 1,000$        


Small tools 500$           


47103 Furniture 2,000$       2,000$       


Ergonomic Chairs 1,000$        


   Standing Desk 1,000          


47106 Computer Equipment (not-capitalized) 1,500$       1,500$       


Tablet for Inspector 1,500$         


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 159
676 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


RECOGNIZED OBLIGATION RETIREMENT FUND - 750


SUCCESSOR AGENCY TO THE PINOLE REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY - 463


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 88,720      25,507      33,335      17,000      25,100      8,100        32%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 6,011        -                -                -                -                -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 94,731      25,507      33,335      17,000      25,100      8,100        0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 188,704    162,116    135,861    190,378    206,077    15,699      8%


Legal Charges - 46126 68,935      73,708      34,979      20,000      20,000      -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 257,638    235,823    170,839    210,378    226,077    15,699      7%


Total 352,370    261,330    204,174    227,378    251,177    23,799      9%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 17,000$      25,100$      


Amerinational Loan Servicing 9,000$        


Auditing Services 1,680          


Bond Indenture Fees 4,640          


HDL Financial Reporting 9,780          


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 160
677 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


HOUSING ASSETS FUND - 285 


HOUSING ADMINISTRATION - 464 


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget
$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 (21,774)   (27)          26,076      261,210 200,871 (60,339)     -30%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 1,951      1,234      1,110        2,100     2,100     -                0%


Total Services and Supplies (19,823)   1,207      27,185      263,310 202,971 (60,339)     -30%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 60,378    44,591    36,774      51,939   55,910   3,971        7%


Legal Charges - 41427 3,536      4,401      5,759        20,000   20,000   -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 63,914    48,992    42,532      71,939   75,910   3,971        5%


Transfers Out - 49901 -              -              -                -             -             -                0%


Total 44,092    50,199    69,717      335,249 278,881 (56,368)     -20%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 261,210$ 200,871$ 


Affordable Housing Loan Coordination 


(resale/refi) 8,000$        


Affordable Housing NOFA 88,645


Compliance Monitoring (23-24) 37,001


Housing Asset Fund Policy Development 5,000


Housing Fund Consultation Services 5,500


Housing Successor Annual Report 6,725


Nexus Study- In-Lieu Fee - Inclusionary Hsg 50,000


4310X  Utilities 2,100$     2,100$     


PG&E 2,000$        


EBMUD 100              


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 161
678 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


GENERAL FUND - 100


CODE ENFORCEMENT - 465


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 117,052  96,496    11,590       114,190  87,350        (26,840)    -31%


Overtime - 402 -              106         488            6,346      6,102          (244)         -4%


Employee Benefits - 410 23,410    22,989    8,448         29,290    45,353        16,063      35%


Total Salary & Benefits 140,463  119,592  20,525       149,826  138,805      (11,021)    -8%


Services and Supplies
Professional & Administrative Services - 


42
-              11,507    102,224     94,145    83,145        (11,000)    -13%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -              439         255            2,500      2,500          -               0%


Total Services and Supplies -              11,947    102,480     96,645    85,645        (11,000)    -13%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 -              41,803    -                16,896    20,779        3,883        19%


IS Charges - 46124 -              462         6,450         2,188      5,015          2,827        56%


Legal Charges - 46126 18,288    19,247    23,150       -              25,000        -               0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 4,171      5,273      7,435         6,897      6,650          (247)         -4%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 22,459    66,786    37,035       25,981    57,444        31,463      55%


Total 162,921  198,324  160,040     272,452  281,894      9,442        3%


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -              -              -                -              -                  -               0%


Total -              -              -                -              -                  -               0%


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 162
679 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101 Professional Services 57,350$    41,350$        


Seasonal Weed Abatement 35,000$       


Show Cause Hearings 3,000          


Translation Services 3,350          


4220X Office Expense 3,000$      6,500$          


42201 Misc. Office Expense 1,000$        


42202 Printing & Binding: Fire Season Letter 500             


42202 Printing & Binding: General Educational Materials 5,000          


4230X Travel & Training 3,700$      4,700$          


42301 Conference registration 2,500$        


42302 Mileage Air & Hotel 2,000          


42303 Meal Allowance 200             


42401 Memberships 95$          595$             


CACEO Membership 95$             


ICC and CEOSF 500


42512 Abatement 30,000$    30,000$        


Abatement Services 30,000$       


44301 Fuel 2,000$      2,000$          


2,000$        


44410 Safety Clothing 500$         500$             


500$            


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 163
680 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Development 


GENERAL FUND - 100


ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT - 466


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual   


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -              -              14,662       87,759    206,370      118,611    57%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -              -              -                -              -                  -                0%


Total Services and Supplies -              -              14,662       87,759    206,370      118,611    57%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Debits - 46122 -              -              63,614       89,061    100,622      11,561      11%


IS Charges - 46124 -              -              -                -              -                  -                0%


Legal Charges - 46126 -              145         -                -              -                  -                0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 -              -              -                -              -                  -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations -              145         63,614       89,061    100,622      11,561      11%


Total -              145         78,276       176,820  306,992      130,172    42%


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
-              -              -                -              20,000        20,000      0%


Total -              -              -                -              20,000        20,000      0%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 80,000$    196,416$      


Economic Development -  Staff Support 80,000$       


Economic Development Branding (TNDG/Golden Shovel) 15,000


Economic Development Strategy Yr 1 Implementation 71,416


Holiday Light Sway Over SPA 30,000


4230X  Travel and Training -$         1,595$          


   42301 CALED Annual Training Conference Registration 595$           


   42302 CALED Air/Hotel 1,000


42401 Memberships 6,259$      6,259$          


CALED Annual Membership 350$           


Chamber of Commerce Community Champion Sponsorship 2,500$        


East Bay EDA 3,409$        


42403 Advertising 1,500$      2,100$          


Printing and Postage 2,100$        


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106
42101  Professional Services -$         20,000$        


Business Development/Community Help Reserve 10,000$       


   Revitalization Reserve 10,000         


City of Pinole 164
681 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
The Community Services Department is comprised of the following divisions and 
subdivisions: 
 


• Administration 
o Special Events 


• Parks and Recreation 
o Parks and Recreation Administration 
o Tiny Tots 
o Youth Center 
o Senior Center 
o Swim Center 
o Tennis Court and Memorial Hall 


• Pinole Community Television (PCTV) 


• Library and Animal Services 


• Community Health and Food 
 
Mission 
 
The mission of the Community Services Department is to enrich the lives of the diverse 
Pinole community by providing high-quality recreation and quality of life programs for 
residents of all ages. 
 
Major Services and Functions 
 
The Administration Division provides management and coordination of the department’s 
activities. The Special Events subdivision serves as the single point of contact for private 
organizations that would like to hold events in the City and/or receive some form of City 
support or sponsorship for their event. This subdivision will coordinate closely with the 
City departments that host their own community events. 
 
The Recreation Division contains six subdivisions: Parks and Recreation Administration; 
Senior Center; Youth Center; Tiny Tots; Swim Center; and Tennis Court and Memorial 
Hall. The Parks and Recreation Administration subdivision provides management and 
coordination of all Parks and Recreation Division activities, including park rules and 
policies, park permits and reservations, and park planning. Through the Tiny Tots, Youth 
Center, and Senior Center, the division offers recreational and enrichment programs and 
events for all age groups. Tiny Tots is a preschool program with a dedicated facility that 
provides a high-quality recreational, social, and educational experience for children ages 
3 1/2 to 5 years. The Youth Center provides a variety of enrichment classes, sports, and 
specialty camps for children ages 5 to 12. The program is designed to offer youth an 
opportunity to explore special interests, promote creativity, challenge the mind and body, 
and create experiences. The Senior Center provides adults age 50 and over with social 
activities, fitness and enrichment classes, daily hot lunches, homebound services, salon 
services, and support services. The Senior Center receives advice from an advisory 


City of Pinole 165
682 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


board of directors. The City’s Memorial Hall building is used as a theater space for 
educational programs run by the Pinole Community Players community theater group as 
well as the Players’ theatric productions. The City leases the building to the Players for 
these uses. The Tennis Court and Swim Center are two recreational facilities in the City. 
The Tennis Court is adjacent to the Pinole branch of the County library system. The tennis 
court and adjacent restroom are owned by the County and leased to the City for the 
public’s use. The Swim Center is owned by the City. In recent years, the City has hired a 
private organization to run the Swim Center. The City currently contracts with the Pinole 
Seals for this service. The Pinole Seals opens the pool for community use during summer 
months, and also conducts practices of their swim team at the pool. The City’s Community 
Services Commission provides advice to the Parks and Recreation Division. 
 
Pinole Community Television (PCTV) operates the City’s public, educational, and 
governmental (PEG) cable television program, which involves broadcasting the City’s 
public meetings and recording, producing, and broadcasting a limited number of 
significant community events on the local cable television channels dedicated by City’s 
franchise cable television provider(s), Comcast (channels 26 and 28), and AT&T Uverse 
(channel 99 submenu Pinole Community TV). PCTV also broadcasts public meetings and 
events via live stream on the City website. PCTV has contracts with other public agencies 
(Vallejo, El Cerrito, Benicia, West Contra Costa Unified School District (WCCUSD 
currently on Covid hold), and WestCAT) to record, produce, and broadcast those 
agencies’ public meetings. In addition, PCTV also provides recording and production 
services to private parties on a fee for service basis. The Division generates revenue 
primarily through internal billing of services provided to City departments, franchise fees, 
contract service fees, donations, and community service fees. 
 
The Library and Animal Services Division oversees the agreements that the City has with 
the County Library and County Animal Services through which the County provides library 
and animal services in Pinole. Public library services in the City are provided by the Contra 
Costa County Library system. (Just one city in the County, Richmond, has its own 
municipal library system.) The County provides library services to residents of Pinole at 
the Pinole branch library located on Pinole Valley Road. The branch library building was 
constructed by and is owned by the County. The County provides a baseline level of 
weekly open hours and charges the City for the maintenance of the building. (Most other 
cities in the County have constructed their own building to house their branch library.) The 
County Animal Services Department provides animal control services to the City’s 
residents, for which the County charges the City a fee. 
 
The Community Health and Food Division manages the contract with the Pacific Coast 
Farmers Market Association, partnership with the Food Bank of Contra Costa and Solano 
and implementation of the tobacco grant. The collaboration with the Food Bank of Contra 
Costa and Solano has become a permanent monthly event. Staff and volunteers 
distribute fresh and non-perishable food to the community. The City has also contracted 
with Pacific Coast Farmers Market Association for many years to provide a year-round 
weekly farmers’ market on Saturday mornings. The City received a grant in FY 2021/22 
to implement a youth peer to peer education program to prevent the use of tobacco 


City of Pinole 166
683 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


products to minors. This division will provide the single focal point for the City’s health 
and food security activities, that will sometimes be provided by other City divisions, such 
as the Senior Center, for example. 
 
FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Increased programs and activities at the Senior Center 


• Increased lunch service at the Senior Center from two days to three days per 
week 


• The Senior Center hosted its first craft fair since 2019 


• Established an agreed-upon calendar for City-organized community events 


• Coordinated additional City events, such as the return of movies and music in the 
park, the annual egg hunt (Egg-stravaganza), Community Service Day, United 
Against Hate Week, Holiday Tree Lighting event, and a joint Fourth of July 2022 
fireworks show with the City of Hercules 


• Provided youth summer camps for the first time since 2019 


• Finalized contracts with user groups 


• Filled part time staff position for PCTV 


• Covered and broadcasted National Night Out, UAHW, Tree lighting ceremony, 


The Pinole Classic Car Show, Station 74 Re-Activation, single camera coverage 


of PVHS Football, (three games), PVHS State Football Championship parade 


and ceremony 


• Continued to broadcast updated information from the County Health Department 
and other government agencies on matters related to the pandemic through our 
regional broadcast systems. 


• Furthered use of the Zoom format and adapted for hybrid meetings supporting all 
public Pinole meetings with live and an on-air replay for City Council, Planning 
Commission and other City meetings 


• Integrated live YouTube simulcasting of all meetings including Closed Captioning 
in the YouTube replay services. 


• Uploaded past meetings and broadcasts to YouTube for availability and the Closed 
Captioning features. 


• Converted the Council Chambers back to in person meetings with Zoom interface 
for consultants, staff, public, and Council as needed. 


• Initiated the series recordings, editing, and broadcasting of The Beat of Pinole and 
Pinole Code Tips.  Two monthly recordings aimed at providing greater 
communication to the Pinole public.  


 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Projects 
 


• Began work on the creation of a Parks Master Plan 
 
 


City of Pinole 167
684 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


Other Council-Directed Special Projects 
 


• Coordinated additional City-coordinated community events 


• Began work on the creation of a sister city agreement; 


• Began work on the creation of a public art program/City mural program update 


• Conducted research on additional food security and recovery activities 
 
FY 2023/24 Key Priorities and Projects  
 
Baseline Work (Including Staff-Initiated Special Projects) 
 


• Continue to implement additional City-coordinated community events (United 
Against Hate Week, Earth Month, etc.) 


• Create a sister city agreement 


• Create, with Community Development, a public art program and City mural 
program update 


• Complete research on additional food security and recovery activities 


• Complete development of Park Master Plan 


• Review contracts with user groups 


• Continue partnership with the Contra Costa and Solano Food Bank to provide food 
resources to the community 


• Resume special luncheons at the Senior Center  


• Implement an underage tobacco use reduction program through the Youth Center. 


• Reopen recreation facilities for rentals 


• Increase youth programming in partnership with the local schools 


• Implement summer events such as the Senior Center Summer Craft Fair, concerts, 
and movies in the park 


• Update existing outdated equipment allowing for High Definition (HD) Wide Screen 
resolution pending Comcast’s upgrade of their system. 


• Create a master plan for PCTV to define mission, activities, staffing, equipment, 
and fee structure 


• Hire a consulting firm to evaluate the entire broadcasting network system to include 
use of new technology for efficiency and effective broadcasting. 


• Develop plans to update the Council Chambers to a High Definition (HD) Wide 
Screen operation and display. 


 
Strategic Plan Strategies 
 
Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) Projects 
 


• Complete a Parks Master Plan 
 
Other Council-Directed Special Projects 
 


• Coordinate additional City-coordinated community events 


City of Pinole 168
685 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


• Complete work on a sister city agreement 


• Complete work on a public art program/City mural program update 


• Complete research on additional food security and recovery activities 
 
Significant Special Projects for FY 2024/25 through FY 2027/28 
 


• Implement the Parks Master Plan 


• The Recreation Division will review and evaluate the current and future activities 
and services of the Recreation Division to identify new mechanisms for all age 
groups 


• Implement the anti-tobacco youth program 


• The Senior Center will have two major renovation projects. The projects will include 
the replacement of the floor in the main hall and the replacement of some outdated 
appliances in the kitchen.   


 
Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget 
 
The Community Services Department budget for FY 2023/24 does not include any 
significant changes relative to the FY 2022/23 budget. 
 
Position Summary 


Position 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 


Community Services Director 0.00 0.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Deputy Community Services 
Director 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Recreation Manager 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Kitchen Manager 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Cook, part-time/regular 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 


Recreation Coordinator 2.60 2.60 2.60 3.50 3.50 


Recreation Supervisor 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Recreation Leader 2.88 2.88 2.88 2.88 2.88 


Recreation Leader (Tiny Tots) 1.13 1.13 1.13 1.13 1.13 


Rental Facility Custodian, part-
time/temporary 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65 


Senior Recreation Leader 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 1.50 


Cable Access Coordinator 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Cable Access Technician 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 


Cable Access Maintenance 
Technician 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Cable Equipment Operators, 
PT/Temp 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 0.75 


Total 14.25 14.25 15.25 16.15 16.15 
 


City of Pinole 169
686 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


COMMUNITY SERVICES BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 -                 253,414     217,704    454,022     395,886     (58,136)      -15%


Measure S 2014 - 106 8,727         19,215       1,960        21,850       25,850       4,000         15%


Recreation Fund - 209 815,450     1,357,715  1,137,973 2,093,816  2,135,264  41,448       2%


Cable Access TV Fund - 505 391,792     439,347     371,599    646,780     682,056     35,275       5%


Total 1,215,968    2,069,691    1,729,237   3,216,468    3,239,056     22,588         1%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 476,113 837,208 608,066 1,038,100 1,088,349 50,249       5%


Overtime - 402 573 936 1,269 4,000 4,000 -                 0%


Employee Benefits - 410 283,472 380,470 313,011 538,879 493,898 (44,981)      -9%


Total Personnel 760,158 1,218,614 922,346 1,580,979 1,586,247 5,268 0%


Services and Supplies
Professional & Administrative 


Services - 42 146,775     460,311     475,872    974,914     921,754     (53,160)      -6%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 72,938       189,458     174,509    257,101     242,140     (14,961)      -6%


Materials & Supplies - 44 108            5,256         4,521        8,993         7,611         (1,382)        -18%


Total Services and Supplies 219,822     655,025     654,902    1,241,008  1,171,505  (69,503)      -6%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 11,245       89,539       11,720      191,337     192,437     1,100         1%


Total Capital Outlay 11,245       89,539       11,720      191,337     192,437     1,100         1%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46 (20,222)      (219,421)    (130,687)   (242,713)    (183,931)    58,782       -32%


Administrative Debits - 46 121,976     186,977     130,687    242,713     183,931     (3,312)        -2%


IS Charges - 46 80,950       79,796       75,053      142,934     209,781     66,847       32%


Legal Charges - 46 5,839         2,166         1,659        1,250         1,750         500            29%


General Liability Insurance - 46 36,201       56,995       63,559      58,960       77,336       18,376       24%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 224,744     106,513     140,270    203,144     288,867     141,193     49%


Total 1,215,968  2,069,691  1,729,237 3,216,468  3,239,056  22,588       1%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


Recreation Administration - 551 273,358     785,893     617,062    1,167,872  869,217     (298,655)    -34%


Senior Center - 552 201,229     418,749     376,845    722,143     626,187     (95,957)      -15%


Tiny Tots - 553 102,241     141,106     117,629    179,985     209,608     29,623       14%


Youth Center - 554 139,737     137,229     134,060    326,537     345,802     19,265       6%


Swim Center - 557 88,099       137,822     103,605    153,900     153,900     -                 0%


Memorial Hall - 558 13,214       5,162         5,820        14,200       -                 (14,200)      -100%


Tennis - 559 6,300         4,385         2,618        5,050         -                 (5,050)        -100%


Library Services - 560 -                 -                 -                -                 182,585     182,585     100%


Animal Control Services - 561 -                 -                 -                -                 169,701     169,701     100%


Cable Access TV City Services - 


119 391,792     306,964     252,449    444,432     473,459     29,027       6%


Cable Access TV Community 


Budget - 120 -                 -                 47             4,642         1,713         (2,928)        -171%


Cable Access TV Contract Services 


- 121 -                 132,383     119,103    197,707     206,884     9,177         4%


Total 1,215,968  2,069,691  1,729,237 3,216,468  3,239,056  22,588       1%  


City of Pinole 170
687 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


RECREATION FUND - 209


RECREATION ADMINISTRATION - 551


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 85,227      377,076    220,847    345,938    372,113    26,175      7%


Overtime - 402 -                -                -                -                -                -                0%


Employee Benefits - 410 36,630      113,111    72,869      203,866    144,042    (59,824)     -42%


Total Personnel 121,857    490,187    293,716    549,804    516,155    (33,649)     -7%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 15,842      29,849      48,215      76,909      191,419    114,510    60%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 -                -                -                -                -                -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 15,842      29,849      48,215      76,909      191,419    114,510    60%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Admin Debits - 46122 67,836      (16,422)     -                -                -                0%


Admin Credits - 46121 -                (64,886)     (28,900)     (25,967)     2,933        -11%


IS Charges - 46124 62,029      55,886      52,314      96,243      117,529    21,286      18%


Legal Charges - 46126 1,764        990           196           -                -                -                0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 4,031        20,453      21,338      19,794      26,481      6,687        25%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 135,659    12,442      57,426      87,137      118,043    30,906      26%


Total 273,358    532,479    399,357    713,850    825,617    111,767    14%


General Fund 100


Professional & Administrative Services - 42
-                253,414    217,704    454,022    43,600      (410,422)   -941%


Total -                253,414    217,704    454,022    43,600      (410,422)   -941%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 1,181$        1,636$        


Broadcast Music/ASCAP Services 1,181$        


CPRP 455            


 


City of Pinole 171
688 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


42201 Office Expense 800$           800$           


Office Supplies 800$           


4230X  Travel, Training & Meeting Costs 9,200$        12,000$      


Travel & Training/Conf-Registration 6,500$        


   Travel & Training/Mileage, Air 5,000          


   Travel & Training/Meal Allowance 500            


42401 Memberships 2,165$        1,030$        


   CPRS Memberships (2) 330


   NRPA Membership 700


42501 Bank Fees 500$           750$           


42514  Special Department Expense 38,403$      30,403$      


Community Services Commission Broadcast Fee 16,200$      


Postage Machine 100            


Recreation Activity Guide, Summer Postcard 11,000        


Staff T-Shirts 2,000          


Tobacco Grant Administrative Costs 1,103          


42515 Special Events 24,660$      144,800$    


   City's Support to the Annual Car Show (moved from fund 209 FY23/24) 30,000$      


   Coastal Cleanup 1,500


   Community Service Day 1,500          


   Dumpster Day 500            


   Expenses for Movies and Sounds in the Park 11,000        


   Other related expenses for events or Commissions 500            


   Tobacco Grant Community Events 1,500          


   Tree Lighting 5,500          


   Other City events (moved from fund 209 FY23/24) 12,800        


   Centenarian Program  (moved from fund 209 FY23/24) 5,000          


   Community Events Organized by Provate Groups  (moved from fund 209 FY23/24) 5,000          


   Earth Day  (moved from fund 209 FY23/24) 3,000          


   Fourth of July  (moved from fund 209 FY23/24) 50,000        


   Marketing and Additional Event Espenses  (moved from fund 209 FY23/24) 4,000          


   Pride Event  (moved from fund 209 FY23/24) 10,000        


   United Against Hate Week  (moved from fund 209 FY23/24) 3,000          


General Fund 100
42101  Professional Services 320,522$    40,100$      


   Animal Control Services (moved to division 560 FY23/24) -$               


   Event Planning Vendor 30,000        


   Library Services reimbursement agreement (moved to division 561 FY23/24 ) -             


   Mural maintenance 10,100        


42511 Equipment Rent 3,500$        3,500$        


   Restroom Services Farmers Market & PVP 3,500$        


42515 Special Events 130,000$    -$           


   City's Support to the Annual Car Show -$           


   Other City events 0


   (moved to fund 209 FY23/24)  


City of Pinole 172
689 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


RECREATION FUND - 209


SENIOR CENTER - 552


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 91,704      124,687    100,267    185,696    197,545    11,849      6%


Overtime - 402 -                -                51             -                -                -                0%


Employee Benefits - 410 44,006      51,260      45,237      64,933      71,041      6,108        9%


Total Personnel 135,710    175,947    145,555    250,629    268,586    17,957      7%


Services and Supplies
Professional & Administrative Services - 


42
16,685 23,444 81,657 155,678 53,056 (102,622)   -193%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 39,321 144,819 135,052 200,500 192,776 (7,724)       -4%


Materials & Supplies  - 44 -                649           214           2,711        2,711        -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 56,006      168,912    216,923    358,889    248,543    (110,347)   -44%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -                44,443      483           94,500      94,500      -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                  -         44,443             483         94,500         94,500                  - 0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Legal Charges - 46126 1,056        126           469           500           500           -                0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 8,458        10,170      11,454      10,625      14,058      3,433        24%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 9,514        10,296      11,923      11,125      14,558      3,433        24%


Transfers Out - 49901 -                -                -                -                -                -                0%


Total 201,229    399,599    374,884    715,143    626,187    (88,957)     -14%


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -                19,150      1,960        7,000        -                (7,000)       -100%


Total -                19,150      1,960        7,000        -                (7,000)       -100%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 1,520$        4,155$        


   CPRP 455$           


Staff Training 700            


Volunteer Appreciation (2) 2,000          


WCCUSD Transition Program 1,000          


42107  Equipment Maintenance 3,650$        5,150$        


Fire Extinguisher Maintenance 650$           


Other Maintenance (fire sprinklers, sandwich bar) 1,000          


Pool Table Maintenance 1,500          


Refrigerator/freezer maintenance 2,000           


City of Pinole 173
690 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 140,000$    22,609$      


Electrical Supplies 500$           


HVAC Service 5,000          


Janitorial 6,609          


Key Pad/Alarm Service 1,000          


Landscape Maintenance 4,684          


Pest Control Services 816            


Plumbing Supplies 1,000          


Sanitary/Cleaning Supplies 3,000


42201  Office Expense 1,200$        1,200$        


  Office supplies, paper flyers, and tickets 1,200$        


4230X Travel & Training 3,130$        3,945$        


   Annual Conferences and Trainings 1,000$        


   Travel & Training/Mileage, Air 2600


   Travel & Training/Meal Allowance 345


42401 Memberships 259$           286$           


   CPRS Membership 165$           


   Sams Club 121            


42501  Bank Fee 2,400$        2,400$        


42510 Software Purchase 194$           -$           


   Zoom -$           


42514  Special Department Expense 3,325$        311$           


Inspection fees 311$           


42515  Special Events -$           13,000$      


Food Fundraiser 11,200$      


Outdoor Craft Fair 600


PSC Cookbook 1,200


Total Professional/Administrative Services 53,056$      


4310X Utilities 67,500$      62,000$      


  Gas and Electric 47,000$      


  Water 15,000        


4320X Taxes 10,756$      10,756$      


Taxes/Property Tax 10,756$      


43802 Class Fees 20,980$      20,600$      


   Instructor Fees 20,600$      


43803 Personal Service 500$           500$           


    WestCat tickets (reimbursed when sold) 500$           


43804 Food Program 65,000$      65,000$      


   Food Expense 50,160$      


   Kitchen Maintenance 13,400        


   Snack Bar 1,440          


 


City of Pinole 174
691 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


43805 Travel 2,000$        7,200$        


   American Stage Tour Payment 3,600$        


   Premier Tour Payment 3,600          


43806 Dance Program -$           4,260$        


   Entertainment - ballroom (5) 540$           


   Entertainment - CW Line Dance (5) 1,590          


   Food and Beverage (10) 2,130          


43807 Fundraising 11,600$      -$           


   Food Fundraiser -$           


   Outdoor Craft Fair -                 


   PCS Cookbook -                 


43808 Gift Shop Sales 700$           2,220$        


43809 Newsletter 8,540$        8,540$        


   Monthly Newsletter 5,000$        


   Newsletter monthly postage 3,240          


   Newsletter annual bulk mail 300            


43810 Center Maintenance 10,424$      9,200$        


   Center deep clean 600$           


   Kitchen janitorial service (12) 4,860          


   Misc. center maintenance 2,540          


   Trap Service 1,200          


43811 Supplies 2,500$        2,500$        


    Misc. Program Supplies & PPE 2,500$        


Total Other Operating Expenses 192,776$    


44304 Permit Fee 1,711$        1,711$        


Health Permit 1,711$        


44306 Maintenance Supplies 1,000$        1,000$        


   1,000$        


4710X Furniture Fixtures & Equipment 225,000$    22,500$      


   47101 SC Renovation Project: Kitchen Equipment Replacement (carryforward) 20,000$      


   47105 Other Misc. Equipment 1,000          


   47105 2 Laptops and Scanner for Front Desk 1,500          


47103 FF&E/Furniture -$           -$           


-$           


47201 Improvements/Building 72,000$      72,000$      


   SC Renovation Project: Main Hall Flooring (carryforward) 72,000$      


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106
47101 FF&E/Equipment 7,000$        -$           


   Senior Center Dishwasher (carryforward) -$            


City of Pinole 175
692 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


RECREATION FUND - 209


TINY TOTS - 553


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 58,700      77,821     63,427      97,496    108,102  10,606      10%


Overtime - 402 -                -               -                -              -              -                0%


Employee Benefits - 410 28,313 31,413 29,634 39,694 42,485 2,791        7%


Total Personnel 87,013      109,235   93,061      137,190  150,587  13,397      9%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 10,566      21,540     14,425      24,422    30,242    5,820        19%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 360           4,947       2,231        4,886      5,086      200           4%


Materials and Supplies - 44 -                97            159           30           100         70             70%


Total Services and Supplies 10,925      26,584     16,814      29,338    35,428    6,090        17%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47             121                - 2,087        3,100      200         (2,900)       -1450%


Total Capital Outlay             121                -           2,087         3,100           200 (2,900)       -1450%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Legal Charges - 46126 -                240          -                250         250         -                0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 4,182        5,047       5,667        5,257      7,293      2,036        28%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 4,182        5,287       5,667        5,507      7,543      2,036        27%


Total 102,241    141,106   117,629    175,135  193,758  18,623      10%


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 -                -               -                4,850      15,850    11,000      69%


Total -                -               -                4,850      15,850    11,000      69%


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 176
693 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42107  Equipment Maintenance 300$         300$         


Copier and other equipment maintenance 300$           


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 13,210$    16,396$    


Alarm Monitoring 1,026$        


Building Maintenance 500            


Countertops 1,000          


HVAC Maintenance 300            


Janitorial (3 times weekly and annual deep clean) 6,360          


Landscape Maintenance 2,472          


Pest Control 388            


Playground Wood Chip Refreshment (Spring) 3,900          


Sanitary Supplies & PPE 450            


42201  Office Expense 1,500$      1,500$      


Toner, ink, other office supplies 1,500$        


4230X Travel & Training 500$         2,900$      


Annual Conferences and Trainings 600$           


CPRS Airfare 600


CPRS Hotel 1,400


   Travel & Training/Meal Allowance 300


42401 Memberships -$         234$         


CPRS Membership 165$           


NAEYC Membership 69


42501 Bank Fees 4,200$      4,200$      


42514  Special Department Expense 4,712$      4,712$      


   Holiday paper and craft supplies 650$           


   Paper and craft supplies 1,562          


   Toy replacement 2,000          


T-Shirt fundraiser 500            


Total Professional/Administrative Services 30,242$      


4310X  Utilities 1,200$      1,400$      


  Gas and Electric 1,200$        


  Water 200            


43201 Property Tax 3,686$      3,686$      


44306 Maintenance Supplies 30$          100$         


   Misc. Maintenance Supplies 100$           


4710X Furniture Fixtures & Equipment 3,100$      200$         


   47105 Tiny Tots dishwasher replacement (carryforward) 200$           


   47107 Portable Sink 0


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106
47103 FF&E/Furniture 4,850$      2,950$      


   Tiny Tots dishwasher replacement (carryforward) 550$           


   Tiny Tots outdoor shade (carryforward) 2,400          


47201 Improvements/Building -$         12,900$    


   Restroom Walls/Floor Repair/Replace 11,000$      


   Tiny Tots Countertop (carryforward) 1,900           


City of Pinole 177
694 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


RECREATION FUND - 209


YOUTH CENTER - 554


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24
Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 56,606      61,650    57,241      171,990  184,110  12,120      7%


Overtime - 402 -                -              -                -              -              -                0%


Employee Benefits - 410 37,198 38,431 33,953 52,193 57,948 5,755        10%


Total Personnel 93,803      100,082  91,194      224,183  242,058  17,875      7%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 22,977      18,934    18,954      51,964    50,982    (982)          -2%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 3,453        6,841      12,013      12,397    12,460    63             1%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -                271         1,292        3,152      1,700      (1,452)       -85%


Total Services and Supplies 26,431      26,046    32,258      67,513    65,142    (2,371)       -4%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47           2,398         1,152 -                15,000    15,000    -                0%


Total Capital Outlay           2,398         1,152                  -       15,000       15,000 -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 (20,222)     (22,151)   (18,822)     (55,470)   55,470      100%


Administrative Debits - 46122 20,222      22,151    18,822      55,470    (55,470)     -100%


Legal Charges - 46126 -                -              -                -              500         500           0%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 8,378        9,884      10,609      9,841      13,102    3,261        25%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 8,378        9,883      10,608      9,841      13,602    3,761        28%


Total 131,010    137,164  134,060    316,537  335,802  19,265      6%


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47 8,727        65           -                10,000    10,000    -                0%


Total 8,727        65           -                10,000    10,000    -                0%


Consolidated Day Camp Division effective FY23/24  


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 178
695 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101 Professional Services 5,880$      


Youth Camp Instructors 5,880$        


42107  Equipment Maintenance 2,500$      1,300$      


Other Vehicle Maintenance 1,000$        


   Oil Changes (4) 300


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 22,083$    29,442$    


Building Maintenance 10,000$      


Elevator Maintenance (12) 2,400          


Elevator Service call 600            


Fire Extinguisher Maintenance 100            


Fire Sprinkler Inspection 950            


HVAC City Mechanical 6,000          


Janitorial Service (12) 5,805          


Janitorial supplies 500            


JanPro floor cleaning 1,207          


Misc. other supplies 1,000          


State annual fire inspection 400            


Western Exterminator Pest Control (4) 480            


42201  Office Expense 500$        500$        


Miscellaneous Office Supplies 500$           


4230X  Travel and Training 1,870$      5,365$      


Annual Conferences and Trainings 810$           


CPRP 455            


Milage, Air & Hotel 2,900


Meal Allowance 500


Staff Training, workshop, and conference 700


42401  Memberships 165$        175$        


CPRS Membership 175$           


42501 Bank Fees 1,800$      1,300$      


   Credit Card Transaction Fees 1,300$        


43801 Youth Camp 18,046$    -$         


   (Costs broken down into specific accounts FY23/24)


42514  Special Department Expense 2,020$      


42515 Special Events 5,000$      5,000$      


   Community Event 1,000$        


   Egg hung 2,000          


   National Night Out 2,000          


Total Professional/Administrative Services 50,982$      


4310X  Utilities 3,950$      5,900$      


  Gas and Electric 5,400$        


  Water 500            


 


City of Pinole 179
696 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


42301 Property Taxes 1,200$      1,200$      


43812 Youth Center 7,247$      5,360$      


   Instructor invoices 3,360$        


   Program supplies 2,000          


Total Other Operating Expenses 12,460$      


44301 Fuel 2,100$      500$        


44304 Permit Fee 1,052$      1,200$      


   Health Permit 1,200$        


47201 Improvements/Building 15,000$    15,000$    


   Replacement of vinyl floor at Youth Center (carryforward) 15,000$      


`


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106
47201 Improvements/Building 10,000$    10,000$    


   Replace vinyl flooring at Youth Center 10,000$       


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 180
697 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


RECREATION FUND - 209


SWIM CENTER - 557


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 69,903      111,173    86,463      119,150  119,150  -                0%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 16,492      22,454      14,377      25,000    25,000    -                0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -                3,905        2,555        2,750      2,750      -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 86,396      137,532    103,395    146,900  146,900  -                0%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                  -               20 -                6,500      6,500      -                100%


Total Capital Outlay                  -               20                  -         6,500         6,500 -                100%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 -                -                -                -              -              -                0%


Legal Charges - 46126 1,703        270           210           500         500         -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 1,703        270           210           500         500         -                0%


Total 88,099      137,822    103,605    153,900  153,900  -                100%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101 Professional Services 85,000$    85,000$    


Swim Center Operations Contract 62,517$      


 


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 31,150$    31,150$    


Annual Fire Sprinkler Maintenance 250$           


Building Maintenance 5,000          


Janitorial 6,400          


Landscape Maintenance 2,640          


Pool Maintenance 8,860


Pool Supplies 8,000          


42501 Bank Fees 3,000$      3,000$      


Credit Card Processing Fees 3,000$        


Total Professional/Administrative Services 119,150$    


4310X  Utilities 21,000$    21,000$    


  43103 Gas and Electric 14,000$      


  43102 Water 7,000          


43201 Property Taxes 4,000$      4,000$      


44304 Permit Fee 2,750$      2,750$      


Health Permits 2,750$        


  


47101 FF&E/Equipment 6,500$      6,500$      


   Refrigerator/Freezer 6,500$         


City of Pinole 181
698 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


RECREATION FUND - 209


MEMORIAL HALL - 558


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 10,293      2,122        3,096        11,200    -              (11,200)     -100%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 2,530        2,638        2,550        3,000      -              (3,000)       -100%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -                192           173           -              -              -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 12,824      4,952        5,820        14,200    -              (14,200)     -100%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Administrative Credits - 46121 -                -                -                -              -              -                0%


Administrative Debits - 46122 -                -                -                -              -              -                0%


Legal Charges - 46126 390           210           -                -              -              -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 390           210           -                -              -              -                0%


Total 13,214      5,162        5,820        14,200    -              (14,200)     -100%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 11,000$    -$         


  Building Maintenance -$           


  Misc. Maintenance -             


  Pest Control -             


  Plumbing Supplies -             


  Sanitary Supplies -             


  (Moved to Facilities division effective FY23/24)


42501 Bank Fees 200$         -$         


  (Moved to division 551 effective FY23/24)


Total Professional/Administrative Services -$           


4310X  Utilities 3,000$      -$         


  Gas and Electric -$           


  Water -             


  (Moved to Facilities division effective FY23/24)  


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 182
699 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


RECREATION FUND - 209


TENNIS - 559


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 4               9               255           550         -              (550)          #DIV/0!


Other Operating Expenses - 43 6,296        4,376        2,363        4,500      -              (4,500)       #DIV/0!


Total Services and Supplies 6,300        4,385        2,618        5,050      -              (5,050)       #DIV/0!


Total 6,300        4,385        2,618        5,050      -              (5,050)       #DIV/0!


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 500$         -$         


  Building Maintenance -$           


  (Moved to Facilities division effective FY23/24)


42501 Bank Fees 50$          -$         


Credit Card Processing Fees -$           


  (Moved to division 551 effective FY23/24)


4310X  Utilities 4,500$      -$         


  Gas and Electric -$           


  Water -             


  (Moved to Facilities division effective FY23/24)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 183
700 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


GENERAL FUND - 100


LIBRARY SERVICES - 560


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -                -                -                -              182,585  182,585    100%


Total Services and Supplies -                -                -                -              182,585  182,585    100%


Total -                -                -                -              182,585  182,585    100%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101 Professional Services -$         182,585$  


Library Services reimbursement agreement - 40 base 182,585$    


(Moved from division 551 effective FY23/24)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 184
701 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


GENERAL FUND - 100


ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES - 561


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -                -                -                -              169,701  169,701    100%


Total Services and Supplies -                -                -                -              169,701  169,701    100%


Total -                -                -                -              169,701  169,701    100%


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101 Professional Services -$         169,701$  


Animal Control Services $9.11 per capita 169,701$    


(Moved from division 551 effective FY23/24)  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 185
702 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


CABLE ACCESS TV FUND - 505


CABLE ACCESS TV CITY SERVICES- 119


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages -401 183,877    195,973    166,285    230,944  226,479    (4,465)       -2%


Overtime - 402 573           936           1,218        4,000      4,000        -                0%


Employee Benefits - 410 137,325    146,254    131,318    178,193  178,382    189           0%


Total Personnel 321,775    343,163    298,820    413,137  408,861    (4,276)       -1%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 505 -174 4,922        59,544    59,544      -                0%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 4,486        3,382        5,924        4,048      4,048        0               0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 108           142           128           208         208           -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 5,099        3,350        10,973      63,800    63,800      0               0%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                 -        24,709 7,189        $49,782 49,782      -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                 -        24,709          7,189      49,782       49,782 -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Admin Credits - 46121 -                (132,383)   (111,865)   (158,343) (157,964)  379           0%


Admin Debits - 46122 33,918      32,443      16,422      28,900    25,967      (2,933)       -11%


IS Charges - 46124 18,921      23,910      16,418      33,713    66,611      32,898      49%


Legal Charges - 46126 926           330           -                -              -               -                0%


General Liability Insurance -46201 11,153      11,442      14,492      13,443    16,402      2,959        18%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 64,918      (64,259)     (64,534)     (82,287)   (48,984)    33,303      -68%


Total 391,792    306,964    252,449    444,432  473,459    29,027      6%


[1] PEG funded


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 186
703 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 50,000$    50,000$      


Remote programming and support for Leightronix, Scala 25,000$      


and General A/V Contractors (90% funded through production fees )


PCTV Master Plan 25,000        


42106  Software Maintenance 1,800$      1,800$       


   Scala Annual License 1,800$        


42107  Equipment Maintenance 2,500$      2,500$       


Equipment repair 300$           


Equipment repair parts 2,000          


Loaner equipment 200            


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 1,616$      1,616$       


Cleaning supplies 297$           


Elevator maintenance 713            


HVAC maintenance 475            


Pest control 131            


42201 Office Expense 238$         238$          


4230X  Travel and Training 2,500$      2,500$       


NAB Convention for two employees 2,000$        


Other Travel and Training 500            


42514  Special Department Expense 891$         891$          


Misc. specialized supplies 594


Other Special Dept Expenses 297


Total Professional/Administrative Services 59,544$      


4310X  Utilities 3,276$      3,276$       


  43103 Gas and Electric 2,970$        


  43102 Water 306            


43201 Property Taxes 772$         772$          


772$           


44301 Fuel 208$         208$          


47101 Equipment $48,000 48,000$      


   4th Council Chambers camera $11,000


   A/D cross over units 4,000


   Install HD projector/video wall system for Council Chambers 15,000


   SDI audio embedders and de-embedders 3,000


   Video monitors 3,000


   Video router 12,000


47103 Furniture $1,782 1,782$       


   2 office desk chairs $1,782  


City of Pinole 187
704 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


CABLE ACCESS TV FUND - 505


CABLE ACCESS TV COMMUNITY BUDGET- 120


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages -401 -                -                -                3,018      -              (3,018)       -100%


Employee Benefits - 410 -                -                -                -              -              -                0%


Total Personnel -                -                -                3,018      -              (3,018)       -100%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -                -                -                177         177         -                0%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 -                -                -                23           23           -                0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -                -                -                1             1             -                0%


Total Services and Supplies -                -                -                202         202         -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Admin Debits - 46122                 - -                -                1,326      1,323      (3)              0%


IS Charges - 46124 -                -                47             96           188         93             49%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations -                -                47             1,422      1,511      90             6%


Total -                -                47             4,642      1,713      90             5%


[1] PEG funded


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 188
705 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 136$         136$         


Equipment Master Plan consultant 136            


42106  Software Maintenance 5$            5$            


Scala Annual License 5$              


42107  Equipment Maintenance 9$            9$            


Equipment repair 1$              


Equipment repair parts 7                


Loaner equipment 1                


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 9$            9$            


Cleaning supplies 2$              


Elevator maintenance 4                


HVAC maintenance 3                


Pest control 1                


42201 Office Expense 1$            1$            


1$              


4230X  Travel and Training 12$          12$          


NAB Convention for two employees 9$              


Other Travel and Training 3$              


42514  Special Department Expense 5$            5$            


Misc. specialized supplies 3.4


Other Special Dept Expenses 1.7


Total Professional/Administrative Services 177$           


4310X  Utilities 23$          23$          


  43103 Gas and Electric 17$            


  43102 Water 2                


  43201 Taxes 4                


44301 Fuel 1$            1$            


 


City of Pinole 189
706 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


CABLE ACCESS TV FUND - 505


CABLE ACCESS TV CONTRACT SERVICES- 121


EXPENDITURE SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


Personnel


Salaries & Wages -401 -                -                -                3,018      -              (3,018)       -100%


Employee Benefits - 410 -                -                -                -              -              -                0%


Total Personnel -                -                -                3,018      -              (3,018)       -100%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 -                -                181           21,297    21,297    -                0%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 -                -                -                2,746      2,746      -                0%


Materials & Supplies - 44 -                -                -                141         141         -                0%


Total Services and Supplies -                -                181           24,185    24,185    -                0%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                 -                 - -                605         605         -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                 -                 -                 -           605           605 -                0%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Admin Debits - 46122 -                132,383    111,865    157,017  156,641  (376)          0%


IS Charges - 46124 -                -                6,274        12,882    25,453    12,571      49%


Legal Charges - 46126 -                -                784           -              -              -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations -                132,383    118,923    169,899  182,094  12,195      7%


Total -                132,383    119,103    197,707  206,884  12,195      6%


[1] PEG funded


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 190
707 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


42101  Professional Services 16,120$    16,120$    


Equipment Master Plan consultant 16,120        


42106  Software Maintenance 611$         611$         


Scala Annual License 611$           


42107  Equipment Maintenance 1,008$      1,008$      


Equipment repair 121$           


Equipment repair parts 806            


Loaner equipment 81              


42108  Maintenance Structure/Imp 1,096$      1,096$      


Cleaning supplies 202$           


Elevator maintenance 484            


HVAC maintenance 322            


Pest control 89              


42201 Office Expense 161$         161$         


4230X  Travel and Training 1,411$      1,411$      


NAB Convention for two employees 1,008$        


Other Travel and Training 403$           


42514  Special Department Expense 891$         891$         


Misc. specialized supplies 594


Other Special Dept Expenses 297


Total Professional/Administrative Services 21,297$      


4310X  Utilities 2,746$      2,746$      


  43103 Gas and Electric 2,015$        


  43102 Water 208            


  43201 Taxes 524            


44301 Fuel 141$         141$         


47103 Furniture $605 605$         


   2 office desk chairs $605  


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 191
708 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – Community Services 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 192
709 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – General Government 


GENERAL GOVERNMENT 


 
Mission 


The mission of General Government is to appropriate funds for general City 


administrative overhead costs. 


Major Services and Functions 


The General Government Department is a department established in the City’s 


accounting system to provide a clearing house for payment of certain debt that is not tied 


to another specific department and accounting of cost recovery for internal services. As 


currently organized, the department does not perform any services.  


FY 2022/23 Key Accomplishments 


• Account for debt service payments, retiree medical reimbursement, and internal 


transfers 


FY 2023/24 Key Priorities and Projects 


• Continue to account for internal service functions 


Major Changes in FY 2023/24 Budget  


There are not any major changes to the General Government department budget for 


FY2023/24. 


Position Summary 


Position 
2019/2


0 
2020/2


1 
2021/2


2 
2022/2


3 
2023/2


4 


Management Analyst 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Total 1.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


 


Note that the Management Analyst position that was budgeted in the department up 


until FY 2019/20, and performs miscellaneous special projects, was moved to the City 


Manager department budget in FY 2020/21 to better reflect its primary tasks. 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 193
710 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – General Government 


GENERAL GOVERNMENT BUDGET SUMMARY


FY 2020/21 FY 2021/22 FY 2022/23 FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24 Prop to Rev Prop to Rev


Actual Actual Actual      


Thru Mar-23


Revised 


Budget 


Proposed 


Budget


$ Change % Change


REVENUE / FUNDING SOURCE


General Fund - 100 2,867,900   4,582,077    3,151,641    2,911,942    3,165,572    253,630     8%


Measure S 2014 - 106 666,890      692,901       585,000       718,000       783,500       65,500       8%


NPDES Storm Water Fund - 207 2,222          -               -               -               -               -            0%


Recreation Fund - 209 7,987          7,549           5,358           -               -               -            0%


Measure J - 215 48,930        49,664         -               -               -               -            0%


American Rescue Plan Act Fund - 217 -             533,606       4,071,404    4,090,010    -               ######## -100%


Sewer Enterprise Fund - 500 16,643        12,191         16,369         -               -               -            0%


Pension Fund - 700 86,587        87,037         -               -               -               -            0%


Total 3,697,159   5,965,026    7,829,772    7,719,952    3,949,072    ######## -95%


EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY


Personnel


Salaries & Wages - 401 -                 -                   -                   -                   -                   -                0%


Salary Savings - 405 -                 -                   -                   (510,000)      (510,000)      -                0%


Employee Benefits - 410 26,864        19,740         -                   -                   -                   -                0%


Med Insurance/Retirement - 411 1,023,038   1,058,878    847,941       1,154,084    1,101,233    (52,851)     -5%


Total Personnel 1,049,902   1,078,618    847,941       644,084       591,233       (52,851)     -9%


Services and Supplies


Professional & Administrative Services - 42 319,736      714,109       44,029         -                   -                   -                0%


Other Operating Expenses - 43 17,868        11,545         10,289         16,700         16,700         -                0%


Total Services and Supplies 337,603      725,655       54,319         16,700         16,700         -                0%


Capital Outlay


Asset Acquisition/Improvement - 47                   -                    - -                   -                   -                   -                0%


Total Capital Outlay                   -                    -                    -                    -                    - -                0%


Debt Service


Debt Principal - 48101 227,389      221,565       215,586       215,586       207,790       (7,796)       -4%


Debt Interest - 48102 327,611      383,580       379,414       379,414       402,210       22,796       6%


Cost of Issuance - 48103 3,607          3,591           1,045           1,107           1,107           -                0%


Total Debt Service       558,607         608,736         596,045         596,107         611,107        15,000 2%


Indirect Cost Allocations


Information Systems (IS) Charges - 46 158,814      171,690       188,184       301,171       356,257       55,086       15%


General Liability Insurance - 46201 3,580          20,211         -                   -                   -                   -                0%


Total Indirect Cost Allocations 162,394      191,901       188,184       301,171       356,257       55,086       15%


Operating Transfers Out - 49901 1,588,652   3,360,117    6,143,284    6,161,890    2,373,775    ######## -160%


Total 3,697,159   5,965,027    7,829,772    7,719,952    3,949,072    ######## -95%


EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM


General Government - 117 3,697,159   5,965,027    7,829,772    7,719,952    3,949,072    ######## -95%


Total 3,697,159   5,965,027    7,829,772    7,719,952    3,949,072    ######## -95%


 


City of Pinole 194
711 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – General Government 


MAJOR NON-PERSONNEL EXPENSE DETAILS


FY 2022/23 FY 2023/24


4310X  Utilities 16,700$       16,700$       


   43105 Comcast 500$            


43102 Water 900              


43103 Gas/Electric 15,300


48101  Debt Principal 221,565$     207,790$     


Pension Obligation Bond principal 207,790$     


48102  Debt Interest 353,435$     402,210$     


Pension Obligation Bond interest 402,210$     


49901 Transfers Out 1,353,880$  1,590,275$  


   General Reserve 764,520$     


PCTV Operating contribution 105,124       


Recreation operation contribution 597,831       


Recreation: Annual contribution to car show and other City events 122,800       


MEASURE S - 2014 FUND - 106


49901 Transfers Out 718,000$     783,500$     


Arterial Street Rehabilitation Projects 250,000$     


   Cable TV Contribution 55,000         


   Recreation-Cinema in the Park 2,500           


   Recreation-Community Service Commission 4,000           


   Recreation-Summer Sounds in the Park 4,500           


   Recreation-Swim Center Contribution 65,000         


   Recreation-Tree Lighting 2,500           


   Reserve to replace 2 PW vehicles per year 30,000         


   Reserves to replace heavy equipment 115,000       


Reserves to replace 2 Dev Svcs vehicles per year 5,000           


   Street Projects Funding 250,000       


American Rescue Plan Act - Fund 2017


49901 Transfers Out 4,090,010$  -$             


Transfer out to the General Fund -$             


 


City of Pinole 195
712 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – General Government 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 196
713 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – General Government 


SCHEDULE OF TRANSFERS  


The General Fund provides annual contributions to the Recreation and Pinole Community 


Television (PCTV) programs to fund any operational deficiencies. Only the amounts 


necessary to fund operations are transferred towards the end of the fiscal year. Measure 


S 2014 funds annual contributions to the Equipment Reserve Fund for future equipment 


replacement needs, as well as sets aside funds for the arterial street rehabilitation and 


street improvement projects. Special community events, such as the annual tree lighting, 


are also funded by Measure S 2014.  


TRANSFER-OUT TRANSFER-IN


FUND # DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # AMOUNT FUND # DESCRIPTION ACCOUNT # PURPOSE


100 General Fund 100-117-49901 105,124            505 Cable Television Fund 505-119-39901 Cable Television contribution [1] 


100 General Fund 100-117-49901 597,831            209 Recreation Fund 209-551-39901 Recreation operating contribution [1]


100 General Fund 100-117-49901 122,800            209 Recreation Fund 209-551-39901 Recreation contribution for special events


100 General Fund 100-117-49901 764,520            150 General Reserve Fund 150-000-39901 Reserve to meet reverse policy level


Subtotal Transfers from the General Fund 1,590,275         


106 Measure S 2014 Fund 106-117-49901 65,000               209 Recreation Fund 209-557-39901 Swim Center contribution [1]


106 Measure S 2014 Fund 106-117-49901 250,000            325 City Street Fund 325-342-39901 Funding for Future Street Projects 


106 Measure S 2014 Fund 106-117-49901 250,000            377 Arterial Streets Rehabilitation Fund 377-342-39901 Fund Portion of Arterial Streets Rehabilitation


106 Measure S 2014 Fund 106-117-49901 55,000               505 Cable Television Fund 505-119-39901 Cable Television contribution [1] 


106 Measure S 2014 Fund 106-117-49901 13,500               209 Recreation Fund 209-551-39901 Recreation: Cinema, Community Service, 


Summer Sounds, Tree Lighting.


106 Measure S 2014 Fund 106-117-49901 30,000               160 Equipment Reserve Fund 160-345-39901 Reserves to replace 2 vehicles per year


106 Measure S 2014 Fund 106-117-49901 115,000            160 Equipment Reserve Fund 160-345-39901 Reserves to replace heavy equipment


106 Measure S 2014 Fund 106-117-49901 5,000                 160 Equipment Reserve Fund 160-461-39901 Reserves to replace 2 vehicles per year


Subtotal Transfers from Measure S 2014 783,500            


217 American Rescue Plan Act Fund217-117-49901 -                          100    General Fund 100-117-39901 Transfer from ARPA fund


700 Pension Fund 700-000-49901 2,245,480         100    General Fund 100-117-39901 Transfer from Pension Trust


Subtotal Transfers from other funds 2,245,480         


Grand total Transfers 4,619,255         NOTES:


[1] Only enough to balance Fund will be transferred.  


 


 


 


City of Pinole 197
714 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – General Government 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 198
715 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – General Government 


DEBT OBLIGATIONS 
 
A best practice in public finance is to show the City’s debt obligations in its budget. The 


City has just three long-term debt obligations, other than those of the Redevelopment 


Successor Agency. 


Pension Obligation Bonds 


On June 1, 2006, the City Council authorized the issuance of $16,800,000 of Taxable 
Pension Obligation Bonds, 2006 Series A-2 (Capital Appreciation Bonds). The bonds in 
the aggregate principal of $6,214,630 were issued to raise funds, presumably at a lower 
cost, to pay down the City’s unfunded accrued actuarial liability with CalPERS.  The bonds 
bear compounded interest which is due semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 through 
2036.  Principal payments are due annually on June 1 through 2036. The debt structure 
does not allow the bonds to be retired any earlier than 2036.  In accordance with Section 
4.01 (a) of the Trust Agreement, the City is required to deposit with the Trustee on or 
before August 1 of each year the annual amount for the upcoming fiscal year ending June 
30.  The bonds are secured with an insurance policy.   


Bonds payable debt service requirements for governmental activities are shown below:  


For the Year Ending, June 30  Principal  Interest 


2023  215,586  379,414 


2024  207,790  402,210 


2025  203,321  431,679 


2026  195,585  454,415 


2027  191,228  483,773 


*2028-2032  879,366         2,840,634 


*2033-2036  620,010   2,819,990  


  $   2,512,886   $   7,812,114 


 


*The total principal and total interest will be spread over the five-year period. 


 


2016 Wastewater Revenue Refunding Bonds 


On June 30, 2016, the City of Pinole issued an $8,251,000 Wastewater Revenue 
Refunding Bond (Bank Qualified) to redeem its 2006 Wastewater Revenue Bonds which 
were issued to finance certain capital improvements to the City’s wastewater system.  The 
bonds bear annual intertest at 2.95% which is payable semi-annually on March 1 and 
September 1 of each year through 2036.  Principal payments are due annually beginning 
on September 1, 2016 through 2036.  The bond is secured with pledged net wastewater 
revenues.     


 


City of Pinole 199
716 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Department Budgets – General Government 


Bonds payable debt service requirements for business-type activities are shown below:           


For the Year Ending, June 30  Principal  Interest 


2023  341,000  181,440 
2024  347,000  171,292 
2025  362,000  160,384 
2026  372,000  150,008 
2027  381,000  138,901 


2028-2032  2,089,000  516,029 
2033-2037  2,429,000  183,564 


  $       6,321,000  $      1,502,066 


                


2016 Clean Water State Revolving Fund 


In May 2016, the City entered into a loan agreement with the State of California Water 
Resources Control Board to provide funding for its 50% share of upgrades to the Pinole-
Hercules Wastewater Pollution Control Plant to achieve compliance with Regional Water 
Quality Board NPDES. Funds are drawn on the agreement as work is completed up to a 
maximum amount of $26.7 million plus any construction period interest. The loan accrues 
interest at a rate of 1.7 percent annually. Annual principal payments are due each July 1, 
commencing July 1, 2020. Final payment is due July 2049. Net revenues, defined as all 
sewer enterprise fund revenues less operations and maintenance costs (excluding 
depreciation and amortization expenses), are pledged for future debt service. As of June 
30, 2022, the total debt outstanding on the loan is $24,105,949.  


Year Ending June 30,  Principal  Interest 


2023  679,383  409,801 
2024  690,932  398,252 
2025  702,678  386,506 
2026  714,624  374,560 
2027  726,772  362,412 


2028-2032  3,823,443  1,622,477 
2033-2037  4,159,675  1,286,245 
2038-2042  4,525,475  920,445 
2043-2047  4,923,443  522,477 
2048-2050  3,159,524  108,027 


  $        24,105,949  $        6,391,201 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 200
717 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Appendix 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 201
718 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


Page intentionally blank 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 202
719 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Accounting and Budget Basis, Monitoring the Budget, Fund Structure  


ACCOUNTING AND BUDGET BASIS 


It is a public finance best practice for the City’s budget to describe the City’s accounting 
basis and fund structure. 


The City maintains its accounting records in accordance with Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and standards established by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).  Governmental fund financial statements are 
reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified 
accrual basis of accounting.  Revenue is recognized when both measurable and 
available.  Expenditures are recognized when the liability is incurred. Debt service 
obligations are appropriated when due. 


Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenue is recognized when 
earned and expenses when the liability is incurred regardless of timing of related cash 
flows.  


The basis of budgeting is consistent with the basis of accounting discussed above.  
Appropriations that are budgeted and not expensed at the end of the year lapse and revert 
to fund balance.   


MONITORING THE BUDGET 


Once adopted, the budget becomes the main internal control document used to monitor 


and manage the City’s financial position.  The City’s budget level of control is executed 


at the fund level set by the City’s governing body. Requests for budget amendments are 


presented to the City Council and are enacted by resolution. Managers can transfer funds 


within their respective departments with the approval of the City Manager.  Financial 


reports that highlight revenue and expenditure variances, some of which may require 


adjustments to the budget, are presented to City Council for consideration and adoption 


on a quarterly basis. 


FUND STRUCTURE 


The City uses funds to report its current financial position and the results of its operations.  


Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid in financial 


management by segregating transactions related to certain governmental functions of 


activities.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over 


resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  All of the funds 


of the City can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds 


and fiduciary funds. 


 


City of Pinole 203
720 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Accounting and Budget Basis, Monitoring the Budget, Fund Structure  


 


 


GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 


General Funds are used to account for all the general revenues of the City not 


specifically levied or collected for other City funds and the related expenditures.  


Fund Number Name 


100 General Fund 
105 Measure S 2006 Fund 
106 Measure S 2014 Fund 
150 General Reserve Fund 
160 Equipment Reserve Fund 


 


Special revenue funds used to account for proceeds that are legally restricted for 
specific purposes.   


Fund Number Name 


200 Gas Tax Fund 
201 Restricted Real Estate Maintenance Fund 
203 Public Safety Augmentation Fund 
204 Police Grants Fund 
205 Traffic Safety Fund 
206 Supplemental Law Enforcement Services Fund 
207 Storm Water Fund 
209 Recreation Fund 
212 Building & Planning Fund 
213 Refuse Management Fund 
214 Solid Waste Fund 


City of Pinole


Governmental Funds


General 
Fund


Special 
Revenue 


Funds


Debt 
Service 
Funds


Capital 
Projects 
Funds


Proprietary Funds


Enterprise 
Funds


Internal 
Service 
Funds


Fiduciary 
Funds


Trust and 
Agency 
Funds


City of Pinole 204
721 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Accounting and Budget Basis, Monitoring the Budget, Fund Structure  


215 Measure J Fund 
217 American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Fund 
225 Asset Seizure-Adjudicated Fund 
275 Parkland Dedication Fund 
276 Growth Impact Fund 
285 Housing Assets for Resale 


 
Capital projects funds are used to account for financial resources for the acquisition or 
construction of facilities and other capital assets.   


Fund Number Name 


310 Lighting and Landscape District Fund 
324 Public Facilities Fund 
325 City Street Improvements  
327 Parks Grants Fund 
377 Arterial Rehabilitation 


 


PROPRIETARY FUNDS 


Enterprise funds are used to account for goods or services from business-type activities, 
such as fees charged to external users.  


Fund Number Name 


500 Sewer Enterprise Fund 
505 Cable Access TV Fund 


 


Internal service funds are used to account for activities that provide goods or services 
to other funds, departments, or agencies of the primary government and its component 
units, or to other governments on a cost-reimbursement basis.   


Fund Number Name 


525 Information Systems Fund 
 


FIDUCIARY FUNDS 


Agency funds are used to maintain records of assets and financial activities on behalf of 
a third party or set aside in an external trust fund for restricted purposes.    


Fund Number Name 


700 Section 115 Pension Trust Fund 
750 Redevelopment Obligation Retirement Fund 


 


The City receives revenue from numerous sources that are used for various expenditures 
for City purposes. The following are descriptions of each of the City’s revenue sources as 
well as the assumptions used to develop the budget projections.  


City of Pinole 205
722 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Accounting and Budget Basis, Monitoring the Budget, Fund Structure  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Page intentionally blank 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


City of Pinole 206
723 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Glossary and Acronyms  


GLOSSARY 


Appropriation - An authorization by the City Council to make expenditures/expenses and 
to incur obligations for a specific purpose within a specific time frame. 
 
Assessed Valuation - A dollar value placed on real estate or other property by the 
County as a basis for levying property taxes. 
 
Assessments- Levies that pay for improvements directly benefiting their property. 
 
Audit - A view of the City's accounts by an independent auditing firm to substantiate fiscal 
year-end fund, salaries, reserves, and cash on hand. 
 
Beginning/Ending (Unappropriated) Fund Balance - Unencumbered resources 
available in a fund from the prior/current fiscal year after payment of the prior/current fiscal 
year's expenditures/expenses.  This is not necessarily cash on hand. 
 
Bond - A City may raise capital by issuing a written promise to pay a specific sum of 
money, called the face value or principal amount, at a specific date or dates in the future, 
together with periodic interest at a special rate.  There are two types of bonds:  General 
Obligation and Revenue. 
 
Budget - A fiscal plan of financial operation listing an estimate of proposed applications 
or expenditures/expenses and the proposed means of financing them for a particular time 
period.  The budget is proposed until it has been approved by the City Council. 
 
Capital Improvement - A permanent addition to the City's assets, including the design, 
construction, or purchase of land, buildings, or facilities, or major renovations of same. 
 
Capital Improvement Program - A financial plan of proposed capital improvement 
projects with single-and multiple-year capital expenditures/expenses. 
 
Capital Outlay - A budget appropriation category which budgets all equipment having an 
estimated useful life of over one year. 
 
City Manager's Transmittal Letter - A general discussion of the budget.  The letter 
contains an explanation of principal budget items and summaries. 
 
CPI - Consumer Price Index; measure of inflation in an area of consumer products. 


Debt Service - Payment of the principal and interest on an obligation resulting from the 
issuance bonds, notes, or Certificates of Participation (COPs). 
 
Debt Service Requirements - The amount of money required to pay interest on 
outstanding debt and required contributions to accumulate monies for future retirement 
of term bonds. 
 


City of Pinole 207
724 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Glossary and Acronyms  


Deficit - An excess of expenditures or expenses over revenues (resources). 
 
Department - An organizational unit comprised of divisions.  It is the basic unit of service 
responsibility encompassing a broad mandate of related activities. 
 
Depreciation- The cost allocation of tangible assets over the useful/economic life of the 
asset. 
 
Division - A sub-section (or activity) within a department, which furthers the objectives of 
the City by providing specific services or a product. 
 
Encumbrances - A legal obligation to pay funds, the expenditure/expense of which has 
not yet occurred.  They cease to be encumbrances when the obligations are paid or 
otherwise terminated. 
 
Enterprise Fund - A type of fund established for the total costs of those governmental 
facilities and services which are operated in a manner similar to private enterprise.  These 
programs are entirely or predominately self-supporting. 
 
Expenditure - The actual spending of Governmental Funds set aside by appropriation. 
 
Expense - The actual spending of Proprietary Funds (Enterprise and Internal Service 
Fund types) set aside by an appropriation. 
 
Fiscal Year - A twelve-month period of time to which a budget, forecast or reporting 
period applies.  The City of Pinole fiscal year is July 1 through June 30. 
 
Fund - An independent fiscal and accounting entity used to record all financial 
transactions related to the specific purpose for which the fund was created. 
 
Fund Balance - The amount of financial resources available for use.  Generally, this 
represents the detail of all the annual operating surpluses and deficits since the fund's 
inception. 
 
General Fund - The primary fund of the City used to account for all revenues and 
expenditures of the City not legally restricted as to use.  This fund is used to offset the 
cost of the City's general operations.  Examples of departments financed by the General 
Fund include the City Council, Police and others. 
 
General Obligation Bond - Bonds used for various purposes and repaid by the regular 
(usually via the General Fund) revenue raising powers of the City. 
 
 
Grant - Contributions, gifts of cash, or other assets from another governmental entity to 
be used or expended for a specific purpose, activity, or facility. 
 


City of Pinole 208
725 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Glossary and Acronyms  


Interfund Transfers - Monies transferred from one fund to another.  Such money is 
transferred to finance the operations of another fund or to reimburse the fund for certain 
expenditures/expenses. 
 
Internal Service Fund - An Internal Service Fund provides services to other City 
departments and bills the various other funds for services rendered, just as would private 
business.  ISF's are self-supporting and only the expense by an ISF is counted in budget 
totals. 
 
Major Fund – Governmental fund or enterprise fund reported as a separate column in 
the basic financial statements and subject to a separate opinion in the independent 
auditor’s report. 
 
Materials, Supplies, and Services - Expenditures/expenses for materials, supplies, and 
services which are ordinarily consumed within a fiscal year and which are not included in 
departmental inventories. 
 
Municipal Code - A book that contains the City Council approved ordinances currently 
in effect.  The Code defines City policy with respect to areas such as planning, etc. 
 
Objectives - The expected results or achievements of a budget activity. 
 
Operating Budget - Annual appropriation of funds for on-going program costs, including 
salaries and benefits, services and supplies, debt service, capital outlay and capital 
improvements. 
 
Ordinance - A formal legislative enactment by the City Council.  It has the full force and 
effect of law within City boundaries unless preempted by a higher form of law.  An 
Ordinance has a higher legal standing than a Resolution. 
 
Projects – Long-term investments in public facilities and infrastructure; also known as 
capital improvements.  The amount spent may overlap from year to year until the project 
is completed. 
 
Proprietary Funds- These include the enterprise (wastewater treatment and collection) 
and internal services (information technology and equipment reserve) funds.  They are 
accounted for in a manner similar to businesses, measuring cost for services and 
including total assets and liabilities. 
 
Redevelopment Agency- A separate legal entity created to alleviate conditions of 


blight, build infrastructure and promote economic development.  The Agency receives 


property tax revenue on assessed value growth within these areas called “tax 


increments” to repay Agency indebtedness. 


 


City of Pinole 209
726 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Glossary and Acronyms  


Reimbursement - Payment of amount remitted on behalf of another party, department, 
or fund. 
 
Reserve - An account used to record a portion of the fund balance as legally segregated 
for a specific use. 
 
Resolution - A special order of the City Council which has a lower legal standing than an 
Ordinance. 
 
Return to Source Funds - Residual moneys from former Redevelopment Agency’s tax 
levy’s that are redistributed to the Cities after the Agency’s debt obligations have been 
paid off. These funds are non-restricted and are distributed by the State in January and 
July of every year. 
 
Revenues - Amount received for taxes, fees, permits, licenses, interest, 
intergovernmental sources, and other sources during the fiscal year. 
 
Revenue Bonds - A type of bonds usually issued to construct facilities.  The bonds are 
repaid from the revenue produced by the operation of these facilities. 
 
Salaries and Benefits - A budget category which generally accounts for full-time and 
temporary employees, overtime expenses, and all employee benefits, such as medical, 
dental, and retirement. 
 
Special Revenue Funds - This fund type collects revenues that are restricted by the City, 
State, or Federal Government as to how the City might spend them. 
 
Successor Agency to the Pinole Redevelopment Agency - Trust agency formed for 
the purpose of reporting close-out financial activities of the former Redevelopment 
Agency. 
 
Unfunded Liability - Amount of future obligations not covered by assets currently set 
aside for that purpose, such as accrued vacation leave payable at termination or actuarial-
determined future insurance claims. 
 
User Fees - Charges of a voluntary nature paid by persons receiving a service in 
exchange for the fee (such as recreation activities or wastewater service fees). 
 
 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 210
727 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Glossary and Acronyms  


ACRONYMS 


 
ABAG   Association of Bay Area Government 
 
ACFR   Annual Comprehensive Financial Report 
 
CalPERS  California Public Employees’ Retirement System 
 
CIP   Capital Improvement Program 
 
COLA   Cost of Living Adjustment 
 
CPI   Consumer Price Index 
 
CSMFO  California Society of Municipal Finance Officers 
 
EAP   Employee Assistance Program 
 
FTE                          Full Time Equivalent 
 
GASB   Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
 
GFOA   Government Finance Officers Association 
 
HOPTR                    Homeowner’s Property Tax Rebates 
 
LAIF   Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
LTD   Long-Term Disability 
 
NPDES            National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 
 
OPEB                       Other Post Employment Benefits 
 
PALC                       Pinole Assisted Living Community 
 
PERS   Public Employees’ Retirement System 
 
PEPRA  Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act [of 2013] 
 
POB   Pension Obligation Bond 
 
PPEA   Pinole Police Employees Association 
 
PRA   Pinole Redevelopment Agency 
 


City of Pinole 211
728 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Glossary and Acronyms  


RDA   Redevelopment Agency 
 
SAFER                     Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response 
 
SDI   State Disability Insurance 
 
SRO                       School Resource Officer 
 
UBC                         Uniform Building Code 
 
VLF                          Vehicle License Fee 
 
WBCC  West Bay Communications Center 
 
WCCTAC            West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee 
 
WCCUSD                 West Contra Costa Unified School District 
 
WPCP                      Wastewater Pollution Control Plant 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 212
729 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Financial and Investment Policies  


FINANCIAL AND INVESTMENT POLICIES 


 
The following Financial and Investment Policies are established to ensure that the City’s 
finances are managed in a sound and prudent manner which will (1) continue to provide 
for the delivery of quality services, (2) maintain and enhance service delivery as the 
community grows in accordance with the General Plan, (3) strive for a balanced budget 
annually, assuring that the City is living within our means, and (4) establish reserves 
necessary to meet known and unknown future obligations.   
 
To achieve these goals, the following Financial and Investment Policies have been 
established. Below is a summary of the actual policies, which were last updated and 
approved by the City Council on May 2, 2023. The full policies can be found on the 
website at Financial and Investment Policies - Updated March 2023.pdf (civiclive.com).   
 
1. Structurally Balanced Budget Policy 


 
The annual budget will be structurally balanced whereby the operating budget will be 
prepared with current year expenditures funded with current year revenue. If a 
structural imbalance occurs, a plan will be developed and implemented to bring the 
budget back into structural balance.   
 


2. Reserves Policy 
  
The City will establish, dedicate and maintain reserves annually to meet known and 
estimated future obligations.   The City will establish specific reserve accounts which 
include but are not limited to:  


• General Fund Reserves for Economic Uncertainties equivalent to a minimum 10 
percent or 180 days cash on hand of General Fund recurring expenditures; 


• Reserves for depreciation and replacement of vehicles and major equipment; 


• Reserves for maintenance, replacement, and renovations of facilities, parks, 
landscape maintenance and infrastructure. 


If these reserves are used, a plan will be developed and implemented to replenish 
the funds used.  


 
3. Revenue Policy – One Time (Non-Recurring) Resources  


 
The City will strive to maintain a diversified and stable revenue base that is not overly 


dependent on any land use, major taxpayer, revenue type, restricted revenue, inelastic 


revenue, or external revenue. The General Fund Budget will be structurally in balance 


without relying on one-time resources such as proceeds from asset sales, debt 


refinancing, one-time grants, revenue spikes, budget savings and similar non-recurring 


revenue.  Appropriate uses of one-time resources include establishing and rebuilding the 


General Fund Reserve, other City established reserves, or early retirement of debt, 


City of Pinole 213
730 of 829



https://cdnsm5-hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_10946972/File/Finance/Financial%20and%20Investment%20Policies%20-%20Updated%20March%202023.pdf





Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Financial and Investment Policies  


capital expenditures, reducing unfunded pension liabilities (PERS and OPEB), and other 


non-recurring expenditures. 


 
4. Revenue Policy – User Fees and Charges  


 
The City of Pinole is empowered to recapture, through fees, up to the full cost of 
providing specific services. Regular and consistent review of all fees is necessary to 
ensure that the costs associated with delivery of individual services have been 
appropriately identified, and that the City is fully recovering those costs. It is the City’s 
policy to set user fees at full cost recovery levels, except where a greater community 
benefit is demonstrated to the satisfaction of the City Council, or when it is not cost 
effective to do so.  The City will recover the costs of new facilities and infrastructure 
necessitated by the development consistent with state law. 
 


5. Expenditure and Budget Policy  
 
The City will deliver service in the most efficient and cost-effective manner. This 
includes utilizing the services of volunteers in areas where economically viable. The 
budget will state the objectives of the operating programs, and identify the resources 
being provided to accomplish the specified objectives.   
 


6. Debt Policy  
 
The City will limit the use of debt so as not to place a burden on the fiscal resources 
of the City and its taxpayers.  Long-term borrowing will be limited to capital 
improvements or projects that cannot be financed from current revenues.  When 
capital projects are financed, the City will amortize the debt within a period not to 
exceed the expected useful life of the project. The City will limit the total debt ratio 
(debt guaranteed by the General Fund) to 10% or as required by bond coverage ratios.  
The debt ratio is calculated by the relationship between the debt and the General Fund 
revenue. 
 


7. Receivables Policy 
 
The City will ensure the timely invoicing, monitoring, and collection of outstanding 
obligations owed to the City. The purpose of the is policy is to maintain appropriate 
oversight of all receivables and maintain sound fiscal management and accounting 
practices related to all receivables.  


 
8. Grants Policy 


 
The City departments actively pursue federal, state and other grant opportunities 
when deemed appropriate. Grant funding allows the City to leverage local public funds 
by extending and enhancing the services it offers to the community, and to introduce 
new initiatives. 


City of Pinole 214
731 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Financial and Investment Policies  


 
 


9. Capital Assets Policy 
Purchased and donated assets meeting the City’s capitalization definition and 
threshold will be classified and recorded in the City’s financial records as capital 
assets.  The value of the asset must meet the City’s capitalization threshold of $5,000 
to be recorded as a capital asset. 
 


10. Unclaimed Funds Policy 
 
The City of Pinole will account for unclaimed funds in a manner which follows Government 


Code Sections 50050 through 50056. Funds that remain unclaimed for at least three (3) years 


will become the property of the City of Pinole after the procedures identified herein have been 


followed. 


 
11. Investment Policy  


 
The purpose of this Investment Policy is to define the parameters within which funds 
are to be managed.  In methods, procedures, and practices, the policy formalizes the 
framework for the City of Pinole’s investment activities that must be exercised to 
ensure effective and judicious fiscal and investment management of the City’s funds.  
 


12. Pension Investment Policy 
 
The City of Pinole (the “City”) has established the City of Pinole Employee Benefit 
Pension Plan (the “Plan”), a Section 115 Trust. The goal of the Plan’s investment 
program is to provide a reasonable level of growth which will result in sufficient assets 
to offset a portion of the present and future obligations of retirement benefits provided 
by the California Public Employees Retirement System (“CalPERS”) for those eligible 
employees who meet the specified age and service requirements. 
 
The purpose of this Pension Investment Policy is to establish a comprehensive 
strategy for assets invested under the Plan, and outline prudent and acceptable 
parameters in which pension funds are to be managed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


City of Pinole 215
732 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Financial and Investment Policies  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


Page intentionally blank 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


City of Pinole 216
733 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Employee Compensation and Benefits  


EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS 


Compensation 


Employees are compensated based on job classification, which is a group of positions 
sufficiently similar with respect to their duties and responsibilities that: (a) the same 
descriptive title may be used to designate the positions allocated to the class; (b) the 
scope and level of duties and responsibilities are similar; (c) the same qualifications and 
tests of fitness may be required of all incumbents; and (d) the same salary rate or range 
can apply with equity under substantially the same working conditions. Salaries and 
wages are paid over twenty-six periods each fiscal year. Current salary and benefit 
schedules are available online at: 
https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/human_resources/salary__benefits.  


 
Compensation packages include benefits, such as medical plan, dental plan, vision plan, 
cafeteria plan, life insurance, disability insurance, flexible benefits plan. 
 


There are currently four union-represented groups in the City: Pinole Police Employees 
Association, International Association of Firefighters Local 1230, Public Employees Union 
– Local 1, and AFSCME Local 512.  
 
Pension Plans 


The City contributes to the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS”), a 
cost-sharing, multiple-employer, public employee, defined benefit, pension plan.  PERS 
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death 
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  PERS acts as a common investment and 
administrative agent for participating public entities within the State of California.  Benefit 
provisions and all other requirements are established by state statute and City ordinance.  
Copies of PERS’ annual financial report may be obtained from their executive office: 400 
P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 
 
Funding Policy: Miscellaneous Plan participants are required to contribute 8% of their 
annual covered salary, while Safety Plan participants are required to contribute 9% of 
their annual covered salary.     
 
The City entered into cost-sharing agreements with its union-represented and 
unrepresented employees whereby miscellaneous and safety employees’ total CalPERS 
contribution (combined Employee Contribution and Employees’ Share of the City's 
contribution) are capped at 15% (8% employee portion and 7% employer portion) and 
15% (9% employee portion and 6% employer portion) respectively.   
 
The City established the City of Pinole Employee Benefit Pension Plan (the “Plan”), a 
Section 115 Trust in July of 2018.  The goal of the Plan’s investment program is to provide 
a reasonable level of growth which will result in sufficient assets to offset a portion of the 
present and future obligations of retirement benefits provided by the California Public 
Employees Retirement System (“CalPERS”) for those eligible employees who meet the 


City of Pinole 217
734 of 829



https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/human_resources/salary__benefits





Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
Appendix – Employee Compensation and Benefits  


specified age and service requirements. Assets in the Plan will seek to mitigate the impact 
of future rate increases from CalPERS.   
 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 


In addition to the retirement pension benefits described above, the City sponsors and 
administers a single-employer healthcare plan for its employees.  The plan includes 
healthcare coverage to long-service retirees.  At retirement, employees can elect Blue 
Shield, Kaiser, PERS Care, or PERS Choice medical coverage through the City at the 
City’s expense.  
 


Employees hired before July 1, 2010 receive a City contribution toward their health 
premium equal that provided to current active employees.  Employees hired after July 1, 
2010 receive a City contribution toward their retiree health premium in an amount 
described by Government Code Section 22893 (the PERS vesting schedule) as shown  
below: 
 


Credited Years of Service Percentage of Employer Contribution 


10 50% 


11 55% 


12 60% 


13 65% 


14 70% 


15 75% 


16 80% 


17 85% 


18 90% 


19 95% 


20 or more 100% 


 


Funding Policy: The City’s contribution for each retiree is capped at the Kaiser Bay 
Area/Sacramento family premium.  The premium as of July 1, 2019 is $2,027.64 per 
month.  The City is currently funding the benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis. 
 


Risk Management 


The City manages risk of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters by participating 
in a public entity risk pool established under the Joint Exercise of Powers Act of the State 
of California.  The City is a member of the Municipal Pooling Authority (MPA) of Northern 
California.   
 


MPA provides coverage against the following types of risk of loss under the terms of the 
joint-powers agreement:  


 Type of Coverage (Deductible) Coverage Limits 


Liability ($25,000) including errors and omissions for public officials  $29,000,000 


All Risk Fire and Property ($5,000) $1,000,000,000 


Workers’ Compensation (no deductible) $50,000,000 


Vehicle Physical Damage ($3,000 for Police, $2,000 all others) $250,000 


City of Pinole 218
735 of 829







Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 Operating and Capital Budget 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 
2131 Pear Street 
Pinole, CA 94564 


 


 


 


 


City of Pinole 219
736 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


11B 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROGRAM MANAGER 


SUBJECT: REVISED PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2023/24 THROUGH 2027/28 
FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council review the Revised Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 
2023/24 through 2027/28 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan (CIP, attached) and 
provide feedback and direction for preparation of the final version, the Final Proposed 
CIP, scheduled for review and adoption on June 20, 2023.  


BACKGROUND 


The City of Pinole’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a five-year plan for maintenance 
and expansion of the City’s public facilities and infrastructure. The CIP lists the capital 
projects that the City intends to undertake over the upcoming five-year period and the 
schedule, cost, and funding source for each. 


Staff presented a preliminary proposed list of projects to be included in the FY 2023/24 
through 2027/28 Five-Year CIP to the Finance Subcommittee on April 12, 2023 and to 
the City Council on April 25, 2023. The Finance Subcommittee and City Council did not 
direct any changes to the preliminary proposed list of projects. On May 16, 2023, the City 
Council reviewed the Preliminary Proposed Fiscal Year (FY) 2023/24 through 2027/28 
Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan and did not direct any changes.  


On May 22, 2023, the Planning Commission reviewed the Preliminary Proposed Fiscal 
Year (FY) 2023/24 through 2027/28 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan for conformity 
and consistency with the City’s General Plan and determined that the projects did conform 
with the General Plan. 


City staff welcomes the feedback of the City Council and members of the public on the 
Revised Proposed FY 2022/23 through 2026/27 Five-Year CIP at the City Council’s June 
6, 2023 meeting. Following the June 6, 2023 Council meeting, staff will incorporate the 
City Council’s feedback, as well as additional staff-generated content, into the final 
version, the Final Proposed CIP, which will be presented to the City Council for review 
and adoption on June 20, 2023. 


737 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023  2 


REVIEW & ANALYSIS 


The Revised Proposed CIP lists 32 planned public improvement projects, 9 infrastructure 
assessments, and 35 unfunded projects.  


At the May 16, 2023 Council meeting, Council directed staff to assign prioritization scores 
to all projects in the CIP including unfunded projects. The scores are listed on each project 
sheet. The scoring exercise revealed that most of the projects proposed for the FY 
2023/24 rated highly except for a few projects which were programmed because they are 
already underway and/or were prioritized by Council. It also revealed that the matrix 
criteria does not consider operational need.  
 
Staff used similar criteria to score the unfunded project list. However, there are limitations 
to score projects in the unfunded list. Some projects on the unfunded list require additional 
resources to determine the scope of work and associated costs. The project 
dependency/bunding criteria was used to determine the relationship with other projects 
in the unfunded project list. The grant funding criteria was altered to estimate the 
possibility of grant funding available to projects in the unfunded list.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
Projects included in FY 2022/23 that will not be completed by June 30, 2023 are carried 
over. The unexpended funds that were allocated in the previous year are carried over, 
and in some cases no additional funding is required. In some cases, additional funds are 
allocated to these projects in the upcoming fiscal year, either as part of planned project 
phasing or to cover unanticipated costs. New projects have funding allocations in the first 
year of activity and funding allocations for the upcoming fiscal year are part of budget 
adoption. 
 
The City Council’s review and direction on the Revised Proposed FY 2023/24 through 
2027/28 Five-Year CIP does not itself have any fiscal impact on the City. The City Council 
officially approves funding for FY 2023/24 capital projects through the FY 2023/24 
Operating and Capital Budget, which City staff and the City Council are currently 
developing. 
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
A. Revised Proposed FY 2023/24 through 2027/28 Five-Year Capital Improvement Plan 


 


738 of 829







     CITY OF PINOLE  
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 


FY 2023/24 – 20 27/28 


REVISED PROPOSED 
June 6, 2023 


ATTACHMENT A


739 of 829







 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 


 
CAPITAL 


IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 


 


 


CITY COUNCIL 
Devin T. Murphy, Mayor 


Maureen Toms, Mayor Pro Tem 


Anthony L. Tave, Council Member 


Cameron N. Sasai, Council Member 


Norma Martínez-Rubin, Council Member 


 
CITY MANAGER 


Andrew Murray 


 


PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR  


Sanjay Mishra 


 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT & 
ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER 


Misha Kaur  


 


 


 
 


740 of 829







 
 


 
Introduction 
 
The Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) is a multi-year tool used to identify the City’s capital needs 
and schedule capital improvement projects over the upcoming five-year period. Capital 
improvements include the design, purchase, construction, maintenance, or improvement of 
public capital assets (i.e., streets, parks, buildings, etc.). 
 
The projects in the CIP fall into the following broad categories: 


• Facility maintenance; 
• Parks; 
• Sewer collection and treatment; 
• Stormwater; 
• Streets and roads; and 
• Infrastructure assessments. 


The FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 CIP contains 32 capital improvement projects and 9 infrastructure 
assessments that are scheduled to be undertaken over the five-year timeframe and are fully or 
partially funded. The CIP also includes information for 35 unfunded projects. A funded project is 
one that has identified specific funding, including on-going existing resources to fully implement 
the project. A partially funded project has funding to accomplish various phases of the project 
but lacks sufficient funding to complete the project. An unfunded project is one that has been 
identified in the CIP as a need but no funding secured to implement the project. Should funding 
become available through grant or other sources, the unfunded list can be reviewed to 
determine if it is suitable to seek such funding. 


Each project is assigned a project number and described in detail in the project sheets. The 
nomenclature for the project number is derived as follows:  
 


• Project numbers begin with the abbreviation of the 
project category, followed by the year the project was 
first programmed, and then a unique sequence 
number. For example, FA2001 refers to a facilities 
project which was first programmed in 2020 with a 
unique sequence number of 01. Unfunded projects 
begin with UF and are followed by a unique sequence 
number. 


 
 
The CIP is reviewed and updated annually. In recent years, the City has increased its focus on 
assessing the state of the City’s infrastructure by inventorying all the assets, assessing their 
contributions to a safe and vibrant Pinole, assessing their current conditions, and creating a 
disciplined investment approach resulting in a strong and purpose driven Capital Investment 
Plan. 
 
The preparation and adoption of the CIP is an important part of Pinole’s financial planning and 
budgeting process. Proposed projects are reviewed by the Planning Commission for 
consistency with the General Plan. The project description sheet provides information on the 
General Plan goal or policy that the project aligns with. Appendix I describes the applicable 


Category Abbreviation 
Facilities FA 
Parks PA 
Sewer SS 
Stormwater SW 
Streets & 
Roads 


RO 


Infrastructure 
Assessments 


IA 


Unfunded UF 


741 of 829







 
 


General Plan goals and policies. The Finance Subcomittee also reviews the CIP and makes 
recommendations.  
The process for developing the CIP involves the following steps: 


 


 


Development of the FY 2023/24 thru FY 2027/28 CIP 
 
Most of the projects in the FY 2023/24 thru FY 2027/28 CIP are the continuation of multi-year 
projects that have already been initiated or are projects that were included in the prior year’s 
CIP but have not yet been initiated. The FY 2023/24 thru FY 2027/28 CIP was developed by 
taking the adopted FY 2022/23 thru FY 2026/27 CIP, then deleting projects that have been 
completed or no longer seem necessary and adding new projects. Below is a summary of the 
changes during FY 2022/23.  
 
Project added to the CIP by the City Council during FY 2022/23 
• RO2304 – Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave./Pear & Plum St. 
 
Project removed from the CIP by the City Council during FY 2022/23 
• FA2201 – Faria House Renovations 
 
Project removed from the CIP by the Staff during FY 2022/23 
• SW2002 – Adobe Road Repair and Drainage Improvements 
 
Projects expected to be complete by FY 2022/23 
• FA2002 – Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 
• PA2203 – Playground Rubberized Surface Improvements 
• IN2104 – Local Road Safety Plan 
• IN2001 – Sanitary Sewer Master Plan  
 
The City’s capital projects have historically been prioritized based on a number of factors, 
including regulatory compliance, health/safety, grant funding availability, sustainability and 
conservation, and others. In FY 2022/23, City staff created a more structured, quantitative 
methodology for prioritizing capital projects. The prioritization matrix is a planning and 
evaluation tool to optimize available resources. Staff ranks capital projects which have not been 
initiated based on the following methodology. 
 


CATEGORY SCORE (1-5)  CATEGORY 
WEIGHT 


WEIGHTED 
SCORE 


Regulatory 
Compliance 


  4  


Health/Safety   3  
Project 
Dependency/Bundling 


  3  


Long-Term Planning   2  


Identify projects 
for CIP budget


Prioritize projects 
and identify 


funding
Prepare budget 


for CIP


CIP Review by 
Finance 


Subcommittee 
and Planning 
Commission 


City Council 
adoption


Implementation of 
approved projects 


in CIP


742 of 829







 
 


State of Infrastructure   2  
Operating Budget 
Impact 


  2  


Quality of Life   2  
Grant Funding   1  
Sustainability and 
Conservation 


  1  


TOTAL SCORE (100 Points Maximum)  
 
The methodology scores each potential capital project on nine weighted criteria. This results in 
a score between 0 and 100 for each project. Staff has used this new methodology for the first 
time in creating the FY 2023/24 through 2027/28 Five-Year CIP.  
 
Staff ranked all projects in the CIP including unfunded projects. The scores are listed on each 
project sheet and serve as the basis for selecting which capital projects staff initiates based on 
available resources. Note, this matrix does not consider infrastructure assessments. Project 
sheets contain the weighted score. Additional information on category scoring guidelines are 
described in Appendix II. Staff rated the projects in the current CIP that have not yet been 
initiated. The ranking of these not-yet-initiated projects was used by staff to propose, in the FY 
2023/24 through 2027/28 Five-Year CIP, which projects to schedule for FY 2023/24 and which 
to schedule for later years. 
 
Projects from the adopted FY 2022/23 through 2026/27 Five-Year CIP that have not yet been 
started and staff recommends for deferral because they are low priority 
• FA2302 – Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements 
• PA2201 – Pocket Parks – Galbreth Rd. 
• PA1901 – Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation  
• SW2001 – Roble Road Drainage Improvements 
• RO2301 – Road Rehabilitation (formerly known as Residential Slurry Seal and   


      combination of RO2501 & RO2401) 
• RO2107 – Brandt St. Improvements 
• RO1708 – Pinole Valley Road Improvements 
 
New projects that staff recommended for addition because they are high priority or they have a 
substantial outside funding contribution 
• PA2301 – Tree Mitigation 
• RO2303 – Pinole Smart Signals 
• RO2302 – Safety Improvements on Arterial Roadways 
• IN2301 – Facilities and Real Estate Master Plan 
 
Below are the list of capital improvement projects and infrastructure assessments included in 
the FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 CIP: 
 


FACILITIES 


Project # Project Name 


FA2302 Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements 


FA2301 Public Safety Building Modernization 


743 of 829







 
 


FA2202 Senior Center Modernization 


FA1902 Energy Upgrades 


FA1901 Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot (formerly known as Fowler House lot reuse) 


FA1703 City Hall Modernization (formerly known as Paint City Hall) 


FA1702 Citywide Roof repairs and replacement 


PARKS 


Project # Project Name 


PA2301 Tree Mitigation 


PA2202 Skatepark Rehabilitation 


PA2201 Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd. 


PA2101 Installation of high-capacity trash bins 


PA1901 Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation 


SANITARY SEWER 


Project # Project Name 


SS2203 Effluent Outfall 


SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation 


SS2101 Secondary Clarifier - Center Column Rehabilitation 


SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacements 


SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel 


SS1702 Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation  


STORMWATER 


Project # Project Name 


SW2001 Roble Road Drainage Improvements 


SW1901 Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements 


STREETS & ROADS 


Project # Project Name 


RO2301 Road Rehabilitation (formerly known as Residential Slurry Seal) 


RO2101 Arterial Rehabilitation  


RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation 


RO2107 Brandt St. Improvements 


744 of 829







 
 


RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. near R X R 


RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) 


RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements  


RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta Rd. (formerly known as HAWK at Appian Way and 
Marlesta) 


RO2304 Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave./Pear & Plum 


RO2303 Pinole Smart Signals 


RO2302 Safety Improvements on Arterial Roadways 


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS 


Project # Project Name 


IN2201 Energy Conservation, Generation, & Storage Assessment (formerly known as Energy Audit) 


IN2101 Emergency Power for Critical Facilities 


IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility 


IN2103 Recycled Water Feasibility 


IN2301 Facilities and Real Estate Master Plan 


IN2106 Active Transportation Plan  


IN2105 Appian Way Complete Streets (formerly Project #RO2105) 


IN1703 Storm Drainage Master Plan 


IN1704 Park Master Plan 


 
The FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 CIP contains a list of 35 unfunded projects. The following projects 
were added as a result of recommendations from recently completed master planning efforts 
and bridge inspections: 


• Pinon – 1 
• Pinon – 2 
• Tennent – 1  
• Tennent – 2 
• Signalized Intersections 
• Pedestrian Safety at Signalized Intersections 
• Safety at Unsignalized Intersections 
• Roadway Segments # 1 
• Roadway Segments # 2 
• Roadway Segments # 3 
• Vehicular Bridge Maintenance  


The following projects were added as a result of Council requests: 


745 of 829







 
 


• Fernandez Park Improvements 
• San Pablo Avenue Complete Streets 
• Faria House Renovations 


The following projects were removed: 


• Installation of High Intensity Activated crossWALK (HAWK) 
• San Pablo Lift Station Upgrade 
• Sewer Collection System Rehabilitation 


Next Steps in City Capital Planning 
 
The City is in the process of completing a condition assessment of all of the City’s capital assets 
to identify the funding levels required to maintain these assets. The City will continue to 
integrate capital planning information into the Long-Term Financial Plan, so City decision 
makers are aware of the City’s capital needs when they consider allocation of the City’s limited 
financial resources and consider possibly pursuing additional sources of City revenue.  
 


Project Funding  


A variety of funding sources support projects listed in the CIP. The first year’s program in the 


CIP is adopted by the City Council as the Capital Budget, as a counterpart to the annual 
Operating Budget. The fiscal resources are appropriated only in the first year, the subsequent 
four years of the CIP are important for long term planning and subject to further review and 
modification.  


The CIP is funded primarily with funds restricted for specific purposes. The next section 
descibes various funding sources and their restrictions. Some projects are entirely or partially 
funded by grants and reimbursements from state and federal government and other agencies.  


Funding Sources 


Fund # Fund Name 
(restriction) 


Description 


100 General Fund 
(unrestricted) 


The General Fund is the main operating fund for the City. 
It accounts for sources and uses of resources that 
(primarily) are discretionary to the City Council in the 
provision of activities, programs and services deemed 
necessary and desirable by the community. 


106 Measure S 2014 
(unrestricted) 


Accounts for 2014 voter-approved half-cent Local Use Tax 
which levies 0.5% each on all merchandise. Although these 
are unrestricted General Fund revenues, the 2014 Use 
Taxes have been allocated by the City Council to fund 
Infrastructure Projects as their highest funding priority.  


200 
Gas Tax - RMRA 
(roads and right-of-
way) 


Accounts for the Highway Users Tax (HUTA) State imposed 
excise taxes on gasoline and diesel fuel sales within the 
City limits. Gas Tax funds are restricted for use in the 
construction, improvement and maintenance of public 
streets. The taxes are allocated to Pinole through the Road 
Maintenance and Rehabilitation Account (RMRA) 


746 of 829







 
 


established by the Road Repair and Accountability Act of 
2017.  


214 Solid Waste 


Accounts for special revenue received from Republic 
Services from a surcharge assessed on customer rates for 
solid waste services. These funds are set aside for future 
solid waste capital and for a rate stabilization fund.   


276 
Growth Impact Fees 
(nexus identified 
needs) 


Accounts for development fees collected to mitigate the 
impact of new development. Provides funds for nexus 
identified needs only.  


325 
City Street 
Improvements  
(roads only) 


Accounts for funds set aside by the City of Pinole to fund 
street improvement projects. The Measure S 2014 funding 
plan allocates $250k annually to this fund.  


500 Sewer Enterprise 
(sewer only) 


Accounts for fees charged to residents and businesses for 
sewer utilities.  Fees are used to operate the Pinole-
Hercules Water Pollution Control Plant which services the 
Pinole and Hercules areas.  


Grants 
 
Certain projects are eligible to receive grant funds from state, federal, or other agencies. City 
staff actively pursues outside funding sources to support projects that are programmed in the 
CIP. Grants differ based on scope of work, funding source, requirements, and timelines. A 
grant’s scope is determined by the policy goals of the grantor, and the grantee is obligated to 
provide deliverables based on the terms and conditions set forth in the grant funding agreement.  
 
Before responding to a grant opportunity, staff reviews the grant solicitation to evaluate the: 


• eligibility requirements to ensure the City can apply for funds; 
• alignment of scope with the City’s adopted CIP; 
• feasibility of undertaking the responsibility of grant deliverables; 
• short term revenue vs. long term costs of the oppprtunity to ensure that the grant 


revenue does not result into a fiscal burden of unprecedented permanent or long term 
expenditures such as the need to hire additional staff, ongoing operations and 
maintenance; 


• required resources vs. available resources such as staff support and grant match; 
• indirect costs related to administration of the grant such as legal fees; and 
• cost benefit analysis to confirm that the grant is in the City’s best interests. 


Once a viable grant opportunity is identified, staff follows the grantors’ determined application 


process to develop application materials and submit the grant. After notification of grant award, 
staff is responsible for grant implementation which includes project execution, oversight, 
reporting/reimbursement requests, record keeping, and project closeout. Effective management 
of the grant funds limits the City’s exposure to grant-related legal liability and improves the 
efficiency and impacts of projects which are funded through grants. 
 
Road projects listed in the CIP receive grant funding from a variety of sources such as: 


747 of 829







 
 


➢ California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) 
o Highway Bridge Program (HBP) – funds to improve bridge structural safety. 


▪ Project: RO1710  
 


o Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) – funds projects that significantly 
reduce fatalities and injuries on all public roads.  


• Project: RO2302 
 


➢ West Contra Costa Transportation Advisory Committee (WCCTAC)  
o Subregional Transportation Mitigation Program (STMP) – funds projects that provide 


congestion relief and mitigate traffic impacts on regional routes through capacity 
improvements on those routes, improved transit services for subregional and 
regional travel, and improved facilities that allow West County residents to more 
efficiently access regional routes and transit service.  


▪ Projects: IN2105, RO1902, and RO1710 
 


➢ Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC)  
o One Bay Area Grant  (OBAG) – policy framework for MTC’s distribution of federal 


State Transportation Program and Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
Improvement Program funds. The OBAG program provides funding for local 
street and road maintenance, streetscape enhancements, bicycle and pedestrian 
improvements, Safe Route to School projects, Priority Conservation Areas, and 
Transportation planning.  


▪ ProjectS: RO1714, RO2303  
 


o Transportation Developlment Act (TDA) Article 3 – funds construction and/or 
engineering of bicycle or pedestrian capital or quick build projects, maintenance 
of Class I or Class IV separated bikeways, bicycle and/or pedestrian safety 
education projects, development of a comprehensive bicycle or pedestrian 
facilities plans, and restriping Class II bicycle lanes and buffered bicycle lanes.  


• Project: RO1714  


The receipt of certain grants and reimbursements typically follow the award of contracts; 
therefore, other City funding is programmed for front-end financing of the total estimated project 
costs.  


748 of 829







 


 
 


 


CITY OF PINOLE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2023/24 THROUGH FY 2027/28 


FUNDING SUMMARY 
      


SOURCES BY FUND FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total 


100 - General Fund  $        260,000   $      480,000   $                -     $                -     $                -     $           740,000  


106 - Measure S 2014  $     2,830,474   $   3,197,746   $      500,000   $                -     $                -     $        6,528,220  


200 - Gas Tax  $        896,963   $      481,082   $                -     $                -     $                -     $        1,378,045  


214 - Solid Waste  $        125,000   $      100,000   $      100,000   $      100,000   $                -     $           425,000  


215 - Grant: TLC  $        133,579   $                -     $                -     $                -     $                -     $           133,579  


215 - Grant: HSIP    $        239,040   $                -     $                -     $                -     $                -     $           239,040  


215 - Grant: OBAG  $        350,000   $                -     $                -     $                -     $                -     $           350,000  


276 - Growth Impact Fees  $     1,003,000   $      395,000   $                -     $                -     $                -     $        1,398,000  


325 - City Street Improvements  $                  -     $      417,321   $                -     $                -     $                -     $           417,321  


325 - TDA Article 3  $        129,400   $                -     $                -     $                -     $                -     $           129,400  


325 - Grant: STMP Fees  $     1,643,889   $                -     $                -     $                -     $                -     $        1,643,889  


325 - Grant: HBP  $          41,394   $                -     $                -     $                -     $                -     $             41,394  


377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation  $        758,624   $                -     $                -     $                -     $                -     $           758,624  


500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund  $     2,825,814   $   3,160,597   $      800,000   $   3,800,000   $   4,129,000   $      14,715,411  


Sources Total  $   11,237,177   $   8,231,746   $   1,400,000   $   3,900,000   $   4,129,000   $      28,897,923  


Unfunded Total  $     1,320,300   $ 28,950,000   $                -     $                -     $                -     $      30,270,300  


Total Sources Required  $   12,557,477   $ 37,181,746   $   1,400,000   $   3,900,000   $   4,129,000   $      59,168,223  
 
 


749 of 829







SOURCES BY FUND FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


100 - General Fund 260,000$          480,000$        -$                -$                -$                740,000$             


106 - Measure S 2014 2,830,474$       3,197,746$     500,000$        -$                -$                6,528,220$          


200 - Gas Tax 896,963$          481,082$        -$                -$                -$                1,378,045$          


214 - Solid Waste 125,000$          100,000$        100,000$        100,000$        -$                425,000$             


215 - Grant: TLC 133,579$          -$                -$                -$                -$                133,579$             


215 - Grant: HSIP  239,040$          -$                -$                -$                -$                239,040$             


215 - Grant: OBAG 350,000$          -$                -$                -$                -$                350,000$             


276 - Growth Impact Fees 1,003,000$       395,000$        -$                -$                -$                1,398,000$          


325 - City Street Improvements -$                  417,321$        -$                -$                -$                417,321$             


325 - Grant: TDA Article 3 129,400$          -$                -$                -$                -$                129,400$             


325 - Grant: STMP Fees 1,643,889$       -$                -$                -$                -$                1,643,889$          


325 - Grant: HBP 41,394$            -$                -$                -$                -$                41,394$               


377 - Arterial Streets Rehabilitation 758,624$          -$                -$                -$                -$                758,624$             


500 - Sewer Enterprise Fund 2,825,814$       3,160,597$     800,000$        3,800,000$     4,129,000$     14,715,411$        


Sources Total 11,237,177$     8,231,746$     1,400,000$     3,900,000$     4,129,000$     28,897,923$        


Unfunded Total 1,320,300$       28,950,000$   -$                -$                -$                30,270,300$        


Total Sources Required 12,557,477$     37,181,746$   1,400,000$     3,900,000$     4,129,000$     59,168,223$        


PRJ # PROJECT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


FA2302 Plum St. Parking Lot Improvements $                      -   $            80,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                 80,000 
FA2301 Public Safety Building Modernization $            100,000 $          100,000 $          100,000 $                    -   $                    -   $               300,000 
FA2202 Senior Center Modernization $            160,000 $          100,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               260,000 
FA1902 Energy Upgrades $            150,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               150,000 
FA1901 Senior Center Auxiliary Parking Lot                      $            405,085 $          922,746 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $            1,327,831 
FA1703 City Hall Modernization                                         $            125,000 $          125,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               250,000 
FA1702 Citywide Roof repairs and replacement $            450,000 $          450,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               900,000 


PRJ # PROJECT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


PA2301 Tree Mitigation $              75,000 $            75,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               150,000 
PA2202 Skatepark Rehabilitation $                      -   $          150,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               150,000 
PA2201 Pocket Parks - Galbreth Rd. $                      -   $            65,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                 65,000 
PA2101 Installation of high-capacity trash bins $            125,000 $          100,000 $          100,000 $          100,000 $                    -   $               425,000 
PA1901 Pinole Valley Park Soccer Field Rehabilitation $                      -   $          200,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               200,000 


PRJ # PROJECT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


SS2203 Effulent Outfall*  $            150,000  $                    -    $                    -    $       3,000,000  $                    -    $            3,150,000 
SS2201 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation $         1,500,000 $          800,000 $          800,000 $          800,000 $          800,000 $            4,700,000 
SS2101 Secondary Clarifier - Center Column Rehabilitation* $            425,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               425,000 
SS2102 Air Release Valve Replacements* $              50,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                 50,000 
SS2002 Water Pollution Control Plant Lab Remodel* $            100,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               100,000 
SS1702 Sewer Pump Station Rehabilitation $         1,200,000 $       2,254,000 $                    -   $                    -   $       3,329,000 $            6,783,000 


PRJ # PROJECT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


SW2001 Roble Road Drainage Improvements $                      -   $          700,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               700,000 
SW1901 Hazel Street Storm Drain Improvements $            440,098 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               440,098 


PRJ # PROJECT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total


RO2304 Safety Improvements at Tennent Ave./Pear & Plum $            110,000 $          400,000 $          400,000 $                    -   $                    -   $               910,000 
RO2303 Pinole Smart Signals $            154,302 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               154,302 
RO2302 Safety Improvements on Arterial Roadways $            275,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               275,000 
RO2301 Road Rehabilitation $                      -   $          250,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               250,000 
RO2107 Brandt St. Improvements $                      -   $          170,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               170,000 
RO2102 Tennent Ave. Rehabilitation $                   814 $          655,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               655,814 
RO2101 Arterial Rehabilitation $         1,655,587 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $            1,655,587 
RO1902 Pedestrian Improvements at Tennent Ave. near R X R $         1,365,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $            1,365,000 
RO1802 Hazel Street Gap Closure (Sunnyview) $                      -   $          200,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               200,000 
RO1714 Safety Improvements at Appian Way & Marlesta Rd. $            672,429 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               672,429 
RO1710 San Pablo Ave. Bridge over BNSF Railroad $         1,974,162 $     28,800,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $          30,774,162 
RO1708 Pinole Valley Road Improvements $                      -   $          100,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               100,000 


PRJ # ASSESSMENT FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2025-26 FY 2026-27 FY 2027-28 5-Year Total
IN2301 Facilities & Real Estate Master Plan $            200,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               200,000 


IN2201
Energy Conservation, Generation, & Storage 
Assessment


 $              50,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                 50,000 


IN2101 Emergency Power for Critical Facilities $              30,000 $          170,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               200,000 
IN2102 Municipal Broadband Feasibility $              60,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                 60,000 
IN2103 Recycled Water Feasibility $              60,000 $          140,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               200,000 
IN2105 Appian Way Complete Streets $            100,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               100,000 
IN2106 Active Transportation Plan $            170,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               170,000 
IN1703 Storm Drainage Master Plan $              75,000 $          175,000 $                    -   $                    -   $                    -   $               250,000 
IN1704 Park Master Plan  $            150,000  $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $                    -    $               150,000 


Uses by Project Total $12,557,477 $37,181,746 $1,400,000 $3,900,000 $4,129,000


LEGEND:
• Project numbers: FA = Facilities; PA = Parks; SS = Sanitary Sewer; SW = Storm Water; RO = Streets & Roads; IN = Infrastructure Assessments
* Project cost to be split 50% with the City of Hercules


STREETS & ROADS


INFRASTRUCTURE ASSESSMENTS


CITY OF PINOLE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2023/24 THROUGH FY 2027/28


 FUNDING SUMMARY


FACILITIES


PARKS


SANITARY SEWER


STORMWATER


750 of 829







 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 
 
 
 
 


 
 


PROJECT DESCRIPTION SHEETS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


751 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 12


New Expansion


Replacement X Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


80,000.00$                     ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 80,000$                      


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
7,950                             7,950$                        


65,500                           65,500$                      


6,550                             6,550$                        


80,000$                         ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                80,000$                     


80,000$                          80,000$                      


80,000$                          ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 80,000$                      


‐$                                


FA2302 ‐ PLUM ST. PARKING LOT IMPROVEMENTS


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Description


Unappropriated Subsequent YearsType of CIP


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


: FacilitiesFunctional Area


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                         


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Budget     


‐$                                


‐$                               


FY 2023‐24


TOTAL USES


TOTAL FUNDS


Project Start : 7/1/2023


SOURCE(S)
276 ‐ Growth Impact Fees


Estimated Completion 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Construction


Contingency


Projected Budget
USE(S)
Design


Budget     


Policy CS.2.6


Summary of Capital Cost
Project Estimate 
FY 2023‐2028


To provide a secure parking area for Police vehicles in the Plum St. parking lot. The parking lot will remain open 


for the public. A portion of the parking lot, approximately 25 spaces will be secured with a chain‐link fence with 


security gates for Police vehicles. The layout of the parking lot is in the preliminary design phase. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


752 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 34


New Expansion


Replacement X Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


100,000$                        100,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 300,000$                    


: 6/30/2026


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
90,000$                          90,000$                          270,000$                   


10,000$                          10,000$                          30,000$                      


100,000$                       100,000$                       ‐$                                ‐$                                300,000$                   


100,000$                       100,000$                       225,000$                   


75,000$                      


100,000$                        100,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 300,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


FA2301 ‐ PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING MODERNIZATION
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.1, Policy SE.1.3


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          100,000$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2024 Estimated Completion 


Description
To extend the useful life of the Public Safety building, there are several items that require attention including but 


not limited to replacement of the HVAC system, carpet, flooring, water heaters, light fixtures, fans, etc. In 


addition, the building requires painting (interior and exterior), and the locker rooms also require renovation. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Construction 90,000$                         


Contingency 10,000$                         


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


TOTAL FUNDS 100,000$                       


TOTAL USES 100,000$                       
SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 25,000$                         


276 ‐ Growth Impact Fees 75,000$                         


753 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 37


New Expansion


Replacement X Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


100,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 260,000$                    


: 6/30/2026


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
90,000$                          240,000$                   


10,000$                          20,000$                      


100,000$                       ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                260,000$                   


100,000$                       115,000$                   


145,000$                   


100,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 260,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


FA2202 ‐ SENIOR CENTER MODERNIZATION
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.1, Policy SE.1.3


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          160,000$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2024 Estimated Completion 


Description
The project includes a facilities condition assessment and design and construction of improvements to modernize 


the existing Senior Center building located at 2525 Charles Avenue. Work will include upgrades to energy system, 


roof replacement, and interior renovations. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Construction 150,000$                       


Contingency 10,000$                         


TOTAL USES 160,000$                       
SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 15,000$                         


TOTAL FUNDS 160,000$                       


276 ‐ Growth Impact Fees 145,000$                       


754 of 829







Project Origin : End of life cycle Priority Score 44


New Expansion


X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 249,189$                    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
135,000$                   


15,000$                      


‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                150,000$                   


150,000$                   


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 150,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


FA1902 ‐ ENERGY UPGRADES
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.9, Policy CS.9.1, Policy HS.4.3, Goal SE.4, Policy SE.1.3


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


99,189$                   150,000$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The heating, ventilation, and cooling (HVAC) systems at City Hall and Senior Center have reached the end of their 


useful life and need to be replaced. A portion of the roof at the Senior Center will also need to be replaced. In 


April 2021, the AC unit at City Hall broke down and was replaced. This project is contingent upon completion of 


IN2201 ‐ Energy Conservation, Generation, & Storage Assessment.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In October 2020, City staff began working with Marin Clean Energy’s (MCE’s) Energy Efficiency program to explore opportunities for energy conservation and generation at City owned 


facilities by replacing the HVAC systems and upgrading streetlights. It was determined that the MCE program could not incentivize HVAC replacement project or the upgrade of the 


streetlights. This project was formerly known as FA1706 and FA1801. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Construction 135,000$                       


Contingency 15,000$                         


TOTAL USES 150,000$                       
SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 150,000$                       


TOTAL FUNDS 150,000$                       
755 of 829







Project Origin : Fowler Lot Re‐Use Committee Priority Score


New X Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


922,746$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 1,424,401$                 


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
$                    130,085 


838,860$                       1,088,860$                


83,886$                          108,886$                   


922,746$                       ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                1,327,831$                


922,746$                       1,327,831$                


922,746$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 1,327,831$                 


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


FA1901 ‐ SENIOR CENTER AUXILIARY PARKING LOT
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CE.5, Goal CS.1, Policy GM.4.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


96,570$                   405,085$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
On February 2, 2021 City Council adopted Resolution 2021‐07 and awarded a contract to a consultant for the 


preliminary engineering and design for the parking lot. The parking lot will be designed to be a multi‐benefit 


project that includes pavement structural section, striping, lighting, bicycle parking, electric vehicle charging 


stations, stormwater capture and retention, and drought tolerant landscaping. The final design will offer the 


maximum number of parking spaces while allowing access for both vehicles and pedestrians and include aesthetic 


design components. On June 7, 2022, City Council directed staff to incorporate the installation of a solar canopy 


and backup battery system at the site. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
On April 16, 1990 City Council adopted Resolution 2380 authorizing the purchase of 2548 Charles Street. At the time of purchase, City Council determined that construction of a Senior 


Center was necessary, and that this property was needed to provide sufficient parking for the Center. The parcel is surrounded by municipal parking lots which serve the Senior Center 


and Old Town Pinole. The Fowler House tenants remained in the properly till 2010 and many discussions took place to determine the best use of the property. It was determined that the 


house had asbestos and lead paint. On July 17, 2018, City Council adopted Resolution 2018‐67 to create the Fowler Lot Re‐use Committee to evaluate the reuse and redevelopment of 


the property. The Committee evaluated uses for the lot and determined the best use of the property is a parking lot. On October 16, 2018, the City Council adopted Resolution No. 2018‐


93 to approve a contract with a construction company to abate and demolish the Fowler house.  The property demolition was completed on March 11, 2019. On July 21, 2020, City 


Council adopted Resolution 2020–68 to accept the final recommendation of the Committee.                                                                                                                                                                        


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


TOTAL FUNDS 405,085$                       


Construction 250,000$                       


Contingency 25,000$                         


TOTAL USES 405,085$                       


Design 130,085$                       


SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 405,085$                       


756 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 35


New Expansion


Replacement X Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


125,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 250,000$                    


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
112,500$                       225,000$                   


12,500$                          25,000$                      


125,000$                       ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                250,000$                   


125,000$                   


125,000$                      


125,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 250,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


FA1703 ‐ CITY HALL MODERNIZATION 
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.1.1, Policy SE.1.3


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          125,000$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
To extend the useful life of the City hall building, there are several items that require attention including but not 


limited to carpet, flooring, window coverings, light fixtures, etc. The interior and exterior surfaces of the building 


require repainting as the paint system has reached the end of its useful life. Exterior painting is necessary to 


maintain external protection from the environment. Fading, chipping paint, along with water and mildew damage 


necessitates the painting project.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Construction 112,500$                       


Contingency 12,500$                         


TOTAL USES 125,000$                       
SOURCE(S)
276 ‐ Growth Impact Fees 125,000$                       


TOTAL FUNDS 125,000$                       


106 ‐ Measure S 2014


757 of 829







Project Origin : End of life cycle Priority Score 43


New Expansion


X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


450,000$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   900,000$                      


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
30,000$                          $                       60,000 


400,000$                        800,000$                    


20,000$                          40,000$                      


450,000$                        ‐$                                   ‐$                                 ‐$                                 900,000$                    


450,000$                        900,000$                    


450,000$                        ‐$                                   ‐$                                 ‐$                                 900,000$                    


450,000$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   900,000$                      


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


FA1702 ‐ CITYWIDE ROOF REPAIRS AND REPLACEMENT 
Functional Area : Facilities


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.1, Goal CS.9, Policy CS.9.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                           450,000$                         


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
In October 2022, City staff received quotes for the rehabilitation of the roofs at City Hall, Public Safety Building, 


Senior Center, and the Water Pollution Control Plant. It was determined that the Public Safety building roof needs 


immediate replacement. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In 2015, comprehensive visual roof inspections were completed by a contractor on various City owned facilities. The purpose of the inspection was to identify the extent, if any, of moisture 


intrusion into the existing roof assemblies, document observed roof system deficiencies, determine the overall condition of the existing roof systems and to estimate the service life of the in‐


place roof assemblies. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


TOTAL FUNDS 450,000$                         


Construction 400,000$                       


Contingency 20,000$                         


TOTAL USES 450,000$                       


450,000$                       


Design 30,000$                         


SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 450,000$                       


758 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 65


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


75,000$                          ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 150,000$                    


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
75,000$                          150,000$                   


‐$                            


75,000$                         ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                150,000$                   


75,000$                          150,000$                   


75,000$                          ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 150,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


PA2301 ‐ TREE MITIGATION
Functional Area : Parks


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal HS.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          75,000$                         


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
Per arborist recommendation, removal of trees in two unmaintained open spaces that were damaged as a result 


of recent severe storms. Staff will seek reimbursement through FEMA for this project. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Construction 75,000$                         


Contingency
TOTAL USES 75,000$                        


TOTAL FUNDS 75,000$                         


SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 75,000$                         


759 of 829







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score 34


New Expansion


X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


150,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 150,000$                    


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
135,000$                       135,000$                   


15,000$                          15,000$                      


150,000$                       ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                150,000$                   


150,000$                       150,000$                   


150,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 150,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


PA2202 ‐ SKATEPARK REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Parks


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CS.2, Goal CS.3, Policy CS 2.6 & 3.1, Policy GM.4.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          ‐$                                


Project Start : 7/1/2024 Estimated Completion 


Description
The ramps at the skatepark have settled and need to be replaced. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Construction ‐$                               


Contingency ‐$                               


TOTAL USES ‐$                               
SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 ‐$                               


TOTAL FUNDS ‐$                                
760 of 829







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score 15


X New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


65,000.00$                     ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 65,000$                      


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
58,500$                          58,500$                      


6,500$                            6,500$                        


65,000$                         ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                65,000$                     


65,000$                          65,000$                      


65,000$                          ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 65,000$                      


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


PA2201 ‐ POCKET PARKS ‐ GALBRETH RD.
Functional Area : Parks


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CS.3, Policy GM.4.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          ‐$                                


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
Installation of two ADA compliant benches and waste receptacles within two pocket parks at a suitable location 


on Galbreth Ave. A lot line adjustment may be required to develop the pocket parks.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Construction


Contingency
TOTAL USES ‐$                               


SOURCE(S)
276 ‐ Growth Impact Fees


TOTAL FUNDS ‐$                                
761 of 829







Project Origin : Beautification Adhoc Committee Priority Score 24


X New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


100,000$                        100,000$                        100,000$                        ‐$                                 435,000$                    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
90,000$                          90,000$                          90,000$                          380,000$                   


10,000$                          10,000$                          10,000$                          45,000$                      


100,000$                       100,000$                       100,000$                       ‐$                                425,000$                   


100,000$                       100,000$                       100,000$                       425,000$                   


100,000$                        100,000$                        100,000$                        ‐$                                 425,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


PA2101 ‐ INSTALLATION OF HIGH CAPACITY TRASH BINS
Functional Area : Parks


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CS.9, Policy CS.5.1, Policy CS.8.3, Goal SE.5


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


10,000$                   125,000$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
Installation of high capacity, solar powered compacting trash bins at City parks. There are several concerns related 


to high‐capacity trash bins ranging from the cost, proprietary accessories, software, and manual labor required to 


lift and remove heavy trash bags. To get the best value and uniformity at City parks, quotes were obtained from 


qualified vendors to complete a 6 month ‐ 1 year pilot project. Two bins have been ordered for installation and 


staff will monitor their performance and operations prior to order additional bins for other locations. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In 2019, the City Council established a Beautification Ad Hoc Committee to analyze options for, and to make recommendations to the Council regarding clean‐up and beautification 


projects in Pinole. Among other projects, the Committee recommended the installation of high capacity, solar powered compacting trash bins at City parks. City Council approved a 


budget of $425k in FY 2021‐22 however staff recommended a pilot project to test the bins and subsequently a mid year budget adjustment was made by Council to reduce the 


appropriation to $125k for the remainder of FY 2022‐23.


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Construction 110,000$                       


Contingency 15,000$                         


TOTAL USES 125,000$                       
SOURCE(S)
214 ‐ Solid Waste 125,000$                       


TOTAL FUNDS 125,000$                       
762 of 829







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score 33


New Expansion


Replacement X Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


200,000.00$                  ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 200,000$                    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
180,000$                       180,000$                   


20,000$                          20,000$                      


200,000$                       ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                200,000$                   


200,000$                       200,000$                   


200,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 200,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


PA1901 ‐ PINOLE VALLEY PARK SOCCER FIELD REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Parks


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CS.1, Goal CS.3, Policy CS 3.1, Policy GM.4.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          ‐$                                


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
There are two soccer fields at Pinole Valley Park which are utilized on an annual basis, the Wright Avenue Soccer 


Field at the southerly end, and Savage Avenue Soccer Field at the northern end. Both fields are heavily used by 


soccer leagues and the general public. The Savage Avenue Soccer Field requires substantial rehabilitation which 


includes: upgrading the irrigation system and ongoing turf maintenance. Turf maintenance includes mowing, 


fertilizing, aeration, overseeding, and topdressing.  


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
This project has been delayed pending the development of a Park Master Plan (CIP Project# IN1704).


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Construction


Contingency
TOTAL USES ‐$                               


SOURCE(S)
276 ‐ Growth Impact Fees


TOTAL FUNDS ‐$                                
763 of 829







Project Origin : Regulatory Requirement Priority Score 52


New X Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                  ‐$                                  3,000,000$                      ‐$                                  3,150,000$                  


: 6/30/2027


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28


2,700,000$                     2,700,000$                 


300,000$                         315,000$                     


‐$                                 ‐$                                  3,000,000$                     ‐$                                 3,150,000$                 


3,000,000$                     3,150,000$                 


‐$                                  ‐$                                  3,000,000$                      ‐$                                  3,150,000$                  


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


SS2203 ‐ EFFLUENT OUTFALL
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                              150,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The Effluent Outfall project is intended to reduce pressure in the pipe during extreme storm events. Effluent pumping 


capacity of the treatment plant is limited by the capacity of the pipe size at the effluent outfall in Rodeo.  Increasing the 


pipe size at the Effluent Outfall Eductor Station will increase the wet weather effluent pumping capacity and increase 


the lifespan of the effluent pipe by reducing the pressure in the line during storm events. This project requires 


coordination with Rodeo. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


TOTAL FUNDS 150,000$                        


Construction


Contingency 15,000$                          


TOTAL USES 150,000$                       


Design 135,000$                        


SOURCE(S)
500 ‐ Sewer Enterprise Fund 150,000$                        


764 of 829







Project Origin : Master Plan Priority Score 57


New Expansion


X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


800,000$                          800,000$                          800,000$                          800,000$                          4,735,375$                   


: 6/30/2027


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
80,000$                          80,000$                          80,000$                          80,000$                          695,000$                    


640,000$                        640,000$                        640,000$                        640,000$                        3,583,900$                 


80,000$                          80,000$                          80,000$                          80,000$                          421,100$                    


800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        4,700,000$                 


800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        800,000$                        4,100,000$                 


800,000$                          800,000$                          800,000$                          800,000$                          4,700,000$                   


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SS2201 ‐ SANITARY SEWER REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


35,375$                     1,500,000$                     


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
Various improvements to the Sanitary Sewer collection system, as identified in the Sanitary Sewer Collection System 


Master Plan.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
On October 4, 2022, City staff released an RFP for preliminary engineering design services for phase 1 of the Pinon project described in the City’s recently adopted Sanitary Sewer Master 


Plan. On January 18, 2023, a one‐year contract was executed with West Valley Construction Company, Inc. for the work.  


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Design 375,000$                       


Construction 1,023,900$                    


Contingency 101,100$                       


TOTAL FUNDS 1,500,000$                     


TOTAL USES 1,500,000$                   
SOURCE(S)
500 ‐ Sewer Enterprise Fund 900,000$                       


276 ‐ Growth Impact Fees 600,000$                       


765 of 829







Project Origin : End of life cycle Priority Score 46


New Expansion


X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   425,000$                      


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
315,000$                    


67,500$                      


42,500$                      


‐$                                 ‐$                                   ‐$                                 ‐$                                 425,000$                    


425,000$                    


‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   425,000$                      


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SS2101 ‐ SECONDARY CLARIFIER REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CS.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                           425,000$                         


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The Water Pollution Control Plant (WPCP) has five secondary clarifiers which slow the flow to allow the 


microorganisms and other solids to settle to the bottom of the clarifier where they can be returned to aeration tanks 


to continue treating waste. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Secondary Clarifiers 1 and 2 (SC1 and SC 2) were constructed in the early 1970s and are peripheral feed clarifiers. Secondary Clarifiers 3 and 4 (SC 3 and SC 4) were constructed in the early 


1980s and are center feed clarifiers. Secondary Clarifier 5 (SC 5) was constructed in early 2000 and is a center feed, flocculator clarifier. In the first quarter of FY 2022‐23, a preliminary 


inspection of the center column of the SC 5 was completed to examine the current condition and determine the scope of work for rehabilitation. In the second quarter of FY 2022‐23, it was 


determined that SC 3 & SC 4 also require rehabilitation. Previously, this project was titled, "Secondary Clarifier ‐ Center Column Rehabilitation" which only focused on the rehabilitation work 


required for SC 5. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Construction SC 5 315,000$                       


Construction SC 3, SC 4 67,500$                         


Contingency 42,500$                         


TOTAL FUNDS 425,000$                         


TOTAL USES 425,000$                       
SOURCE(S)
500 ‐ Sewer Enterprise Fund 425,000$                       


766 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 41


New Expansion


X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                  ‐$                                  ‐$                                  ‐$                                  85,000$                        


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
45,000$                       


5,000$                         


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 50,000$                       


50,000$                       


‐$                                  ‐$                                  ‐$                                  ‐$                                  50,000$                        


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


SS2102 ‐ AIR RELEASE VALVE REPLACEMENTS
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CS.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


35,000$                    50,000$                           


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
There are several air relief valves at various locations on the WPCP Effluent Pipeline between the WPCP and the 


Rodeo treated water discharge point. This project includes removal and replacement of the pipe saddle, short pipe 


section, isolation valve, and air relief valve. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Staff has received quotes to replace three air relief valves by the end of FY 2022‐23. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Construction  45,000$                          


Contingency 5,000$                            


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


TOTAL FUNDS 50,000$                           


TOTAL USES 50,000$                          
SOURCE(S)
500 ‐ Sewer Enterprise Fund 50,000$                          


767 of 829







Project Origin : Regulatory Requirement Priority Score 49


New Expansion


Replacement X Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   100,000$                      


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
6,000$                        


85,000$                      


9,000$                        


‐$                                 ‐$                                   ‐$                                 ‐$                                 100,000$                    


100,000$                    


‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   100,000$                      


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SS2002 ‐ WATER POLLUTION CONTROL PLANT LAB REMODEL
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.1, Policy CS.2.6


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                           100,000$                         


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The California Environmental Laboratory Accreditation Program (ELAP) is responsible for accrediting environmental 


testing labs including the Pinole ‐ Hercules WPCP. The 2019 ELAP inspection results indicated the lab apparatus, 


countertops, and the fume hood are past their useful life and recommended replacement. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Design 6,000$                           


Construction 85,000$                         


Contingency 9,000$                           


TOTAL FUNDS 100,000$                         


TOTAL USES 100,000$                       
SOURCE(S)
500 ‐ Sewer Enterprise Fund 100,000$                       


768 of 829







Project Origin : End of life cycle Priority Score 50


New Expansion


X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


2,254,000$                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   3,329,000$                       6,783,000$                   


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
250,000$                        425,000$                    


1,100,000$                     2,161,000$                     4,061,000$                 


154,000$                        400,000$                        654,000$                    


1,254,000$                     ‐$                                   ‐$                                 2,811,000$                     5,140,000$                 


500 ‐ Sewer Enterprise Fund 2,254,000$                     3,329,000$                     6,783,000$                 


2,254,000$                       ‐$                                   ‐$                                   3,329,000$                       6,783,000$                   


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SS1702 ‐ SEWER PUMP STATION REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Sanitary Sewer


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.6, Policy CS.6.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                           1,200,000$                     


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The City owns and operates two lift stations to convey flow from low lying areas to high elevations where the flow 


continues by gravity to the wastewater treatment plant. Both pump stations have reached the end of their useful life 


and need to be rehabilitated. The two pump stations are located on San Pablo Ave. and Hazel St. In FY 2019/20, this 


project was renamed to include both pump stations. Previously, this project was titled, “Hazel Street Sewer Pump 


Rehabilitation.”


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
The City recently completed a Sanitary Sewer Master Plan. In FY 2023‐24, the Hazel Street Lift Station will be replaced, followed by the replacement of the San Pablo Ave. Lift Station. The 


Hazel Street Lift Station will be replaced in coordination with RO1802. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Design 175,000$                       


Construction 800,000$                       


Contingency 100,000$                       


TOTAL FUNDS 1,200,000$                     


TOTAL USES 1,075,000$                   
SOURCE(S)


1,200,000$                    


769 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 33


New X Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


700,000$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   700,000$                      


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
135,000$                        135,000$                    


500,000$                        500,000$                    


65,000$                          65,000$                      


700,000$                        ‐$                                   ‐$                                 ‐$                                 700,000$                    


700,000$                        700,000$                    


700,000$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   700,000$                      


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SW2001 ‐ ROBLE ROAD STORM DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS
Functional Area : Stormwater


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.7, Policy CS.7.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                           ‐$                                 


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The existing system appears to have capacity issues at Roble Ave. and Encina Ave. that warrant review and upgrade. 


This project will assess the collection system for capacity and hydraulic profile and upgrade the system as necessary. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Design


Construction


Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS ‐$                                 


TOTAL USES ‐$                               
SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014


770 of 829







Project Origin : Development Driven Priority Score 52


X New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 486,732$                     


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
8,276$                        


392,565$                    
39,257$                      


‐$                                ‐$                                 ‐$                                ‐$                                440,098$                    


106 ‐ Measure S 2014 382,098$                    
276 ‐ Growth Impact Fees 58,000$                      


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 440,098$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


SW1901 ‐ HAZEL STREET STORM DRAIN IMPROVEMENTS
Functional Area : Stormwater


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.4.1, Goal CS.7, Policy CS.7.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


46,634$                    440,098$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
The existing stormwater collection is an open trench system and needs to be converted to an underground 


conveyance system to facilitate construction of a through road. This project will include connecting the existing 


storm drain network within Hazel Street between 1087  Hazel St (eastern limits) and 1081 Hazel St. (western limits). 


In January 2020, the City contacted with Schaff and Wheeler to prepare the preliminary design which includes plan 


and profile of the pipe and technical specifications. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Design 8,276$                           


Construction 392,565$                       


Contingency 39,257$                         


TOTAL FUNDS 440,098$                        


TOTAL USES 440,098$                       
SOURCE(S)


58,000$                         
382,098$                       


771 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 36


X New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


400,000$                        400,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 919,900$                    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
400,000$                       400,000$                       910,000$                   
400,000$                       400,000$                       ‐$                                ‐$                                910,000$                   


106 ‐ Measure S 2014 400,000$                       400,000$                      
‐$                             


400,000$                        400,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 910,000$                    TOTAL FUNDS 110,000$                       


Construction 110,000$                      
TOTAL USES 110,000$                      


SOURCE(S)
110,000$                      


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


9,900$                      110,000$                       


Project Start : 07/01/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
This project will install striped bulbouts with flexible bollards, high visibility crosswalks and pavement markings, 


and yield road signage at two intersections (Pear and Plum) on Tennent Ave. In addition, a Rectangular Rapid‐


Flashing Beacon (RRFB) will be installed at Tennent Ave. & Plum St. On October 18, 2022, City Council received 


information and a presentation on traffic safety issues at these intersections. On February 21, 2023, City Council 


approved $110,000 in immediate improvements on Tennent Ave. at the Pear and Plum intersections. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO2304 ‐ SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS AT TENNENT AVE./PEAR & PLUM
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


772 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 33


X New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 154,302$                    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
154,302$                   


‐$                                ‐$                                 ‐$                                ‐$                                154,302$                   


106 ‐ Measure S 2014 154,302$                   
‐$                             


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 154,302$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO2303 ‐ PINOLE SMART SIGNALS
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          154,302$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The Smart Signals project will develop, manage, and implement ITS initiatives that improve the safety and 


efficiency of multimodal mobility, maximize highway and arterial system throughput, and improve operational 


efficiency, safety, and reduce environmental impact throughout Contra Costa County. Contra Costa Tranportation 


Authority is the project lead and will coordinate the project throughout the county. Twelve traffic signals have 


been identified as candidates for the Smart Signals project. These signals are located on Pinole arterial roadways 


(Appian Way & San Pablo Avenue). 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Deployment of the Smart Signals Project is expected to result in operational and safety improvements for all modes of transportation, such as decrease in travel time and total delay, 


reduction in number of stops and secondary accidents, reduction of fuel consumption and greenhouse gas emissions, and reduction of response time for emergency vehicles. The initial 


cost estimate of construction is $1,499,829 of which CCTA will receive $1,345,527 in OBAG funds. The City's match requirement is $154,302.


General Plan Goals/Policies


Construction 154,302$                      


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


TOTAL FUNDS 154,302$                       


154,302$                      


TOTAL USES 154,302$                      
SOURCE(S)


773 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 38


X New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 275,000$                    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
$                    265,000 


10,000$                      
‐$                                ‐$                                 ‐$                                ‐$                                275,000$                   


239,040$                   
35,960$                      


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 275,000$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO2302 ‐ SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS ON ARTERIAL ROADWAYS
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          275,000$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
This project will install pedestrian crossing enhancements at three mid‐block crossings on arterial roadways. The 


enhancements include continental markings, median refuge islands, advanced stop bars and Rectangular Rapid 


Flash Beacons. The three mid‐block crossings are: San Pablo Ave. & Third Ave.; San Pablo Ave. & Quinan St.; and 


Pinole Valley Road & Savage Ave. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Funding for improvements was secured through Cycle 11 HSIP grant funds. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


35,960$                         


TOTAL FUNDS 275,000$                       


10,000$                         
TOTAL USES 275,000$                      


SOURCE(S)


106 ‐ Measure S 2014


Construction


Contingency
265,000$                       


239,040$                      215 ‐ Grant: HSIP  


774 of 829







Project Origin : Pavement Management Program Priority Score 34


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


250,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 250,000$                    


: 6/30/2028


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
25,000$                          25,000$                      


200,000$                       200,000$                   
25,000$                          25,000$                      


250,000$                       ‐$                                 ‐$                                ‐$                                250,000$                   


325 ‐ City Street Improvements 250,000$                       250,000$                   


250,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 250,000$                    TOTAL FUNDS ‐$                                


TOTAL USES ‐$                               
SOURCE(S)


Design
Construction
Contingency


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          ‐$                                


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
Based on the most current P‐TAP report and field inspections, various segments will be recommended annually for 


rehabilitation. Recommended treatment include patch paving, slurry seal, cape seal, mill and fill. This project 


includes two projects which appeared in previous CIP's known as RO2501 and RO2401.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO2301 ‐ ROAD REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


775 of 829







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score 27


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


170,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 170,000$                    


: 6/30/2028


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
30,000$                          30,000$                      


120,000$                       120,000$                   
20,000$                          20,000$                      


170,000$                       ‐$                                 ‐$                                ‐$                                170,000$                   


100 ‐ General Fund 170,000$                       170,000$                   


170,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 170,000$                    


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget     


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO2107 ‐ BRANDT ST. IMPROVEMENTS
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CE.4, Goal CS.10, Policy CS.10.2, Policy GM.3.3, Goal CS.10


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          ‐$                                


Project Start : 7/1/2024 Estimated Completion 


Description
Provide improvements on Brandt St. including application of pavement treatments based on type and severity of 


distresses on  existing pavement. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Project Estimate 
FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


TOTAL FUNDS ‐$                                


Design
Construction
Contingency


TOTAL USES ‐$                               
SOURCE(S)


Projected Budget


776 of 829







Project Origin : Pavement Management Program Priority Score 43


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


655,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 692,805$                    


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
814$                           


623,000$                       623,000$                   


32,000$                          32,000$                      


655,000$                       ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                655,814$                   


381,082$                       381,082$                   


500 ‐ Sewer Enterprise Fund 106,597$                       107,411$                   


325 ‐ City Street Improvements 167,321$                       167,321$                   


655,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 655,814$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO2102 ‐ TENNENT AVE. REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy CE.1.4, Policy CS.2.6, Policy CS.3.3, Policy H.3.1, Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


36,991$                   814$                               


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
The construction impacts from the WPCP upgrade project resulted in pavement deterioration. This project will 


rehabilitate Tennent Ave. from San Pablo Ave. to WPCP. In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to 


complete the preliminary engineering for this project.  


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In preparation of this project, the City retained a consultant to perform internal CCTV on this section of roadway. The inspection was completed in  early 2021. Coordinating collection 


system improvements with street resurfacing projects ensures that sewer improvements are made prior to the resurfacing so that manholes and valve covers may be properly realigned, 


and repairs and replacements are made in a cost‐effective manner. This also avoids cutting and patching recently paved streets. The City of Hercules will reimburse $86,430 for this 


project. In addition, this project is being coordinated with RO1902 for efficient implementation. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Design 814$                              


Construction


Contingency
TOTAL USES 814$                              


SOURCE(S)
200 ‐ Gas Tax


TOTAL FUNDS 814$                               


814$                              


777 of 829







Project Origin : Pavement Management Program Priority Score 37


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 1,686,845$                 


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
27,222$                      


1,465,530$                
162,835$                   


‐$                                ‐$                                 ‐$                                ‐$                                1,655,587$                


896,963$                   
377 ‐ Arterial Streets Rehabilitation 758,624$                   


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 1,655,587$                 


758,624$                      


TOTAL FUNDS 1,655,587$                    


TOTAL USES 1,655,587$                   
SOURCE(S)


896,963$                      200 ‐ Gas Tax


Design 27,222$                         


Construction 1,465,530$                   


Contingency 162,835$                      


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


31,258$                   1,655,587$                    


Project Start : 7/1/2021 Estimated Completion 


Description
The project is currently in the design phase and aims to maximize the funding available to complete rehabilitation 


work beginning at the southern city limit on Pinole Valley Road to the bridge west of Savage Ave. The project will 


include replacement, modification, or installation of a ADA compliant curb ramps, road rehabilitation, and striping. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Based on the 2019  P‐TAP report, various segments were recommended for treatment by StreetSaver®. The recommendations were further validated through a comparative pavement 


analysis and coring samples to explore additional treatment options which are not discussed in the P‐TAP report. This will allow the City to optimize the available funding. The section of 


roadway selected based on the analysis was Pinole Valley Road from the southern city limits. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO2101 ‐ ARTERIAL REHABILITATION
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


778 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score 50


X New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 1,405,672$                 


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
14,628$                      


1,020,000$                


330,372$                    


‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                ‐$                                1,365,000$                


44,700$                      


Unfunded 1,320,300$                


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 1,365,000$                 


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO1902 ‐ PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS AT TENNENT AVE. near RXR
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy CE.1.4, Policy CS.2.6, Policy CS.3.3, Policy H.3.1, Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


40,672$                    1,365,000$                    


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
In 2018, the East Bay Regional Park District completed a trail link to connect Pinole Shores Regional Shoreline to 


Bayfront Park trail. There remains one very small gap on Tennent Ave. from Bayfront Park to Railroad Ave. 


Improvements to Tennent Ave. at the Railroad Crossing will facilitate safe movement of bicycles and pedestrians. 


Since project inception, the scope of work has evolved to include improvements that would maximize parking on 


Railroad Avenue for park users. In February 2021, the City selected a consultant to complete the preliminary 


engineering for this project.  


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
WCCTAC held its STMP Call for Projects in 2018 which committed $100k in funding for preliminary engineering from the 2006 STMP program for this project. City staff also submitted an 


OBAG 3 application in July 2022 to compete for funding for this project. If awarded, the City will need a match of $345k. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Design 14,628$                         


Construction 1,020,000$                    


Contingency 330,372$                       


1,320,300$                    


TOTAL FUNDS 1,365,000$                    


TOTAL USES 1,365,000$                    
SOURCE(S)


44,700$                         325 ‐ Grant: STMP Fees


779 of 829







Project Origin : Development Driven Priority Score 29


X New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


200,000$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   200,000$                      


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
200,000$                        200,000$                    


200,000$                        ‐$                                   ‐$                                 ‐$                                 200,000$                    


50,000$                          50,000$                      


Unfunded 150,000$                        150,000$                    


200,000$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   200,000$                      


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


RO1802 ‐ HAZEL STREET GAP CLOSURE (SUNNYVIEW)
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CE.1, Policy CE.1.1, Policy CE.1.4, Policy CE.1.5, Goal CE.3, Policy CS.2.6, Goal HS.1, Goal HS.3, Policy HS 3.4, Goal HS.6


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                           ‐$                                 


Project Start : 7/1/2021 Estimated Completion 


Description
A developer has proposed to develop on a vacant lot identified as APN 402‐013‐060 at the end of Hazel Street. The 


project proposes the subdivision of the lot into four new parcels and development of single family residences on 


each new parcel, and execution of a development agreement to make public improvements, including the extension 


of Hazel Street for roadway connection to Sunnyview Drive ‐ West end of Hazel St.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
CIP Project SW1901 must be completed prior to this project. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Construction


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


TOTAL FUNDS ‐$                                 


TOTAL USES ‐$                               
SOURCE(S)
276 ‐ Growth Impact Fees


780 of 829







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score 43


X New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 750,229$                    


: 12/31/2023


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
‐$                             


607,348$                   
65,081$                      


‐$                                ‐$                                 ‐$                                ‐$                                672,429$                   


106 ‐ Measure S 2014 193,029$                   
325 ‐ Grant: TDA Article 3 129,400$                   
215 ‐ Grant: OBAG 350,000$                   


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 672,429$                    


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO1714 ‐ SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS AT APPIAN WAY AND MARLESTA RD.
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


77,800$                   672,429$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
The key elements affecting the safety of pedestrians and cyclists at the Appian Way and Marlesta Way intersection 


is speed and reduced visibility of approaching traffic due to the topography of the project area. Safety 


improvements are required to improve crossing conditions for pedestrians and bicyclists. In February 2021, the 


City selected a Consultant to complete the preliminary engineering for this project. Grant funds were secured 


through WCCTAC, Transportation Development Act, and OBAG to complete this project. In October 2023, City 


Council awarded a construction contract to Gruendl Inc.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
The City secured grant funds to install a traffic signal at this intersection instead of a HAWK.


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


TOTAL FUNDS 672,429$                       


193,029$                      
129,400$                      


Design ‐$                               


Construction 607,348$                      


Contingency 65,081$                         
TOTAL USES 672,429$                      


SOURCE(S)


350,000$                      


781 of 829







Project Origin : End of life cycle Priority Score 55


New Expansion


X Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


28,800,000$                  ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 31,884,899$              


: 6/30/2026


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
4,150,000$                   4,283,579$               


1,840,583$               


24,650,000$                 24,650,000$             


28,800,000$                 ‐$                               ‐$                               ‐$                               30,774,162$             


41,394$                     


1,499,189$               


28,800,000$                 28,800,000$             


28,800,000$                  ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 30,774,162$              


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO1710 ‐ SAN PABLO AVENUE BRIDGE OVER BNSF RAILROAD
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy CS.3.3, Goal H.3, Policy H.3.1, Goal CE.3, Goal CE. 7, Policy CE.7.3, Goal CS.10.


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


1,110,737$             1,974,162$                    


Project Start : 7/1/2017 Estimated Completion 


Description
The San Pablo Avenue bridge over the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad is an integral part of the area’s 


transportation network. The age and condition assessment of the bridge supports replacement. The City was 


approved for initial funding from the Caltrans Highway Bridge Program (HBP). In February 2020, the City awarded 


a contract to a consultant for preliminary engineering (PE) to advance the project. The PE will be completed in 


two phases due to funding limitations. Completion of preliminary design is necessary to develop a final cost 


estimate for the project. Unfunded portions of this project appear in the Unfunded and Unprogrammed project 


list.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
The total budget identified to complete the PE exceeds the amount of funding Caltrans committed to the project of the State’s share in the current HBP. In October 2022, a draft type 


selection report was submitted to Caltrans for review. This report is the first step to request additional funding allocations from the Caltrans HBP to complete the PS&E phase and 


construction phase of the project. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Project Management 133,579$                        


Planning & Design
‐Construction


1,840,583$                    


TOTAL USES 1,974,162$                    
SOURCE(S)


41,394$                          325 ‐ Grant: HBP
1,499,189$                    


300,000$                        


TOTAL FUNDS 1,974,162$                    


133,579$                        
325 ‐ Grant: STMP Fees


215 ‐ Grant: TLC


106 ‐ Measure S 2014


Unfunded


782 of 829







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score 33


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


X Rehabilitation


100,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 100,000$                    


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
10,000$                          10,000$                      
80,000$                          80,000$                      
10,000$                          10,000$                      


100,000$                       ‐$                                 ‐$                                ‐$                                100,000$                   


100,000$                       100,000$                   


100,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 100,000$                    TOTAL FUNDS ‐$                                


Design
Construction
Contingency


TOTAL USES ‐$                               
SOURCE(S)
200 ‐ Gas Tax


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


Description
As part of the high school construction project WCCUSD provided road improvements along the school frontage. 


Improvements to Pinole Valley Road ‐ from Shea Dr. to Helena Ct. will extend the useful life of the pavement. The 


existing pavement score is high in this area, so a slurry seal may be the recommended treatment. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


‐$                          ‐$                                


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


RO1708 ‐ PINOLE VALLEY ROAD IMPROVEMENTS
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


783 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   200,000$                      


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
$                     200,000 


‐$                               


‐$                                 ‐$                                   ‐$                                 ‐$                                 200,000$                    


200,000$                    


‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   200,000$                      


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


IN2301 ‐ FACILITIES & REAL ESTATE MASTER PLAN
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                           200,000$                         


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
The facilities master plan will serve as a roadmap for achieving identified strategic objectives to improve service 


delivery and utilization of real estate and facility assets. The masterplan will serve to aid decision‐making on capital 


improvements for a defined list of City owned facilities and provide information on potential major maintenance 


needs (e.g., repairs vs. replace) as applicable.  


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Planning 200,000$                       


Contingency
TOTAL USES 200,000$                       


TOTAL FUNDS 200,000$                         


SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 200,000$                       


784 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   50,000$                        


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
$                       50,000 


‐$                               


‐$                                 ‐$                                   ‐$                                 ‐$                                 50,000$                      


50,000$                      


‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   50,000$                        


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


IN2201 ‐ ENERGY CONSERVATION, GENERATION AND STORAGE ASSESSMENT
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CS.1 & CS.9, Policy CS.9.1, Goal SE.3, Policy SE.1.3


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                           50,000$                           


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
An energy optimization assessment to identify energy conservation measures, renewable energy generation, and 


storage opportunities. This audit will help the City identify and develop energy investment initiatives for facilities. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Planning 50,000$                         


Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 50,000$                           


TOTAL USES 50,000$                         
SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 50,000$                         


785 of 829







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


170,000$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   200,000$                      


: 6/30/2025


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
$                       30,000 


170,000$                        170,000$                    


170,000$                        ‐$                                   ‐$                                 ‐$                                 200,000$                    


170,000$                        200,000$                    


170,000$                          ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   200,000$                      TOTAL FUNDS 30,000$                           


TOTAL USES 30,000$                         
SOURCE(S)
100 ‐ General Fund 30,000$                         


Design 30,000$                         


Construction


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


Policy GM.4.1, Policy CS.2.6, Goal CS.9, Goal HS.4


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                           30,000$                           


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
During severe natural hazard events, it is highly likely that utility power will not be available for an extended period 


of time. Critical facilities will need reliable sources of sustained electrical power to continue operations. This project 


will: 1) identify critical facilities in need of back‐up power in coordination with an Emergency Operations Plan (EOP) , 


2) assess power loads in each critical facility that requires back‐up power, 3) determine the costs and technology 


options including solar battery storage, and 4) make any additional recommendations to Council before advancing to 


construction. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
The Public Safety Building, Fire Station 74, and the Water Pollution Control Plant have stand by generators. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


IN2101 ‐ EMERGENCY POWER FOR CRITICAL FACILITIES
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


786 of 829







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   60,000$                        


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
$                       60,000 


‐$                               


‐$                                 ‐$                                   ‐$                                 ‐$                                 60,000$                      


60,000$                      


‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   ‐$                                   60,000$                        


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


IN2102 ‐ MUNICIPAL BROADBAND FEASIBILITY
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CS.11, Policy CS.11.2, Policy CS.11.5


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                           60,000$                           


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
A feasibility study to understand the high speed (broadband) connectivity available to community residents, 


businesses, and other organizations in terms of coverage, speed, and cost; determine whether there are gaps 


relative to modern standards; if there are gaps, identify and assess potential City interventions (including public‐


private partnerships) with respect to cost, effectiveness, and feasibility; and make a recommendation regarding next 


City steps on digital connectivity as appropriate. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Staff released an Request for Proposals for this effort on April 11, 2023. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Planning 60,000$                         


Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 60,000$                           


TOTAL USES 60,000$                         
SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 60,000$                         


787 of 829







Project Origin : Council Request Priority Score


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


140,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 200,000$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
140,000$                       $                   200,000 


‐$                           


140,000$                      ‐$                               ‐$                               ‐$                               200,000$                   


140,000$                       200,000$                   


140,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 200,000$                     


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


IN2103 ‐ RECYCLED WATER FEASIBILITY
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy OS.8.1, Policy OS.8.7, Goal SE.9, Policy SE.9.1, Policy SE.9.4


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          60,000$                          


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
A feasibility study will allow the City to plan and phase the construction of future recycled water distribution 


system infrastructure. The study will identify potential recycled water customers, evaluate the quantity, quality, 


and recycled water distribution system options to address the needs of potential users in surrounding areas, seek 


opportunities to phase the construction of a recycled water delivery system, and develop planning‐level cost 


options for the phased system.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
Recycled water delays or eliminates the need to construct more potable water facilities, sustains the economy with increased water supply reliability, protects the environment, 


safeguards investments in parks and landscaping with drought proof or drought resistant water supply, and contributes to a green and healthy environment. In 2019, East Bay 


Municipal Utility District (EBMUD) prepared an Updated Recycled Waster Plan which considered the potential for potable reuse in EBMUD’s water service area. The development of a 


new recycled water supply for the Phillips 66 refinery in Rodeo using effluent from the Pinole‐Hercules and Rodeo wastewater treatment plants was among the recommended non‐


potable reuse projects. This project is estimated to deliver up to 3.67 MGD of recycled water to the refinery for use in their boilers and cooling towers. The combined final disinfected 


effluent from both plants would be pumped at the Rodeo Pump Station to the refinery for treatment a new advanced recycled water treatment plan. This project was recommended by 


EBMUD because it would deliver a large amount of water to a single customer, with comparatively few pipelines required due to the short distance between the sources of wastewater 


and the Phillips 66 Refinery


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Planning 60,000$                          


Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 60,000$                          


TOTAL USES 60,000$                          
SOURCE(S)
100 ‐ General Fund 60,000$                          


788 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 100,000$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
$                     100,000 


‐$                                ‐$                                 ‐$                                ‐$                                100,000$                    


325 ‐ Grant: STMP Fees 100,000$                    


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 100,000$                     


Estimated Project Life 
cycle cost


IN2105 ‐ APPIAN WAY COMPLETE STREETS
Functional Area : Streets & Roads


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy CE.1.4, Policy CS.2.6, Policy CS.3.3, Policy H.3.1, Policy GM.3.3, Goal CE.3, Goal CS.10, Policy CS 10.2


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


‐$                          100,000$                        


Project Start : 7/1/2023 Estimated Completion 


Description
Completion of preliminary engineering and design to provide continuous sidewalks and bike lanes along Appian 


Way beginning from unincorporated El Sobrante to about 1500 lineal feet north of the City limit within Pinole. In 


December 2021, City Council approved a Cooperative Funding Agreement with WCCTAC to receive STMP funds to 


complete preliminary design for this project. 


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
This project will connect with the Contra Costa County’s project to provide continuous sidewalks and bike lanes along Appian Way from San Pablo Dam Rd. in unincorporated El  Sobrante. 


This project will involve coordination with Contra Costa County. The construction phase of this project is unfunded and appears in the Unfunded and Unprogrammed list.


General Plan Goals/Policies


Engineering Design 100,000$                       
TOTAL USES 100,000$                       


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24


SOURCE(S)
100,000$                       


TOTAL FUNDS 100,000$                        


789 of 829







Project Origin : TAPS Priority Score


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 188,000$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
$                   170,000 


‐$                           


‐$                               ‐$                               ‐$                               ‐$                               170,000$                   


170,000$                   


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 170,000$                     


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


IN2106 ‐ ACTIVE TRANSPORTATION PLAN
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal GM.1, Goal GM.3, Policy GM.3.2, Policy CE.1.4, Policy CE.8.2, Goal CS.10


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


18,000.00$             170,000$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2022 Estimated Completion 


Description
Development of an Active Transportation Plan will act as a guide for active mobility within and around Pinole. 


The Plan will identify an integrated network of walkways and bikeways that connect Pinole neighborhoods and 


communities to employment, education, commercial, recreational, and tourist destinations. The plan will 


prioritize a set of connected projects, that when fully implemented, will increase active transportation 


opportunities and make it safe and more convenient for people to walk, bike, and use non‐auto forms of travel.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In March 7, 2023, City Council awarded a contract to GHD for the preparation of a Park Master Plan.


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Planning 170,000$                        


Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 170,000$                       


TOTAL USES 170,000$                       
SOURCE(S)
100 ‐ General Fund 170,000$                        


790 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


175,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 250,000$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
175,000$                       $                   250,000 


‐$                           


175,000$                      ‐$                               ‐$                               ‐$                               250,000$                   


175,000$                       250,000$                   


175,000$                        ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 250,000$                     


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


IN1703 ‐ STORM DRAINAGE MASTER PLAN
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Policy GM.4.1, Policy CS.7.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


75,000$                          


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
Preparation of a storm drain master plan will provide an analysis of the existing collection system. The plan will 


identify system deficiencies related to capacity, functionality, and permit compliance. The plan can serve to guide 


future budget allocations for improvements to the system.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Planning 75,000$                          


Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 75,000$                          


TOTAL USES 75,000$                          
SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 75,000$                          


791 of 829







Project Origin : Staff Recommendation Priority Score


New Expansion


Replacement Renovation


Land/Row Acq. Required


Rehabilitation


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 165,000$                     


: 6/30/2024


FY 2024‐25 FY 2025‐26 FY 2026‐27 FY 2027‐28
$                   150,000 


‐$                           


‐$                               ‐$                               ‐$                               ‐$                               150,000$                   


150,000$                   


‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 ‐$                                 150,000$                     


Estimated Project 
Life cycle cost


IN1704 ‐ PARK MASTER PLAN
Functional Area : Infrastructure Assessment


Type of CIP Budget      Unappropriated Subsequent Years


Year 1
FY 2023‐24


Year 2
FY 2024‐25


Year 3
FY 2025‐26


Year 4
FY 2026‐27


Year 5
FY 2027‐28


Goal CS.3, Policy CS.3.1


Estimated 
Expenditures 
to‐date


15,000.00$             150,000$                       


Project Start : 7/1/2020 Estimated Completion 


Description
This project will prepare a citywide master plan to address the city's long‐term needs and goals for parks, 


recreation, and open space. The master plan will identify the City’s current parks and recreation assets,


determine the City’s future parks and recreation needs and priorities, and recommend


capital, operational, and financial strategies to meet the City’s needs.


History, Status, or Impact if Delayed
In early 2022, City staff issued a Request for Proposals (RFP) to solicit bids to prepare the master plan. On December 20, 2022, the City Council awarded a contract to RJM Design Group 


for the preparation of the City's Master Plan. The consultant partcipated in a kick off meeting with staff in April 2023. 


General Plan Goals/Policies


Summary of Capital Cost
Budget      Projected Budget Project Estimate 


FY 2023‐2028USE(S) FY 2023‐24
Planning 150,000$                        


Contingency


TOTAL FUNDS 150,000$                       


TOTAL USES 150,000$                       
SOURCE(S)
106 ‐ Measure S 2014 150,000$                        


792 of 829







 


 
 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN: FY 2022/23 THROUGH FY 2026/27 
UNFUNDED PROJECTS 


 
#  Unfunded Projects 


UF001 Railroad Avenue Bridge Removal and Replacement 
UF002 Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in City lots 
UF003 Parking lot resurfacing  
UF004 LLAD Landscape Restoration and Improvement 
UF005 Dog Park Restroom Replacement 
UF006 Dog Park resurfacing and fencing improvements 
UF007 Eucalyptus Grove Restoration 
UF008 Fernandez Park Baseball grandstand improvement 
UF009 Repave Trails 
UF010 ADA Ramps  
UF011 Appian Complete Streets 
UF012 Pedestrian Bridge Maintenance (formerly known as Bridge Maintenance) 
UF013 Fernandez Park Improvements 
UF014 Pavement Maintenance  
UF015 I-80/Pinole Valley Rd. Interchange Improvements 
UF016 Shale Hill Retaining wall and sidewalk gap 
UF017 Sidewalks gaps  
UF018 Signal System Upgrades 
UF019 Pinon-1 
UF020 Pinon-2 
UF021 Tennent-1 
UF022 Tennent-2 
UF023 Tree Master Plan 
UF024 San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 
UF025 Installation of Solar at City Facilities  
UF026 All access weather roads 
UF027 Faria House Renovations 
UF028 San Pablo Avenue Complete Streets 
UF029 Signalized Intersections 
UF030 Pedestrian Safety at Signalized Intersections 
UF031 Safety at Unsignalized Intersections 
UF032 Roadway Segments #1 
UF033 Roadway Segments #2 
UF034 Roadway Segments #3 
UF035 Vehicular Bridge Maintenance 
 
Legend:  


New unfunded projects added  
 


793 of 829







 


  


UF001 - Railroad Avenue Bridge Removal and Replacement 


Project Information             


The Contra Costa County Flood Control and 
Water Conservation District has advised         
removal of the Railroad Avenue Bridge. The 
bridge is a flood barrier. The first step is to                 
determine if the City of Pinole is the responsible 
agency for this project.   


UF002 - Electric Vehicle Charging Stations in City lots 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads/Sanitary Sewer/
Stormwater 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 11 


The City desires to promote and encourage the 
use of electric vehicles. With increased adoption 
of alternative fuel vehicles, the need for                 
charging infrastructure is growing. The City 
wishes to install charging stations in city owned 
parking lots. The first step is to complete a load 
study at City owned parking lots to determine 
the electrical capacity at each site. There may 
be significant electrical upgrades necessary to 
install charging stations. Electrical capacity and 
siting determine ultimately determine the cost of 
each project. There are incentives available for 
the charging equipment.  


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Bay Area 
Air Quality Management District, West 
Contra Costa Transportation Authority, 
Marin Clean Energy 


Priority Score: 43 


794 of 829







 


  


UF003 - Parking lot resurfacing 


Project Information             


This project is to maintain and enhance 
existing City owned parking facilities and 
infrastructure, to increase parking supply, 
and to support ongoing multi-modal and 
streetscape improvements. Improvements 
include saw cutting and demolition,             
pavement removal, earthwork, pavement 
installation, curb and gutter, striping, and 
signage.  


UF004 - LLAD Landscape Restoration and Improvement 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources: 


 


Priority Score: 32 


   


The Pinole Valley Road Landscape and Lighting 
Assessment District was formed in 2008. The 
City installed various improvements on Pinole 
Valley Road between Henry Avenue and          
Ramona Street. The district provides                          
maintenance to traffic signals, streetlights,                
median landscaping, irrigation for landscaping, 
electricity to traffic signals and streetlights, and 
graffiti removal. This project will maintain and 
restore turf, shrubs, plants and trees within the 
District. In FY 2022/23, this work was completed 
for Zone A (between I-80 and Henry Ave.)  


Origin: LLAD Report 


 


Budget Unit: LLAD 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 345 
& 348 


 


Priority Score: 27 


795 of 829







 


  


UF005 - Dog Park Restroom Replacement 


Project Information             


The existing restroom located at the Dog 
Park is beyond its useful life and requires 
replacement.  


UF006 - Dog Park resurfacing and fencing improvements 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate: $200,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 36 


Resurfacing and fencing improvements 


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate: $75,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 36 


796 of 829







 


  


UF007 - Eucalyptus Grove Restoration 


Project Information             


The open space located between the Old Town 
area between John St. and Pinole Valley Road 
is forested with Eucalyptus trees. In 2014, a 
Safety Inspection was conducted by a                 
consultant. A total of 8 trees were                         
recommended for removal, and root crown          
excavation was recommended for 3 trees. 2 
trees were determined to be hollow and                            
recommended for further investigation to            
evaluate the level of internal decay. In 2018, the 
City hired a company to remove 20 Eucalyptus 
trees in the area. There are still many trees left 
and many of the prior trees were felled with the 
trunks remaining on site. This project will        
remove the remaining trees, both standing and, 
on the ground, and regreen this area with native 
trees.  


UF008 - Fernandez Park Baseball grandstand improvement 


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate: $150,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 22 


The current grandstand is aging and                
requires increased maintenance to               
maintain its serviceability.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate: $250,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 27 


797 of 829







 


  


UF009 - Repave Trails 


Project Information             


The City’s goal is to develop safe,                   
connected, and comfortable bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities for people of all ages 
and abilities. Repaving trails will enhance 
trail access from the City’s roadway                   
network to encourage alternative modes of 
transportation. The Active Transportation 
Plan is underway and will identify a trail 
network and recommend improvements. 


UF010 - ADA Ramps 


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Parks 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 25 


This project involves removing barriers to 
accessibility for persons using wheelchairs 
or other personal assistance devices and 
improving pedestrian accessibility and 
safety by reconstructing or upgrading curb 
ramps at various locations throughout the 
City.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 49 


798 of 829







 


  


UF011 -  Appian Complete Streets 


Project Information             


This project will provide continuous side-
walks and bike lanes along Appian Way 
from San Pablo Dam Rd. in unincorporated 
El Sobrante to about 1500 lineal feet north 
of the city limit within the City of Pinole. 
The City received STMP funds                 
from West Contra Costa Transportation 
Authority for preliminary design. The            
construction phase remains unfunded.  


UF012 - Pedestrian Bridge Maintenance  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $970,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 30 


Maintenance of pedestrian bridges as 
identified in the Pedestrian Bridge                      
Inspection Reports completed by Quincy 
Engineering, Inc. In FY 2023/24 there is 
$50,000 budgeted in the operating budget 
for maintenance activities. 


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $224,700 


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 22 


799 of 829







 


  


UF013 - Fernandez Park Improvements 


Project Information             


Renovations to the baseball field to                 
decrease water and energy usage and              
increase accessibility and safety.  


UF014 - Pavement Maintenance  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $850,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources: 


 


Priority Score: 24 


   


The City uses a pavement management 
software known as StreetSaver to                  
strategize the most cost effective method 
to extend the pavement life. Pavement 
Maintenance is necessary to maintain the 
City’s pavement network. Deferred           
maintenance results in increased costs 
over time.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $42,000,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 200 
and Fund 106 


 


Priority Score: 25 


800 of 829







 


  


UF015 - I-80/ Pinole Valley Rd. Interchange Improvements  


Project Information             


This project will widen Pinole Valley Road 
ramp terminal intersections at I-80 to                   
provide a dedicated right turn lane to the 
eastbound and westbound I-80 on ramps. 
This project will also provide crossing                  
enhancements at the Pinole Valley Road 
and I-80 intersection.  


UF016 - Shale Hill Retaining wall and sidewalk gap  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $10,959,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 9 


Shale Hill is located on San Pablo Ave. 
near Oak Ridge Road. The cut slope 
above the pavement is comprised of shale 
which is loose and sloughs onto the road. 
There is no sidewalk in this area because 
the toe of the embankment is uncontrolled 
and there is inadequate space to                      
accommodate a sidewalk. Staff has not 
been successful in securing grant funds for 
this project.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 9 


801 of 829







 


  


UF017 - Sidewalk gaps 


Project Information             


This project will address sidewalk gaps by 
installing public sidewalks where sidewalks 
are missing on one or both sides of the 
street. This work will be coordinated with 
other construction projects. Sidewalk gaps 
often exist in places with site constraints 
(i.e. right of way, grade/slopes, or utility 
conflicts) or are adjacent to properties that 
have been required to provide sidewalks in 
the past due to land uses or ownerships. 
Locations for repair will be selected based 
on site conditions, pedestrian safety, and 
adjacent property attributes.  


UF018 - Signal System Upgrades  


Project Information      


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 16 


This project will upgrade various aspects 
of the City’s traffic signal system including: 
traffic signal controller equipment, vehicle 
detection, traffic signal arms and heads, 
battery backup systems, and                          
communications  systems to reduce                 
congestion and improve safety for the                
Pinole community.  


Origin: Staff Recommendation 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 16 


802 of 829







 


  


UF019 - Pinon-1 


Project Information             


This project involves replacement of the 
approximately pipeline along San Pablo 
Ave., Roble Ave., Pinon Ave, and Orleans 
Avenue. In FY 2022/23, the City                          
contracted with a consultant to complete 
phase 1 of preliminary engineering and  
design for this project.  


UF020 - Pinon-2 


Project Information      


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate: $4,482,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 59 


This project involves replacement of the 
approximately pipeline along San Pablo 
Ave., Pinon Ave, Appian Way, and                
Meadow Avenue.  


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate: $1,866,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 59 


803 of 829







 


  


UF021 - Tennent-1 


Project Information             


This project includes the replacement of 
pipeline along Tennent Avenue and inside 
the Water Pollution Control Plan.   


UF022 - Tennent-2 


Project Information      


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate: $2,664,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 59 


This project involves replacement of the 
approximately pipeline along Tennent            
Avenue. 


Origin: Sanitary Sewer Master Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Sewer 


 


Cost Estimate: $4,239,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 59 


804 of 829







 


  


UF023 - Tree Master Plan  


Project Information             


In 2019, the City Council established a 
Beautification Ad Hoc Committee to                 
analyze options for, and to make                          
recommendations to Council regarding 
clean-up and beautification projects in                  
Pinole. Among other projects, the                     
Committee recommended the development 
of a Tree Master Plan to inventory the                  
existing trees, and to develop a plan for 
managing the tree inventory, including 
finding tree planting opportunities.  


UF024 - San Pablo Avenue Bridge over BNSF Railroad 


Project Information      


Origin: Beautification AdHoc Committee 


 


Budget Unit:  


 


Cost Estimate: $375,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Cal Fire 
Urban and Community Forestry Grant 
Program 


 


Priority Score: 11 


This project will replace the existing               
thirteen span reinforced concrete span 
structure over the Burlington Northern 
Santa Fe Railroad adjacent to San Pablo 
Avenue at the easterly limits of the City. 
On 02/18/20, Council awarded a contract 
to a Consultant to begin the preliminary 
engineering (PE) for this project (CIP               
Project RO1710). The PE will be                       
completed in two phases due to funding 
limitations. The first phase was necessary 
to develop a   final cost estimate to                           
facilitate pursuing additional funding                        
required to complete all phases including 
construction.  


Origin: End of life cycle 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $28,800,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Fund 213, 
Fund 214, and Economic Stimulus funds. 


 


Priority Score: 58 


  


805 of 829







 


  


UF025 - Installation of Solar at City Facilities 


Project Information             


This project involves procurement and               
installation of solar panels at City owned 
facilities to offset the City’s electricity  
consumption and  reduce the greenhouse 
gas impacts.  


UF026 - All access weather roads 


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 37 


The General Plan, Chapter 8 discusses  
improvement of open space management 
to reduce wildfire risks. There is a desire 
to have improved, all-weather access 
roads through open space to improve ac-
cess to and from Hercules and El Sobrante 
to shorten response times and improve              
mutual aid.  


Origin: General Plan  


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


   


Potential Funding Sources:    


 


Priority Score: 20 


806 of 829







 


  


UF027 - Faria House Renovations 


Project Information             


The building commonly referred to as the 
“Faria House” is a two-story residence 
constructed in about 1890 and originally 
located at what is now 1301 Pinole Valley 
Road. In 2005, the Faria House was                 
relocated to 2100 San Pablo Avenue. On 
June 7, 2022, City Council directed staff 
pursue hazard remediation and renova-
tions to create a lower-level office, and up-
per-level warm shell. This project was later 
unfunded by City Council.   


UF028 - San Pablo Avenue Complete Streets  


Project Information      


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Facilities 


 


Cost Estimate: $420,000 


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 17 


A complete streets plan would create a 
new vision for San Pablo Avenue, to  
transform it into a place where people of 
all ages and abilities can travel safely and 
comfortably whether walking, bicycling, 
riding transit, or driving  


Origin: Council Request 


 


Budget Unit: Infrastructure Assessment 


 


Cost Estimate: $200,000 


   


Potential Funding Sources:                  
Subregional Transportation Mitigation 
Program (STMP) funds  


 


Priority Score: 15 


807 of 829







 


  


UF029 - Signalized Intersections 


Project Information             


Improvement to signal hardware, signal 
timing, or protected left turn phases at: 


 Appian Way & Fitzgerald Drive 


 San Pablo & Tennent Ave. 


 Appian Way & Canyon Dr./Tara Hills 


 Pinole Valley Rd./Tennent Ave./Ellerhorst St.  


 San Pablo Ave. & Pinole Valley Rd.  


 San Pablo Ave. & Pinon Ave./Appian Way 


 Pinole Valley Rd. & Estates Ave.  


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 
recommendations.  


UF030 - Pedestrian Safety at Signalized Intersections  


Project Information      


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Streets & Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $183,792 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 
Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 


 


Priority Score: 46 


Installation of advance stop bars before 
crosswalk, raised median on approaches, 
raised pavement markers and striping 
through intersection at: 


 Appian Way & Fitzgerald Drive 


 San Pablo & Tennent Ave. 


 Appian Way & Canyon Dr./Tara Hills 


 Pinole Valley Rd./Tennent Ave./Ellerhorst St.  


 San Pablo Ave. & Pinole Valley Rd.  


 Fitzgerald Drive and Best Buy Parking Lot 


 Pinole Valley Rd. & Estates Ave.  


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 
recommendations.  


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $514,548 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 
Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)    


 


Priority Score: 46 


              


808 of 829







 


  


UF031 - Safety at Unsignalized Intersections 


Project Information             


Install intersection lighting, install/upgrade 
larger or additional stop signs or other            
intersection warning/regulatory signs, or 
install RRFB: 


 Walter Ave. & San Pablo Ave.  


 Pinole Valley Rd. & Simas Ave. 


 Pinole Valley Rd. & Wright Ave. 


 Pinole Valley Rd. & Rafaela St. 


 Wright Ave. & Carol St.  


 Simas Ave. & Moraga Dr. 


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 
recommendations.  


UF032 - Roadway Segments # 1 


Project Information      


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP) 


 


Budget Unit: Streets & Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $879,830 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 
Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 


 


Priority Score: 46 


Install segment lighting, or install/upgrade 
signs with new fluorescent sheeting, or       
install delineators, reflectors/object                
markers. 


 Pinole Valley Rd: San Pablo Ave. to Collins 
Ave. 


 San Pablo Ave.: Oak Ridge Rd. to                 
Pinole Valley Rd.  


 San Pablo Ave.: Golden Gate to Del Monte Dr. 


 Tara Hills: Kilkenny Way to Appian Way 


 Walter Ave: North Terminus to San Pablo Ave. 


 Fitzgerald Dr.: Jovita Ln. to Appian Way 


 Appian Way: San Pablo Ave. to Michael Dr. 


 Tennent Ave.: San Pablo Ave. to Pinole Valley 
Rd.  


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 
recommendations.  


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $1,469,474 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 
Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)   


 


Priority Score: 46 


               


809 of 829







 


  


UF033 - Roadway Segments # 2 


Project Information             


Install centerline rumble strips/stripes, or 
install edge-lines and centerlines, or install 
RRFB 


 Pinole Valley Rd: San Pablo Ave. to Collins 
Ave. 


 San Pablo Ave.: Oak Ridge Rd. to                 
Pinole Valley Rd.  


 San Pablo Ave.: Golden Gate to Del Monte Dr. 


 Tara Hills: Kilkenny Way to Appian Way 


 Walter Ave: North Terminus to San Pablo Ave. 


 Tennent Ave.: San Pablo Ave. to Pinole Valley 
Rd.  


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 
recommendations.  


UF034 - Roadway Segments # 3 


Project Information      


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan (LRSP) 


 


Budget Unit: Streets & Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $914,375 


  


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 
Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) 


 


Priority Score: 46 


Implement road diet, or install dynamic/
variable speed warning signs, or install/
upgrade pedestrian crossing 


 Pinole Valley Rd: San Pablo Ave. to Collins 
Ave. 


 San Pablo Ave.: Oak Ridge Rd. to                 
Pinole Valley Rd.  


 Tara Hills: Kilkenny Way to Appian Way 


 Fitzgerald Dr.: Jovita Ln. to Appian Way 


 Appian Way: San Pablo Ave. to Michael Dr. 


 


Refer to the LRSP document for detailed 
recommendations.  


Origin: Local Road Safety Plan 


 


Budget Unit: Roads 


 


Cost Estimate: $1,483,510 


   


Potential Funding Sources:  Highway 
Safety Improvement Program (HSIP)    


 


Priority Score: 46 


              


810 of 829







 


  


UF035 - Vehicular Bridge Maintenance 


Project Information             


Maintenance of vehicular bridges as                 
identified in the Caltrans Bridge Inspection 
Reports. The latest bridge inspection               
issued in May 2023, contains                           
recommendations for three bridges near:  


 PVHS High School on Pinole Valley Rd. 


 Wright Ave. on Pinole Valley Rd. 


 On Simas Ave. near Pinole Valley Rd. 


Origin: Caltrans Bridge Inspection 


 


Budget Unit: Streets & Roads 


 


Cost Estimate:  


  


Potential Funding Sources:   


 


Priority Score: 22 


 


811 of 829







APPENDIX I: Capital Improvement Plan consistency with General Plan 


Funding is estimated for specific projects or asset plans in the FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 Capital 
Improvement Plan (CIP) which support the goals and policies of following elements of the 
General Plan: 


• Community Character (CC)
• Growth Management (GM)
• Land Use & Economic Development (LU)
• Housing (H)
• Circulation Element (CE)
• Community Services and Facilities (CS)
• Health and Safety (HS)
• Natural Resources and Open Space (OS)
• Sustainability Element (SE)


The acroynms and associated General P lan goals/policies are listed on individual project 
sheets.  


The FY 2023/24 – 2027/28 CIP includes funding for projects over the next five (5) fiscal years 
that support General Plan policies and enhance public infrastructure, amenities, and services in 
Pinole. The CIP is consistent with and helps implement the following General Plan goals and 
policies: 


Community Character Element 


GOAL CC.1 Maintain Pinole’s unique qualities and sense of place to preserve the established 


historic and small-town character of the city. 


POLICY CC.1.2 Require all new development to incorporate high-quality site design, 
architecture and planning to enhance the overall quality of the built environment in Pinole 
and create a visually interesting and aesthetically pleasing town environment. 


POLICY CC.1.3 To enhance a sense of arrival and create a strong appealing image that 
promotes community identity, the City shall develop community entry features at key 
gateways or city entries along Interstate 80. Entryways shall incorporate landscaping, 
trees, structural architectural elements, signage and public art. 


POLICY CC.1.5 Encourage project compatibility, interdependence and support with 
neighboring uses, especially between commercial and mixed-use centers and the 
surrounding residential neighborhoods. Uses should relate to one another with pedestrian 
connections, transit options, shared parking, landscaping, public spaces, and the 
orientation and design of buildings. 


GOAL CC.2 Emphasize and enhance the visual and physical connection between the city’s 


natural environment and the community’s quality of life. 


POLICY CC.2.1 Provide visual and physical connections between the natural environment 
and the built environment through careful site design, building placement, architectural 
features that allow views of Pinole’s unique environment such as ridgelines or the San 


812 of 829







 


 
 


Pablo Bay shoreline, public access to open space such as via the Bay Trail, and the use 
of native vegetation in the urban environment such as for landscape buffers for sidewalk 
areas and street trees. 


POLICY CC.2.2 Preserve natural resources within the built environment, including trees, 
marshes, creeks and hillsides. 


GOAL CC.5 Enhance the quality of life in Pinole by acknowledging the cultural diversity and by 
promoting, preserving and sustaining the cultural and performing arts. 


POLICY CC.5.1 Celebrate the city’s cultural diversity through public art, cultural centers 
and community events for the benefit and enjoyment of all residents. 


POLICY CC.5.2 Develop programs and facilities that promote the cultural and performing 
arts in Pinole. 


Growth Management Element 


GOAL GM.1 Regional Planning. Support cooperative transportation, land use and public service 
planning in Contra Costa County. 


POLICY GM.1.1 West Contra Costa County Planning Activities. Achieve efficient public 
service delivery by coordinating with affected jurisdictions and agencies concerning 
public and private developments. 


GOAL GM.3 Efficient Transportation. Support land use patterns that make efficient use of the 
transportation system and enhance public safety.  


POLICY GM.3.1 Transportation Management. Make more efficient use of the regional and 
subregional transportation system. 


POLICY GM.3.3 Provide Adequate Transportation Facilities and Services. Provide 
adequate transportation facilities while maintaining neighborhood integrity. 


POLICY GM.3.7 Mobility-Impaired. Support efforts to provide safe and convenient 
transportation systems for all citizens of Pinole, particularly mobility-impaired individuals. 


GOAL GM.4 Compact Development and Service Areas. Encourage infill and redevelopment in 
areas that are already served by utilities, infrastructure and public services. 


POLICY GM.4.1 Planning for Present and Future Community Needs. Plan for, provide 
and maintain a level of public infrastructure facilities and services that adequately serves 
the present and future needs of the community. 


Land Use & Economic Development Element  


GOAL LU.1 Preserve and enhance the natural resources, high-quality residential neighborhoods 
and commercial areas, and small-town (semi-rural) character of Pinole. 


POLICY LU.1.3 Establish and implement a continuing program of civic beautification, 
gateway or entryway enhancement, tree planting, maintenance of homes and streets, and 
other measures which will promote an aesthetically desirable environment and attractive 
neighborhood areas. 


813 of 829







 


 
 


GOAL LU.4 Preserve and strengthen the identity and quality of life of Pinole’s residential 


neighborhoods. 


POLICY LU.4.1 Ensure all new development, renovation or remodeling preserves and 
strengthens Pinole’s residential neighborhoods by requiring projects to be harmoniously 
designed and integrated with the existing neighborhood. 


GOAL LU.6 Protect and enhance the natural resources of the San Pablo Bay waterfront for the 
enjoyment of Pinole residents.  


 POLICY LU.6.3    Provide waterfront parks, pedestrian pathways and recreation areas that 
are safe, accessible, and attractive for public use. 


Housing Element 


GOAL H.2 Protect Existing Character and Heritage. Protect and enhance the integrity and 
distinctive character and heritage of Pinole encouraging the development of high quality, well-
designed housing and conserving existing housing. 
 


POLICY H.2.4 Maintain Existing Housing and Neighborhood Amenities.  Maintain Pinole’s 


lifestyle characteristics by encouraging the maintenance of existing housing stock, and in 
particular housing with historic value, and preserving the amenities of existing 
neighborhoods. 


GOAL H.3 Provide Adequate Services and Facilities. Provide adequate services and facilities to 
meet the needs of the city’s current and future population.  


POLICY H.3.1 Plan For Public Facility and Services Needs. Future development shall be 
planned based on public facility and service capacity, community-wide needs, sound 
citywide and neighborhood planning and public improvement programming. 


POLICY H.3.4 Encourage new pedestrian-oriented development. Encourage new 
development and redevelopment that places residences in close proximity to a variety of 
services and facilities. 


Circulation Element  


GOAL CE.1 Reduce vehicle miles traveled and encourage the use of public transit. 
POLICY CE.1.1 Encourage strategic growth that concentrates future development along 
Pinole’s three primary transit corridors (San Pablo Avenue, Appian Way and Pinole 
Valley Road).  


POLICY CE.1.3 Encourage development that is sensitive to both local and regional 
transit measures and that promotes the use of alternative modes of transportation.   


POLICY CE.1.4 Encourage maximum utilization of the existing public transit system and 
alternate modes of transportation in Pinole.   


GOAL CE.3 Provide timely input and effective means (as appropriate) of programming street and 
highway improvements to maintain the objective peak hour level of service without detrimentally 
impacting community character or commercial activity. 


814 of 829







 


 
 


 POLICY 3.2. Maintain roadway network at or above established LOS thresholds.  


GOAL CE.4 Establish programs to support sidewalk, trail and street enhancements, where 
feasible. 
 


POLICY CE.4.5 Inventory sidewalk conditions to identify opportunities for enhancements 
to the circulation system and to help prioritize repair and maintenance activities as funding 
becomes available. 


GOAL CE.5 Provide adequate parking and loading facilities while encouraging alternative means 
of transportation.  


GOAL CE.7 Support bicycle use as a mode of transportation by enhancing infrastructure to 
accommodate bicycle and rides.  


POLICY CE.7.1 Enhance the City’s Bikeway network through the use of Class I, II, and III 
bikeways. 


POLICY CE.7.3 Establish a network of multi-use paths to facilitate safe and direct off-
street bicycle and pedestrian travel.  


Community Services and Facilities Element 


GOAL CS.1 Provide safe, attractive and efficiently designed infrastructure and sustainable 
facilities to serve the public. 


POLICY CS.1.1 The City will strive to provide safe, attractive and efficiently designed 
facilities for public and quasi-public organizations. 


POLICY CS.1.3 The City will endeavor to provide convenient access to community 
facilities and services to all areas of the community. 


GOAL CS.2 Ensure and maintain a high level of public safety in the community. 


POLICY CS.2.6 The City will continue to fund the repair, maintenance and expansion of 
facilities to respond to evolving service needs. 


GOAL CS.3 Provide adequate and high-quality recreational opportunities and programs for the 
community. 


POLICY CS.3.1 Continue to provide a variety of recreational opportunities that serve and 
represent all aspects of the community. 


POLICY CS.3.3 Expand and organize a multi-use trail system. 


GOAL CS.6 Provide adequate, economical and dependable wastewater collection service and 
treatment. 


POLICY CS.6.1 The City shall continue to make capital improvements to the wastewater 
collection and treatment system to maintain system capability and reliability. 


GOAL CS.7 Minimize flooding. 


815 of 829







 


 
 


POLICY CS.7.1 The City will ensure that the storm drain system has adequate capacity 
to minimize street flooding and, where feasible, shall expand the capacity of the system 
to control storm flows. 


GOAL CS.9 Provide economical and dependable community services while conserving energy 
resources. 


POLICY CS.9.1 The City will seek opportunities to improve the energy efficiency of 
facilities and operations. 


GOAL CS.10 Provide safe, efficient roadway infrastructure to support multiple modes of 
transportation and to meet existing and future circulation needs. 


POLICY CS.10.2 The City will update, where possible, the existing roadway network to 
enhance pedestrian, bicycle and transit circulation while maintaining safe vehicular 
circulation. 


Health and Safety Element 


GOAL HS.1 Minimize the potential for loss of life, injury, damage to property, economic and social 
dislocation, and unusual public expense due to natural and man-made hazards. 


GOAL HS.2 Protect the community from the risk of flood damage and improve surface water 
quality. 


POLICY HS.2.4 Continue to monitor studies that identify anticipated changes in 
sea level and create appropriate standards and improvements to minimize flood 
risks. 


POLICY HS.2.5 Establish appropriate capital improvements and management programs 
to reduce wet weather sewer treatment demand and avoid discharge to the shallow water 
outfall. 


GOAL HS.3 Minimize hazards of soil erosion, weak and expansive soils, potentially 
hazardous soils materials, other hazardous materials, geologic instability and 
seismic activity. 
 


POLICY HS.3.5 Require proper handling, storage, disposal and cleanup of hazardous 
materials to prevent leakage, potential explosions, fires or the escape of harmful gases 
and to prevent individually innocuous materials from combining to form hazardous 
substances, especially at the time of disposal. 


GOAL HS.4 Ensure that government agencies, citizens and businesses are prepared for an 
effective response and recovery in the event of emergencies or disasters.  


POLICY HS.4.1 Continue to provide essential emergency public services during natural 
catastrophes 


POLICY HS.4.3 Incorporate technological enhancements in new and substantially 
remodeled structures and facilities to support and improve emergency services. 


816 of 829







 


 
 


GOAL HS.6 Support multiple forms of transportation and a circulation system design that reduces 
vehicle trips and emissions. 


POLICY HS.6.1 Promote and encourage walking and bicycling as viable forms of 
transportation to services, shopping and employment. 


GOAL HS.7 Ensure that all new development meets or exceeds state and federal water quality 
standards.  


POLICY HS.7.1 Support Regional, state and federal clean water programs.  


POLICY HS.7.3 Reduce the transport of runoff and surface pollutants.  


POLICY HS.7.6 Establish appropriate capital improvements and management programs 
to reduce wet weather sewer treatment demand and avoid discharge to the shallow water 
outfall.  


Natural Resources and Open Space Element  


GOAL OS.1 Ensure the preservation of natural resources by determining appropriate land use 
and compatibility with natural resources and open space.  


POLICY OS.1.2 Agency Cooperation. Work with Federal, State and local regulatory and 
trustee agencies to promote the long-term sustainability of local natural resources. 


Sustainability Element 


GOAL SE.3 The City will reduce its contribution to climate change and mitigate and adapt to the 
effects of climate change as appropriate.   


POLICY SE.3.1 Reduce greenhouse gas emissions from City operations and community 
sources by a minimum of 15 percent below current or baseline levels by the year 2020.     


POLICY SE.3.4 Reduce GHG emissions by reducing vehicle miles traveled and by 
increasing or encouraging the use of alternative fuels and transportation technologies. 


POLICY SE.1.3 Enhance the energy efficiency of all City facilities. 


GOAL SE.4 Optimize energy efficiency and renewable energy. 


POLICY SE.4.2 Explore opportunities for City-wide expansion of Programs and Facilities 
related to energy efficiency and conservation.  


GOAL SE.5 Achieve a solid waste diversion of 75% of the waste stream by 2020.  


GOAL SE.7 Air quality will be maintained and improved for the City of Pinole and the Bay Area 
as a region and not decline below levels measured in early 1990’s.  


POLICY SE 7.3 Support efforts to comprehensively address air quality issues through 
education, regulation, and innovation.  


GOAL SE.8 Utilize transit options and reduce vehicle miles traveled and single-occupancy vehicle 
use. 


817 of 829







 


 
 


POLICY SE.8.7 Work to improve Pinole’s pedestrian and bicycle infrastructure and to 


meet the needs of all pedestrians and bicyclists. 


POLICY SE.8.10 Support and promote the use of low- and zero-emissions vehicles, 
alternative fuels, and other measures to directly reduce emissions from motor vehicles.  


Community Character Element 
 
GOAL CC.1 Maintain Pinole’s unique qualities and sense of place to preserve the 
established historic and small-town character of the city. 
 


POLICY CC.1.2 Require all new development to incorporate high-quality site design, 
architecture and planning to enhance the overall quality of the built environment in 
Pinole and create a visually interesting and aesthetically pleasing town environment. 
POLICY CC.1.3 To enhance a sense of arrival and create a strong appealing image 
that promotes community identity, the City shall develop community entry features at key 
gateways or city entries along Interstate 80.  Entryways shall incorporate landscaping, 
trees, structural architectural elements, signage, and public art. 


818 of 829







 


 
 


APPENDIX II: Priorirization Matrix Category Scoring Guidelines 
 


1. Regulatory Compliance – Compliance with regulatory mandates issued by agencies likes 
California State Water Resources Control Board, California Department of Resources, 
Recycling and Recovery, Department of Fish and Wildlife, the San Francisco Bay 
Conservation and Development Commission, or other County, State and federal laws. This 
also includes the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices, and self-imposed City ordinances. The score should be based on the answers to the 
following example questions: 


a. Does the proposed project address a current regulatory mandate? 
b. Will the proposed project proactively address a foreseeable (within the next 5 years) 


regulatory mandate? 
 
Scoring scale: 


 


0  2-3  5 
The project does 
not address a 
regulatory 
compliance issue 


 The project provides a 
short-term fix for an 
existing regulatory 
compliance issue or for 
one anticipated in the near 
future  


 The project resolves 
a pressing or long-
term regulatory 
compliance issue 


 
2. Health/Safety – Projects that improve the overall health and safety of the community such as 


multi-purpose trails, transportation safety improvements, new recreation facilities, address 
safety issues at City facilities, enhancements to police, fire, and emergency medical services. 
The score should be based on answers to the following example questions: 
a. Does the proposed project impact the health and wellbeing or safety of Pinole residents 


and/or employees? 
b. Does the project mitigate a serious risk or liability health/safety issue and to what degree? 
c. Does the project help assist the City to respond more effectively and efficiently to 


emergencies throughout the community? 


Scoring scale: 


 
0  2-3  5 


The project does 
not impact the 
health and/or 
safety of the 
community 


 The project addresses a 
serious health and/or safety 
issue that has a limited 
impact or addresses a less-
serious issue but serves the 
health and or safety of the 
broader community 


 The project directly 
addresses a 
serious health 
and/or safety issue 
that has a 
widespread impact 
and/or improves 
the health of the 
community  


 


819 of 829







 


 
 


3. Project Dependency/Bundling– The completion of the proposed project is complementary to 
the completion of a precursor capital project/master plan or the proposed project would be 
implemented efficiently if it was coordinated with another capital project. A project that is not 
needed for many years would score lower than a project that needs to be completed before 
another project can start. The score should be based on answers to the following example 
questions: 


a. When is the proposed project needed? 
b. Do any other projects require the proposed project to be completed first? 
c. Does the proposed project require other projects to be completed first? 
d. Can the proposed project be completed in conjunction with another project for 


coordinated, efficient implementation? 
 
Scoring scale: 


 


0  2-3  5 
The project does 
not have a project 
dependency  


 The project can be 
completed in conjunction 
with another project for 
coordinated, efficient 
implementation   


 The project must be 
completed before 
another priority project 
can start 


 


4. Long-Term Planning – General Plan, Three-Corridor Specific Plan, 2020-2025 Strategic Plan, 
Long-Term Financial Plan, Pinole Economic Development Strategy, Master Plans, Emergency 
Operations Plan, Communication and Engagement Plan, Climate Action Plan, Local Road 
Safety Plan, Active Transportation Plan, Parks Master Plan, and departmental strategic plans 
which serve as a resource for the City to meet goals set forth by City departments, advisory 
boards and commissions, and the community at-large. Plans include documents that have 
been prepared internally to assure consistent adherence to industry best practices, as well as 
those documents that are created with the assistance of outside consultants. A component of 
long-term planning includes public discussion and/or public engagement. The score should be 
based on the answers to the following example questions: 


a. Is the proposed project contained in one or more of the City’s long-term planning 
documents? 


b. Is the proposed project listed as a high priority? 
 
Scoring scale: 
 


0  2-3  5 
The project is 
not part of any 
long-term 
planning 
document 


 The project is 
included in a long-
term planning 
document, but may 
not be high priority  


 The project is included 
in a long-term planning 
document and is a high 
priority 


 


820 of 829







 


 
 


5. State of Infrastructure – Projects that address failing infrastructure (i.e., sidewalks, streets, 
lighting, municipal buildings, recreation facilities) or facilities that have exceeded their useful 
life. The score should be based on answers to the following example questions: 


a. Does the proposed project maintain the condition or value of existing infrastructure? 
b. Does the proposed project avoid potential failure due to substandard conditions? 
c. Will the proposed project address a facility that is outdated or exceeded its useful life? 
d. Is the proposed project supported by a life cycle analysis of repair versus replacement 


and a master plan for that type of asset? 


Scoring scale: 


 
0  2-3  5 


The project 
maintains 
existing 
infrastructure 
at current 
service levels  
 


 The project extends the 
service life of an existing 
asset or adds new 
infrastructure to support 
growth 


 The project addresses 
existing infrastructure 
which has reached the 
end of its useful life and is 
supported by a life cycle 
analysis of repair vs. 
replacement 


 


6. Operating Budget Impact – Some proposed projects may impact the operating budget for the 
next few years or for the life of the facility. Some proposed projects can offer cost savings or 
revenue generation opportunities. The score should be based on answers to the following 
questions: 


a. Will the proposed project require additional personnel to operate? 
b. Will the proposed project require additional annual maintenance? 
c. Will the proposed project require additional equipment not included in the project 


budget? 
d. Will the proposed project reduce staff time and City resources thereby resulting in a 


positive impact on the operational budget? 
e. Are there cost savings or revenue generation opportunities as a result of the efficiency 


of the proposed project?  
 
Scoring scale: 


 
0  2-3  5 


The project will 
have a negative 
impact on the 
budget. It will 
require additional 
money to operate 
 


 The project will not 
impact the operating 
budget as it is 
cost/revenue neutral 


 The project will have a 
positive impact on the 
budget. It will result in 
significant savings in 
staff time, materials, or 
offer revenue 
generation 


 


821 of 829







 


 
 


7. Quality of Life – Projects that provide widespread economic prosperity, recreational and 
cultural activities, environmental benefits, beautify Pinole, and attract new residents and 
visitors. The score should be based on answers to the following example questions: 


a. Does the proposed project help to create a beautiful and clean community? 
b. Does the proposed project encourage participation in recreational and cultural 


activities? 
c. Does the proposed project attract new residents, businesses, or visitors? 
d. Does the proposed project increase environmental stewardship? 
e. Does the proposed project contribute towards economic development and revitalization 


efforts? 


Scoring scale: 


 


0  2-3  5 
The project will 
not have an 
impact on the 
quality of life for 
the Pinole 
community 


 The project has 
moderate impact on the 
quality of life for the 
Pinole community 


 The project greatly 
impacts the quality 
of life for the Pinole 
community 


 


8. Grant Funding – The proposed project is partially or fully supported by grants from State or 
Federal funds. The percentage of total cost funded by an external source will determine the 
score in this category. 
 
Scoring scale: 


 
0 1 2 3 4 5 


0% - 16% 
External 
Funding 
 


17% - 33% 
External 
Funding 


34% - 
50% 
External 
Funding 


51% - 67% 
External 
Funding 


68% - 84% 
External 
Funding 


85% to 
100% 
External 
Funding 


 


9. Sustainability and Conservation – The proposed project furthers the City’s sustainability and 


conservation goals. The score should be based on answers to the following example 
questions: 


a. Does the proposed project improve the health of the community and natural 
environment through sustainable designs with improved air quality and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions that contribute to climate change? 


b. Does the proposed project increase use of active modes of transportation and reduces 
the need for auto-dependency? 


c. Does the proposed project incorporate design that meets or exceeds federal and State 
standards in the field of energy efficiency, such as State of California Title 24 Energy 
Efficiency Standards, LEED building standards, etc.? 


822 of 829







 


 
 


 
Scoring scale: 
 


0  2-3  5 
The project will not 
impact the City’s 
ability to achieve 
sustainability and 
conservation goals  


 The project will have a 
modest positive impact 
on the City’s ability to 
achieve sustainability 
and conservation goals  


 The project will have 
a significant positive 
impact on the City’s 
ability to achieve 
sustainability and 
conservation goals  


 


 


 
 


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


823 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


12A 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL 
PROGRAM MANAGER 


SUBJECT: PROCUREMENT PROCESS FOR SUCCESSOR SOLID WASTE AND 
RECYCLABLES FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 


RECOMMENDATION 


Staff recommends that the City Council receive information and provide direction on the 
procurement process the City will take for successor solid waste and recyclables 
Franchise Agreement.  


BACKGROUND 


On August 18, 1986, the City entered into a Franchise Agreement with Richmond Sanitary 
Services, Inc. (RSS) to grant RSS the exclusive right and privilege to collect and deliver 
for disposal, recycling1 or processing2 of solid waste3 originating in the City of Pinole. This 
Franchise Agreement has been amended on several occasions throughout the years, 
including to reflect that RSS was acquired by Republic Services, Inc. (“Republic”). The 
Franchise Agreement will expire on June 30, 2025. The neighboring cities of Hercules, 
San Pablo, and Richmond and parts of unincorporated Contra Costa County also have 
similar Franchise Agreements with Republic which are set to expire on June 30, 2025. 


The final disposition of the collected solid waste and recyclables is handled by Republic 
through a Post Collection Recycling and Disposal Services Agreement (PCA) with 
RecycleMore which began on January 1, 2014 and terminates on June 30, 2025.  The 
City of Pinole is a member agency of the RecycleMore, a Joint Powers Authority, which 
was created by the Member agencies, the cities of El Cerrito, Hercules, Pinole, Richmond, 
San Pablo, and parts of unincorporated Contra Costa County. RecycleMore is also 
responsible for maintaining legislative compliance on behalf of all its member agencies 
with applicable state waste and recycling laws like AB 939, AB 1826, and SB 1383.  


1 As defined in State Public Resources Code Section 40180 
2 As defined in State Public Resources Code Section 40172 
3 As defined in State Public Resources Code Section 40191 


824 of 829







City Council Report  
June 6, 2023   2 


The City’s Garbage & Recycling webpage4 provides links to the Franchise Agreement 
and subsequent amendments. 
 
Although the expiration date of the Franchise Agreement is two years away, the process 
for arranging for ongoing solid waste and recycling services can take significant time. The 
City needs to decide what course to take to arrange its next Franchise Agreement. The 
course could be to negotiate an extension of the current Franchise Agreement with 
Republic, seek proposals from all interested vendors, or a combination of the two by 
giving Republic the first opportunity to propose a new long-term Franchise Agreement 
based on the deal points and terms and conditions desired by the City. 
 
In a letter to the City dated May 11, 2023, Republic expressed a desire to negotiate an 
extension of the term of the Franchise Agreement. Staff has met with Republic to learn 
about the approach Republic is proposing. Staff notified Republic that an item will be 
brought forth to the City Council on June 6, 2023 to seek direction on how to proceed 
regarding establishing the City’s next Franchise Agreement. 
 
The Richmond and San Pablo city councils recently directed their staff to issue requests 
for proposals (RFPs) to seek proposals from all interested vendors for their next solid 
waste and recyclables Franchise Agreements. San Pablo in addition directed staff to 
coordinate with other West County jurisdictions (i.e., Richmond, Pinole, and Hercules) 
regarding a joint competitive process for their respective Franchise Agreements. 
 
As noted above, the PCA between RecycleMore and Republic will expire on June 30, 
2025. RecycleMore is currently considering what course it will take to establish a 
successor PCA. At the May 11, 2023 RecycleMore board meeting, the Board of Directors 
formed an Ad Hoc Committee to assist the Executive Director to determine whether to 
negotiate with Republic for either an extension of the current PCA or a brand new PCA; 
or put the post collection services out to bid in an RFQ for a new PCA. The Executive 
Director will meet with the Ad Hoc Committee and return with the committee’s 
recommendation for the Board’s consideration in either June or July. The Richmond and 
San Pablo city councils recommended that RecycleMore use an open competitive 
process to identify the vendor for the successor PCA. 
 
REVIEW & ANALYSIS 
 
The City has several options to consider before the current Franchise Agreement expires 
on June 30, 2025. These include the following: 


1) An extension or new Franchise Agreement with Republic; 


 
4 https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/public_works/garbage___recycling  


825 of 829



https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/public_works/garbage___recycling

https://www.ci.pinole.ca.us/city_government/public_works/garbage___recycling





City Council Report  
June 6, 2023   3 


2) An initial negotiation with Republic and if an agreement cannot be reached 
followed by a competitive procurement; 


3) A competitive procurement process for the City of Pinole exclusively; and 
4) A competitive procurement process for Pinole and some combination of other West 


County jurisdictions. 
 
The California Public Resources Code section 40059 authorizes the City to determine if 
solid waste services can be provided by means of nonexclusive franchise, contract, 
license, permit, or otherwise, either with or without competitive bidding. The City of 
Pinole’s adopted Procurement Policy5 governs and outlines the necessary steps for all 
city procurement. 
 
The City’s Procurement Policy directs that the City should procure goods and services 
through an open and competitive process unless there are specific extenuating 
circumstances. The procurement policy allows for cooperative purchasing, in which the 
City jointly undertakes a procurement process with other public agencies to obtain goods 
and services by aggregating volume, securing value pricing, and reducing administrative 
overhead. 
 
The are several aspects for the City to consider when deciding which procurement 
process to undertake, including those listed below: 
 


• If the City would like to negotiate an extension or new Franchise Agreement with 
Republic, it should do so early enough to allow time for a competitive bid process 
in case the negotiation results are unsatisfactory to the City. 


• There is no guarantee that the City will achieve a better agreement through a 
competitive selection process opposed to a negotiated agreement.  


• Service transitions can be disruptive to customers. Although bidders would be 
required to submit detailed transition plans, transitions can nonetheless be 
disruptive to customers as contact information, billing addresses and accounts, 
collection days, and other things may change and require patience until new 
services settle in. 


• The City has not experienced any performance issues with Republic and there has 
been a long-standing history of successful performance in the City. 


• The City will need to complete a California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 
application to assess the level of environmental impact for a new and extension of 
the current Franchise Agreement.  


 
5 https://cdnsm5-
hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_10946972/File/Finance/Procurement%20Policy.pdf  


826 of 829



https://cdnsm5-hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_10946972/File/Finance/Procurement%20Policy.pdf

https://cdnsm5-hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_10946972/File/Finance/Procurement%20Policy.pdf

https://cdnsm5-hosted.civiclive.com/UserFiles/Servers/Server_10946972/File/Finance/Procurement%20Policy.pdf





City Council Report  
June 6, 2023   4 


• A new Franchise Agreement or an extension of the existing Franchise Agreement 
with the current hauler would likely qualify for a California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) exemption.  


• It is possible that a Franchise Agreement with a new hauler might qualify for a 
CEQA exemption also, but it will depend on how much and in what ways the new 
hauler differs from the current arrangement.  


• A new vendor will likely need 18 months or longer to procure new trucks due to 
lead time by vehicle manufacturers.  


• A competitive process will provide a market-based justification of resultant 
customer rate.  


• Jurisdictions working together or contracting can benefit financially under some 
circumstances as it relates to allowing the vendor to combine collection routes, 
sharing route supervisors and other resources between two or more jurisdictions. 


• Cooperative purchasing may attract additional, or more distant firms, which will 
increase the number of bidders and possibly result in better pricing.  


 
Council can direct staff to begin negotiations with Republic, follow a competitive 
procurement process, or solicit the assistance of a consultant to advise the City of what 
procurement process to undertake.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact directly related to the City Council’s consideration of the 
procurement process for successor solid waste and recyclables Franchise Agreement. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 
 
 


827 of 829







CITY COUNCIL 
REPORT 


12B 


DATE: JUNE 6, 2023 


TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS 


FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 


SUBJECT: SENIOR CENTER INTERIOR UPGRADES 


RECOMMENDATION 


It is recommended that the City Council receive this report and provide direction to staff. 


BACKGROUND 


At its meeting on May 2, 2023, the City Council approved a future Council agenda item 
to receive information on the status of Senior Center interior upgrades. 


In 2021, City staff walked through the Senior Center with Council Member Tave to identify 
potential interior upgrades that would make the building more attractive and marketable 
for private events. The group identified the potential upgrades listed below. 


Facility Renovations/Updates 
• Updating the speakers and sound system in the Main Hall.
• Add a ceiling Projector in the Main Hall.
• Fix or replace electric projector screen (does not work properly).
• Fix non-functioning electrical outlets.
• Add USB outlets to all electrical outlets or add a charging station.
• Replacing all electric window blinds.
• Installing updated TV’s in the Main Hall.
• Recoat/Repair the Main Hall Floor.
• Repair or replace separation panels in the Main Hall.
• Replace doors that do not work or framing (some doors are hard to open).
• Updating the ceiling due to appearance of water leak damage.
• Changing the ceiling panels in all of the spaces.
• New paint in every space.
• Updating lighting fixtures and light bulbs to LED.
• Replace the flooring throughout the facility (lobby and classrooms).
• Update Fireplace area.
• Suggested carpet panels.
• Update all the furniture in the lobby and classrooms.


828 of 829







City Council Report 
June 6, 2023   2 


 


 


Kitchen Renovations/Updates 
• New Steamer. 
• New ceiling tiles. 
• Reach-in Freezer. 
• New Doors on Glass Walk- in for Renters. 
• Garbage Disposal on Dish Area sink. 
• Garbage Disposal on Prep Sink Area. 
• Garbage Disposal on Sandwich Bar Sink. 
• New Shelving in Clean Dish Room. 
• New Dishware. 


 
The City has separately identified that the Senior Center is due for some building system 
updates, including a new roof and electrical system upgrades. A project was included in 
the FY 2022/23 through 2026/27 Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) to complete this work 
by June 30, 2025 (Project FA2202 - SENIOR CENTER MODERNIZATION). This project 
is also included in the proposed FY 2023/24 through 2027/28 CIP. 
 
REVIEW AND ANALYSIS 
 
Project FA2202 - SENIOR CENTER MODERNIZATION, which is included in the 
proposed FY 2023/24 through 2027/28 CIP, at a cost of $260,000, includes some, but not 
all, of the interior facility and kitchen updates listed above. The City Council can include 
in Project FA2202 all the interior and kitchen updates listed above by directing staff to 
update the capital project’s scope and increasing the project’s budget to $320,000 in the 
final proposed FY 2023/24 through 2027/28 CIP. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
There is no fiscal impact to receiving this report. 
  
ATTACHMENTS 
 
None 


829 of 829





		2023-06-06 HYBRID AGENDA FINAL

		9A

		9A-1

		9B

		9C

		staffreport_cip_3qtr

		DATE:   JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

		MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER

		SUBJECT: FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022/23 THIRD QUARTER REPORT ON STATUS OF CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) PROJECTS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		ATTACHMENT(S)



		Attachment A_Final_Proposed_CIP

		AttachmentB_CIP_QTR3_Update



		9D

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: ANDREW MURRAY, CITY MANAGER



		Recommendation

		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		9E

		DATE:   JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		SUBJECT: RECEIVE THE QUARTERLY REPORT ON IMPLEMENTATION OF THE GREENHOUSE GAS INVENTORY AND CLIMATE ACTION AND ADAPTATION PLAN FOR FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2022-23 THIRD QUARTER

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND



		9F

		SR FY 2022-23 Third Quarter Financial Report 6-6-23 FINAL

		DATE: JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT



		A - FY 2022-23 Third Quarter Financial Report



		9G

		SR Qtrly Invest Report (Q3) 6-6-23 FINAL

		DATE: JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW AND ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		A-Investment Report Q3

		March 2023 Summary

		March 2023 Detail



		B-Section 115 Trust Investment Report

		Q3 PARS Summary





		9H

		3Final City Council Report 6-6-2023 Measure J Growth Management Checklist - lw edits AM comms

		DATE: JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		3Final Reso_GMP_Measure J_Checklist_FY2122and2223-lw edits

		RESOLUTION NO. 2023-XX

		RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PINOLE, COUNTY OF CONTRA COSTA, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING THE SUBMITTAL OF CALENDAR YEARS 2020 AND 2021 GROWTH MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (GMP) COMPLIANCE CHECKLIST FOR ALLOCATION OF FISCAL YEARS 2021-22 AND ...



		EX A

		1CCTA_GMPChecklist_SignatureForm may 30 2023  Exhibit A

		1Fillable-CYs-2020-2021-GMP-Checklist Exhibit A

		Measure J Growth Management Program Compliance Checklist

		Review and Approval of Checklist

		Supplementary Information (Required)

		1. Action Plans

		2. Development Mitigation Program

		3. Address Housing Options

		4. Traffic Impact Studies

		5. Participation in Cooperative, Multi-Jurisdictional Planning

		6. Five-Year Capital Improvement Program

		7. Transportation Systems Management Program

		8. Adoption of a voter-approved Urban Limit Line

		9. Adoption of the Measure J Growth Management Element

		10.  Posting of Signs

		11. Maintenance of Effort (MoE)

		12. Submittal of LSM Reporting Form and Audit Reporting Form

		13. Other Considerations



		N/A

		NO

		YES

		1. Action Plans 

		NO

		YES

		2. Development Mitigation Program 

		NO

		YES

		3. Address Housing Options 

		N/A

		NO

		YES

		4. Traffic Impact Studies

		5. Participation in Cooperative, Multi-Jurisdictional Planning

		NO

		YES

		NO

		YES

		NO

		YES

		6. Five-Year Capital Improvement Program 

		NO

		YES

		7. Transportation Systems Management Program 

		N/A

		NO

		YES

		8. Adoption of a voter-approved Urban Limit Line 

		9. Adoption of the Measure J Growth Management Element 

		N/A

		NO

		YES

		N/A

		NO

		YES

		10. Posting of Signs 

		NO

		YES

		11. Maintenance of Effort (MoE) 

		NO

		YES

		12. Submittal of LSM Reporting and Audit Forms

		N/A

		NO

		YES

		13. Other Considerations





		EX B

		2020 APR - Tables A-C Exhibit B

		2021 APR - Tables A-C Exhibit B



		2022-2027 CIP jun 27 2022 Exhbit C

		Section 2.54 TSM Ordinance Exhbit D

		Chapter4 Growth Management Exhibit E

		Chapter7 Circulation Exhbit F



		9I

		Pinole - SR - 2022_2023 Pinole PD Military Equipment Annual Renewal (2nd Read)

		10A

		2022_2023 Pinole PD Military Equipment Annual Staff Report (003)

		Pinole_Ordinance Re-Adopting Military Equipment Use Policy (AB 481) 2023

		2022_2023 PPD Military Annual Report Document

		INTRODUCTION

		DEFINITIONS



		Equipment Purchase and Training Use

		Community Concerns and Complaints

		Internal Inventory & Audit (PPD Military Equipment)

		Projected Military Equipment Acquisition (2023/20224)



		PPD 707 Military_Equipment_Funding__Acquisition_and_Use_Policy





		9J

		Staffreport Hazel St Award

		DATE:   JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: MISHA KAUR, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER

		SUBJECT: AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR HAZEL STREET STORM DRAIN IMPROVEMENTS (CIP PROJECT # SW1901)

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS

		FISCAL IMPACT



		ATTACHMENT(S)



		AttachmentA_ResoHazelSt

		AttachmentB_Construction_contract

		CONTRACT FOR SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS at APPIAN WAY AND MARLESTA ROAD

		INSTRUCTIONS FOR EXECUTION OF INSTRUMENTS

		INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CITY OF PINOLE





		9K

		staffreport_SB1

		DATE: JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW AND ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		SB 1 funding augments the annual gas tax funding the City receives for road maintenance. Adopting this detailed project description is required to receive SB 1 funds.  Without this action the City would lose our SB 1 allocation of $468,053 for FY 2023...

		The Final Revised Capital Improvement Plan FY 2023/24 presented to Council for adoption includes this project.

		ATTACHMENTS





		Reso_SB1



		9L

		DATE: JUNE 6, 2023

		TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

		SUBJECT: PUBLIC COMMUNICATION PLAN REGARDING CITY STREET CONDITION AND PAVEMENT MANAGEMENT PROGRAM

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW AND ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		9M

		ccsr 6-6-23 EDS Year 1 Implementation

		DATE:   JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		SUBJECT: RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT WITH RSG, INC. FOR ASSISTANCE WITH IMPLEMENTATION OF VARIOUS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT ACTION STEPS IN YEAR 1 OF THE ADOPTED ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT STRATEGY

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND



		Attachment A ccreso - RSG 6-6-23

		Attachment B - Pinole EDS Implementation_RSG Proposal rev 4.27.23

		Exhibit A - Consulting Services Agreement

		CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF PINOLE AND RSG

		4.2 Commercial General and Automobile Liability Insurance.

		4.3 Professional Liability Insurance.

		4.4 All Policies Requirements.

		Section 6. STATUS OF CONSULTANT.

		Section 7. LEGAL REQUIREMENTS.

		Section 8. TERMINATION AND MODIFICATION.

		Section 9. KEEPING AND STATUS OF RECORDS.

		Section 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

		EXHIBIT A SCOPE OF SERVICES

		EXHIBIT B





		9N

		ccsr 6-6-23 SEI Amendment Climate Corps - Final

		DATE: JUNE 6, 2023

		TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND



		ccreso Amendment No. 1 - 6-6-23

		Attachment A Exhibit A - SEI Amendment No 1



		9O

		ccsr 6-6-23 DIF MBI - Final

		DATE:   JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		SUBJECT: ADOPT RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A SECOND AMENDMENT TO A CONSULTING SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH MICHAEL BAKER INTERNATIONAL (MBI) TO COMPLETE DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEES STUDY

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND



		Attachment A ccreso - MBI 6-6-23 Final

		Attachment A, Exhibit A - MBI Task Order No. 2

		Attachment B-  2023 Impact Fee Study Update Proposal(ac)

		Scope of Work

		Task 1: Conduct Kickoff Meeting to Discuss Status of the 2019 Draft Impact Fee Report

		Task 2: Review and Verify Improvements, Cost of Improvements

		Task 3: Review Growth Projections and Verify Levels of Service

		Task 4: Nexus Analysis and Confirm Findings

		Task 5: Prepare and Submit Draft and Final Nexus Report/Attend Meetings and Public Hearing



		Schedule

		Budget

		Staff



		Attachment C- DIF - Agreement (Executed)

		Attachment D- DIF - Amendment 3 (Executed)



		9P

		Staff Report on IIJA__6-6-23Final

		DATE:   JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM:   MARKISHA GUILLORY, FINANCE DIRECTOR

		SUBJECT: REPORT ON HOW THE CITY IS PREPARING TO APPLY FOR FUNDS FROM THE INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENT AND JOBS ACT (IIJA)

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW AND ANALYSIS



		AttA_IIJA

		AttB_CalSTA_summary-IIJA

		AttC-Open-and-Upcoming-NOFO

		OPEN FUNDING OPPORTUNITIES TO APPLY FOR TODAY





		10A

		SR UUT Annual Review 6-6-23 FINAL

		DATE: JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:  MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW AND ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS





		RESO Approving levels for UUT exemptions

		A - PG&E CARE Program Guidelines



		11A

		SR FY23-24 Rev Prop Budget 6-6-23 FINAL

		A - Rev Prop FY2023-24 Operating and Capital Budget



		11B

		staffreport_cip_revised_proposed_0606

		DATE:   JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER

		SUBJECT: REVISED PROPOSED FISCAL YEAR (FY) 2023/24 THROUGH 2027/28 FIVE-YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS



		ATTACHMENT



		AttachmentA_RevisedProposedCIP



		12A

		DATE:   JUNE 6, 2023

		TO:    MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: MISHA DHILLON, CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT AND ENVIRONMENTAL PROGRAM MANAGER

		SUBJECT: PROCUREMENT PROCESS FOR SUCCESSOR SOLID WASTE AND RECYCLABLES FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW & ANALYSIS





		12B

		DATE: JUNE 6, 2023

		TO: MAYOR AND COUNCIL MEMBERS

		FROM: SANJAY MISHRA, PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

		SUBJECT: SENIOR CENTER INTERIOR UPGRADES

		Recommendation



		BACKGROUND

		REVIEW AND ANALYSIS



		FISCAL IMPACT

		ATTACHMENTS







		Reporting Jurisdiction: City of Pinole

		Date: 

		Name and Title print: 

		and found that the policies and programs of the jurisdiction as reported herein conform to the: City of Pinole

		Date_2: 

		Name and Title print_2: Devin Murphy

		Date_3: 

		Name print: Heather Bell

		1a: Yes

		1bi: N/A

		1bii: N/A

		1biii: N/A

		1c: N/A

		2a: Yes

		2b: Yes

		Clear: 

		3a: Yes

		3b: Yes

		3c: Yes

		Jurisdiction: City of Pinole 

		4a: N/A

		4b: N/A

		5a: Yes

		5b: Yes

		5c: Yes

		5d: Yes

		6: Yes

		7: Yes

		8a: N/A

		8b: N/A

		9: Yes

		10: N/A

		11: Yes

		12: Yes

		13: N/A

		Name/Title: David Hanham, Planning Manager

		Prep Date: 

		Mayor Date: 

		Clerk Date: 

		Email: dhanham@ci.pinole.ca.us

		Phone: David Hanham, Planning Manager

		Mayor Name/Title: Devin Murphy

		Clerk Name: Heather Bell

		Board: City of Pinole

		1A: The City of Pinole continues to work with WCCTAC and west Contra Costa jurisdictions to implement the Action Plan for Routes of Regional Significance within the City of Pinole. The City completed a General Plan update in 2010 which includes policy support for the implementation of the Action Plan. 

		1B: The City of Pinole did not approve any General Plan Amendments in the current planning period. 

		1B2: SAHA Project - 33 affordable units for veterans. As a part of the design review condition 1 require the project be within substantial compliance with the Design Review which included on-site secured bike racks and lockers.  Condition 26 requires the applicant to complete sidewalk repairs. SAHA also agreed to comply with TDMs that include transit information, BART information for their residents.Vista Woods - 179 Senior Affordable Project.  Condition 31 requires the project complete a TDM program that includes bus passes, shared ride vehicles or shuttles, bus shelters will be added to the current stop . Condition 52 requires sidewalk, gutter, and sidewalk repair/replacement. 

		2A: The City has adopted STMP fees that are required for Development. The City submits those fees to WCCTAC are per requirements of Measure J.

		4: The City of Pinole has not had development projects that have generated more than 100 net new peak hours trips.

		6A: The City has attached the most current CIP program. The last CIP approval was June 21, 2022 with Resolution 22-46.

		7A: The City has attached the TSM ordinance approved by the City Council.

		8A: There has been no change to approved urban limit line for the City of Pinole.

		9A: The City has attached the Measure J Growth Management Element.

		10A: 

		11A: 

		13A: 

		Return to Agenda: 






